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PREFACE

This book started as research into trying to understand some things my Dad told

me. When [ was first writing on the subject, I contacted several publishers and was po-
litely rold, by the one that answered, they “didn’t want to take on Skull & Bones.”

An article of mine was published online at www.parascope.com, which was well re-
ceived. From that article and a friendship with Antony Sutton — came this book.

The Internet has become an astounding force whose cultural and political realities
are still to be understood and it’s power is forcing change that continues today — with
an unknown ending. The Internet has allowed uncensored national discussion, en-
gendered understandings and energized a potent plebeian power whose creativity is
countering the secretive sophism thar ruins our republic and economy through covert
corrupt means. The question remains: will the dreamscape that enthralls vast numbers
continue its hoodwink, and will our children wake up slaves in a mean, technologi-
cally locked-down fascist state, or will they continue to slumber in the propaganda
and hidden corruption of the celebrity-laden delusion of the contrived virtual reality
friendly fascism that the secret societies have created around us — or will the Interner
and other factors bring about a revival of our civic heritage and liberty.

The most important thing that I would like folks to understand from this work
is that the secrecy of these organizations is not good for our Republic. These secret
societies are historically foreign-based and do not care about this country. Their ends
justifies the means zerrgesst leads to massive corruption and the “instrutionalized
sociological” excess of “elite deviancy.” Where a certain few believe that they are
beyond the law and then through corrupted political and economic power — act
above the law, through whatever means at their disposal. One question this book
examines is whether there is any truth in the age-old lore of the conspiracy theory of
history — are we are dealing with a multi-generational, necromantic, synarchistic
phenomenon? Have secret societies created a national security state apparatus to
beguile us hoi polloi of our economic, civic and spiritual integrity? Do these secret
societies create and play both sides in controlled conflicts to produce ourcomes o
turther their New World Order millenniumist designs?

Porch brethren are requirement for a secrer society to work and many in rhese
organizations, magickal and fraternal are unawares of any deeper mortivacions of the
elite leadership of the group. It is when these secret organizations with members in
high political office exert their inAuence towards goals unknown and/or unbecoming
that we citizens should take notice — and action.

Mysticism and fellowship are not bad and evil things. They are just like any thing.
It is what people do with them ... their actions that do ill or good in this world.

Secrecy and our Republic do not mix.

Our children’s future is what we leave them.
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EVERYTHING YOU EVER
WANTED TO ASK, BUT WERE
AFRAID TO KNOW

KriS MILLEGAN

AVPEARED ONLINE JULY 1996, AT WW PARASCOPE.COM — NOW AT Www, BOODLEBOYS.COM

HE STORY BEGINS AT YALE, where three threads of American
social history — espionage, drug smuggling and secret societies

— intertwine into one.
Elihu Yale was born near Bosron, educared in London, and | '
served with the British East India Company, eventually becom-
ing governor of Fort Saint George, Madras, India in 1687. He |
amassed a great fortune from trade and returned to England in
1699. Yale became known as a philanthropist; upon receiving
a request from the Collegiate School in Connecricut, he sent a
donation and a gift of books. After subsequent bequests, Cotton
Mather suggested the school be named Yale College in 1718.

A statue of Nathan Hale stands on Old Campus ar Yale University. A copy
of that statue stands in front of the CIA’s headquarters in Langley, Virginia. Yet
another stands in front of Phillips Academy in Andover, Massachusetts (where

George H.W. Bush
age of 12),
wh Ty

went to prep school and joined his first secret sociery at the

Nathan Hale, along with three other Yale graduates, was
a member of the “Culper Ring,” one of America’s first intel-
ligence operations. Established by George Washingron, it was
successful throughout the Revolutionary War. Nathan was
the only operative to be ferreted out by the British, and after
speaking his famous regrets, he was hanged in 1776, Ever
since the founding of the Republic, the relationship between
Yale and the Intelligence Community has been unique,
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In 1823, Samuel Russell established Russell and
Company for the purpose of acquiring opium in Tur-
key and smuggling it to China. Russell and Company
| merged with the Perkins (Bos[on) syndlcatc in IS%().md

rJ:le great American and European Fortuncs were budt on
‘ﬁ the “China”(opium) rrade.

4/ One of Russell and Company’s Chief of Operations

® in Canton was Warren Delano, Jr., grandfacher of Frank-
Samuel Russcll lin D. Roosevelt. Other Russell partners included John

Cleve Green (who financed Princeton), Abiel Low (who financed construction

of Columbia), Joseph Coolidge and the Perkins, Srurgis and Forbes families.

(Coolidge’s son organized the United Fruit company, and his grandson, Archibald

(, Coolldge was a co-founder of the Council on Foreign Relations.)

PPN 1T T SRR William Huntingron Russell (S&B 1833), Samuel’s

: - | cousin, studied in Germany from 1831-32. Germany was
a hotbed of new ideas. The “scientific method” was being
applied to all forms of human endeavor. Prussia, which
blamed the defeat of its forces by Napoleon in 1806 on
soldiers only thinking abour themselves in the stress of
_ battle, took the principles set forth by John Locke and
1l 3 | Jean Rousseau and created a new educational system.
Wil H. Rusl | Johan Wolfgang Firche, in his "Address to the German
People.” declared that the children would be taken over by the State and rold
what to think and how to think it.

Georg Wilhelm Friedrich Hegel took over Fitche’s chair at the Universicy OF
Berlin in 1817 and was a professor there until his death in 1831. Hegel was the
culmination of the German idealistic philosophy school of Immanuel Kanr.

To Hegel, our world is a world of reason. The state is Absolute Reason and the
citizen can only become free by worship and obedience
to rthe stare. Hegel called the state the “march of God in
the world” and the “final end.” This final end, Hegel said,
“has supreme right against the individual, whose supreme
duty is to be a member of the state.” Both fascism and
communism have their philosophical roots in Hegelian-
ism. Hegelian philosophy was very much in vogue during Y
William Russell’s time in Germany. _ Georg Hegel

When Russell returned to Yale in 1832, he formed a senior society with Al-
phonso Taft (S&B 1833). According to information acquired from a break-in to
the “tomb” (the Skull and Bones meeting hall) in 1876, “Bones is a chapter of a
corps in a German University ... General Russell, its founder, was in Germany
before his Senior Year and formed a warm friendship with a leading member of
a German society. He brought back with him to college, authority to found a

’
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chaprer here.” So class valedictorian William H. Russell, along with 14 others,
became the founding members of “The Oxder of Scull and Bones,” later changed
to “The Order of Skull and Bones.”

The secretive Order of Skull and Bones exists
only at Yale. Fifteen juniors are "tapped” each year
by the seniors to be initiated into next year’s group.
Some say cach initiate is given $15,000 and a grand-
father clock. Far from being a campus fun-house,
the group is geared more toward the success of its
members in the post-collegiate world.

The family names on the Skull and Bones roster roll off the tongue like an
elite party list — Lord, Whiwmey, Taft, Jay, Bundy, Harriman, Weyerhaeuser,
Pinchot, Rocketeller, Goodyear, Sloane, Stimson, Phelps, Perkins,
Pillsbury, Kellogg, Vanderbilt, Bush, Lovetr and others.

William Russell went on to become a general and a state
legislator in Connecticut. Alphonso Taft was appointed US

Attorney General, Secretary of War (a post many “Bones-
men” have held), Ambassador to Austria,
and Ambassador to Russia (another post
held by many “Bonesmen”). His son, Wil- ‘
liam Howard Taft (S&B 1878), is the only
man to be both President of the United States
and Chief Justice of the Supreme Court.

Alp?mmo Taft

William H. Taft

SECRETS OF THE “TOMB”

THF. ORDER FLOURISHED from the very beginning in spite of occasional
squalls of controversy. There was dissension from some professors, who
objected to its secrecy and exclusiveness. And there was backlash from students,
showing concern about the influence “Bones™ was having over Yale finances and
the favoritism shown to “Bonesmen.”

In October, 1873, Volume 1, Number 1, of The leonoclast was published
in New Haven. It was only published once and was one of only a few apenly
published articles on the Qrder of Skull and Bones.

From The Iconoclast:

We speak through a new publication, because the college press is closed 10
those who dare to openly mention ‘Bones'....

Out of every class Skull and Bones takes s men. They have gone out mnto
the world and have become, in many instances, leaders in society. They have
obtained control of Yale. Its business 1s performed by them. Money paid to the
college must pass into their hands, and be subject to their will. No doubt they are
worthy men in themselves, but the many, whom they looked down upon while
i college, cannot so far forget as to give money freely into their hands. Men
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Wall Street complain that the college comes straight to them for help, instead
of asking each graduate for his share. The reason is found in a remark made by
one of Yale's and America’s first men: ‘Few will give bur Bones men and they
care far more for their society than they do for the college ...

Year by vear the deadly evil is growing. The soctety was never as obnoxious
to the college as it is today, and it is just this l-feeling that shuts the pockets of
non-members. Never before has it shown such arrogance and self-fancied superior-
ity. It grasps the College Press and endeavors to rule it all. It does not deign to
show its credentials, but clutches at power with the silence of conscious guilt.

To tell the good which Yale College has done would be well migh impossible.
To tell the good she might do would be yet more difficult. The question, then, is
reduced to this — on the one hand lies a source of incalculable good — on the other
a society gulty of serious and far-reaching crimes. It is Yale College against Skull and
Bones!! We ask all men, as a question of right, which should be allowed to live?

At first, the society held its meetings in hired halls. Then in 1856, the “Tomb,”
a windowless, brown-stone meeting hall, was constructed, where to this day the
“Bonesmen” hold their “strange, occulrish” initiation rites and meet each Thurs-
day and Sunday. T
On Seprember 29, 1876, a group calling itself
The Order of File and Claw broke into the Skull
and Bones” holy of holies. In the “tomb™ they
found lodge-room 324 “fitted up in black velvet,
even the walls being covered with the mate-
rial.” Upstairs was lodge-room 322, “the sanc-
tum sanctorym of the |1
temple ... furnished in lll '
red velvet” with a pen-
tagram on the wall. In =
the hall are “picrures of
> the founders of Bones [FN0 FITSISSsaae
FILE AND CLAW. atYaJt:_. and of members = “ The Tomh - 1864 ===

of the Society in Germany, when the chapter was established here in 1832." The
raiding party found another interesting scene in the parlor next to room 322,

From The Fall Of Skull And Bones.

On the west wall, hung among other pictures, an old engraving representing
an open burial vault, in which, on a stone slab, rest four human skulls, grouped
about a fools cap and bells, an open book, several mathematical instruments,
a beggar's scrip, and a royal crown. On the arched wall above the vault are the
explanatory words, in Roman letters, “We War Der Thor, Wer Weiser, Wer Bet-
tler Oder, Kaiser?’ and below the vault is engraved, in German characters, the

sentence; 'Ob Arm, Ob Beich, im Tode gleich.’
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The picture is accompanied by a card on which 1s written, ‘From the German
Chapter. Presented by D. C. Gilman of D. 50",

Daniel Coir Gilman (1852), along with rwo other “Bonesmen,” formed a troika
which still influences American life today. Soon after their initiation in Skull and
Bones, Daniel Gilman, Timothy Dwight (1849) and Andrew Dickinson White
(1853) went to study philosophy in Europe at the University of Berlin. Gilman
returned from Europe and incorporated Skull and Bones as the Russell Trust in
1856, with himself as Treasurer and William H. Russell as President. He spent
the next 14 years in New Haven consolidating the order’s power.

Gilman was appointed Librarian at Yale in 1858. Through shrewd political
maneuvering, he acquired funding for Yale’s science departments
(Sheffield Scientific School) and was able to get the Morrill Land ¢
Bill introduced in Congress, passed and finally signed by Presi-
dent Lincoln, after being vetoed by President Buchanan.

This bill, “donating public-lands for State College for

agriculture and sciences,” is now known as the Land Grant
College Act. Yale was the first school in America 1o get the |
federal land scrip and quickly grabbed all of Connecticut’s
share at the time. Pleased by the acquisitions, Yale made Gil- |
man a Professor of Physical Geography.

Daniel was the first President of the University of California. He
also helped found, and was the first president of, John Hopkins.

Daniel €. Gilman j




FLESHING QUT SKULL & BONES — INVESTIGATIONS INTO AMERICA'S MOST POWERFUL SECRET SOCIETY

Gilman was first president of the Carnegie Institution and involved in the
founding of the Peabody, Slater and Russell Sage Foundations.

His buddy, Andrew D. White, was the first president of Cornell University
(which received all of New York's share of the Land Grant College Act), U.S.
Minister to Russia, U.S. Ambassador to Berlin and first president of the American
Historical Association. White was also Chairman of the American delegation to
the first Hague Conference in 1899, which established an
international judiciary.

Timothy Dwight, a professor at Yale Divinity School, was
installed as president of Yale in 1886, All presidents since have
been either “Bonesmen” or directly tied to the
Order and its interests.

The Daniel/Gilman/White trio was
also responsible for the founding of the American Economic
Association, the American Chemical Society and the Ameri-
can Psychological Association. Through their influences on
_ John Dewey and Horace Mann, this trio continues to have
Timothy Dwight [ an enormous impact on education today.

NETWORKS OF POWER R

N HIS BOOK AMERICAS SECRET ESTABLISHMENT, Antony Sutton outlined the

Order of Skull and Bones ability to establish vertical and horizontal “chains
of influence” that ensured the continuity of their conspiratorial schemes.

The Whitney-Stimson-Bundy links represent the “vertical chain.”

W. C. Whitney (S&B 1863), who married Flora Payne (of the Standard Oil/
Payne dynasty), was Secretary of the Navy. His attorney was a man named Elihu
Root. Root hired Henry Stimson (S&B 1888), out of law school. Stimson took over
from Root as Secretary of War in 1911, appointed by fellow Bonesman William
Howard Taft. Stimson later became Coolidge’s Governor-General of the Philippine
Islands, Hoover's Secrerary of Stare, and Secretary of War during
the Roosevelt and Truman Administrations.

Hollister Bundy (S&B '09) was Stimson's special assistant
and point man in the Pentagon for the Manhattan Project.
His two sons, also members of Skull and Bones, were William
Bundy (S&B '39) and McGeorge Bundy (S&B '40) — both
very active in governmental 'mci h)u_ndatmn aftairs.

The two brothers, from
their positions in the CIA, the Department
of Defense and the State Department, and as
Special Assistants to Presidents Kennedy and
Johnson, exercised significant impact on the
flow of information and intelligence during
the Vietnam “War."

- 4] Mt‘urge Bundy and LB] |5
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William Bundy went on to be editor of Foreign Affairs, the influential quarterly
of the Council on Foreign Affairs (CFR). McGeorge became president of the
Ford Foundation. |
Another interesting group of “Bonesmen” is the Harriman/ |

‘ Bush crowd. Averell Harriman (S&B '13), “El- |
der Statesman” of the Democratic Party, and |
his brother Roland Harriman (S&B '17) were |
very active members. In fact, four of Roland’s |
fellow “Bonesmen” from the class of 1917 |
were directors of Brown Brothers, Harriman,
including Prescott Bush (S&B "17), George HW Bush’s dad.

Since the turn of the century, two investment bank firms — Guaranty Trust
and Brown Brothers, Harriman — were both dominated by members of Skull
and Bones. These two firms were heavily involved in the financing of Commu-
nism and Hitler’s regime.

Bonesman share an affinity for the Hegelian ideas of the historical dialectic,
which dictates the use of controlled conflict (thesis versus anti-thesis) w creare
a pre-determined synthesis. This being a synthesis of their making and design,
where the state is absolute and individuals are granted their freedoms based on
their obedience to the state — a New Warld Order.

Funding and political maneuvering on the part of “Bonesmen” and their al-
lies helped the Bolsheviks prevail in Russia, In defiance of federal laws, the cabal
financed industries, established banks 2
and developed oil and mineral deposits
in the fledgling USSR.

Later, Averell Harriman, as minister
to Great Britain in charge of Lend-Lease
for Britain and Russia, was responsible e |
for shipping entire factories into Russia. Robert Lovett, Winston Churchill, Dean
According to some researchers, Harriman W_Acheson (Scroll & Key) and Averell Harriman
also oversaw the transfer of nuclear secrets, plutonium and US dollar printing
plates to the USSR.

In 1932, the Union Banking Corporation of New York City was established
with four directors from the 1917 S&B cell and two Nazi bankers associated
with Fritz Thyssen, who had been financing Hitler since 1923.

From George Bush; The Unauthorized Biography.

President Franklin Roosevelt’s Alien Property Custodian, Leo T. Crowley, signed
Vesting Order Number 248 [11/17/42] seizing the property of Prescott Bush under
the Trading with Enemy Act. The order, published in obscure government record
books and kept out of the news,” explained nothing about the Nazis involved;
only that the Union Banking Corporation was run for the Thyssen family of
Germany and/or Hungary — nationals ... of a designated enemy country.
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By deciding that Prescott Bush and the other directors of the Union Banking
Corporation were legally tront men for the Nazis, the government avoided the
more important historical issue: [n what way were Hitler's Nazis themselves hired,
armed, and instructed by the New York and London clique of which Prescott
Bush was an executive manager?

*New York Times, December 16, 1944, ran a five-para-
graph page 25 article on actions of the New York State
Banking Department. Only the last sentence refers to the
Nazi bank, as follows: The Union Banking Corporation,
39 Broadway, New York, has received authonity to change
its principal place of business to 120 Broadway.

The Times omitted the fact that the Union Banking
Corporation had been seized by the government for
trading with the enemy, and the fact that 120 Broadway
was the address of the government’s Alien Property
Custodian.

——

After the war, Prescott went on to become a US Senator from Connecticut and
favorite golfing partner of President Eisenhower. Prescott claims some responsibil-
ity for getting Richard Nixon into politics and takes personal credit for bringing
Dick on board as Ike's running mate in 1952,

NAME ROSTER OF THE SECRET ESTABLISHMENT
THERE WERE SO MANY “YALIES” IN THE OSS (Office of Strategic Services)
that Yale's drinking tune, the “Whiffenpoof Song,” became an “unofficial”
song of the OSS. Many in the OSS were "Bonesmen” or belonged to the other
Yale senior societies.
Robert Lovert (S8B *18), Harriman's childhood friend, had been tapped into Skull &
Bones by Prescott Bush's cell of ‘17 and was a director at Brown Brothers, Harriman.

Again, from George Bush: The Unauthorized Biography:

On October 22, 1945, Secretary of War Robert Patterson created the Lovett
Committee, chaired by Robert A. Lovett, 1o advise the government on the post-
World War II orgamization of U.S, intelligence activities ... The new agency would
‘consult” with the armed forces, but it must be the sole collecting agency in
the field of foreign espionage and counterespionage. The new
agency should have an independent budget, and its appropria-
tions should be granted by Congress without public hearings,
Lovett appeared before the Secretaries of State, War, and Navy
on November 14, 1945 .. Lovett pressed for a virtual resump-
tion of the wartime Office of Strategic Services (OSS) ... The
CIA was established in 1947 according to the prescription of
Robert Lovett, of Jupiter Island. [Florida| Robert A, Lovett
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Gaddis Smith, a history professor ar Yale, said, “Yale has influenced the Central
Intelligence Agency more than any other university, giving the CIA the atmosphere
of a class reunion.” And “Bonesman” have been foremost among the “spooks”
building the CIA’s “haunted house.”

F Trubee Davison (S&B “18) was Director of Personnel at the CIA in the carly years.
Some of the “Bonesmen” connected with the intelligence communicy have been:

L]

-

Sloane Coffin, Jr. (S&B ‘49)

V. Van Dine (S&B ‘49)

James Buckley (S&B *44)

Bill Buckley (S&B 'S0)

Hugh Cunningham (S&B *34)

Hugh Wilson (S&B ‘09)

Reuben Holden (S&B '40)

Charles R. Walker (S&B *16)

Yale’s ‘unofhcial” Secretary of War, Robert D. French (S&B '10)
Archibald MacLeish (S&B ‘15)

Dino Pionzio (S&B *50), CIA Deputy Chief of Station during Allende
overthrow

William and McGeorge Bundy

Richard A. Moore (S&B '36)

Senator David Boren (S&B '63)

Senator John Kerry (S&B '66)

...and, of course, George Herbert Walker Bush. Bush tapped Coftin, who tapped

Buckley.

Some other prominent "Bonesmen” include:

Henry Luce (S&B "20), Time-Lite

¢ John Themas Daniels (S&B ‘14), founder Archer Daniels Midland

Gifford Pinchot (S&B 1889), President Theodore Roosevelt's chief forester
Frederick E. Weverhaeuser (S&B 1896)

Harold Stanley (S&B 08), founder of Morgan Stanley, investment banker
Alfred Cowles (S&B "13), Cowles Communications

Henry I Davison (S&B "20), senior partner Morgan Guaranty Trust
Thomas Cochran (S&B '04) Morgan partner

John Heinz (S&B 31) CEQO Heinz Foods

Pierre Jay (S&B 1892), first chairman of the Federal Reserve Bank of
New York

George Herbert Walker, Jr. (S&B 27), financier and co-founder of the NY Mets
Fred Smith (S&B *66), founder, CEO and President of Federal Express
Artemus Gates (S&B “18), President of New York Trust Company, Union
Pacific, TIME, Boeing

William Draper [l (S&B '50), the Defense Department, UN, Import-
Export Bank
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* Dean Witter, [r.(S&B '44), investment banker

* Senator Jonathan Bingham (S&B “36)

*» Potrer Stewart (S&B “36), Supreme Court Justice

» Senator John Chaffe (S&B '47)

* Harry Payne Whitney (S&B 1894), married Gertrude Vanderbilt,
investment banker

* Russell W. Davenport (S&B ‘23), editor Fortune Magazine, created Fortune 500 list

* Evan G. Galbraith (S&B '50), Ambassador to France and Managing
Director of Morgan Stanley

* Richard Gow (S&B '55), president Zapara Oil

* Amory Howe Bradford (S&B “34), husband of Carol Warburg Rothschild
and general manager for the New York Times

» C. E. Lord (S&B *49), Comptroller of the Currency

* Winston Lord (S&B '59), Chairman of the
Council on Foreign Relations, Ambassador to
China and assistant Secretary of State in the
Clinton administration

Ever since Nixon re-established America’s political
relationship with China, many of our ambassadors
that country have been Bonesmen, including George #
HW Bush, the first Chief U. S. Liaison Officer to the

Peoples Republic of China.

CHINA AND THE OPIUM WARS
WHY ALL THIS INTEREST IN CHINA? Well, I
among other things, China is one of the largest |
producers and users of opiates in the world. Barh
For a period, in the 1800s, the Yankee Clippers in Connecticut and Massachu-
setts were the lastest ships on the ocean. Speed was crucial to the opium trade;
whoever made the trip from Turkey/India to Macao/Hong Kong/Shanghai first
got the most for their goods.

During the Opium Wars, the U.S. chose to stand on the sidelines and cheer
for the English and French, knowing that treary obligations would bring the ULS.
¥ a share in the spoils. Russell and Company
"| was at times the only trading house operat-
ing in Canton and used the opportunity
to developed strong commercial ties and
handsome profits.

Powerful national interests were behind
the drug trade. American traders were badly
in need of trade goods that the Chinese
would buy, since by this rime our natural

ara and Gore HW Bush in |'Iln,l

Charmer launched Oct. 1854 for .
Bush & Wildes, Boston
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trade items, such as fur seals and ginseng were in depletion. If the Chinese had not
bought opium from Americans, then United States imports of silk, porcelain and tea
would have to paid in precious coin, which was in short supply. In 1843, when the
Port of Shanghai was opened. Russell and Co. was one of its earliest traders.

In 1903, Yale Divinity
School set up a program §
of schools and hospirals in
China. Mao Zedong was 8
among the staff. During
the incrigues of China
in the 1930s and "40s,
American intelligence
called upon the resources
of “Yale in China,” and {
George Bush's cousin and fellow “Bonesman” Reuben Holden,

After stints as UN Ambassador and Chairman of the Republican National
Committee for the beleaguered Richard Nixon, George Bush was sent to look after
the "China trade.” The Bush family is still very much involved in the economic
activities of “Red” China,

Many researchers contend that George Bush has been
with the CIA since the early 1950s, and that one of his jobs
was 1o consolidate and co-ordinate the worldwide narcotics
industry, the largest industry on Earth. Some say that one of |
the reasons behind the Vietnam “Police Action” was a cover

George HW Bush
UN Ambassador

THE WAR ON DRUGS: AN “INTELLECTUAL FRAUD”

B; FORE THE VIETNAM “WAR,” the Golden Triangle was run by French
intelligence operatives and Corsican mobsters, After the French bailed our
and America moved in, the triangle was run by U.S, intelligence, with aid from
Sicilian maobsters. This narcotics network is well documented in The Politics of
Heroin in S, E. Asia by Alfred McCoy, The Grear Heroin Coup by Henrik Kruger
and Double-Cross by Sam and Chuck Giancana. ")

for the consolidation of the "Golden Triangle.”

Vice-President George Bush, as Chairman of Presi-
dent Reagan's cabinet-level working group and as Direc- |
tor of the National Narcotics Interdicrion System. was
the highest US governmental official involved in the
“war on drugs.”

Frances Mullen, Jr., former head of the Drug Entorce-

ment Agency (DEA), called Bush's efforts “an intellecrual

: ; R RTIE : 5 ¢ ' Bush
fraud” and “a liability rather than an asset.” Soon after CIA Bilector

these statements, Mullen resigned and the resultant f
General Accounting Office (GAO) report was buried.

11
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[n July, 1985, the suppressed GAO paper reported that there were “no benefits
from the Nartional Narcotics Border Interdiction System, directed by George
Bush. In fact, the overall effect was to encourage supply ...."

Monika Jensen-Stevenson, a 60 Minutes producer, quit her job after the CBS
news program refused to air the story she had uncovered relating 1o the covert drug
trade. Her book. Kiss The Boys Goodbye, among other things, details how the US
intelligence community used the apparatus of the POW/MIA governmental agen-
cies as a cover for the trafficking of opiates from the “Golden Triangle” area.

President Reagan appointed Reform Party founder and Texas billionaire Ross
Perat to the President’s Advisory Council on
Foreign Intelligence. Reagan made Perot a
special presidential investigator, looking
into America’s POW and MIAs from the
Vietnam “War.”

Ross took the job to heart and spent con-
siderable time and money in pursuit of the
quest. He was given special clearance and
access. He asked questions and interviewed everyone he could find,

From Kiss The Boys Goodbye:

Relations between Bush and Perot had gone downhill ever since the Vice-

President had asked Ross Perot how his POW/MIA mvestigations were going.

“Well, George, I go in looking for prisoners,” said Perot, “but I spend all
my time discovering the government has been moving drugs around the world
and is involved in illegal arms deals.... [ can’t get at the prisoners because of the
corruption among our own people.”

This ended Perot’s official access to the highly classified files as a one-man
presidential investigator. “I have been instructed to cease and desist,” he had

informed the families of missing men early in 1987,

Ross Perot

The wholesale importation of cocaine into the ULS. during “[ran/Contra” is also
well documented. George Bush is known “to be in the loop” with many of the
players keeping in contact dircctly with his office.

Also, there has been much speculation as to the use of the off-shore rigs, pipelines
and other assets of Zapata Offshore being used for narcotic trans-shipments.

\-lr(_l][lc‘- QU(..h as (.,U(..aln‘;' ‘Uld h("lﬂ“l cannot IJL md[ln{‘ﬂ.lll r{.‘d \'\’lth(}ll[ I:hc‘
precursor chemicals, One of the largest
makers of these precursor chemicals is
the Eli Lilly Company of [ndianapolis,
Indiana. The Quayle family is a stock-
holder, and George Bush has been on
the Board of Direcrors. Eli Lilly is also
the company that first synthesized LSD
for the CIA.

President George Bush & VP Dan Quayle are
Delra Kappa Epsilon (DKE) fraternity brothers
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GEORGE BUSH, SKULL & BONES
AND THE JFK ASSASSINATION

R:)[)NEY STICH'S BOOK Defrauding America
ells of a “deep-cover CIA officer” assigned
to a counter-intelligence unit, code-named
Pegasus. This unit “had tape-recordings of plans
to assassinate Kennedy” from a tap on the phone §
of J. Edgar Hoover. The people on the tapes were
“[Nelson] Rockefeller, Allen Dulles, [Lyndon]
Johnson of Texas, George Bush and ]. Edgar Hoover.”

Could George Bush be involved in the JFK assassination?

In 1963, Bush was living in Houston, busily carrying ourt his duties as presi-
dent of the Zapara Offshore oil company. He denied rhe existence of a note sent
by the FBI's ], Edgar Hoover to “Mr, George Bush of the CIA.” When news
of the note surfaced, the CIA first said they never commented on employment
questions, but later relented. said yes, a “George Bush” was mentioned in the
note, bur that it was “another” George Bush, not the man who rook office in the
White House in 1988,

Some intrepid reporters tracked down the “other” George Bush and discovered
that he was just a lowly clerk who had shuffled papers for the CIA for about six
months. He never received any interagency messages from anybody at the FBI,
let alone ], Edgar.

It is also waorth noting that a CIA code word tor Bay of Pigs was Operation
Zapata, and thar two of the support vessels were named Barbara and Houston.

Many say that George Bush was high up on the CIA ladder ac the time, running
proprictorial vehicles and placed in a position of command, responsible for many
of the Cubans recruited into “service” at the time. All through the Iran-Conrra
affair, Felix Rodriguez, the man who caprured and had Che Guevara killed for
the CIA, always scemed to call Bush's office first,

From The Realist (Summer, 1991):

Bush was working with the now-famous CIA agent, Felix Rodriguez, recruit-

ing right-wing Cuban exiles for the invasion of Cuba. It was Bush’s CIA job 1o

organize the Cuban community in Miami for the invasion.... A newly discovered

FBI document reveals that George Bush was directly involved in the 1963 murder

of President John Kennedy, The document places marksmen by the CIA. Bush at

that time lived in Texas. Hopping from Houston to Miami weekly, Bush spent

1960 and °6! recruting Cubans in Miamt for the invasion ....

George Bush claims he never worked for the CIA untl he was appointed

Director by former Warren Commuission director and then President Jerry Ford

in 1976, Logic suggests that s lughly unlikely. Of course, Bush has a company

duty to deny being in the CIA. The CIA is a secret organization, No one ever

admits to being a member. The truth 15 that Bush has been a top CIA official
since before the 1961 invasion of Cuba, working with Felix Rodriguez. Bush may

J. Edgar Hoover
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deny hus actual role in the CIA in 1959, but there are records in the Bay of Pigs
invasion of Cuba that expose Bush’s role ... .

On the Watergare tapes, June 23, 1972, referred to in the media as the smoking
gun conversation, Nixon and his Chief of Staff, H.R. Haldeman, were discuss-
ing how to stop the FBI investigation into the Watergate burglary. They were
worried that the investigation would expose their connecrion o rhe Bay of Pigs
thing. Haldeman, in his book 7he Ends of Power, reveals that Nixon always used
code words when talking about the 1963 murder of J[FK. Haldeman said Nixon
would always refer to the assassination as the Bay of Pres.

On chart transcripr we find Nixon discussing thc rnie of George Bush s partner,
Roberr Mosbacher, as one of the Texas | TR
fundraisers for Nixon. On the tapes Nixon { :
keeps referring to the Cubansand the Tex-
ans. The Texans were Bush, Mosbacher |
and Baker. This is another direct link be- |
sween Bush and C}"Idfﬂi& ]l!‘lkl[‘fg NIXOH - President Nixon meets with p\lbllun )
and Bush ro the Kennedy assassination. Party Chairman George Bush and others

MOTIVES FOR THE CONSPIRACY
SO. WHY WOULD an intelligence agency/secret society want to smuggle drugs
and assassinate JFK?

Well, they make a lot of money and they garner intelligence assets through
their participation, There is also the rationale that the world is a seamy and un-
seemly place, and if you're going to be the big boy on the block, you better know
what’s going on. And what better way of knowing than by running it yourself?

. There are also some who theorize that the
covert drug trade fits with plans to destabi-
lize American families and society. Through
demoralizing and fracturing the body poliric,
they can impose their will using pw:_holm,i—
¥ cal warfare and the political alchemy of the

Moments hefore the murder Hcgcl tan dialecric.

James Shelby Downard’s article, Sorcery, Sex, Assassination and the Science of
Symbolism, an underground classic, links American historical events with a wild,
numerological, grand occult plan “to turn us into cybernetic mystery zombies.”
The assassination of JFK, this article contends, was the performance of a public
occult ritual called The Killing of the King, designed as a mass-trauma, mind-
control assault against our US narional body-politic,

During Operation Sunrise, Operation Blowback, Operation Paperclip and

others, thousands of Nazi scientists, researchers and administrators were brought
to the United States after World War I1. Many were smuggled into the country
against direct, written orders from President Harry S, Truman.

14
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Project Monarch was the resumption of a mind-control project called Mari-
onette Programming, which started in Nazi Germany. The basic component
ot the Monarch Program is the sophisticated manipulation of the mind, using
extreme trauma to induce Multiple Personality Disorder.

Mr. Downward feels that the perpetrators purposefully murdered JFK in
such a way as to affect our national identity and cohesiveness — to frac-
ture America’s soul. Even the TS rullE
blatancy of their conspiracy :

was designed 1o show rheir §
superiority and our furiliry. _
There have been studies thar
show a correlation berween the §
JFK assassination and the rise i
in violence in society, distrust |
of government and other cx-
tensions of social ills.

THE ILLUMINATI: SUBVERTING THE BODY POLITIC

\ x JHY THIS ATTACK against our body politic?
In 1785, a counier died en route to Paris

from Frankfort-on-the-Main. A tract written by Adam
Weishaupt, founder of the Hluminan, Original Shift i
Days of llluminations, was recovered from the dead mes-
senger, containing the secrer sociery's long-range plan for
“The New World Order through world revolution,”
The Bavarian Government outlawed the society and in

1787 published the details of The Illuminati conspiracy in - Adam _We'ul.upzj

The Original Writings of the Qvrder and Sect of the lluminaz.
In Adam Weishaupt’s own words:
By this plan, we shall direct all mankind in this manner. And, by the simplest
means, we shall set all in motion and in flames, The occupations must be so al-
lotted and contrived that we may, n secret, influence all politcal transactions.

There is disagreement among scholars as to whether or not the Hlluminari survived
its banishment. Nevertheless, the group had been quite successful in arracting
members and had allied itself with the extensive Masonic networks.

The Nluminati was publicly founded May 1, 1776, at the University of Ingolstadt
by Weishaupt, Professor of Canon Law. It was a very “learned” society; Weishaupt
drew the earliest members of his new order from among his scudents.

On December 5, 1776, students at William and Mary College founded a secrer
society, Phi Beta Kappa. A second chaprer was formed, at Yale, in 1780. The
anti-Masonic movement in the United States during the 1820s held groups such
as Phi Beta Kappa in a bad light. Because of pressure, the society went public.
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This is noted by some researchers as the direct cause of the appearance of Yale's

Order of Skull and Bones.

| PR 0L LGS OF WELLIAM ANL M ANY
Ab 0 wag ol the v T Do Kappw wes crpanised

In The Cyclopedia Of Fratern:-
ties, a genealogical chart of general
Greek-Letter college fraternities in
the United States, shows PPhi Beta
Kappa as “the parent of all the fra-
ternal systems in [American] higher
education,” There is only one “side”
lineal descendant: the Yale chaprer
of 1780. The line then continues
to Skull and Bones in 1832, and

on through the other “only at Yale” senior societies, Scroll & Key and Wolf's Head.
Phi Beta Kappa is the “first three Greek letters, for "Philosophia Biou Kuber-
netes” or ‘Love of wisdom, the helmsman of life'.” A skull homophone is scull, a
quick, gliding boar and part of Skull & Bones first nomenclature.
John Robison, a professor of natural philosophy at Edinburgh University in
Scotland and a member of a Freemason Lodge, said that he was asked 1o join
the Illuminati. After study, he concluded the purposes of the llluminati were

not for him.

In 1798, he published a book called Proofi Of A Conspiracy:

An association has been formed for the express purpose of rooting out all
the religious establishments and overturning all the existing governments ... the
leaders would rule the World with uncontrollable power, while all the rest would
be employed as tools of the ambition of their unknown superiors.

Praofs Of A Conspiracy was sent to George
Wiashington. Responding to the sender of the
book with a letrer, the president said he was
aware the Hlluminati were in America. He felt

that the Iluminat had diabolical tenets and §

that their object was a separation of the People
from their government.
In Preofs Of A Comp:mry. Robison de-
scribed the ceremony of initiation of the
“Regent degree” in Hluminism. [n it “a
skeleron is pointed out to him [the inidare],

at the feer of which are laid a crown and a |+

sword. He is asked whether that is the skeleton
of a king, nobleman or a beggar. As he cannot
decide, the president of the meering says
him, The character of being a man is the only
one that is importance.”
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f LTI T BEGEARS v FooTARINGEY A8 QVEENE VN ING | )
USEYLL- Al BONE LANG 5 AVHTER SIGE BY mi.!

QVALIT Y= L Froma l}um's membcnh!p huuk
[hl9 is, essenrially, the same as the writing in the Skull & Bones’ Temple:
“Wer war der Thor, wer Weiser, Bettler oder Kaiser? Ob Arm, ob Reich, im
Tode gleich.”
Which reads:
“Who was the fool, who the wise man, beggar or king? Whether poor or rich,
all's the same in death.”

SKULL & BONES = ILLUMINATI? -

S THE ORDER of the Skull & Bones part of the Illuminari?

When a person is initiated into Skull & Bones, they are given a new name,
similar to the practice of the [luminati. Many recorded lluminati members can
be shown to have conrtacr and/or strong influences with many of the professors
that taught "Bonesmen” in Berlin.

When a secret society conspires against the sovereignty of a king, they need
to organize, raise funds, make their plans operational, and hopefully bring them
to fruition.

Could we have in the United States a secret society that has used the “National
Security State” as a cover for their nefarious plans?

From George Bush: The Unauthorized Biography.

That September [1951], Robert Lovett replaced

Marshall as secretary of defense. Meanwhile, Har-

riman was named director of the Mutual Security

Agency, making him the US. chief of the Anglo- §

American military alliance. By now, Brown Brothers,

Harriman was everything but commander-in-chief. -

A central focus of the Harrniman security regime " averell Harriman 1aking oath t serve as

in Washington (1950-53) was the organization of _Director of the Mutual Security Agency
covert operations and psychological warfare. Harniman, together with lius Lawyers
and business partners, Allen and John Foster Dulles, wanted the government’s
secret services to conduct extensive propaganda campaigns and mass-psychology
experiments within the US.A., and paramilitary campaigns abroad ...

The Harriman security regime created the Psychological Strategy Board (PSB)

in 1951, The man appointed director of the PSB [was] Gordon Gray ... Gordon's

brother, R.J. Reynolds charman Bowman Gray Jr., was also a naval intelligence
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officer, known around Washington as the founder of
operational mtelligence, Gordon Gray became a close
friend and political ally of Prescott Bush; and Gray’s son
became for Prescott’s son, George, his lawyer and the

shield of his covert policy. |

So you have the Whitney/Stimson/Bundy clan and the |
Harriman/Bush boys wielding a tremendous amount of
influence on the political, economic and social atfairs of
America and the world. Then you have Prescott Bush's |-
buddy Richard Nixon as an activist Vice-President. Then, a nation-chilling as-
sassination, some time under LB] with the Bundy boys keeping things in line,
then Nixon as President with “Bonesmen” aides Ray Price ('51) and [{u_hard A.
Moore. Then DKE and Yale Law School graduate Gerald Ford. Some time out
for a Trilateralist-patsy president, followed by Prescott’s son as an activist Vice-
President under Reagan. Then, Bonesman George HW Bush, whe declares a
Nf’:c World Om’m whl]c bt..mng up on Saddam Hussein.

After 12 years of RLPUI.)II(JII admin-

Gordon Gray

istrations, Bush passes the reins to his
drug smuggling buddy from Arkansas,
Bill Clinton, who studied ar Yale Law
| School. According to some researchers,
| Clinton was recruited as a CIA operative
while a Rhodes Scholar ar Oxford. Could
this be the of' Hegelian historical dialectic
Presidents Ford, Nixon, Bush, Reagan and Cantet ' wao-step tango?

WORLD HISTORY: PLAN OR ACCIDENT?
LL WE GET ANOTHER FAILED Democratic administration? A scandal as
disgraceful as Nixon's fall? When Robert P. Johnson (William Barr) told

Clinton in a bunker in Arkansas that “you are our fair-haired boy, but you do have

competition for the job you seek. We would never put all our eggs in one basket.

You and your state have been our greatest asser ... Mr. Casey wanted me to pass

on to you, that unless you fuck up and do something stupid, you are number one

on our short list for shot at the job you always wanted.” "
So. you have William Casey — CIA Director, George

Bush's campaign manager and Sovereign Knight of Malta

— speaking through the proxy of George Bush's last Attorney

General to George's rival in the 1992 federal elections. Is it

all just a show and sham for US hoi polloi?

Perhaps so, if there exists the type of control over the elec-
toral process as told by Mae Brussell and the suppressed book,

VoteScam, written by Jim and Ken Collier:
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Your vote and mine may now be a meaningless bit of energy
directed by pre-programmed computers — which can be fixed to
select certain pre-ordained candidates and leave no footprints or
paper trail

In short, computers are covestly stealing your vote.

For almost three decades the American vote has been subject
to government-sponsored electrome theft.

The vote has been stolen from you by a cartel of federal national M_William Casey
security bureaucrats, who include higher-ups in the Central Intelligence Agency,
political party leaders, Congressmen, co-opted journalists — and the owners and
managers — of the major Establishment news media, who have decided in concert
that how America’s votes are counted, by whom they are counted and how the
results are verified and delivered to the public 15, as one of them put it, [nfot a
proper area of inquiry.

By means of an unofficial private corporation named News Election Service
(NES), the Establishment press has actual physical control of the counting and
dissemination of the vote, and it refuses to let the public know how it is done.

Is the American electorate subjected to cyclical propaganda, pre-selected candidares
and winners, and psychological warfare to alienate Americans from the institutions
established to serve them by the Constitution? Are the Democratic and Republican
National Parties used for a Hegelian experiment in controlled conflict?

Pamela Churchill Harriman, Averell’s wife, is one of the
Democratic Party’s biggest fund-raisers. She once gave Bill a job
as director of her PAM PAC when he was defeated for governor
of Arkansas in 1980. Bill paid her back by appointing her as
_ Ambassador o France.

v Chuni'li", Another Harriman/Bush friend, Eugene Stetson (S&B '34), was
Harriman | an assistant manager for Prescott Bush at Brown Brothers, Harri-
man’s New York office. He organized the H. Smith Richardson Foundation. The
foundation, in the late 19505, participated in the MKULTRA, the CIA’s domestic
covert psychological warfare operation. The Richardson Foundation helped to fi-
nance the testing of psychotropic drugs, including LSD, ar Bridgewater Hospital in
Massachusetts, the center of some of the most brutal MK-ULTRA experiments.

During the Iran-Contra operations, the H. Smith Richardson Foundarion
was a “private donors steering committee,” working with the National Security
Council to co-ordinate the Office of Public Diplomacy. This was an effort o
propagandize in favor of and run caver for the Iran-Contra operations, and to

coordinate published attacks on opponents of the program.

The H. Smith Richardson Foundarion also runs the Center for Creative Lead-
ership in Virginia to "train leaders of the CIA,” as well as another center near
Greensboro, North Carolina, thart trains CIA and Secret Service Agents. Almost
everyone who achieves the military rank of general also gets this training.
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This is just the tip of an iceberg. You also have cugenics and population control,
suppressed history and technology, yearly retreats, profitable partnerships with
brutal dictators, deals with “terrorists,” the involvement of the Knights of Malra,
war-mongering and profiteering, mind-control, secret societies for teens, ritual
magic and more — all spinning the dark threads in the web of conspiracy that
our spinning blue-green ball has become entangled. 3 ; B/

A whole new crop of "Bonesmen” coming up, includ- [FE.
ing George HW Bush's son George W Bush (S&B ‘68), §
Governor of Texas.

When Don Schollander (S8B ‘68), the Olympic gold-
medalist and only known Skull and Bones member living
in Portland, Oregon, was contacted by local Willamette
Week reporter John Schrang regarding his involvement
in the Order, he said, “It’s really somerthing I can’ ralk
about.”

Not wouldn, but “couldn’t.”

In wake of Antony Sutton’s first ground-breaking exposes of the Order, some of
the Russell Trust papers at the Sterling Library at Yale have not been available.

Dantel Gilman, like most Bonesmen, makes no mention of Skull & Bones or
the Russell Trust in his memoirs or biographics.

So, are we all just fodder for a secret society thar is attempting to form a one
warld government with themselves at the helm? Or is the Order of Skull and
Bones just a bunch of frat boys from Yale? Want to bet your future on it?

Bonesmen Bush

-
B

In the mid to late 90s there was very little mentioning George W Bush on the Internet.
Consequendy up until 1999, the above essay was always in the top 10 responses when
searching Google for George W Bush. In 1998, the article was listed as the reference for
Skull & Bones in Robert Anton Wilson's Everything Is Under Control — Conspiracies,
Cults and Cover-ups — bur most of all the story led to my persenal introduction
to author, historian and researcher, my friend, Antony Sutton.
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THE SEPTEMBER 11™ ATTACK
THE WAR ON TERROR AND
THE ORDER OF SKULL & BONES

ANTONY SUTTON
JUNE 2002 — HIS LAST WRITTEN ARTICLE

HEWORLD TRADECENTER TRAGEDY

of September 11, 2001, murdered

just under 3,000 Americans. The
most costly attack ever on US soil. Today
still uninvestigated, unsolved and virtually
forgotten except for friends and relatives.

Why this suppression of WTC? Essentially
because President Bush claims he cannot be
bothered, he does not want his staff distracted,
they are busy with the War on Terror.

Distracted? This matrer could be disposed of in a
30-minute press conference.

The WTC episode was the initial, and so far
the only, domestic physical act in this War on
Terror. Now in denial Mr, Bush has apparently
his own deep reasons for avoiding the topic. The country with less transitory
interest has a right to know the reality of WTC. In one year this War on Terror
has only this single disastrous WTC episode.

Mr. Bush has skillfully directed public attention ro Afghanistan and Paki-
stan, but failed to show how Afghanistan and Pakistan tie ro WTC.

Reality is where the public interest resides. For the public the WTC s the
War on Terror, yet this is the core reality aspect where Bush ducks and weaves.
Even further, he prevailed upon Senaror Daschle o kill a Senate inquiry and
pours cold water on any public inquiry.
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FLESHING OUT SKULL & BONES — INVESTIGATIONS INTO AMERICA'S MOST POWERFUL SECRET SOCIETY

Given this excellent opportunity for public exposure, Bush and the Admin-
istration have become shy and bashful. Our non-political question is ... what
are they hiding?

According ta New York Times, (June 6, 2002 page A-21), “... the Adminis-
tration has a deep desire to avoid any investigation at all but this has become
politically untenable.”

While at the same time Mr. Bush is quoted, “I've seen no evidence roday thar
said this country could have prevented the attacks.” The latter statement does
not accord with known facts.

As Kristen Breitweiser wrote in the New York Times, (May 17, 2002 page A
21), “Why was the President allowed to sit for 35 minutes with a group of second
graders when the country was under attack?™

What is clearly obvious even o a New York Times reporter was not obvious to
the echelons of officials surrounding the President ... of course the Miami photo
shoot could have been deliberately planned as a deception move.

None of this is reflected in the public assessment and Bush retains a respectable
77% rating, This can plummer like a stone in a well.

DEATHS HEAD OF MR. BUSH

Gm_m(;ﬁ W BUSH AND HIS FATHER
(as was Ais tather) are members of a
deeply submerged secret society, a satanic
secret society, they would prefer you know
nothing about. More suited to the [8th
century than the 21st century it is known as
Skull & Bones and is a real life anachronism
in this modern world.

Bush is in the 1968 cell and a photo-
graph of him and his 15 fellow cell-mates
shows them grouped around a table bearing
their symbol ... a skull and cross bones. (Incidentally, the possession of human
remains is an offense against the laws in Connecticut, the home of S&B).

The Order of Skull and Bones is no mere innocent college fraternity, as Bush
would have you believe. This is a post-graduate society geared to the outside
world through the RTA (a tax exempt foundation, also known as the Russell

Trust Association) and their retrear on Deer Island (See this author's America’
Secret Fstablishment for further details)

One of the RTA’s operating principles is the use of Hegelian creation of conflict
to make “progress” or advance history, and is typical of rwo other omniporent
philosophies with Hegelian roots ... Nazism and Marxism.

As three members of the Bush family (grandfacher Prescott, father George and
George Junior) are members of RTA, we are interested in what this trio has done
to further history using Hegelian methodology.

b
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BACK TO WTC AND SEPTEMBER 11, 2001

r. Bush is deeply reluctant to tell us what he was |
doing between 8 AM and 9:15 AM on September
11, 2001. Yer this is a critical question for his fellow
Americans. Because while Bush was meeting with Florida
2nd graders for 35 minutes — and according to the New
York Times reporter this Florida meeting had absolute
priority — almost 3,000 Americans were murdered.
The New York Tintes reporter found chis strange, so do we.
Mr. Bush has missed a key point here. His penchant for secrecy
is not going to enable him to avoid the question, Why didn't
he use this 35 minutes to partially rescue the US and send F-
16s 1o shoot down the high-jacked planes? Then maybe only
300 lives, nor nearly 3,000, would have been lost.

DOES BUSH HAVE A HEGELIAN HANGOVER?

he Bush family approach to the [ S
presidency is quite different from
other presidents. The Bush family i
seemingly views the presidency as a J
personal fiekdom empowered with the
divine right of kings, unassailable, not §
to be challenged, not to be doubted and g}
potentially omnipotent.
This is an extraordinary error. The vast American public is just not on the
same wavelength.
As an example of minefields down the road, take George Sr. and the

Iran-Contra papers.

These are totally secret, not to be released and many believe will never be
released. George Sr. was in charge of Iran-Contra,

How do we know this? Simply because 10 or so of the official participants (from
DEA, CIA, NSA and on and on) had second thoughts, saw the illegalities, rebelled
and placed their participation and what they knew on paper and the Internet.

So we have a personal and open account of the official suppressed record. We
can well understand why Bush Sr. and his fellow operators want complete and
permanent secrecy. Iran-Contra should place several dozen ofhcials in jail.

An important part of Iran Contra was cocaine trafficking using a combination
of official and private facilities with Bush Sr. in charge. For example, the deep
sea drilling rigs, staffed by CIA and NSA persons of the Zapata Corporation
(with Bones and Bush ties) were used as transit points for the cocaine. [t may
have been a joint operation with Israel because some cocaine packages were also

labeled with the Star of David.
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In brief, the private and public parts of this narcotics operation were merged and hidden,
which is good enough reason for concealment of this episode from a long suffering public.

Then we have the deeply disturbing case of Prescort Bush, grandfather of George Bush,
who with Averell Harriman helped finance Hidler through the Union Banking Corpora-
tion, which was later taken over by the Alien Property Custodian. Prescott seems to be
a very active participant in The Order's efforts ro creare a Hegelian dialectic arms.

We know thart this 1930's pro-Hitler maneuver even roday creares alarm in
Bush circles. We were interviewed for a documentary on this topic for Dutch
National TV and great efforts were made to suppress the Dutch papers relating
to this Bush-Harriman episode.

Prescott and Averell were members of the same secret society and supposedly oppo-
site political parties — all while working together our of the same business othce.

Our interest is purely research. We have two Bonesmen with private interests
in a secret society, are they attempting to pursue Hegelian dialectic? We have every
reason in the world to question Bush Junior’s involvements in similar situations.

This is nor a somerhing Mr. Bush should aveid. If you lose control in these situ-
ations — as Mr. Bush well knows — you lose any influence you might have.

If we hind three Bushes in a row involved in conflict creation situations ...
even the dumbest of American voters won't feel too happy.

This is where you find the limits of the American Historical Association, the
major book publishers and establishment history. Any author in this field steers a
path well clear of AHA and the major New York publishers. Why ... because they
have their marching orders. Also more interesting, we know how these blinker-
equipped publishers became part of establishment mythology. And this is why
the major publishers become smaller and smaller and ultimately will disappear.

FINALE =
shock many — yer are really nor cause for individual alarm.

The country has automatic ways of dealing with those who abuse, not always prompt
or noticeable , but sooner or later Iran-Contra, the 2000 clection episode and offshoots like
Enron (Bush's biggest financier) will be called to account. That is the history of the Unired
States. The country has an unusual ability o disgorge even 7 ~ Reichstagg Fie
its worst offenders and offenses.

Who remembers Teapot Dome, the Wall Streer ex-
cesses of 1929, even the McCarthy era and segregation? |

They have been dealt with.

Give this country enough rime for informartion 1o
spread and the system will right wrongs itself. e

Even childish excesses like Skull & Bones will ind Sl § ' i
their level and eventually be expunged. diﬁglﬂl [ B

The reaction will come from the bottom up. ol

*-3_‘5"_*
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WHAT A ROLE MODEL
FOR HIS DAUGHTERS!

CHARLOTTE THOMSON ISERBYT
JuLy 2003

(Bones) 1891, was from Pottsville, Pa, an important coal

mining center to this day. The Thomson family had been
involved in coal mining from the early eighteen hundreds into the mid-
twentieth century. The family was descended from Scottish Covenanters
(Scottish Presbyterians who arrived in America in the mid seventeen hundreds.
I have a beautiful sword presented to my great grandfather by ofﬁcers in his
Pennsylvania regiment at the conclusion [
of the Civil War.) |

The original homestead exists in bad
repair in Thompsontown, PA. My great
grandfather changed the spelling of Thom-
son to Thompson adding a “p” since he
wanted to show off his flourishing hand-
writing and a “p” really made the grade in
this regard.

Grandpa graduated from Andover Boys
Preparatory School, Yale University and |
from Columbia School of Mines with
honors, in 1893. He received the School
of Mines medal from the President of §
Columbia University, Nicholas Murray
Butler. b

Nichalas Murray Butler, on the Execu- [§8 Z )
tive Commitree of the C;ll'ncgiﬁ Endow- Samuel C, l'iuuusnn at ’*Inr.md.z Mmes . Queber, 1‘}‘}.’J

MY GRANDFATHER, SAMUEL CLIFTON THOMSON, The Order
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ment for International Peace, delivered an address entitled “Higher Preparedness”
on Nov. 27, 1915 to the Union League of Philadelphia in which he stated “The
old world order changed when this war storm broke — the old world order died
with the setting of the day’s sun and a New World Order is being barn while
I speak.” From A Werld in Ferment, a Collection of Butlers Speeches, Scribners
1917, page 106.

Butler's book Across the Busy Years — Recollections and Reflections, Scribners,
1935, pp 160-161 reveals much regarding Butler's role as Dean of the Faculty
of Philosophy, Columbia University, in changing American education from its
traditional academic orientation to a behaviorist (Wundtian/Pavlovian) orienta-
tion originating in Leipzig, Germany. This change was necessary for brainwashing
(value change) and implementation of the present work force training required for
a planned economy. It was Butler’s access to Daniel Coit Gilman, an incorporator
of Skull & Bones, and a key activist in the revolution of education which, resulted
in bringing to Columbia University, Professor James McKeen Cartell. Butler’s
information ties in well with Tony Sutton’s coverage of The Order’s influence on
American education. Sutton’s book America’s Secret Establishment is the only book
on The Order which documents The Order’s extraordinary influence in bringing
about what this author refers to as “the deliberate dumbing down of America.”

Butler’s book also refers extensively to the activities of Charles D. Hilles, Sr.
(not a member of The Order) whose role in the Republican Party included run-
ning for Governor of New York, Vice President of the United States, and who
was Chairman of the Republican Party Platform Committee, 1916. Chatles D.
Hilles, Sr. was the father of Charles D. Hilles, Jr., one of my father’s closest Bones’
associates who stands behind the table in the Tomb (See photo of 1924 members
ot The Order. A few Bonesmen about whom I have written are seated as follows:
my father, Clifton Thomson, is to the left of the table, Hilles behind rable, Spof-
ford standing left of the clock, and Blair standing, third from the left.)

Whart all of this has ro do with Bones is not clear, bur there surely must be
connecrions. No doubr Grandpa's receiving the School of Mines medal was well-
carned. However, it is also likely that Butler, an internationalist with connections
all over the English-speaking world, selected Grandpa for the honor not only due
to his engineering abilities, but also due to his connections through his member-
ship in The Order.

Grandpa had good credentials for being tapped for The Order. He was a Uni-
tarian and a Mason, from Pottsville, Pennsylvania. Had it not been for his being
tapped for Bones, and his being awarded the mining medal, | rather doubr thar
he would have been invited to go to South Africa which took him to the pinnacles
of the engineering profession and led him into a leadership role in the opening
up of the gold mines. He had a close personal and working friendship with Sir
Abe Bailey, who 1 believe was a South African Fabian socialist, and I understand
he was an acquaintance of Cecil Rhodes. Upon returning to the United States, he
explored in Quebec, Canada and founded Noranda Mines in che eatly twenties.
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My memories of him arc all wonderful. He was a most generous, unspoiled
fellow who preferred to spend his evenings in the company of the less affuent
on the West Side of NYC, eating hot dogs and drinking beer, rather than in his
elegant suite at the Pierre Hortel on Fifth Avenue, [ have a small silver trophy (cup),
which I cherish, engraved "Grandpa to Charlotte for swimming, 1938 which
he had made specially for me when I won a swimming race while on vacation
with him ar the Seigneury Club in Quebec. (I use it as a double shor measure in
memory of grandpa who was an enthusiastic scotch drinker!)

Grandpa left for California in the late eighteen hundreds and worked ar Grass
Valley in a chlorination factory for a short while during the gold boom. He soon
after was invited by the great John Hays Hammond to go to Africa, an invitation he
declined, but later accepted from Thomas H. Leggatr. Hearrived in the Rand in 1898
and spent twelve additional seasons (1902-1914) in charge of the mining operations
of Norman and Company and Sir Abe Bailey. During that time Thomson's major
concerns were the Witwatersrand Deep, the Treasury and Great Central mines, Many
other properties came under his charge, as well, so that by the time he left Africa, he
was widely known to the gold-mining fraternity. [ have a solid gold cigarette box. the
inside cover of which is engraved with the signatures of American mining engineers
which they presented to him when he left the Rand in 1914,

During his stay in South Africa, Thomson saw service as a lieutenant in the
British Army through the later phases of the Boer War. (He was in charge of
protecting the mines from Boer saborage.) It was Thomson's plan, on leaving the
Rand in 1914, to engage in consulting practice in London, England, principally
for Sir Abe Bailey and his associates. He evidently worked closely with Bailey while
in South Africa. I had a wonderful black and white photo of my grandfather
and Sir Abe Bailey, but somehow it has been lost.

World War | intervened while he was on holiday in the United States, however,
thus reserving grandpa’s future tor Canadian mining, and vo Noranda Mines.
(He was one of the principals in the discovery and development of copper mines
in Canada.) The Anglo-American connections are clear and of course, we are all
aware of Carnegic’s plan to bring America back to the mother’s bosom, something
we are looking at today. (George Bush and Tony Blair!)

My Dad, Clifton Samuel Thomson, a graduate of Hotchkiss Boys School. class
of 1924 at Yale, Columbia Law School, 1926, and a Bonesman, was born in 1903
in Johannesburg, S.A., and lived there until 1914 when his family went to live
in London for a while and then moved back o Englewood, N.J., U.S.A. Dad
was also a member of Delta Kappa Epsilon while at Yale. This fraternity boasts
many important members, including four Presidents of the United States: Hayes,
Bush, Sr. Bush, Jr. Roosevelt, and Ford. | have always felt there was a very, very
close connection between The Order and DKE, While in London he atrended
Cheam Boys School, the very elitist school outside of London, which caters to
British royalty. He detested every minute of it (cold showers and lousy food) and

his dislike of all things English, including the British cruelty exhibited in the Boer
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War, remained with him until he died in 1984. Dad was, T believe, an unlikely
candidate for Bones, being very down to earth, an individualist, honest to the
core, and Christian. He served as Mayor of Sands Point, Long Island, N.Y., as a
vestryman at St. Stephen’s Episcopal Church ar Port Washington, New York, and

was clected councilman, Mendham Township Council, Mendham, New Jersey.

I knew three or four of his Bones classmates quire well: One, my sister’s god-
father, was I believe, instrumental in saarting the Hemlock Society! This tellow
who bounced me on his knees and told great stories ... was the last person |
would ever have thought to be involved in bringing cuthanasia to America. Dad
also spent a couple of weeks ar Bohemian Grove as a guest of his very close friend
Edwin Blair, another Bones guy, who was nick-named “Mr. Yale” since he was
such a good fund raiser. (Blair was also a partner with Chuck 5})0”'0!11 at Davis,
Polk, Wardwell, Sunderland and Keindl ... see below.) Dad was nor impressed
by most of the activiries at the Grove although he said a few presentations were
noteworthy, food was excellent and accommodarions top of the line. He had one
big, and I mean “big” problem with pompous people, and there was no shortage
of such types at Bohemian Grove functions. Henry Allen, another Bones friend
of Dad’s, was a director of the American Civil Liberties Union, set up by Amos
Pinchot (The Order), and the daughter of his friend, Sherman Ewing, married a
Rockefeller, bur Ewing himself was not involved in any high level international
or national policy planning.

Dad was at Horchkiss School with E.O. Matthiessen (Bones 1923). An inter-
esting, aside follows: Marthiessen's J;mg}'!(c'r lived in the same own where | was
oan |I|L' Ill‘. ill .‘!th‘](‘]i I‘{);lr(l LIL'.‘“i”}: }ll’t']l)lt_‘lll.\ “()[ []I(' 1”}{.'|'JI.\ .4 - iil fhf seventlies.
She knew my father was her father’s friend due to Hotchkiss and Bones, but that

didn’t make any difference to her ... she went after me with a vengeance, often,
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WHAT A ROLE MODEL FOR HIS DAUGHTERS!

and in public (even ar social occasions!) due to my opposition to the federally-
funded non-academic and no right/no wrong programs being implemented in
the seventies. She was a carbon copy of her father about whom Tony has written
in his newsletters. Her Dad is quoted on the jacket of Tony’s book as saying "As
long as we have somebody from Bones who can bring pressure on the commirree,
I should think we'll be all right.” — E.O. Matthiessen (S&B 1923) to Donald
Ogden Steward (S&B 1916) abour “Martty’s” upcoming appearance before the
House Committee on Un-American Activities.

In my opinion, the most important Banesman in the Class of 1924, a close
friend and roommate of my father’s, was Charles Merville Spotford, who rose 1o
great heights in international law and politics. Dad, once, close to the end of his
life, related to me an account of Spotford’s promation to positions of international
influence, much of which is covered in derail in Yafe 24- 245 and which | am
including since Spofford provides a most important case study in how a very few
members of the Order become global shakers and movers,

An account of Spofford’s metcoric rise to fame, taken from page 326 of Yale
'24-24S, published in 19535, follows:

Chuck, who took his LL.B. at Harvard in 1928, was with Isham, Lincoln
& Beal in Chicago untl 1930 and has since been with Davis, Polk, Wardwell,
Sunderland & Kiendl, in which he became a partner in 1940. He is a director of
the Guaranty Trust Company of New York, the Distullers Company, Ltd., and
the Gordon’s Dry Gin Company, Ltd., and is on the boards of the Free Europe
Committee, Union Theological Seminary, the Carnegie Corporation, the Juilliard
Musical Foundation, the Juilliard School of Music, and the national council of
the English-Speaking Union. He belongs to various bar associations and to the
Council on Foreign Relations. He went on active duty as a lieutenant colonel
in October, 1942, was assigned to the General Statf Corps, and had thirtyawo
months’ service in the Eastern Theatre of Operations and Mediterranean Theatre
of Operations, ranking as a brigadier general at his release in December, 1945;
he was in the Reserve from 1947 to 1954. In addition to the U.S. Distinguished
Service Medal and Purple Heart, he was awarded the Croix de Guerre with palm
and was made a commander of the Legion of Honor, the Order of the British
Empire, the Order of Ishan Iftikhar (Tunisia), and the Order of St. Maurice and
St. Lazarus (Italian). Chuck was appointed US. deputy representative to the
North Atlantic Council, with the rank of Ambassador, in June, 1950, the next
month being elected chairman of the North Atlannc Council Deputies; for his
work in this capacity (which continued until Apnl 1952), he received the fol-
lowing decorations: ofhcer, Legion of Honor; grand officer, Order of the Crown
(Belgium); commander with star, Order of the Falcon (Iceland). He is the author
of “The North Adantic Treaty,” in the Journal of the Royal Empire Soctery,
“Toward Atlantic Security,” in [nternational Affairs, “North Atlanuc Security,”
in the fowurnal of the Royal United Services Institution, and “NATO’s Growing
Pains” in Foreign Affairs.
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I remember his coming into my office in Middle Eastern Affairs, U.S. Depart-
ment of State, in 1956, at the peak of one of the continuing Mid-East crises, to
parricipate as a board member of The Suez Canal Company.

Afrer Chuck had divorced his wife of many years, he had a serious stroke, which
confined him to a wheel chair. Surprisingly enough he remarried his former long-
time secretary at Davis, Polk, a wonderful, down-to-earth woman with whom
I had worked at one time. They lived in Easthampton, Long Island, in a house
he bought trom William Simon, former Secretary of the Treasury. | relate these
seemingly unimportant bits of information to reveal how even those who rise to
great heights in world affairs encounter the same difficult problems in marriage,
severe illnesses, etc. that we plain reguiars encounter, and that occasionally they
survive through attachments to persons whose backgrounds are torally different
(normal?). His second wife, who came from an entirely different background, rook
such wonderful care of Chuck until he passed on. She probably turned out to be
the most important person in his life, outside of his children. There were other
Bones friends of Dad’s I knew fairly well but [ don't have any interesting stories.
I'd say only 3 or 4 out of the 15 were involved in important U.S. Government
or international policy decisions.

Dad always supported the Bush family in its election efforts, while Mom, a
true-blue conservative Catholic from Virginia, whose family served on the Con-
federate side during the Civil War, supported Reagan. The Order would solicir
campaign contributions for Bush from its members. Dad attended the reunions
on Deer Island, bur nor frequently.

Dad was a Senior Partner with Appleton, Rice, and Perrin, a small Wall Streer
law firm. Lee Perrin, Bones 1906, was a very fine gentleman who I suspect brought
Dad on board at the firm. (Connections help!) Dad was also the attorney for a
French company, the Matham Corporation, during World War I1, | remember that
he received all sorts of pins (medals) from Macham for his service ta the company
during the war. | believe Matham was involved in manufacturing arms.

Dad resigned his position with Matham due to its involvement with the Nazis.
He was very principled, and I'm sure not at all on the Bones' wavelength of sup-
porting both sides (i.e. Hiter and Sealin). Of interest and along the same lines
was 2 comment he made to Alan Klorz, a Wall Streer attorney, also a Bonesman
from another year, regarding dropping the bomb on Hiroshima. Dad said he
told Klotz, who reacted in shock, that, “we should have dropped it on Moscow
instead.” That doesn't jibe with Bones politics, does it? My mother always jokingly
said, “One day Dad aces like a capitalist; the nexe day he acts like a communise.”
That’s quite a comment, tsn't it? | rather suspect that could be applied to most
of those guys who received the same brainwashing at Yale. Isn't that known as
cognitive dissonance in psychological circles?

On a personal level, that is, his attitude towards my work, he was “cool.” Al-
though he and I were very, very close as Dad and daughter and did many things
together (tennis, swimming, long walks, ralks, etc.), it always bothered him that
I was critical of the public education system and U.S, toreign policy. (Although
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WHAT A ROLE MODEL FOR HIS DAUGHTERS!

he would often make disparaging remarks about the “striped pants” guys running
the world.) He once said he couldn’t understand why I was opposed to world
government and I responded “Dad, I can’t believe what you are saying ... whose
Constitution will our country have?” (He was a conservative, constitutionally
oriented, and had been mayor of our town!) He lent back in his chair, took a long
puffon his cigar and slowly uttered the following in a deep voice: “Oh, Char, we'll
take care of that when the time comes.” He also once said when I complained
about the national debt "not to worry, we owe it to ourselves!”

Although he considered me a very good writer, he said, “I don't agree with
where you are coming from.” He was brainwashed big time at Yale, especially
considering how the brainwash lasted for such a long period of time (over the
years) with someone who was so fair, honest, unsporled, etc., and in constant
pursuit of the truth, He was an avid reader ... I never saw him without a book
in his lap. His favorite writer was Thoreau and he had read all the books in Will
and Ariel Durant’s 7he History of Cluilization series.
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My sister and [ spent the last year of his life with him at his home in Gladstone,
New Jersey. He was dying of cancer and my sister and I kepr him at home: didn'
allow him to be put in the hospital. Our mother was in a nursing home. Very
sad they were separated like that at the end of their lives. He died in 1984 with
his dog, Whiskers, a Welsh terrier, on the bed beside him!

1984 was the year Phyllis Schlafly's book, Child Abuse in the Classroom, which
was really half mine since | had written most of the parts abour the parents’
testimony at U.S. Department of Education hearings. Phyllis and | worked on
the book by phone. in order to have it available at the Republican Convention
in Texas. Dad was able to hear our conversations about everything from death
education to world government. His bedroom was on the ground foor next 1o
the kitchen where [ sort of lived with the phone. About a week before he died he
looked at me and said, “If | had more time, I'd help you.” That was so nice.

He had also 1old me several months before he died thar he wished he had
been a farmer rather than a Wall Sereet lawyer, and | really believe he meant that.
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When not in town with his Wall Street friends, at the Downtown Association
for lunch or in his office, all of which he surely enjoyed, he was painting land-
scapes, cooking, walking the dogs, creating a small pond, or turning the earth in
his garden, a plain down to earth person and the greatest friend to many, many
people. He never turned down a request for legal or other advice ... was available
1o everyone, free, no matter rich or poor. A more generous person never lived.
He was a man of few words, had a laid back personality, and was incredibly witty
with a very dry sense of humor.

What a role maodel for his daughters!

My parent’s wedding was attended by all fifteen of his Bones friends who served
as the ushers in 1926 and there is a photo of all fifteen Bones members in the
Temple, all standing, with exception of my Dad and another Bones guy, who are
sitting on either side of a table which holds the Skull and Bones, Yuk!

[ also inherited the beaurtiful grandfather clock which [ believe is given to Bones
members when they marry. Dad always insisted that the women in the family
never, ever allow the clock to stop. We were never told what would happen if we
forgot and let it wind down. Sounded like some occult monkey business at work.
[nterestingly enough, since I inherited that clock it has broken down numerous
times no matter how intent I am on not leuting it wind down! [ also have the
little Skull and Bones pin cach member is given upon initiation.

* %‘ *

Charlotte Iserbyt is the consummate whistleblower! Iserbyt served as Senior Policy Adviser
in the Office of Educational Research and Improvement (OERI), U.S, Department of
Education, during the first Reagan Admimstration, where she first blew the whistle on
a major technology initiative which would conrrol curriculums in America’s classrooms.
Iserbyt is a former school board director in Camden, Maine and was co-founder and
research analyst of Guardians of Education for Maine (GEM) from 1978 ta 2000, She has
also served in the American Red Cross on Guam and Japan during the Korean War. and in
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GERONIMO’S BONES

HOWARD ALTMAN
Jury 2003

ACK IN THE LATE SUMMER OF 1989, when the New Haven Advocate’s
office was located on Chapel Street, it was not unusual for the odd
and the insane to wander in off the streets.

Some came to sell purloined objects. Some came 1o babble. And some came
because the office was open and there was no place else 1o go.

Most of the time, | was called upon to deal with the crazies, usually in the role
of bouncer protecting the mostly female staff. On more than a few occasions, | had
to physically remove such visitors.

Often, though, the crazies came looking for me.

Such was the case with the man in olive drab who had a story to tell.

“Hey Altman, someone’s here to see you,” said our receptionist.

Gireat, When she said it like that, it usually meant another paranoid crack head
was coming to call. |

I'd been visited by relatives of Jesus, descendents of UFO
aliens and a man claiming to be great Caesar’s ghost. The least |
[ could do, I Aigured, was humor the man and send him, harm-
lessly, on his way. _

| walked out of my office. to the front desk and greeted the |
man, a short, wiry guy with a craggily, weathered face and stringy |
hair. Instantly, | sensed there was something about him, something g
different than the other whackos who walked in off the street. |3

Extending his hand, he introduced himself.

“I am Geronimo's great-great grandson,” he said.

“Yeah? And my name is Moses,” 1 thought to myself. BRI, =

* Geronimo ISH-I
May He Rest in Peace
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By the look on the receptionist’s face, I could tell thar the man was making her
nervous, so contrary to my usual rule, [ invited him back to my office.

I sat down and invited him to do the same, but he refused, saying he was more
comfortable standing.

As he stood, he began 1o rell me about his pasr, which, he claimed, included
a stint in the US military, where he served with the special forces. He made it a
point to tell me how he'd killed people, though it wasnt quite clear to me whether
the killings rook place as a member of the military or on his own.

Either way, I remember feeling just a mighr uncasy. He might have been hallucinar-
ing about being related to Geronimo, but the look in his eyes when he talked about
killing people made me think that this guy was telling the truth about something,

After a few minutes more of small talk, [ asked him a question.

“So whart brings Geronima's great-grear grandson o New Haven?™ [ asked, 4
fairly legttimate question considering the circumstances.

And that’s when he began to tell me an incredible story.

“I am here because my grear-great grandfather Geronimo's bones are here,”
he said.

Thart was fantastic enough. But, the more he ralked, the more fanrastic the
story became.

The bones, he said, were dug up by Prescott Bush, father of George Herbert
Walker, the first President Bush. They were taken 1o the Skull and Bones, a secret
society on the Yale campus that counts as members a number of Presidents and
other high-ranking government and military officials.

The man, who said his name was Phillip Romero, said he wanted the bones
returned ro their rightful owner, the Apache, He asked if I would be interested
in writing a story.

Well, of course I would be interested in writing a story about the President’s
father digging up Geronimo's bones and bringing them ro a secret society in
New Haven. There was just one little problem, | told Romero, the man who
claimed to be a killer.

Being as ractful as possible, so as not to set him off unnecessarily, [ explained
that I needed more than his say-so to write a story implicating the father of the
President in what amounts to a crime in the state of Connecticut, specifically,
the illicit harboring of bones.

The great Apache chief’s self-purported great-great grandson rold me that such
proof existed, in the form of a picture, which was in the hands of a man named
Ned Anderson, a former tribal leader of the San Carlos Apache tribal council.

Anderson, said the man, had been tipped off about Geronimo's bones by a
disgruntled Skull & Bonesman named “Pat,” who told Anderson that Prescott
Bush and athers dug up the Apache chief’s remains from their burial plot at
Fort Sill, Oklahoma, and rransported them to the Tomb — the Skull & Bones'
formidable stone headquarters on High Streer in New Haven — where they are
to this day said o be used in society riruals.
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(In addition to becoming a cult igure for his efforts to retrieve Geronimo’s
bones, Anderson, according to WaBun-Inini, of the White Earth Anishinabe
Ojibwa Nation, would later be credited with helping to found Jesse Jackson’s
Rainbow Coalition and coining the phrase “Run, Jesse, Run,” in conjunction
with Jackson’s nascent bid for the Presidency.)

His story finished, Romero thanked me for his time, rurned around and walked
out my office. I never heard from him again.

Anderson, on the other hand, T was in contact with frequently — though
reaching him was no easy feat.

He lived on a reservation more than 20 miles from the nearest telephone and our
conversations had to be scheduled far in advance so that he could hop a ride.

When we did speak, Anderson told a fascinating story, about how he discovered
the whereabouts of Geronimo's bones after a very public battle with Geronimo's
relarives, over where the grear chief should be buried

Anderson wanted the remains moved to his reservation in San Carlos, Arizona.

Geronimo's family. represented by Wendell Chino, a fa_mli\« membcr and leader

of the Mescalero Apache tribe, wanted the remains
to remain where they were, or at least where everyone
thought they were, in Fort Sill, where Geronimo died
in capuviry.

Anderson and Chino were never able o resolve their
dispute — Chino calling Anderson’s bid “a publicity
StUnt to areract tourists,

Burt that was not the end of the story.

The publicity, said Anderson, spurred a Bonesman
named “Pat” 1o come forward and, perhaps out of
guilt, tell Anderson thar Geronimo was not buried in
Fort Sill, but was instead on a shelfin the "Tomb.”

The bones, said Anderson, were dug up in 1918
by Prescott Bush — father of the first President Bush
and grandfacher of the second — along with some
cohorts:

In addition to telling Anderson about what happened
to Geronimo's bones, “Pat” — whose real identity An-
derson would never reveal despite my pleas, whimpers
and other forms of persuasion — provided Anderson Geronimo - 18905 |
with a picture of what Anderson claimed are Geronimo's bones in New Haven,

Anderson said he took that picture and tried to have his Senator at the time,
Mo Udall, intervene. He also said he arranged a meeting with then President
George H. W. Bush's brother Jonathan.

“Bush was taken aback when confronred with the evidence,” Anderson told
me, Just how far aback was hard ro ascertain when [ finally tracked down Bush.
He was cordial, but did not want to talk about the meering,
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My research on the subject revealed that, with a lawyer willing to fight the
battle, there might have been a case to investigate the corpse conundrum under
Connecticut state law, which holds that it is unlawful to keep such remains.

Burt no one [ talked to was willing to represent Anderson and everyone I talked
to said no one would.

Armed with Anderson's evidence, [ tried to pay a visit to the Tomb.

[ slammed the great knocker, which bounced off the metal door with a tremen-
dous thud. Eventually, someone answered and opened the door ever so slighdy.

I introduced myself and told the man why | was there. He refused ro ralk or
even let me in.

Taking a page out of the Obnoxious Salesman’s Handbook, 1 stuck my foot
in the heavy metal door in an effort to continue our conversation. The man
slammed the door on my foot in an effort to end it.

Ultimately, his impatience (and pressure on my foot) outlasted my patience
and | removed my foor, allowing him to close the door on me and any chance
of my gerring a comment from a Bonesman.

Although Anderson was unsuccessful in finding anyone to represent him and
although I was unable to come to any definitive conclusion abour Geronimo's
bones, the story [ wrote — Bones of Contention: Skullduggery at Yale? — made a
bit of a splash. A local TV station covered it and interviewed me and 1 received
a call from an lralian news magazine.

[ left the New Haven Advocatein 1991 and the story about Geronimo's bones
became a warm but distant memory until just a few years ago, when | began
to read about the controversy in the CIA-Drugs Yahoo group and other places
on the Internet, leading me 1o the condlusion that, no marrer what happened,
Geronimo's bones have legs.

* };'*
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PRESCOTT BUSH,
$1,500,000
AND AUSCHWITZ

HOW THE BUSH FAMILY WEALTH IS LINKED TO THE
JEWISH HOLOCAUST

TOBY ROGERS

AITEARED IN CLAMOR MAGAZINE, MAY/JUNT 2002

ILE THE ENRON SCANDAL currently unfolds, another Bush
; R / family business scandal lurks beneath the shadows of history
that may dwarf it.

On April 19, 2001, President George W. Bush spent some of Holocaust Remem-
brance Day in the Capital Rotunda with holocaust survivors, allied veterans, and their
families. In a ceremony that included Jewish prayers and songs sung by holocaust
victims in the camps, Benjamin Meed, a survivor of the Warsaw ghetto uprising,
movingly described to the gathering what he experienced on April 19, 1943.

“I stood outside a Catholic church, which faced the ghetto,” Mr. Meed said, “a
young Jewish boy posing as a gentile. As I watched the ghetto being bombarded by
the German artillery, [ could see many of the Jews of my community jumping out
of windows of burning buildings, [ stood long and mure.”

The survivor concluded his reminiscence saying, "We tremble to think what
could happen it we allow 2 new generation to arise ignorant of the tragedy which
is still shaping the future.”

President Bush, appearing almost uncomfortable, read a statement that said that
humanity was "bound by conscience to remember what happened” and that “the
record has been kept and preserved.” The record, Mr. Bush stated, was that one of
the worst acts of genocide in human history “came not from crude and uneducared
men, but from men who regarded themselves as cultured and well schooled, modern
men, forward looking. Their crime showed the world thar evil can slip in and blend
in amid the most civilized surroundings. In the end only conscience can stop it.”

But while President Bush publicly embraced the communiry of holocaust
survivors in Washington last spring, he and his family have been keeping a secrer
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from them for over 50 years about Prescott Bush, the President’s grandfather.
According to classified documents from Dutch intelligence and US government
archives, President George W, Bush's grandfather, Prescort Bush made consider-
able profits oft Auschwitz slave labor. In fact, President Bush himself is an heir
to these profits from the holocaust which were placed in a blind trust in 1980
by his father, former President George Herbert Walker Bush.

Throughout the Bush family’s decades of public life, the American press has gone
out of its way to overlook one historical fact — that through Union Banking Corpo-
ration (LUBC), Prescort Bush, and his father-in-law, George Herbert Walker, along
with German industrialist Frizz Thyssen, financed Adolf Hitler before and during
World War 1. Tt was first reported in 1994 by John Loftus and Mark Aarons in
The Secret War Against the Jews: How Western Espionage Betrayed the fewish People.

The US government had known that many American companies were aiding
Hitler, like Standard Qil, General Motors and Chase Bank, all of which were
sanctioned after Pearl Harbor. But as The New York Times reporter Charles
Higham later discovered, and published in his 1983 groundbreaking book, Trading
With The Enemy: The Nazi American Money Plot 1933-1949, “the government
smotheted everything during and even after the war.” Why?

According to Higham, the US government believed “a public scandal ... would
have drastically affected public morale, caused widespread strikes and perhaps
provoked mutinies in the armed services.” Higham claims the government thought
“their trial and imprisonment would have made it impossible for the corporate
boards to help the American war effort.”

However, Prescort Bush's banks were not just financing Hiter as previously
reported. In fact, there was a distinct business link much deeper than Mr. Higham
or Mr. Loftus knew at the time their books were published.

A classified Durch intelligence file which was leaked by a courageous Dutch
intelligence officer, along with newly surfaced information from U.S. government
archives, “confirms absolutely,” John Loftus says, the direct links berween Bush,
Thyssen and genocide profits from Auschwirz.

The business connections berween Prescott Bush and Friez Thyssen were more
direct than what has been previously written. This new information reveals how
Prescott Bush and UBC, which he managed directly, profited from the Holocaust.
A case can be made that the inhentors of the Prescort Bush estate could be sued
by survivors of the Holocaust and slave labor communities. To understand the
complete picture of how Prescatt Bush profited from the Holocaust, it is neces-
sary 1o return to the year 1916, where it all began.

POST WORLD WAR I: THYSSEN EMPIRE ON THE ROPES

Y 1916, AUGUST THYSSEN could see the writing on the wall. The *Grear War”
was spinning out of control, grinding away ar Germany's resources and economy.
The government was broke and his company, Thyssen & Co.., with 50,000 German
workers and annual production of 1,000,000 tons of steel and iron, was buckling
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under the war's pressure. As the main supplier of the German military, August
Thyssen knew Germany would be defeated once the US entered the war.

At 74, “King” August Thyssen knew he was also running out of time. His first born
“prince” Friedrich (Friez) Thyssen, had been groomed at the finest technical business
schools in Europe and was destined to inherit his father's estimated $100,000,000
fortune and an industrial empire located at Muehhlheim on the Rubr.

In additon to Fritz, plans were also made for the second son Heinrich. At the
outbreak of the war, Heinrich Thyssen discreetly changed his citizenship from
German to Hungarian and married the Hungarian aristocrat Baroness Margrit
Bornemisza de Kaszon. Soon Heinrich Thyssen switched his name ro Baron
Thyssen Bornemisza de Kaszon.

Near the end of World War I, August Thyssen opened the Bank voor Handel en
Scheepvaart in Rotterdam. The neutral Holland was the perfect location outside of
Germany to launder assets from the August Thyssen Bank in Berlin when the financial
demands of the Allied forces surfaced. But the war ended much sooner than even
Thyssen calculated and what developed caught the "Rockefeller of the Ruht” off
guard. On November 10, 1918, German socialists rook aver Berlin. The following
morning at 5 a.m., what was left of Germany surrendered to the Allies, officially
ending World War L. “At the time of the Armistice and the signing of the Treaty of
Versailles, my Father and I were deeply saddened by the spectacle of Germany’s abject
humiliation,” Thyssen recalled later in his autobiography, / Paid Hitler.

After the war, chaos descended on Germany as food ran short. Winter was
looming over a starving nation when on Dec. 7, 1918, the socialist Spartacists
League came knocking on the Thyssen Villa with armed militia. August and Fritz
were arrested and dragged from jail to jail across Germany for four days. Along
the way, they were lined up in staged executions designed to terrorize them.

It worked. When released, the two Thyssens were horrified at the new politi-
cal climate in their beloved Germany. They could not accept that Germany was
responsible for its own demise. All Germany’s problems, the Thyssens felr, “have
almost always been due to foreigners.” [t was the Jews, he and many others be-
lieved, who were secretly behind the socialist movement across the globe,

Meanwhile Fritz’s younger brother Baron Thyssen Bornemisza de Kaszon
moved to Rotrerdam and became the principal owner of the Bank voor Handel
en Scheepvaart. All the Thyssens needed now was an American branch.

1920s: THE BUSINESS TiES THAT BIND

AILROAD BARON E.H. HARRIMAN'S SON AVERELL wanted nothing to do
with railroads, so his father gave him an investment firm, W.A. Harriman &
Company in New York City. E.H. hired the most qualified person in the country
to run the operation, George Herbert Walker. Averell hired his little brother
Edward Roland “Bunny” Harriman as a vice president.
By 1920, George Herbert Walker had already builr a fortune in Missouri.
Walker, a charismaric former heavyweight boxing champion, was a human pir
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bull. He lived life to the fullest, owning mansions around the East Coast and
one of the most extravagant apartments in Manhattan. His hobbies were golf,
hunting, drinking scotch and beating his sons to a pulp. Elsie Walker, one of
Walker's grandchildren described Walker as a “tough old bastard” whose children
had no love “for their father.” He was also a religious bigot who hated Catholics,
although his parents raised him to be one. According to other sources, he also
did not like Jews.

In 1922, Averell Harriman traveled ro Germany to set up a W.A. Harriman
& Co. branch in Berlin. The Berlin branch was also run by Walker. While in
Germany, he mer with the Thyssen family for the first time. Harriman agreed to
help the Thyssens with their plan for an American bank.

The following year, a wounded Germany was growing sicker. The government
had no solution and froze while Germany rotred from within. With widespread
strikes and production ar a near standstill, Fritz Thyssen later recalled, “We were
at the worst time of the inflation. In Berlin the government was in distress. [t was
ruined financially. Authority was crumbling. In Saxony a communist government
had been formed and the Red terror. organized by Max Hoelz, reigned through
the countryside. The German Reich ... was now abour ro crumble,”

In October, 1923, an emotionally desperate Fritz Thyssen went to visit one of
his and Germany's great military heroes, General Erich Ludendorff. During the
1918 socialist rule in Berlin, Ludendorff organized a military resistance against
the socialists and the industrialists were in great debt to him. When Thyssen
met with Ludendorft, they discussed Germany'’s economic collapse. Thyssen was
apocalypric, fearing the worst was yet to come. Ludendorff disagreed. “There is
butone hope,” Ludendorft said, “Adolph Hitler and the National Socialist party.”
Ludendorff respected Hitler immensely. “He is the only man who has any political
sense.” Ludendorff encouraged Thyssen to join the Nazi movement. “Go listen
to him one day” he said to Thyssen.

Thyssen followed General Ludendorft’s advice and went to a number of meetings
to hear Hitler speak. He became mesmerized by Hirler. "1 realized his orator gifts
and his ability to lead the masses. What impressed me most however was the order
that reigned over his meetings, the almost military discipline of his followers,”

Thyssen arranged to meer privately with Hitler and Ludendorff in Munich.
Hitler told Thyssen the Nazi movement was in financial trouble, ir was not growing
fast enough and was nationally irrelevant. Hitdler needed as much money as possible
to fight off the Communists/Jewish conspiracy against Europe. Hiter envisioned
a fascist German monarchy with a nonunion, antilock national work force.

Thyssen was overjoyed with the Nazi plarfform. He gave Hitder and Luden-
dortf 100,000 gold marks ($25,000) for the infant Nazi party. Others in the
steel and coal industries soon followed Thyssen's lead, although none came close
to matching him. Many business leaders in Germany supported Hitler's secret
union-hating agenda. However, some donated hecause they feared they would
be left out in the cold if he actually ever seized power.
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Most industry leaders gave up on Hitler after his failed coup in 1923, While
Hitler spent a brief time in jail, the Thyssens, through the Bank voor Handel en
Scheepvaart, opened the Union Banking Corporation in 1924.

UNION BANKING CORPORATION

EARLY IN 1924, HENDRICK J. KOUWENHOVEN, the managing director
of Bank voor Handel en Scheepvaart, traveled to New York to meer with
Walker and the Harriman brothers. Together, they established The Union Banking
Corporation. The UBC's headquarters was located ar the same 39 Broadway
address as Harriman & Co.

As the German economy recovered through the mid to late '20s, Walker and
Harriman’s firm sold over $50,000,000 worth of German bonds to American
investors, who profited enormously from the economic boom in Germany. In
1926, August Thyssen died art the age of 84. Fritz was now in control of one of
the largest industrial families in Europe. He quickly created the United Steel
Works (USW), the biggest industrial conglomerate in German history. Thyssen
hired Albert Volger, one of the Ruhr's most influential industrial directors, as
director General of USW.

Thyssen also broughr Fredich Flick, another German family juggernaut, on
board. Flick owned coal and steel industries throughout Germany and Poland
and desperately wanted to invest into the Thyssen empire. One of the primary
motivations for the Thyssen/Flick massive steel and coal merger was suppressing
the new labor and socialist movements.

That year in New York, George Walker decided to give his new son in law,
Prescott Bush, a big break. Walker made Bush a vice president of Harriman & Co.
Prescott's new office employed many of his classmates from his Yale class of 1917,
including Roland Harriman and Knight Woolley. The three had been close friends
at Yale and were all members of Skull and Bones, the mysterious on-campus secret
society. Despite the upbeat fraternity atmosphere at Harriman & Co., it was also
a place of hard work, and no one worked harder than Prescott Bush,

In fact, Walker hired Bush to help him supervise the new Thyssen/Flick United
Steel Works. One section of the USW empire was the Consolidated Silesian Steel
Corporation and the Upper Silesian Coal and Steel Company located in the
Silesian section of Poland. Thyssen and Flick paid Bush and Walker generously,
but it was worth every dime. Their new business arrangement pleased them
all financially, and the collective talents of all four men and their rapid success
astonished the business world.

In the meantime Hitler and the Nazi party were broke. Since the German
economic recovery, members and donations had dried up, leaving the Nazi move-
ment withering on the vine. In 1927, Hidler was desperate for cash; his party was
slipping into debt. Hitler told his private secretary Rudolf Hess to shake down
wealthy coal rycoon and Nazi sympathizer Emil Kirdorf. Kirdorf paid off Hider's
debr thar year but the following year, he too had no money left to contribute.
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In 1928, Hitler had his eyes on the enormous Barlow Palace located in Bri-
ennerstrasse, the most aristocratic section of Munich. Hitler wanted to convert
the palace into the Nazi national headquarters and change its name to the Brown
House but it was out of his price range. Hitler told Hess to contact Thyssen. After
hearing the Hess appeal, Thyssen felt it was rime to give Hitler a second chance.
Through the Bank voor Handel en Scheepvaart, Thyssen said he “placed Hess in
possession of the required funds” to purchase and redesign the Palace. Thyssen later
said the amount was about 250,000 marks but leading Nazis later claimed that
just the re-molding cost over 800,000 marks (equivalent to $2 million today).

Regardless of the cost, Hitler and Thyssen became close friends after the pur-
chase of the Brown House. At the time, neither knew how influential that house was
to become the following year when, in 1929, the great depression spread around
the world, With the German economic recovery up in flames, Hitler knew there
was going to be a line of industrialists out the door waiting to give him cash.

1930s: HITLER RISES — THYSSEN/BUSH CASH IN

HYSSEN WOULD LATER TRY TO CLAIM that his weekends with Hitler and

Hess at his Rhineland castles were not personal but strictly business and that
he did not approve of most of Hitler’s ideas, but the well-known journalise R.G
Waldeck., who spent time with Thyssen at a spa in the Black Forest, remembered
quite differently. Waldeck said when he and Thyssen would walk through the
cool Black Forest in 1929-30, Thyssen would tell Waldeck that he believed in
Hitler. He spoke of Hitler “with warmth” and said the Nazis were “new men”
that would make Germany strong again. With the depression bleeding Europe.
Thyssen's financial support made Hitler's rise to power almost inevitable,

The great Depression also rocked Harriman & Co, The following year, Har-
riman & Co. merged with the London firm Brown/Shipley. Brown/Shipley kept
its name, but Harriman & Co. changed its name to Brown Brothers, Harriman,
The new firm moved to 59 Wall St. while UBC stayed at 39 Broadway. Averell
Harriman and Prescotr Bush reestablished a holding company called The Har-
riman 15 Corporation. One of the companies Harriman had held stock in was
the Consolidated Silesian Steel Company. Twao thirds of the company was owned
by Friedrich Flick. The rest was owned by Harriman.

In December 1931, Fritz Thyssen officially joined the Nazi party. When
Thyssen joined the movement, the Nazi party was gaining critical mass around
Germany. The charismatic speeches and persona of Hitler, the depression and the
Thyssen’s Bank voor Handel en Scheepvaart all contributed to Hitler’s sudden
rise in popularity with the German people.

In September 1932, Thyssen invited a group of elite German industrial tycoons
to his castle to meet with Hitler. They spent hours questioning Hitler, who an-
swered all their questions with the “urmost satistaction,” Thyssen remembered.
The money poured in from the industrial circles mostly due to Hitler’s "monar-
chistic attitude” rowards labor and issues of class.
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But by November, German voters grew weary of Hider’s antidemocrartic tenden-
cies and turned to the Communist party, which gained the most seats in the fall
election. The Nazis lost a sweeping 33 seats in the Reichstag, but since the Nazis
were already secretly negotiating a power sharing alliance with Hindenberg thar
would ultimately lead to Hitler declaring himself dictaror, the outcry of German
voters was politically insigniticant.

By 1934, Hindenberg was dead and Hider completely controlled Germany.
In March, Hitler announced his plans for a vast new highway system. He wanted
to connect the entire Reich with an unprecedented wide road design, especially
around major ports. Hider wanted o bring down unemployment but, more
importantly, needed the new roads for speedy military maneuvers,

Hitler also wanted to seriously upgrade Germany’s military machine. Hider
ordered a “rebirth of the German army” and contracted Thyssen and United
Steel Works for the overhaul. Thyssen's steel empire was the cold steel heart of
the new Nazi war machine that led the way o World War 11, killing millions
across Europe.

Thyssen's and Flick’s profits soared into the hundreds of millions in 1934 and the
Bank voor Handel en Scheepvaart and UBC in New York were overflowing with
money. Prescorr Bush became managing director of UBC and handled the day-to-
day operations of the new German economic plan. Bush's shares in UBC peaked
with Hitler’s new German order. But while production rose, cronyism did as well.

On March 19, 1934, Prescott Bush handed Averell Harriman a copy of that
day’s New York Times. The Polish government was applying to take over Consoli-
dated Silesian Steel Corporation and Upper Silesian Coal and Steel Company
from "German and American interests” because of rampant "mismanagement,
excessive borrowing, fictiious bookkeeping and gambling in securities.” The Pol-
ish government required the owners of the company, which accounted for over
45% of Poland’s steel production, to pay at least its full share of back raxes. Bush
and Harriman would eventually hire attorney John Foster Dulles to help cover
up any improprieties that might arise under investigative scrutiny.

Hitler's invasion of Poland in 1939 ended the debate about Consolidated Sile-
sian Steel Corporation and Upper Silesian Coal and Steel Company. The Nazis
knocked the Polish Government off Thyssen, Flick and Harriman's steel company
and were planning to replace the paid workers. Originally Hiter promised Sralin
they would share Poland and use Soviet prisoners as slaves in Polish factories.
Hitler’s promise never actually materialized and he eventually invaded Russia.

1940s: BUSINESS AS USUAL -

CONS()LI DATED SILESIAN STEEL CORPORATION was located near the Polish
town of Oswiecim, one of Poland’s richest mineral regions. Thar was where
Hitler set up the Auschwirz concentration camp. When the plan ro work Sovier
prisoners fell through, the Nazis transferred Jews, communists, gypsies and other
minority populations to the camp. The prisoners of Auschwitz who were able
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to work were shipped to 30 different companies. One of the companies was the
vast Consolidated Silesian Steel Corporation.

“Nobody’s made the connection before between Consolidared Silesian Steel
Corporation, Auschwitz and Prescott Bush,” John Loftus told Clamor.

“That was the reason why Auschwirz was built there. The coal deposits could
be processed into either coal or additives tor aviation gasoline.”

Even though Thyssen and Flick's Consolidated Steel was in their possession,
Hitler’s invasions across Europe spooked them, bringing back memories of World
War I. Thyssen and Flick sold Consolidated Steel to UBC. Under the complete
control of Harriman and management of Bush, the company became Silesian
American Corporation which became part of UBC and Harriman'’s portfolio
of 15 corporations. Thyssen quickly moved to Swirzerland and later France to
hide from the terror about to be unleashed by the Nazi war machine he had
helped build.

A portion of the slave labor force in Poland was “managed by Prescotr Bush,”
according 1o a Dutch intelligence agent. In 1941, slave labor had become the
lifeblood of the Nazi war machine. The resources of Poland’s rich steel and coal
field played an essential parc in Hitler's invasion of Europe,

According to Higham, Hitler and the Fraternity of American businessmen
“not only sought a continuing alliance of interests for the duration of World
War II, but supported the idea of a negotiated peace with Germany that would
bar any reorganization of Europe along liberal lines. It would leave as its residue
a police state thar would place the Fraternity in postwar possession of financial,
industrial, and political autonomy.”

Six days after Pearl Harbor and the US declaration of war at the end of 1941,

President Franklin D. Roosevelt, Secretary of the Treasury Henry Morgenthau
and US Autorney General Francis Biddle signed the rradmg With the Enemy
Act, which banned any business interests with US enemies of war. Prescott Bush
continued with business as usual, aiding the Nazi invasion of Europe and supply-
ing resources for weaponry that would eventually be rurned on American solders
in combat against Germany.

On October 20, 1942, the U.S. government had had enough of Prescott Bush
and his Nazi business arrangements with Thyssen. Over the summer, The New
York Tribune had exposed Bush and Thyssen, whom the Tribune dubbed “Hitler's
Angel.” When the US government saw UBC’s books, they found out that Bush’s
bank and its sharcholders “are held for the benefit of ... members of the Thyssen
family, [and] is property of nationals ... of a designated enemy counrry.” The list
of seven UBC share holders was:

E. Roland Harriman ..., ... 3,991 shares

Cornelius Lievense......... 4 shares
Harold D. Pennington.............. 1 shares
Ray Morns ..o 1 shares
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Prescott S. Bush ..cccoccooocenn | shares
H. J. Kouwenhoven ............. 1 shares
Johann G. Groeninger .............. 1 shares

The UBC books also revealed the myriad of money and holding companies fun-
neled from the Thyssens and the government realized UBC was just the tip of the
iceberg. On November 17, 1942, The US government also took over the Silesian
American Corporation, but did not prosecute Bush for the reasons Higham noted
carlier. The companies were allowed to operate within the Government Alien
Property custodian office with a catch — no aiding the Nazis. In 1943, while still
owning his stock, Prescott Bush resigned from UBC and even helped raise money
for dozens of war-related causes as chairman of the National War Fund.

After the war, the Dutch government began investigating the whereabouts of
some jewelry of the Dutch royal family that was stolen by the Nazis. They started
looking into books of the Bank voor Handel en Scheepvaart. When they discovered
the transaction papers of the Silesian American Corporation, they began asking the
bank manager H.J. Kowenhoven a lot of questions. Kouwenhoven was shocked at
the discovery and soon traveled to New York to inform Prescott Bush. According to
Durch intelligence, Kouwenhoven met with Prescott soon after Christmas, 1947,
Two weeks later, Kouwenhoven apparently died of a hearr artack.

1950s: BusH SELLS UBC STOCK B -

Y 1948, FRITZ THYSSEN'S LIFE WAS IN RUINS. After being jailed by the Nazis,

he was jailed by the Allies and interrogated extensively, but not completely, by
US investigators. Thyssen and Flick were ordered to pay reparations and served
time in prison for their atrocious crimes against humanity.

On February 8, 1951, Fritz Thyssen died bitterly in Argentina at the age of 78,
Thyssen was angry at the way he was treated by Europe after the war and how his-
tory would remember him as Hiter's most important and prominent financier.

When Thyssen died, the Alien Property Custodian released the assets of the Union
Banking Corporation to Brown Brothers Harriman. The remaining stockholders
cashed in their stocks and quietly liquidared the rest of UBC's blood money.

Prescortt Bush received $1.5 million for his share in UBC. That money enabled
Bush to help his son, George Herbert Walker Bush, to set up his first royalty
tirm, Overby Development Company, that same year. [t was also helptul when
Prescott Bush left the business world to enter the public arena in 1952 with a
successful senatorial campaign in Connecticur. On October 8", 1972, Prescott
Bush died of cancer and his will was enacted soon after.

In 1980, when George H.W. Bush was elected vice president, he placed his
father’s family inherence in a blind trust. The trust was managed by his old friend
and quail hunting partmer, William “Stamps” Farish 1. Bush's choice of Farish
to manage the family wealth is quite revealing in thar it demonstrates that the
former president might know exactly where some of his inheritance originated.
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Farish’s grandfather, William Farish Jr., on March 25%, 1942, pleaded "no contest”
to conspiring with Nazi Germany while president of Standard Oil in New Jersey.
He was described by Senator Harry Truman in public of approaching “treason”
for profiting off the Nazi war machine. Standard Oil, invested millions in 1G
Farben, who opened a gasoline factory within Auschwirz in 1940. The billions
“Stamps” inherited had more blood on it then Bush, so the paper trail of UBC
stock would be safe during his 12 years in presidential politics.

It has been 60 years since one of the great money laundering scandals of the
20" century ended and only now are we beginning to see the true historical
aspects of this important period of world history, a history that the remaining
Holocaust survivors beg humanity to “never forget.”

Loftus believes history will view Prescort Bush as harshly as Thyssen. “It is bad
enough that the Bush family helped raise the money for Thyssen to give Hitler
his start in the 1920s, but giving aid and comfort to the enemy in time of war
is treason, The Bush bank helped the Thyssens make the Nazi steel that killed
Allied solders. As bad as financing the Nazi war machine may seem, aiding and
abetting the Holocaust was worse. Thyssen's coal mines used Jewish slaves as if
they were disposable chemicals. There are six million skeletons in the Thyssen
family closet, and a myriad of criminal and historical questions to be answered
about the Bush family’s complicity.”

There is no question that the Bush family needs to donate at least $1.5 mil-
lion to the proper holocaust reparation fund. Since Prescortt Bush is dead, the
only way to compensate is for the main inheritors of his estate to make amends
with surviving slaves and the families of slaves who died in Bush and Thyssen's
coal mines. If the Bush family refuses to contribute the money to compensate for
Prescott Bush's involvement in the Holocaust, it is like denying the Holocaust
itself and their role in one of the darkest moments in world history.

*ﬁ;‘:*

Toby Rogers is a contributing writer to High Times, New York Times, The New York Postand the Village
Voice In 1992, he won the Quill Award for Investigative reporting, In 2003, Toby Rogers was teatured
in Horns and Halos, a film about George W. Bush.

Special thanks ro John Loftus, Emmy winning journalist, author and current president
of the Florida Holocaust Museum.

This article and others on the same subject are posted at many sites on the Interner
with no “official” or mainstream response. While we do not know if these articles are true
or not, they should be explored with honest research and diligence. The only response |
could find on this vexing question was/is at www.straightdope.com. Cecil Adams’s defense
of Prescott, is that everyone does it and that he “[will] buy the claim that Bush got his
share of UBC back — it was an American bank, after all — but the idea that his German
holdings increased 1n value despite being obliterated by Allied bombs is ridiculous.”
No refutation just amsused contempe and srory.

More on the use of these stories later.

46



REFLECTING ON THE YALE
SUCCESSION

STEVE SEWALL R B o
THI: OPFINION PIECE APTTARED UNDER A DIFFERENT NAME IN THE YALF HERALD - FESRUARY 21, 2003

father, Yale English professor Richard B. Sewall, had a memorable exchange

at Freshman Commons. They were there to help freshmen of the class of
‘53 make the most of their years at Yale. But they disagreed passionately about
the purpose of education. Is it active (Buckley) or contemplative (Sewall)?

Buckley, the big man on campus, urged the freshmen to join, heel, compete
and succeed. Yale, he said, is your chance to build the nerworks that will sustain
you throughout life. Sewall, a teacher and scholar, urged the freshmen to read,
write, discuss and wnderstand, Yale, he said, is your chance ro reflect on life iself,
Years later, 53 alumnus Jim Thomson summed up the student response: "We
all knew Sewall was right, but we wanted to be like Buckley.”

Since 1988, three Yale graduares have led the United States. This Yale succession is
historic. Never before have three (or even two) successive U.S, presidents studied at
the same university, During its tercentenary year, mother Yale codified this lineage by
gathering its presidential progeny, separarely, back to Yale. At graduation, President
George W. Bush, DC '68, jokingly likened himself to the Prodigal Son.

Today, Yale uses its presidential lineage as a beacon to attract students, raise money
and extend its global presence. But no one studies it. By falling silent on something
historic happening in its own backyard, Yale’s community of scholars risks losing its
perspective on history. Equally ar risk is America’s political press, given its stunning
silence on one universiry's four-rerm (and counting) lock on the White House.

So whar's being overlooked? Under scrutiny, the Yale succession is a key to
recent history and a gateway to leadership issues of concern to Yale as a “labora-
tory for future leaders,” in President Richard Levin's phrase,

IN 1949, Yale Daily News Editor William E. Buckley, Jr., DC *50, and my
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All three Yale presidents owe their White House tenures to the Big Money that
has tightened its grip on local, state, and national government since the advent
of televised attack ads in the 1960%. In addition, Big Money's grip on education
and media has helped the Yale presidents advance America’s post-Cold War bid
for military and economic empire without ever consulting or informing voters.
Finally, it was on the Yale presidents’ watch that Big Money corrupted and inflated
corporate and political America until the bubble burst, plunging the world into
a recession that economists say could last for years.

No economy, national or global, can stand forever on a corrupt political base.
Healthy societies, like healthy families, require trust. The seismic convergence of
ethics and economics that toppled Japanese and American markets in 1991 and
2000, respectively, now rattles the entire world. Corruprion and terror, widely
seen as two unethical sides of the same coin of oil and empire, depress financial
markets around the globe.

In America, the Dow Jones average reflects a general loss of faith in insritu-
tions fueled by Machiavellian venality in politics and by Enronitis in business.
The restoration of integrity — a sea change in America’s civic and commercial
life — is the task of a generation. It entails creating a new “balance of public and
private interests in the global economy,” writes Jeffrey Garten of Yale's Schoal
of Management. If not apparent now, the need for change will become clear as
investor mistrust causes market rally after market rally ro fizzle.

Does the United States. in its commitment to freedom and democratic values,
have the will to effect change? And does Yale, as a laboratory for future leaders, have
the will to lead the way in imagining and implementing change? The unwillingness
of Japan's elite universities to produce a generation of tough-minded reformers
helps explain why that former economic superpower, now in its thirteenth year
of recession, could be stagnate for years to come. Will America be next?

Significantly, the Ivy League aura that shiclds the Yale succession from scrutiny
is fading. In Secrets of the Tomb, a recent history of Skull and Bones, Yale grad
Alexandra Robbins, SY ‘98, shows how four generations of Bonesmen created
the Bush dynasty that comprises two thirds of Yale’s presidential troika. Looking
ahead to 2004, Robbins describes a possible Bush/Kerry contest as “the first Bones
versus Bones presidential race.”

In this pairing, Yale comes off more as a club for oligarchs than as a laboratory
for leaders. Three more Yale-trained presidential hopefuls bolster this impression:
Vermont Governor Howard Dean, PC *71, and Senators Joe Lieberman, MC *64,
LAW '67, and Hillary Clinton, LAW '67.

In 1949, Yale, in uts wisdom, sent Bonesman Buckley and “barbarian” Sewall
to Freshman Commons to encourage the class of '53 to pursue success and un-
derstanding. Today, Yale's silence on the Yale succession suggests that Yale, to its
peril, may be pursuing success alone. The cure for non-reflection is thoughtful
dialogue. The stakes are high. Let the dialogue begin.

RS
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ADDENDUM: - -
THE GLASS-TOP TABLE CONVERSATION.

S YOU KNOW BY NOW,

my father, Richard B. Sewall,
taught English ac Yale for forty
years. In the 1960’, he was the
first Master of Ezra Stiles College.
He retited in 1976. In June of last
year, ten months before his death
last April at age 95, he flew from
Boston to Chicago to spend three
months with me.

In his last years he suffered from
dementia, a close cousin to full-
blown Alzheimer's. He stopped writ-
ing letters and reading newspapers,
Although he could ke phone calls,
he no longer made them. Most of the
time, he scemed to be withdrawing
from the world.

One evening in 1999, while he was srill at his beloved country home in Bethany,
outside of New Haven. I had phoned him and found him urterly disoriented, “Steve,”
he pleaded, “1 don't know where [ am. What are all these books doing on the walls?”

He was referring to the bookshelves of the cozy study with the litdde wood burning
fireplace where for twenty years he had worked on his National Book Award-winning
biography of Emily Dickenson, He was speaking from the house where he and my mother
had enjoyed forty years of idyllic rural life, and where, since her death from pancreatic
cancer in 1975, he had been bound and determined to end his days, like the New Eng-
lander he was, even at the cost of being apart from his three sons.

In his last years, he pursued a number of quests. One relared to Yale, Sometimes after
an afternoon nap he would appear in a jacker and tie. Glancing ar his watch, he would
say he had to be downtown at Yale in an hour to give a lecture. “Whart abour, Dad?" |
once asked. "1 don't know,” he said, with a hint of annoyance in his voice, “Whatever
they want me o lecture abour.”

Another quest was to reunite with his family of birth. Just before we maved him w
safery with my brother Rick’s family near Boston, he would tell us he was waiting to be
picked up and driven back ro his childhood home in Rye, New York. His home in Bethany,
with its splendid prospect of the New Haven reservoir and West Rock in the far distance,
was now a mere way station in his search for a destination that always eluded him.

One of the joys of living with very old people is the knowledge that not all of their
quests are imaginary. One of my father’s real-life quests was visible in the luminous look
of recognition he gave me when we mer at O"Hare airport last June, He had reached a
destination.

And here he was now. in high spirits, sitting opposite me at the sunlit, glass-top
breakfast table at my home in Glenview, sipping from a bowl of chicken noodle soup
and munching on a tuna fish sandwich. It was amazing to see him, He had made the
flight by himself, without a hitch, And now he was bent over, utterly engrossed in the

Richard B. Sewall Professor, Dean and Master at Yale Unwversity
Picrure taken early 19805 — courresy the Sewall Fanuly
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act of eating. Larer that summer, | asked him what keeps him going. “Well." he said, “1
get 1o ear three good meals a day. And 1 like being around you guys.”

We hadn't seen each other in months. And [ yearned 1o ralk with him about the book |
wanted to write. How would our conversation go? Where would it take us? [ had no idea.
Yet I knew it would be the latest installment in a running dialogue abourt Yale, education
and, in effect, the modern world that began in 1965 while he was at Ezra Stiles, and
where [ lived while completing a Masters degree in teaching ar Yale.

That was an eventful year for me. I studied Romandc poetry with Harold Bloom,
sang with the Original Golden Stars, a New Haven gospel quartet, watched Viernam
War hearings conducted by Senator William Fulbright and his Senate Foreign Relations
Committee on the color TV at the Yale Law School dining hall, 1 also mer Allard K.
Lowenstein, the Yale-trained lawyer, civil rights activist and future Congressman whao
then was building the student-based antiwar movement that in 1968 would unseat a
sitting president, Lyndon Baines Johnson.

Al Lowenstein was the only visitor who was welcome to Stiles at any hour, day or night.
He could wake my parents at midnight and within minutes be munching on a sandwich
of his own, enthralling us with tales of political intrigue at the highest levels.

The highlight of '65-"66 for me, however, was the English class T raught at Troup Junior
High School in New Haven to 30 ninth grade boys diagnosed as slow learners. Maost of
these youngsters were nothing of the sort. They were students in a failed school system
and residents of a failing city. By 1990, the City of New Haven, decimated by gangs and
drugs, would have the highest per-capita murder rate of any city in America.

On my last day at Troup in 1966, school Principal Frank ]. Carr asked me what 1
would change ar Troup if could change just one thing. | said the school needed textbooks
that were less than six years old. In response, he told me that while the New Haven Board
of Education would spend $400,000 that summer on renovarions for the Troup dining
room, it would spend only $50,000 that year for textbooks for the entire system, grades
1 through 12.

In those days, fat car general contractors ran the New Haven Board of Education. It
was Big Money ar the local level. T wonder who controls that Board roday.

My year at Troup opened my eyes to the world. My students had problems, bur my
students were not the problem.'To see if they could wrire, | assigned on the first day of class a
one-page answer ta the question, “What happened in English class today?” The paper Joe
McVery (not his real name) handed me next day began, “At9:27, Mr. Sewall walked into
room 314 wearing his threadbare jacker.” This kid could write. Another student, David
Johns, was brighter than most people I met at Harvard, Yale and U. C. Berkeley.

It was not Q) problems but bad schooling and personal problems that held these sw-
dents back. Take Dexter Marthews, a young man with a bladder problem but no written
permission ta leave class. Normally well behaved, Dexter would stand up and glare at me
whenever [ refused his urgent requests ro go to the bathroom.

Well into the school year I asked students to write a story in which they tell me an
enarmous lie, wild and crazy, In his paper, Joe McVety championed Dexter's cause with
a terrific yarn about how, after a global search, detective Dexter had finally tracked the
evil Mr. Sewall down to the mien’s room of the Seaview Hotel in Paris, France, and, with
a tremendous punch, knocked him clear through the skylight window,
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The class howled with delight when I read Joe's paper aloud. But i still hadn't dawned
on me that maybe Dexter did need to go to the john.

One day near the end of the school year, Dexter, in desperation, pulled a knife on me.
Standing wide-eyed at his desk, he looked far more scared than [. The dass froze. I told
him scornfully to pur away the knife, go take a leak, and be back in class in rwo minues,
He did. Finally 1 saw that Dexter wasn't trying to con me. But | can't say I raught him
anything in English that year,

Then there was Anthony Tomasino, whose mom had a fresh-baked chocolate cake
waiting for me when 1 visited her home to find out why her son was acting up in class.
When [ saw the front door had six locks on it, Mrs. Tomasino said that the sixth one
was there because Anthony, 4 sleepwalker wha still slept in his mom’s bed. had learned
to unlock the first five in his sleep.

At supper throughout the year. | regaled my parents with stories like these. Bur |
learned less abour reaching than T should have. My supervising teacher spent a total
of 10 minutes with me during entire school year. Yale had never wold me to expect any
help from her, so | didn't. Sull, after class most days, I wandered the school, taught as a
substitute, or visited classes overseen by batrle-scarred souls who had stopped teaching
years ago, or never started. | got to know the school.

Although my father never visited my students at Troup, the late Paul Weiss did. Paul
was a family friend, a Fellow at Stilesand a legend in the Yale philosophy department. He
was also one of Yale’s great teachers. What a day thar was. Informed thar a Yale professor
was coming to class, my students expected John Wayne, But when Paul Weiss entered
the room — the gnarliest, most eccentric looking guy you ever saw in vour life — they
thought they had gor Mr. McGoo.

What they had was an incarnation of Socrates. Paul confronted them with Archimedes’
paradox of the race between the hare and the tortaise. The discussion was pretty good. It
came down to a contest between Paul and the super-sharp David Johns, who loved ro argue,
but who had a chip on his shoulder that kepr him and Paul from coming to terms.

My most memorable moment at Troup, it turns out, was with my least memorable
student. Nothing secemed o stand out about Kenny Brown, But here he was one day, in
the passenger seat of my ‘65 green WV, getting a ride to the Dixwell Avenue bus after
spending 45 minutes with me in after school derention. Kenny and I were on bad rerms
that day and neither of us felt like ralking,. Finally | broke the silence and asked him what
he wanted to do when he got out of high school.

“1 just want to get a job,” he said in voice 1 had never heard before, It was low and
gutrural, like a man's. Dead serious. And yer despairing. What he yearned for in life,
at age 15, was a job. Whar did I yearn for when 1 was 152 Stamps, girls and soccer. We
talked, From then on, | respected Kenny Brown.

At supper that night ar the long rustic wooden dining table ac Ezra Sdiles, 1 told my
parents that schools like Troup had broken the Jetfersonian promise of universal public
education. My dad agreed. In the years to come, we came to feel thar this promise — this
fundamental right and indispensable comerstone of democracy — survived at the nanonal
level mainly, and merely, in the “equal opportunity” and “no child left behind™ platitudes
of public Agures who knew full well that American schools were sending millions of
youngsters into the world utterly unpsepared to survive in it.
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Troup Junior High School brought out the Jonathan Kozoll in both of us, The gap
between what Yale offered students and whar the City of New Haven offered students
was not only wrong, it was all but criminal. And we knew thar this gap, if nor correcred,
would ultimately prove fatal to democracy itself.

Several years after granting me the MLA.T. degree in 1966, Yale summarily terminated
its rickety M.A.T. program and replaced it with one that has made improvements in the
New Haven schools, and, by example, in schools nationwide,

As the response of a torch-bearing university to the developing erisis in American
education, however, my facher and | felt this program was a drop in the bucker. The
need, as we saw it, was for a Yale School of Educarion that would rival in size, quality
and influence Yale's schools of law, management and medicine. Let this school train
superb reachers and principals, much as Yale trains superb lawyers, businessmen and
doctors.

Why s it, we asked ourselves, that grear universities like Yale, in the quest to explore
and ro master every aspect of nature and every corner of the world, were so slow to see the
obvious: the ¢ritical role of universal public education in sustaining a viable democracy?

To this paradox, we ook bittersweet comfort in T. 8. Eliot’s celebrated account of the
belatedness of all self-knowledge:

We sb;_zﬂ not cease from exploration
And the end of all our exploring
Wil be to arrive where we started

And know the place for the first time.

At the glass-top table with my father last June, the knowledge that Eliot speaks of, and
the day that my father and | had hoped for, seemed farther off than ever. The world had
entered the era of Enronitis and the War on Terror.

My father had finished his meal. We had discussed family marters. [ fell silent, won-
dering how I would resume the dialogue that had guided me over the past 35 years. His
eyes, sunken and watery, were fixed on me. Age be damned, I rald myself, we're gonna
talk, full throttle, just like we always have.

At first [ didn't let on that T wanted to write a book. 1 didn't have the nerve, Instead,
I gave him the big picture, a sound-bite history of the 1990', as if he had just gotten
back from the planet Mars. | told him about the end of the cold war, the nise of the
global economy, the boom in tech stocks, the bursting of the tech bubble, and the War
on Terror tniggered by 9/11.

He ook it all in. For well over an hour, his eyes would neither wander or nor
WAIVET,

I tald him about the three Big Money "leadership issues” noted in the Yale Herald
piece: campaign finance, America’s post-Cold War drive toward global empire, and the
endemic corruptions exposed by the bursting of the tech bubble. And I mentioned a
fourth 1ssue: the CIA's role in advancing the global drug trade that had corroded the
American system of justice and decimared nearly every ciry in the nation, including New
Haven and Chicago, the two cities | knew best.

I showed him my copy of the essential book on this topic, The Politics of Herotn: CIA
Complicity in the Global Drug Trade, by Alfred W. McCoy, a Yale Ph.D. who teaches at
the University of Wisconsin,
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Then [ brought it all home with a unifying insight. After several months of research, rhe
idea of a Yale succession of U.S, presidents — Bush/Clinton/Bush and their possible Yale-
trained successors — had suddenly dawned on me. Omens of Ivy League oligarchy!

To personalize this point, [ placed on the glass-top table copy of the American Heritage
Dretionary that he had handed me in 1975. “Read the entry for perquisite.” he had said
then, with undisguised pride. [ asked him to look at it now. | read the entry to him,
including the example of usage that follows the definition: “Politics was the perquisite
of the upper classes. (Richard B. Sewall)”

He beamed and grasped my hand warmly. A former student of his, later a harmless
drudge of a lexicographer at Random House, had recalled it from class, honored him
with the attribution, and sent him the dictionary.

Pondering the “end of all our-exploring” belaredness of my discovery of the Yale suc-
cession, it struck me thar Yale's string of White House occupants was iself hidden in
plain view, celebrated and promoted by Yale, yet screened from critical an alysis by 300
years of vy League venerability.

What was screened from analysis ran deeper still. Now [ had to talk with my facher
about the covert Yale,

It will not surprise you to hear that two highly secretive, Yale-related institutions, CIA and
Skull and Bones, are the wellsprings of this concepr. The origins of Skull and Bones, however,
just might. I told my father how William Huntington Russell, valedictorian of the Yale class
of 1832, and recently returned from a rransformative experience at a university-based secret
soctery in Germany, had founded Skull and Bones with drug money provided by his uncle,
Samuel Russell, an entrepreneur whose fleet of speedy Yankee Clippers had made him a fortune
by rransporting opium from Turkey, India and Burma to Canton and Shanghai in the so-called
China Trade of the 19th century.

As his past students never cease telling me, Richard Sewall was among the most patient
of men. For this reason, the rare moments of anger | saw in him as a child have stayed
with me. One such, a recurrent one, had to do wirth Skull and Bones. At tea with Yale
people in our living room, the mere mention of Bones would prompt him re declare it
a “curse on the academic life of the university.”

Having thrown down this gauntlet, he would fall silent, giving others the option of
pursuing or dropping it. Sometimes someone would pursue it. That is how [ first heard
about the huge archive of old rerm papers, covering much of Yale's undergraduare course
offering, that Bonesmen could touch up and resubmir as their own work. It was insticu-
tionalized plagiarism, he felr, and he was furious ar Yale's inability to stop ic.

In recent months, in overheared yet by no means unsubstantial online histories of Skull &
Bones written by “outlaw historians” like Antony Surton; Kris Millegan, Webster Tarpley and
Anton Chaitkin, | had found weightier reasons to be concerned with Bones. Before sharing a few
with my father, I wanted first to see if he could recall his old attacks on Bones. So 1 asked him.

“Sure [ do,” he replied, “but more than thar, those guys were trying to run the whole
damned university!”

This, to put it mildly, was news to me. Later | would read thar Yale presidents have
been Bonesmen or relared to Bonesmen lor 84 of the last 105 years up the time of his
retirement in 1976 (See Appendix I)

How, I asked, was Bones trying to run the university? His response, while an answer
to0 a different question, was passionate in its conviction.

“Skull and Bones will never succeed in running the university,” he said. “Yale is too
big and too diverse a place ta be controlled by any one group.” Suddenly, he was back

53



i the 19507, fighting some old battle thac [ had never heard about and never would.
Sensing my interest, he cautioned me: “Watch out. You can never prove anything against
those guys. They cover up everything they do.”

For a moment, [ had a queasy feeling of rilting at windmills. Bucancicipating that my
father, even ar age 95, would want documentation, I had at hand marerials photocopied
from the U. S. Government Documents Office at Northwestern University. These made
reference to several Bonesmen, one of whom was the first of three generations of Bush
family members who were Bonesmen.

I showed him four U.S. Treasury Department vesting orders issued in late 1941, after
Pearl Harbor, and ordering the confiscation, under the terms of the Trading with the
Enemy Act, of the assets of four corporations set up and run by Averell Harriman '13
and his chief lieutenant, Prescort Bush “17, grandfather of the current president, whom,
asachild in 1950's, | remembered as a respected Republican senator from my home stare
of Connecricur. [See Appendix II, ro be put online].

Identified by name on one of these orders were Prescotr Bush, and another Bonesman,
Roland Harriman ‘17, Averell’s younger brother. Since the early 1920%, the four Harri-
man firms had raised millions from American investors not to build up Adolph Hider's
transportation or agriculture infrastructures, but to build up Hitler's military machine.

“Dad.” 1 said. “If you spend a couple days on the Internet. you may ger the feeling
that the United Srates is run by a group of Ivy League arms merchanes!” In the past, an
incendiary assertion like this — and had I made one or two over the years — would have
triggered a soothing, quicrtistic “yes, but” response. But not now,

I paused. We looked ar each other. He seemed sad. "Dad. are you sure you want me
to go on with all this2" 1 asked him, laughing as 1 spoke, "This ain't fun, and, believe
me, it only gets worse!” He smiled affectionately and nodded yes. This was one of our
moments. We were on a quest,

I showed him Honstan Chronicle accounts from the early 1990% describing long-standing
business dealings berween the Bush and bin Laden families. These, | said, began in the late
1970°s when Sheik Mohammed bin Laden, the family patriarch and Osama’s father, had,
through a friend of the Bush family named James R. Bath, invested $50,000 in Arbusto,
the oil exploration company founded by George W. Bush with his father's help.

[ added that on Seprember 11, 2001, Shafiq bin Laden, an estranged half-brother of
Osama, had represented his family's investments at meeting of the Carlyle Group in Wash-
ingeon, D.C. Carlyleisa $16 billion private equity firm that buys up and turns around ailing
firms, especially defense conrracrors. George H. W. Bush serves as a Senior Consultant there.
And as Dan Briody establishes in his recent book on the firm, that Fred Malek pur George
W, Bush on the Caterair Board from 1990-94 while Caterair was owned by Carlyle.

[t was important to understand, however, that questionable dealings of American
industrialists and politicians were by no means limited ro the Bush family or even to the
Republicans. Averell Harriman, | told my father, was a career Democrat. [ passed on the
observation by one of the outlaw historians that Skull & Bones likes to have a voice on
both sides of the political debate.

As it happens, Harriman's third wife, the glorious and glamorous Britisher, Pamela Har-
riman, had, after his death, presided over the neo-liberal refashioning of the Democratic
Party in the 1980 to the point of advancing the young Bill Clinton to prominence as,

of all things, the party’s chief fundraiser.
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No arms dealings here, bur plenty of Big Money. Clinton was tied to a two-party
system — and to 2 mass media and legal system as well — that had kept knowledge of
American business dealings with Hitler and Swalin ourt of the political mainstream. Only
Big Money, it seemed, could account for this act of suppression.

And Big Money had lots o hide. 1 rold my father abour two well-received recent
books documenting the Nazi business dealings of Henry Ford and James Watson of
IBM. In additon, General Motors, the du Ponts and the Rockefellers had all done
business with Hider. Finally, [ mentoned Antony Sutton’s controversial three-volume
study of the buildup of Stalin’s military machine, even during the Cold War years, by
Amenican businesses assisted by the U. 5. Depariment of Commerce. Sutton was a Fel-
low at Stanford University's Hoover Institute. His book, as Harvard historian Richard
Pipes indicated in endorsing Sutton’s findings, would mark the end of Sutton's career as
a mainstream academic.

Recently | had discussed these dubious dealings with my co-author Bob Back. a
financial analyst with a CIA background who, as it happens, had worked during the
1970 at Brown Brothers, Harriman. "How in hell,” I asked Bob in a moment of anger,
“could American industrialists arm the two dictators who had wrned the world into a
living hell during much of the last half of the 20th century?”

In response, as | told my facher, Bob, himself a Bush Republican who sees a need foruninhib-
ited dialogue on these marters, had said. "Big money likes ta play both sides of the game.”

To wrap things up, | read my father an excerpt from Joseph Trento’s magistenial Secrer
Histary of the CIA. This extraordinary book is a history of American intelligence since
World War I1 and. in many respects, of American foreign and domestic affairs as well,
James Jesus Angleton "41, Yale's second most famous spy (the first being Natchan Hale),
is a central figure in chis book, Appointed by CIA founder Allen Dulles (a Princeton
alum), Angleton was the founding Director of CIA Counterintelligence. His job was to
protect the CIA from penetration by Soviet spies.

At Yale, Angleton had majored in English. My father recalled his name and said he
had taught him. Angleton was a true aesthete, He created and edited a poetry magazine
that he hand-delivered to subscribers at all hours of the night. On a visit o Harvard, he
heard a lecture by the English critic William Empson and took it upon himself to bring
Empson to lecture at Yale. Not bad for an undergraduate, we agreed.

In 1974, CIA Direcror William Colby dismissed Angleton for his falled attempt to
expose a Sovier mole who, Angleton was convinced, had rorally penerrated the CIA.
Angleton's obsessive witch hunt had destroyed the careers of dozens of wrongly accused
agents and demoralized rhe entire agency.

But time confirmed his worst fears. As Trento and David Wise before him have shawn,
CIA counterintelligence and FBI counterintelligence as well were indeed rotally com-
promised by Soviet agent Igor Orlov, a “man with the soul of a sociopath” yet supremely
disciplined and loyal to Stalin. Angleton missed nabbing Orlov by a hairsbreaddh, Under
scrutiny for years — CIA and FBI agents openly visited Gallery Orlov, the quaintart and
picture-framing store that Igor and his wife Eleanore managed in Alexandria, Virginia
— Qrlov managed to pass two polygraph tests and got away clean,

Angleton, “written off as a crank and a madman by his critics,” and dying of cancer,
granted Trento an INterview two years befare his death in 1987. 1 read my father the
following excerpt:
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Within the confines of [Angleton's] remarkable life were most of America’s secrets.
“You know how [ got to be m charge of counterintelligence? I agreed not to polygraph
or require detailed background checks on Allen Dulles and 60 of his closest friends ...
They were afraid that their own business dealings with Hitler's pals would come out.
They were too arrogant to believe that the Russians would discover 1t all. ... You know,
the CIA got tens of thousands of brave people killed, .. We played with lives as it we
owned them. We gave false hope, We — 1 — so musjudged whar happened.”

1 asked the dying man how it all went so wrong.

With no emotion in his vorce, but with his hand trembling, Angleton replied: “Funda
mentally, the founding fathers of U.S. intelligence were lars. The bewter vou hed and the
more you betraved, the more ltkely you would be promored. These people attracted and
promoted each other. Outside of their duplicity, the only thing they had in common was
a desire for absolute power. I did things that, i looking back on my Iife, ! regret. But |
was part of it and [ loved being in it ... Allen Dulles, Richard Helms, Carmel Offic, and
Frank Wisner were the grand masters. If you were in a room with them you were in a
room full of peaple that you had to believe would deservedly end up in hell ™ Angleton
slowlv sipped his tea and then said, “T guess I will see them there soon.”

I read the last paragraph aloud rtwice. Then | paused. He was still with me. Shifting
gears, | asked; *Who can tell for sure whether Dulles and his pals were liars? But Angleton
sure doesn't sound like a madman.”

1 then tried to restore balance by suggesting thar the world is a dangerous place, pure
and simple. To read academics, journalists and public servants like George Kennan, Ar-
naud de Borchgrave, William Kristol, Robert Kagan, John Lewis Gaddis or Christopher
Hirchens, 1 said, is to see that people like Allen Dulles and Averell Harriman, and the
Yale succession presidents as well, have reason to believe they are addressing dangers that
most Americans are too busy or afraid or uninformed to face up o,

The problem is, | told him, that the nation lacks a mechanism — public forums — for
distinguishing between dangers real and unreal. Since the advent of network television,
I said, civic discourse in America has degenerated 1o partisan strife. ['s always been chis
way, the historians rell us, and this backward-looking argument has grear force.

Yer America needs ro look forward. It has the finest communications technologies ever
devised. Tt should have a public communications system — a civic media — that brings
out the best in arizens, not the worst. A problem-solving media. operating vear round
and prime time at local, state and national levels, that makes citizens and government
responsive and accountable to each other.

With this, I had spoken my piece, The sunlight was gone from the dining area. Yer my father's
watery eyes were still on me. He knew all about civic media, a concern of mine over the past 25
vears. After a moment, sensing that | was waiting for him to speak, he lowered his eyes.

He had to be tired, I thought, and indeed, at that moment, he looked to be the oldest
man 1'd seen outside of a wheelchair or a hospital bed. A lintle puddle of drool Howing
from his open mouth had formed on the glass rop table beneath his chin. But the slight
forward lean in his posture rold me thar his mind was working.

“So" he said, "What do you want to do with all this?”

"I want to write a book,” I said. "An election year book. One thar gives Yale, and the
nation as well, a chance ro reflect. And 1o act appropriately. Bue | need a good nrle. What
do you think should [ call ie2”



Another moement passed. He leaned forward. "How abour Yale and the Modern World”
he asked. [t was simple. Yeo Olympian in its decachment. | suddenly felt as if, it was [
who was returning from Mars - and he who had been here all along,

Our dialogue continued throughout that very hot summer. Wearing big old straw hats
we took our twice daily walks, measured now not in miles covered, as in days gone by,
but in houses passed. We dined alfresco at a Mexican restaurant on Waukegan Road
averlooking a parking lot, A little fountain there sent water six feet into the air and
brought out the best in children.

At twilight on June 20, my 62nd birthday, four generations of Sewalls — my father
and I, my nephew Ethan ('00), and my four year old son, Joseph Richard Sewall — took
to a big open hield near our house and threw Frisbees,

Duting that summer [ gave my facher baths and backrubs. [ played him “"Open My
Eyes That | May Sec”, a favorite hymn. This, and songs by Paul Robeson — "“Jacab'’s Lad-
der” and "Old Man River” — moved him to tears. And at several memorable gatherings,
some of his tormer Yale students found thar Richard Sewall himself could sall perform,
still make a relling point, even to point of moving others to tears,

[to be continued| — www.yalesuccession.com

Appendix |

President Term  Years Ties with Bones?
Richard Levin 1992-2003 11 No known ties
Benno Schnudt 1986-1992 o No known ries
Bart Glamatu 1978-1986 8 Scroll & Key
Kingman Brewster 1963-1978 15 2 relatives in Skull & Bones
A, Whitney Griswold 195(-1978 I8 2 relatives in Skull & Bones
Charles Seymour 1937-1950 16 Member, Skull & Bones
James R, Angell 1921-1937 I6 No known ties. From Unie of Chicago
Arthur T. Hadley 1899-1921 22 Member, Skull & Bones 76
Timorhy Dwight 1886-1899 13 | Skull & Bones “49
Noal Portes 1871-1886 (The last of Yale's clerical presidents)

Table based on Anvony Sutton, Americas Secrer Establishment, pp. 68-69

* L xE

Author's Note - Kris Millegan surprised me when he said he wanted to publish 1his long, rambling
piece, originally written as background matenial for a class at Yale. The piece's concern with educaton
and cvic media does not relate directly to Kris' concern with Skull & Bones. And while the prece may
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te some threads together for readers, it advances litde that 1s new. Instead, 1t tnies to mtroduce Yale
people to aspects of Yale that are seldom discussed in print, yer which have national impact.

Kns wanted to publish the piece verbatum. This impressed me. An "outlaw histortan,” as I call him in
the piece, was interested in the entirery of something written for academics. All my adult life T have
tried to keep one foot in the learning camp of academics and the other in that of non-academics.
So has my colleague Bob Back. That's how we learn, how we get closer to “the nuance,” as Bob
hkes to call 1.

I hope Knis' book takes us all a step closer to the day when, if we're able and lucky enough to reach
it, outlaw and academuc historians alike, and people on the left and night as well, will be astonished
to discover how much there 15 to be learned when we learn from each other.

Steve Sewall, Harvard A.B. "64, Yale M.A.T '66, U, C. Berkeley Ph.D, '91, is 4 Chicago area educator

and media activist. With Robert W, Back, Trinity College B.A. "38 and Yale GRD 60, he is writing,
Yale and the Modern World: Bush/Clinton/Bush, Big Money and the 2004 Presidential Election.
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The very word “secrecy” 1s repugnant in a free and open society: and we are as a people
inheren r}_)r and historically opposed to secret socteties, 1o secret oaths and to secret proceedings.
We decided long ago thar the dangers of excessive and unwarranted concealment of pertinent
facis far outweighed the dangers, which are cited to justify it.

President John E Kennedy
Address to newspaper publishers, April 27, 1961.

SECRECY AND OUR
CONSTITUTION:
WHOM DO THEY SERVE?

RALPH E. BUNCH

EMERITUS PROFESSOR OF THE DEPARTMENT OF POLITICAL SCIENCE OF PORTLAND STATE UNIVERSITY

ECRECY IS AS AMERICAN AS APPLE PIE. Americans, often characterized

as optimistic, naive, and idealistic, might be momentarily put off by

such an assertion, but a bit of thought and observation will confirm
the ubiquity of secrecy in American public and private life.

The federal government’s love affair with secrecy is well known and generally
acknowledged in the fields of narional security and police work. In the special-
ized fields of raxation, commerce, social programs, education, transportation,
medicine, and perhaps all government activity, local, state, and national, secrecy
exists officially and unofficially.

The law requires certain information — personnel records, personal informa-
tion about citizens, plans for land purchases (lest speculators be advantaged and
public costs increased), grand jury records, etc., be held nghtly secret.

Governmenrt imposes secrecy on citizens as it does on its bureaucrats, The law
requires some settlements in legal disputes be held confidential, and it prohib-
its some information about minors being made public. Libel and slander laws
prohibit some known facts about persons being published or pronounced; thus,
the law requires secrecy.

Corporate ofhicers may not give out financial information ro advantage some
market players over other market players. Corporations, in keeping with the
requirements of capitalist competition, have government- prorected secrecy over
their internal financial, marketing, and technological matters, Lawyer-client rela-
tions and doctor-patient relations are protected. In ordinary personal relations,
everyone knows secrets, keeps some, and passes some on, at least occasionally.

Surely, most people keep financial and sexual marters secret.
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The Constitution enshrines secrecy. Article I, Sec. 5, requires the Congress o
publish its proceedings, that is, tell its secrets, except that by a majority vorte in
cither house, it may keep some secrets. But by a twenty percent vote, a minority
may cause any secret to be printed in the Congressional Record. Article VI requires
that no religious test shall ever be required as a qualification to any office or public
trust under the United States; that is, religious identity remains a secrer for all in
government, unless they should desire otherwise.

The government’s desire for secrecy — a universal phenomena, according to
German sociologist, Max Weber: “Every burcaucracy secks to increase the supe-
riority of the professionally informed by keeping their knowledge and intentions
secret,” has been in constant conflict with the First Amendment. President Nixon's
request for an injunction against the New York Times for intending to publish the
Pentagon Papers was struck down by the Supreme Court, even though, according
to Nixon, national security and the Vietnam War effort were in danger from the
publication. The Court, citing the Fist Amendment, has quite consistently held
thar government entities may not suppress speech or publishing, even in severe
circumstances, unless there is a strong “clear and present danger that they will
bring about the substantive evils thar Congress has a right to prevent” (Schenck
v United States, 1919).

The Fourth Amendment is specifically aimed at protecring the rights of ciri-
zens to have and keep secrets from the government. “The right of the people
to be secure in their persons, houses, papers, and effects, against unreasonable
scarches and seizures, shall not be violated ... ™ But the Court has had much
difficuley in regulating the details; the requirements of effective police work run
counter to an absolute requirement that a warrant be procured for a search. The
police may need to scarch a person, on the person’s apprehension, to protect the
officer’s safety and to prevent any relevant evidence being destroyed, for instance.
What to do abour phone taps of known criminals? Their acquaintances? How
extensive may be a search for evidence of a person’s car, home, or business at
the moment of his arrest? If, in the search for evidence of a crime, evidence of
another crime is found, but the warrant was issued for only the first crime, what
evidence may be presented to a jury? How broad the rights to citizens' secrecy
under the Fourth Amendment is the result of many Supreme Court cases, and
changes often.

The Fifth Amendment’s prohibition against a person charged with a criminal
offense being forced to be a witness against his or her own self is based on the
notion that there needs be a balance of respect between the citizen (or person)
and the government; the government, at least in a democracy, must accord dignity
and integrity to its subjects. Obviously, that would not be evident if the govern-
ment were able to torture or intimidate a confession out of a person. Criminal
law enforcement is more reliable and stronger when based on independenty
acquired evidence. Furthermore, as Justice Brandeis stated in Ofmstead v. United
States (1928), in a dissenting opinion,



Decency, security and liberty alike demand that government officials shall be
subjected to the same rules of conduct that are commands to the citizens. In a
government of laws, existence of the government will be imperiled if 1t fails to
observe the law scrupulously. Our Government is the potent, the omnipresent
teacher. For good or for ill, it teaches the whole people by its example.

Cnme 1s contagious. 1f the Government becomes ¢ lawbreaker, it breeds
contempt for law; it invites every man to become a law unto himself; it invites
anarchy. To declare that in the administration of the criminal law the end justifies
the means ... would bring terrible retribution. Against that pernicious doctrine
this Court should resolutely set its face.

Thus, Miranda rights, But, on the other side, and in order 1o facilitate “good faith”
conduct by officers, a citizen may not keep secret his identity when apprehended
by an ofhcer, according to the Supreme Court.

Amendment V1 requires that the accused shall “have compulsory process for
obtaining wirnesses in his favor.” In other words, a person may not keep secret
exculpatory evidence, if ordered by a court to provide it in a criminal case. The fact
that a witness is required to take an oath ro tell the truth, sanctioned by the criminal
offense of contempt of court, means thar witnesses for one side in a trial may be
forced, by cross-examination, to divulge evidence that favors the other side.

A dexailed list of secret activities and secrecy impositions — by and on gov-
ernment and by and on citizens could fill this and several other books! So if
secrecy is as American as apple pie, and ag common as apple pie, it must have
a funcrion. It does; it functions as an integral aspect of all politics, or, ar least,
the politics practiced by less than perfect persons in less than perfect societ-
ies, Le., all societies. (One might hypothesize a uropian situation in which all
relationships were transparent and overt, thus needing no secrecy). But in the
real world of human relations, politics requires — and would be impossible
without secrecy. These assertions won't stand without explanation, nor would
they be relevant to the subject of secrecy withour an explanation based upon
an uncommon definition of politics.

PouiTicS, IN THEORY - o - o

PROFESSI()NAL POLITICAL SCIENTISTS have had a bit of a problem with their
central term. In the attempt to present themselves as scientists, they have,
historically (if not hysterically) sought a definition of polirics that would be
acceptable and understandable to all, It would surely be a great achievement on
the road to scientific acceptance if such a definition could be formulated. One
must give the discipline credic for effort, if not for achievement; thousands of
definitions exist. As it is, in recognition of the absence of a commonly accepred
dehinition of poelitics, the discipline has agreed to disagree; every political scientist
is free to create his own, on the convenient assumption that any agreed upon
definition would inhibit free enquiry and cause a straitjacket mentality.
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Recall President Bill Clinton’s comment in his defense to the charge of inap-
propriate behavior in the Oval Office: “It all depends on what the meaning of
isis.” Ever the consummate politician, he was exactly right in noting that rhe
definition is the crux of all marters. Likewise, for politics, which is nor what you
learned in PS 101 — constitutions, legislatures, elections, etc., all of which are but
the idiosyncratic formal, organizational, and somewhat regularized, bur ephem-
eral, expression of politics in the hundred plus nations of the world. While such
knowledge is necessary and useful for partial understanding of formal governmen-
tal and political structures and machinations, one doesn't build a science on such
ephemera; it would be like trying to develop a theory of botany by studying only
the roses of the world, but only those roses found organized in formal gardens,
or to develop a theory of biology by studying only aardvarks.

A scientifically adequarte definition of palitics would require that it be presented
in terms of behavior known and practiced by all humans. As itis, most people know
and care more about licorice than legislation, like elephants more than elections,
and worry about constipation more than constitutions. The existing multitude of
definitions of politics is the product of academicians and practitioners fascinated
by those who hold the reins of public power. Their definitions might be useful and
partially valid within the confines of that norable sphere of activity, but one should
not confuse, say, a definition of water, adequate to discuss flood control, with a
scientific definition of water at the level of its constituent elements of hydrogen and
oxygen or, even at the lower level of its atomic structure. The social cost of defin-
ing politics in terms of governmental power was nicely noted by David Ignarius
of the Washington Post who wrote, “When the big guys in Washington dream of
transforming the world, it’s the little guys who come home in body bags.”

Politics, to be studied as a science, must first be defined as the universal form
of human behavior that it is! Every human expresses politics throughout his or
her life, just as all individuals expresses psychological, sociological, economic,
and biological realiries every day of their lives, and the psychologists, sociologists,
economists, and biologist can speak to their cohorts sensibly because they have
common understanding of their basic terms, Not so, political scienusts.

But who can doubt that politics is a universal phenomenon not restricted to
only those who govern, seck to govern, or seck to influence those who govern.
There is a fundamental parallel between the behavior of Winston Churchill in
defining the situation of England in 1940 as dire and secking to convince Franklin
Roosevelt to send guns and butter to England, and the behavior of a baby in the
middle of the night. Thus, for example, the plaintive cry of the baby, at 3:00
AM, is a political act — defining its situation as hungry. wet, and/or lonesome.
The baby's definition of the situation will be reinterpreted by the father, who will
define it to his advantage; he will fake a few snores. His wife, acting politically in
her own interests, using her elbow, will reject the father's definition and substitute
one of her own: “You're faking, John! You know it's your turn! Get up and warm
the bortle!™ Now, that's politics ar its universal human level.
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By contrast, the definitions of the subject in the writings of major political
science authorities are narrow and idiomaric. Twenty experts: twenty definitions.
There isa Britsh book, What is Polieics?, in which each authority presents a differ-
ent definition of the subject. One pundic will define politics as influence, another
as power, another as self-interest, another as the art of the possible. and another
as the skill of building consensus around a policy option. One expert, writing
on the power of the presidency, determined that political power is the power to
persuade. That's close, but he made the mistake of confusing means and results.
Thus, all he had was a tautology, asking, then, whart is the power to persuade? If,
instead, he had concentrated on means, on behavior, he would have found that
persuasive behavior (politics in a generic sense) is the effectve skill of creating self
~serving definitions of reality. Politics is the universal human behavior of defining
reality so as to bring abour acceprance of one’s desired outcome.

Here are examples that prove the point: "Johnny, stop hitting your sister; be a
good boy.” "It you really loved me, youd buy me that necklace.” “Good friends
don’t let each other drink and drive.” “Owning one’s personal weapon is a sacred
American right.” “Dan Quayle is no Jack Kennedy!” “Osama bin Laden has
insulted and degraded the Moslem faith.” Accept any of these quotes, and you
have accepted the speaker’s definition of reality and his or her politics.

With this definirion of politics, politics as a universal human goal-fulfilling
behavior, consider the element of secrecy in the following example from Mark
Twain’s Huckleberry Finn. Huck finds himself in a real jam and has to come up
quickly with an effective dehnition of the situation! He and the runaway slave,
Jim, are on the raft, floating down the Mississippi, when a boat comes along
side. In it are two fellows with guns, and they are looking for an escaped slave,
Huck has hurried Jim under their tent to hide benearh some blankets. The con-
versation is pure Twain: The men ask if Huck has seen the slave, and he assures
them that he has not, but it he had, he would surely turn him in. The men are
somewhat convinced, but just to be sure, they say that they will come aboard
J.I'ld 1001( urDllnd th(.' rCl.‘Ft.

Huck is feeling “scared as a rabbit,” but he just up and says that, yes, you bet-
ter come aboard, but don't get too close to my daddy in the tent, cause he has
‘the sickness.” And nobody will let me land and rake care of him. What do you
say, ‘Boy"? Your pappy has the plaguc? All ends well, with the men each putring
a five-dollar gold piece on a shovel blade and, making sure not to get too close,
poking the gold over to Huck, ‘cause he's sure in a poor way!" Huck, the master
politician, defining the situation to his advantage. by keeping the reality secret
in order to manipulate his competitors into accepting his contrived redefinition
of thar reality.

Another example of how polirics is an expression of different perspecrives of
reality is shown in four differing definitions of the little town of Denton, Texas,
(where | raught in the late 60s). A huge billboard on Interstate 35 claimed that
Denton was “just like Los Angeles, give or take six million people.” Some of the
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local rednecks had crossed out “people” and painted in “Niggers!” Other citizens
(I suspect some of my ACLU friends) had crossed out that obscenity and written
n “Racist Trash!" Bur that had been crossed out by some of the local feminists,
who had scrawled, “Male Chauvinist Pigs!” For obvious reasons, the authors of
these insights chose to keep their identities secret.

Religion is essentially a subset of politics, the elaborate creation of a pardcular
definition of life and eternity which is then offered to or imposed upon members
and others. In requiring unquestioning accepance, religions practice considerable
secrecy. They exhibit much of the same behavior as governmental agencies that
become convinced of their role as protector of the nation’s security. Those agencies,
such as the CIA and the FBI, approach totalitarian means of secrecy (on which.,
more later) to carry our what, to them, comes close to being considered a divine
mission. Religions create absolute definitions of reality, There is no argument,
in that context. (As a friend once said in response to one of my more arrogant
pronouncements, “I see you have a very concrete view of this — all mixed up and
permanently set”), Thus, some religions require members to police themselves
~ not read certain books, not allow evolutionary theory to contaminate their
minds, not let authorities know of certain illegal practices such as polygamy,
child abuse, narcotic use, etc., and violation of this secrecy is sanctioned by the
ultimate punishments: banishment, and later, eternal hell.

PoLiTiCS, IN PRACTICE - S —

THF MATERIAL ABOVE, in summary, says secrecy is a necessary and tntegnl
aspect of American life. It is required and protected by the Constitution,
practiced by all bureaucracies and all citizens, and is essential to politics in all
its forms, formal and informal, public and private. What becomes apparent is
that secrecy, like so many elements of life, is neither inherently ‘good’ nor ‘bad.’
Secrecy, like government, the law, the presidency, the military, the police, religion,
politics, money, guns, or drugs, is a tool or device or resource thac is to be judged
according ro the result of its use.

Some obviously bad uses of secrecy, in terms of public policy and social felicity,
ironically, are quite well known, but, regardless, scem to be repeared over and
over through our history. The exercise of governmental police power, defined as
the authority to promorte and safeguard the health, morals, safery, and welfare of
the people, tends to enlarge the domain of government, local, state, and national,
over the citizen,

Surely, the constant repetition of scandals wherein the local or state police have
kepr secret files on citizens, a practice prohibited by law. speaks to the weakness
of dedication to the principle of a government of law by the very bureaucracies
assigned 1o protect it. In Portland, Oregon, twenty vears ago, the ACLU succeeded
in torcing the police to eliminate such a file, but in 2002, police again were found
to have kept illegal files on thousands of citizens. In that same year, the Denver,
Colorado, police were ordered to purge their system of spying secretly on citizens.
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[n Denver, great-grandmother Helen Henry, 82, was noted in the secret files as
having a “Free Leonard Pelder” bumper sticker on her Toyota sedan (Sunday Or-
egonian, 9115/02, p. A21)! While such absurdities may cause a laugh. it is a serious
matter; fear of one’s name being placed in a secrer file may cause that citizen to
give up the constitutional right to protest peacefully. Hearing thar a neighbor's
name, or even an unknown citizen's name may be in a fhle has a chilling effect on
the exercise of civil rights, the life blood of democraric government.

At the nartional level, the FBI under Director J. Edgar Hoover was found to
have maintained extensive secret files on the rich, the famous, and the politi-
cally active. Hoover's long tenure was often attributed to the belief that he held
embarrassing evidence on even the presidents and other top leaders, thus no
president dared to fire him.

In response to the 9/11/01 terrorist attack on the nation, local police have been
asked to work with the FBI-led Joint Terrorism Task Force. Many civil libertarians
are troubled by the implicit conflict berween the need 1o fight terronist threats
and the quite probable partial misuse of the police power. This fear is augmented
by the creation of the Department of Homeland Security and the aggressive use
of secrecy by Attorney General of the Unired States, John Asheroft.

The AG’s office has adopted a blanker policy to close hundreds of deportation
hearings of noncitizens suspected of connection to terrorist activity. In August
of 2002, a unanimous three-judge panel of the Sixth United States Courrt of
Appeals declared that unlawful. Said Judge Damon ] Keith, “Democracies die
behind closed doors. When government begins closing doors, it selectively con-
trols informarion rightfully belonging to the peaple. Selective information is
misinformation.”

Itis upsetting to read constantly of the use of secrecy by national leaders. Both
President Bush and Vice President Cheney have kept secret public information
publicly demanded, in response to the recent corporate crime scandals, about their
activities as CEOs of Harken Oil and Halliburton, respectively. President Bush
wants the new Homeland Security Department to be exempt from the Freedom
of Information Act and the Whistleblower Act. Dick Cheney has stonewalled
the legitimate demand for the notes and list of attendees ar his meetings to create
a national energy policy: thar “national energy policy development group” was
a public body thar met in secret. Even diehard Republican conservatives such
as Senaror Dan Burton of Indiana, who fear big and intrusive government, are
aghast at a White House so hostile to open government,

The high cost of misused secrecy was made evident on September 11, 2001,
It has become all wo clear, in the public hearings in October, 2002, of the joint
intelligence commitree’s investigating the artacks rhar the FBI, the CIA and the
NSA had failed to protect the nation from calamity because of inefficiency tied
10 the overuse of secrecy. The agencies failed 1o communicate with cach other,
protecting bureaucratic turf rather than American soil. Though FBI Director
Robert Mueller, the Director of the National Security Agency, Michael V. Hayden,
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and CIA Director George Tenet all spoke at length and provided many excuses,
Senator Carl Levin of Michigan, a member of the Senate Select Committee on
Intelligence, said, "Ar crucial points in the 21 months leading up to September
11th, this intelligence information was not shared or was not acted upon and, as
a result, numerous opportunities to thwart the terrorist plots were squandered.”
( The Oregonian, October 18, 2002, p. A2)

As tragic as the incompetence leading up to 9/11 has been, an even more
pervasive example of incompetent management of a governmental responsibil-
ity is reported by Senator Daniel Patrick Moynihan in his book, Secrecy (Yale
University Press, 1998),

The exrreme polirics between the Right and the Left in America, in the period
leading up o World War Il and after, were based on allegations of secret con-
spiracies. The Right was sure that the Left was aligned with world communism,
that Pearl Harbor was the result of a secret plan to bring the US into the war to
save Stalin and Russia, and that the Communist International had spies in all
the sensitive areas of government.

The Left, citing the Red Scare raids of the 1920, pictured the Right as a group
of fascists led by J. Edgar Hoover who wanted to destroy the legal protections of the
Constitution, turn America over to Hitler, and was secretly involved in munitions
and other manufacturing in Germany. Senator Joseph McCarthy astounded the
Senate with the news that General George C. Marshall was a Communist traitor
at the center of “a conspiracy so immense” as to dwarf any in history. McCarthy,
it is now clear, would have been nothing withour government secrecy. His ability
to hypnotize the nation over the radio and the then-new television screen was
based upon his claim that all his evidence came from secret documents held by
the executive branch, which was dominated by communists.

Within this environment, says Moynihan, bazaar surreal events transpired.
Hoover wrote an amazing letter to George E. Allen, Director of the Reconstruction
Finance Corporation, intending that it would then be seen by President Truman
(Hoover apparently could not bring himself to write directly to the President
whom he personally detested). The letter outlined a huge conspiracy of top gov-
ernment officials working for a communist victory over America: Dean Acheson,
Secretary of State; John J. McCloy, Former Assistant Secretary of War; Henry A.
Wallace, Secretary of Commerce; Alger Hiss of the UN Organization; Dr. Edward
U. Condon, Advisor ro the Congressional Commirttee on Atomic Energy; popular
journalists Raymond Gram Swing and Marquis Childs, and others. The message,
six pages long, outlined Hoover’s conclusions, from evidence by an ‘informer,’
that the secrets of the American atomic bomb were being funneled through these
people direcdy to the Soviets! Moynihan characterizes it as a loony message not
taken seriously. But what about its inclusion of the name, Alger Hiss!?

That was 1946. In 1949, after the very fortuitous breaking of the Sovier code
by which the USSR was communicating with its agents in America, it was found
that there was, in fact, an effective Soviet espionage effort in America. This in-
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formartion was in the hands of the forerunner agency of the current NSA, and
its head, Admiral Stone, determined that President Truman should be informed
immediately. However, General Carter W. Clarke, then chief of the army security
agency, strongly disagreed; if the information were spread around, surely there
would be a leak, and the Russians would know their code had been broken. At
that point, General Omar Nelson Bradley. chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staft,
in spite of his admiration and loyalty to the President, agreed with General Clarke
that the tact should be kept secret from the President and from Admiral Roscoe
H. Hillenkoetter, the first director of the CIA! Secrecy triumphed!

President Truman was subjected to the very heated abuse of the McCarthy
period and was required to defend his administration from some wild and base-
less charges as well as other valid charges that were not supported by known
evidence. Whittaker Chambers was right about Alger Hiss. But Truman was
not allowed to know the fact that the Soviet code had been broken, the extent
of the communist espionage ring’s success, and the truth abour Alger Hiss. The
president of the United States was kept in the dark on a most important matter
of national security because of the secrecy demands of underlings. The Venona
files (the name applied to the deciphered Soviet spy messages) only became public
knowledge decades later through the efforts of Moynihan and the Commuission
on Protecting and Reducing Government Secrecy, in 1996. If, as the Constitu-
tion requires, civilian leadership is centered in a civilian president who dominates
the milirary service, and if Truman had been informed of the Venona files, how
different would have been his handling of the communists-in-governmenr issue
that plagued his tenure as President, and how less would have been the trauma
of national politics through the late forties and che fifties?

But the battle continues even into this century. Richard Perle, reviewing
Moynihan’s book in Commentary (www.findarticles.com/ct), barely concealing
his conservative stiletto, writes:

Curiously, Moynihan, a former vice chairman of the Senate Intelligence Com-
mittee, does not pause to wonder whether Washingron might have had good
reason to conceal its success in deciphering the Soviet codes. Although one would
like to know what lies behind his thinking here, he never tells us. Nor do we
learn anything more about his breathtaking revelation that even President Truman
was kept in the dark about the decryptions, Can this be true? Or is there some
metasecret of which Moynihan, too, remains ignorant? (My emphasis)

Apparently, “Washington,"” for Perle, means the CIA, the FBL, and the Military
Joint Chiefs of Staff, rather than the democratic structures of the government
— the Congress and the Office of the President. He is quick to conjure up a
conspiracy theory, in loyalty to his preferred powers.

And surely, the seventies and cighties would have gone down differently if the
CIA and the NSA had been less secrer. The nation knows now that there was
gross incompetence in those agencies in their efforts to evaluarte the Savier Union
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through the years of the Cold War. Soviet strengths were greatly exaggerated, and
the weaknesses of the system were ignored. Only a few, Moynihan included, saw
the errors in the analysis in the projections of Soviet power. Even Richard Perle
accepts Moynihan's evaluation on this point.

There can be no doubr that the CIA seriously and consistendy over-estimated
the size, rate of growth, and potential of the Soviet economy. In 1958, the agency
took the view that Sovier gross domestic product (GDP) was growing much
faster than ours, and would come within 50 percent of ours by 1962. This was
ludicrous, as was the CIA estimate in 1990 thac the Soviet GDP stood at $2.5
wrillion. . . . As Moynihan rightly observes, any casual visitor to Moscow would
have seen more than enough of the appalling circumstances in which most Soviet
citizens lived to cast doubt on the plausibility of the CIA's view.

The CIA soon after its creation at the end of World War IT came 1o exhibit
all the earmarks of a usual regulatory bureaucracy — and some quite unusual
characteristics: in 1997, the first public statement of its budget was made, and
it was $26.6 billion! Bur regardless of its mare than fifty years of existence, its
huge secret budger, its ability to exist our of the public eye, and amazing rech-
nological developments (communications, U-2s, satellites, and computers), “the
overall quality of American intelligence may well have declined over time,” says
Moynihan (p. 78).

Surely, the most telling evidence of the CIA'S incompetence was in its main
task, evaluation of the ‘enemy,’ the USSR. It continually pictured the Sovier
Union as a strong; modern, industrial behemoth single-mindedly pursuing the
goal of world domination and equipped with a nuclear age armed force. The
reality had not been spotted in the decades of U-2 and satellite photos or in the
reams of secret documents. The USSR’s incompetence in Afghanistan and the
final collapse of the wall were surprises to those who should have known. Stanford
Turner, the director of the CIA from 1977 to 1981, in 1991, claimed never to
have heard from the intelligence or defense or state establishment even a hint
that non-official sources in the Soviet Union were convinced that the system was
broken and would disintegrate from its own internal weaknesses.

Daniel Patrick Moynihan’s conclusion is that, at least in part, the reason is that
collected information was kept secret, analyses were kept secret, and conclusions
were kept secret; if these had been allowed to be known, discussed, criticized, and
argued, errors, inconsistencies, and illogical aspects could have been eliminated.
The price paid for the luxury of secrecy was staggering, Whar if, Moynihan asks,
the US had been less secret, less bellicose, more conservative in its financing of
military might, and had been prepared, when the inevitable collapse of the USSR
came, to offer a parallel to the Marshall Plan that produced a renewed Europe
and a friendly Germany and Irtaly?

One of the most outrageous uses of secrecy in government in a democracy is
one of its most common. It happens at every level of government, local, state,
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and national. The policy making and enacting institutions of government, the
legislative and executive branches, are overwhelmingly the sites of lobbying, a
secret process in which the agents of private interests, in league with the majority
of elected and appointed officials, work against the public interests.

The polirical aim of the lobbyists is to convince legislators and bureaucrats
to accept a definition of reality favorable to the lobbyists, but to clothe that
definition, which is kepr secret, behind a definition of the reality that appears
to be in the public interest. For example, lumber companies want to log state
and national forest lands. They define their desire to see public money spent on
roads throughout the forest as a desire to enhance the protection of the forest
in case of forest fires, and to enhance the access to the public for hunting and
camping activity.

Likewise, the pharmaceutical industry lobbies for extension of patent rights on
profitable drugs “in order to ensure that they have enough money for their very
important research in the war against devastating crippling diseases;” yet, most
of their money goes for advertising, and most of their research money goes to
invent drugs to fight the common cold, hemorrhoids, backache and zits. Why?
As Willy Sutton said, “That's where the money is.” Countless other examples
may be found in the alphabet of economic activity in America from agriculture,
banking, and commerce through X-rays, yacht ownership, and zinc mining.

Politicians, of course, enter into these conspiracies cagetly so as 1o collect cam-
paign funds and to win a block of voters whose interests are enhanced. Addition-
ally, coming to light all too often in scandals are the cases of officials accepring
bribes or presents or paid trips, with family, to exotic spots to artend “important
policy discussions” held quite often on golf courses. Many, even perhaps most,
politicians develop great skill in presenting themselves as selfless agents working
for the public weal, while secretly more concerned with job security and career
goals in the struggle for power. That's politics!

THE POLITICS OF SECRET CONSPIRACIES

S ECRECY, IN AN IMPERFECT WORLD, is an essential aspect of all politics. And,
as noted above, the process of politics is the creation of self-serving definitions
of reality. Secrecy, obviously, rests upon an assumption of mistrust in one’s target
of politics. Democrars mistrust Republicans, and vice versa. Nations mistrust
cach other. Husbands and wives mistrust each other, keeping their affairs secrer,
knowing their spouses just wouldn't understand. Likewise between parents and
children. Thus, politicians define the reality of their ambitions in terms of service
to the public good, narions ralk peace but prepare for war, spouses define absence
as the necessity of working late at the office, and children, intending to party.
claim the need to get help on homework from a classmate.

James Madison, in THE FEDERALIST PAPERS. “Number X, "describes the
essential elements in a republic to be freedom to form factions, the necessity that
there be many factions, that they be spread over a large area, and that they be
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composed of a large number of individuals. Minoriry factions are controllable by
the votes of a majority faction. But majority factions present the danger of deprival
of rights of individuals and minorities. This danger, however, can be minimized
by the difhculties of majorities to act in unison. First, they are, themselves,
composed of minorities and, thus, find it hard o organize in concert to oppress
a particular minority. And the fact thar they are composed of many individuals
spread over a large area also reduces their ability to act efficiently. Half of what
anyone needs to know to understand American politics can be found in these
insights presented by Madison in the five or six pages of Number X!

Bur the politics of conspiracies is not explained by the theory of democracy.
Cerrainly, conspiracies are factions, and they are minority factions, but the defense
Madison proposes, a majority vote, does not apply, because conspiracies see all
non-members as opponents, and their secrecy aims to prevent opponents from
even knowing of their existence, let alone offering themselves up for a vore by
the citizens. This is true for the corporation clique that conspires to defraud the
public or its own stockholders, for criminals planning a bank heist, for a politi-
cal conspiracy planning a coup de etat, or a cabal of bureaucratic insiders intent
upon using government power for personal and/or political purposes.

All secret socieries are conspiratorial factions aimed at achieving goals chat, by
definition, are contrary to the public interest as determined by citizens in an open
society. As Madison says, no faction can be allowed to be a judge in its own cause,
because its interests would certainly bias irs judgment and corrupe its integrity.
And, as Karl Popper says, freedom is impossible unless ir is guaranteed by the
state: any secret society that weakens the rule of law, creates inequalities among
citizens by illegal means, or frustrates the legitimate aims of democratic policy
weakens a democratic republic and its objective of guarantecing freedom to its
citizens. Logically, then, secret sociceties are threats to democraric societies.

The question becomes one of determining how serious i threat to a democracy
is a particular secret socicty. Certainly, Al-Queda is a very threatening conspiracy,
as was the conspiracy led by Timothy McVeigh, and as is the mailer of the anthrax
germs, One may create his or her own hierarchy of secret conspiracies threatening
our society. The list is too long for this article, but would include some of these:
all criminal acrivists, violent Right-to-Lite factions, pedophilia traffickers, violent
white-power advocates, anti-tax groups that practice fraud, illegal pornographers,
a multirude of scam artists operating just within the law, the Elmer Gantrys of
religious exploitation, gangs that use violence and intimidation, etc., ete.

Lastly, it I could be allowed a personal expression based on normative values
rather than hard facts or academically sound theory, the conspiracies listed in the
previous paragraph (other than the first three) are comparartively ‘small potatoes’
based on marginal personal greed or ego or fanaticism not reaching the level of
serious threats to American democracy. They are the inevitable garbage created in
asociety that values liberty over totalitarian order. The real threats to the American
democracy envisioned by Thomas Jefferson in his better moments, not contami-
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nated by his aristocratic heritage and his personal needs, come from the misuse of
political and economic power by an undemocratic wealthy elitist clique of material-
ist ideologues in secret cabals ac the highest levels of American society.

#3;’_*
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Antony Sutmn s ﬁnl bmk]ci on the Order of Skull & Bones, printed in Phoenix Arizona in 1983

The booklet became part of America’s Secret Establishment — An Introduction to the Order
of Skull & Bones, which has stayed in print since 1986, becoming an underground classic




W, S&B — AND THE TRUTH
SHALL SET US FREE

A JULY 1, 1999 INTERVIEW WITH
ANTONY C. SUTTON, RESEARCHER EMERITUS

Interviewers: Kris Millegan, Al Hidell, & David Guyatt

ELL, NOW, AIN'T LIFE GRAND here in these United States. Now, | don't
know but I do believe | am being told, by our corporate media, that
George W Bush is gonna be the next president .md there ain’t nothlng
us peons can do about it. W's already got the '
cash and all the friends a guy could want.
Billy-boy has shown that personal peccadilloes ;
don’t matter. And, gee whiz, W’s were just
youthful indiscretions anyway. A
The Mighty Wurlitzer is playing loud and [
strong; Project Mockingbirdhas come home to |§ }
roost and it looks as though a foreign secret & Sutton and Millcgan - July, 2000
sociery will for the third time put their juvenile in the White House. The latest
spin has W just being a president of his ol' college frat house, DKE, who maybe
did some strange initiation rituals ... Yeah, right. Ya wanna buy a bridge?
George W Bush is a member of a 167-year-old secret society at Yale Universiry,
Skull & Bones. The Order of Skull & Bones has been shown to be founded as a
chapter of a secret society based in Germany. Some say it is just a college club:
other say much more and point to W’s grandfather’s filching of Geronima's
remains; of the financing of Nazis and Communism; of drug smuggling: of
cugenics; of manipulation of our social and political arenas through the Hegelian
method of thesis, antithesis — resulting rowards the desired synthesis — a New

World Order, and more ... .
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But then this is not just a story about W, or Skull & Bones, but also the story of a cou-
tageous man, his dutiful journcy and consequent battles with the ‘powers-that-be.’

NTONY C. SUTTON, FEB. 14, 1925 - JUNE 17, 2002, has been persecuted

but never prosecuted for his research and subsequent publishing of his
findings, His mainstream career was shattered by his = == )
devotion towards uncovering the truth. In 1968, his
Western Technology and Sovier Economic Development
was published by The Hoover Institute at Stanford
University. Sutton showed how the Soviet state’s
technological and manufacturing base, which was
then engaged in supplying the North Vietnamese the
armaments and supplies to kill and wound American
soldiers, was built by US firms and mostly paid for by the
US taxpayers. From their largest steel and iron plant, to
automobile manufacturing equipment, to precision ball-bearings and computers,
the majority of the Sovier’s large industrial enterprises had been built with the
Unired States help or technical assistance.

Professor Richard Pipes, of Harvard, said in his book, Survival Is Not Enough:
Sovier Realities and Americas Future (Simon & Schuster; 1984):

*In his three-volume detailed account of Soviet Purchases of Western Equip-
ment and Technology ... [Antony] Sutton comes to conclusions that are uncom-
fortable for many businessmen and economists. For this reason his work tends to
be either dismissed out of hand as extreme or, more often, simply ignored.”

The reportage was too much and Sutton's career as a well-paid member of the aca-
demic establishment was under attack and he was told that he “would not survive."

His work led him to more questions than answers. “Why had the US buile-
up it’s enemy? Why did the US build-up the Soviet Union, while we also
transferred technology to Hitler's Germany? Why does Washington want to
concea) these facts?”

Sutton, following his leads, proceeded to research and write his outstanding
Wall Street financial expose series Wall Street and FDR: Wall Street and the Rise
of Hitler, and Wall Street and The Bolshevik Revolution,

Then, someone sent Antony a membership list of Skull & Bones and ... “a
picture jumped out.” And whart a picrure! A multigenerational foreign-based
secret society with fingers in all kinds of pies and roots going back to MMuminati
influences in 1830% Germany.

And what a list of members, accomplishments and ... skullduggery!

Here, in a rare interview by email, are Antony Sutton’s own reflections and
answers to questions from myself and other researchers:

REMEM BER, ALL MY PAPERS on this are in deep storage 1000 miles away and
cannot be accessed and I've not even thought about S&B for 15 years. 1
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had no idea that any interest had been aroused out there. I know the book is a
steady seller from the royalty reports; bur that is all,

For the last 10 years [ have been in complete seclusion working on furure
technology ... I'm more engineer than historian. The only visitors I've had or
meetings have been with three-letter agency people, who arrive on the doorstep
unannounced and complain I am hard to find. Big Brother has the ability ap-
parendy to hind anyone.

Nothing mysterious abour this, I just dislike publicity and social interaction.
You will see from the Durch TV episode that my work still upsets the powers-
that-be so these are merely reasonable precautions,

THE INTERVIEW

KM - Can you tell the story of how you learned about Skull & Bones, and
how vou felt?

AS -1 knew nothing of S&B until I received a letter in the early 80’s asking if
I would like to look at a genuine membership list. For no real reason [ said ves.
It was agreed to send the package by Federal Express and 1 could keep it for 24
hours, it had to be returned to the safe. It was a “black bag” job by a family
member disgusted with their activities.

For the benefit of any S&B members who may read and doubt the statement;
the membership list s in two volumes, black leather bound. Living members
and deceased members in separate volumes. Very handsome books.

I spent all night in Kinko’s, Santa Cruz, copied the entire volumes and re-
turned within the 24 hour period.

I have never released any copies or identified the source. I figured each copy
could be coded and enable S&B to trace the leak.

How did I feel? 1 felt then (as I do now} that these “prominent”™ men
are really immature juveniles at heart. The horrible reality is that these little
boys have been dominant in their influence in world affairs. No wonder we
have wars and violence. Skull & Bones is the symbol of terrorist violence,
pirates, the 8§ Deaths Head Division in WW Two, labels on poison bottles
and so on.

I kept the stack of xeroxed sheets for quite a while before I looked at them—
when [ did look—a picture jumped out, THIS was a significant part of the so
called establishment, No wonder the world has problems!

KM - What is the percentage of active members?

AS - T haven’t checked for 15 years ... it used to be about one quarter. With
the rise of the Bush dynasty it will increase somewhat, as they climb on the
bandwagon. The Demos had their turn with Harriman in the 40’s and 50's.

KM - How many active members are there?
AS - Usually about 600 alive at any one time ... recently more active.
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KM - What s your take on
the grandfather clock that each
member allegedly receives?

AS - They do get a clock. I've
had that confirmed and you
will see it in the photos in ASE
(America’s Secret Establish-
ment). Might be symbolic, per-
haps to state their organization
goes on timelessly.

KM - Has Skull and Bones lost
its clout?

AS - Well look at the recent
fund-raiser for George Bush ...
Republicans are stuffing money into his pockets ... I suggest members recently
got behind one of their own and decided to push George all out for president
... and Democrats can't do a thing because Democrat Bones are not going to
allow the Party to use the ultimate weapon ... George’s membership in a foreign
secret society.

KM - What do you know of George W Bush?

AS - He is a third generation Bonesman. My personal impression is that he
doesn’t have the drive of his father or the skills of his grandfather ... but I could
be very wrong. He can beat anyone hands down — EXCEPT VENTURA,

If Bush handlers allow a face to face debate between Bush and Ventura.
Ventura will win. Remember Ventura has admitted to his so-called “sins.” Bush
has a closet-full waiting to emerge. People are getting bored with cover ups and
spin.

2000 may see the end of the Bones influence or — reality that these Bones
people are powerful.

KM - Is the name of the German group known?
AS - Almost certainly luminati.

KM - Some people say that there are other cells; what do you think?
AS - There are many other secret societies. I've only looked at S&B. Unfortu-
nately no historian will keep his job if he tries to explore conspiracy ... this is
taboo for the American Historical Association. Sooner or later outsiders will
take a look. I've long thought that S&B fits the legal definition of a conspiracy
and needs to be officially investigated.

Yes there should be other cells. No secret society worth anything is going to
keep its inner actions written down on paper. If the gigantic electronic monitor-
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ing apparatus is for national security purposes, then it should be monitoring
these people 24 hours a day.

KM - What are your thoughts on Wolf’s Head? Scroll & Key? And the other
Senior societies at Yale?

AS - Wolfs Head, Scroll and Key seem to be pale imitations of S&B, but they
have the same objective of deliberately building discrimination into a society. |
listened to Jesse Ventura last night and he made the point that the Founding Fathers
intended for CITIZENS to represent the people. | agree; a trucker, a farmer, a
teacher represent the people not a bunch of professional pols or a secret society
like S&B. All these societies place their own members ahead of the pack and give
preference to their own members; this is discrimination par excellence.

KM - Have you read Cathy O’Brien's book Tranceformation Of America?
What do think of it?

AS - The book does not contain one piece of hard physical evidence.. [ think
Cathy O’Brien BELIEVES SHE IS TELLING THE TRUTH ... but remember
that Mark Phillips is a skilled neuro-linguistic-programmer.

Another point that really concerns me is this ... where did this story origi-
nate? It originated in Communist Chinese Intelligence and Mark Phillips had
a contractual relationship with the ChiComs. This could be an attempt to
destabilize the US.

No doubt these Washington pols are fully capable of these weird practices,
just look at Bohemian Grove but that doesn’t mean that the book is an accurate
portrayal. If the book is credible, I would think the police would have raided
Bohemian Grove long ago

My best guess is that the Chinese picked up whispers of Washington scandals
and blew them out of proportion for their own purposes. This is a GUESS ...
I don’t know.

One thing that puzzled me, with all these sexual shenanigans how do Wash-
ington politicians find time to do anything else? According to the book this is
a full time occupation for Senator Byrd and others.

KM - What did vour study of elites, economics, secrecy and technology do
for your career?
AS - Depends what you mean by career?

By conventional standards I am an abject failure. I've been thrown out of
two major Universities (UCLA and Stanford), denied tenure at Cal State Los
Angeles. Every time I write something, it appears to offend someone in the
Establishment and they throw me to the wolves,

On the other hand I've written 26 books, published a couple of newsletters
and so on ... even more important I've never compromised on the truth, and
I don't quit.
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In material terms ... hopeless failure. In terms of discovery ... ] think I've been success-
ful. Judge a man by his enemies, William Buckley called me a “jerk.” Glenn Campbell,
former Director of the Hoover Institution, Stanford called me “a problem.”

KM - Do you believe that there has been suppression of technology? Has it
been major or minor?

AS - Yes there has been suppression but its going to be impossible to suppress
the new emerging paradigm.

KM - The Federal Reserve, the House of Morgan, House of Rothschild and
Skull and Bones are they related?
AS - Best source for this is my book The Federal Reserve Conspiracy.

KM - What are the good source materials for your research and writings about
Skull and Bone's influencing John Dewey and Herace Mann?
AS - Depends what you want to find. You could explore the 10 or so volume
works of Dewey ... outrageous Hegeliantsm, the state is supreme, the individual
merely a pawn to be trained. This is the basis of our ‘educational system” ...or you
could go and explore the members of S&B who brought the system to the US.
This trained “sausage mind” outlook has thoroughly permeated our universi-
ties ... that’s why we have the peer review system ... we are all supposed to think
alike and find the same answers. This political correctness garbage is another
step to total thought control.

AH - Did any of Hitler’s economic policies threaten the interests of the inter-
national bankers, and if so did that play a role in his downfall?

AS - Hitler's economic policies were OK'd by the bankers right through the
war ... ITT, Chase, Texaco and others were operating in Nazi-held France as late
as 1945, In fact Chase in Paris was trying to get Nazi accounts as late as 1944,
When we got to Germany in May, 1945, 1 remember seeing a (bombed-out)
Woolworth store in Hamburg and thinking, “What's Woolworth doing in Nazi
Germany?” While we were bombed and shelled it was “business as usual”™ for
Big Business. Try the Alien Custodian Papers.

See my Best Enemy Money Can Buy for more.

Union Banking is very important. [ made a documentary for Dutch National
TV some years ago. It got all the way through the production process to the
Dutch TV Guide ... at the last minute it was pulled and another film substituted.
This documentary has proof of Bush financing Hitler — documents.

Maybe my Dutch friends will still get it viewed, but the apparatus reaches
into Holland.

KM - What is the story that was going to be told on Dutch TV? And what is
the story of it’s censorship?
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AS - Couple of years back, a Dutch TV production company from Amsterdam
— under contract to Dutch National TV—came to the US to make a documen-
tary on S&B. They went to the Bones Temple and other places and interviewed
people on the East Coast. On the West Coast, they interviewed myself and one
other person.

I saw extracts from the original and it is a good professional job. They had
documents linking the Bush family and other S&B members to financing Hitler
through Union Banking of New York and its Dutch correspondent bank. More
than I have in Wall Street And The Rise Of Hitler.

The first version was later upgraded into a two part documentary and sched-
uled for showing this last March. It was pulled at the last minute and has never
been shown. i =, . i

AH - Who has been financing Milosevic, and )
what role has the international banking com-
munity played in the Balkans?

AS - 1 haven't looked at this one. Of course
the notorious Black Hand society is located in
the Balkans, See WW One.

DG - What is the importance of your work
on Skull and Bones?

AS - The potential is extraordinary. IF we find
that secret societies are indeed significant, the
entire history of the last two centuries will have
to be re-written.

At this point in 1999, the potential has not
been explored by others and I've moved back
to my original interest—technology. Apparently
people see some merit in the work. It is never
advertised. It is an underground word of mouth
distribution but has sold steadily from 1986 to date. Every month I get a royalty
check, so I know it is selling. But my original enthusiastic statement has not

been fulfilled.

KM - What do you see for the future?
AS - Chaos, confusion and ultimately a battle between the individual and
the State.

The individual is the stronger; and will win. The state is a fiction sanctified
by Hegel and his followers to CONTROL the individual.

Sooner or later people will wake up. First we have to dump the trap of right
and left, this is a Hegelian trap to divide and control. The battle is not between
right and left; it is between us and them.
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The message is getting through. ASE has sold for 15 years, small but steady.
No advertising. Its an underground work. But the breadth of interest is amaz-
ing. From Black Africa, to Russia (12,000 copies), righ, left ... it cuts across all
ethnic, political, social lines..

The spirit of God is within us as individuals. Skull & Bones represents death. It
has no life spirit and pretends that the State “is the march of God on earth.”

The thinking of immature juveniles, deadly and destructive and has almost
totally infected Washington.

What to do? Find yourself and then go to work ... tell your friends and put
out the message.

The answer is within you.

NEW YORK EDITORS ... -

IN TALKING TO A MAGAZINE in New York that is working on a feature story
on George W. Bush and was thinking of doing a piece on S&B, 1 asked how

about a sidebar on Antony Sutton? And got these responses:

“Someone is claiming he’s a John Bircher. Libercy House is a right wing pub-
lishing company in Montana.

“"Antony Sutton was at Stanford’s conservative Hoover Institute.

“Among many other claims, Sutton’s book accuses Skull and Bones of
funding and encouraging ‘the Maxist/Leftist ‘60s revolution’... and divert-
ing attention by drawing students into disarmament and/or environmental
groups and issues.

“Although there seerns to be some real info in his book, it reads like a classic text
of right-wing propaganda, filled with hyperbole and unsourced allegations.”

Antony Sutton’s response:

What'’s wrong with these editors?

[ was thrown out of the Hoover Institution by the CIA types ... [ am definitely
persona non-grata, Director Glenn Campbell actually threatened me “you will
not survive.”

Some right winger!!

I've never been a member of the Birch Society or any society come to that.

I'd like to have that Editor say that to my face. They're sick!

Get his comments on the above ... and have him come up with some
proof.

What's the legal definition of slander ... it has ro be untrue and malicious.
Do they have any money?

When it comes right down to it the NY people didn’t even read my book
... else they would know that I see the right-left approach as a Hegelian trap ...
as for lack of evidence I'll leave that 1o the readers. On second thought they
probably never heard of Hegel.
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When Lenin referred to ‘useful idiots” he must have had these people
in mind.

SEPTEMBER 18, 1999 — MORE QUESTIONS, MORE ANSWERS

KM - What has surprised you the most about America's Secret Establishment?
AS - The most astonishing aspect of ASE is that the damn thing keeps selling
with no advertising, no publicity, no help from me or the publisher. Astonish-
ing and gratifying, It means that some readers see enough of value to pass the
word. In terms of S&B discovery, nothing until very recently. 1 turned to other
work (technology) and forgot about S&B. Recently I found extraordinary work
by unknown people from the genealogical angle, This is definitely an advance.

All the royal families of Europe stem from the House of Saxe-Coburg-Gotha,
that is where Weishaupt was installed. Its a 2 prong attack (1) via royal families
and their descendents (2) via secret societies ... and the almighty State is the
vehicle using dialectic methods.

KM - Was there any reaction from Bones to your writings about the Order?
AS - The material was removed from Yale Library promptly after the first edi-
tion was published in 1983, say within 4-6 months ... Members of S&B tried to
make contact after about a year but both used phony names with their REAL
ADDRESS, so I could find their real names. The content of their letters alerted
me to check. Amareurs ... .

KM - What was that material and did you make any copies?
AS - From memory, it was about a magazine file thick, say 5 inches. Letters
mostly, I selected a few for the book.

These materials stll exist but so deeply hidden that it would cost several
thousand dollars and much negotiation to regain. The holders don’t know what
they have and I don’t know exactly where the material is. You can't say our
spooky friends didn’t teach us something ... .

KM - What do you think S&B is plan-
ning now?

AS - Plans ? I don’t know. They look at
the world through filters and “yes men.”
So while they have excellent information,
they are dangerously off track in assessing
the ordinary man. Their assumption is that
they can buy, cajole or steal what they want
and that everyone will go along. I see them
as myopic juveniles ... .

KM - Did ASE cause you any trouble?
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AS - From this book? Not at all ... The tireworks came much earlier in the
early 1970's after publication of National Suicide (now Best Enemy Money
Can Buy!).

I am not looking for anything. Socially they are boring, so there is no basis
for any discussion. One day they will hit a big bump in the road. Nothing to
do with me.

KM - Any last words?
AS - Watch as events unfold. We are observers. They will destroy themselves.
We can help a little but don’t get any bright ideas about overturning the sys-
tem. They have all the bombs but we have something stronger — the truth and
freedom of spirit.

Be patient, spread the word among friends, do your little bit. The system will
self destruct because it is founded on corruption and untruth.

at}:.'a

Antony Sutton passed away on June 17, 2002. According to published accounts June
17th, 1933, was the date of the Order of Skull & Bone's Cenrury Celebrarion. His
death was sudden and unexpected. He was 77 and the local county coroner declared
his passing, natural causes. Even atter repeated contacts and pleas, no newspaper ran an
obitary or story about his death and works. Tony died less than three weeks after the
first hardbound copics of Amersca’ Secret Fsrablishment were delivered from the printer.
He was gerting ready and was excited abour appearing on radio shows o promore the
book. The book was to be in West-Coast bookstores in September, Tony's death and a
national book distribution opportunity changed the limited fall 2002 release to a national
2003 spring release. Meanwhile Little & Brown moved Alexandra Robbins' book (the
first ever mainstream book on Bones) up to September, 2002 from January, 2003. Her
baok, Secrers of the Tomb, gets placed in the history section. whilst Tony's book gets placed
in the speculation secrion with UFO’s and such. Fimm, a book written by a member of
the second oldest secrer society at Yale, which declares Bones o be “the equivalent 1o the
Wizard of Oz," that sometimes “Oz needed its Wizard" and disposes of the Nazi financing
issue in one terse sentence is declared history, bur a college professor's work on the same
topic, that was the first book written about Bones and breaks many stories and research is
just speculation. Such are the omes we live in,

Antony had gone back to his engineering background and was producing a newsletter
called Fueure Technology Inselligence Review (FTIR), Following s Tonys memoir about
Stanford, some of his background and what happened to him because of his principles
and courageous acrions. After thar are some of his thoughts on the Seprember 11th artack
and writings on the Order of Skull & Bones from FTIR and then some ardicles from 7he
Phoenix Newsletter, Tony's newsletter from the 19805 and 90s, some from the time when
he was first uncovering the story about Bones. The writing style is of a newslerrer and chat
has been preserved, most of his underlined words and capitals have been turned ro italics
for presentation in book form

For more information about Antony Sutton visit
www.AntonySutton.com
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and how this author avoided the conventional (and erroneous) artificial
Saviet created propaganda perception, the memoir goes into formation of
the author’s own perceptions. These early paragraphs can be skipped.
The memoir also includes Appendix II, notes on a post-1974 event which
repeated the perceptions problem in another context, and which the author tried
to bring to official attention — again, unsuccessfully.

B ECAUSE THIS MEMOIR CONCERNS “PERCEPTIONS” of the Sovier Union

EARLY BACKGROUND OF THE AUTHOR

THE WRITER WAS EDUCATED at Bishopshalt ©
Grammar School, Hillingdon Middlesex (outside
London) from 1936 to 1941, This was the traditional
English grammar school education with five years of
two foreign languages, physics, biology, chemistry,
music, history, geography, art, mathematics, English,
wood and metal workshop with 0 elective courses
and considerable homework. It was a thorough and
no-nonsense basic educarion, very different from the
U.S. high school.
My father was a coach builder for Thrupp & Mab- B

berly, making Rolls Royce custom wood automobile bodies. My grandfather was
former head coachman far the Duke of Beaumont. In the World War One period,
he owned a fleet of a dozen London taxis. On my mother’s side, the family stems
from a line of substanual businessmen in the London furniture trade, My uncle
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formed the London Pattern company. In brief, I grew up in a family familiar with
hand tools, jigs and fixtures, pattern making and automobile manufacture.

When I left Bishopshalt (in 1941 during World War II), I went to wark for
Richard Thomas Steel Company head office in London. This company had
installed the first hot and cold strip steel mills in England. I worked in the mill
scheduling department until called up to the Army in July 1943. Mill scheduling
provides an excellent education in the capaciry, operation and limits of steel mills
and rthe end uses of various specifications.

In the Army, [ was trained as a “driver-wireless operator” with extensive courses
in radio communication (#19 and #22 sets), line laying, mine clearing, field
maintenance, Morse code, codes and ciphers, all vehicles through personnel car-
riers. Just before D-Day, we were re-designated as the 42nd Armoured Division
(a nominal deception unit with a handful of men and vehicles).

I landed in Normandy on D+10, and went through to Germany, For most of
this time, numerous individual assignments gave me freedom for days at a time,
and opportunity to learn something of European culture and industry. Seconded
for six months to University of Gortingen for de-Nazification work. Demobilized
1947 with rank of sergeant.

In fall of 1947, I started at University of Southampton and obtained Honors
Degree in Economics in 1951, The advantage of Southampton then (and now)
is that students and faculty were Hexible in study, ideas and work. Marrin Fleis-
chman and Stanley Pons did their early work on cold fusion at University of
Southampron. In the 1940s, study was unregimented and free lowing. No grade
point system.

A major plus was presence of an open Communist Party and recommended
reading in Marx, Engels and Lenin. This proved to be an excellent foundation to
understand the use of dialectical marerialism and deceprion by the Soviets and
their foreign Communists Party allies.

In 1951, I spent a few months as a clerk in a plant making gas meters and tinplate
instruments; then returned to Richard Thomas & Co (now part of British Steel).
1 was appointed to a two years' management training course, This included visits
to every major iron and steel plant in England with months spent on the floor
of various plants including ore mining, blast furnaces, coke ovens, stripmills,
tinplate and bypass mills, annealing and so on.

This two-year course gave me an understanding of the construction and operation
of iron and steel plants and a reasonable grasp of metallurgy and metals testing.

By 1953, I had become disgusted with the laxity of nationalization. T left
England and went to Canada via New York. | worked a year in Canadian steel
firms, and then joined a mining exploration firm (Desmac Exploration, Lid.)
in charge of exploration logistics and information acquisition. By 1956, we had
discovered major deposits of magnetite iron ore in Northern Quebec (Montgol-
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fier Township) and had programs in several Canadian provinces. | acquired an
introduction to geology and drilling techniques in order to evaluate potential
mines. | left because it was roo cold (i.e., -40° in winter!).

In 1957, | went to New York and was hired by Hoyland Steel as assistant to the
manager of their Los Angeles branch, known as Great Western Steel, Inc. (the
manager was an alcoholic, my job was to keep the firm on track, my eye on
the manager, and quietly report back to New York). In this job, | visited every
operating mine in the Western United States and Northern Mexico, and most
of the significant plants, including the L.A. aircraft and electronics industries,
1.¢., Lockheed, Hughes, North American, and Douglas, as well as lumber mills,
food processing and cement plants, quarries, and shipbuilding in California. to
determine the potential for new alloys and specitications.

In November, 1957, 1 happened to be in the Motorola plantin Phoenix when
the Russians sent up Sputnik. This had an enormous impact on the Motorola
engineers, and | was struck by their naive acceprance, “The Russians are ahead of
us.” I knew from my steel experience that the gestation period for a strip mill was
6-8 years under western conditions, and the Russians could not have developed
an indigenous strip process in the period 1917-1929 (the start of the first Five
Year Plan). From my experience in post-war Germany, when the Soviets dis-
mantled and shipped to Russia what was left of German industrial plants (really,
a pile of junk), the "Russians are ahead” theory made no sense ar all. Nowhere
in my multi-country, mulri-plant visits, had 1 encountered a Soviet process or
innovation. My experience was the gpposite to the prevailing perception of Sovier
technological power.

My assessment was that the USSR in the 1950s and 1960s was a backward.
technically dependent economy, without a support infrastructure.

In brief, by mid-1959, I had probably unique training with regard to
on-the-floor exposure to industrial processes in five countries. I knew the equip-
ment, who made it, its limits, and who used the equipment. Every rechnological
process has its own “signature.” For example, an iron blast furnace has precise
shapes and measurements; it requires specific inputs of iron ore. coke, and lime-
stone, of specific grades. You don't design a new blast furnace from scratch — you
build on earlier designs with knowledge of limitarions with each design change.
These can be remarkably precise. Ask any engineer.

With this varied and detailed technological background, in 1959, 1 quit business
and went to UCLA graduare school. My intent was to study the interface berween
economics and technology. Rather naively (I see today), | thought theorerical
economics could reach me something abour the ethciency factors behind engineer-
ing design. The immediate impact, however, was the rigid doctrinal structure of
American graduate education. It turned our fine technicians, bur was decidedly
not happy with any original ideas or anything that challenged the rextbooks.
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Economics, [ quickly found, treated technology as a constant given factor, not as
a developing engineering dynamic. Once again, the assumption “The Russians
are ahead” was the prevailing doctrine.

I spent considerable time in the UCLA Main Library and the Engineering
Library where I located a wealth of material supporting my idea that everything
Sovier had come from the West. [ even found the original contract Averell Harriman
signed with the Soviets to develop the Georgian manganese deposits. (He was raken!
[ had negotiated similar contracts in Canada, and could sport the loopholes.

UCLA libraries also held several series of journals in Russian and English on
1930s construction by Western firms in Russia. These cited the foreign builders
never mentioned in the UCLA textbooks on Soviet economic development. At
first, [ used these findings and ideas in seminars and papers, but soon found they
were definitely not welcome, and the idea of challenging the textbooks bordered
on treason. | found that prominent faculty such as Armen Alchian and Jack
Hirschleifer, who also worked at Rand Corporation on Russian strategy, had
naive ideas on Russian economic development and knew nothing — and I mean,
nothing— about technology. Products were called, “widgets;” and rechnology
was treated as a constant “given,” rather than a dynamic engincering process.
[ did considerable research for Professor Dudley Pegrum and W.E. Baldwin
in transportation and the African copper industry, and wrote an article on the
Colombian iron industry, which was later published.

The textbooks and article lirerature on Soviet economic development had a truck-
size omission: there was nothingon the developmenrt and origins of the rechnology
used in the USSR. Every text and article had an extremely naive and erroneous
description of Soviet development. There were no exceptions to this statement,
Even Clark's The Economics of Soviet Steel, an otherwise excellent book, had
missed the Western origins. Another book was Economics af Technology, published
in the early G0s, and had no understanding of rechnology. It was a meaningless
mass of marhematics with no relevance ro rechnology in the slightest. Nor one
technological process was cited. [ feel today as I did 30 years ago — the book is
a fraud, but accepred in the academic communiry as an advance of knowledge.

Gradually, [ developed a rechnique in my own research. Assume every Soviet
design is indigenous; compare it to similar Western designs known from past
experience; locate a transfer mechanism, i.c., installed by Western firms, taken
from patent literature, copied within the Soviet Union in a “copying bureau.”
Then compare design specifications. Always assume the design is Soviet, unless
the opposite can be proven.

The UCLA Ph.D. program was not completed. In one topic (macroeco-
nomics), I was told to repeat one question of the Ph.D. finals, but to go ahead
with the dissertation (which I did). The Department then gave me a new set of
multiple questions. UCLA then denied the Ph.D. [ later obtained two D.Sc.
degrees elsewhere, Dr. Dudley Pegrum, Chairman of my Committee, then
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pushed me as Assistant Professor of Economics at (now) State University of
California, Los Angeles.

The same kind of political pressure developed when 1 came up for tenure ar Cal
State in 1968, It was approved at the department level. Then renure was rejected
ar the Administration level - even though my first book had been accepted at
Hoover Institution and no Cal State economics faculty member had a published
bouvk at that time.

There is no question my views on Soviet weaknesses were the cause. In 1963,
when | gave a lecture on Soviet development to the faculty, [ made the blunt
statement thar Marxist central planning was nor viable withour ourside help.
The USSR stagnant, and rhis was a faral Haw. When [ stated that “Marxism is
finished,” one could feel the intense disapproval - almost, emotional distress - in
the audience. By the early 1960s, it was clear that my perception of the Soviet
Union as a technically backward and dependent economy was highly unwel-
come to everyone else. The experiences at Motorola, UCLA and Cal State were
consistent, in that | found no one agreed with my view of the Soviet Union as a
backward, stagnant economy, Soviet propaganda was extraordinarily successful
with its progressive image.

WESTERN TECHNOLOGY AND
SOVIET ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

As A UCLA GRADUATE STUDENT, I began in 1959 to explore the early
technological history of the Soviet Union, and to learn technical Russian
(enough to translate technical manuals). [ said little about this work {except
the one lecture cited above), which continued in my five years at Cal Srate
Los Angeles. At Cal Stare, I engaged a tutor from the faculty to improve my
Russian reading skills.

While at Cal State, I tried to obtain funding to speed up the work. All I could
get was $400 for microfilm of State Department documents from Relm Foun-
dation. In the early 1960s, I read scores of rolls of State documents, including
reports from officers in Moscow, Leningrad, and Riga, Latvia. These included
interviews with American businessmen returning from Russia, and detailed
plans and specifications for plants installed by the West. (Magnitogorsk, Gorki,
Uralmash, etc.). These businessmen were not always honest with State officers.
They wanted to maintain Soviet good will. A few told State officials they were
instructed to paint a rosy picture if they wanted conrracts.

The State files supported my theory of technical dependence. However, 1
noted thar State was reluctant to release certain documents on the purpore lists,
I made a special point to push for declassification, where | found State resistance.
In pracrice, the resistance guided me to the real gold mines of information.

Through Blackwells (Booksellers) in Oxford, England, I bought hundreds of
Soviet technical manuals and maintenance charts. [t was fascinating to trace the
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technology in these manuals to systems I knew in the West. Even the Western
language was adopted — for example, “Stilsona” for “Stilson wrench.” The
maintenance and training charts were invaluable in rracing origins. To this day,
I don't understand why the Soviet Union allowed export of these items. For
someone who knew the rechnology, it was like labeling the Western manufac-
turer. The Soviet copying bureaus were helpful. They duplicated EXACTLY
the Western design. In consumer products, however, the Soviets often used
military spec materials, yielding an overweight, clumsy product. Sometimes,
the Soviets varied the way a part was made, i.c., by casting or stamping instead
of forging.

In 1963, the State Department public view was “the Soviets have their own self
developed rechnology” — i.e., Directly contrary to their own files.

By 1966, 1 had completed the first volume of Western Technology and Soviet
Economic Development (1917 to 1930). It took about eight years, using my own
funds (except $400), and with the facts consistently pointing away from academic
and official statements and assumptions.

Soviet technology was western technology — period. Soviet attempts at
innovation (i.e., the electric tractor) were pitiful.

The manuscript was sent unsolicited to Henry Regnery Company in Chicago.
I was surprised to receive a reply letter from Henry Regnery himself, o the ef-
fect this was “an extremely important manuscript but not commercial.” I wrote
Hoover and received a letter back from Alan Belmont (Assistant Director). He
had taken early retirement from the FBI, where he was Assistant Director for
Domestic Intelligence. In response, [ sent the manuscript to Hoover. Belmont
suggested [ spend the summer of 1966 ar Hoover. I accepted. During this sum-
mer, | kept a low profile, avoided the social circuit (much to Director Glenn
Campbell’s disgust), and concentrated on work. Frankly, I didn't want a repeat
of the UCLA and Cal State hostility. Only Al Belmont appeared to understand
my hermit-like stance, and I will be eternally grateful for his understanding, and
the “cover” he provided me, unasked.

[ found rhat Belmont had insisted Roger Freeman, a long-time friend of
Director Campbell, 2 man of many contacts and a former White House Aide,
read the manuscript, Belmont then sent it to ex-Russian engineers for evaluation,
The Russians were definite: “Surtton is right.” Belmont told me this, and added
the manuscript was also going to Sovierologists, but not to worry if they made
adverse comments. (He once said something to the effect, “we do not accept
them.”) At some point, Roger Freeman told me that “they” (i.e., White House
or CIA) didn't know about the “early period.” | remember saying that my work
should be repeated and double checked. It made our policy rowards the Soviet
Union naive and idiotic.
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I agreed to return to Cal State for another year, and then go ro Hoover as a
Rescarch Fellow to complete the two further volumes. Campbell has claimed
that Hoover financed the first volume also. They did not. | submitted a complete
Volume One, financed by myself. T returned 1o Hoover abour mid-1968 and
completed the two volumes by 1971. Volumes One and Two were brought into
print fairly quickly. I had only one minor problem with the Editors. They wanted
to remove everything on Soviet military use of our rechnology. I agreed to this.

I completed Volume Three by 1971 and anticipated it would be published
promptly, like the first two volumes. In fact, it went quickly to page proof, which
I corrected — then I heard nothing for a year. Normally, a book moves quickly
from page proof to final book to recoup investment. My inquiries were met with
a blank wall. All T could ger from Al Belmont was, “It’s coming.”

We had a war in Vietnam, and 1 could daily see the product of U.S, and
European technology killing our men in Vietnam, while we were still supplying
technology for Soviet plants to manufacture weapons and supplies for North
Vietnam. | considered this immoral and lunaric behavior. Further, I had personal
experience of war in Normandy, in Belgium and the Rhine Crossing in March,
1945, Active war is not pleasant. Its cold, dirty, dangerous. My concern was with
men on the ground in Vietnam rather than armchair academics and politicians
who had probably never been on the dangerous end of a gun, but who were
making technological decisions without knowing technology. In particular, 1
was horrified at State Department statements directly opposed to materials in
their own files.

[ decided 1o do an end-run around whomever was delaying the third volume,
which had current application to policy, and was obviously being delayed. 1
agreed with Arlington House to quiedy write another volume on the military
use of our rechnological transfers and so-called, “peaceful trade.” My planned,
deliberate objective was to spring loose my Volume Three, by publishing the seg-
ments Hoover wanted “out” — i.¢., the military end-use segments supplied by
the West — and so, force their hand. 1 fully admit this was my intent. I would
do the same again, only quicker, and with more publicity.

About this time, Henry Kissinger OK'd exporr of the Centalign B machines
to the Soviet Union. These had only one end use — to machine ball-bearing
races to extremely high accuracy for MIRV-ing Soviet missiles. The USSR
could then pinpoint-target the United States. The Washington arguments were
wrong. (However, DOD had people warning of the dangers.) The Soviets could
not manufacture Centalign B machines, and no one else in the world had an
equivalent machine.

Kissinger’s action confirmed to me that something was badly wrong in Wash-
ington. His “detente” strategy was to give the Soviet long-term, needed techno-
logical advantage in exchange for short-term political promises which might or
might not be kept. Kissinger called this policy “linkages.” 1 called it “lunacy.” We
were handing over what Soviets really wanted (advanced technology) to receive
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empty words. I still baffles me how Kissinger can be regarded as an “expert.”
Anyone can hand over the keys to the safe and ask nothing in rerurn.

Further, the McNamara “rules of engagement” had tied the hands of the
military in Vietnam. In effect, we helped the Soviets build trucks, and then told
our pilots nor to shoor them up. When one looked at the entire picrure, T could
only arrive at one conclusion — treason.

I have never formed final conclusion on policy makers like Kissinger, Rusk and
McNamara. It could be stupidity, ignorance, ego, or worse. Frankly, 1 don’t know.
When foreign diplomats and military people asked me, “do you think Kissinger
is a Soviet agent?” | replied, “I don’t know. He could be ignorant.”

I told no one except Arlington House about National Suicide. It was written
in three months, and rushed through production in another three months. It was
published as, National Suicide: Military Aid to the Soviet Union (available today
as, “The Best Enemy Money Can Buy"). My advance copy is marked, “Received
August 27th, 1973, When it was received, Volume Three of Western Technology
and Soviet Economic Development was still being held in page proofs, confirm-
ing my belief that the delay was deliberate to prevent the information becoming
public. (This was 8 months after correction of page proofs.) From rumors, it
appeared the pressure was coming from the White House.

Some days after receiving my advance copy of National Suicide, | received a call
to go to the Director's office (Glenn Campbell). I found a group waiting, includ-
ing Alan Belmont, Dick Staar (CIA), Stefan Possony, and perhaps a few others.
Campbell immediately launched into an attack, stating thar [ had plagiarized the
text of National Suicide, and that I had no right to produce such a book.

My reply was: (1) 1 cannot plagiarize my own work; (2) Hoover itself had
asked for the military sections to be removed from Hoover volumes, thus releas-
ing the material; (3) We had men being killed in Vietnam, and | had every right
and dury to draw public attention to this if our policies were aiding the enemy;
and (4) 1 remember saying, “tell me where I am wrong on a single fact.” No
one ever did.

1 gave some examples, i.c., we were sending machine tools to the Gorki truck
plant outside Moscow; and GAZ (Gorki) trucks were on the Ho Chi Minh Trail.
The U.S. pilots even commented they looked like Ford trucks (Gorki was built
by Ford Motor Company).

Sovier ships on the supply run to North Vietnam were larger, faster vessels,
sold by the West under “peaceful trade.” I had obrained a list of the vessels from
sources that emerged from the woodwork after publication of my first book.
From the Sovier Register of Shipping, | located the type, design and origin of
every Soviet marine diesel engine. Most were Burmeister and Wain (Denmark),
or Soviet copies,

In brief, my information was precise and accurate. Campbell asked me to have
National Suicide withdrawn, I refused. End of meering.

920



MEMOIR CONCERNING EVENTS AT THE HOOVER INSTITUTION, STANFORD UNIVERSITY

| called Arlington, and they assured me they would not buckle or withdraw
the book.

Another meeting followed a few weeks later. Campbell said 1 had no agreement
or contract with Hoaver Institution, and T was no longer a Research Fellow.
To suall for time, I said | did have a contract (actually, I did not), and 1 had no
intention of changing my position.

| later heard that a few Senators and Congressmen had called Campbell ro sup-
port me. A week later, Al Belmont came to my office and handed me a conrtract,
signed by himself, with the words, “You are going to need this.”

Hoover Institution then removed my name and that of my secretary from
the Hoover personnel list. 1 became a non-person. In subsequent speeches, 1
found this Hoover Institution action to have significant impact on audiences.
Apparently. it convinced people that [ was probably right. Hoover also rapidly
released Volume Three. They continued to pay me until I left voluntarily a year
later. On the way our the door on the last day, Roger Freeman intercepred me
and said, "We can work this out; let me talk with Campbell.” I said thank you,
but no thanks.

My sense was one of absolute disgust. | had, with my own funds and time, un-
dertaken ten years of research of obvious value to the United States, and put up
with the naive stupidity of academics at UCLA and Cal State to get the work
into print. The response? — msult and harassment!

I concluded Campbell was a weak patsy, and that Washingron didn't give
a damn about our men in Vietnam. (This is still my assessment today.) The
academic world by and large was more interested in preserving its little stock of
knowledge. Academic freedom is a sham.

My thanks came from individual citizens. After speeches, scores would come
up and say, “God bless you,” or, “We are with you.” One speech filled the Hol-
lywood Palladium with standees at the back. At the end of the speech, | was called
back three times to the podium. The more macabre would say, “it's 4 wonder
you are stll alive.”

A few gestures were practical. A group of anonymous airline pilots gave me
(through a friend) a gift of $10,000. A Congressman inserted my speeches into
the Congressional record. 1 had a call from Antoine Pinay, former Prime Minister
of France. Several VEW posts passed resolutions of commendation. And so on.

Not once did anyone challenge the data or the argument. The press ignored the
books (with the exception of the Manchester Union Leader in New Hampshire
and the Zelegraph in London). However, on a later visit to London, The 7imes
sent a message asking me to meet with the Editor (now Lord Rees-Mogg), who
asked a key question: “Why do you think they are so upset?” Roughly, my answer
was, "I really don't know. I guess I must be close w the truth.”
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| made a number of foreign trips, and met senior military or government people
from Mexico, Argentina, South Africa, France, Belgium and other countries.

About 1969, Campbell urged me to submit my first volume to the University
of London for a Ph.D. This [ did. As I had scores of favorable academic reviews,
the procedure should have been automatic. Perer Wiles was appointed examiner,
and proceeded 1o raise every conceivable petty point possible. I made two trips
to London, and did what I could to answer his points. In the end, [ gave up, and
figured it was another academic game.

In about 1970, I was contacted by a Colonel Samuel Clabaugh, who at one
time had been U.S. milirary attache in London, a friend of Averell Harriman,
and, formerly, with OSS and CIA. He was apparently in routine contact with
Eleanor Dulles. Over perhaps a year or 18 months, we exchanged letters and
meetings (I went to his apartment in Washington, D.C. for lunch). I was quite
clear and definite: our policy is suicidal, developed by the naive or self serving. |
remember repeatedly making the point; if I am wrong, someone will challenge
me, but all we have is silence. No one dares challenge me. 1 know the technology,
and [ am right.

About 1971, Hoover Institution wanted me to give a paper at Ditchley Park
in England to a group of businessmen, bankers and academics. This is where |
met M. Pinay, former Prime Minister of France, who greeted me, " Tres bien; tres
bien.” At one point, the Chairman of Dunlop Holdings (who had built several
plants in the Soviet Union) stood up and said, “Surton’s information is correct; we
have built tire plants in the USSR for many years, and we will continue to build
these plants even if it is my own suicide.” Even today, I can't fully understand
the motivation behind this statement. It's not rational, but that's what the man
said. It raises the question of whether some form of brainwashing was used on
foreign businessmen. [ know there was pressure,

Over the years, my conclusions have firmed up roughly as follows:

1. The U.S. was suckered royally by Soviet propaganda (the “perception prob-

lem”).

In most cases, the conduits were not agents (like Ames), but individual business-
men, academics, and politicians looking out for their own interests and proposing
self-serving policies without challenge.

2. My argument was correct and remains correct today. The Soviet Union
was incapable of self-sustaining development and relied on the West for most
technical advance. The Russians are very capable people; it was the system
that failed, the lack of a mechanism to transform ideas to technical reality in

a rational, useful way.
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3. My experience has been that the academic world is largely concerned with
preserving the status quo and its own perks and prestige. Really new ideas are
automatically dismissed. To me, this makes the entire fabric of degrees and
honors suspect. These reflect merely an ability to absorb what is already known,
not any contribution to future knowledge.

4. My greatest surprise is the sheer lack of moral action. No one asks, what

is right?

What is moral? I find this entirely disgusting and shortsighted. The truth will
always out, sooner or later. 1 prefer to be remembered as someone honestly
concerned with others, rather than as a sham, self-serving polirical rype. Glenn
Campbell even sneered at my moral approach in one well-remembered conver-
sation:

GC: “Tony, you have a problem.”
TS: “SWhart is that?”

GC: “You are a moralist.”

TS: “So?"

GC: “You can't survive being a moralist. They will break your rice bowl.”

On the other hand, no individual, and certainly no country survives without a
set of principles. Pragmatism is shortsighted, a crutch for the weak, a cop-out
for the greedy.

5. Certain names stand out as key in the Soviet perceptions program and suc-
cessful operation at the highest levels in Washington:

Armand Hammer. Son of Julius Hammer (founder and financier for the Com-
munist Party U.S.A.). Access 1o every President from Roosevelt onwards.

Protected at the highest levels in Washington.

Averell Harriman. Received $1 million gift from Soviets abour 1928. (1 can
provide the State Department file numbers if required.) State Department was
told, “hands off” on Harriman. Key member of the Georgetown group that had
major influence on policy and intelligence.

Henry Kissinger. | need only quote Anatoly Dobrynin (/n Confidence, Random
House, 1995). “... more than once when Kissinger knew [ was going over to the
State Department he would ask me to bear in mind that Rogers had not been
told abour this, that or some other aspect of the issue under discussion and I was
not to tell Rogers about it.”
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Out of the hundreds of examples, [ would select the export of Centalign B ma-
chines as the key to determine whose side Kissinger was on. | presume there was
no mark program on our side (see Appendix), and in fact, it would be difficult
because the product has precise measurable characreristics. Kissinger, over numer-
ous DOD protests, provided the USSR with MIRVing capability,

Unless there was some deception program on our side which required Kiss-
inger's action as a cover, then one is driven ta the conclusion — unwelcome as
it is —thar Kissinger was a Soviet agent, Sutton was just one irritant in a larger
game, but if the strings provided in the Sutton research were pulled, he had the
capability of unraveling the entire Sovier perceptions program.

No one has stepped forward, in 1996 — or even in 2001 — to say, Sutton
was right or wrong, because, even today, reputations are at stake. The United
States owes me an official apology. When they should have encouraged me to
work further to pull on the strings, [ was squashed, threatened, harassed, and
discarded — for whose benefit?

THE AMES CASE -

HE SIGNIFICANCE OF AMES is not that a Soviet agent existed in CIA. This

was discussed widely back in the 1970s and before. Even names were floating
around. The significance is that Ames surfaces the perceptions program in a
way thar could not be done by any academic writer. The Soviets paid Ames well
— very well, by Soviet standards — to maintain a facade. There were many ways
Ames could be used; this was judged to be the most important. And it confirms
what [ had been saying since the late 19505, When Lenin wrote about the “useful
idiots,” and the “deaf, mute blindmen,” one wonders if he knew how successtul
his perceptions program was going to be. Lenin suckered the West royally. Ames
is a pitiful pawn, but if you pull on the Ames string, you'll find the rest of the
story — and more names.

Be prepared for some shocks.

APPENDIX 1: THE MARK PROGRAM

IN RESEARCH ON TECHNICAL TRANSFERS, | was alert for specification changes
in equipment which could affect quality. quantity and product obsolescence.
In brief, it is possible by slightly changing specifications of manufacturing
equipment, to affect quality and performance of the end product. For example,
changing the dimensions and shape of a blast furnace has significant effect on
cost, quality and quantity of outpur. By slight variations in equipment sold to
the USSR, one could reduce the benefits. By changing the rensile strength of
steel or design parameters, for example, one can influence the quality of the end
product. On one or two occasions in State files, 1 caughr reference o a “mark”
program (i.e., to sell sub-standard equipment); and elsewhere, statements to the
effect that Western businessmen sold outdated designs to the Soviets.
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No mention is made in any of my books to this “mark” program. I did once
mention it to Alan Belmont, i.e., that | knew of the possibility of such a pro-
gram; that, if implemented, it was not effective; and I had not mentioned the
possibility even in passing.

Possibly, Soviet political intervention into technology made such a program
partly unnecessary. A grear deal of equipment was ruined because Soviet political
figures insisted on early and fast startups, insufficient maintenance and inadequate
training. Russian engineers up to the 70s had abour the same hands-on technical
experience as a master mechanic in the United States. This has probably changed
in some fields, i.e., computers and software.

Another factor is the absence of a secondary infrastructure in the Soviet
Union. In the United States, thousands of machine shops, rool and die shops,
and independent experts of all kinds give a wealth of backup experience where
and when needed. This market-generated structure gives a richness of experience
and Hexibility to major corporations. The Soviet Union had nothing remotely
similar; everything was handled “inhouse.”

It is possible that CIA decided a “mark” program was unnecessary, 1.€.; it
was really suckered by the Soviets, and truly believed the Soviet Union had a
super-power industrial structure. Or, a mark program may have been inadequately
designed. In any event, a mark program was not identified. However, it is difficule
to believe that some key rechnologies (as the Centalign B) were not modified
before shipment, if only as insurance. If we did not have such a program tor key
technologies, one has to ask, why not?

This raises another question, Why did policy debarte always focus on the last sale
or contract (i.e., the marginal unit) rather than the toral of all sales in that tech-
nology. If debate was focused on the total industry, rather than single contrac,
then Sovier dependence is obvious.

[n my exploration of the State files, I found that State Department officials
filed reports with military information without distribution. The information was
killed. To gauge the success of the Soviet perceptions program, one would have
to thoroughly explore the hidden recesses of C1A to determine if a mark program
was implemented at any point, in any way. If CIA considered such a program and
rejected it, then the U.S. really #id have a perceprions problem of extraordinary
magnitude. For example, if Kissinger allowed the Cenralign Bs to go forward
without a mark program, then one has to have the most serious suspicions of
Kissinger’s motives.

I have no way of knowing the truth. However, one can deduce a problem
from other technologies allowed to go forward, and where tracking subsequent
operation proved that the Soviets had received the most advanced technology
(i.e., advanced aluminum rolling equipment, marine diesels, and so on) without
madifications. Example: the ships on the Haiphong run were the largest and fast-
est, and all had marine diesels imported from the West.
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In brief, the U.S. should have had a mark program. I do not have enough data
to say whether such a program existed or not. However, this would be a fruitful
target for exploration of past files. If such a program was not implemented, why
not? — and if it was, why did it fail?

APPENDIX TWO: LESSONS NOT LEARNED

THE HOOVER INSTITUTION SAGA starts up again in 1985 with a repeat of the
perceptions disaster, and one thar may have long-term consequences worse
than the Soviet perceptions program. U.S. scientists are running what amounts
to a scam to keep their gravy train lowing, This is losing lead time for the United
States. A new technological paradigm is emerging and the science establishment
is doing its best to deride and ignore the facts.

After leaving Hoover Institution, I continued to work on technological re-
search. I found it relatively easy ro earn a modest living as an author (in spite of
Campbell’s prediction that my rice bowl would be broken), and in the last 20
years, have authored another 20 or so books. 1 found regular bookstore distribu-
tion closed to my books. Campbell was right in this aspect. But apparently others
were having their rice bowls broken, and a vast “alternative” book publishing
industry is in great part due to the rise of new publishing houses scattered across
the United States, handling the work of those who have been persecuted, or
whose writing falls outside the narrow New York guidelines.

In any event, I generated enough spare time to work on technology. My explora-
tion went back to ancient technology and science, through alchemy, Goethe, the
Steiner movement, and Wilhelm Reich, as well as discarded discoveries of the last
200 years. [ found hundreds of ideas and discoveries had been buried for political
or financial reasons. In parricular, I found that the ancients “knew something we
don't today.” I found that “underground” researchers were probing modern dis-
coveries inconsistent with and wholly beyond our marerialist view of the universe.
The energy-matter equations, the basis of physics and the “laws” based on these
equations were under assault - partly from researchers in Oriental traditions, and
partly from workbench research picking up some of Faraday's observations back
in 183 1. Other developments were coming from the work of Wilhelm Reich and
the anthroposophic tradition. Future 21st century technology will be a paradigm
reflecting these discoveries, ignored in the marerialist tradition.

Futurists see the future as extrapolation of the heat-pressure/centrifugal-expan-
sion technologies of the industrial age, plus semiconductor technologies, What 1 see
is an entirely new paradigm based on cold vacuum/centripetal vortex technologies,
with semiconductors as enabling technology only. Quite different from, and far
more powerful than our contemporary technology, and environmentally pure.

About 1985, 1 wrote to Glenn Campbell (who had been Reagan's Chairman
of the Foreign Intelligence Advisory Board, and the logical recipient for any
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such ideas), and suggested the new paradigm should be investigated. Camp-
bell probably thought I was looking for some kind of grant (I wasn't), and
passed me on to Roger Freeman. | met with Roger Freeman at his house on
the Stanford campus and briefly outlined my ideas. 1 told Freeman, “I am not
looking for anything. I am concerned with the future of this country. The sci-
ence establishment, like the Sovietological establishment, is protecting its turf
for self-serving reasons.”

Roger Freeman suggested [ should see Edward Teller, whom he described as
open minded. T found it difficulr to get across the point that “open mindedness” is
not enough when dealing with a scientific culture thar has thoroughly permeated
our society. What my analysis suggested was existence of a superior technology
to our contemporary technological paradigm, and it would be most unlikely that
Teller could grasp its elements, any more than Kissinger had grasped the elements
of Soviet technological dependence.

| understand that Teller did agree o talk, but the meeting did nor take place.
Frankly, I wasn't going to waste my time. | had been insulted and abused trying
to help the United States, and [ wasn't going to risk any more abuse from “deaf
mute blindmen” (Lenin). Time would show whether I was right or wrong. If the
gatckeepers won't listen, #hey have the problem, not me.

Just three years after this Stanford meeting, Pons and Fleischman announced
“cold fusion.” This was instantly derided as fraudulent by the orthodox physics
establishment, and Pons and Fleischman were driven out of the United States
to France. Teller's reaction to cold fusion confirmed I was right in not pursuing
the Freeman suggestion. Cold fusion is part of the new paradigm. In the last few
months of 1995, the U.S. government has confirmed its viability. IF Campbell
had raken me seriously in 1985, it is quite possible that Pons and Fleischman
would have had more favorable reception. In fact, the Japanese now finance their
work in the south of France, and the U.S. now admits they are correct - but has
lost a decade of lead time.

By extraordinary concidence, Fleischman raught electrochemistry at University
of Southampron (where I studied in 1948) and Pons was his graduare student also
at Southampton. (Further, one of the leading researchers in the new paradigm is
Harold Aspden, today, at Southampron.)

In January. 1990, 1 started Future Technology Intelligence Report to record my
analysis, and as a device to pick up information. For six years, | have recorded
monthly my ongoing work, a matter of record for history to read.

Once again the myopic vision of U.S. technical intelligence is highlighted,
Ames is a disaster. Yet the gatekeepers of science and policy are creating another
disaster, and will place the U.S, into irreversible technological decline by ignor-
ing the new paradigm.

We have politicized decision making in technology, and ULS. politics is a poor
guide to wechnological decision making. A moral approach would have saved
the U.S. yet another embarrassment. If Campbell had taken steps to correct the
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injustice done to this writer in 1971 (and earlier), then the cold fusion reaction
could have emerged in a different environment . [ was already aware of over unity
devices, and was looking ar over unity N-machines when I approached Campbell
in 1985. In fact, if Campbell had backed me in 1987, the U.S. would have ar-
rived at a quicker and more accurate assessment of the emerging paradigm, and
would have been ready for the hostile resistance thar was forthcoming within the
U.S, science establishment.

If anything, rhe treatment of my research is proof that in the long run, the
moral approach is the only practical approach.

Just because Edward Teller designed the H-bomb doesn't ensure he will under-
stand N-machines, cold fusion, or etheric weather control. These are outside the
orthodox physicists’ framework of understanding, outside the laws of physics,
and require study of an entirely new framework of analysis, which is at this time
incomplete. The only agreement in cold fusion, for example, is that “something”
happens in the lattice structure. The “something” is under discussion and inves-
tigation. Much like electricity in the 1850s before Maxwell perfected the theo-
retical understanding. Etheric weather engineering is even more challenging, |
have found that mathematicians (who appreciate golden proportions) are more
understanding than meteorologists. In general, electrical engineers appear 10
grasp the new paradigm more readily. (Kincheloe, de Palma, Constable, Aspden,

Tiller, Inomata, Tewari, etc.)
My greatest criticism and sorrow is that decisions on research directions are taken
by those with the most to lose by change and who rationalize obstruction by

clinging to obsolete ideas and citing obsolete, man-made "laws.” That's no way
to make progress — or for a country to survive.

&ﬁ‘:#
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ANTONY SUTTON produced several different newslerrers during his lifetime as a way to stay
in touch with his many readers and to continue his research on his many varied interests,
The revenues were meager bur did help ro defray his research costs, From 1982 1o 1997, he
issued the Phoenix Letter and from 1990 undil his passing, he published Fusure Technology
Intelligence Review (FTIR). Here from October 2001 to April 2002 FTIRs is Tony sharing
his thoughts on the Seprember 11™ artack and an article on Skull & Bones that he had
written before the terror event. These are followed by articles from his Phoenix Lerzer about
the Order of Skull & Bones. Some from when he first began writing about the Order.

FUTURE TECHNOLOGY INTELLIGENCE REPORT

A Monthly News Letter Devoted to Technical Prediction
Antony Sutton, DSc - Ocrober 2001: Vol 12, No. 10

THE FUTURE Is HERE AND NOwW
— BusH Is STiLL BACK IN 1831

‘ J : ’HY 18312 Because German philosopher Georg Hegel died in
1831 and the Hegelian secret society (Yale) Skull & Bones, to
which Bush has sworn eternal silence, was created in 1832.

Like Nazism, Communism, and Prussianism, groups, like S & B and Bohemian

Grove are based on statist Hegelian idealism, the precise opposite of our ideal of

Constitutional liberty and individual rights. The Owl of Minerva is the symbol of

Bohemian Grove and the Ow! of Minervais also the title of the Hegelian Society
Journal in the United Stares.

So what, you say? Because you will understand coming events in future rech-

nology and the roles of S & B and Bohemian Grove much better if you pur ro
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one side the artificial divisions of left and right, Republican and Democrat, and
the hypocritical pratiling of their members.

These elitist groups are Hegelian and believe the State is run for the benefit
of the “Masters” (Hegel’s term). We are mere “Slaves,” the peons, who do their
bidding. Understand chis and you will understand che crials char awair New Tech-
nology down the road a way. Okay, you say, but I always knew we were peons,
and somebody unelected was running the show. The point is that no academic
has yet pinned this control down to an operating philosophy working in defiance
of the U.S. Constitution. Suspicion is not enough. Throwing names around is
not enough, Big charts with lots of arrows is not enough. We have to pin down
the how and why, the operational procedures. It we are right in our analysis, you
will in coming years see another layer of the onion skin peeled back. The Emperor
really has no clothes.

The Bush Administration is no ditferent from the Clinton Administration
when it comes to new and more efficient energy technology. Both Administra-
tions publicly ignore new technology or define it as beefed up, old technology to
favor those interests who pay vast sums to support the two major parties — and
get a piece of the action.

We hesitate to recommend Hegel for your reading. We see Hegel as turgid
nonsense, but very influential. If you want Hegel's statement on the relations
between “Master” (them) and “Slave” (us), see pages 520 to 523 of Phenomenology
of Spirie. This is the section on “Lordship and Bondage.” (We term it, “Master
and Slave™):

The self consciousness of the Lord is essentially related to the being of the
mere things he uses and uses up, and these he enjoys through the bondsman’s
(slave) self consciousness. The bondsman prepares and arranges things for the
enjoyment of the Lord.

In brief, the function of us — the slaves — is to work for the Master, See
Bush/Cheney as the Lord and you and [ as the slaves, then it all becomes clear.
Our job is to go along. Theirs is to steal and grab and enjoy the product. The
State is the vehicle they use to grab the producr legally. The State is the Master,
and we are supposed to be obedient slaves. Quite a racket, if you can keep it
going. And this is the purpose of Bohemian Grove and Skull & Bones. Clever,
isn't it? You are all running around thinking Republican and Democrat, while
the real action is somewhere else.

So within this Hegelian frame, let’s take a look at the Bush-Cheney energy plan.

The Bush-Cheney energy plan is wholly based on conventional fossil-atomic tech-
nology owned by the same interests that financed Bush and are prominent in the S &
B and Bohemian Grove. If the steam and water wheel interests had kicked in for his
re-election, no doubt they would have a place in the Bush-Cheney Plan. Irs all abour
cash for re-clection, put up enough cash, and you become one of the Masters.

Bush actions follow closely Hegel's plan for the “*Masters.” The Masters
should not be interested (according to Hegel) in new discovery. Leave thar for
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the slaves 1o develop. "Masters™ prefer to milk the old, which generates profit
and give them conrrol. Hegel is therefore intimately related to Skull & Bones
and Bohemian Grove. The reason that outside observers have not been able to
get a handle on establishment power is because they have been trapped into a
right-left dichotomy and kept there by carefully baited political promises, rarely
kept except to financial contributors.

Collection of names and organizations is insufhcient. One needs to know their
operaring philosophy to learn their goals and how they achieve their goals, This
is not political meandering. Unless you understand the control features in today’s
world, you cannot make cotrect decisions on future technology.

The inpurt for the Bush-Cheney energy plan came only from conventional
energy interests. The Administration refuses to release the working papers.
Why? Because these will demonstrate thar only a few energy firms got access to
Cheney with their proposals. These were clearly self-serving proposals. No one
else was even considered. Certainly not renewable energy sources or free energy.
Just as Hegel would have it. Those who gather at Bohemian Grove and Bones
— the Masters — got the rewards. The citizen slaves who do the thinking and
the development ger nothing.

Same with Clinton. The Clinton Administration engineered a sabotage plan
in 1996 to collapse the Congress on Free Energy scheduled to be held in Wash-
ington, D.C. Bush-Cheney just left them out of consideration.

This closed-shop procedure is, of course, the fascist tableau, and direcdy out
of Hegel, who also provides the philosophic fuel for fascism and communism.
So far, only a few commentators have made this observation, and wherever you
took your “pali-sci” courses didn't tell you this.

Our name for the Bush-Clinton version is “smiling fascism,” and it stems
directly from the "right Hegelians” of the 19th century. Bush himself can trace to
1832 through Skull and Bones, and its formation in 1832 in Hegelian Germany
and the U.S. Even Domhoft, who has written in detail about Bohemian Grove,
missed the link to Hegel through Minerva the Owl,

Today, according to our sources, Morgan Stanley is preparing the IPO for
Black Light Power (proven free energy). It will come to market in about two
years. Wall Street (a lot of the Masters hang ourt in Wall Streer) needs these two
years to dump conventional energy assets. But don't be surprised if a wrench
gets thrown into the works. We don't trust Washingron, D.C. one bit when it
comes to New Technology or whar they will do with the technology as they try
to seize control.

Similarly, California urilities are trying to dump their resource assets onto the
State and the taxpayer before they become worthless. This is right on schedule as
we predicted many years ago. First, fuel cells will have a run in abour 2003 and
2004. Then free energy will start to emerge.

By 2005, everybody and his dog will be looking for free energy proposals.
Another dot.com mania in the works. This will be the time to be very, very wary.
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The most probable systems are already known today, but, suddenly, you will be
offered participation in a score of systems whose free energy potential cannot
be proven.

By 2005, the insiders will have dumped conventional energy assets long before
the BLP PO hits the market. Be careful. We know of only three, maybe four
useful free energy technologies: BLE. MEG, Cold Fusion, and a Canadian project,
already picked off by the U.S. Navy.

MEG is not in as strong a position as BLP because Colonel Bearden is U.S.
Army (Retired), and subject to pressure. We like his technical approach, but
Bearden himself well knows the pressures he faces,

Cold fusion is fully proven, but not yet repeatable. It was deliberately crippled,
carly on. The initial blow to destroy was cast by former President Bush (also S
& B) in 1989. The Canadian project is based on nanotechnology and is way
over unity (>1000%), This was demonstrated to the U.S, Navy — and then
disappeared,

Note also that BLP has a director (Brewer) who was former Assistant Secretary
of Energy in the Reagan Administration. BLP is described by the Interner service,
<psst-heyu.com= as the "one that got away.”

Maybe not quite a plausible theory is that if free energy is to emerge, the U.S.
Government (run by the Masters) would much prefer a government monopoly
or control by interests close to the Masters. In other words, make a profit our
of something essentially free. How ro seize it? There are many ways. At the mo-
ment, we sy no more.

Free energy would of course be a useful lever to promote their New World
Order. NWO could then come charging down the road as a White Knight to
rescue the world from energy paralysis.

A SECOND TECHNOLOGICAL REVOLUTION

q Imost simultancously, the revolutionary potential in radionics is emerging.

ut out of England, not the U.S. The AMA believes it has this potential
locked up. We don't think so. Whar may happen is rhis: the AMA will suddenly
ger religion and adopr radionics. Stranger things have happened.

Most important here is the theoretical justification for radionics formulated in
the work of the late famed quantum physicist, David Bohm, one-time Professor
of Physics at University of London,

Take a look at Chapter 7 of The Undivided Universe, by Bohm & Hiley.
entitled “Non locality.” Bohm says the opposition to “non locality” (this is
what physicists call “action ar a distance”) has a historical explanation, and
Einstein’s “spooky action” comment is not based on science or logic, bur on
miere assumption.

While Maperton provides proof of concept for non locality and nearly gers
around AMA/FDA dictates by compurerization, David Bohm is the source for
theorerical support.

102



But most people are like Einstein and think of all action as local. This assump-
tion does not reflect observarion, and in fact, is a continuation of Isaac Newton’s
comment that non locality is a “philosophical absurdity.”

The establishment is headed, then, rowards two roadblocks. Free energy is
here, proven and scheduled for installation about 2004 - 2005, The earlier Bush
administration shot down cold fusion with a stacked Blue Ribbon Committee,
but Randall Mills was too persistent and thorough. The government will have
to make a deal with Mills or go the seizure route.

Medical radionics is here, proven and available, free today.

Note the use of the word “free” in both cases. Not quite free, but close enough. If it
is free, it cannot be controlled for private gain. Nobody can own it. What the U.S. can
do is impose a tax to remove the free aspect or donate the technology to friends,

This, alone, guarantees more skullduggery in coming years. No way are the
powers that be going to allow free energy without their control. This is fundamen-
tal. If Randall Mills is stubborn and won’t make a deal, they use national securiry.
And if you don't know how they use national security, then read our America’s
Secrer Establishment. Randall Mills is not Tony Sutton. We would promptly put
the BLP patents into the public domain, and make the lab information freely
available. Bur Mills has sweated blood for 10- 15 years and deserves a payback;
so do his loyal shareholders.

Does Washington know all this? Possibly most politicians and bureaucrats do
not. But what about those who make the decisions?

We can go back 30 years, and cite CIA Director William Casey, who said
CIA did not know the West built the Soviet Union until the 1970s. Yet the State
Department files (State used to do the CIA’s job) are crammed with information
(Microcopy 316).

That's where we found the story in the 50s and 60s. (Casey was not courte-
ous enough to cite this Editor as the source of his knowledge, burt have you ever
known a Government official to be courteous? — or truchful?)

Probably the strangest part of this story is that Secretary of State Dean Rusk
and Assistant Secretary of State Main (in 1963) went on public record with
statements like:

The Soviets have their own self-developed rechnology and are not dependent
on LIS, rechnology. (Rusk)

These statements were nonsense, and directly opposed to the massive evidence
in the State Department Decimal File. It took this writer three massive volumes
to show the falsity. We then privately and quietly produced a fourth volume to
show thart the Soviets also depended on us for military technology as well. (Na-
tional Suicide, 1974) — so privately that the book was on the streer before the
CIA picked up the news. When we refused to withdraw the volume, we were
fired at 2 momentous meeting in August 1973.

The argument that we were killing our own men by shipping U.S. technology
to the Soviets and Vietnam had no effect on the assembled CIA, FBI and academ-
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ics. They had their orders. The Masters knew they were wrong, and wanted to
avoid embarrassment and public exposure. A few, like Zbigniew Brzezinski and
Richard Pipes, took our side, bur were soon quieted. It took Casey and the CIA
ten years to quietly repeat our work and find we were correct.

After this, we took nothing out of Washington at face value.

In brief, there is no sure thing about free energy. Wouldn't the government just
love to gain control or make a deal and rax it? — and don't expect the truth.

Governments do a great job at making war, kicking their citizens around,
especially those who make fundamental discoveries and maintain the status quo
for their favored friends. They also do a great job at conning citizens.

Apart from this, politicians and bureaucrats have one aim: o keep on the
government payroll, which they do very well! And if real ambitious, they wanta
freeway or building after their name. The welfare of citizens is very much second-
ary. Don't expect any change.

Look for legal theft; and as Hegel said, this must benefit the Masters. Itis their
right, and our duty is to go along, and if we behave, get some scraps. Huh!

POSTSCRIPT

October’s FTIR was written and in for typing before the World Trade Center attack.

Note:

a. We are intrigued that only the name Osama bin Laden (a CIA areation) is cited as
a suspect. The media is totally absorbed with this one name. No other considered.

b. Bin Laden has been in terrorism for a decade and known to be a factor in all
kinds of terrorist acts. Why wasn't he picked up before this? Journalists were able to
locate and meet with him in Afghanistan, but not the U.S. government? We spend
$30 billion a year on intelligence, and get hit by a massive surprise attack?

¢. We suspect bin Laden was protected by certain powerful Western interests,
specifically the Saudis and the oil companies fearful of disrupting oil markers.

d. Is it possible that the U.S. knew the latest WTC attack was coming, and
let it occur? Like the 1992 WTC artack (EB.I. knew), or Pearl Harbor, or the
U.S.S. Maine in 1898. Why? For the reasons in the above rext.

e. This writer is not alone in distrusting anything that comes our of Washing-
ton. Depressing, bur realistic.

FUTURE TECHNOLOGY INTELLIGENCE REPORT
November 2001: Vol 12, No. 11

EDITORIAL COMMENTARY o

1. The United States is a vast, wealthy, productive and intelligent country. The
most successful society in all history. Above all, it has a working Constitution
with the all-important separation of powers, a full-time restraint on the excesses
of politics and government. Remember, the office of President is not the same as
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the person who temporarily occupies the office. Without this separation, we could
easily lapse into dictatorship.

2. The United States will recover from September 11, while mourning the
loss of 3,000 citizens. It will do this with some loss of Constitutional rights.
Proposals for 1D cards, “roving wiretaps™ and other devices from A/G Ashcroft
are unnecessary — a hasty over-reaction to the situation. Quite rightly, these
propaosals are viewed suspiciously.

3. The U.S. took a hir, It will have to take some more hits. The response should
be calm and reasoned, not hasty and emotional. But, above all, we need some
explanations from Washington, D.C.

¢ need to know why this happened. The Presidential talk abourt exi/and

“America under attack” is ridiculous. Why do these people hate America so
much? What have the government and the multi-nationals done to achieve this
level of enmity? Why has Washington suppressed free energy developmene? We
don’t need Saudi Arabia or the other oil producers; we need open-mindedness
in Washington.

Even further, we spend $30 billion a year on intelligence, yet no advance
warning, and no action! This strains our credulity. The hijackers came into this
country in mid summer, and were recorded on the CIA “terrorist watch list” as
“terrorists.” The ball stopped right there. The White House was informed. The
people doing the watching did that @nd ne more. They watched while terrorists
were allowed to take no-lunding flight training and do their planning in peace and
quiet. It appears to us the operation was “allowed to go forward” — a scenario
we have not seen discussed in the media. How can you spend $30 billion a year
on intelligence, and ignore 19 known terrorists? We know the CIA informed the
White House. No one said, “stop them.”

This reminds us of a similar snafu in the 1960s. The CIA said it did not know
that the U. S. had built the Soviet Union. Nothing has changed. Either we
have the most unintelligent of intelligence agencies, throwing money at useless
SIGNIT systems, or somebody has another agenda ourt there — and the power
to order “don't do anything.”

With hundreds of billions a year spent on defense, four planes are able to
sneak in and bring down two landmark buildings and hit the Pentagon without
triggering defenses. This is incredible. A complete collapse of defenses. We need
a full and documented answer. How much was known and when? This put-off
of “revealing our intelligence sources” is plain silly. We have no intelligence it
we can't use it — period! To us, it looks very much like the Washington action
pre-Pearl Harbor in 1941. Roosevelt had the Japanese code messages and allowed
the attack to occur.

This is also a repeat of the collapse of U.S. intelligence in the technical “per-
ceprions problem” with the Soviets. The U.S. never did figure our the rechnical
weakness of the Sovier Union or chose o ignore the weaknesses. If you read, Bess
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Enemy Money Can Buy, you will see how the U.S. was assaulted by an army of
disinformation. From Secretary of State Dean Rusk and his deputy Edwin Martin,
who had an arsenal of absurdities presented as hard fact, to Armand Hammer,
son of founder of the Communist party, U.S.A., and access to every president
from Roosevelt onwards; to naive academics like Walt Rostow; to businessmen
like Norris (Control Dara),

In Iran Contra, the U.S. became 1 major cocaine supplier, and this was ap-
proved from the Bush White House. Nothing ambivalent about that — Colonel
Olly North was flat-out lying, and the system will not release the papers, so as
to provide a cover for Olly — and to hell with the public.

In the 1993 WTC attack, the FBI had a man inside the operation. It was
allowed to go forward.

We refuse to believe that Osama bin Laden woke up one morning and de-
cided to attack next Tuesday ar 9:00 A.M. This is a man who lives in a cave, for
heavens' sake!

What is his connection to the CIA? We are now set up for another whitewash,
blue ribbon committee. There is a high probability that biological weapons will
be used in jihad — cheap, portable, and sometimes effective. Whar is nor dis-
cussed anywhere, probably not even in the Pentagon, is the use of radionics 1o
counter pathogens.

The AMA-FDA complex has done an extraordinary job o eliminate knowl-
edge and usc of radionics in the U.S.A., an unbelievable disservice to humaniry.
And all for a few dollars” profit! Biological weapons by definition have a life
energy, and radionics is the manipulation of life energy. This can be reversed, if
you know how.

Radionics, discovered in 1924 by a San Francisco doctor, Albert Abrams,
was ruthlessly suppressed by the American Medical Association in its effort to
monopolize American medicine.

In fact, radionics may be the ideal defense for biological warfare. Radionics can
protect up to 1/2 square mile, bur thanks to AMA greed and myopia, the U.S.
has no usable radionic defense. Any system using life energy can be influenced
by radionics. But neither life energy nor radionics is officially recognized in the
United States. If anything is to be done, it will be by individual citizens.

We don't believe that Al Queda cares what is officially recognized by the U.S.
establishment. They have one question: does the United States have a defense?

The facts are extraordinary, but not surprising fo those who follow govern-
ment. There i a vaccine against anthrax — efficiency unknown. Only sufficient
vaccine exists for the military. Nene is available for civilians. Antibiotics have
very limited use.

Our personal view today is sauve gui peut”— it is up ro individual citizens to
discover how they have been conned.
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THIS IS YOUR GOVERNMENT
AND WE ARE HERE TO HELP YOU

he Bush commentary — “bin Laden is an evil man...” and this is “a declaration

of war,” is a sophomore-level retort to a crisis. We need explanatory answers
to a host of questions, and so far, we have very little.

QUESTION NO. I: WHEN DID WASHINGTON KNOW OF THE WTC
ATTACK — TIME AND DATE.
Did they know before 9:00 A.M. September 117
ur information is, the White House knew on August 23, 2001, and had a
list of the terrorists from CIA. We ask rhis because other Administrations
have allowed atracks “to go forward” for political reasons. We can cite three or
four such cases. The most well known is December, 1941, when Roosevelt had
intercepts of the Japanese Pearl Harbor artack codes well beforehand, but allowed
the atrack to go forward to bring the U.S. into war. The code messages were
forwarded to Hawaii by commercial routes, the slowest possible method. They
arrived well after the attack.

In September, 2001, the entire New Utrecht High School in New York knew &
week beforehand that the Twin Towers were to be attacked. (fournal News, October
11, 2001.) If a high school had advance warning, then someone in Washingron
must have had thar same informarion.

QUESTION NO. 2: ISN'T CIA A WASTE OF MONEY?
Wc spend $30 billion a year on intelligence, and we are asked ro believe no
one in Washington had advance warning! Not impossible, but unlikely.
What are we doing? Well, we are st7ll waiting for release of the Iran-Contra
papers. Olly North was smuggling planeloads of cocaine into the U.S. under
CIA auspices. This has been completely concealed by Congress. The Bush family
supplied the oil rigs used as transit points for the cocaine. Very few know this
today because Washington has clamped secrecy on the operation. In the carly
1980s the U.S. Government was a major cocaine trafficker. Why? And why the
continual denials in the face of operational documents?

QUESTION NO. 3: WHAT IS THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN BUSH, SR.,
AND THE BIN LADEN FAMILY?
www.judicialwarch.org

QUESTION NO. 4: JUST HOW MUCH DISTANCE IS THERE, REALLY,
BETWEEN THE BIN LADEN FAMILY AND THE TERRORIST BIN LADEN?
Bush. Sr. meers with the bin Laden family on business, while a son is the
terrorist bin Laden. It would not look good for Bush to be associated with
a terrorist family; so did they invent a dispute to suggest distance? Funds were
flowing for years from the family to bin Laden — this suggests cooperation. If
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there is no evidence to confirm cooperation, why not publish the FBI conclusions
from the bank records?

QUESTION NO. 5: CAN WE SERIOUSLY BELIEVE BUSH, JR. WHEN HE
CALLS SAUDI ARABIA AN “ALLY”,
FT his is absurd. The Saudis are actively helping bin Laden — not the United
A States. Bush, Sr. has a business relationship with the bin Laden family. A
constant stream of funds Aows from Saudi businessmen to bin Laden. Saudi
Intelligence is non-existent for the United States. We haven't caught up with bin
Laden in grear part because he is protecred by Saudis.

Saudi Arabia is not an ally. It is virtually an enemy. Bush, Jr. is not facing the
situation — why not?

QUESTION NO. 6: WE SPEND $30 BILLION A YEAR ON INTELLIGENCE
AND COULD NOT FORESEE THIS WTC ATTACK?
here were, in fact, several reports from foreign allies — all ignored. Why?
Incomperence in Washington, D.C.

The November 2000 FTIR one year ago headlined a warning: we are on the
verge of disaster. FTIR identified the Middle Ease, terrorism and the heavy over-
hang of gold supply. The significance is this: Washington has a thousand times
more information than FTIR. It lacks a capability to analyze and then act on
information. The prediction of a gold overhang is important, because it meant
that in the event of a crisis, gold would not behave in its normal manner. This
is exactly what happened in September, 2001. Gold responded only sluggishly
to the WTC events,

The reluctance of Government to act is a recurring problem. Where oil and the
Middle East are concerned, the word is “do nothing to upset the oil companies.”
As far back as 1985, we brought to the attention of the Foreign Intelligence Ad-
visory Board the emerging free energy paradigm. Our argument: We don't need
Saudi Arabia or any other oil producing country. Let’s get out while we can,

This was back in 1985! — and is on record.

FUTURE TECHNOLOGY INTELLIGENCE REPORT
December 2001: Vol 12, No. 12

CIA RECRUITS OSAMA BIN LADEN TERRORIST

he following comes from London (BBC) and Australia and needs further
lnvcstlga[ln“.

U.S, agents (FBI) in London were pulled off an investigation of bin Laden
family and Saudi royals soon after Bush rook office. (BBC has documents to
show this.) In addition to Osama bin Laden, other members of the family were
terrorists and under investigation by FBI.
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SECRECY AND THE CIA

Intelligcncc agencies make a big deal out of secrecy. It makes them look
important. Secrecy is sometimes needed to acquire information, and they

paint a picture of clever CIA people acquiring secret documents.

In truth, this is nonsense. Almost all data can be acquired using ingenusty
alone. For the four volumes of the Western Technology series, we acquired all the
dara needed withour any skulking around, and that included the Russian techni-
cal manuals — hundreds of them — which came from inside the Sovier Union.
Whar you do is ask for what you want, and have a reason ready.

The only problem | had was on some State {Department| documents. | had
to jump up and down a little to get release. Then the reason for the trouble was
abvious. Stare did not want public knowledge of the advanced systems the U.S,
was shipping to the U.S.S.R.

This nonsense about the need for secrecy has two reasons:

1 . To conceal from the American public.

2. To make themselves look important, and keep the funds flowing from
Congress.

Abour 5% of the material mighr be hard o obrain, bur if you have Uncle Sam’s
checkbook, that is no problem.

Don't be confused by what | am saying: there have been, and maybe still are,
some excellent CIA people. They will tell you that behind all che PR, stuff, the
real powers are (1) secret societies, and (2) drugs. But the bulk of CIA? — an
expensive joke.

Congress is being fooled. And note this: the Chairman of the Intelligence
Committee is Congressman Goss — a former CIA operative.

FUTURE TECHNOLOGY INTELLIGENCE REPORT
February 2002: Vol 13, No. 2

WORLD TRADE CENTER — 9/11 —

e have studied this event. Our suspicions were aroused at the
; R ’ time, and we now identify three areas where information and
explanation are needed.

1. The precision, complexity, logistics and risk in this operation are way beyond
the capability of any individual or group of individuals. Bin Laden, whatever his
financial resources, does not have the rechnical resources of a state. There had
to be a srate entity involved, possibly in a covert partnership. Our short list of
possible covert partners is:

United States, Great Britain, Saudi Arabia (very likely), Iraq, Iran, Israel

2. There is an interval of 75 minutes berween the hijacking and alerting of the
U.S. Air Force. Your choice is:
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a. U.S. defenses were asleep, drinking coffee, or something else for 75 minutes.
b. Or - there was a deliberate delay, by official order — again, the state. At first,
we thought it was /nefficiency. Today, we are inclined to believe the WTC disaster
was allowed to go forward.

3. The relations berween the Bush family, bin Laden family, and the Saudi gov-
ernment. Of the 19 hijackers, 14 were Saudi.

EB.L Agent O'Neill has stated publicly he was blocked from investigation of
the Saudi connection for political reasons. What political reasons are more im-
portant than investigation of the WTC destruction? This is supported by other
information, confirming that Saudis are more deeply linked to Osama than has
been stated, and Bush stopped the investigarion — why?

WARNING

In November, 2000 (that's one year before the WTC disaster) FTIR warned of
“troublesome times ahead” and pointed ro the Middle East and to financial
arenas.

This warning holds. However, the turbulence may be in the financial and
economic sectors, rather than airplanes crashing into buildings. WTC-9/11 was
a wake-up call.

We are particularly concerned about reports of EB.L agents being pulled
off investigations relaring to Saudi Arabia. Further, we keep getting rumors of
Washington, DC elements up to no good, who want expansion of war under
the name of antiterrorism.

For the worst case, make sure you have a stock of gold and silver coins. If you
have energy stocks, take a close look at the future for oil, gas and nuclear energy.

BATTLE IN WASHINGTON

Keep your heads up, and let your Congressmen know whar you think!

A group in the Pentagon wants more war with Iraq — now. Pentagon
facilities are being used to leak reports and arguments supporting this policy. It
appears to be behind the back of Secretary Rumsteld and originates in the office
of Deputy Secretary Wolfowitz, who has no military experience.

This group has gone back over past Iraqi actions and thinks it has a case for
moving on Iraq. We see this as irresponsible with extraordinary consequences for
the Near East. This is typical of the arrogant policies which upset U.S. allies.

The CIA has a better idea (for once): use covert action on Baghdad. Secretary
of State Colin Powell, a former head of the Joint Chiefs, is against a military
action policy.

THE FUTURE

he WTC debacle altered many things, not all yet apparent.
An attack right into the heart of New York City, and this Editor, four

months later, is still uncertain of the identify of the attackers!
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All this under the guidance of a President with more secrets than the public
realizes — some pretty sleazy.

The U.S. has embarked on a ten-year world crusade — in effect, a global
war. This, at a time of a rapidly declining economy and shocking revelations of
corporate misdoings in Enron.

There is more to come, much more. And this takes us well beyond the original
topic of future technology.

Qur original task has broadened. The government is on the way to take
over free encrgy technology: fuel cells are just the start. And what Kenneth Lay
did wirth Enron, with off-the-budger entiries, which carried the debr load, is
no more than the U.S. government has done for decades, with its off-budger
financing.

This changes our focus.

As you see, we have already broadened our scope to include the all-important
geopolirical facrors, and this will ger us back to the core of Americas Secrer
Establishment.

FUTURE TECHNOLOGY INTELLIGENCE REPORT
March 2002: Vol 13, No. 3

HIGH LEVEL GERMAN STATESMAN DISPUTES BUSH ON
WTC AND 9/11 -
Former German Minister of Technology, Andreas von Buelow makes

more sense than Bush and the White House on WTC and 9/11.
Von Buelow makes sense, but is almost totally ignored in the United
States. He was the former Minister of Technology in Germany, an independent,
sensible, down to earth thinker.

It is now nearly four months since 9/11, and according to general U.S, press
articles, TV and radio reports, it is an unequivocal but unproven fact that the
WTC event of 9/11 was the sole work of an ev// madman — Osama bin Laden.
Furthermore, we were promised an investigation, but all FBI investigative at-
tempts have been blocked by the White House irself.

Then, conveniently, the Enron scandal emerged. Look at this: Enron has cur-
rently rwelve Congressional investigations plus others on the board. The tragic
event of WTC has none — zero.

Sure, Lay and his buddies ripped off millions, but someone was able to hijack
four air planes, fly into New York landmark buildings, and kill a few thousand
Americans, We spend billions of taxpayer dollars each year to stop this kind of
thing — burt our defenses spend 75 minutes drinking coffee!

Quire diffhcult ro understand how a lone Arab who lives in a cave with four
wives is able to bring abour this stupendous acr of cooperation, and our technical
efficiency is not discussed or investigated! All we get in the ULS. is unsubstanti-
ated lines abour evi/ madmen!
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But to the point, this gets no attention from Congress, only from a foreign states-

man, while Lay and his fast-ralking aides ger twelve Congressional commirrees.
Our solution is simple: put Lay in jail, and put our effort into WTC - 9/11.

Something over 90% of Americans reportedly support Mr. Bush and accept
his neurotic pleas witheut question; yet, overseas, some very important questions
and investigations are in progress. At home, Enron commands all attention,
while an extremely important interview of Andreas von Buclow appeared in
the German daily, 7agesspiegel (January 13), with not one whisper in the U.S.
And the topic is untouched, not only by the vast American Press, but alse by
Congressional investigators.

Here is one key point from von Buelow: I can explain what's bothering me:
I see that after the horrifying attacks of Sept. 11, all political public opinion is
being forced into a direction that | consider wrong,”

Some people in the U.S, feel the same way, but there is lictle coverage and few
commentators even raise a hint that something is missing here.

Mr. von Buelow’s views are important, not only by virtue of his former position,
but also because his views match a few publicized in the United States. FTTR and
the La Rouche people have expressed skepticism abour the official monopaoly view.
We sense that many others have unexpressed skepricism, confusing the office of
the President with the contemporary office holder.

In your mind, go back and look at how Mr. Bush came to occupy this office
— courtesy of Enron — and consider how he can raise over 90% approval on
the basis of a PR campaign with no evidence to support the claim,

The level at which Bush discusses Osama bin Laden is sophomoric. This dis-
cussion of an evif, seemingly uncatchable Osama is becoming ridiculous.

We need some solid answers to some solid questions, and we are not getring
them. To remind you, 3000 citizens get wiped out, and the limit of our knowl-
edge is — evil madmen.

Then we have absurd CIA statements from CIA Director George J. Tenet
that this event was a victory for the United States! — nonsense! WTC was
no victory. Bur all we get is amateurish, unproven accusations and claims of
victory. The next thing we know, we shall have victory parades on the White
House lawn!

The establishment press is little better. Read the New York Times. It is big on
“the hole” and heroism (and indeed, there were some heroic actions) bur not
mllch (.'ISC.

This is an intelligent nation. It needs more than this. The White House sees the
U.S. as a beer-drinking, SUV-driving, chauvinistic Andy Gniffth’s Mayberry.

MORALITY

Somcthing both vital and long overdue has happened in these United States
— a deep-scated corruption is now emerging. We have to deal with it, not
cover it up, else this country cannot survive.
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The Enron case and Kenneth Lay are symptromatic. They reflect what some of
us have long known. Basically, the problem stems from overwhelming greed in
the political/economic system. Greed has brought Argentina to its knees, greed
has brought Zimbabwe to the brink of starvation, and the results of greed over
common good are all too obvious now in the United States and in the White
House. Lay was the biggest subscriber to the Bush election, and also a major
donor to Prince Charles in England — a mere $1.4 million for Charles. Lay was
buying everyone who could be bought. The Russians adopted this anything goes
philosophy at the Olympics — but too late in the day. They were caught!

We found this obeisance to corporate power in the Hoover Institution at
Stanford University 30 years ago. We understand 3/4 of the Senate and perhaps
1/2 of the Congress have received donations from Kenneth Lay — all there, with
their hands eagerly outstretched. So if an individual who has not bought his way
into the game wants protection, it is not there.

Our personal case is the one we know best, and is very simple. Thirty years ago,
we discovered something those in the industrial military establishment did not
want you to know. We were told not to publish this by the Hoover Institution at
Stanford. They even quietly went through the galleys of one of my books to pull
out the material on military aid to the Russians, We refused to stay quiet, and
wrote Nutional Suscide and later The Best Enemy Money Can Buy. We published
the whole dirty story.

We then found the Hoover Institution was maintained by private corporate
donations, those who built the UL.S.S.R. for profic — we found that our establish-
ment actually built the Soviet Union while hypocritically claiming innocence.
Just like Lay — “I know nothing.”

Instead of thanks for our discovery, the establishment threatened and blustered
to save its own skin and reputation. People like Dean Rusk, Robert McNamara
and Henry Kissinger lied and made sure enormous pressure was brought out to
stop the story. Congress stood by and did nothing.

They did not succeed, but thanks to the gullibility — and perhaps the greed
of the Congressman in the street — there was enough pressure brought to silence
Congress.

Many years ago, after I would present a speech, scores would come up and
make statements, “We are with you.” “God bless you." Bur thar was all. We often
wondered why — why people would stop at that point, and never go beyond
empty words. We decided fear was the best explanation.

The tear system works. Almost everyone is accountable to someone just upstairs
— his or her boss. As former Senator Mike Mansfield said, “To get along, you
have to go along.” But once you go along, you are committed. You have limited
your own freedom of action.

Whar has happened is that many have limited their own freedom of action, and
don't really want the greed-reward system to stop, because it has paid off for them. They
have sacrificed their own freedom for security, Hence, Kenneth Lay & Co, today!

113



The many crooks baited the hooks and caught a raft of greedy fish. There
have been many exceptions, but not enough. Sherron Watkins blew the whistle
on Enron, but has to face hostility from co-workers and friends. How many
whistle-blowers consider it necessary to hide, as if in fear?

We have no fear of the establishment. We can produce more than their com-
plicity in build-up of the Soviet Union. Our delay is for others to wake up and
demand these people crawl back into their holes.

Maybe the time is coming. Perhaps Enron and Kenneth Lay have brought
enough of this rerrible mess inro focus. Hoover Institution Director Glenn
Campbell mocked us as being a moralist and said “you will not survive.” We have
survived so far.

It you want to know this story, read Memoir and Americas Secret Establish-
ment. Hopefully, you will be spurred to action — ro destroy this monolithic
corruption.

It you have silly ideas like rebellion — forget it. The solution is the mind and
communication, that’s all. Violence is self destructive, First enlighten yourself,
and then your friends.

And remember one piece of advice. “They” are the ones who are afraid, not
you. Do right, and fear no man.

MR. BUSH AND THE “AXIS OF EVIL” o
Mr. Bush needs to check his history books when he talks about an “axis of evil.”

For many, including most Europeans, “axis of evil” refers to the unholy
alliance of Nazi Germany and Fascist [taly. Mr. Bush has invented a new axis
— Iraq, Iran and North Korea. No marter thar [ran and Iraq are enemies. No
matter that Saudi Arabia is more and more apparently the seat of power for our
problems. Fifteen of the nineteen hijackers were Saudi, The Saudi finance Al Queda
and Saudis are highly uncooperative.

Why doesn't Bush include Saudis? Politics again. Bush is buddy-buddy with Saudi
Arabia for family and oil reasons, and refuses to see any evil in thar direction.
Mr. Bush now has two major problems:

1. Ger off the Osama kick, and tell us who was responsible for the World
Trade Center bombing. “Condi” (Condoleczza. Rice, President George W. Bush's
National Security Advisor) should remind him that assumption is not proof.

2. His “axis™ is pure fabrication. There is no "axis” among these countries,
except in his own imagination for his own purposes.

More and more, Bush sounds like one of his fraternity buddies in Skull & Bones.

TENET AND BIN LADEN

ow CIA Director George J. Tenet is claiming a viczory for September 11th.
That's abour as far as you can stretch imagination! Some three thousand
Americans died on September 11, 2001, at the World Trade Center — and we
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would like to know why. Tenet claims it was a vicrory for the CIA, and they had
known about Osama bin Laden for five years. FTIR readers will ask a simple
question: Why wasn't something done? Is it the CIA’s job just to leokart terrorism,
say, “My, my!” and go back to sleep?

Tenet is implying that in five years, the agency could not find a way into the
Osama group. To FTIR, that is a blunt admission of failure. 7 is the job of intel-
ligence agencies to find a way in. That is what “operations” does.

To add to Tenet’s advantages, the Bush family and many others have inside
contacts with Saudi Arabia. No, Mr. Tenet — not victory, but downright failure.
Excuses won't do ir. At $30 billion a year, we need more.

THE VON BUELOW APPROACH

1. "There are 26 intelligence services in the U.S.A. with a budgert of $30
billion (more than the total German defense budget) and they were nor able to
prevent the artacks.”

(FTIR has pointed out the same statistic. We now find the CIA knew 10 days
before the attacks, and did nothing. This $30 billion is in addition to a secrer
budget we understand to be at around $70 billion.)

2. “Then the U.S. immediately went to war ... bur a Government which
goes to war must first establish who the attacker, the enemy is. It has a duty to
provide evidence, the U.S. has not been able to present any evidence that would
hold up in court.”

(FTIR makes a similar point. Bush has made an assumprion, he has not pre-
sented evidence.

3. “The assumed chief terrorist is Mohammed Arta. This presumed terrorist
then rook some unusual risks ... and professionals do not rake unusual risks. He
catches a plane to reach Boston just a short time before the connecting flight.
None of the stated terrorists was on the passenger list. None went through
pre-flight procedures. None of the four pilots went to the agreed hijack code

of 7700.”

FUTURE TECHNOLOGY INTELLIGENCE REPORT
April 2002: Vol 13, No. 4

A BREAKTHROUGH. WHAT YOU MAY SUSPECT IS TRUE
AND IS NOW IN PROGRESS BE WARNED o
S ometimes surprises hit when least expected. This is certainly true

in research.
In February 2002, we had a letter from an international, award-winning
New York film maker, Roland Legiardi-Laura, currently making a ilm on John
Taylor Garro, the New York City and State Teacher of the Year. The film is en-
tiled The Fourth Purpose.
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In making the film, Roland had noted references to our book, America’s Se-
eret Establishment. These came from Gatwo’s fourth book, Underground History
of American Education. (In case you need it, Roland's address is: The Odyssey
Group, 269 East 8th Street, New York, NY 10009.)

Legiardi-Laura in particular had noted references in our book (a book he de-
scribes as “extraordinary”) 1o Thomas Gallauder, founder of Gallaudet College
(for the deaf) in Washington, DC. A book by Gallauder has apparentdy been
expurgated. We have a photo of the tide page, which proves the book did indeed
exist, but Legiardi-Laura was unable to obtain a copy for the film.

Legiardi-Laura mailed me a copy of Gatto’s book, and we found numerous ref-
erences to a member of the Huminati, a secret society, Johann Heinrich Pestalozzi
(1746 - 1827), a close friend of Heinrich Hebart, the founder of so-called “en-
riched” education in the U.S, An odd combination. A Swiss Hluminati works
closely and for some years lived with the American founder of the much-criticized
domestic educarional system in primary schools.

Legiardi-Laura achieved accidentally what so many have attempted. He found a
way into the secret society octopus that threatens to extinguish our way of life.

This gives us an enormous research problem, and all we can do at the moment
is present it to you. You are going to either solve it or let everything we have go
to pieces. I cannot be any more clear than that.

What you cannot do is what happened 30 years ago when we discovered how
the Sovier Union was built by the United States. People made all kind of sup-
porting noises, but when it came down to doing something, they walked away
and allowed a few to shoulder the burden. Then the Soviet Union collapsed. The
Soviet chess piece was simply removed from the board, and today is replaced by
“terrorism.”

For a number of reasons, this I see nothing” evasion tactic is not going to
work this time around. This time, you either do something, or believe me, you
will go under. I can't be any more blunt.

A NEW THEORY AND
A HYPOTHESIS FOR INVESTIGATION

A:Jc’rfmit Secret Establishment is based on a genuine membership list of Skull
nd Bones, which is tied in with the older lluminati secret society. When
viewed side by side with Gatwo’s book, Underground History of American Education,
a dramaric picture emerges.

Briefly, you have afready been conditioned to accept secret society world control
through the much-criticized educational system. Some of us have evaded this
mechanism, because we did not receive our primary education in the United
States, We evaded the conditioning. What we see clearly may not be available to
you.

Remember, 1o achieve the /lluminati- Skull and Bones objective, they must
conceal their intentions, The HMluminati were trapped in 1786, over 200 years
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ago, when the Elector of Bavaria intercepted their papers, found their objectives,
and promptly broke up the luminasi organization.

This 1s important. The Muminati survived. Skull and Bones was founded in
1833, and has worked steadily since for its objectives. This is what Gatto has
unknowingly discovered — a vital step in this plan for world domination. The
President of the United States George W. Bush is a member of Skull and Bones.

WHAT PRIMARY EDUCATION DOES

s many parents have already found, the American primary education system

as less to do with the development of the individual child, but rather

prepares the child to be a cog in the State apparatus. This child conditioning can
be looked at in two ways:

« First, the child is being raised as a tool of the State; barely able to read, and
full of unnatural and non-educational ideas.

* Butsecond, this conditioning can be viewed as a device to make a New World
Order more acceptable. The kid grows up to be a pliant zombie.

This was nort the Gatto objective. He started out by criticizing the educarional
objective. A teacher who was a real teacher, and objected to what is happening
out there.

Because of the Pestalozzi aspect, we see this differently. We see a long-ranging
conditioning objective to make the child accept these deeply secret objectives.

This is whar the statistics portray. Just look ar the literacy rate. Back 150 years
ago, literacy was universal. Is it 100% in the U.S. today? Maybe 60% of the popu-
lation can read! This is what we spend billions upon? — Something is wrong,

WHAT IS TO BE DONE?

First let’s complete the Odyssey film on the educational system. This needs
your help. This portrays a ridiculous affair. We spend billions — on what? — kids
who can’t read? The pilot film, The Fourth Purpose, produced by the Odyssey
Group is available.

We rook a look at a typical school schedule. Have you done this? One school
has a period every day for — DRUMMING! Five days a week for drumming!
No history, no Constitution, no literature, no science — but drumming!

Our conclusion was, shut this place down fast. This is not a school; ir's an
entertainment center.

This conditioning has been going on for well over 100 years. Ifitis notstopped,
now, we shall have the entire population, except for immigrants, ready-made for
the New World Order.

We have noticed that quite often the immigrant (there are 50 million of them)
or the well-traveled American has evaded the conditioning. The vast group of
younger Americans, those under 50 years of age, have been caught in the net.

Gatto and the Odyssey Group have caught this deeper purpose almost by
accident,
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Please think abour this, and do what you can. You need to talk about this with
your friends and relatives. You might see a note or review in a newsletter — that's
about the sum of it. Nothing will appear in your newspaper, since newspapers
do not report until a topic is widely notorious, and certainly not if the proverbial
“telephone call” comes in from the publisher, i.c.. “do not report.” Some of you
may remember 15 years ago, from time to time we received a report from a friend
inside one of the major wire services: “News that is nors reported on the wires.”

We can only tell you what turns up in our research. As long as 40-50 years ago,
we tried to tell people, for example, that the Soviet Union was noz the almighty
giant it appeared to the outside world. Our work was suppressed (see Memorr).
Nobody would listen until we forced three books into the mainstream. Today,
Mt. Gorbachev himself says the Soviet Union was a “propaganda hoax.” For some
reason, people prefer the illusion to reality.

Think about this, please: we have a President who is a member of Skull & Bones.
We have described Skull 8 Bones in detail in Americas Secrer Establishment.

Our work is research. Whether you make use of the information is up to you.

THE WORLD TRADE CENTER DISASTER (CONTINUED)
rom the start, FTIR has been skeptical of the Bush explanation of the WTC

disaster. Our skepticism is based on logic and common sense, up o now
withour evidence,

We now have evidence, which more or less confirms whart at least some have
already deduced.

As we stated last month, times have changed; you ignore today at your own
peril.

Our doubrs based on common sense were:

1. Mr. Bush claimed che culpritas an evil bin Laden. Not one piece of evidence
was submitted. Bush jumped up and down, pointing a finger at bin Laden, and,
according to reports, convinced over 90% of the dumbed down American public
without a shred of proof.

2. Congress has over twelve investigations for the Enron case — and NONE
tor the WTC case. Just as we wenr to press, two committees were appointed
— the House commirttee has a narrow focus. Chairman is Congressman Porter
Goss, former CIA operations! Senate Chairman is Joseph Lieberman, with a
wider scope. Think about this. Is the death of 3,000 Americans so insignificant
that it can be brushed under the rug? Do the misdeeds of Kenneth Lay warrant
twelve investigations, and the deaths of nearly 3,000 innocent Americans war-
rant no investigation?

Our conclusion: Congress doesn’t wantto investigate; maybe it fears some of the
information below (and in following issues) is true, and will become public.

Bur Congress is supposed to represent the people!

3. After six months — no one can find Osama bin Laden, and Bush has stopped
the FBI from investigation the Saudi angle.
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4. And where is the press? This great big body of investigative journalists cannot
even ask for proof of the Bush claim that Osama was to blame.

However: go to the Internet and you will find a different story. CNN and
Rense.com (at: htep://www.rense.com/generall9/formergerman.hem); print the
passenger lists for the four planes involved in the World Trade Center disaster.
(More specifically, we routinely checked for Arab names — there are none (one
possible). However, the FBI has given us Arab names for the hijackers without
aliases. These names are not on any passenger manifest we have seen. Whar is
the reason for this contradiction?

There is much more proof of an alternative explanation. The four American
planes were hijacked by NORAD — i.e., U.S. Air Force, using remote control
technology designed to rescue hijacked planes — not to fly them into buildings.
This is the story coming out of Britain and Germany.

[s this why Britain — always a stout U.S. ally — refused rto send 25,000
troops to Afghanistan? Is this why Germany refused to take over peace keeping
in Kabul after Britain exits?

We will give you references next issue (June) where you can read the full ver-
sion for yourself. Some of the references are not something we would rely on;
they will need checking, You can read and decide for yourself.

When you pick yourself up off the floor, you will need to contact your
Congressman, your local news editor, General Myers at NORAD, any honest
newsletter editors you know, and others involved in this affair,

There are rumors this information will be expurgated. What you do after that
is your business. From our perspective, we trust none of the above.

Approximately 10,000 people, probably a lor more, know this story, and we are
skeptical of a variant — the Chinese version. Their interest is to destabilize the U.S.

Qur starting point is:

1. You are not fully dumbed down.

2. Washingron is unwilling to rell you the truth.

3. We pick up rumors that this same Washington is frighrened that you will
somehow learn the truth.

4. Many of you will download the story from Rense.com .

We start with the passenger lists from the four hijacked planes. Much more
to come!

ooner or later, we had to reach this point. Many, many are aware that the world
has changed, but at FTIR, we see no signs that any are aware that knowing is
not enough. You have to 4o something. Probably the United States of America
has had it so good for so long, it is difficult to adjust.
We were burning many of our papers the other day, and the thought occurred
— this s what Embassies do when war is imminent! The smoke from the chimney
tells outsiders the end is approaching.
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We first warned in November, 2000. September 11th, 2001, should have been
another warning, and Washington over the past six months is confirmation,
Our warnings have no effect. Congress is allowed to go six months without an
investigation of September 11th. Allies are making their warning noises — they
are not happy. When Britain refused to send 25,000 troops to Afghanistan, that
should have been warning enough.

Rather than ignoring your Congressmen, you should be demanding answers
from him about WTC — this is your representartive, for heaven's sakes.

We can see the disintegration, but we do not see any part of the American
people in protest. Everybody seems happy enough. Perhaps they do not see that

“smiling fascism” can turn quickly to the real thing. Perhaps they do not recog-
nize how the game is being played out in the military tribunals, the clamor for
universal 1D, and a lor worse. It is entirely possible that Seprember 11th had
nothing to do with Arabs, and a lot to do with NORAD,

Clearly worrisome is the fact that a former German Minister of Defense has
picked up on this track, and clearly warns about it. Our other information con-
firms von Buelow. Von Buelow tells us that the U.S. is following the same track
as 1930s Germany. People would just not believe what was happening.

Who was financing the German Nazi revolt of the 1930s? None other than
Averell Harriman (Democrat) and Prescott Bush (Republican) through Union
Banking, both Bonesmen, and Prescott Bush was the grandfather of today’s
George W. Bush — also a Yale Bonesman.

Same thing today. The counter-moves are not being made by citizens. Sure,
a dozen or so commentators, especially on the Internet, are warning you. And
FTIR was surprised to see a jump in renewals — so you are not all asleep.

But who is getting Congress on the ball? Who is writing to the Editor? Who
is distributing literature?

If you have not read Americas Secrer Establishment, I urge you to do so. Pub-
lished 20 years ago. And read Electronically Hijacking the WTC Artack Aircraft,

at: www.geocities.com/mknemesis/Thomerun

Wake up and smell the coffee!
It looks as though they are willing to kill 3,000 Americans to advance their pro-
gram. [f that doesn't tell you something, nothing will. Take a look at the Interner,

rense.com and Orlin Grabbe.

The next issue of FTIR will be June 2002; we are going to a bi-monthly schedule.
Your subscriptions will be filled, except you have twice as long to read each issue.

This was Tony’s last newsletter.
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Secret Skeletons From The Bush Closet

The bland self-effacing mask of Vice-President George Herbert Walker Bush con-
ceals another man from another world.

The Bush family—and several allied families—are at the core of a secret society
known as The Order. They are sworn to conceal its objectives. Even its very
existence.

Three in the Bush family are members. Here s an extract from the membership
"Catalogue™ of this secret society listing the “"Bush"” entries.

BUSH, '48, George Hetbert Walker—Grove Lane, Green.
wich, Conn,

BUSH, ‘22, James Smith—[ Finance]—Industrial Bank of St.
St. Louis, 901 Washingten Ave,, St, Louis, Mo, | res.,
5125 Lindell Divd., Spt,, SAT.C, World War I LL
Cal, USAAF, World War 1I.

BUSH, '17, Prescott Shelden—[Tinance]—3%9 Wall St., New
York City; res, Grove Lane, Greenwich, Conn, Mem-
ber, Yale Corporation, 1914-; Capt, F.A,, World War
1 (AEF).

Prescott Sheldon Bush, father of Vice-President George Herbert Walker Bush, was
initiated into The Order in 1917 along with Henry Neil Mallan, founder of Dresser
Industries {(an important supplier of strategic high technology to the Soviets].

After graduation from Yale both Prescott Bush and Henry Mailon were commissioned
into the U.5. Army, Field Artillery.
As instant Captains, they were assigned (or perhaps rewarded) regiments as follows:
Captain Prescott Bush 3224 Regiment Fleld Artillery
Captain Henry Mallon 323d Regiment Field Artillery

Readers of Introduction to THE ORDER will recall that "322" and "323" are room
numbers in the "Bones" Temple on the Yale campus.

mm Subscriber 1o INFOCEI — Confidential Wire Sorvice, Paris Subscription Offices
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WONA — Wire Servica, Berlin =
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FLESHING OUT SKULL & BONES = INVESTIGATIONS INTO AMERICA'S MOST POWERFUL SECRET SOCIETY

THE PHOENIX LETTER
Vol 2 No 9 November 1983

SECRET SKELETONS FROM THE BUSH CLOSET N
he bland self-effacing mask of Vice-President George Herbert

Walker Bush conceals another man from another world.

The Bush family — and several allied families — are at the core of a
secret soctety known as The Order. They are sworn to conceal its objectives. Even
its very existence.

Three in the Bush family are members. Here is an extract from the member-
ship “Cartalogue” of this secret society listing the "Bush” entries.

BUSH, '48, George Herbert Walker-Grove Lane, Greenwich, Conn.

BUSH, ‘22, James Smith-( Finance-Industrial Bank of St. Louis, 901 Wash-
ingron Ave., St. Louis, Mo.i res., 5125 Lindell Blvd., Sgr., S.AT.C., World War
1; Lt. Col., U.S.AAE, World War 11.

BUSH, ‘17, Prescott Sheldon-( Finance-59 Wall St,, New York City; res.,
Grove Lane, Greenwich, Conn. Member, Yale Corporation, 1944-; Capt,, FA.,
World War | (A.E.E).

Prescott Sheldon Bush, father of Vice-President George Herbert Walker Bush, was
initiated into The Order in 1917 along with Henry Neil Mallon, founder of Dresser
Industries (an important supplier of strategic high technology to the Soviers).

After graduation from Yale both Prescott Bush and Henry Mallon were com-
missioned into the U.S. Army, Field Artillery.

As instant Caprains, they were assigned (or perhaps rewarded) regiments as follows:

Caprain Prescott Bush — 322d Regiment Field Arrillery
Caprain Henry Mallon  323d Regiment Field Artillery

Readers of Introduction to THE ORDER will recall thar “322" and “323”
are room numbers in the “Bones” Temple on the Yale campus.

Afrer World War One Prescott Bush joined W.A. Harriman (now Brown Broth-
ers, Harriman) private bankers ar 59 Wall Street, New York, to start a forty-year
career with the irm. Brothers Averell Harriman ('13), Roland Noel Harriman
(*17) and members of the Brown family arc also members of The Order.

In 1921 Bush married Dorothy Walker, daughter of St. Louis banker George
Herbert Walker, whose son Stoughton Walker was initiated in 1928. Walker also
hired James Smith Bush (initiated 1922), brother of Prescott Bush into his bank,
the Industrial Bank of St. Louis.

In brief, the Bush family is part of the tightly woven inner core of The Order,
a secret society whose members are sworn to avoid discussion of objectives and
membership — or even its very existence,
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GEORGE HERBERT WALKER BUSH

eorge Bush was born June 12, 1924, in Milton, Massachusetts. His childhood was
spent in Greenwich, Connecticut and Phillips Exeter Academy, Andover. During
World War Two — and this is one of the few positive aspects of Bush's career — he spent
three years in the Pacific with Naval Air Services, leaving as a Lieutenant Junior Grade.
Then, according to Current Biography.

On his return to civilian life, Bush entered Yale University where he majored in eco-
nomics, was elected to Phi Beta Kappa and joined Delta Kappa Epsilon fraternity.

Nowhere in this biography — nor in any other Bush biography — is initiation
into the order cited. Membership is consistently concealed from the public record.

Moreover, suppression of this membership is consistent with the oath of ini-
tiation which forbids members to discuss membership or even be present when
The Order is discussed by outsiders.

After Yale, Bush decided to go to work. According to Current Biography:

After graduating from Yale ... Bush decided to strike out on his own rather
than work for his father’s banking firm (Brown Brothers, Harrnman) and took
a job as a salesman with Dresser Industries of Odessa, Texas, an oilfield supply
company of which his father was a director.

One interesting point about Dresser Industries: it has always been a supplier of
top flight high technology to the Soviets— some with more than obvious military
applications, Fven President Carter — who was actually tougher on holding the
technological export line than President Reagan — allowed a Dresser-Soviet
contract to go forward in 1977 against the protests of the Department of Defense.

AMBASSADOR BUSH AT UNITED INATIONS

In 1970 Bush ran for the U.S. Senate from Texas. He lost.

President Nixon then appointed Bush U.S. Ambassador to United Nations.

This appointment was widely criticized as a political pay-oft-because Bush had
absolutely no experience whatseever in foreign affairs or diplomacy.

This deficiency led to expulsion of Taiwan from the U.N. General Assembly
and a seat for Communist China.

Simultancously Bush used his U.N. office to support “Mundialization,” i.c., the adop-
tion by individual communities of world status. Part of local taxes goes to support United
Nations rather than the local community. It is a rejection of U.S. sovereignty.

The first U.S. city to join the New World Order was Richfield, Ohio (November
1970). Here'’s part of a letter sent by U.N. Ambassador Bush to Richfield, Ohio:

Permit me to congratulate you and the other members of your community on
your Proclamation of Mundialization. There cannot be anything more encouraging
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to us here than to hear from a community like yours that supports the United
Nations and believes in it and in its importance to the establishment of world
peace. Equally significant is your community’s commitment to help increase
understanding among the peoples of the world for without that understanding
peace among peoples can never be achieved. What a profound contribution
Richfield 1s making to man's greatest efforts to build a world in which all the
pledges of the UN Charter will truly govern relations among nations!

Mt. Bush had sworn an oath of office to suppors the Constitution of the United
States. He cannot support any measure that would /n any way dilute the sovereignty
of the United States. The “Mundialization™ process and the Constitution of the
U.S. are opposed to cach other. They are mutually exclusive. You have to choose
one or the other. You can't support both simultaneously.

After this Bush was moved along the fast track by Nixon and Ford:
* 1971-2 U.S. Ambassador to United Nations
* 1973-4 Chairman Republican National Committee
¢ 1974-5 Chief U.S. Liaison Ofhce, Peking, Communist China
* 1976-7 Direcror, Central Intelligence Agency

In 1980 Bush ran for President. Financial backing came heavily from the so-called
Eastern Establishment-not only did David Rockefeller send the maximum allow-

able contribution of $1,000, but so did five other Rockefellers.

Among members of The Order who backed Bush were:
¢ ]. Richardson Dilworth (‘38)
(Administrator of the Rockefeller family) $1000
*John Cowles, Jr. (four Cowles in The Order) $1000
* George Weyerhaeuser $1000

As you know, Bush ended up on the Presidential ticket with Reagan — and made
it into the White House.

BUSH MEETS ANDROPOV

he Ocrober 1983 Phoenix Letter reported thar individual Americans have
met with Andropov enly twice. And Andropov chose to meet members of
The Order: Bush and Harriman. Not even U.S. Ambassador Hartman has seen
Andropov alone.
What was Bush's assessment after the November 1982 meeting? This is Bush
— a former head of CIA— on Andropov:

My view on Andropov is that some people make this KGB thing sound hor-
rendous. Maybe | speak defensively as a former head of CIA. But leave out the
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naughty things they allegedly do: here’s a man who has had access to a tremen-
dous amount of intelligence over the years ... (and therefore) would be less apt
to misread the intentions of the United States.

The Bush assessment was that Andropov was misunderstood and really wanted
to improve U.S.-Soviet relations.

And whar did Phoenix Letter print at that time (January 1983 The Russian
Window)? As follows:

Andropov 15 by far the most dangerous Soviet leader since the 1917 Bolshevik
Revolution,

Andropov has more education than Lenin, and probably equals Lenin’s cun-
ning, Andropov is as ruthless as Stalin, but this ruthlessness will be directed as
much at the Free World as long suffering Russians. In the light of history Kruschev
and Brezhnev will be seen as toothless tigers compared to the Andropov regime.
In brief: KGB efficiency and terror will now be felt inside and outside Russia.

The “poor misunderstood” Andropov acted — in quick succession came these
terror strikes:

* The attempted assassination of the Pope, traced back to Moscow,

* The massacre of KAL 007,

* The massacre of the South Korean cabinet in Bangkok,

* The Beirur Marine massacre,

* The Cuban-Soviet buildup on Grenada — aimed at revolution in Brazil.

Bush boasts he spent a year as head of CIA. He should buy a subscription
to The Phoenix Letter — then his assessment of intentions will be 100% more
accurate.

BUSH MEETS DICTATOR ROBERT MUGABE OF ZIMBABWE

ﬁ frer meeting with Andropov in November, 1982, Bush went on down to see

obert Mugabe in Zimbabwe and made a speech not exactly well covered

by the U.S. media (it was not reported by any network or major newspaper).

Reading extracts from the speech Bush made in Harare (capital of Zimbabwe)

readers will understand why Bush may not have been anxious for domestic U.S.
coverage of his views on Zimbabwe.

Back in May of this year we reported that Robert Mugabe was engaged in a
quiet slaughter of his tribal enemies in Zimbabwe ... while the U.S. was financ-
ing Zimbabwean housing projects at lower intevest rates than could be obtained by
American citizens.

We described Mugabe as: * ... a smooth two-faced killer, who sneers when
atrocities are mentioned and has conned the local U.S. representatives” (May

1983 p. 8).
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While the slaughter was in progress Vice President Bush was in Zimbabwe-not
to investigate the slaughter, bur to hail Mugabe. Here are some of the fawning
statements made by Bush at a State Dinner held in Harare, Zimbabwe on No-

vember 16, 1982:

Your excellency ... thirty-one hours ago in Moscow, 1 discussed my mission
to Africa with the President of Pakistan, Zia Al-Huk. When I mentioned Prime
Minister Mugabe, President Zia made reference to something which informed
men everywhere on earth agree .... | want to acknowledge that I stand in the pres-
ence of a genuine statesman, the Prime Minister of Zimbabwe, Robert Mugabe.
His stature in the world is well established, highly respected, and it will be more
formidable in the vears to come ...

And more,

Mr. Prime Minister ... you have faced awesome challenges ... I do want to say on
behalf of the Reagan Admimstration that we support the policy of reconciliation to
which you have committed yourself ... We have supported your country because its
success 1s consistent with U.S. principles and U.S. interests ... shortly after President
Reagan took office my government pledged nearly one quarter of a billion U.S. dollars
in new aid. America has not only avowed its faith in Zimbabwe, but proven it.

Finally, Bush couldn't resist commenting on his response to Andropov’s sucker bait:

A moment ago [ mentioned our journey to Moscow. No doubt you have
all seen photographs of Secretary Brezhnev's funeral, The image that struck me
most — one that [ will never forget — was the magnificent, stately display of
young Russian soldiers.

And there’s more of the same preppic gee-whiz juvenile ramblings ... zhisis
the Vice President of the United States — once they let him outside the U.S.

Now lets come up to date — to November 1, 1983, a few days before we go
to press.

Over in Harare, statesman Robert Mugabe has seized and imprisoned Bishop
Abel Muzorewa of the American-based United Methodist Church.

What is Bishop Muzorewa's sin?

Two days before Mugabe stormtroopers seized the bishop, Muzorewa made
a comment that human oppression in Zimbabwe was worse than under white
minority rile (Zimbabwe was formerly Rhodesia). This is how Bishop Muzorewa
phrased his criticism of Mugabe:

| continue to hope and pray that God can somehow help us to be delivered
from the oppression of today imposed on us not by lan Smith, not by Israel or
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South Africa and not by people with white skins, but by our ruling party and
government with black skins.

Bishop Muzorewa is today held in Harare Central Police Station. Muzorewa has
not been formally charged with a crime. He cannot receive visitors or a lawyer.

And the man responsible is Vice President Bush’s hero — distinguished states-
man Mugabe — who is getting a one quarter billion dollar hand-out this year
from the United States taxpayer.

CONCLUSIONS

1. Mr. Bush is a member of a “sordid” secret society (that’s what one of its oun
members has called it). This membership has been concealed from the American
public. It is obvious deception.

2. Mr. Bush apparently has some difficulty in making correct assessments of
people and events. Anyone who provides rapturous support for such psychopaths
as Andropov and Mugabe has little understanding of rraditional American values
of freedom and human dignity.

3. These deficiencies have been identified by Andropov. Soviet psychological
profiles of Bush are accurate. Bush apparendy cannot restrain himself from reac-
tion. Diplomatic precedence and goose-stepping military parades are two Bush
baits which have succeeded.

4. Bush’s actions confirm the conclusion of INTRODUCTION TO THE
ORDER, i.e., that members of The Order have severe personality deficiencies.

RECOMMENDATION

1. That Vice-President Bush resign — today — before these facts become
general public knowledge and rebound on the Reagan administration.

THE PHOENIX LETTER
Vol 2 No 12 February 1984

PATRIARCH “PoPPY” BUsH OPTS FOR COVER UP
r I Yhe stupidity of political sinners never ceases to amaze us.

Surely there must be one lesson from the Nixon White House — that
cover-ups just don't work — that the public will accept a political sinner
but not one who conceals his sinning.

P-T “Poppy” Bush (D. 146) is scrambling to hide a sordid segment of his life
— his involvement with B---s, his membersship in The Order.

(If you're wondering whether our typist is taking shorteuts with words, the
answer is no — they know that P-T, D.146 and B—s stand for — it's a code
they use in letters between members. Key: P-T is “Patriarch,” D. 146 is a date of
initiation and B --- s is “Bones”).
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Back to Patriarch “Poppy” Bush (alias Vice President George Herbert Walker
Bush), in the November 1983 issue of The Phoenix Lerter we printed an extract
from the “Catalogue” of the-Russell Trust (a.k.a. Skull & Bones, a.k.a. The Order).
This extract of the Bush family included Vice President Bush.

Within days we picked up the first of three events pointing ro a cover-up:

(a) November 14, 1983, The Yale University Library denied researchers further
access to Kingsley Trust and Russell Trust papers.

(b) December 13, 1983, Vice President Bush denied membership in a “sordid
secret society,”

(c) January 16, 1984, the White House cancelled the Republican regional
platform hearings — a long-time GOP tradition.

PATRIARCH BUSH DENIES MEMBERSHIP IN THE ORDER

Mr. Bush is on the spot.

We have proof — absolutely irrefutable documentary proof-that Vice
President Bush (as you know him) is a member of The Order.

On the other hand, members take an vath not to discuss membership. Even
in lerters between members, the entity “The Order” is coded in symbols.

Vice President Bush now has a choice — deny membership and so lie to the
American people and betray his oath of office — or he can tell the truch, admit
membership and betray The Order.

At this time Patriarch Bush has opted to deny membership.

In November 1983, a Phoenix Letter reader wrote the Vice President, request-
ing him to respond to the charges made in The Phoenix Letter. We will print
two extracts from the reader’s letter (it's too long to reproduce in full), then the
Bush reply, then our comments (the complete Bush letter is reproduced on the
next page).

(1) Reader To Bush:
Are you now-or have you ever been — a member of and/or in any way affiliated
with the alleged secret society cited by Mr. Sutton, also known as The Order?

Vice President Bush:
“The Vice-President is not now and never has been a member of any ‘sordid
secret society’” (see full context opposite).

Comment:

Mr. Bush attempts to duck the question by inserting a word, 1.e., “sordid.” The
letter is signed by Shirley Green, Acting Press Secretary, so the letter can always be de-
nied. Obviansly Vice President Bush is not in a position to make an outright denial.
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OFFICE OF THE VVICE PRESIDENT

WASHINGTON

December 13, 1983

Dear Mr.

The Vice President asked me to thank you for your recent letter
concerning the November issue of The Phoenix Letter.

The allegations contained in the Letter are so erroneous that they
defy an item-by-item refutation. However, one of the areas that seems to
be of concern to you has to do with something called "The Order.” The Vice
President is not now and has never been a member of any "sordid secret
society." I am sure you know he has served his country as a Navy pilot
in the Second World War and received the second highest medal awarded to
our servicemen -- the Distinguished Flving Cross. He has also served at
the United Nations as the U.S. representative in the People's Republic
of China and was Director of Central Intelligence. He received the highest
civilian awards given for service to country.

Vice President Bush's public career has been one of consistent
loyalty and honor and has been conducted in full openness to the press
for scrutiny of his performance.

The second area that appeared to cause you concern was an out-of-
context and incomplete quotation following the Vice President's meeting
with First Secretary Andropov. The Vice President simply stated that a
Communist leader whe had had access to ful®l information about the United
States and its people was less apt to misread the intentions of the United
States and its peaceful desires than a Communist leader who was not familiar
with the West and the values we hold dear. He at no time indicated that the
change of leadership in the Soviet Union represented a change in their basic
long-stated desires and goals vis-a-vis the rest of the world. Because of
the Vice President's service at the CIA, he has a very realistic assessment
of the Soviet system and is certainly not "misunderstanding” U.S.-Soviet
relations.

The Vice President appreciated your bringing these concerns to his

attention.
Shirley Green

Acting Press Secretary
to the Vice President

Sincerely,
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(2) Reader To Bush:
“Has Mr. Sutton accurately stated and/or quoted your position with regard
to Soviet Premier Andropov and Dictator Mugabe of Zimbabwe? If not, then |

request that you send me complete transcripts of what you actually stated.”

Vice President Bush:

Bush ignores Mugabe. Neither did the Vice President fill the request for a full
transcript. So Phoenix Letter sent a full transcript to the reader.

“Out of context and incomplete quotation” is the reason given for the Andropov
part of the question, bur no transcript was sent to the reader.

Comment:
None. Mr. Bush is obviously unable to support his allegations.

YALE UNIVERSITY LIBRARY JOINS THE COVER-UP

It is an fron clad rule among librarians throughout the civilized world that
catalogue listed material should be freely available to all comers, without
restricts, except where limitations on use are clearly stated and approved (rare
books for example).

This is a basic tenet of professional librarianship — in thirty years around the
academic world we have never ance known this rule violared.

Even Soviet libraries by and large keep ro this rule. This editor’s three-volume
study of Soviet technology relied heavily on Soviet material (the U. S. govern-
ment classified its files on this topic) and even the paranoid Soviets were willing
to ship abroad material listed in their Moscow catalogues.

Now let’s come to that bastion of free inquiry in New Haven, Connecticut,
known as Yale University.

Last August (1983) this Editor requested Yale University Library for a copy of
items in their Yale catalogue under Call Numbers: Yeg2 K61¢ (Kingsley Trust)
and Yeg2 R9c (Russell Trust).

Here is a copy of a relevant catalog card — as it (once) existed — at Yale Uni-
versity Library:

Kingsley Trust Association

Yeg2 CS.P 1842- C.CJ. |Caraloguse|

KélC

Have: 184244,
1882, 1890, 1896,
1906. 1919, 1929, 1939,

1959, 1969
Ths is a temporary record for the serial being cataloged. Permanent cards will be filed soon,
recat
Subject Cataloguer: Analyzed
Senal Cataloguer: rtp() Not analyzed
Date; 2/3/78
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Yale University Library
New Haven Connecticut obg20

Rutherfurd David Rogers W

University Librarian

November 14, 1983

Mr. Anthony C. Sutton
P.O. Box 1791
Antos, Californdia 95003

Dear Mr. Sutton,

In renly to yvour letter of November 7 about the Eingsley
Trust Association: Catalogue, please write:

Radley Daly, Treasurer
Box 1934 Yale Station
New Haven, CT 06520

I have reviewed our previous correspondence with vou, and 1
suggest that yvou deal directly with the Kingsley Trust on this

matter.
Cordially,
Rutherford D, ;ogers
University Librarian
RDR/ ikw
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The response denying access from the University Librarian is reproduced on the
opposite page. The censor? Obviously Kingsley Trust. The Russell Trust request
was ignored,

Whe, or what, is Kingsley Trust? It is a.k.a. Scroll & Key-another Yale senior
society. We suspect it is a part of, perhaps a chapter of The Order ... members
included Dean Acheson (NSCI68) and Cy Vance.

Note this: the requested material was open to researchers as late as mid-1983
because previous requests were fulfilled promptly. Access was closed off sometime
between July and November 1983, after remaining available for years, some for
almost a century.

BUSH-BAKER GROUP CLOSE DOWN PLATFORM HEARINGS
Tadfrﬁonm’{y in election years the Republican Party holds nationwide public

platform hearings.

This year, White House counselor Edwin Meese (in charge of writing the
plattorm) and almost all Republican officials, legislators and Governors, wanted
to continue the tradition.

The Bush-Baker forces said no. Said James Baker, “When you have the White House,
why invite people to go out and criticize you.”

Then Trent Lot (R-Miss.) arranged a compromise — four hearings only. In
January, even this compromise was scuttled by the Bush-Baker crowd.

We understand individual Republicans are now organizing hearings on a local
basis — in addirion ro the orchestrated show ar Dallas.

We also know from internal correspondence among members of The Order
(between their local cells or clubs) that they are worried — worried about the
anti-elitist tide, worried thart even Yale campus doesn’t want them anymore.

Someone needs 1o come up with an idea — how to get Vice President Bush
on a public platform before nationwide TV cameras to answer a few questions. For
example:

“Are you or have ever been a member of a secrer society?”
“Have you ever taken an oath to keep this membership secret?”

“Did you declare this secret membership to the FBI or the Senate when you
were confirmed as Vice President?”

CONCLUSIONS:

1. George “Poppy” Bush is not only a member of a secret sociery, bur cannot
deny this association.

2. Bush has placed himself behind a smoke screen, i.c., he answers questions
through a press secretary (who can be denied), keeps a very low profile, refuses
to give the public a forum for questioning.
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3. In brief, a cover-up.

RECOMMENDATIONS

L. Mr. Bush should resign before he puss his other foot in it.

2. The Phoenix Letter would appreciate any recent (since 1960) Yale yearbooks
that publish Scroll & Key associations. We can return “borrowed” material within
24 hours by overnight Express mail.

WARNING

Do not assume ALL Yale graduates are suspect. That would be grossly untrue
and unfair. We are talking about 15 men a year (the Yale 1945 entering
class was 8,000). Not all those initiated became active. We are looking at 100 or
50 activists among 100,000 or so Yale graduates.

THE PHOENIX LETTER
Vol 2 No 12 February 1984

SECRECY OR PRIVACY?
Politica.l conspiracy demands secrecy.

The Order (aka Skull & Bones or Russell Trust) will #or comment on
our charges.

The Order will zoz reply to letters. Members will nor even admit membership

(Vice President Bush, a public official, will not admit or deny).

Now Scroll & Key (aka Kingsley Trust) has presented us with a useful start
point to attack the silence.

A tew months ago on January 29, 1985, Radley H. Daly, Treasurer of Kingsley
Trust, wrote that senior society secrecy was not secrecy but privacy. We reproduce
this lerrer overleaf.

Daly does nor disclaim concealment of information nor deny activities. Daly
merely makes a bland claim for privacy. It is this claim of a right ro privacy that
we want to explore.

Is THE ORDER SECRET?

et’s go back 100 years: to the 1871 commentary on Yale senior societies by

Lyman Bagg, FOUR YEARS AT YALE. The chapter on senior societies
is reproduced in Americak Secret Establishment. On pages 84-5 we find the
following:

... the senior societies are such peculiarly Yale institutions, that it will be
difficult for an outsider fully to appreciate their significance. Nothing like them
exists in other colleges; and Harvard is the only college where, under similar
conditions, they possibly could exist. In the first place, they are the only Yale
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societies whose transactions are really secret. Their members never even mention
their names, nor refer to them in any way, in the presence of anyone not of their
own number and, as they are all Seniors, there are no old members in the class
above them to tell tales out of school.

Bagg’s century-old observations are fully supported by subsequent ACTIONS.

A membership list for The Order — part of the Yale senior society system — is
not freely available. If any reader wants to test this assertion, the address for The

Order is:

Russell Trust Association
P (. Box 2138

Yale Station

New Haven, Conn 06520

Offer to pay Xeroxing costs and ask for:

CATALOGUE, Volume One: Living Members
CATALOGUE, Volume Two: Deceased Members
Volume One is 193 pages in length and Volume Two is 141 pages.

If any reader succeeds in obtaining a copy, we would appreciate the news. We
can then release for publication the copy we are now holding. We are presently
reluctant ro reproduce our copy in case it can be rraced to a source,

Daly, of Scroll & Key, claims (opposite) that membership lists were at one
time published in newspapers. This is partially true. Bt nothing more than bare
names of those initiated were ever published. All procedures and objectives are
carefully guarded and always have been.

In the past few decades secrecy has been extended even ro names — as Daly
admits. Daly states publication was “discontinued a few years back.” In facr, itis
almost a century since full lists were published to our knowledge, although we
have not thoroughly researched this point.

The reason for non-publication presented by Daly is lack of newsworthiness.
If it is newsworthiness alone, then why is it impossible to obrtain a current list of
members of Skull & Bones? Why is the caralogue treated as a state secret “For
eye only.”

We suggest the frue reason for concealment is the precise opposite, i.e., that
the list is indeed Aighly newsworthy. A quick scan of the 1983 list reveals an
extraordinary correlation between The Order and the “powers thar be” in the
United Stares.

Furthermore, we have begun to print evidence of collusion among members
for specific objectives. So we reject Radley Daly’s argument out of hand.
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KINCSLEY TRUST ASSOCIATION

YALE STATION NEW HAVEN
CONNECTICUT

January 29, 1985

Mr. Richard A, Landkamer

Dear Mr. Landkamer,

I am sorry to say that there are no more copies of the two volume
set "A History of Scroll and Key." When this was published in 1978, only
enough coples were printed to distribute to members of the society and
to members of the academic adminlstration at Yale. There is a set in
the Sterling Memorial Library which you are welcome to refer to. The
volume covering the first 100 years of the society was written by Professor
Maynard H. Mack. A companion volume covering recent history was written
by A, Bartlett Giamarti before he became president of Yale.

If you do visit the Sterling Memorial Library, you may wish to look
at various documents going back a hundred years or more in which the names
of the members of Yale's senlor socleties were routinely published at
the time of election. You'll find these lists in the New York Herald
Tribune, the New York Times, the New Haven newspapers, the Yale Daily
News, and in class yearbooks. Not only the names, but often the pictures
of the newly elected members were published openly, a practice that was
discontinued a few years back, presumably for lack of newsworthiness.

In reading through the materials you have sent me, 1 have a sense
that vou and your colleagues have somehow lost rha distinction between
secrecy and privacy. I would have supposed you to be supportive of the
concept of an individual's right to privacy.

Sincere

’«f/py/\///y
Radley H. Daly /
Treasurer

RHD/ps
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Privacy becomes unacceptable secrecy when the power and influence of fraternities
is used 10 harm society or individuals outside the fraternity.

We can cite The Brotherbood in England (See Phoenix Letter, May 1984, Vol.
3, No. 3). The KGB infiltrated the Freemasons and used the Masonic fraternal
preference structure to work their way to the top of British intelligence. The
KGB ended up in control of MI-6, thanks to Masonic “Privacy.” This, in spite of
the fact thar all British intelligence organizations refuse to recruic masons. (More
recently this ban has been extended to Scotland Yard police.)

We have every right — and a civic duty-to demand that the Yale senior societies
drop their protective shields and open up their records.

Even without the resources available to the FBI and Congress, we can print enough
to demonserate a prima facte case of illegal and possibly subversive actions.

FRATERNAL OBJECTIVES ARE THE KEY -

Conccalrncnt of fraternal objectives is the key. Privacy is only guaranteed and
acceprable in a free sociery if the privacy is used for legitimate ends.

Evidence is accumulating that Yale senior society power has been used for
illegitimare ends. In the Phoenix Letter for December 1984, January and Febru-
ary 1985 we demonstrated — with only preliminary evidence — that the Yale
senior socicty system has generated the architects of defeat in U.S. foreign policy.
We demonstrated that members act jointly and consistently to the disadvantage
of the Unired Stares.

Not only is membership concealed, but also objectives are concealed and
members are under vath not to discuss membership or objectives.

We can deduce objectives from the actions of these blood brothers. Joint
actions are the indicator and result of intentions. Joint actions are the proof
of intentions.

Consider again, for example, the case of “The Brotherhood” in England
as surfaced by Stephen Knight. The KGB infiltrated and manipulated British
freemasonry to control British intelligence organizadions. Yer British Freema-
sons claim a right to privacy. They are indeed entitled to privacy if their ends
are legitimate and if they take precautions against misuse of privacy. But in
England freemasonry was used for illegitimate ends. Privacy is used as a reason
to hide perverted, illegal, socially harmful actions torally unaccepeable in a free
sociery.

In three issues of the Phoenix Letter we outlined joint use of power in the
United Srates by members of Yale senior societies. These actions were to the
disadvantage of the United States. We have so far outlined only 8 events. In
fact, we have — even at this early stage — another 20 events ready to lay before
you, including control of the Manhattan Project, target selection in World War
Two, the Alger Hiss case, and a wide range of other situations.

Given the British case and these 28 events, we are entitled ro view Mr. Daly’s
claim for privacy with extreme skepticism.
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Not only can we demonstrate highly suspicious joint use of power, but also
we have a situation where members are supposed to deny membership, member-
ship lists are not published, and even Vice President Bush in writing will neither
confirm nor deny membership. The “Temple” is not open to outsiders.

And we are supposed to accept this in the name of privacy’

THE POWER OF APPOINTMENT

he secrer of The Order’s acquisition of power is the frarernal use of
appointment.

Any member who acquires a position of power uses this position to appoint
blood brothers. This preferential pattern of appointment starts on the Yale cam-
pus itself and has been the target of past Yale criticism. Priority in appointment
appears to be:

(1) Blood brothers in Skull & Bones (Russell Trust)

(2) Members of Scroll & Key (Kingsley Trust) and Wolfs Head (Phelps
Trust)

(3) Other Yale graduates— excepr that it is not enough ro be jusza Yale gradu-
ate. Under certain circumstances other Ivy League graduates or outsiders with
specific qualifications have priority over Yale graduates.

4) Other Ivy League Universities, especially Harvard, Princeton and

Johns Hopkins

(5) Families of (1) and (2) above

(6) Outsiders with specific qualifications

For example: President William Howard Taft (Club D. 76) appointed Franklin
MacVeagh (Club D. 60) as his Secretary of Treasury and Henry Lewis Stimson
(Club D. 86) as his Secretary of War.

In brief: Taft’s appointments were selected from category (1) above for two
senior cabiner posts.

But Taft appointed Theodore Marburg, German born, (6) above, as U.S.
Ambassador to Belgium. Why? In 1911 Marburg was the prime exponent of
the League of Nations idea and used the Belgian post to push this concept.
The League of Nations concept is an event we can trace to The Order and its
associates.

How THEY PLAN TO PERPETUATE POWER

f even greater significance is the way The Order has tried to instrutionalize
its power of appointment: to remove power from the electorate.
The selective appointment device has a weakness: sooner or later it may be
idenrified and public protest will neurralize the power.
Hence, we find attempts to lock iz the power of preferential appointment.
Consider these facts:
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* Cord Meyer was founder of United World Federalists. Cord Meyer is on the
Scroll & Key list.

* President Eisenhower's National Goals Commission had William . Bundy
(Club D. 137) as its director.

* The Hutchins-Luce Freedom of the Press Commission wanted to restrict the
power of the press to inform. Henry Luce was Club D, 118 and Robert Hurchins
was Phelps Trust,

These efforts came to a head with promotion of the “new Constitution.” Here’s
how perpetuation of power almost came about in the 1960-1970 period:

Robert Maynard Hurchins (Phelps Trust) was Associate Director of the Ford
Foundation, 1951-5. Ford Foundation established Fund for the Republicin 1954
and Hutchins became President. Fund for the Republic funded an outfit called
Center for the Study of Democratic Institutions.

In the mid to late 1960s the Center got to work on the “new Constitution”
and a member of The Order, McGeorge Bundy (Club D. 138), was President of
the supporting Ford Foundation.

The Center’s prime objective was to draft a “model Constitution for contem-
porary America.”

Some of the provisions of this “new Constitution” follow: (taken from The
Center Magazine, Volume 111, No. 3, September/October 1970)

* Power of the Presidency is modified and shifted to the Senate

* Senators have lferime tenure

* Senators appointed, not elected

* All enterprises regulated by a National Regulator

* The present Bill of Rights is cither omitted or carefully circumscribed

The final version of this dictatorial manifesto was published in Rexford G. Tugwell,
The Emerging Constitution (Harper & Rowe, 1974).

Current attempts to introduce the new “Constitution” through the back door
include:

« Creation of 10 Federal Regions, equal to the ten “new Scates”

* A call to expand the Presidential term to nine years

* They plan for a Constitutional Convention in 1987. George Bush (D. 146)
will be President of the Convention.

he vast majority of people look at events and activities as disconnected and

independent. For most people the effort to establish a “new constitution” in
1970 has no connection with, for example, President Taft’s cabinet appointments
in 1911 or the Hutchins-Luce Commission on Freedom-of the Press, or the other
28 major events we have identified.
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However, if one finds a common thread linking seemingly different events,
people and activities, the viewpoint changes. This generates a search for other
common links between the same people and events.

The common link or thread in 28 events (so far) is membership in Yale secret
societies: Russell Trust, Kingsley Trust and Phelps Trust. Control or manipula-
tion of these events and activities was in the hands of members of one or more
of these trusts.

It is this common thread, a binding link, that secrecy keeps from public view.
When you look at these events and activities from the viewpoint of secret fraternal
organizations, the perspective changes.

Privacy then becomes unacceptable secrecy. Privacy becomes a device for
manipulation of a free society. And if any reader doubts this can be done, please

read Stephen Knight's 7he Brotherbood (Granada Press, 1984).

CONCLUSIONS

1. Radley Daly, Treasurer of Scroll & Key, claims a right to privacy for Yale
senior societics.

2, We have introduced evidence that privacy has been used as a device to
conceal joinr activities to manipulate a free society,

3. Therefore the claim for privacy is rejected. Honest members of Yale senior
societies — and they exist — should demand publication of all practices, tradi-
tions and “secrets,”

THE LANDKAMER PROJECT

1. The nerwork expands slowly but quite surely. A structure has evolved in
which individuals work on specific projects in their own time at their own pace.
Research results are coordinated with Landkamer, who makes them available to
other interested parties.

2. Information is required on the following points:

(a) The Identity Church

(b) An alleged CIA operation entitled “Earl of Dysart”

(c) Names of Yale senior society members that have come up in connection
with the Kennedy assassination, the Warren Commission and the Rockefeller
Commission

NEWSNOTES
he Order And “Look Alikes”

Out of nowhere, in the last 12 months around the U.S., we find media
stories about alleged criminal groups called The Order.
The media has given major space to these groups, but none to The Order as
publicized in the Phoenix Letter.
Even more fascinating, we have received letters from prisoners in Federal Peniten-
tiaries inquiring about The Order. So far, Federal prisons in California, Kansas, Texas
and Alabama are represented in this unsolicited and unexpected prison mail,
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There is no connection between The QOrder as publicized so far in the media

and The Order described in the Phoenix Letter.

THE PHOENIX LETTER
Vol 7 No 3 May 1988

SECRET SOCIETIES S
‘ 7 ice President Bush is, as you know, a member of the super-secret

Yale Skull & Bones. The following is from Newsweek On

Campus (April 1988, page 17): “All references to Yale’s 156-
year-old Skull & Bones, which considers itself the ultimarte secret
society, are torn out of the card catalogs at the college library, and
magazine articles about the group have been ripped from bound
volumes. Those nosing around the Skull and Bones tomb may be
tollowed or even threatened.”

We can confirm the Newsweek reports of threats from our own sources. But
what Newsweek doesn’t know is thar this makes investigators all the more curious
and stubborn. Many seem to end up contacting us because we duplicated the Yale
Library files many years ago. We are happy to make this suppressed information
available to genuine researchers.

Personal note for Lee Atwood and Skull & Bones t/ugs, the files are duplicated,
scattered and far distant from Arizona and California. Note for Yale Library:
please reread the American Library Association regulations on suppressing
materials. Thank you.

THE PHOENIX LETTER
Vol 8 No 12 December 1989

SKULL AND BONES SOCIETY -
S udden flurry of articles on Skull and Bones in establishment media

... picking up from where this editor left off in Americas Secret
Establishment.

Louisville Courier-Journal (Magazine section Sunday, October 8, 1989) “The
Bonesmen’s Bond” with a subtitle “Presidents, Poets, Pundits and Pinkos have
sworn allegiance 1o Skull and Bones, Yale's rich and powerful secret society, and
the most exclusive college club of all. So what's all that Nazi stuff doing in the
clubhouse?” Written by Steven M.L. Aronson.

Aronson charges thata room in the Bones Temple is “a lictle Nazi shrine inside,
one room on the second floor has a bunch of swastikas, kind of an SS macho
Nazi iconography.”

Aronson forgets to mention that President Bush is (and his father was) in
Skull and Bones.
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Tony's NEWSLETTERS

The New Haven Advocate (New Haven is the home town of Yale and Skull
and Bones].

The front page article in the October 19, 1989 issue is headed: “Bones of
contention: skullduggery at Yale" by Howard Altman.

It’s an extraordinary story — the Skull and Bones Temple at Yale is sllegally
holding the skull of Apache Chief Geronimo ... stolen from the grave by Senator
Prescott Bush, father of President Bush, and other Bonesmen.

The Apaches want the skull back ... and under Connecticur law (Section 53-334
of Offenses Against Public Policy and Title 45-253 of the State Probate Law) the
holding of human remains is //legal.

New Haven lawyers, according to Altman, are reluctant to sue or press for a
civil or criminal complaint because of the power of Skull and Bones, to which
we say “wait a minute, this isn't Russia” ... the local prosecutor has a duty 1o
prosecute if the evidence is credible. After all we live under the rule of law and
that includes Presidents. If Mr. Bush is accessory to a criminal offense, apparently
compounded by satanism, he has to be brought to the bar of justice. In this case
George Herbart Walker Bush is apparently not implicated directly except that he
would have knowledge of illegal actions — which is indeed an offense.

[Other news sources please copy and give this charge some public expo-
sure.]

The Altman article also cites a book, a history of Skull and Bones written in
1933 entitled The Continuation of the History of Our Order for the Century Cel-
ebration. Compiled by EO. Marthieson. [Altman does not state that Matchieson
was a prominent Marxist and a link between the old line Communists of the
1930’s and the new progressives of the 1960%.]

If any reader can locate a copy of this book we will arrange for reprinting.

In any event:

(1) We now have clues thar President Bush may be tied to sazanic practices.
This was a segment included in our Americas Secret Establishment .
(2) We also have links between Skull and Bones and Naziism.

If you have read Trevor Ravenscroft Sword of Destiny ... you willimmediately appre-
ciate the significance. We suspect more informarion will surface in coming years.

141



FLESHING QUT SKULL & BONES — INVESTIGATIONS INTO AMERICA'S MOST POWERFUL SECRET SOCIETY

Yale Co-cds before 1969 |
cuartesy Manseripn sl Archives |
Yale University Lilvtary
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WHAT HATH WOMEN
WROUGHT?

KRIS MILLEGAN

Fepruary 2001

building that brought me to New Haven in the first place, “The
Jomb,” an expanded mausoleum, housing Yale’s oldest senior
secret society, The Order of Skull and Bones.

Out came a young, serious coed leaving the building into the cold afternoon
snowscape. That started me wondering, what hath the ladies wrought? What had
been the effect of allowing females into that venerable male bastion?

In 1991, the 15 outgoing members tapped 6 gals and 9 guys in early April as
their replacements. Retribution came fast, the locks were changed on the heavy
doors at High Street and board spokesman Reverend Sid Lovett (S&B 1950)
declared, “There was no election. There is no society [next year].”

The “disagreement” caused more mainstream ink about the secret group’s activi-
ties than ever before. There were stories in Trme, Newsweek and The Economist.
Even Peaple magazine ran a 2-page spread about the Bones tiff in May ‘91, while
Bonesman GHW Bush (S&B 48) sat in the Oval Office ... with no comment,

Walking around roday at Yale, one can see and feel a strong feminine pres-
ence. Yale has been coed since 1969, the year after George W Bush (S&B 1968)
graduated. By 1991 the undergrads were 45% female and a feeling on campus
was thart “gender ditferences between friends of different sexes is not a dominant
issue,” The Bones crowd was, as Yale was by 1991, a diverse group of races, creeds
and sexual orientation. Also the 7omé had become a bone of contention with
feminists and there had been a break-in by some derermined ladies, who ook

I : A-THUNK! THE SOUND BROUGHT MY ATTENTION to the very

pictures and spread rumers.
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The board had offered an carly compromise of separate his and hers secret
societies but that was rejected by the then seniors, who went ahead, “tapped” the
ladies and were locked-out of their High Street hideaway.

The “locked-outs™ vowed 1o continue and they were soon offered the use of
another senior society’s (Manuscripr) secret clubhouse. A then senior Bonesman
contended, “It makes sense to be co-ed because the world is co-ed.” One view
on the other side, a Patriarch DC lawyer, felt “the admission of women would
lead to ‘date rape’ in the ‘medium-term future.”™

A vote-by-mail by Bones members produced a narrow vote in favor of the
admitiance ol che co-eds. The old guard cried ftoul, hled charges that the mail
vore was against Bones by-laws and scurtled the Seprember "92 plans to initiate
the ladies. Finally in November a second vote was taken, with members having
to either appear in person or send a proxy by another Bonesman, at the Toméb
and another slim decision was made to admit the gals. The 2000 senior group,
outed by Rumpus, Yale's tabloid, included at least six women and maybe more.
The Rumpus printed two different lists and some names could be either male or
female, And it seems, judging from a list of Wolf Head’s members for the year
2001, that Wolf's Head, the last all-male senior secret society ar Yale, has also
gone co-ed.

What has been the effect? Do the women tapped for Bones follow the “old
guidelines” of captains of ball teams, a Yale Lit editor, maybe a radical (for excite-
ment?), some old-blood money with a few minorities tossed in now and then?
Is there a new sexual element? What abourt the sexual confession times? Is there
a hot time on High Street now? Has the “nude mud wrestling” in the basement
changed to “playtime in the dungeon?” Does the narrow vote show a polirical
change at stodgy Bones? Will Bones be taken-over by radical-Amazons? What
hath the women wrought?

“My senior year, I joined Skull and Bones, a secret society, so secret I can't say
anything more. It was a chance to make fourteen new friends.”

From the autobiography of George W Bush, A4 Charge 10 Keep.

*;’..ﬁfm

According to recent lists released by Yale’s tabloid Rumpus, women are definitely here to
stay at Bones. Women may actually revive some life and interest by students in the Order
which was taking a beating from undergrads for its males-only stand. According ro an
article in the Apnl 16, 1991, Hartford Courans: "My sense is that they get turned down
these days more often than they get accepred,” said Jacob Weisberg, a senior editor of the
New Republic, who declined 1o become a Bonesman in 1985 when asked. “There have
been years lately when their whole first string has turned them down.”

Jacob even rurned down a personal request from John Kerry to join Bones because “he felt
he could not join a club that excludes women.”
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SKULL & BONES

KRiS MILLEGAN

APPEARED [N HIGH TIMES, JANUARY 2000

€Cr I Viese secret societies are behind it all,” my father told me many years

ago, During the early 50s he was a CIA branch chief, head of the

East Asia intelligence analysis office. “The Vietnam War,” he said
soberly, “is about drugs.” Many years later I finally had some understanding of
what Dad was telling me. I wish 1 had asked more questions. Like, was he was
talking about the Order of Skull and Bones?

IT’S A SYMBOL USED BY PIRATES AND POISONS, burtit's also a “fraternity” ar Yale
University. College kids having fun? Not quite.

Fifteen juniors are tapped on a Thursday in May each year. Around 2,500 have been
members, mostly white males from wealthy Northeastern families: Bush, Ford, Goodyear,
Harriman, Heinz, Jay, Kellogg, Phelps, Pillsbury, Pinchot, Rockefeller, Taft, Vanderbilt,
Weyerhaeuser and Whitney are some of the names on its roster- Minorities were admitted
in the 1950s, and the first women were admitted in 1991.

The Order of Skull and Bones is a secret society founded at Yale by William Hun-
tington Russell (S&B 1833). His cousin Samuel Russell’s family enterprise, Russell
& Company, was the largest American opium smuggler, working with the Scorttish
firm Jardine-Matheson, the warld’s largest opium smuggler.

Many New England and Southern families in the “China Trade” sent their sons ro
Yale, and many were “tapped” into Skull and Bones. From Yale, “Bonesmen” entered
and were very influential in the worlds of commerce, communications, diplomacy,
education, espionage, finance, law and politics.

There have been two Skull and Bones presidents, at least 10 Senators, two Chief
Justices of the Supreme Court and many US Representatives and state governors.
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Bonesmen have held myriad lesser appointed posts and positions, with a particular
affinity for the Central Intelligence Agency. This year, a Bonesman — George W.
Bush (S&B 1968) is the leading contender for the presidency.

THE BusH BONESMEN -

EORGE W. BUSH IS THE THIRD GENERATION of Bush Bonesmen to

become prominent in national politics. His father, President George H.W.
Bush, joined S&B, in 1948, His grandfather, Prescott Bush (S&B, 1917) was a
senator from Connecticut, 1952-62, a partner in the Brown Brothers, Harriman
investment-banking firm, and a director for CBS, Pan Am and Prudential. He
was one of President Dwight Eisenhower's favorite golfing partners and a member
of Washington’s elite Alibi Club.

But there was more to Prescorr than mer the resume. He had served as a US Army
Intelligence liaison officer during World War L. Prescott’s boss, W. Averell Harriman
(S&B 1913) worked closely with fellow “Bonesman” Secretary of Defense Robert
Lovert (S&B 1918) to organize US intelligence activities in the early Cold War, They
created a framework to run covert operations and psychological warfare.

In 1954, H.S. Richardson, the maker of Vicks cough drops and Vapo-Rub, wrote in
a letter to Senartor Bush; “l want to get your advice and counsel on a subject — namely
what should be done with the income from a foundation, which my brothers and |
are setting up.”

Eugene Stetson (S&B 1934), an assistant manager at Brown Brothers, Harriman,
organized the H. Smith Richardson Foundation. It participated in MK-ULTRA, a secret
CIA domestic psychological-warfare operation, and helped to finance the testing of psy-
chotropic drugs, including LSD, at Bridgewater Hospital in Massachusetts in the '50s,

In the '80s, the Richardson Foundarion was a “private donors steering committee,”
working with the National Security Council to coordinate the Office of Public Diplomacy.
This was an effort to provide money and cover for arming the Nicaraguan Contra rebels,
and to coordinate published atracks on opponents of the program.

In 1962, Prescort founded the National Strategy Information Center, with his son,
Prescort Bush, Jr. and future CIA director William Casey, an investment banker and
vereran of the Office of Strategic Services (OSS), the CIAs predecessor, The center
laundered funds for the dissemination of ClA-authored “news stories” to some 300
newspapers.

Gordon Gray, another of Prescott’s golfing buddies, was Eisenhower’s national se-
curity adviser and first director of the Psychological Strategy Board in the early "50s.
Along with Averell Harriman and others, he created the modern wall of “deniability”
for US covert actions, such as the overthrow of leftist governments in Iran in 1953
and Guatemala in 1954. Gray's son C. Bowden Gray was President George Bush’s
White House counsel. As “protector of the president, come whar may,” he helped to
keep Bush “out of the loop” as George became embroiled in the evolving Iran-Contra
scandal. Iran-Contra, Watergate and other scandals have many of the same players
— the Cubans from the “secret war” against Fidel Castro.
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SKULL & BONES

WHAT DID YOou Do IN
THE SECRET WAR, DADDY? —

ENRY NEIL MALLON (S&B 1917), Prescorrt’s d.wsrnatc at Yale and Dresser

Industries chairman of the board, on April 10, 1953, wrote a letter to CIA
Director Allen Dulles about a proposed meeting at the Carlton Hotel. At this
meeting Mallon, Prescott Bush and Dulles discussed the use of drilling rigs in
the Caribbean. Dresser Industries had “often provided cover employment o
CIA operatives.”

In reaction to the Cuban Revolution in 1959, Vice President Richard Nixon and
the National Security Council formed a working group — the 5412 Commirttee.”
Members discussing “plausible deniability” and the option of assassinating Cuban lead-
ers decided to use a third-party “cut-out” for the operation, The “cut-out,” code-named
Operation 40, was mobster Santos Trafficante, who had plenty of reasons 1o want
Castro gone — and any actions could easily be laid at his doorstep. And with ground-
work already laid with the World War 1 mob/docks deal and subsequent black-market
activities in [raly, an informal financing arrangement between “intel,” the mob, assassins
and arms, and drug trafficking was made.

Zapara Off Shore. an offshore oil-drilling company headed by George Bush, provided
a convenient cover. CIA vererans from 1960s covert actions against Castro maintain
Zapata was used “as a front,” and “Zapata’s and their subsidiaries” offshore drilling
platforms were used in operations.” And according to former senior CIA Operations
Directorate officials, Bush was a paymaster for "contracted services.”

As liaison berween the CIA and the Pentagon during the 1961 Bay of Pigs invasion
of Cuba, Fletcher Prouty was put in charge of ordering supplies for the arack. “The
CIA had code-named the invasion ‘Zapata,” recalls Proury. “Two boats landed on
the shores of Cuba. One was named Houston, the other Barbara. They were Navy
ships that has been repainted with new names.” At the time George Bush was hiving
in Houston with his wife, Barbara.

In July, 1988, The Nation published a memo from FBI Director . Edgar Hoover,
stating that “Mr. George Bush of the Central Intelligence Agency™ was providing infor-
mation about State Department anxieties concerning the reaction of “some misguided
anti-Castro” Cubans to President John F. Kennedy's assassination.

Alter Nixon resigned as President, his staff revealed that his code name for the assassina-
tion of John Kennedy was that “Bay of Pigs thing.” One of the most important pieces of
evidence in the assassination, Abraham Zapruder’s film, was purchased by Time, Inc., and
locked in a vaule. Time, Inc. was founded by Henry Luce (S&B, 1920).

The Zapruder film got its first public screening after being subpoenaed by Judge
Jim Garrison, who tried to prove CIA involvement in the killing. Ellen Ray, who
now publishes Covert Action magazine, went to New Orleans to do a documentary
on Garrison. After receiving many death threats, she canceled the project, but nor
before she met Prescort Bush ar a private dinner arranged by a writer for the New
Yorker. At the dinner, Prescott tried to pump her for information abour Garrison’s
investigation.
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Numetous government and CIA employees say that under Bush's successor, Richard
Gow (S&B 1955), the US and other governments used drill rigs owned by Zapata Off
Shore and its subsidiary Rowan International for covert operations involving support
and logistics for arms and drug rrafhcking operations,

“A great many of the drug smugglers in Miami today are Bay of Pigs veterans,” a
Florida drug prosecutor said in 1986. “Thart's why they are so tough. They are intel-
ligence trained.”

In 1998 former Green Beret William Tyree filed a 363 million tederal lawsuit against
Bush, the CIA and others. His court documents allege that US milicary personnel were
used to assist arms and drug traffic. Tyree had started to become disenchanted with
this “official” mission and his wife, Elaine, who was warking for the Army Criminal
Investigation Division, started to keep diaries. She was found beheaded with a hunt-
ing knife. Tyree was charged with the murder.

The charges were dropped by Massachusetts Judge James Killiam. “I didn't believe
a word the prosecution’s chief witness said,” he said in a recent A&E special. The case
had been re-filed by the Middlesex County DA’ office. A young John Kerry (S&B
1966) was assistant DA at the time. [n the late "80s Kerry chaired a special Senate com-
mittee on drugs, law enforcement and foreign policy, which made much noise about
government-assisted drug-trafficking, but ook no action. Much in the committee’s
files is still “classified.”

One Army Intelligence and five Special Forces colonels associated with Tyree and
these operations have since died, some under mysterious circumstances, Several have
left amazing afhidavies that detail massive hard drug trafficking by government person-
nel under the aegis of “national security.” One of them, known as a “money man,” had
phone numbers for Bill Casey and a Gambino family crime boss in his address book.

The explosive lawsuit progresses slowly and nary a peep is heard from the media

BUT IT'S NOT THE FIRST TIME
ON OCTOBER 20, 1942, 10 months after Pearl Harbor, US government

ordered the seizure of “all the capital stock of the Union Banking
Corporation, a New York corporation,” by the Alien Property Custodian; the
order stared “all of which shares are held for the benefit of members of the Thyssen
family, [and] is property of nationals of a designared enemy country.”

It seems that Averell Harriman and Prescott Bush — along with corporate lawyer
John Foster Dulles and his brother Allen Dulles, spymaster for the CIA and the O8S
— and others were involved in the buildup of Nazi Germany, supplying the Third
Reich with capital and financial arrangements. This was kept quiet. Only a small
notice appeared in the New York Times-years later — on Dec. 16, 1944; “The Union
Banking Corporation, 39 Broadway, New York has received authority to change its

principal place of business to 120 Broadway.”

No mention was made of the fact that Union Banking Corporation had been
seized for trading with the enemy, or that 120 Broadway was the address of the
Alien Property Custodian.
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SKULL & BONES

ORIGINS OF THE ORDER o

HE ORDER OF SKULL AND BONES WAS FOUNDED IN 1832 by William

Huntington Russell and Alphonso Taft. Many historians claim it appeared
because Phi Beta Kappa, America’s oldest Greek-letter college society, had abandoned
secrecy.

Phi Beta Kappa was “founded with impressive ritual and high solemnity” on Thurs-
day, December 5, 1776, at William and Mary College, in Williamsburg, Virginia. The
chaprer at William and Mary was disbanded in 1781, making the Yale branch, which
was founded in November 1780, the oldest extant chaprer.

Phi Beta Kappa became an “open honorary organization” in 1832. In protest, ap-
parently, Russell, Yale valedictorian of 1833, influenced Taft and 13 others “to form
what is now perhaps the most famous secret society in the United States.”

From the very beginning there was resentment from fellow students. Faculty sent
warning letters to carly members’ parents. But the chapter persisted and flourished, and
by 1884 two other senior secret societies at Yale had been formed. Scroll and Key, and
Wolf’s Head. Also, Phi Beta Kappa was revived after disappearing in 1871.

On September 29, 1876, the Order of File and Claw broke into the “Tomb,” the
windowless Bones-owned and built meeting house, They wrote that they saw its walls
“adorned with pictures of the founders of Bones at Yale, and of the members of the
soctety in Germany, when the Chaprer was established here in 1832.”

In the cellar, they found a small room, with an “always-burning lamp” and “a
dilapidated human skull.” Upstairs, three rooms were found, a lodge room with its
walls covered in black velvet, a rable with skull and crossbones, and the “sanctum
sanctorum,” furnished in red velvet. The Order of File and Claw alsa reported an old
engraving thar, along with the decor, represented aspects of the Regent's degree in the
outlawed Bavarian [lluminari.

THE LINKS OF POWER . .
OR SOME UNDERSTANDING OF THE COMPLEX LINKS berween members of Skull
and Bones, consider the first Bonesman to become president, William Howard
Taft (S&B 1878). who is the only man to have been both president and chief justice
of the Supreme Court. His father, S&B cofounder Alphonso Taft, was appointed
secretary of war by President Ulysses Grant, and was later Attorney General.
William Howard Taft was appointed by President William McKinley to be the first
civil governar of the Philippines, displacing a disgruntled General Arthur MacArthur
— General Douglas MacArthur's father — who had been the military governor.
Theodore Roosevelt, who became president after the assassination of McKinley, ap-
pointed Taft secretary of war (1904-08). While secretary, he was the “master overseer
and troubleshooter” for the Panama Canal, provisional governor of Cuba, and played

a key role in foreign policy.

Taft was elected President in 1908, He was appointed chief justice of the Supreme
Courrt by President Warren Harding in 1921, and served undil just before his death
in 1930,

149



President Taft made Henry L, Stimson (S&B 1888) his secretary of war (1911-13).
Stimson was appointed to high government posts by seven presidents, He was governor
general of the Philippines (1926-1928), secretary of state under President Herbert
Hoover (1929-1933) and secretary of war under presidents Franklin Delano Roosevelt
and Harry S. Truman {1940-1946). He was ‘ultimately responsible” for the internment
of Japanese-Americans in World War 11, and oversaw the Manhattan Project, building
the atomic bomb. He also took credit for swaying Truman into dropping the bomb.

Stimson groomed a generation of “Cold Warriors,” in what was known as “Stimson’s
Kindergarten.” Among these proteges were General George C. Marshall, John ], Mc-
Cloy, Dean Acheson, and fellow Bonesmen Robert A. Lovert, William Bundy (S&B
1939) and his brother McGeorge Bundy (S&B 1940).

“These men helped establish a distinguished network connecting Wall Streer,
Washington, worthy foundations and proper clubs,” historian and Kennedy adviser
Arthur Schlesinger, Jr., wrote. “The New York and legal community was the heart of
the American Establishment. Its household deiries were Henry L. Stimson and Elihu
Root; its present leaders, Robert A, Lovert and John ]. McCloy; its front organiza-
tions, the Rockefeller, Ford and Carnegie foundations and the Council on Foreign
Relations.”

Harriman and the Bundy brothers, in their positions in the State Department,
Department of Defense, the CIA and as advisers to Presidents Kennedy and John-
son, exercised significant impact on the How of information and intelligence during
the Vietnam War. Harriman had busy careers in business and politics and led peace
negotiations with North Vietnam in 1968. William Bundy went on to be editor of
Foreign Affairs, the influential quarterly of the Council on Foreign Relations. Mec-
George Bundy became president of the Ford Foundarion.

THE FOX AND THE HENHOUSE

EORGE BUSH WAS APPOINTED BY PRESIDENT NIXON to the White House
Cabiner Committee on International Control in 1971, As vice president,
he was the highest US official involved in the War on Drugs, as chairman of
President Reagan’s cabiner-level working group and as director of the National
Narcotics Interdiction System.
Frances Mullen, Jr., former head of the Drug Enforcement Administration, called
Bush's efforts “an intellectual fraud” and “a liabiliry rather than an asset.” Soon after
these statements, Mullen resigned, and the resultant General Accounting Office report

was buried.

In July 1985, the suppressed GAQO paper reported that there were “no benefits from
the National Narcotics Border Interdiction System, directed by George Bush. In fact,
the overall effect was to encourage supply.”

Bonesmen have helped create a prohibition where plants and their by-products are
sold on the black market for precious-metal prices, using a corrupted “secret govern-
ment” for trafficking and propaganda. A cabal that uses an unconstitutional Drug
War for political, economic and social control.

¥
e
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BLACK MARKET BONES

DO THE ORIGINS OF THE OPIUM TRADE LEAD TO THE
MOST DANGEROUS SECRET SOCIETY IN AMERICA?

KRiS MILLEGAN

APPEARED IN HIGH TiMES, OCTORER 2000

MOTHERSHIPS SAIL up and down the coast. Fast, small craft

come out, load contraband and scoot back to shore day and
night. Corrupt officials take bribes to look the other way. The
smugglers live large, build yachts and send their kids to private schools.
Banks and fronts are set up to launder money, move “product” and
avoid scrutiny. Oodles and oodles of money are being made. The 1980s
in Miami? Nope, we're talking about the mid-1800s, when some of
America’s oldest fortunes were made in the Chinese opmm trade
“The finest and fastest vessels of their : :
size to be found in any sea, built by
the best naval architects in England,
Scotland and America. No cost is
spared in their equipment, their
crews large for rapid evolution, and
their caprains are the most skilled
and dashing sailors to be found.” So 2
wrote missionary John Johnstone in INRSENESS The Sao Russell 8
the 18505 as he traveled by opium clipper to his station along the China coast.
You see, by the mid-1830s the trade in opium was the largest commodity
market on the planet, And as Carl A. Trocki’s excellent book Opiwm, Empire and
the Global Economy (1999) points out:
The trade in such drugs results in monopoly which not only centralizes the drug
traffic, but also restructures the social and economic terrain in the process. Two
major effects are the creation of mass markets and the generation of enormous ...
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unprecedented, cash flows. [Which] results in the concentrated accumulation of
vast pools of wealth. [Which] have been among the primary foundations of global
capitalism and the modern nation-state itself. Indeed, it may be argued that the
entire rise of the West, from 1500 to 1900, depended on a series of drug trades.

Drug trades destabilized existing societies not merely because they destroyed
individual human beings but also, and perhaps more importantly [they| under-
cut the existing political economy of any state. They have created new forms of
capital; and they have redistributed wealth in radically new ways.

It is possible to suggest that mass consumption, as it exists in modern society,
began with drug addiction. And, beyond that, addiction = -
began with a drug-ascommodity. Something was neces-
sary to prime the pump, as it were, to initiate the cycles
of production, consumption and accumulation that we
identify with capitalism, Opium was the catalyst of the
consumer market, the money economy.

Opium created pools of capital and fed the institutions
that accumulated it: the banking and financial systems, the
surance systems and the transportation and information
infrastructures.

Oplum, Emping and the
Global Political Economy

]

One might say, “Who controls opium controls? .. ..

FAST SHIPS, DRUGS AND MONEY

When we sold the Heathen nations rum and opium in rolls,
And the Missionaries went along to save their sinful souls.
The Old Clipper Days

— Julian S. Cutler

he Portuguese, Dutch, French, British and others began trading in opium

soon after the first contact with China. Because the Chinese desired few
trade goods, the Western nations soon became short of silver to purchase tea, silk,
porcelain and other desired items. Fueled by both economic and imperialistic
motives, the opium trade grew from around 200 chests (16 tons) a year to 4,200
chests (336 tons) by 1820, with the majority imported from India and in the
hands of British traders. But the times were a'changing.

The upstart Americans introduced their famous clipper ships expressly for the
“China trade,” and in the 1830s the price of opium went down and shipments
of opium to China went up. Shipments in 1830 were four times what they had
been in 1820; by 1838, they'd more than doubled again. The opium clipper,
with its ability to sail against the monsoons, sometimes made three round-uip
journeys within one year, instead of taking up to two years 1o complete just one
journey there and back. Profits were huge, and there was a large flow of silver
being introduced from China into booming Western economies.
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Canton Factories, cirea 1823 J

In early 1837 there was a crash in the optum market, and the speculators’
losses reverberated around the world in a financial panic, in which cash became
scarce both in the US and Britain. Smuggler Robert B. Forbes lost his first opium
fortune in the “Panic of 1837," and returned to China for more. He had built

a house (now a museum) in Milton, Massachusetts (not far from where former
President George Bush was born). Forbes had a special ship built: the “Lintin,”
a “storeship” named after an anchorage where he spent many years warechous-
ing and selling contraband opium to Russell & Co. Chinese customers. Forbes
would tell Chinese officials and others that he didn't deal in opium. Bur he was
actually engaging in word games, and/or “transferring” the opium trade ro front
campanies.

Russell & Co. was the largest American opium smuggler, and the third largest in
the world, behind the Brirish Dent firm and the largest smuggler of all, the Scortish
merchants Jardine-Matheson. For many years Russell & Co and Jardine-Matheson
worked together and were known as the *Combination.” :
They virtually controlled the trade, manipulating market
forces towards maximizing profits.

Russell & Co. was started in 1824 by Samuel Rus-
sell of Middletown, Connecticut. In 1828 it "absorbed”
the T.H. Perkins opium concern of Boston and became
Americas dominant force in China. Russell & Co. was
very much a family affair, with uncles, cousins, brothers,
fathers and sons dominating the firm and its allied banks
and fronts.

The Russell family was steeped in Yale College history. The Rev. Nodiah Russell
was a Yale founder. And in 1832, General William Huntingron Russell, Samuel
Russell’s cousin, founded one of the US' most famous secret societies: the Order
of Skull and Bones, along with Alphonso Taft. Taft’s son, tuture President William
Howard Taft (S&B 1878), would play many roles in the creation of international
narcotics controls and the US Drug War.

1

A S5 ]
= Thomas H. Perkins

153



FIESHING OUT SKULL & BONES — INVESTIGATIONS INTO AMERICA'S MOST POWERFUL SECRET SOCIFTY

‘Russe]] & Co. shups Levane and Milo .mcﬁarcd off the Chinese
1sland of Linton, an opium smuggling transhipment base.

THE OrPIiUM WARS

“l had not come to China for health or pleasure, and thar |
should remain at my post as long as I could sell a yard of cloth
or buy a pound of tea.”

—R.B. Forbes to Captain C. Elliot, British Superintendent of
Trade, in refusing to leave Canton during the first Opium War.

ELATIONS BETWEEN THE WEST AND CHINA had always been strained.

The Chinese emperor would only receive Western ambassadors as if they
were tribute-bearing vassals, and in the highly structured social caste of China,
merchants were not worthy of respect, let alone discourse at an official level, For
many years dealings with Westerners were delegated to a few “Hong” merchants,
who paid for the privilege and had o vouchsafe the foreigners’ commercial
dealings. The term “pidgin” English came from the Hong merchant pronunciation
of the word “business” in the trade dialect of English that was used to conduct
affairs with the “white devils.”

Chinese High Commissioner Lin Tse-hsu came
to Canton in 1839 with an order to “investigate the
port affairs.” The first edict against opium had come
in 1729; another against smoking came in 1796,
The trade had grown to 40,000 chests by 1838.
Smoking, a novel, more soporific and addictive
manner Of U.Sil'lg Opim'n, p]us th(’ Cﬂcol]mgfnlt‘nt
of the trade by the British and others, had devastated
all segments of Chinese sociery. Corruption, smug-
gling and smoking were rampant, creating apathy,
and the trade was also draining China's treasury.

§ Commussioner Lin
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Lin couldn’t believe that opium was legal in Britain, and wrote a letter 1o
Queen Vicroria to implore her aid in stopping the trade. He disrupted the lo-
cal merchants and published new edicts against the use and importation of the
drug. Lin demanded thart all chests of opium be forfeited as contraband, and all
wading houses sign a bond, pledging to smuggle no more and becoming liable
to Chinese law, which included the death penalty. Through threats, a servant
walkout, giant gongs that were rung all night and other measures, he was able
to collect over 20,000 chests of opium (about half of that year's Indian trade).
Then, under orders from the emperor, he destroyed it all.

I'his sparked the first Opium War, made huge profits for those companies
that had held on to chests, and left Russell & Company the only trading firm
left open in Canton.

During that first Opium War, the chief of operations
tor Russell & Co. in Canton was Warren Delano, Jr.,
grandfather of Franklin |
Roosevelt. He was also the
US vice-consul and once |
wrote home, “The High P ..
officers of the [Chinese] Government have not only
@ connived at the trade, but the Governor and other
officers of the province have bought the drug and
have taken it from the stationed ships in their own
Government boats,” W Ping-chen, or Howqua 11,
the leading “hong” merchant, was considered by

some to be one of the world’s richest men, worth
over $26 million in 1833.

SERIOUS BUSINESS

“If the trade is ever legalized, it will cease to be profitable jmm that time.
The more difficulties thar artend it, the better for you and us.
— Directors of Jardine-Matheson

Tll!: PROFITS WERE HUGE and many fortunes were made. Warren Delano
went home with one, lost it and went back to China to get more. Russell &
Co. partners included John Cleve Green, a banker and railroad
investor who made large donations to and was a trustee for
Princeton; A. Abiel Low, a shipbuilder, merchant and railroad
owner who backed Columbia University; and merchants
Augustine Heard and Joseph Coolidge. Coolidge’s son
organized the United Fruit Company, and his grandson,
Archibald C. Coolidge, was a cofounder of the Council
on Foreign Relatons. Partner John M. Forbes "dominated
the management” of the Chicago, Burlington and Quincey

A, Heard
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railroad, with Charles Perkins as president. Other partners and captains included
Joseph Taylor Gilman, William Henry King, John Alsop Griswold, Caprain
Lovett and Captain ]. Prescott. Captain Prescott called on ET. Bush, Esq., his
friend and agent in Hong Kong frequently. Russell & Co. families, relations and
friends are well represented in thc Ordtr of Skull and Bones.

After the first Opium War, the port of Shanghai was opened up, with Russell
& Co. as one of it first foreign merchants. In 1841, Russell brought the first
steam ship to Chinese waters and continued 1o develop transportation routes as
long as opium made them profitable. Russell partners were also involved in early
railroad ventures in China, together with US railroad magnate E.H. Harriman,
whose sons later became very active in Skull and Bones.

The second Opium War led o the legalization of opium in China in 1858,
and the “country traders” began to lose thcir control of the business. They were
just smugglers warchousing the “product” oftshore and plying up and down the
coast delivering opium to Chinese “compradors.” Once opium was legalized,
Chinese and Indian merchants started to take over the trade. Russell and others,
with their limired role as smugglers, hadn't developed any structure to sell opium
in inner China. The Chinese brokers could now just order opium just like any
commuodity, and the trade was transferred to firms with strong ties at the produc-
ing base, Imh.t and the ¢ consuming giant, C *hina.
|  The old Western trading firms set up
banks, transferred assets to other schemes
and tried to capitalize on their “China trade”
experience, but none of these ventures had
quite the same level of profitability. Russell
& Co. formed the Shanghai Steam Naviga-
tion Company, buc in 1877 sold it to the
China Merchant’s Steam Navigarion Com-
Russcll & Co. Shanghai, 1867 pany, and the American share of Chinese
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shipping dropped by 80%. Some sources say Russell failed
in 1891, with British and German firms taken over their
business, According to others, the company’s successor in
Shanghai was Shewan 8 Tomes.

In 1856, Daniel C. Gilman (S&B 1852), a Russell & Co,
partner relation, incorporated the Order of Skull & Bones
as the Russell Trust Association, with General W.H. Russell

s its president. i
as i P['tUd 1L D.C. Gilman

THE MODERN WORLD: PROHIBITION, SMUGGLERS AND SPIES

The money from the drugs, produced the money for the guns, and that is
how the operation worked, and Bush knew the whole god-damn thing.
—CIA operative Trenton Parker, in Rodney Stich’s Defrauding America

IR()NI('.AI.I,Y. THE SCIONS of these 19th-century opium fortunes would go on
to play key roles in the Drug Wars of the 20th century: in both the enactment
of drug prohibition and in the clandestine arrangements between smugglers and
government spies.

In 1898, the Spanish-American War signaled rhe Unirted Stares” debur as a global
imperial power. American troops invaded Manila, and three years later, after a bruzal
guerrilla war, the Philippines became a colony of the US. President Theodore Roos-
evelt appointed Bonesman William Howard Taft to serve as the first civil governor
of the islands. (Patriarch Bonesman Henry Stimson (S&B 1888) plus some Russell
& Co. relations, later held that post.) Taft stayed on in the Philippines until 1904,
even turning down a much-desired appointment to the US Supreme Court.

"IN THE PHILIPPINES™,
Becratary Tafl grestingd
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In 1903 the Philippines became the first §
modern nation in Asia to declare opium il-
legal. Soon there was a black market, and
smuggling again began developing into a
major force. Taft succeeded Roosevelr as
President in 1909, and actively promoted
federal legislation and international conven-
tions to outlaw and “control” certain drugs.
These international treaties helped to break
down judicial reluctance, and brought claims
of the extraconstitutional force of interna-
tional treaty obligations into the enabling &
of US drug laws — thus creating a profitable prohibition.

And entangled in many of the recent nexuses of smugglers and spies is George
H.W. Bush (S&B 1948), one of scores of men from old-money families who
wound up playing a prominent role in the covert-action realms of US foreign
policy.

We have been told thar the CIA agent George Bush who J. Edgar Hoover men-
tioned in a FBI memo concerning the John F. Kennedy assassination and Cubans
was not THE George Bush. We have been told that Bush, then Vice President,
was “out of the loop” for the Iran-Contra scandal of the 1980s, in which the US
government either looked the other way or actively aided the Nicaraguan rebels’
cocaine trafhcking. Some of this we know to be lies.

Spooks, smugglers, and secrets seem to converge in a netherworld rapidly
being exposed by researchers fueled by the Internet’s capabilities of networking,
discussion and informational exchange. Former federal prosecutors, journalists,
authors, professors, researchers and others tracing the drug trade from many dif-
ferent directions all seem to end up with certain groups of high-level operarives
being involved with this illicit trade in both drugs and arms. And many leads
seem to point to George H.W. Bush and friends as the “elite deviants” involved
in these schemes. “Many of the scandals that have EEE
occurred in the US since 1963 are fundamentally i
interrelated,” sociologist David Simon wrote in 3
Elite Deviance. “That is, the same people and |
institutions have been involved.”

The mainstream media ignores it all, even the
most recent startling revelations in Volume I of
CIA Inspector General Frederick Hitz's report on
“Allegations of Connections Between CIA and
the Contras in Cocaine Trafficking to the United
States.” The Vol. Il Hitz report depicts in no
uncertain terms involvement in drug smuggling
by US intelligence contract agenes and their assets

Wrapper of legal tpium packet, circa 9[0

|

President George HW Bush
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in Central America in the ‘80s, especially Lt. Col. Oliver North and other folks
with strong contacts with George H.W. Bush.

“And "Poppy” Bush also has kept alive the tradition
of fast boarts and smugglers. There was his friend Don
Amow, the “cigarette boat” builder/mob smuggler who
was shot and died slumped over his steering wheel.

As did another intelligence-connected drug-smug-
gler, Barry Seal, who, according to researcher Daniel -
Hopsicker, died in a hail of bullets with Bush’s private \ -

phone number in his wallet.” v Bty Seal |

With the current opiate epidemic closely mimicking the classic nation-
destabilization/fortune-building imperialistic opium policy used against China
in the 1800s, many drug-trade researchers question just what is going on where
the higher echelons of the drug rrade meer the secrer branches of government.

Is the “official” prohibition one of collusion for political control, social engi-
neering and the huge profits derived from illicit goods? Is all the heroin on the
street there just because there exists a market full of desirous buyers? Or is a “secret
government” using intelligence and military operatives in a massive drugging of
our nation? Who runs it and where does the money go? Is it “government-sanc-
tioned,” under some twisted “national security” mantle?

Heroin is at an all-time high in purity, and ac bargain-basement prices in a black
market with younger and younger customers. It has gone from being less than
10% pure and scarce outside big-city ghettos to almost 70% pure and available
nationwide, while the unaddictive marijuana has increased tfrom $10 to $400
an ounce and has gotten somewhat harder o obrain.

Is this by chance?
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FLESHING

January 22, 1963, Mexico City — Only extant photo of CIA assassmation squad Operation 40. Barry
Seal, third from left. Felix Rodngues, front left. William Houston Seyvmour, front rnight. To Seymour’s
letr, hiding tus face, 15 Frank Sturgis.
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THE WAR OF ‘82

DANIEL HOPSICKER
FROM BARRY AND ‘THE BOYS' — THE CIA, THE MOB AND AMERICA'S SECRET HISTORY

HE MOST TALKED-ABOUT EVENT in Barry

Seal’s much-talked about life concerns the

persistent rumor, around since shortly
after his assassination, that he had been murdered
when he threatened to make use of a videotape B2
of a Drug Enforcement Agency (DEA) cocaine
sting which had netted George Bush’s two sons,
Jeb and George W.

Rumors are just that — rumors — still, when some-
thing has been whispered about for as long as chis has,
its very persistence becomes a story in itself. And this one
has all the makings of a major box othce thriller ...,

Governor and Presidential contender George W. Bush .md his brmhcr F lm-
ida’s Governor Jeb Bush, allegedly caught on videotape in 1985 picking up kilos
of cocaine at a Florida airport in a DEA sting set up by a vengetul Barry Seal.

Seal was said to have been angry over what he considered Vice President George
Bush’s shabby treatment of him. In the deal the two had cut, Seal felt, Bush was
to take care of his (Seal’s) legal difficulties; in exchange, Seal had gone to wark
for Bush and North at Mena, Arkansas.

Now he felt double-crossed by Bush, so the story goes; his reaction had been
1o use his DEA cover to set up a sting that ended up netting two very red-faced

Bush boys.
Seal then stepped in and ‘took care’ of things. The Bushies were now supposedly
in his debr. Plus he hung on to the videotape shot of the sting for insurance.
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In retaliation, Seal was very publicly executed for his impudence less than a
year later. When caught, members of the hit team all tell their lawyers that once
they gor to the US their actions had been directed by a milirary officer whom
they all very quickly figured out to be National Securiry Council (NSC) staffer
L. Colonel Oliver North.

Where are the tapes? What evidence was there for this story?

The evidence, if it existed. would have been in the three boxes of documents,
audio and videotape that Seal had his employees move with him where-ever he went,
and that were confiscated by the FBI Special Agent in Charge of the Baton Rouge
office who showed up on the scene less than ten minutes after Seal'’s slaying.

Whartever Seal was carrying around with him when he died was so hot that,
to get it, the FBI broke the law and violated both the rules of evidence and the
US Constitution in their haste to recover Seal’s hles.

Was this why Barry Seal died?

Our investigation into persistent reports that there exists an incriminating
videotape of Republican George W. Bush caught in an aborted (by Seal) DEA
cocaine sting was unable to turn up anything to prove the allegarion.

Burt what the search did uncover was almost equally shocking,

We discovered, first, that the plane from Seal's smuggling fleet suspected of being
flown in the alleged incident had somehow, after Seal’s death, ended up in the possession
of the person who had supposedly been caughr flying it in 1985, George W. Bush.

It was his favorite plane.

Small world? Or just coincidence?

We know what Bogie would have said ...

“Of all the planes in all the world, he had to fly in mine."

An even bigger shock awaited. The FAA ownership records of the turboprop
King Air 200, which was part of Barry Seal’s smuggling fleet of aircraft, and
which was supposedly caught on tpe in the sting, led directly to some of the
major perpetratars of the financial frauds of the 1980, Iran Contra, and the
Savings and Loan Scandal.

Intrigue swirled around the successive owners of this particular Beech King
Air 200 ... intrigue of a characteristically spooky kind.

The plane, in just the five years between Seal and the State of Texas Motor
Pool, where it was Bush’s favorite, had been involved with owners who found it
necessary to make the papers on a regular and unflattering basis ...

The intrigue includes Greek shippers paying bribes to obrain loans from
American companies which would never be repaid ...

An American executive snatching the charred remains of a payoff check from
an ashtray in an Athens restaurant . ...

Swiss police finding bank accounts used for kickbacks and bribes ... .

In trying to explain to ourselves how this plane went from being part of Barry
Seal’s smuggling fleet to becoming, according to Texas officials, a favorite airplane
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of Texan Governor George W. Bush, we had stumbled onto hard documentary
evidence of Barry Seal’s CIA involvement.

It was a major find. The FAA records confirm thar Seal, with whom the CIA
has (natch) consistently denied any relationship, piloted and controlled airplanes
owned by the same Phoenix, Arizona, company, Greycas, which owned the ma-
jority interest in CIA proprietary airline, Southern Air Transport.

“Barry had a lot more to do with Southern Air Transport than has ever come
out,” we had been told by numerous sources.

Thanks to trying to track down an unsubstantiated rumor about those wast-
rel Bush boys, we had clear evidentiary proof that the biggest drug smuggler in
American history Hew CIA planes.

It had started with a lead into the history of the aircraft (a 1982 Beechcraft
King Air 200 with FAA registration number N6308F - Serial Number BB-1014)
found in records kept by Barry Seal's widow Debbie.

Through these files, and other “hard paper” records left by Seal after his as-
sassination including leasing agreements, insurance policies and maintenance
records we discovered a deliberately confusing paper trail of convoluted owner-
ship exactly like those unmasked in the Iran Contra hearings and leading to the
most interesting places.

Unraveling the King Air’s tangled and colorful history first requires a look at
the year the plane came into service ... 1982 was a momentous year. The plane was
spanking-new. And President Reagan had just introduced "Project Democracy,”
which he called a “crusade for freedom.”

It became, instead, a license to steal.

Here's how it started ... .

The detonations rumbled along the rocky course of the Rio Negro in Nicaragua
throughour the nighr of March 14,1982.

Concrete bridges groaned under their own weight, and came crashing in ava-
lanches of dust in a dark landscape seen through night-vision goggles. In certain
quarters of Washington. D.C, it was time to uncork the champagne.

War was breaking out in Central America.

Two days later, Barry Seal ook possession of the first of many planes supplied to
him through CIA Director Bill Casey's “off-the-books” Enterprise, a King Air 200.

By March of 1982, more than 100 U.S. advisers were in Honduras. The chief
of the Honduran Army, Barry’s pal General Alvarez, said that his country would
agree to U.S. intervention in Central America, if it were — but of course! — the
only way to “preserve peace.”

Some Generals will say anything to make a buck.

“Up 1o March 1982 you could still change your policy,” recalled a member
of the NSC later. “The issue was still the question of support for El Salvador's
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rebels, 1f that ended, so could pressure on Managua. But once the first forces of
Nicaraguan exiles were trained and set in motion, any real negotiating became
much harder. The blowing of the bridges was an announcement.”

Democrats, fearing that Reagan was pushing the US into another Vietnam-
style quagmire throughout carly 1982 tried to cut off aid ro the contras. And at
precisely this time — at the height of CIA Director Bill Casey's frenetic efforts
to ward off these Congressional efforts — Barry Seal acquired two brand new
multi-million dollar Beech Craft King Air 200's.

The ownership of the planes was deliberately obscured through convolured
transactions involving Phoenix-based corporations which we were “frones” for
Phoenix-based General John Singlaub’s “Enrerprise.”

In carly 1982 Singlaub had organized an American chapter of the World Anti-
Communist League (WACL), with a loan from Taiwan. Seal’s King Air 200’
came from sources close to these efforts.

Jack Singlaub has a long history of involvement in covert operations, beginning
with the World War II Office of Strategic Services (OSS). He served as CIA desk
ofhcer for China in 1949 — yet another China hand — and deputy station chief
in South Korea during the Korean War, During Vietnam he commanded the
Special Operations Group Military Assistance Command, Vietnam—Studies and
Observation Group, deeply involved in the CIAsS Operation Phoenix assassination
program.

Seal and Singlaub’s covert efforts in 1982 were made necessary by the CIAS
recent history. It had been forced, after the shocking scandals of the 1970%, 1o
make drastic reductions in “ofhicial” CIA capabilities in the Carter years.

Undl then, the CIA had controlled a huge nerwork of planes, pilots and
companies for use in paramilitary situations. But after the public revulsion at
disclosures of out-of-control CIA covert operations, many of these assets, like
the infamous Air America, were dissolved or sold off.

The Contra war put everything back into high gear; the Reagan Adminis-
tration sought to expand covert paramilitary operations in Central America
and elsewhere.

So the CIA and the Army jointly agreed to set up a special aviation operation
called * Seaspray,” New York Times reporter Seymour Hersh revealed in 1987. And
the Agency rebuilt its capabilities illegally, relying on asses like Barry Seal.

This is old news to local and state police in arcas, like Mena, affected by these
extra-constitutional government operations. They more than most had seen the
cynical manipulation of this operation ro flood America with a river of drugs.

When law enforcement authorities debriefed convicted "drug smuggler” Seal
in late 1985, one of the cops present brusquely began by stating, “We already
know abour Seaspray.”

The spring of 1982 was an extraordinarily busy time. The boys were getting
ready to go to war ...
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* CIA agent Dewey Clarridge put a proposition to Contra leader Eden Pastora,
“He would become the star of the second revolution as he had been the star
of the first.”

* John Hull, whom Congressional sources said worked for the CIA since at least the
carly 1970s, rented a contra safe house in San Jose, Coast Rica at CIA request.

* Rerired Air Force General Richard Secord began managing an operation in
which Israel shipped weapons captured in Lebanon to a CIA arms depot in San
Antonio, Texas, for re-shipment to the contras.

* Felix Rodriguez drew on his Vietnam experience and wrote a proposal for the
creation of an elite mobile strike force thar would be “ideal for the pacification
etforts in El Salvador and Guatemala.”

* Medellin Cartel money man Ramon Milian Rodriguez began to launder, at
Felix Rodriguez request, $10 million from the cartel for the Contras. In secret
testimony to a Senate committee he claimed he was solicited by ‘old friend’
Felix.

* Artorney General William French Smith signs a memorandum of understanding

that gives the CIA carte blanche to ignore drug operatives working in the Contra

movement. French's memo is widely considered the ‘smoking gun’ proving
intent on the part of the CIA in the cocaine epidemic that coincided with the

Contra war.

And Barry Seal moves his base of operations from Louisiana to an obscure

airport in the secluded mountains of western Arkansas to hook up with the CIA,

which is anxious to use Seal’s feet of planes to ferry supplies to Contra camps
in Honduras and Costa Rica.

Between March and December 1982, according to law enforcement records
and Seal’s own archives, Barry fitted nine of his aircraft with the latest electronic
equipment, paying the $750,000 bill in cash...reminding us of an old Saturday Night
Live gag about Chico Esquela, a clueless Latin ballpayer, changed only slightly:

“Nartional security been berry berry good ro me.”

Early in 1982 a new cover unit of the Armed Forces was also set up. Known as
the Intelligence Support Activity (ISA), it became a separate entity in the Army’s
secret world of special operations, with its own commander, Col. Jerry King. The
secret operation ferried undercaver Army operatives to Honduras where they
trained Honduran troops for bloody hit-and-run operations into Nicaragua,

The Army went to outside businessmen and arms dealers to make off-the-
books airplane purchases, with funds that had been “laundered” through secret
Army finance offices at Fort Meade.

$325 million was appropriated for this Special Operations Division of the
Army berween 1981 and the autumn of 1983.

Through private front companies like the ones which supplied Barry Seal with
his fleet of smuggling aircraft, Operations Seaspray and Yellow Fruit ferried weapons
like rapid-fire cannons to CIA operatives busily mining Nicaragua’s harbors.
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All of this was in violation of Congressional legislation barring the Defense
Department and the Agency from any action aimed at overthrowing the Sand-
inistas.

More importandy, they ignored the manifest wishes of the American people,
who strongly rejected war with puny Nicaragua. According to a 1987 New York
Times report by Seymour Hersh, had these operations become public, they would
almost certainly have caused enormous damage to the Reagan Administration,

But that's why God made Special Forces...or so, at least, goes the rationale.
Whatever the reason for the Cenrral American war, Seal's drug enterprise grew
to become a truly formidable ‘funding engine.’

Vast fortunes were made, covertly, during the 1980’...and these arc some of
the people who made them, giving them a ‘leg up’ in achieving the coveted
distinction of being ‘global oligarchs.’

Seal’s planes flew from Mena to airstrips in the mountains of Colombia and
Venezuela, After making a refueling stop in Panama or Honduras, they would
return to Mena. En route, the planes would drop parachute-equipped duffel bags
loaded with cocaine over Seal-controlled farms in Louisiana... .

“His well-connected and officially-protected smuggling operation based at Mena
accounted for billions in drugs and arms from 1982 until his murder four years
later,” said Dr. Roger Morris and Sally Denton in Partrers in Power.

They reported that coded records of the Pentagon’s Defense Intelligence Agency
(DIA) showed Barry Seal on the payroll beginning in 1982.

The effects of the Barry Seal-directed efforts ro take weapons one way and
bring drugs the other soon began to become visible, in ruined lives in the U.S.
and maimed bodies in Central America.

“My investigation established a conspiratorial period, chronologically, with a
first overt act and a last overt act. The first overt act was April 12, 1982,” stated
Arkansas state criminal investigator Russell Welch.

Of course, Seal’s operation was not alone. When private planes began to bomb
the Nicaraguan capital, resulting in the crash of a Cessna 404 at the Managua air-
port, an account of how three Cessna’s were secretly transferred from the New York
Air National Guard 1o Central America for the raid on Managua leaked our.

Custody of a number of planes moved from the U.S. Air Force to a top-secret
Joint Chiefs operation code-named “ Elephant Herd,” and then on to the CIA,
through a Delaware company where they were first armed and then transferred
to the Contras.

This company, Summit Aviation, was doing business with Barry Seal, proved by
records in his widow's possession. According to congressional sources, Summit did
“contract” work for the CIA, had former CIA personnel on the payroll, and had
been linked through ownership records to the Cessna that crashed while bombing
Managua,

And the downed Cessna’s ownership records were equally as convoluted as were
Barry Seal’s King Air’s, The ‘fake paper’ desk was doing a crackerjack job... .
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The Cessna was purchased by Summit in October 1982 from Trager Aviation
Center in Lima, Ohio. They covered their tracks on the same day, selling it to In-
vestair Leasing Corp. of Mclean, Va. Investair, which had an unlisted telephone num-
ber, and also did contract work for the CIA, according to congressional sources.

The deal was “pur together” by Patrick . Foley, Summirt’s “military director,” a
Seal associate whose name and number are in Barry's files.

In addition to work for Investair, Summit maintained and modified planes for
Armairco, another company involved in covert Government projects. Armairco,
organized in 1982, also bought several multimillion-dollar Beecheraft King Airs
like Seal’s, purchased directly from Beech in a procedure used only for military
projects, according to Beech officials and aviation experts.

They were all, in other words, mil-spec planes.

When asked whether Armairco’s government work included acrivities in Central
America, an Armairco official said, “"That may well be."

The convoluted paper history of the airplane which once belonged to Barry
Seal, and which was until recently the favorite plane of Gearge W. Bush, begins
when the title to the new aircraft was first recorded by Portland, Oregon, dealer
Flighteraft, Ing, in early 1982.

Flighteraft's President, David Hinson, a former military and commercial airline
pilor active in the Republican Party in Oregon, at the time was, according to 7he
Oregonian, under consideration to head the FAA. The paper stated Hinson met
with Transportation Secretary Elizabeth Dole to express interest in the job, even
travelling to Washington to promote himself for the post,

Helping Bill Casey subvert the will of Congress and the American people pre-
sumably did nothing to hurt his chances ....

The King Air, N6308F, was spoken for even before it arrived at Flighteraft's
facilities ... FAA records show a defunct Lake Arrowhead, California firm entered
into leasing agreements with developer Eugene Glick in February of 1982, two
months before the manufacturer’s title was transferred ro Flighteraft.

On paper the plane was ‘owned” by a Greyhound Bus Lines subsidiary, Grey-
cas, which in turn leased it to a mysterious Phoenix firm close to John Singlaub’s
Enterprise operations named Systems Marketing, Inc.

AP reporter Bryson Hull reported to us recently thar some digging had revealed
that Systems Marketing was a wholly-owned subsidiary of yet-another company,
called... Military Electronics,

Can you say “lran Contra?" (We knew thar you could.)

Military Electronics, through its curourt, Systems Marketing, then leased the
plane to Continental Desert Properties, a firm owned by Gene Glick ...

In the final step, Glick turned the plane over to Barry Seal. Insurance policies
found in Seal’s private papers confirm that he signed for an insurance policy on the
aircraft.

What was the purpose of this convoluted ownership? What was it designed ro
conceal?
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The answer lies in the very definition of “tradecraft,” a term for what it is thar
spies and covert operators de: operate in the dark. The ‘front’ companies were in
place ro act as “cut-outs,” layers of insularion, berween the spy agency, in this case
Bill Casey’s CIA, and the covert operative, in this case, Barry Seal.

Gene Glick lived in the exclusive Hope Ranch, very near Ronald Reagan’s
Rancho Del Cielo Ranch in Santa Barbara, California, He leased nor just this
bur several other Barry Seal’s planes and helicopters as well, during the time Seal
was most active in drug and weapons smuggling.

Other documents we uncovered revealed rthar Glick was also actively helping
Seal purchase ocean-going vessels, for use in drug smuggling activities, and as
stationary platforms for the CIA to use off the coast of Nicaragua.

FBI agent Del Hahn, who had dismissed Glick's importance to us, had instead
fueled our suspicions.

“He's just a money launderer,” said Hahn, Special Agentin Charge ot an Inter-
Agency Organized Crime Drug Task Force looking into Barry Seal’s organization
in the mid-'80s.

Not guete, Delbert ..., He was a eut-out.

The circle was completed when we discovered that the Beech King Air, as
well as several others used by Barry Seal, had been in reality owned all the time
... by the CIA, through the company revealed in 1998 bankruptcy proceedings
to have owned Southern Air Transport (SAT). Southern Air was owned by an
entity called Finova, which was disclosed when no one was looking when SAT
went into bankruprey in 1998,

Southern Air is a legendary CIA proprietary — second only to Air America— con-
nected to Secord, Singlaub, Rodriguez, Casey and Vice President George Bush.

The company thar supposedly ‘owned’ Barry Seal’s King Air’s is an Agency
front, set up in Arizona and headquartered in Canada ro escape American financial
disclosure requirements,

Among its dubious achievements Southern Air owned the C123 used by Seal
in the Nicaragua sting operation; the same aircraft thar was later shot down over
Nicaragua in 1986. When lone survivor Eugene Hasenfus was captured by San-
dinistas, it had precipitated what became known as the Iran-Contra scandal.

Back then, no one knew — or admitted knowing — just who owned Southern
Aitr Transport, although Government officials swore up and down that it wasnt
the CIA.

On June 14, 1984, afrer passage of the second Boland Amendment and the
consolidation of Contra operations under Oliver North, the plane was sold twice
in one day, first toa Morgan B. Mitchell of Vale, Oregon, and then to Chevrolet
Dealer Merrill Bean of Ogden Utah, who curiously gave the Dover, Delaware,
address of the “Prentis Hall Corporation” on his FAA registration.

Students of the CIA have long been aware of the agency’s athniry for hiding its
assets in Delaware corporations. But many other companies do so for reasons of
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convenience. In an interview Bean stated that he had incorporated in Delaware
as a legal necessiry because of the needs of his investors.

“Delaware 1s a very convenient place for many kinds of corporations to in-
corporate and many large corporations and multi-nationals do so." Bean said.
“Because other companies | was in partnership with were incorporated there |
chose to do so also. It was much easier that way and it was a requirement of the
partners who were investing,”

A good answer. Unfortunately Delaware officials state that Bean’s company,
Prentis Hall, does not exist. And in the FAA records connected to Bean's owner-
ship of the plane there are other gaps in the FAA records.

When major mechanical repairs are made on an aircraft, the mechanic is re-
quired to complete an FAA form: in December 1989, an FAA certified mechanic
installed routine de-icing equipment on the plane, and, reviewing exact ownership
documents, listed the owner as United Insurance of Ogden, Urah.

Nowhere in FAA title paperwork does United Insurance appear as an owner.
And a spokesman for the Utah State Department of Insurance said there had
never been a ‘United Insurance” licensed to do business in the State.

So we toak a closer look at Merrill Bean, and discovered that he, too, had been
involved in— what else? — major financial fraud, in what The Salt Lake Ciry Tri-
bune called “the worst financial disaster in Utah since the Great Depression.”

The disaster was the en massé failure of Utah thrifts—hybrid financial insti-
tutions that offered high interest rates and consumer loans—and the collapse
of the insurance fund that was supposed to protect their deposits. And because
Utalt's thrifts were essentially uninsured, the failure of Bean'’s thrift left a trail of
broken hearts and people.

One example will suffice:

“We had just moved o Urtah from California two years ago,” 58-year old
Irene Culver told The Salt Lake City Tribune in 1986, “My husband Kent was an
aircraft mechanic but he has Parkinson’s disease. We put half our savings in there
(Western Heritage) and bought a little fixer-upper with the other half. When the
state closed everything, we were ruined.”

“We were going to put a new roof on and install a gas furnace, because the elec-
tricity’s expensive. Now we can't do it, so we've got half the house closed oft.”

Bean told us, “I was Director of that failed Thrift. I came aboard when it
was almost going under. And I poured some money into it to try to save it and
it didn’t happen. I was hoping that my $75,000 that | put into it would help
revive ir.”

How does a savvy businessman with aircraft and car dealerships believe that
$75,000 will turn around a failing Savings & Loan?

The answer may be in “The Mafia, The CIA and George Bush,” where Texas
journalist Pere Brewron documented how much of the S&L scandal was con-
nected to illegal covert operations of the CIA....
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In many of those schemes a $75,000 or similar “buy-in" might have purchased
a seat at a highly-lucrative but complerely-criminal feeding frenzy.

The ‘paper trail’ of Barry Seal’s King Air 200 revealed other connections to
the unsavory perpetrators of the major financial frauds which — like the S&L
scandal — marred the 1980%.

The plane’s ostensible ‘owner,” Greyhound Leasing, or Greycas, for short, was also
at the center of a huge and seemingly-inexplicable financial fraud which, like the half-
trillion dollar S&L scandal, no one ever seemed too concerned about unraveling.

The corporation was openly and evenrually very publicly looted. Afterwards,
company management pretended to be “baffled.”

It went down like this: Greycas Inc. and another Greyhound unit, Greyhound
Leasing, were bilked our of over $75 million by Sheldon Player, a Utah resident
assumed to be in the machine and oilfield equipment sales business. He gained
the money through fraudulently obtained loans from Greyhound.

Obligingly, Greycas then devised an elaborate cover-up scheme to prevent disclosure
of details about the losses, which eventually topped one hundred million dollars.

It began with a $600,000 loan. Player would sell Greycas heavy machine rools,
lease them back, and then pretend to sublease the expensive devices to end-users.
[n most cases the machines, collateral for the loans, were non-existent.

By 1984 Player had borrowed $8 million from Greyhound in the scheme. So he
asked for $40 million in new loans to continue his transactions, and $23.5 million
had been disbursed before the company got suspicious and confronted Player, telling
him they wanted to inspect the machinery which they supposedly owned.

Player resisted, leading some company executives — not in on the joke — to
question the “integrity of the transactions with Player.”

But, remember, this was a company controlled by CIA-front Finova. So de-
spite the company's doubts about Player’s credibility and integrity, and in spite
of Greycas' inability to obrain inspections of the equipment, the company lent
Player another $24 million in new loans!

Anyone who has ever borrowed money for a car or home must admire the
chutzpah of Sheldon Player, whom the business press took to calling an “admirred
con artist” though he had no history of financial fraud that we could discover,
which rook place at the same time officers of a Swiss-based subsidiary of the
company were also massively defrauding Greycas, of another $120 million, in a
(supposedly) unrelated scandal.

“Many borrowers failed to make even the initial monthly payment,” court
documents stated, abour this second scandal, The company’s accountants wrote
thar “fraudulent and dishonest acts resulted directly in a loss of $119,684,598.”
Not so, said the company’s hapless general counsel, responding weakly chat the
loss was a mere $72 million.

The double looting was an Iran-Contra ‘bust-out’ which left hapless shareholders
holding the bag. The fraud included checks written as bribes on napkins in Swiss
restaurants and then set afire, the reported possibility that one of the participants
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was blackmailing the company, and angry lawsuits filed by upset shareholders. But
the rea/question, which puzzled business reporters were never able to answer, was:
why were they were giving money away down at Greyhound during the 1980's?

The criminal trial of Sheldon Player is an illustration of our thesis that being
connected means never having to say you'e sorry. When Player was sentenced,
he received just a five-year sentence. That's just one year for each $13 million
he stole. This is clearly a deal which, if offered to regular Americans, would have
them lined up around the Phoenix Federal Courthouse to sign up.

After receiving his ‘draconian’ sentence, Mr. Player was then given additional
time to settle personal affairs before entering prison, which, for Mr. Player, con-
sisted of the Lompoc Camp, a minimum-security facility known as one of the
“country club” institutions in operation around the nation, according o Dick
Murray of the U.S. Bureau of Prisons,

Even funnier is what happened to the President of hapless Greycas. Robert
Bertrand, lucky ftellow, never went to prison, Instead he resigned at Greyhound
in 1986, and was appointed new president and chief executive officer of Finalco,
an equipment finance and brokerage company based in Mclean, Virginia. That's
the home of the CIA, folks. Probably just coincidence,

Completing the Barry Seal-to-George W. Bush plane chronology, Merrill Bean
sold the plane in May of 1990 to Corporate Wings of Salt Lake City, which flipped
it two days later to Ganrr Aviation of Georgetown, Texas, which 2 month later
sold it to the State of Texas Aircraft Pool, where it resides roday.

Johnny Ganre, President of Gantt Aviation, said he probably knew that the
State of Texas had a bid out when he acquired the plane. At the time the Gov-
ernor of Texas was Bill Clements. His good friend, George W. Bush, was owner
of the Texas Rangers.

It was Author Terry Reed who first announced that a videotape might surface
during the 2000 presidential campaign “showing George W and Jeb arriving at
Tamiami airport in 1985 to pick up two kilos of cocaine for a party.” Statements
in Reed’s 1995 book Compromised recount how Seal bragged about how he had
video of “the Bush boys” doing coke. Other witnesses have refused to go on the
record. Are the rumors true? Did the Bush drug sting really happen? We must
state honestly: we don't know.

What we do know is that by looking we connected the owners of this one
plane to an incredible string of drug and money-related activities, activities car-
ried out, in the normal course of things, by people who are properly called by a
name many of them profess to hate:

“Spooks.”

© 2001 Daniel Hopsicker - www.madcowprod.com

from the book Barry and ‘the boys — The CLA, the Mob and America’s Secret History
ISBN 09706591-0-5 (MadCow Press. PO Box 2687, Eugene, OR, 97402)
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Daniel Hopsicker broke this story first in his book Barry and the boys, and in a article on the
Internet (10/99) with Mike Ruppert at www.copvcia.com. Just after Hopsicker's book was in
print, AP ran this offictal story:

From: Corpus Christi Caller- Times (9/10/2000)

TEXAS-OWNED PLANE ONCE OPERATED BY INFAMOUS DRUG RUNNER
Colombia cartel paid Adler ‘Barry’ Seal a reported $1 million for each fight

By C. Bryson Hull, Associared Press

HOUSTON — The state of Texas flies a plane that earned its wings at the hands of famed drug
smuggler, government operative and evenrual assassination victim Adler “Barry” Seal.

State officials have flown aboard N6308F, an 18-year-old twin turboprop that seats up to 10, on official
business since Texas boughe the plane in 1990. The Beech King Air is one of 33 in the state’s fleer,

Gov. George W. Bush took office five years after the plane became Texas property and was unaware of its
history. “We're glad to hear that the plane is on the straight and narrow and has landed on the right side
of the law,” Bush spokeswoman Linda Edwards said.

Airborne Smuggling

Seal leased the NG63USF seven years before Texas brought it to ferry government officials, according o
an Associated ['ress comparison of Federal Aviation Administration records with insurance and leasing
documents,

in the early '80s, Seal was 3 top DEA informanc by dinc of his work as airtborne smuggler for Colombia’s
Medellin cartel. He earned a reparted $1 million a flight, hauling guns south and drugs north,

Seal, a former member of the Army’s special forces and a one-time Trans World Airlines pilor, leased and
operated the plane for at least a year, beginning on March 21, 1983, according to a leasing document,
B, Don Wineinger, who handled the insurance policies for Seal while working for a Kansas insurance
firm, verified his signature an the documents and authenticated the lease.

Many Owners

The pline’s owner at the time is unclear, Leasing records show the lessor as Continental Desert Properties
Ine., a Californii real estate firm. But FAA title records show the owner to be Systems Markerting Inc., a
now-defuncr Arizona computer leasing business.

Continental Desert Properties owner Gene Glick has since died. The former owner of Systems
Marketing was unavailable for comment.

NG308F passed through five other owners before it came 1o the state, bur belonged for mosi of the time
1o a Urah Chevroler dealer named Merrill Bean. Of the other owners, three were aircraft brokers and
one was a leasing subsidiary of Greyhound Bus Lines called Greycas Inc. None, save Bean, owned the
plane for more than 30 days.

Violent Death

The State of Texas Aircraft Pooling Board, which owns a fleet for use on official state business, purchased
NG30KF in May 1990 from Gantr Aviation, a Georgetown airplane broker,

Seal, 46, was machine-gunned to death in the parking lot of a Baton Rouge, La., halfway house on Feb,
19, 1986. Three Colombians were sentenced to life in prison for the killing, which oceurred shortly
before Seal was o restify in the Miami drug trial of Jorge Ochoa, a top Medellin cartel licutenant,
Medellin leader Pablo Escobar and OOchoa had offered $500,000 to have Seal killed and $1 million ro

have him broughr back alive ro Colombia, according ro restimony at the trial.

Iran-Contra Connection

This is not the first time one of Seal's planes resurfaced in an unlikely place. In 1984, Seal Hew his
C-123K military transport plane, dubbed “The Far Lady,” 1o Nicaragua on an undercover Drug
Entorcement Adnurnistration sting operation.

Using hidden cameras installed on the plane by the CIA, Seal snapped photos showing him taking bags
of cocaine from Escobar and a corrupr Sandinista government official. President Reagan later used the
phoros during a nationally televised plea for support for the Contras,

Bur the plane that bore those public-relations fruits eventually gave Reagan fits. “The Far Lady” was
shot down over Nicaragua in Ocrober 1986 while carrying a load of weapons bound for the Contras,
Thar crash and the Sandinistas” capture of the sole survivor, CIA operative Eugene Hasenfus, led to the
unmasking of the Iran-Contra scandal.

L
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THE SECRET TREATY
OF FORT HUNT

This under-appreciated arvicle is for background information and as a help in
understanding our current world. There are no Bonesmen mentioned. Henry Stimson
was Secretary of War ar the time plus many other Bonesmen were in relevant positions.

CARL OGLESBY

APPEARED (N COVERT ACHION INFORMATION BULLETIN, FALL 1990

ILLIAM SHIRER CLOSED HIS 1960 MASTERPIECE, The Rise and

g R / Fall of the Third Reich, with the judgment that the Nazi regime
“had passed into history,”" but we cannot be so confident today.

On the contrary, the evidence as of 1990 is that World War I did not end
as Shirer believed it did, that Nazism did not surrender unconditionally
and disappear, that indeed it finessed a limited but crucial victory over

the Allies, a victory no less significant for having been kept a secret from
all but the few Americans who were directly involved.

THE ODESSA AND ITS MISSION B

HITI.ER CONTINUED TO RANT OF VICTORY, but after German}"s Mmassive
defear in the battle of Stalingrad in mid-January 1943, the realists of the
German General Staff (OKW) were all agreed thar their game was lost, Defear
ar Salingrad meant, ar a minimum, that Germany could not win the war in the
East thar year. This in turn meant that the Nazis would have to keep the great
preponderance of their military forces tied down on the ¢astern front and could
not redeploy them to the West, where the Anglo-American invasion of Italy
would occur that summer. Apparendy inspired by the Soviet victory, President
Franklin Delano Roosevelt and Prime Minister Winston Churchill announced
at Casablanca, on January 24, 1943, their demand for Germany's unconditional
surrender and the complete de-Nazification of Europe.’

Within the German general staff two competing groups formed around the
question of what to do: one led by Heinrich Himmler, the other by Martin
Bormann.'
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Himmler was chief of the SS (Schutzstaffel, "protective echelon”), the black-
shirted core of the Nazi party that emerged as Hitler's bodyguard in the late 19205
and grew into the most powerful of the Nazi political institutions. After the failure
of the attempred military coup of July 20, 1944, which wounded but did not kill
Hitler, the SS scized all power and imposed a furious blood purge of the armed
services in which some seven thousand were arrested and nearly five thousand
execured.” The S8 was at that point the only organ of the Nazi state.

Himmler's plan for dealing with the grim situation facing Nazism found ics
premise in Hider's belief that the alliance berween “the ultra-capiralists” of the
ULS. and “the ultra-Marxists™ of the Soviet Union was politically unstable. “Even
now they are at loggerheads,” said Hitler. “1f we can now deliver a few more blows,
this artificially bolstered common front may suddenly collapse with a gigantic
clap of thunder.” Himmler believed that this collapse would occur and that the
U.S. would then consider the formation of a new anti-Soviet alliance with Nazi
Germany. The Nazis would then negotiate “a separate peace” with the Unired
States, separate from any peace with the USSR, with which Germany would
remain at war, now joined against the Sovicets by the United States.

But Martin Bormann, who was even more powerful than Himmler, did not
accept the premise of the separate-peace idea. Bormann was an intimate of Hitler's,
the depury tuhrer and the head of the Nazi Party, thus superior to Himmler in
rank. Bormann wiclded additional power as Hitler’s link to the industrial and
financial cartels that ran the Nazi economy and was particularly close to Hermann
Schmitz, chief executive of LG. Farben, the giant chemical firm that was Nazi
Germany's greatest industrial power.

With the support of Schmitz, Bormann rejected Himmler's separate-peace
strategy on the ground that it was far too optimistic.® The Allied military advan-
tage was roo great, Bormann believed, for Roosevelt to be ralked into a separare
peace. Roosevelt, after all, had waken the lead in proclaiming the Allies” demand
for Germany's unconditional surrender and roral de-Nazification. Bormann
reasoned. rather, that the Nazi's best hope of surviving military defeat lay within
their own resources, chiet of which was the cohesion of tens of thousands of SS
men for whom the prospect of surrender could offer only the gallows.

Bormann and Schmitz developed a more aggressive, self-contained approach
to the problem of the looming military defear, the central concepr of which was
that large numbers of Nazis would have to leave Europe and, at least for a time,
find places in the world in which to recover their strength. There were several
possibilities in Latin America, most notably Argentina and Paraguay; South Africa,
Egypt, and Indonesia were also attractive rear areas in which to retreat.”

After the German defear in the battle of Normandy in June 1944, Bormann
ook the first external steps toward implementing concrete plans for the Nazis'
grear escape,

An enormous amount of Nazi treasure had to be moved our of Europe and
madec safe. This treasure was apparently divided into several caches, of which the

174



THE SECRET TREATY OF FORT HUNT

one at the Reichsbank in Berlin included almost three tons of gold (much of it
the so-called rooth-gold from the slaughter camps) as well as silver, platinum,
tens of thousands of carats of precious stones, and perhaps a billion dollars in
various currencies.8

There were industrial assets to be expatriated, including large tonnages of-
specialty steel and certain industrial machinery as well as blueprints critical to
the domination of certain areas of manufacturing

Key Nazi companies needed to be relicensed outside Germany in order to
escape the reach of war-reparations claims.

And tens of thousands of Nazi war criminals, almost all of them members of
the S8, needed help to escape Germany and safely regroup in foreign colonies
capable of providing security and livelihoods.

For help with the first three of these rasks, Barmann convened a secret meeting
of key German industrialists on August 10, 1944, at the Hotel Maison Rouge in
Strasbourg.” One part of the minutes of this meeting srates:

The [Nazi] Party is ready to supply large amounts of money to those indus-
wrialists who contribute to the post war organization abroad. In return, the Party
demands all financial reserves which have already been transferred abroad or may
later be transferred, so thart after the defeat a strong new Reich can be built."

The Nazi expert in this area was Hitler's one-time financial genius and Minister
of the Economy, Dr. Hjalmar Horace Greeley Schachr, available to Bormann even
though he was in prison on suspicion of involvement in the anti-Hitler coup of
1944. According to a U.S. Treasury Department report of 1945, at least 750 enter-
prises financed by the Nazi Party had been set up outside Germany by the end of
the war. These firms were capable of generating an annual income of approximately
$30 million, all of it available to Nazi causes."" It was Schacht’s ability to finesse
the legalities of licensing and ownership that brought this situation abour.”

Organizing the physical removal of the Nazis" material assets and the escape
of SS personnel were the tasks of the hulking Otto Skorzeny, simultaneously
an officer of the §S, the Gestapo, and the Waffen SS as well as Hitler's “favorite
commando.”"*

Skorzeny worked closely with Bormann and Schacht in transporting the Nazi as-
sets to safety outside Europe and in creating a network of SS escape routes (“rar lines”)
that led from all over Germany to the Bavarian city of Memmingen, then to Rome,
then by sea to a number of Nazi retreat colonies set up in the global south.

The international organization created to accommodate Bormann’s plans is
most often called “The Odessa,” 4 German acronym for "Organization of Vet-
erans of the 8S.” It has remained active as a shadowy presence since the war and
may indeed constitute Nazism's most notable organizational achievement. But
we must understand that none of Bormann’s, Skorzeny's, and Schacht’s well-laid
plans would have stood the least chance of success had it not been for a final
component of their organization, one not usually associated with the Odessa at
all but very possibly the linchpin of the entire project.
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ENTER GEHLEN
HIS FINAL ELEMENT OF THE ODESSA was the so-called Gehlen Organization
(the Org), the Nazi intelligence system that sold itself to the U.S. at the end

of the war. [t was by far the most audacious, most critical, and most essential
part of the entire Odessa undertaking. The literature on the Odessa and thar on
the Gehlen Organization, however, are two different things. No writer in the
field of Nazi studies has yer explicitly associated the two, despite the fact that
General Reinhard Gehlen was tied politically as well as personally with Skorzeny
and Schacht. Moreover, Gehlen’s fabled post-war organization was in large part
staffed by SS Nazis who are positively identified with the Odessa, men such as the
infamous Franz Alfred Six and Emil Augsburg of the Wannsee Institute. An even
more compelling reason for associaring Gehlen with the Odessa is that, without
his organization as a screen, the various Odessa projects would have been directdly
exposed to American intelligence. If the Counter Intelligence Corps (CIC) and the
Office of Strategic Services (OSS) had not been neutralized by the Gehlen ploy,
the Odessa’s great escape scheme would have been discovered and broken up.

At 43, Brigadier General Reinhard Gehlen was a stiff, unprepossessing man
of five foot eight and a half inches and 128 pounds when he presented himself
for surrender ar the U.S. command center in Fischhausen. But there was nothing
small about his ego. “I am head of the section Foreign Armies East in German
Army Headquarters,” he announced to the Gl at the desk. “[ have information 1o
give of the highest importance to your government.” The GI was not impressed,
however, and Gehlen spent weeks stewing in a POW compound before an evident
Soviet eagerness to find him finally aroused the Americans’ attention.™

Gehlen became chief of the Third Reich’s Foreign Armies East (FHO), on April
1, 1942. He was thus responsible for Germany's milirary intelligence operations
throughout Eastern Europe and the Soviet Union. His FHO was connected
in this role with a number of secret fascist organizations in the countries to
Germany’s east. These included Stepan Bandera’s “B Faction” of the Organization
of Ukrainian Narionalists (OUN/B),"”” Romania’s Iron Guard,'® the Ustachis of
Yugoslavia,' the Vanagis of Lawvia' and, after the summer of 1942, “Vlassov’s
Army,""” the band of defectors from Soviet Communism marching behind for-
mer Red hero General Andrey Vlassov. Later on in the war, Gehlen placed one
of his top men in control of Foreign Armies West, which broadened his power:
and then after Admiral Wilhelm Canaris was purged and his Abwehr intelligence
service cannibalized by the SS, Gehlen became in effect Nazi Germany's over-all
top intelligence chief.

THE GREAT ESCAPE

IN DECEMBER 1943, ar the latest, Gehlen reached the same conclusion about the
war that had come upon Bormann, Schacht, Skorzeny, and Himmler. Germany
was losing and could do nothing about it. Several months later, Gehlen says, he
began quietly discussing the impending defeat with a few close associates. As he
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writes in his memoir: “Early in October 1944 1 told my more intimate colleagues
that I considered the war was lost and we must begin thinking of the future. We
had to think ahead and plan for the approaching catastrophe.™

Gehlen's strategic response to Gotterdammerung was a kind of fusion of Him-
mler’s philosophy with Bermann’s more pessimistic Odessa line: "My view,” he
writes, “was that there would be a place even for Germany in a Europe rearmed
for defense against Communism, Therefore we must set our sights on the Western
powers, and give ourselves two objectives: to hclp defend aganm Communist
expansion and to recover and reunify Germany's lost territories.”

Just as Bormann, Skorzeny, and Schacht were beginning to execute their escape
plans, so too was Gehlen, “Setting his sights on the Western powers,” and in
particular on the United States, Gehlen pursued the following strategic rationale:
When the alliance between the United States and the USSR collapsed, as it was
bound to do upon Germany's defeat, the United States would discover a pierc-
ing need for a top-quality intelligence service in Eastern Europe and inside the
Soviet Union. It did not have such a service of its own, and the pressures of the
erupting East-West conflict would not give it time to develop one from scratch.
Let the United States therefore leave the assets assembled by Gehlen and the
FHO intact. Let the Uniced States not break up Gehlen's relationship with East
European fascist groups. Let the United States pick up Gehlen's organization and
put it to work for the West, the better to prevail in its coming struggle against a
Soviet Union soon to become its ex-ally.

Gehlen brought his top staff people into the planning for this amazing pro-
posal. Together, during the last months of the war, while Hitler was first raging
at Gehlen for his “defeatist” intelligence reports, then promoting him to the rank
of brigadier general, then ar last firing him altogether (but promoting into the
FHO directorship one of Gehlen's co-conspirators), Gehlen and his staft carefully
prepared their huge files on East Europe and the Sovier Union and moved them
south into the Bavarian Alps and buried them. At the same time, Gehlen began
building the ranks of the FHO intelligence agents. The FHO in fact was the only
organization in the whole of the Third Reich that was actually recruiting new
members as the war was winding down.** SS§ men who knew they would be in
trouble when the Allied forces arrived now came Hocking to the FHO, knowing
that it was the most secure place for them to be when the war finally ended.™

When Gehlen’s plans were complete and his preparations all concluded, he
divided his top staff into three separate groups and moved them (as Skorzeny was
doing at the same time) into prearranged positions in Bavaria. Gehlen himself
was in place before the German surrender on May 7, hiding comfortably in 2
well-stocked chalet in a mountain lea called Misery Meadow. Besides Gehlen,
there were eight others in the Misery Meadow group, including two wounded
men and three young women. For three weeks, maintaining radio contact with
the two other groups, Gehlen and his colleagues stayed on the mountain, waiting
for the American army to appear in the valley far below. “These days of living in
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the arms of nature were truly enchanting,” he wrote. “We had grown accustomed
to the peace, and our ears were attuned to nature’s every sound.”*

DESTRUCTION OF THE OSS

GEI—]LEN WAS STILL COMMUNING WITH NATURE when William Donovan,
chief of the Office of Strategic Services (OSS), arrived in Nuremberg
from Washington, dispatched by the new president to assist Supreme Court
Justice Robert Jackson. Harry S. Truman had made Jackson the United States’s
chief prosecutor with the International Military Tribunal (IMT), established to
try the Nazis' principal military leaders. Donovan’s OSS was to function as an
investigative arm of the IMT.

By the last half of the war if not before, President Roosevelr and Donovan
were convinced that the U.S. needed a permanent intelligence service and that
this service, like the OSS, should be civilian rather than military. They were
convinced too that the OSS should be its foundation. On October 31, 1944,
Roosevelr directed Donovan to prepare a memo on how such a service should
be organized.®

Donovan consulted on this assignment with his colleague Allen Dulles, a force
unto himselfas wartime chief of OSS operations in Bern. Dulles advised Donovan
to placate the military by proposing that the new agency be placed automatically
under military command in time of war.*” Donovan’s proposal incorporated this
idea,” but only in order to state all the more strongly the case for civilian control
and for making the OSS the basis of the new organization. As he wrote in his
memo to Roosevelt of November 18, 1944, “There are common-sense reasons
why you may desire to lay the keel of the ship at once .... We now have [in the
OSS] the trained and specialized personnel needed for such a rask, and this talent
should not be dispersed.”

Donovan proposed establishment of a civilian intelligence service responsible
directly to the President and the Secretary of State, the chief mission of which
would be to support the President in foreign policy. Except for the civilian Sec-
retaries of War and the Navy, Donovan’s plan did not even include a place for
military representation on the advisory board, and he was careful to specify that
the advisory board would merely advise and not control. The new service was
to be all-powerful in its field, being responsible for “coordination of the func-
tions of all intelligence agencies of the Government.” The Donovan intelligence
service, in other words, would directly and explicitly dominate the Army’s G-2
and the Navy's ONI.*

Naturally, therefore, the Donovan plan drew an intense artack from the military.
One G-2 officer called it “cumbersome and possibly dangerous.” Another referred
to the OSS as “a bunch of faggots™ Nor was the FBI's J. Edgar Hoover silent.
Hoover had fought creation of the OSS perhaps maore bitterly than the military
and had insisted throughout the war on maintaining an FBI intelligence network
in Latin America despite the fact that this was supposed to be OSS turf.*
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Certain elements within Army intelligence were not only opposed to Donovan's
plan but were also beginning to formulate their own notions of what a post-war
intelligence system should be like.

Roosevelt sent the Joint Chiefs of Staff ultra-secret copies of Donovan's proposal
along with Roosevelt's own draft execurtive order to implement it, On January
1, 1945, the Chiefs formally reported to Roosevelt their extreme dissatistaction
with this scheme and leaked Donovan’s memo to four right-wing newspapers,
which leapt to the attack with blaring headlines accusing FDR and Donovan
of conspiring to create “a super Gestapo.” This attack put the Donovan plan on
hold, and the death of FDR on April 12, 1945 destroyed it.

In early May 1945, president for less than a month, Truman made the OSS the
American component of the investigative arm of the IMT. It is one of the fasci-
nating conjunctions of this story that Donovan should have left for Nuremberg
just as Gehlen was coming down from his mountain. It is one of its riper ironies
that Donovan would soon resign from Jackson's staff in a disagreement over try-
ing German officers as war criminals, which Donovan objected to but Jackson
and Truman supported.” Had Donovan lent his energies to the trial of Nazis
within the German officer corps, he might have confronted the very adversaries
who would shortly take his place in the American intelligence system, not only
militarizing it, but Nazifying it as well.

GEHLEN MAKES HIS MOVE

EHLEN HAD BEEN ON THE MOUNTAIN for exactly three weeks and the war

had been over for almost two weeks when he decided on May 19 that it
was time to make contact. He left the three women and the two wounded men
at Misery Meadow and with his four aides began the descent to the valley town
of Fischhausen on Lake Schliersee.

On the same day Soviet commissioners far to the north at Flensburg demanded
that the United States hand over Gehlen as well as his files on the USSR. This
was the first the U.S. command had heard of Gehlen.*

Gehlen and company took their time, staying three days with the parents of
one of his aides and communicating by radio with those who had remained at
Misery Meadow. On May 22, Gehlen at last decided the moment was right. He
and his aides marched into the Army command center and represented themselves
to the desk ofhicer, 2 Caprain John Schwarzwalder, to whom Gehlen spoke his
prepared speech:

“1 am head of the Section Foreign Armies East in German Army headquar-
ters. | have information to give of the highest importance to your government.”
Schwarzwalder had Gehlen and his group jeeped to Miesbach where there was
a OSS detachment. There Gehlen once again gave his speech, this rime o a
Captain Marian Porter: "I have informartion of the greatest imporwance for your
supreme commander.” Porter replied, “So have they all,” and shunted him and
his cohorts off to the prison camp at Salzburg.
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Gehlen's disappointment at this reception was keen and his biographers all say
he never forgot it, “lapsing,” as one puts it, “into near despair” as he “presented
the strange paradox of a spy-master thirsting for recognition by his captors.™

Recognition was inevitable, however, since the CIC was trying ro find him. By
mid June at the latest, his name was recognized by a G-2 officer, Colonel William
H. Quinn, who had Gehlen brought to Augsburg for his first serious interrogation.
Quinn was the first American to whom Gehlen presented his proposal and told of
his staff dispersed at several camps in the mountains as well as the precious buried
archives of the FHO. Unlike Caprain Porrer, Colonel Quinn was impressed. He
promptly passed Gehlen up the command chain to General Edwin 1. Sibert.

Sibert later recalled, “1 had a most excellent impression of him at once.”
Gehlen immediately began educaring him as to “the actual aims of the Soviet
Union and its display of military might.” As Sibert told a journalist years later,
“With her present armed forces potential, he [Gehlen] continued, Russia could
risk war with the West and the aim of such a war would be the occuparion of
West Germany."*

Acting without orders, Sibert listened to Gehlen for several days before inform-
ing Eisenhower’s chief of staff, General Walter Bedell Smith.*” Smich and Sibert
then continued to develop their relationship with Gehlen secretly, choosing not
to burden Eisenhower with knowledge of what they were doing “in order not
to compromise him in his relations with the Soviers.” Eisenhower in fact had
strictly forbidden ULS. fraternization with Germans.*

Gehlen was encouraged to resume contact with his FHO comrades who were
still ar large in Bavaria, releasing them from their vow of silence. Gehlen was
sufficiently confident of his American relationships by this time rthat he dug up
his buried files and, in special camps, put his FHO experts to work preparing
derailed reports on the Red Army for his American captors. Well before the end
of June he and his comrades were “discharged from prisoner of war status so that
we could move around at will.”* They were encouraged to form a unit termed
a “general staft cell,” first within G-2's Historical Research Section, then later
in the Seventh Army’s Intelligence Center in Wiesbaden, where they worked in
private quarters and were treated as VIPs,*

Indeed, a partly declassified CIA document recapitulated this story in the early
1970s, noting at this time:

Gehlen mer with Admiral Karl Doenitz, who had been appointed by Hider
as his successor during the last days of the Third Reich. Gehlen and the Admiral
were now in a ULS. Army VIP prison camp in Wiesbaden; Gehlen sought and
received approval from Doenitz too!™

In other words, the German chain of command was still in effect, and it ap-
proved of what Gehlen was doing with the Americans.

Gehlen's biographers are under the impression that it took six weeks for some-
one in European G-2 to notice and recognize Gehlen in the POW cage, that
Sibert did not tell Smith about finding him unril the middle of August, and that it
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was much later still before Sibert and Smith conspired ro circumvent Eisenhower
and communicate their excitement about Gehlen to someone at the Pentagon
presumably associated with the Joint Chiefs of Staff." But documents released in
the 1980s show that this part of Gehlen's story raced along much more quickly.
Already on June 29, in fact, the Pentagon had informed Eisenhower’s European
command that the War Department wanted to see Gehlen in Washington.*

It was a fast time. By no later than August 22, one of Gehlen’s top associates,
Hermann Baun, was forming what would become the intelligence and counter-
intelligence sections of Gehlen’s new organization. Gehlen himself, with retinue,
was departing for Washington in General Bedell Smith’'s DC-3 for high-level talks
with American military and intelligence officials. And the whole concepr of the
deal he was abour to offer his conquerors had been approved by a Nazi chain
of command that was still functioning despite what the world thought and sell
does think was the Nazis' unconditional surrender.”

Gehlen arrived in Washington on August 24 with six of his top FHO aides
and technical experts in tow.” World War 11 had been over abour a week, the
war in Europe about three and a half months.

THE SECRET TREATY OF FORT HUNT

S GEHLEN AND HIS SIX MEN were en route from Germany to Washington,
Jonovan's OSS troubles became critical. On August 23, Admiral William Leahy,
chief of the JCS, the President’s national security adviser and a man who despised
Donovan, advised Truman to order his budget director Harold Smith to begin a study
of the intelligence question. Stating “this country wanted no Gestapo under any guise
or for any reason,”" Truman may not have known that the Gestapo’s Odessa heirs
were landing in the lap of the Pentagon even as he spoke. Smith in any case responded
to Truman’s directive by asking Donovan for his OSS demobilization plans.

Now, too late, Donovan tried to fight. The Gehlen party, “Group 6,” was
checking our its very comfortable accommodations at Fort Hunrt at the very
moment at which Donovan, writing from a borrowed Washington office, fired
back a memo to Smith defending the OSS and its righr to live:

Among these assets [of the OSS] was establishment for the first time in our
nation’s history of a foreign secret intelligence service which reported informarion
as seen through American eyes. As an integral and inseparable part of this service,
there is a group of specialists to analyze and evaluate the material for presentation
to those who determine national policy.™

Much more significant than the question of the adequacy of U.S. intelligence
on the Soviet Union, however, was the question of civilian versus military control
of the intelligence mission. Germany and England had fought this battle in the
19th century, the military capruring the intelligence role in Germany and the
civilians maintaining a position in England. Throughout the summer and fall of
1945, this same batcle raged in the U.S. government.” The battle for intelligence
control was indeed the background for the arrival of Gehlen and his six aides at
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Fort Hunt, where Gehlen’s party was housed and Gehlen himself provided with
an NCQO butler and several white-jacket orderlies.*

A momentous relationship was established at Fort Hunt, one that had the pro-
foundest effects on the subsequent evolution of United States foreign policy during
an exceptionally difficult passage of world history. The period of the Cold War as a
whole, and more especially its carly, formative years— from Gehlen’s coming aboard
the American intelligence service until he rejoined the West German republic in
1955 — was laden with the peril of nuclear war. On at least one occasion, in 1948,
Gehlen almost convinced the United States that the Soviet Union was about to launch
a war against the West and that it would be in the U.S. interest to preempt it.

Clearly it is important to know who made and authorized the decisions that
led to our national dependency on a network of underground Nazis. Yer because
the relevant documents are still classified, this central part of the Gehlen story
still cannort be reconstructed.

From the handful of published books about the Gehlen affair (none of which
cite their sources on this point) we can list only seven Americans who were said
1o be involved with Gehlen at Fort Hunt:

*  Admiral William D. Leahy, chief of staff and Truman’s national security advisor,
+  Allen Dulles, OSS station chief in Bern during the war.

¢ Sherman Kent, head of OSS Research and Analysis Branch and a Yale historian.
* General George V. Strong, head of Army G-2.

* Major General Alex H. Bolling of G-2.

* Brigadier General John T. Magruder, first head of the Army’s Strategic Services

Unit, a vulture of OSS.

* Loftus E. Becker, a lawyer assc. with G-2 and the Nuremberg war-crimes opera-
tion; the CIA' first deputy director.

We do not know if these people were involved as a committee, if they talked
with Gehlen and his six aides a lot or a little, separately or all at once, or if they
sent their own aides to work out the details. We do not know how a POW-inter-
rogation was transformed into a bargaining process. Above all, we do not know
whar kind of communication the U.S. participants in the Fort Hunt-Gehlen
ralks had with the political authorities to whom they were responsible. Leahy
is the only ane who had obvious contact with President Truman. Bur there is
nothing in the revealed record to indicate that he ever discussed Gehlen or the
Fort Hunt deal with Truman, or took the least trouble to explain to Truman the
implications of hiring a Nazi spy network. We have no idea, for thar marter, how
Leahy himself saw it.

What we do know is the outlines of the Gehlen deal itself, however it was
hammered out and however it was or was not ratified by legal, political author-
ity. Thar is because Gehlen himself laid out its terms in his autobiography, The
Service. Gehlen says in this work (which has been artacked for its inaccuracies)
that the discussion ended with “a ‘gentlemen’s agreement,” that the terms of his
relationship with the United States were “for a variety of reasons never set down
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in black and white.” He continues, “Such was the element of trust thar had been
built up between the two sides during this year of intensive personal contact
— that neither had the slightest hesitation in founding the entire operation on
a verbal agreement and a handshake."* According to Gehlen, this agreement
consisted of the following six basic points. His language is worth savoring, “1
remember the terms of the agreement well,” he wrote:

“1. A clandestine German intelligence organization was to be set up, using
the existing potential to continue information gathering in the East just as we
had been doing before. The basis for this was our common interest tn a defense
against communism.”

“2. This German organization was to work not ‘for” or ‘under’ the Americans,
but “jointly with the Americans.’

“3. The organization would operate exclusively under German leadership,
which would receive its direcuives and assignments from the Americans unul a
new government was established in Germany.”

“4. The organization was to be financed by the Americans with funds which
were not to be part of the occupation costs, and in return the organization would
supply all its intelligence reports to the Americans,” (The Gehlen Organization’s
first annual budget is said to have been $3.4 million.”)"

“5. As soon as a sovereign German government was established, that govern-
ment should decide whether the organization should continue to function or not,
but that until such time the care and control (later referred to as ‘the trusteeship’)
of the organization would remain in American hands.”

“6. Should the organization at any time find itself in a position where the
American and German interests diverged, it was accepted that the organization
would consider the interests of Germany first,™*

Gehlen acknowledges that the last point especially might “raise some eyebrows”
and make some think that the U.S. side “had gone overboard in making conces-
sions to us.” He assures his readers thar actually “this point demonstrates berter
than any other Sibert’s great vision: he recognized that for many years to come the
interests of the United States and West Germany must run parallel.”™” Gehlen and
his staff left Fort Hunt for Germany on July 1, 1946, having been in the Unired
States for almost a year. They were temporarily based at Oberursel then settled into
a permanent base in a walled-in, self-contained village at Pullach near Munich.
Gehlen set up his headquarters in an esrate originally built by Martin Bormann.*™
There a start-up group of 50 began ro turn the “"gentlemen’s agreement” of Fort
Hunt into reality. The first order of business being statf, Gehlen's recruiters were
soon circulating among the “unemployed mass” of “former” Nazi SS men, the
Odessa constituency, to find more evaluators, couriers and informers.” Gehlen
had “solemnly promised in Washington not to employ SS and Gestapo men,”™
although it will be noted that Gehlen includes no such provision in his list of
terms, There is not the least question that he did recruir such men, supplying
them with new names when necessary. '
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Two of the worst of them were Franz Six and Emil Augsburg. Six was a key
Nazi intellecrual, and both Six and Augsburg were associated with the Wannsee
Insriture, the Nazi think-tank in Berlin where SS leader Reinhard Heydrich, in
January 1942, announced “The Final Solution to the Jewish Question.” Both of
them had commanded extermination squads roving in East Europe in pursuit of
Jews and communists. And both had gone underground with the Odessa when
the Third Reich crumbled. Augsburg hid in Iraly, then returned in disguise when
Gehlen called. Six was actually caprured by Allied intelligence, tried at Nuremberg
and imprisoned, only to be sprung to work with Augsburg running Gehlen's
networks of East European Nazis.”!

From the edge of total defeat, Gehlen now moved into his vintage years, more
powertful, influential and independent than he had been even in the heyday of the
Third Reich. Minimally supervised first by the War Department’s Strategic Services
Unit under Fort Hunr figure Major General John Magruder, and then by the
SSU’s follow-on organization, the Central Intelligence Group under Rear Admiral
Sidney Souers,” the Org grew to dominate the entire West German intelligence
service. Through his close ties to Chancellor Konrad Adenauer’s chief minister,
Hans Globke, Gehlen was able to place his men in positions of control in West
Germany's military intelligence and the internal counterintelligence arm. When
NATO was established he came to dominate it too. By one estimate “some 70
percent” of the total intelligence take flowing into NATO's military committee and
Allied headquarters (SHAPE) on the Soviet Union, the countries of East Europe,
the rest of Europe, and indeed the rest of the world was generated at Pullach.®

Not even the establishment of the CIA in 1947 and the official transfer of the
Pullach operation into the West German government in 1955 (when it was retitled
the Federal Intelligence Service, BND) lessened the reliance of American intel-
ligence on Gehlen’s product.* From the beginning days of the Cold War through
the 1970s and beyond, the United States’s, West Germany’s, and NATO's most
positive beliefs about the nature and intentions of the Soviet Union, the Warsaw
Pact, and world communism would be supplied by an international nerwork
of utterly unreconstructed SS Nazis whose primary purposes were to cover the
escape of the Odessa and make the world safe for Nazism.

THE COST OF THE FORT HUNT TREATY
Gch[en's story has many branchings beyond this point. These include several

spy scandals thar exposed his operation as dangerously vulnerable to Sovier
penetration. They include the pitiful spectacle of U.S CIC agents pursuing Nazi
fugitives on war-crimes charges only to see them summarily pardoned and hired
by Gehlen. They include the dark saga of Klaus Barbie, the SS “Butcher of Lyon”
who worked with the Gehlen Organization and boasted of ‘being a member of the
Odessa. They include assets of Operation Paperclip, in which right-wing forces
in the U.S. military once again savaged the concept of de-Nazification in order
to smuggle scores of SS rocket scientists into the Unired States. They include
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continuation of the civilian-vs,-military conflict over the institution of secret
intelligence and the question of politically motivated covert action within the
domestic interior. They include above all the story of the enormous victory of the
QOdessa in planting powerful Nazi colonies around the world — in such countries as
South Africa, where the enactment of apartheid laws followed; or several countries
in Latin America that then became breeding grounds for the Death Squads of
the current day, and indeed even in the United States where it now appears that
thousands of wanted Nazis were able to escape justice and grow old in peace.

In making the Gehlen deal, the United States did not acquire for itself an intel-
ligence service. Thar is not what the Gehlen group was or was trying to be. The
military intelligence historian Colonel William Corson put it most succinetly,
“Gehlen' s organization was designed to protect the Odessa Nazis. It amounts ro
an exceptionally well-orchestrated diversion.™ The only intelligence provided by
the Gehlen net o the Unirted States was intelligence selected specifically to worsen
East-West tensions and increase the possibility of military conflict between the
U.S. and the Soviet Union. It was exactly as the right-wing papers had warned in
1945 when they were aroused by Donovan's proposal for a permanent intelligence
corps, warning their readers that a “super spy unit” could “determine American
foreign policy by weeding out, withholding or coloring information gathered ar
his direction."® It was exactly as Truman had warned when he demobilized the
OSS with the observation thar the US, had no interest in “Gestapo-like measures,”
The fact thar this lively concern for a police-state apparatus should have been
focused on the relatively innocuous OSS while at the same time the red carpet
was being rolled ourt for Gehlen's gang of SS men must surely count as one of
the supreme wrenching ironies of the modern period.

Another dimension of the cost of the Gehlen deal is the stress it induced wirthin
American institutions, weakening them incalculably. The Gehlen Organization
was the antithesis of the Allied cause, its sinister emergence on the scene of post-
war Europe the very opposite of what the western democracies thought they had
been fighting for.

Perhaps at least we can say that, despite Gehlen and despite the military, the
United States did after all finally wind up with a civilian intelligence service. The
National Security Act of 1947 did embody Donovan’s central point in creating
a CIA outside the military, But in fact the Gehlen Org substantially pre-empred
the CIA’ civilian character before it was ever born. The CIA was born 10 be
rocked in Gehlen's cradle. It remained dependent on the Org even when the Org
turned into the BND. Thus, whatever the CIA was from the standpoint of the
law, it remained from the standpoint of practical intelligence collection a front
for a house of Nazi spies.

The Org was not merely military, which is bad, not merely foreign, which is
much worse, and not merely Nazi, which is intolerable; it was not even profession-
ally commirted to the securiry of the U.S. and Western Europe. It was committed
exclusively to the security of the Odessa. All the Gehlen Org ever wanted the U.S. 10
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be was anti-communist, the more militandy so the better. It never cared in the least
for the security of the United States, its Constitution or its democratic tradition,

It is not the point of this essay that there would have been no Cold War if
the Odessa had not wanted it and had not been able. through the naive col-
laboration of the American military Right, to place Gehlen and his nerwork in
a position thar ought to have been occupied by a descendant of the OSS. But it
was precisely because the world was so volatile and confusing as of the transirion
from World War IT to peacetime that the U.S, needed ro see it, as Donovan pur
it in his plaincave appeal to Truman in the summer of 1945, “through American
eyes.” No Nazi eyes, however bright, could see it for us without deceiving us and
leading us ro the betrayal of our own national character.

Second, there was no way to avoid the Cold War once we had raken the
desperate step of opening our doors to Gehlen. From that moment on, from
the summer of 1945 when the Army brought him into the United States and
made a secret deal with him, the Cold War was locked in. A number of Cald
War historians on the left (for example D.E Fleming and Gabriel Kolko) have
made cogent arguments that from the Soviet point of view the Cold War was
thrust upon us by an irrational and belligerent Stalin. The story of the secret
treaty of Fort Hunrt exposes this “history™ as a self-serving political illusion. On
the contrary, the war in the Pacific was still raging and the United States was still
trying to get the Soviet Union into the war against Japan when General Sibert
was already deep into his relationship with Gehlen.

The key point that comes crashing through the pracrical and moral confusion
about this matter, once one sees that Gehlen’s Organization was an arm of the
Odessa, is that, whether it was ethical or not, the ULS. did nor pick up a Gift
Horse in Gehlen ac all; it picked up a Trojan Horse.

The unconditional surrender the Germans made to the Allied command at
the little red schoolhouse in Reims was the surrender only of the German armed
services. [t was not the surrender of the hard SS core of the Nazi Parry. The 8§
did not surrender, unconditionally or otherwise, and thus Nazism iself did not
surrender. The SS chose rather, 1o seck other means of continuing the war while
the right wing of the United States milirary establishment, through fears and secret
passions and a naivete of its own, chose to facilitate that choice. The history that
we have lived through since then stands witness to the consequences.

xik"_*#
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MIND CONTROL,
THE ILLUMINATI &
THE JFK ASSASSINATION

KRIS MILLEGAN _

APPEARED ONLINE NOVEMBER 1996, AT WWW.PARASCOPE.COM — NOW AT WWW. BOODLEBOYS.COM

The nature of the universe is such that ends can never justify the means.
On the contrary, the means always determine the end. — Aldous Huxley

midst anguish and outrage, a question has plagued the collective
subconscious of America since 1963: Who killed President Kennedy?
As one who was alive when it happened, I can testify to the effects of
that act upon myself and to what I observed around me.

Tragedy is trawmatic.

I was pulled out of junior high Spanish class and sent our on the street sell-
ing newspapers containing the grim news. Only twice in my lifetime were kids
hawking papers on the street in our town; the day President John F Kennedy was
assassinated and the day Jack Ruby shot Lee Harvey Oswald.

Kennedy’s murder represents far more than the unlikely act of a “lone nut” or
even a concealed political con- e.e' "3 3 '
spiracy. A four-tiered nerwork § :
of power interests was respon-
sible for the Killing of the King
of Camelor, with the all-seeing
eye of the llluminati at the top
of the pyramid. Hanging from
the Hluminati puppet strings are
the Masons, Mafia and other
secret societies, followed by the
national security state apparatus/
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subculture. A rogue’s gallery of vartous commercial, ideological, political and
bureaucratic partners fill out the foundarion of this conspiracy.

What is the Illuminati? In 1785, a courier died en route to Paris from Frank-
fort-on-the-Main. Original Shift it Days of luminations, a tract written by Adam
“Spartacus” Weishaupt, founder of the Illuminari, was recovered from the dead
messenger. It contained the secret society’s long-range plan for The New World
Order through world revolution.

The Bavarian Government prompily outlawed the society and in 1787 pub-

_— lished the derails of The [luminari conspiracy in 7he Original
Ovlginalfasiiten  Wiirings of the Order and Sect of the Uwminati.
Jmastrndeas The [Mluminati was publicly founded May 1, 1776, ar the

s

waesren e University of Ingolstadt by Weishaupt, a Professor of Canon

Law. It was a very “learned” society; Weishaupt drew the earliest
members of his new order from among his students.
s In Adam Weishaupt's own words:

R
Whvany,
ey e it

S e “By this plan, we shall direct all mankind in

this manner, And, by the simplest means, we
shall set all in motion and in flames. The occupations must be
so allotted and contrived that we may, mn secret, mfluence all
political transactions.”

There is disagreement among scholars as to whether or not the Illuminari
survived its banishment. Nevertheless, under Weishaupt's guidance, the group
had been quite successful in attracting members and through various manipula-
tions had allied itself with the extensive Masonic networks in Europe and the
United Stares.

On December 5. 1776, students at William and Mary College founded a secret
society, Phi Beta Kappa. A second chaprer was formed at Yale
in 1780, The anti-Masonic movement which erupred in
the United States during the 18205 denounced the secrecy
of groups such as Phi Beta Kappa. The society responded
to this pressure by going public. Some researchers
note this as the direct cause of the appearance
of Yale's Order of Skull and Bones,

The alumni of Skull and Bones provide a di-
rect link berween secret societies and the state
department/national security apparatus.

From George Bush: The Unauthorized Biography:
... Prescott Bush [Skull & Bones| was a U.S. senator from Connecticut, a ¢confi-
dential friend and golf partner with National Secunity Director Gordon Gray, and
an important golf partner with Dwight Eisenhower as well. Prescott's old lawyer
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from the Nazi days, John Foster Dulles, was Secretary of State, and his brother
Allen Dulles, formerly of the Schroder bank, was head of the CIA.

.. In the later years of the Eisenhower presidency, Gordon Gray rejoined the
government. As an intimate friend and golfing partner of Prescott Bush, Gray
complemented the Bush influence on lke. The Bush-Gray family partnership in
the secret government continues up through the George Bush presidency.

Gordon Gray had been appointed head of the new Psydw]og,lul Strategy B Board
in 1951 under Averell Harnman's rule as assistant
to President Truman for national security affairs. i
From 1958 to 1961 Gordon Gray held the identi-
cal post under President Eisenhower. Gray acted
as Tke's intermediary, strategist and hand-holder, I R
in the President’s relations with the CIA and the | Gordon Gray taking oath of office for
1.8, and allied milit ary forces. | Director of the Psycology Stategy Board

Eisenhower dld not oppose the CIA’s covert action projects; he only wanted

& 10 be protected from the consequences of their failure or ex-

posure. Gray’s primary task, in the guise of oversight on all

U.S. covert action, was to protect and hide the growing mass
of CIA and related secret government activities.

It was not only covert projects which were developed by

the Gray-Bush-Dulles combination; it was also new, hidden

. W structures of the United States government.
Dwight Eisenhower

From The Immaculate Deception by Russell Bowen:

According to Nixon's biography, his personal and political ties with the Bush famuly
go back to 1946, when Nixon claims he read an ad placed in an LA. newspaper by the
Orange County Republican Party and a wealthy group of businessmen led
by Prescott Bush, the father of George Bush.

They wanted a young candidate to run for Congress. Nixon ap-
plied and won the job, becoming a mouthpiece for the Bush group,
b progressing to the U.S, Senate and in 1952 the vice presidency,

In 1960, Vice President Nixon was scouring the world seeking the
presidency. At his side was Prescott Bush. Congressman Gerald Ford
was helping raise funds, as was George Bush.

It took Nixon eight more years to reach his goal. And the canny
politician always remembered who helped him get
there. So again it was payback ume for George §
Bush. Nixon appointed him Chairman of the
BB Republican National Committee, and later am-
Prescott Bush bassador to China, Bush & Nixon

By 1976, Ford, who succeeded Nixon after Watergate, pard his due bill. He
picked out big job for his old crony, Bush: the CIA. But this time Bush would
not be an underling. Now he would be head man,
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MUDDY WATERS AND THE UNSEEN HAND
THE TRUTH ABOUT KENNEDY'S DEATH IS SUBMERGED IN CONSPIRATORIAL CHAOS

A century before the Roman Republic perished, twao brothers, the Gracchi, emerged
as popular leaders who were determined to check the corruption by wealth of the
city’s institutions. They were both killed. The murderers, who were never punished,
came from the senatorial class which bad felt threatened by the brothers’ reforms.
— Peter Dale Scott, Deep Politics

Onc of the most effective tactics employed by the conspirators was to “muddy
the waters” by bringing in as many “suspicious” individuals as possible into
the assassination arena, even having different reasons for each person’s presence
— if there were a covert reason for being in Dallas on November 22, 1963, all
the better. Scores of people were engaged in varied peripheral plots and sub-plots,
many of which were related rangentially or nor at all to the acrual assassination,
As a result, the pertinent facts drowned in a contrived whirlpool of suspicious,
but not necessarily related, activity.

But who was REALLY involved?

Rodney Stich’s book Defrauding America tells of a deep-
cover CIA officer assigned to a counter-intelligence unir,
code-named Pegasus. This unit had tape-recordings of plans
to assassinate Kennedy from a tap on the phone of J. Edgar

Hoover. The people on the tapes were [Nelson] Rockefeller,
Johnson & Nixon 8 Allers Dulles, [Lyndon] Johnsen of Texas, George [HW] Bush
and |. Edgar Hoover. |

According to Stich’s source, There were conversa- |
tions between Rockefeller, []. Edgar] Hoover, where
Rackefeller asks, "Are we going to have any problems?” |
And he said, “Na, we aren’t going to have any problems. ‘ :
[ checked with Dulles. If they do their job we'll do our g L
Job." There are a whole bunch of tapes, because Hoover | ‘d _ : .
didn realize that his phone had been tapped. Nelson, Rockeleller i/ thiughs

The inner core of the conspiracy is bound rightly together by oaths of secrecy
and afhiliations with various secret societies allied with various Nazi groups, mind
control operations and business ventures. Much of the operational apparatus used
in the conspiracy lay hidden in the shadow world of ultra-secrer national security
state entities such as Division Five of the FBI, the Defense Industrial Security
Command and double/triple agents of various allegiances, The Torbirt Document
_and The Man Who Knew Too Much detail the work-
ings of this actual operational framework. Agents
@l from psybureaus, future narcs, ultra-right-wingers,
doubles and dead ringers, politicians, spies, cops
24 all fall into the mix.
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Another key aspect of the JFK assassination is mind control.
Some researchers believe Lee Harvey Oswald was involved in
the CIA's MKULTRA project and was subjected to extensive
radio-hypnotic intracerebral control and electronic dissolution ks
of memory while in Minsk, Russia. But the question of mind Q" e
control extends far past the mechanics of the killing itself,

SAVAGE NEW TIMES — MIND CONTROL AND THE ILLUMINATI

Was KENNEDY'S MURDER ACTUALLY A RITUAL BLOOD SACRIFICE?

1 think the subject which will be of most importance politically is Mass Psychology

.. Its importance has been enormously increased by the growth of modern methods
of propaganda. Although this science will be diligently studied, it will be rigidly
confined to the governing class. The populace will not be allowed to know how
its convictions are generated. — Bertrand Russell

he more one studies mind control, secret societies and the occult, the
more one understands the subtlety and hidden symbolism of the Kennedy
assassination.

James Shelby Downard’s underground classic, Sorcery. Sex, Assassination and the
Setence of Symbolism, links American historical events with a grand occult plan o
turn us into cybernetic mystery zombies. The assassination of JFK was a performance
of the occult rirual called The Killing of the King, designed as a mass-trauma,
mind-control assault against the national body-politic of the United States.

Mr. Downard’s co-researcher and author, Michael A. Hoffman I1, wrote in
Secret Socteties and Psychological Warfare that: “fabled alchemy Secret
had ar least three goals to accomplish before the total decay |  Societies
of matter, the rotal breakdown we are witnessing all around

us today, was fulfilled and these are:

The Creation and Destruction of Primordial Marzer. A
The Killing of the Ditine King. Psycbolugical
The Bringing of Prima Materia to Prima Térra.” Warfare

it 5 i 11

Hoffman writes: [The following excerpt is copyright @ 1995 by Michael A.
Hoffman II. All Rights Reserved. Used by permission.]

Since ancient times these were the goals of the Gnostic-Rosicrucian-Masonic-
Hermetic Academy, an elite as real and corporeal as President Bush’s Skull and
Bones soctety at Yale University, the Bohemian Grove in California; Dr. John
Whiteside Parson’s Ordo Templi Orientis (OTO) also in California; General
Albert Pike’s Scottish and Palladian Rites of Freemasonry and a host of lesser
imitators. All of these cults have or had the highest possible offices, connections
and old boy networks.
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The Creation and Destruction of Primordial Matter was accomplished
at the White Head ("Ancient of Days”), at White Sands, New Mexico, at the
Trinity Site. The Trinity Site itself is located at the beginning of an ancient
Western road known in old Mexico as the Jornada del Muerto (the Journey
of the Dead Man).

Early in this century a Freemason named Peter Kern was ordered to build
a highly symbolic “Gate of Death” at a key point on this ancient trail. It was
known as the Gate with a Thousand Doors.

At the front of this gate Kern was ceremonially murdered (decapitated) by
a hooded executioner. Gary Trudeau satirized the Aztec-masonic Comazotz
head-chopping cult of the American Southwest in a series of December, 1988,
Doonesbury cartoons which depicted Skull and Bones initiates trying to dispose
of a number of heads including that of Pancho Villa, a key political operative of
the cryptacracy who was in fact also ritually decapitated.

Other occult rituals for the Creatron and Destruction of Primordial Marter
were played out in the general area of the 33rd degree of north parallel latitude in
Truth or Consequences, New Mexico. The Trinity Site 1s also at this latitude,

There are 33 segments in the human spinal column which according to occult
lore is the vehicle of the hiery ascent of the Kundalini serpent force which resides
in the human body. 33 is the highest degree of Scottish Rite Freemasonry. Near
the Trinity Site a derelict shack was symbaolically dubbed “MacDonald House.”
The Creation and Destruction of Primordial Matter occurred exactly on
the Trinity Site, the Place of Fire, with the explosion of the first atomic bomb,
culminating untold thousands of years of alchemical speculation and practce.

The Killing of the King rite was accomplished at another Trinity site located
approximately ten miles south of the 33rd degree of north parallel latitude between
the Trinity River and the Triple Underpass at Dealey Plaza in Dallas, Texas. Dealey
Plaza was the site of the first masonic temple in Dallas. In this spot, which had
been known during the 19th century cowboy era as “Bloody Elm Street,” the
world leader who had become known as the “King of Camelor,” Presidem John
Firzgerald Kennedy, was shm to death.

1 T : A widely publicized 1mage, which
has become perhaps the key symbol of
i the enigma of the Kennedy hoodwink,
- emerged immediately in the wake of the
assassination: a photograph of three
“tramps” in official custody, who were
unexplainably released and never iden-
tified, though speculation about who
| they really were has reached fever pitch
l'lu Th:rr Tramps — Dallas, Texas, T\(wembvr 1963 L among anCSTIEJ!‘OH

This photograph is a ritual accompaniment of the Black Mass that was the
ceremonial immolation of a king, the unmistakable calling card of masonic murder,
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the appearance of Jubela, Jubelo and Jubelum, the three “unworthy craftsmen”
of Temple burlesque, “that will not be blamed for nothing.” This ritual symbol-
ism is necessary for the accomplishment of what James Shelby Downard and |
described in the first edition of Apocalypse Culture, as the alchemical intention
of the killing of the ‘King of Camelot”:

“... the ulumate purpose of thar assassination was not political or economic
but sorcerous: for the control of the dreaming mind and the
marshaling of its forces 1s the omnipotent force in this entire
scenario of lies, cruelty and degradation. Something died in the
American people on Nov, 22, 1963 — call it idealism, innocence
or the quest for moral excellence. It is the transformation of
human beings which is the authentic reason and motive for the
Kennedy murder ..."

The seemingly random and senseless slaughter of a President the week before
Thanksgiving, by having lus head blown apart in those now infamous Zapruder
film frames, 1s the signpost of humanity’s entry into what David Cronenberg in
his Videodrome Rosicrucian cinematic manifesto termed, “Savage New Times.”

The search for the three assassins has become a trip up and down Tim Finnegan's
ladder, a ladder containing “one false step after another.” It is 2 masonic riddle
several magnitudes above the pedestrian, CIA-Maha-Anti-Castro-Castro-KGB-Texas
nghtwing etc. etc. political “solutions™ pushed by the various books and movies
which sometimes only serve to confuse and demoralize us all the more.

JER 11/14/63

THE ALCHEMY OF RITUAL MURDER

What ought to be unambiguous to any student of mass psychology, is the
almost immediate decline of the American people in the wake of this shocking
televised slaughter. There are many indicators of the transformation. Within a
year Americans had largely switched from softer-toned, naturally colored cotton
clothing to garish-colored artificial polyesters. Popular music became louder,
faster and more cacophonous. Drugs appeared for the first tume outside the
Bohemian subculture ghettos in the mainstream, Extremes of every kind came
into tashion. Revolutions in cognition and behavior were on the honzon, from
the Beatles to Charles Manson, from Free Love to LSD.

The killers were not caught,
the Warren Commission was a
whitewash, There was a sense that
the men who ordered the assas-
sination were grinning somewhere
over cocktails and out of this, a i
nearly-psychedelic wonder seized IQ"
the American population, an awe- §
some shiver before the realization

that whoever could kill a president ! . e
LB] 1aking oath of office, 11/22/63
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of the United States in broad dayvhghr and get away with i, could ger away with
anything,

A hidden government behind the visible governmens of these United States
became painfully obvious in a kind of sublimmal way and lent an undercurrent
of the hallucinogenic to our reality. Welcome to Oz thanks to the men behind
Oswald and Ruby.

There was a transfer of power n the collecuve group mind of the American
masses: from the public power of the elected front-man Chief Execunive, to an
unelected invisible college capable of terminating him with impunity.

For the first time in their history since the 1826 masonic assassination of
writer William Morgan, Americans were forced 1o confront the vertigimous reality
of a hidden power ruling their world. Sir James Frazer wriung in The Golden
Bough: A Study in Magic and Religion, explains that when the “dwine king”
1s murdered by one who is lnmself stronger or craftier, those powers of “divinity”
which were the king's are “Sympathetically” and "Contagiously” transferred from
the vanquished ro the victor,

The entry of this awareness into the subconscious Group “Dreammng™ Mind
of the American masses instituted a new simulacrum, The shocking introduction
of a diametrically different, new “reality” 1s a classic scenario of another phase of
alchemical programming known to the cryprocracy as “Clamores.”

Dave Marsh wniting in Rolling Stone magazine (Feb. 24, 1977): “The Beatles
have always had an intimate con-
nection to the JFK assassination,
He was shot the week before
Thanksgiving 1963. By February
1964, the Beatles were number
one 1n the national charts and
the climactic appearance on Ed
Sullivan's TV show accurred.
Even Brian Epstein (the manager
of the Beatles) believed the Ken-
nedy assassination helped their nse — the Beatles appeared to bind our wounds
with their messages of joy and handholding .... And the way was paved, replacing
Camelot with Oz

Now the American people were forced 10 confront a scary alternative reality,
the reality of a shadow government, over which they had neither control or knowl-
edge. The shepherding process was thus accelerated with a vengeance. Avant-garde
adverusing, music, politics and news would hereafter depict (especially in the
clectronic media) — sometimes {lectingly, sometimes openly — a “shadow ade”
of reality, an underground amoral “funhouse”™ current associated with extreme

sex, extreme violence and extreme speed.
The static images of the sutt-and-tie talking heads of establishment religion,
government, politics and business were subtly shown to be subordinate 1o the
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Shadow State, which the American people were gradually getting a bigger glimpse
of out of the corner of their collective eye. The interesting function of this
phenomenon is that 1t ssmultaneously produces both terror and adulation and
undercuts any offensive against 1t among its percipients, which does not possess
the same jump-cut speed and funhouse ambiance.

There is a sense of existing in a palace of marvels manipulated by beautitul but
Satanic princes possessed of so much knowledge, power and experience as to be
vastly superior to the rest of humanity. They have been everywhere. They have
done everything. They run the show which mesmenzes us, We are determined
to watch 1t. We are transfixed and desperate to see their newest production, their
latest thrilling revelation, even when the thrills are solely based upon the further
confirmation of our dehumanization.

J.G. Ballard: “In this overlit realm ruled by images of the space race and the
Vietnam War, the Kennedy assassination and the suicide of Marilyn Monroe, a
unique alchemy of the imagination was taking place ... The demise of feeling
and emotion, the death of affect, presided like a morbid sun over the playground
of that ominous decade.

“The role assigned to us is that of zombies called upon by our shadow masters
to perform bit parts and act as stock characters in their spectacular show. This
mesmerizing process produces a demoralized, cynical, double-mind.”

— Secrer Societies and Psychological Warfare, pp. 91-95.

(Secret Societies and Psychological Warfare is available for U.S.
$17.95 plus $2.50 shipping (overseas remit $5.00 shipping),
from: Independent History and Research, Box 849, Coeur
d’Alene, Idaho 83816.)

Tohn F. Keanedy

The perpetrators deliberately murdered JFK in such a way as to aftect our narional
identity and cohesiveness — to fracture America’s soul. Even the blatancy of their
conspiracy was designed to show their superiority and our futrlity. Theywere doing
to the nation what they had been doing to individuals for years.

Looking into the subject of mind-control, one finds that the scope is wide
and methods used are sophisticated. Mind control traces its origins ro religious
institutional use by priesthoods. Techniques of mind control developed in our
western culture were field-tested by the Jesuits, certain Vatican groups, and vari-
ous mystery religions, secret societies and masonic organizations. Methods tested
' during the Inqumtmn were refined by Dr. Josef Mengele
during the reign of the Third Reich.

After World War I, hundreds of Nazi scientists, research-
ers and administrators were “smuggled” into the United
States against direct written orders from President Harry S.
N Truman, through Operation Sunrise, Operation Blowback,
Harry 5. Traman  P# Operation Paperclip and other covert operations.
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Soon afterwards, a mind control project called Mari-
onette Programming imported from Nazi Germany was
revived under the new name, “Project Monarch.” The basic
component of the Monarch program is the sophisticated
manipulation of the mind, using extreme trauma to in-
duce Multiple Personality Disorder (MPD), now known

as Disassociative Disorder.

¥ In public testimony submitted to the President’s Com-
mittee on Radiation, there are amazing allegations of severe
torture and inhumane pogroms foisted upon Americans
and other citizens, especially as children. These same children were used in ra-
diation experiments. They derail the drug and traumatic
methodology of sophisticated mind control. Survivors
tell similar stories of brutal mind control experimenta-
rion as part of the ClAs MKULTRA program. Many
mind control survivors speak of a “Dr. Greene.” Some
survivors and researchers have identified Dr. Greene as
the infamous Dr. Mengele.

But mind control programs and assassinations are merely part of a much
larger enterprisebeing carried out by an international network of power interests.
In 1993, a researcher-lawyer anonymously posted on the Internet his ten-year
investigation of this conspiracy on the Internet. Calling the JFK assassination
part of a 50-year conspiracy, he detailed the structure of this international
nerwork, which he named “the group.” The inner workings and New World
Order agenda of this group fit snugly with whart other researchers have called
the Illuminati.

Hitler at Nuremberg rally

THE NEwW WORLD ORDER
Americans’ trust of government has steadily declined since JFK's death.

After all, it was you and me. — The Rolling Stones, Sympathy for the Devil”

Soon after the American Revolution, John Robinson, a professor of natural
philosophy at Edinburgh University in Scotland and member of a Freemason
lodge, said that he was asked ro join the Illuminati. After studying the group,
he concluded that the purposes of the Illuminati were not compatible with his
beliefs.

In 1798, he published a book called Proafs Of A Conspiracy, which states:

An association has been formed for the express purpose of rooting out all
the religious establishments and overturning all the existing governments ..., The
leaders would rule the World with uncontrollable power, while all the rest would
be employed as tools of the ambition of their unknown superiors.
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Proofs of A Conspiracy was sent to George Washington.
Responding to the sender of the book with a letter,
President Washington said he was well aware of the §
llluminari presence in America. He wrote thar the Il- [
luminati had diabolical tenets and thar their object was ||
a separation of the People from their government.
The decades following the JFK assassination have |
been marked by increasing cynicism and disillusion-
ment among the American people towards a government
which acts as an elite, aloof institution at the disposal |
of powerful forces both seen and unseen. Washington's [
statement of “a separation of the People from their government” has come to pass.
As the glaciers of a contrived Cold War melt down, our “government”
| is steadily militarizing and expanding its police powers, turning away
| from foreign targets of aggression 1o focus on domestic “insurrec-
tion.” Although the foundation of this conspiracy has been under
construction for centuries, the poisoned fruits of Lo
these labors burst into bloom on that dark day #&

in Dealey Plaza forty years ago.

So did Oz-wald do it all by himself?
Or are we all patsies on the bloody path to the

New World Order?
[ Lee Harvey Oswald

!‘iﬁ:#

Supporting documentation and articles at:

www.boodleboys.com
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PRESCOTT BUSH,
tHE UNION BANKING CORPORATION
anD T HE STORY

KRIS MILLEGAN

AUGUST 2003

q4 HERE'S THREE THINGS TO REMEMBER: claim everything, explain
nothing, deny everything,” recalled Prescott Bush as to how politics
was explained to him by Clare Booth Luce, congresswoman and

wife of fellow Bonesman and magazine magnate, Henry Luce. The remarks

were recorded in a 1966 interview with Prescott for an oral history project

about the Eisenhower Administration by Columbia University.

The Bush political family seems to have taken those words to heart, one example
being the story of Prescott’s involvement with the Union Banking Corporation
and the financing of Hitler and fascism. Why there has been such a deliberare
and hard cover-up of this affair is in no doubt due to its sensitrve nature.

The who, what and where of this business is already covered in several of the
other articles in this book. Here we will examine the story as it appears today.

The specific allegations about the Union Banking Corporation first surfaced
in Antony Sutton’s 1975 book, Wall Street and the Rise of Hitler. Sutton at that
time did not know about the Order of Skull & Bones. After becoming aware
of the Order in 1983 he expanded his writings on the subject in How the Order
Creates War and Kevolution in 1984, which was later published, with Antony’s
three other booklets on The Order of Skull & Bones, together as Americas Secret
Establishment in 1986. The charges were articulated again in 1988 in Sutton’s
The Two Faces of George Bush.

The mainstream press and establishment historians sgnored Sutton's books
and the accusations.

In 1992, Webster Tarpley and Anton Chaitkin authored George Bush: The Unasushor-
rzed Biography (some chapters are presented in this book), which took the investigations
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further, They found in U.S, government archives the vesting order seizing the Union
Banking Corporation and documented other Harriman/Bush controlled interests that
were doing business with the Nazis. Their book was published by Executive Intelligence
Review, a Lyndon Laurouche organization, and again the reports were ignored.

John Loftus, a former attorney for the Office of Special Operations prosecuting
Nazi war criminals in the US Justice Department also added information abour
the situation in his 1994 book, The Secrer War Against the Jeiws,

A Dutch producer Daniél de Witr, from Durch National Television interviewed
Sutton, Chaitkin, Tarpley and others in 1996, for a documenrary on Skull &
Bones that included confirmation from Dutch officials concerning the Union
Banking Corporation and its acrivities in financing Hitler through a Durch bank,
the Bank voor Handel en Scheepvart (Bank for Trade and Shipping). From the
documentary: “Original documents of the Amsterdam based International In-
stitute of Social History (Instituur voor Sociale Geschiedenis) clearly show the
connection between the BHS, the August Thyssen Bank from Fritz Thyssen and
Harriman's Union Banking Corporation.”

The show — as produced — never aired.* The show was listed in printed sched-
ules and there was a preview in a TV guide bur the program was pulled just before
being a televised in 1998. Finally in January 2001, a re-edited thirry minute seg-
ment of the original eighty minute film was aired plus ten minutes of new footage
of interviews of the movie, The Skulls, writer and director.

With the advent and growth of the Internet and its ability to by-pass the
mainstream media editorial bottleneck there was a growing awareness of the
Nazi-Bush financial connections. Newspaper reporter Michael Kranish finally
made the accusations public through a mainstream press article in the Boston
Globe that became the story abour the charges. A front-page article headlined
Triumphs, Troubles Shape Generations, ran on April 23, 2001, The srory was told
in first three paragraphs.

The story:

Prescott Bush was surely aghast a1 a sensational article the New York Flevald Tribune
splashed on 1ts front page in July 1942,

“Hitler’s Angel Has 3 Million in US Bank,” read the headline above a story reporting
that Adolt Hitler's financier had stowed the fortune in Umon Banking Corp,, possibly w
be held for “Nazi bigwigs.” Bush knew all about the New York bank: He was one of its
seven directors. I the Nazi tie became known, it would be a potential “embarrassment,”
Bush and his partners at Brown Brothers Harniman worried, explaining to government
regulators that their pesition was merely an unpaid courtesy for a client. The siuarion
grew more serious when the government seized Union's assets under the Trading with
the Enemy Act, the sort of action that could have ruined Bush’s political dreams

As it turned out, his involvement wasn't pursued by the press or palitical npponents
during his Senate campaigns a decade later. Bur the episode may well have been one of
the catalysts for a dramauc change m his life. Just as the Umon Banking story broke,

" see pote, page 212 204



PRESCOTT BUSH AND THE UNION BANKING CORPORATION

Bush volunteered to be chairman of United Service Organizations, putting himself on
the national stage for the first time. He traveled the country raising millions of dollars to
help boost the morale of US troops during World War II, enhancing his starure in 2 way
that helped him get elected US senator. A son and grandson would become presidents,

The next fifty plus paragraphs extolled Prescort’s liberal virtues, proclaimed him
to be “akin to the Kennedys™ and mentions Prescott’s membership in the Yale
singing group the Whiffenpoofs, but failed to inform about his membership in
the Order of Skull & Bones.

Alexandra Robbins, a member of Yales second oldest senior secrer society
Scroll & Key, used the srory in 2002 to deflect the charges in her faux exposé of
the Order of Skull & Bones, Secrets of the Tomb:

Nor was it Skull and Bones that specifically instructed members to aid Adolt Hitler,
though Hitler’s financier stowed $3 million in the Union Banking Corporation, a bank
thar counted among its seven directors Prescott Bush.

Thatt ir. That is Ms. Robbins complete comment on the subject of the Union
Banking Corporation, financing of Hitler and the Order of Skull & Bones. No
mention about the American Ship and Commerce Company, Consolidated
Silesian Steel Corporation, Hamburg-Amerika Lines, Harriman Fifreen Corpo-
ration, Harriman International Company, Holland-American Trading Company,
Steamless Steel Corporation or the Silesian-American Corporation, companies of
which Brown Brothers Harriman were involved and all of which were enmeshed
with Hitler’s rise to power. No mention that under the Trading with the Enemy
Act many of these companies were seized and were placed at the US Office of
Alien Property Custodian. No mention thar the Union Banking Corporation was
established in August 1924 with George Herbert Walker serving as president and
working out of the offices of W. A. Harriman and Company. No mention that in
1932, four out of the eight bank directors were members of the Order of Skull &
Bones. No mention that, in the fall of 1942 when Union Banking Corporation
was taken over by the government, that a toral of three out of seven directors
were members of the Order and that a fourth director was an employee of Brown
Brothers Harriman — effectively giving Brown Brothers Harriman voting control,
Nao mention that while there were many other non-Bones personnel in parmership
at Brown Brothers Harriman, none of them were directors of Union Banking,
only Bones partners were on the Union Banking Corporation board. The only
exception being not another partner but a Brown Brothers Harriman employee. No
mention that two of the other directors have been identified as Nazis. There was
no mention of published accounts such as "[a] 1934 congressional investigation
alleged that Walker's Hamburg-Amerika Line subsidized a wide-range of pro-Nazi
propaganda efforts both in Germany and the United States;” or that in June of
1936 “[i|nstead of divesting of the Nazi money, [Prescott] Bush hired a lawyer
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to hide his assets. The lawyer he hired ... was Allen Dulles.” Was it because Ms.
Robbins didn't do her homework — or was she just advancing the story?

The szory next gets extended and muassaged in Mickey Herskowitz’s craftily written
just released 2003 biography of Prescott Bush, Dury, Honer, Country:

In everyone’s life there is a summer of ‘42; Prescort Bush spent his on Wall
Street, where nostalgia and romance are not the hor commodities they were in the
motion picture that made the phrase symbolic.

A headline that landed on the front page of the New Yotk Herald Tribune in July
of that year read: “Hitler’s Angel Has 3 Million mn US. Bank.” The reference was to the
Union Banking Corporation. Prescott may have been upset or alarmed by the disclosure
— he was one of its seven directors. A person of less established ethics would have been
panicked.

The story claimed that the bank held $3 million in deposits for a German business-
man, described as a “financier” for Adolf Hitler. There was speculation that the account
may have been intended for the later use of “Nazi bigwigs.”

Buried m the databases that dealt with the Bush family political tradition, the article
was rediscovered and reported in the Boston Globe, in April 2001, by Michael Kranish.
He concluded in the article that the connection had represented a potential “embarrass-
ment” for Prescott. No one actually knew what purpose the fortune had been meant
to serve, or who controlled it. Possibly, the money had been socked away as a hedge
aganst Germany’s defeat.

Bush and his partners at Brown Brothers Harriman informed the government regula-
tors that the account, opened in the late 1930s, was “an unpaid courtesy for a client. The
situation,” wrote Kranish, “grew more serious when the government seized Union’s assets
under the Trading with the Enemy Act, the sort of action that could have ruined Bush's
political dreams.” The phrase was an ominous one.

The client was believed to be a friend of Charles Lindbergh, according to Roland
Harriman. Prescott Bush acted quickly and openly on behalf of the firm, served well by
a reputation that had never been compromised. He made avatlable all records and all
documents. Viewed six decades later in the era of seral corporate scandals and shattered
careers, he received what can be viewed as the ultimate clean bill.

A decade later when he ran for the Senate, his involvement in the bank went untouched
by the press or his political opponents.

Earlier that year he had accepted the charmanship of the USO (United Service
Organizations.) He traveled the country over the next two years raising mullions for the
National War Fund and, as the Boston Globe noted, “putting himself on the national
stage for the first nume ... (and) boosting the morale of U.S, troops.” Out of adversity
good things came.

Again the other companies are conveniently ignored and new facts appear out
of thin air and a theme is laid down. Mr. Herskowitz doesn't cite any known
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sources for this new information. He cites the Kranish article but does not cite
the Herald-Tribune or any other contemporaneous accounts; he says he had ac-
cess to 46-hours of taped interviews and scrapbooks from the Bush family and
mentions archives at the University of Connecticut. So we do not know where
he gathered this particular new information. We do know that it is incorrect
and misleading.

Let us examine the story:

First off the Herald-Tribune aricle didn't appear in July of 1942 it was acru-
ally printed in July of 1941. The article itself proved to be quite the challenge to
find. I talked with several different researchers and none had been able to find it,
although spending hours looking at microfilm. Since, there was never a complete
date given, just July, 1942, researchers were having to look at the whole month
of July and when it wasn't found there, began looking in June and August.

In a July 2003, call to Mr. Kranish at the Globe I was told that “several other
people” had called him telling him that they were “unable to find it.” Thar there
wasn't a complete date reference on the Herald- Tribune article because the article
— he had found it in an “archive of archives” — was cut out and there was not
a full date just a month and year. He said he was sure it was July 1942, [ asked
Mike, if it was a special edition and if I could find out where this archive was?
He said, “The Herald-Tribune doesn’t exist anymore and it is hard to find. you
are just going to have to take my word for it. The story definitely appeared.” He
then excused himself as being busy, that he had written the story over two years
ago and he needed to go.

Well, we have found proof that the article did indeed appear — in July of 1941.
First we found on Alex Jones™ infowars.com website an article from the July 31,
1941, Zanesville Stgnal in Ohio, The Thyssen/Union Banking news story was in
an INS (International News Service) wire report, which says that it was “disclosed
today in a news story in the New York Jowrnal American. We then found, at
ancestry.com, an AP wire report in the Sheboygan Press, a Wisconsin newspaper
of August 1, 1941 which stated: “The Herald-Tribune said Thursday [July, 31,
1941}, that Fritz Thyssen, German industrialist credited with helping finance
Adolf Hitler's rise to power, ‘has $3,000,000 in American cash salted away in the
bank vaults of downtown New York.™ Armed with the correct date, we were then
able to find both the New York Herald-Tribune and New York Journal American
stories. The articles are presented in full later in this chapter.

So, big deal, what difference does a year make? Well, let's see — in July of 1941
when the article was really printed, there was no declared war, and the sroryal-
lows the rehabilitation of Prescott’s honorby allowing him to “enhance his stature”
before the revealing newspaper article, instead of after. The truch of the marter,
that Prescott was possibly running for cover in February 1942, by serving as the
national chairman of USO, is not broached and the seandalis covered-up.
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What “embarrassment” Prescott may have felt isn't known. The incident isn't
discussed in his oral history interviews nor were there any contemporancous
news articles except for the one Aurry in July/August 1941 and the articles that
mention his name do so without any personal comments. Neither establishment
historians nor the mainstream media have dealt with the episode in any depth.
Sutton’s works and others have been quictly ignored for years, it is only the power
of the Internet that has brought forth the srory.

In the History Of The Class Of 1917 Yale College, Volume V — Twensy-Fifth
Record printed in 1942, Prescott proudly proclaims his directorship of the Union
Banking Corporation, listing it third behind CBS and The Dresser Manufactur-
ing Company and ahead of six other substantial companies. He had been on
the bank’s board since 1934, his father-in-law was a founder and had been the
bank’s president. It really wasn't a bank per s¢, but acted has a holding company
for Thyssen, the German Steel Trust and its related components in their dealings
with American industrial and financial markets. It allowed the Thyssen interests
to raise money, sell and buy goods in America and then use Union Banking
Corporation as their reciprocal bank to transter monies back and forth.

And the theme of poor ol diligent, naive Prescort and partners being lummoxed
by Charles Lindbergh into such a position of “embarrassment” — is unfounded
blame-shifting. The statements by Mr. Herskowitz of “|nfo one actually knew
for what purpose the fortune had been meant 1o serve, or who controlled it” and
“that the account [was| opened in late 19305" are incorrect and disingenuous at
best. The bank had working relations with the Thyssen interests since the 1920%s
and Prescott would have had access to informartion concerning business. Prescott
had been a director of the bank since the carly 1930s and he was “running the
business” at Brown Brothers Harriman at the time of the scandal. In Prescott’s
own words, from the Columbia University oral history: “... the partners, like
myself and Knight Wooley, who became — certainly after Lovett went to Wash-
ingron in 1940 — from then on, we were really running the business, the day
to day business, all the administrative decisions and the executive decisions. We
were the ones that did it.”

The Union Banking Corporation was capitalized ar $400,000 (most of the
stock held by Roland Harriman) and acted as a repository for Thyssen'’s funds
carned in the United States. Tarpley and Chaitkin have written thar government
mvestigators reported “the Union Banking Corporation has since its inception
[1924] handled funds chiefly supplied to it through the Dutch bank for Thyssen
interests for American investment.” Averell Harriman had been in Berlin in 1922
establishing a “Berlin Branch of W. A. Harriman & Co. under George Walker's
presidency” at which time he "became acquainted with Fritz Thyssen,”

In the 1941 articles it was reported that Union Baking Corporation’s three
million in funds had been frozen in May of 1940 and that the three million dol-
lars, came from “organizations [that] did a thriving business rolling-up dollars.”
There were four and a half billion dollars in “foreign assets frozen by the US
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Government since Adolf Hitler’s armies began overrunning Europe” in US banks.
Dutch, Belgian, Norwegian and French assets were frozen in 1940 — atier the
Nazis occupied those countries. German assets were frozen June 14, 1941,

President Roosevelt ordered Axis funds in the United States frozen. In view
of the unlimited national emergency declared by the President, ... The Executive
Order 1s designed, among other things, to prevent the use of the financial facili-
ties of the United States in ways harmful to national defense and other American
interests, to prevent the liquidation in the United States of assets looted by duress
or conquest, and to curb subversive activities in the United States. Bulletin,
p. 718, See also Vol. 6, Federal Register, p. 2897 (http://www.ibiblio.org/pha/
timeline/4106int.htm)

So had an intrepid reporter, tracking down leads about frozen assets uncovered
the story? Or was it some sort of controlled leakage? Over a third of the article
consists of the letters to and from the Superintendent of Banks of the State of
New York which give some “patriotic” cover for the Brown Brothers Harriman
partners. The article also sets out docrored facts, some in the bold subheads, such
as “Enlisted Harriman in 1925, that is even contradicted in the newsstory. The
theme of the Herald-Tribune article is a “chance” meeting, that it may be or not
be that bad or duped Thyssen’s fault, that no compensation was received and
how above-board and approved the whole affair is from the government’s view.
The use of controlled scandal to deflect and cover-up deeper scandal has been
used many times in US political life and it sometimes even gets a teporter off an
editor’s back. The story runs and is forgoteen.

No marter whar the reason, the reportage was quietly stfled. With Luce's
Time-Life combine, Harriman's position at Newsweek and other Bones influenced
media such as CBS, the New York 7imes and others, the scandal was effectively
killed as an item of news.

There was no coverage of the Herald-Tribune article’s informarion on the
Thyssen/Union Banking Corporation connection in the national news weeklies,
the New York Times, the Wall Street Journal or even the New York Daily Worker,
The afternoon daily, Hearst-owned Journal-American’s article was basically a
condensed re-hash of the earlier Herald Tribune articles.

The next known mention of the Union Banking Corporation in the news was
the cryptic one sentence in the December 16, 1944 New York Times® financial
pages saying that:

The Union Banking Corporation, 39 Broadway, New York, has received
authority to change its principal place of business to 120 Broadway.

The real story continued to be suppressed. No reportage that the corporation
was taken over by the US Government under the Trading with the Enemy Act

* See page 204 209
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in the fall of 1942, nor thart the address to where Union Banking Corporation
was moved was the Office of the Alien Property Custodian.

Maybe that power to suppress, to fabricate, to deny everything and to explain
nothing was why Prescott was so blasé and felt no need to hide from his peers his
directorship in a company that had already been reported by the New York press
to be holding $3 million dollars in Nazi funds, prior to him putting the “bite”
on classmates as the National Chairman in Charge of the 1942 Fund Drive for
the USO.

The next mention of Thyssen in the news were reviews in newspapers, and in
magazines, such as 7ime, Newsweek and Nation, for the book, [ Paid for Hitler,
by Fritz Thyssen. In Bonesman Henry Luce’s 7tme magazine October 13, 1941
it was reported that a co-writer, Emery Reeves a journalist, who in April of 1940
met with Thyssen in Paris and persuaded Thyssen to go to Monte Carlo with
Reeves, “a collaborator and a secretary.” Where Thyssen would “dictate three
solid hours every day, then revised and approved the copy.”

In late May 1940. Reeves went “to Paris to check some names and dates.” As
the Germans were also on their way to Paris. Reeves left France for Britain on a
British destroyer. “He never saw or heard from Thyssen again. After more than a
year, it seemed obvious that Thyssen was a captive; for if he were free, he would
have communicated with his family in South America. Alive or dead, he was
Reeves decided, beyond the power of the book to hurt or help. So Reeves decided
to publish.”

The book has Thyssen pounding his head and muttering ** Ein Dummbkopfwar
ie/’ (What a dumbhead [ was’)” and reports about Thyssen’s financial assistance
to Hitler prior to the Beer Hall Putsch of 1923, The Thyssen role in financing
Hitler is covered extensively in other chapters, so we will not recount that history
here. A new revelation in the book was the novel conspiracy theory that Adolph
Hitler was the illegitimate son of Baron Rothschild. 7 Paid for Hirler was published
in New York, by Farrar & Rinehart. Chairman of the Board of Farrar & Rinehart
was John Chipman Farrar a member of the 1918 cell of the Order of Skull &
Bones. The class that had been tapped by Prescott’'s Bones cell. The 1918 Bones
cell included US Congressman Malcolm Baldridge, CIA personnel Director E
Trubee Davison, mega-businessman Artemus Gates and the then, in 1941, Asst.
Secretary of War and Brown Brothers Harriman partner Robert A Lovett. They
had all been part of the famous Palm Beach, Florida, Yale WW I flying unit.

John C Farrar during WW [1 was a member of the Psychological Warfare
Branch in the Office of War Information and was an editor for some of the OW1
propaganda publications.

After the war, Thyssen “denied authorship” of [ Paid for Hitler. Was there
more to the book than met the eye? Was [ Paid for Hitler created ro confuse and
possibly rehabilitate certain individuals and diffuse and confuse situations in the
war-charged American atmosphere of the early 1940s? Similar to Bonesman
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Luce’s Life magazine reversing the Zapruder film frame of the JFK murder so as
to accommodate the physics of the official story of that action,

You have got to be willing to do a lot of things furtively and secretly, to bring
about a situation that will accomplish what you want to have accomplished.
— Prescott Bush, speaking about the intelligence services in his oral history,
done by Columbia University.

Prescott definitely understood this and it seems as though he and Brown Brothers
Harriman were trying to keep the scandalin the dark — before some newshound broke
the soon to be squashed news — because in the July 31, 1941, New York Herald- Tribuneit
says that seven months before, in January of 1941, Brown Brothers Harriman partner and
Bonesman, Knight Wooley had written to the NY Stace Banking Board Superintendent
that “[s}hould the United States enter the war, they [the Union Banking Corporation
American directors] felt they might be under some embarrassment, ... "

Kepr in the dark it was and Prescotr won a special election in 1952, after the
death of a sitting Senator, to serve as a US Senator from Connecticut. General
Dwight Eisenhower, whom Prescott in November of 1951, had urged to run
for the Republican party nomination for President of the US was also elected,
Prescott golfed with President Eisenhower often, and spent a half-hour alone
with him on lke’s last day as President.

Senator Bush served on the Banking Committee, many times as a conract
person for World Bank and Federal Reserve officials, who sometimes looked for
more casual places to do business than the Senate committee rooms. In his second
term — protecting his state’s interests — Prescott also served as a member of the
Armed Service Committee. For years Connecticut had received more per capita
of the defense dollar than any other state earning itself the sobriquet, the "Arsenal
of Democracy.” That the Military-Industrial Complex began in Connecricut in
the 1800s is relevant ... but another tale,

Prescotr was a member of two private clubs in Washington, the Alibi Club and
the Alfalfa Club. Every presidential election season, the Alfalfa Club nominates
one of its members in jest to run for President of the United States. In January
1959 Senator Bush was the nominee for Alfalfa Party. His acceprance speech
was recorded and a transcript was included, by the Senator’s request, in his oral
history given to Columbia University. In this speech Prescortt says:

I recall here the immortal words of Granville Rice, when he wrote:
The rules of life apply the same

To any sport you choose

It maztters not how you play the game,

So long as you never lose.

Prescott Bush retired from the Senate in 1962, returning to his work at Brown
Brothers Harriman. He passed away in Ocrober of 1972. Antony Surton didn't
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write his book about the Order of Skull & Bones and the Union Banking Cor-
poration’s involvement with financing Hitler until 1984. The sroryand Prescort’s
defense didn'tappear till April 2001, just before his Bonesman grandson’s selection
to serve as the President of the United States.

Prescott never heard the story. Do we wonder ... what he would have said?

.

*A NOTE FROM DANIEL DE WIT, DUTCH TELEVISION PRODUCER;

mongst other things, what we had to cut was the information on the Bilderberg sociery
nd the ClA-drugs segment. What was left was as good as dead and was broadcast ar the
ultimate impossible hour of 3 PM on a Friday afternoon as every possible viewer is in traffic
going home. There never was a rerun. The reason we had to, well, kill our ‘child,” was because
the new head of the documentary department at that time could not stand behind our findings.
Eiven though they were based on facts and rold by experts. Thete was also a cultural difterence.
The new head was just recently promaored to this documentary department from a news section
that made very factual clips of maximum five minutes: "There is a fire and two people died.
Whilst our documentary was about ‘who lir the fire and why?" We had made a documenrary
— which is a view on reality based on facts — of one hour and twenty minutes and with a
subject that is beyond the frame of mind of many people consuming the news that they are fed.
This combination of events was the end of our documentary as such.

Making the program was quite an experience. not the least because of all the spooks we had
1o deal with for th CIA-drugs secgment. When we first started in 1995 there was no Internet, just
some old stencils of a hard to find book of a man known by only a few and the few who knew him,
thought Antony Surton was dead or lived on a high mountain. To communicare there was the fax
and the telephone, In 1996 the Internet came (for us at least) but information on Skull & Bones
was still hard to find, Try to explain that 1o anyone typing in “Skull and Bones™ in Google roday
and getting swamped in information.

The subject of Bones and all these kinds of institutions and people was a real eye opener.
As a mareer of fact, it changed my life and made me see the world completely different. So
much different that many simes things are one hundred percent different than they scem. Not
just ten of sixty percent, but really one hundred percent, turned upside down. On the one
hand the subject of Skull & Bones became less ‘dark.” because we found out the socicty is not
some sort of spouky world government, on the other hand it became darker, because these
Bones-like institutions and their members show a brute force and an enormous concentrated
power that is overwhelming and could make anyone very cynical very easily. Thar also must be
a reason people like ta stay away from these realities,

Since cortesponding and meeting with Antony Sutton he is my greatest example. Fe was
just a player in the game that has to be played, but he played his role very well. He made a
difference. I was then and still am "in the research business’, as Antony called it, digging deeper
as ever. bur it is extremely difficult to find resources to make new documentaries on the subjects
1 specialize in. Very frustrating, because the marker is there. It's just not easy convincing the
people who have the funds about this fact. In the meantime | began DaanSpeak.com, a web
aage that is an outlet for the information T collect and explain in my articles. [fs a hobby.
but 4 serious one. My main work is being a researcher for television programs. Through my
wehsite two program makers contacted me for their Dusch series that looks in a serious way
at the phenomenon of conspiracies. The series will show that it is a very normal and obvious
phenomenon. The program will air (although you never know) in Holland in January 2004.

Daniél de Wit
August 2003
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FLESHING OUT SKULL & BONES — INVESTIGATIONS INTO AMERICA’S MOST POWERFUL SECRET SOCIETY
New York Herald-Tribune, July 31, 1941

THYSSEN HAS $3,000.000 CASH IN NEW YORK VAULTS
Union Banking Corp. May Hide Nest Egg for High Nazis He Once Backed

By M. | Racusin

In the tides of economic warfare now
surging over the world, the New York
Herald Tribune, has discovered that Friz
Thyssen, the German industrialist who was
Adolf Hitler’s original parron on a prodigal
scale a decade has $3,000,000 in Ameri-
can cash, salted away in the bank vaults of
downtown New York.

In the American colony of Thyssen en-
terprises perhaps the most interesting is, the
Union Banking Corporation, 39 Broadway,
nominal guardian of the $3,000,000 cache,
all in United States currency — a sort of
nest egg for Herr Thyssen or perhaps for
some of his high-placed Nazi friends when
the present troublous days are over.

Among other Thyssen interests in New
York are half a dozen corporations engaged
in the shipping, export and import trades,
centering chiefly about coal and steel indus-
tries and operating under the wing of the
Union Banking Corporation. These organi-
zations did a thriving business in rolling up
dollars for Herr Thyssen in years past, but
have been broughr virrually to a standstill
during the last year by the war,

One of the most fascinating aspects of this
story is the mystery surrounding the Thyssen
fortune. At the moment, of course, no can
gerat this Thyssen nest egg, because it is part
of the $4,500,000,000 foreign assets frazen
by the United States government since Adolf
Hitler’s armies began overrunning Europe.

Government circles assert thar the as-
sets of the Union Banking Corporation
and its subsidiaries were frozen because
capital and control came from Nether-
lands institution called the, Bank voor
Handel en Scheepvaart (Bank for Trade,
and Shipping) in Rorterdam one of the
Thyssen string of banking houses on the
Continent. It was subject to the freezing
order, however, as a Dutch corporation and
not as a German-owned property.

As the Custodian of all Dutch property
outside the Netherlands, the Nerherlands
government in exile represents that i, too,
would seem to have some nights in the,
matter. Nevertheless all of Fricz Thyssen's
properties were confiscated by the Nazi
regime back in 1939, and thus it might
appear that the assets here are legally a part
of the German government’s assets in the
United States.

Rotterdam Bank Bombed

The Thyssen bank in Rotterdam which
nominally owned the New York corpora-
tion was bombed out of existence by the
invading Nazis in May, 1940. No one
in New York professes to know whar has
happened to the officers of the Rotterdam
instirution. Not a word of instrucrion or
advice has come from abroad.

Perhaps it wasn't Herr Thyssen’s money
atall, some persons suggest. Maybe he sent
it here for safekeeping for some of the Nazi
bigwigs — perhaps for Goering, for Goeb-
bels, for Himmler, or even Hitler himself.

No martter how the story comes out, the
United States government has the situation
in hand. Every penny of known Thyssen as-
sets is frozen, under the stricrest conrtrol.

There are many Americans n respon-
sible positions who do not think that the
rift berween Herr Thyssen and the Nazis
was genuine at all, preterring to believe
thar Thyssen was in reality a sort of eco-
nomic advance agent of the Hiter forces,
a financial surveyor and softener-up posing
as a ]'Eﬁ.lgﬁﬂ.

Reliable private information is that
Thyssen has been wandering about Switzer-
land, France and other European countries
before and after the Nazi armies arriving
without much hindrance, from the Hitler
government, Thyssen is now in Germany
— not under confinement, free to move
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PRESCOTT BUSH AND THE UNION BANKING CORPORATION

abour but closely watched — perhaps a
willing prisoner, perhaps a hostage for his
wealth throughour the world.

Herr Thyssen's adventure in the Ameri-
can business world dates back o August,
1924, when without Aourishes or ruffles the
Union Banking Corporation was incorpo-
rated with a capital stock of $400,000, the
money coming fram the Bank voor Handel
en Scheepvaart, of Rotterdam. It was [i-
censed under the New York State banking
laws as an investment corporation.

In addition to known lieutenants of the
Thyssen interests in Europe, there appeared
and continue to appear on the board of
direcrors of this corporation the names
of several parmers of the private banking
house of Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.,

59 Wall Street.

Enlisted Harriman In 1925

This circumstance dartes back to a
chance meeting in Europe in 1925 between
Fritz Thyssen and W. Averell Harriman. a
partner of the Brown Brothers, Harriman
firm and now minister plenipotentiary to
England as expediter of lease-lend aid to
the British. Herr Thyssen said to Mr. Har-
riman that he was opening a bank in the
United States to rake care of his financial
and industrial interests here and, asked Mr.
Harriman to serve on the board. Mr. Harri-
man agreed to have several other members
of his firm, go on the directorate.

This took place, of course, at a time
when the present world rangle could
hardly have been foreseen and when such
courtesies were paft of the normal routine
of international banking relations,

When a new world war began the Brown
Brothers Harriman partners sensed possible
embarrassment through association with
a corporation stemming from German in-
terests and considered withdrawal from the
Union Banking Corporation’s board. In a
consultation with William R. White, State
Superintendent of Banks, on the subject Mr.
White requested them to remain on the board

to assure etheient administration of the corpo-
ration’s affairs by trustworthy and responsible
persons during the emergency. They agreed to
comply with Mr, Whire's request,

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. have
never had any financial interest in the
Union Banking Corporation or any of
wes subsidiaries, and have never profited in
any way from its activities. The association
of some of its partners with the Thyssen
corporation, it points, out, was entirely a
matter of courtesy.

Relationship Explained

The circumstances of relationship were
frankly set forth in a lerter addressed by
Knight Woolley, a partner of the, Brown
Brothers Harriman firm, to Mr. Whire on
Jan, 14 of this year. This letter follows:

“January 14, 1941,

“William R. White, Esq.,

“Superintendent of Banks, State Of
New York,

80 Centre Srreet,

“New York, N. Y.

“"Dear Mr, White:

"As you are aware, my partners, E. R.
Harriman, Ray Morris, Prescotr S. Bush
and our manager, H. D. Pennington, are
directors of the Union Banking Corpora-
tion, a state institution under your super-
vision. This corporation is located, at 39
Broadway, and it is in effect a New York
office, or agency, of the Bank voor Handel
en Scheepvaart, in Rotterdam. Because of
possible uncertainty as to whether the Bank
voor Handel en Scheepyaart might be held
to be a Durch institution, or whether it
15, in fact, a German institution under a
Dutch name, my partners have been giving
serious consideration to withdrawing from
the board. Should the United States enter
the war, they feel they might be under some
embarrassment because of their connection
with the bank, even though we have no
financial inrerest in the Union Banking
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Carporation, nor do we participate in its
earnings. They acr as directors merely as a
marter of business courtesy.

“In order that you may undersrand
clearly the reasons for our doubus, |
should like to give you the background of
our connection with the Union Banking
Corporation. Our partner WA, Harriman
was in Furope in 1925, and at that time he
became acquainted with Mr. Fricz Thyssen,
the German industrialist. To the best of my
knowledge, Mr. Thyssen formed the Bank
voor Handel en Scheepvaart and presum-
ably controlled that institution, At one of
his meetings with Mr. Harriman, he told
him he was forming a bank in New York to
look after his interests in the United Srates
and he asked Mr. Harriman to serve on the
board. Mr. Harriman agreed that certain
of his associates would serve in this capac-
ity, and as a result various members of the
Harriman organizations and now of Brown
Brothers Harriman & Co., have been on
the board ever since.

“The Union Banking Corporation
does no commercial business, and its only
depositor is the Bank voor Handel en
Scheepvaart. [ts activities are limited to oc-
casional payments and a few purchases and
sales ot securities. All shares of the Union
Banking Corporation are registered in the
name of k. R. Harriman, who is chair-
man of the board, except the qualifying
shares held by directors, As the company
is Dutch-owned, 1ts banking accounts were
trozen under the Presidential Proclamation
of May 10, 1940,

“The Union Banking Corporation
maintains accounts with the Chase Na-
tional Bank, the National City Bank, the
Guaranry Trust Company, and ourselves.
At present its account with us is the only
one which 15 active, and the drawings are
limited to the Payment of salaries and usual
ofhice expenses. To further control its op-
erations, we have arranged that either Ray
Morris or H. D. Pennington musrt sign
checks jointly with the president of the

company, Mr. C. Lievense, or with the,
assistant rreasurer, Mr. W Kauffmann,
and that one of our gentdeman from our
organization must be present when access
is desired to the company’s safe deposit box
at the Chase Bank.

“You have perhaps read in the newspa-
pers recently that, Fritz Thyssen is no longer
in Germany, and it has been reported that
he has had differences with the Nazi regime.
We have no knowledge as to whether he still
retains an interest in the Bank voor Handel
en Scheepvaart, nor are we able to obtain
any informartion with respect to the stock
ownership in the bank.

"In view, of these uncertainties, together
with the censorship affecting communica-
tions to and from Rotterdam, [ realize that
the Union Banking Corporation might be
placed 1n an embarrassing position if all
the directors were to resign ar this time. ]
feel sure however that you will understand
the position of my Associates, and | would
greatly appreciate, a frank expression from
you as to the action which you feel that
they should take should you believe that
the interests of the Banking Department
would be best served by their continuing
as directors unul the situation abroad has
been somewhat clarified, I know thar they
will be glad ro be guided by, your judgment
and 1 shall greatly appreciare your reaction
to this situation and your opinion as to
what action, if any, should be raken by
my associates.

Very truly yours,

“KNIGHT WOOLLEY.”

Whites Reply
To this Mr. White replied:

“May 13, 1941.
“Mr. Knight Woolley,
“Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.,
“59 Wall Srreer,
“New York Ciry.
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Dear Mr. Woolley:

“Reference is made to your letter of

January 14 and to conversations which you
and certain of your partners have since had
with me relative to the status of the Union
Banking Corporation.

“During recent months this depart-
ment has been obliged to give unusual
attention to certain of the banking or-
ganizations in this country which have

been affected by the freczing orders. This,

however has not been true in the case of

the Union Banking Corporation because
of the confidence which the department
has in the directors of this institution

"While the department would, nor feel
free to object if your partners, Mr. Harri-
man, Mr. Bush, and your firm’s manager,
Mr. Penningron, should desire to resign
as directors of the corporation, neverthe-
less the department would be gratified if
these gentlemen could find it possible to
remain on the board during this period of
uncertanty.

"I appreciate your thoughtfulness in
bringing this matter to my attention and
the willingness of yourself and your associ-
ates to constderation to the department’s
point of view in the matter.

“Sincerely yours,

“WILLIAM R, WHITE.”

Personnel and Assets

The personnel and financial setup of the
Union Banking Corporatian is provided in
the following report of the institution, is-
sued on Jan 1, 1941:

UNION BANKING CORPORATION. NEW
YORK, 3% BROADWAY, ORGANIZED 1924
Cornelis Lievense, President
Walter Kauffmann, Treasurer
Directors- Uornelis Lievense, E. Roland Hariman,
R. D, Penningron, I S. Bush, |. Kouwenhoven, Ray
Motris, |, G. Groeninger

RESOURCES
Cash on hand and due from
banks (domestic] ....oocvveirinrinenn SLB17.763.95
Bond and Stock investments . 23188025

Othier loans, notes and bills
{including other acceprances) ..o
Accrued Income
Toral fesemrees, e

LIABILITIES
Deposits: Demand
Due o banks (domestic
and FOreign). ..o

SA000.0¢

$3.104,591 .80

L 3115.880,14

2,262,040 .20

Other Liabilines L HE64
Capizal stock Lo AGDD00
Surplus and |||||I|v1dcd pruhu ................. 0233970
Reserves. . e e o, 03 1B
Total luhllmrs 3,104,501 8o

Lievense a United States Citizen

The dominating personality in the ad-
ministration of the Thyssen domain in the
United States is the shy and littde known
Cornelis Lievense, a colorful little Hol-
lander who arrived in this country by way
of Montreal in May, 1926, two years after
the Union Banking Corporation was set up
Mr. Lievense is a naturalized Amencan cin-
zen having received his final citizen papers
on Jan. 29, 1932, at Mineola, L.1.

Besides the Union Bank Corporation,
Mr. Lievense is president of the Holland
American Corporation, the Domestic Fuel
Corporation, and the Seamless Steel Equip-
ment Corporation,

All of these vecupy offices with the
Union Bank Corporation at 39 Broad-
way. Others in the group at that address
are the Keman Trading Corporation, the
Riberena Fuel and Chartering Corporation,
Kauffmann & Co. and Religious Publica-
tions Inc.

Mr. Lievense admirtted that the assets of
the Domestic Fuel Carporation, the Hal-
land American Trading Corporation and
the Seamless Steel Equipment Corpora-
ton had all been frozen along with those
of the Unton Banking Corparation by the
Treasury Department. He said the business
of the whole group, aside, from the bank,
hardly approached $1,000,000 annually.

Blacklisted by Canada

He admitted also that the Domestic Fuel
Corporation, which had been bringing
cargoes of, coal from the Thyssen mining
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interests in Europe to Canada and other
Western Hemisphere points, had been
blacklisted by the Canadian Trade Com-
mission in the fall of 1940,

Mr. Lievense would reveal lirtle of the
operations of the corporations beyond
saying that they are now under the strict
supervision of the Treasury Department
and thar there was “very little activity.”

He insisted, however, that Religious
Publications, Inc., although occupying of-
fices with the Union Banking Corporation
and the others, was not a Thyssen venture
bur was purely his personal affair.

“This is a philanthropic venture of
mine,” he explained with disarming sincer-
ity. “undertaken ro bring out the religious
works of Dr. K Schilder, a Dutchman who
has recently been released from a German
concentration camp. This is in no sense
a profit-making venture and must not
be associated with these other business
organizations.”

Three of Dr. Schilder's books have been,
broughr out by the William B. Eerdmans
Publishing Company, of Grand Rapids.
Mich., and were translated from the
Dutch by Henry Zylstra. They bear the
titles, "Christ In His Suffering, “Christ on
Trial™ and “Christ Crucihed.”

On Other, Thyssen, Boards

Mr. Lievense speaks in soft, low tones
and merely smiled broadly when questioned
abouc his association with Herr Thyssen. His
name appears as a director of the Thyssen
Holland American Investment Corporation,
at Rorterdam. He is a member of the board
of the August Thyssen Bank, Aktiengesell-
schaft, ar Betlin, and, he is also a director of
the Handelscompagnic Ruilvkeer, a Thyssen
bartering company at Amsterdam.

Twao of Mr. Lievense's associates, on the
board of the Union Banking Corporation,,
J. G. Groeninger and N, |. Kouwenhoven,
are among Herr Thyssen’s chief manage-
rial assistants in the conduct of many of
his European Projects. Kouwenhaven is

an old school friend of Mr. Lievense and
1s managing director of the Bank voor
Handel en Scheepvaart, He is also man-
aging director of the Holland American
Invesument Corporation and is on the
board of the Thyssen-owned Vlaardingen
Harborworks.

Groeninger is managing director of
the Thyssen-owned Halcyon Line, with
headquarters at Rotterdam. It was this
corporation which refused to transfer its
headquarters and assers outside Holland
when the Netherlands government warned
all industrialists to take their properties o
Dutch colonies at the time of the Nazi In-
vasion. Just before the arrival of the Ger-
man forces at Rotterdam, the British and
Durtch navies seized eleven of the thirteen
ships of the line and incorporated them in
the British shipping pool. It is understood
that three of these ships have since been
destroyed. Only owo ships of the line fell
into the Nazis, hands.

Only One Has Visited U. S.

Both Groeninger and Kouwenhoven
are directors of the local Holland American
Trading Corporation. Groeninger is also
on the board of the Bank voor Handel en
Scheepvaart and is a director of the Vulcan
Rhine Shipping Co., another unit in Thys-
sen’s industrial kingdom. Kouwenhoven
visited the United States about four or five
years ago, Mr. Lievense said, but Groeninger
appears never to have been here.

“I have told the government, Authori-
ties everything I know and thacis all [ can
say,” Mr. Lievense said in a tolerant manner.
“As, a matter of fact, | cannot say now who
owns this money and this bank and these
corporatians. | cannot tell you if Mr. Thys-
sen owns it or not. You know, of course,
that the building the Bank voor Handel
en Scheepvaarr has been bombed out of
existence. Where 1s it now? Who owns it?
Who knows?”

Pacing the floor of his office on the
rwenty-fifth Hoor of 39 Broadway, he said.
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“All T know s that [ am here and that the
United Stares government is exercising
strict supervision of all activides of the
bank and these corporation. [ cannot tell
vou whom | am working, You may be sure
there is really litde to do. All these corpora-
tions in their best years have done Jess than
$1.000,000 annually,”

Mr. Lievense added that his business had
slowed down to such a degree that he had
to let out two or three of his office force
and had reduced his three-room ofhce to
Wi TODMS,

Has Time to Play the Organ

"In fact” he said, * | have been. spending
too much time indulging in my favorite
pastime — playing the organ ar my home.
[ also play the organ for the Whiteman
Memorial Bapust Church at Oyster Bay,
What else 15 there to do?”

Mr, Lievense and his wife, Maria Ja-
cobs, have lived In a rambling two-story
semi-Colonial home in Cedar Swamp
Road, in the High Hills Farm section of
Glen Head L. 1., for the last eight or ten,
years.

He passes much rime visiting the wlip
beds in the vicmity of his home. He is a
member of the Netherlands Club, and
was born In Maasslius, Holland. July 28,
1540,

Below i ¢ sidebar articte from Herald Tribune
Tuly 31, 1941, page 22.

Thyssen’s Role
In World Affairs
Still a Mystery

Original Hitler Backer May
Be Refugee or Nazi Agent
if He'’s Alive and at Large

Friz Thyssen, once ruler of the German
steel trust and most important backer of
Adolf Hitler In the early days of the Brawn

Shirt revolution i Germany, is the interna-

tional mystery man of today, It isanybody’s
guess whether he is a genuine refugee from
the Nazi terror or a Hider agent wrapped
inafugitive’s cloak. The world at large does
not know where he is or even whether he
is alive. And it has, apparently, no way of
finding out.

On March 17 it was reported in Vichy.
France, that he had been arrested on the Riv-
iera in December, returned 1o Germany and
lodged behind the barbed wire of Dachau
concentration camp. Four days later German
authorities announced that he was not n
France or in Dachau but in South America.
Earlier this month informed sources in Ger-
many said he had been released from custody
and was in a German sanatorium ¢njoying
“limited freedom of movement,”

Contradictory reports of Herr Thyssen's
status are not new in the history of the man
who, more thanany other, financed Hitder's
rise to power. Since 1934 vague rumars of
breaks between Thyssen and Hitler have
circulared from time to time. They came
to a head on Nov. 11, 1939, when it was
announced that he had left Germany for
Switzerlund “for an indefinite stay.” The
next day he arrived in Lucerne and for
several months kept correspondents regard-
ing his hints that he quit his country afrer
protesting against the Nazi-Sovier pact and
urging Hitler through Hermann Wilhelm
Gioering, not to go to war,

Property Confiscated

A week after his arrival in Switzerland it
was announced in Berlin with fanfare that the
Reich had conhiscated his fortune and proper-
ty estimated to be worth at least $88,000,000.
It was done on the basis of a law aimed at
persons inimical to the people and the state.
On Feb. 12, 1940, a decree was published in
the official German gazetee stripping him and
his wife of their citizenship. They were then
living In luxury in a Locarno hotel.

From then until his disappearance from
the Riviera his mavements were of 4 nature
1o arouse suspicion, or at least puzzlement,
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He was in Belgium in March, 1940, and
within a few weeks Hitler's armies forced
the surrender of that country. From Bel-
gium he moved 1o France, where he re-
mained unmolested long after the French
bowed before Hitler's legions.

Thyssen's residence at the Hotel Crillon
in Paris while the German armies gathered
in front of the, Maginot Line puzzled the
Parisians. [t seemed strange to them thara
man who was a declared enemy of France
and the prime mover of Hitler’s coup
should be ensconced in the French capital
at thar particular time, able to get the ear
not only of French industrialists but also of
French politicians.

The same puzzlement arose after the
French surrender when Thyssen suppos-
edly an enemy of the Reich was allowed
to sun himself for months on the sands of

Cannes, although the German authorities
could have had him for the asking.

Mentioned as Roehm Associate

All this maneuvering was an echo of in
earlier incident in his career. In 1934 after
Hitler had assumed the Chancellorship
with the staunch help of Thyssen, Berlin
began to buzz with rumors of a spliramong
the Nazis. It was also said that Thyssen was
seen frequently in the company of Caprain
Ernst Rochm, one of the leaders of the
supposed plot against the Fuehrer.

In the blood bath of July 30, 1934, when
Hitler purged his party by killing Roehm and
others, there was no mention of Thyssen's
having a part in the conspiracy. Yet, when
he sailed in August for South America, it
was reported that he was fleeing. Despite his
intimacy with Rochm however, Thyssen ap-
parently suffered none of Hitler’s suspicion.
After studying the steel business of South
America, he returned in the spring 1o Ger-
many and took up where he had left off.

In the various accounts of the
string-pulling responsible for Hitler'’s rise
in Germany, there in no suggestion that
Thyssen shelled out his marks to the Nazi

party for any reasons but selfish ones. He
was firm believer In capitalism so far as
capitalism was represented by the palarial
Thyssen chateau, the roaring Thyssen steel
furnaces in the Ruhrand Rhine valleys and
the 120,000 workers who owed their daily
bread ro the Thyssen pay rolls. Hitler's main
appeal to him was as a defender of Capiral-
ism against tile Bolshevik bogey.

The Thyssen holdings were hard hitin
the German inflation and the subsequent
struggle of German industry against the
restrictions imposed under the Versailles
Treaty. Thyssen hated the French, dis-
trusted the German Republic and dreaded
socialism. He began to look around for an
antidote to the three-headed monster of his
imagination. In 1927 he found it in the
person an Austrian former house painter.

Started Pushing In ‘30

Thyssen kepran eye on Hitler and, when
the depression in 1930 rocked the Thyssen
industrial empire, decided that it was time
to push the Nazi leader. He introduced
him to prominent industrialists, promised
them that Hider’s National Socialism was
only window dressing and helped to pry
money for the cause from their pockets. In
1930 he and a business associate distributed
1,000,000 marks to the party and two years
later, before the fateful presidential election
leading to Hitler's Chancellorship, Thyssen
danared 3,000,000 more.

His reward was to be made economic
dictator of western Germany and a mem-
ber of the Reich’s Grand Economic Council
and Prussian State Council. He also had a
seat in the Reichstagg.

If the version that would picrure him
tossed over by Hitler is correct, he mistook
his man when he patronizingly gathered
the Fuehrer under his wing, His idea was
to guide Hiter in the paths of safety for
the Thyssen fortune. Like ocher German
industrialists with same thought, however,
it would appear that his supported puppet

rurned our 1o be a Frankenstein monster.
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Thyssen Fund Of $3,000,000 Found Here

His Nazi nest egg in Uncle Sam’s cold storage.

Existence of a $3,000,000 fund es-
tablished here by Fricz Thyssen, German
industrialist and original backer of Adolf
Hitler at the beginning of the larter’s rise
to power, was disclosed roday.

Whether the money is for Thyssen
personally, or, perthaps, for some of his
high-placed Nazi friends in the event of
an “emergency” compelling them to leave
G(‘rm:ﬂ'l‘\'. no one kIl‘."‘V.

However. it will do neither Thyssen
nor any of his Nazi friends any good now,
as it has been “frozen” along with the
$4.500,000,000 Axis assets now held in
this country.

INVESTMENT COMPANY.

The money exists in funds of the Union
Banking Corporation, an investment com-
pany incorporated and licensed under new
York State laws in August, 1924,

Money for its $400,000 capital stock
came from Thyssen's Bank voor Handel en
Scheepvaare in Rotterdam,

Among members of its board of direc-
tors are E, R. Harriman, Ray Morris and
Prescort S, Bush, partner in the firm of
Brown Brochers Harriman & Company, of
which W, Averell harriman is now Ameri-
can minister plenipotentiary w England.

Also a director is H. D. Penningron,
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co, man-
;lgcr.

On Jan. 14, 1941, Knight Woolley,
another partner in the harriman company,
wrote to State Banking Superintendent
William R. Whire in behalf of Harriman,
Morris, Bush and Penningron.

“Should the United States cnter the
war, they feel they might be under some
embarrassment because of their connec-
tion with the bank. even thought we have
no financial interest in the Union Banking

Corporation, nor do we participate in its
carnings,” Woolley wrote,

SEEKS STEPS TO TAKE

He asked White for “a frank expression
from you as to the action” the Harriman
directors should take. Their own impulse,
he indicated, was to resign en massé from
Thyssen's bank.

White, however, replied on May 13:

“While the department would not feel
free to cbjcct if your partners, Mr. Harri-
man, Mr. Morris and Mr. Bush, and your
firm's manager, Mr. Pennington, should
desire to resign as directors of the corpora-
tion, nevertheless the department would
be gratified if these gentlemen could find
it possible 1o remain on the board during
this period of uncertainty.”

He plainly indicated that he considered
it best, if Thyssen or other Nazi money was
tied up in the Union Banking Corporation,
10 keep the corporation under Harriman’s
Morris’s, Bush’s and Pennington’s control,
thus effectively checkmating whatever
Thyssen's plan mighr be,

All of the shares of the Union Banking
Corporation are registered in the name of
E. R. Harriman, who s chairman of the
board, except the qualifying shares held by
other directors,

Mr. Woolley related the circumstances
leading ro the selection of the Harriman
partners on the board of directors. He
said:

‘BUSINESS COURTESY.

“Our partner, W. A. Harriman, was in
Europe in 1925 and ar thar ume he became
acquainted with Fricz Thyssen.

“To the best of my knowledge, Thys-
sen formed the Bank voor Handel en
Scheepvaart, and presumably controlled
that institution,



PRESCOTT BUSH AND THE UNION BANKING CORPORATION

“At one of his meetings with Mr. Harri-
man he told him he was forming a bank in
New York to look after his interests in the
United States, and he asked Mr, harriman
to serve on the board.

“Mr. Harriman agreed thar certain of
his associates would serve in this capacity,
and as a result various members of the Har-
riman organization, now Brown Brothers
Harriman & Co., have been on the board
ever since.”

Mr. Woolley emphasized that these di-
rectors act “merely as a matter of business
courtesy,”

President of the Union Banking Corp.
is Cornelis Lievense, Holland-born, who
came to the Unired Srates by way of Mon-
treal in May, 1926, two years after the bank
was set UP.

He 15 now a naturalized American
citizen, having received his final papers in
Mineola, L. L., Jan. 29, 1932.

He is president also of the Domestic
Fuel Corp., Seamless Steel Equipment
Corp., and Holland-American Trading
Corp., all of which share the Union Bank-
ing Corp.’s offices at 39 Broadway.

ASSETS FROZEN

The assets of all three of these firms also
have been “frozen” by the U. S. Govern-
ment, Lievense admirted.

Last Fall, the Canadian Government
blacklisted the Domestic Fuel Corp., which
had been bringing coal from Thyssen’s Eu-
ropean mines to Canada.

Also housed in the same offices with
the bank are the Kemari Trading Corp.,
Riberena Fuel Y Chartering Co. Religious
Publications, Inc., and Kauffmann & Co.

Reached early today at his home on Ce-
dar Swamp Road in the Glen Hills Farm
section of Glen Head, L. L., Lievense said:

“I have nothing to say. | have no com-
ment to make on anything, especially when
I'm a_¢:|c€p."

Besides the Harriman officers on the
board of the Union Banking Corp.. there

are ]. G. Groeninger and N, |, Kouwen-
hoven.

Kouwenhoven is managing director
of the Bank voor Handel en Scheepvaart,
managing director of the Holland-Ameri-
can Investment Corp., and a member of the
board of the Thyssen-owned Vlaardingsen
Harborworks.

Groeninger is managing director of the
Thyssen-owned Halcyon Line, which re-
fused to obey the Netherlands government’s
order to all industries to remove their prop-
erties to the Durch colonies, just before the
Nazi invasion.”

Thyssen himself, according to best ob-
tainable advices, is now back in Germany.
For a time he wandered abour Switzerland,
France and other European countries. His
present status is satd to be that of, perhaps,
a willing prisoner, not in confinement but
under surveillance, perhaps a hostage for
his wealth throughour the world.

*oor
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The next 1wo and a-half pages are from the Hustory of the Yale Class of 1917, Twenty-Fifth Record - 1942

Prescott Sheldon Bush

Business:  General Partner in the firm of Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
(private bankers), 59 Wall Street, New York City,

Residence:  Grove Lane, Greenwich, Conm,

Married:  Dorothy Walker, August, 1921, Kennebunkport, Me.
Davghter of George Herbert Walker and Loulie Wear,

Chifidven:  Prescott Sheldon, born  August 10, 1922: George Herbert
Walker, born June 12, 1924 Nancy Bush, born February 4,
1926, Jonathan James, born May 6, 1931; William Henry
Trotter, born July 14, 1938,

Pres has been a General Partner of Brown Brothers, Harri-
man & Company since January 1, 1931. He is a director of
the following corporations: Columbia Broadcasting System,
The Dresser Manufacturing Co., The Union Banking Corpora-
tion, The Simmons Company, Massachusetts Investors Second
IFund, The Rockbestos Products Corporations, The Vanadium
Products Corporation of America, The United States Guar-
antee Company, Commercial Pacific Cable Company, and he
is Chairman of the Board of the Pennsylvania Water & Power
Company.

[is son Prescott, Jr. is a member of the Class of 1944 at
Yale, and his son George Herbert graduated this year from
Andover Academy. Nancy is at Miss Porter's School at
Farmington while Jonathan James attends the Greenwich
Country Day School.  Willlam Henry Trotter Bush, age 3,
better known as “Buck™ is still too young to attend any school.

Pres is quite active in local town politics. He has been a
menmiber of the Representative Town Meeting of Greenwich
since 1933 and has been Moderator of this body since 1935,
He is a member of the Greenwich Defense Council. He is
a member of the Republican party and has been active in local
campaigns for the last eight years. Since 1938 he has been
a director of the Greenwich Hospital Association. He is also
a trustee of the Greenwich Boys Club. He Dbelongs to the
Yale Club of New York and has been a member of the Council
since 1938. He belongs to the Lunch Club of New York, The
Roundhill Club of Greenwich of which he was President from
1935 to 1938 and belongs to the TField Club of Greenwich.
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period he also served successively as Secretary, Vice-President
and President.

Pres writes: “It has been my good fortune to be closely
associated in business for a good many years with Classmates
of 1917, These are Bunny Harriman, Knight Woolley and
Ellery James, who unfortunately died in 1932, In addition
to these the firm of Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. has
heen rather heavily populated with Yale men, including
\verell Harriman, 1913: Bob Lovett, 1918; Thatcher M.
Brown, 1897; Ray Morris, 1900, and a number of younger
men who were graduated in the middle or late twenties, whose

names are probably not familiar to the Class. The firm in
which we have been associated has been cstablished in husiness
since [R18 and has the rather unique record of having main-
tained its place of business since that time in exactly the same
location at 59 Wall Street, although the present building 1s
the third one which has housed the business. In spite of the
many changes in the political and economic life of the country
over this long span of years the firm has been handed down
from one group of partners to another in an unbroken line,
and even today our senior partner is a direct descendant of
the founder and his son is also now a member of the firm.
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While the record of this firm is in no way spectacular, and
while in comparison with our many huge banking institutions
throughout the country the firm is relatively inconspicuous,
it is nevertheless true that the firm today is larger and perhaps
fully as vigorous as it has ever been. Thus, I feel that the
association with this organization has been indeed a privilege
and a satisfaction. I mention this because there is no doubt
that'my own participation in the business is traceable entirely
to my acquaintance at Yale. I gratefully acknowledge the debt
that I owe her for having made such a happy business life
possible.”

To the cognoscenti, and who of 1917 is not one of them,
it is entirely unnecessary to announce that early this year Pres

was appointed National Chairman in Charge of the 1942
Drive for funds for the United Service Organization (USO).
At this writing, July, 1942, he is still in the midst of his
campaign so it is impossible to state the measure of his suc-
cess. Knowing Pres, however, we venture to predict that his
total will eclipse that collected last vear, and will give those
that may follow him in this worthy project something to

shoot at,

PRESCOTT SHELDON BUSH, care Simmons Hardware
Campany, St, Louis, Mo,

Enrolled for Plattsburg, 1916, but transferved to Battery A,
Tobyhanna:; Yule R. 0, T, €. firsk Officers” Training Camp,
Fort Benjnmin Harrison; cummissionied Caplain, Field Artil-
levy, T7. 8, R, August 15, 1817, assigmed ns Instructor to
second Officers’ Training Camp at same post @ nttached to 322d
Field Artillery, m commamd of Battery D, Camp Sherman,
Novewber 80, 1017 ; ordered to School of Fire, Fort Sill, shout
March 14, gradunting Mny 24, 1918: went overseas June 14,
napigned to Headquarters, 158th Field Artillery Brigade, as
Intelligence Officer on General Fleming’s staff: in August
ordered to Verdun for special training in connection with the
Intelligence Service, and assigned for period of three weeks to
a staff of Frencl officers: 138th Brigade, 32d Division, ordered
to the frant mhont September 15, serving continnously in the
Meuse-Argonne Offensive untl the Armistice: November 16,
transferred to Hendquarters, Tth Corps, serving as Operations
and Intelligence Officer in march ta the Rhine; transferred to
the 132d Field Artillery, Junuary, 1919, returned to the
United States, March 25, and veceived discharge Apnil +, 1918,

From: History of the Class of 1917
Yale College, War Record - 1919
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PRESCOTT SHELDON RUSH
Vico-prosident of W. A. Humimen & Compuny, Ine (isvestment bankers).
59 Brosdway, New York City.
Reridance, Stanwinh Rowd, Gremwich, Conn.
UsH with the Si Hard Com-
pany of St. lammmlﬂuhhduchmlm military serv-
jce in 1918, .lndm.llmnr_r 1921, be was made & member of the

epted a y

beard of directors and getieral munager of the company.
Aboul two years Iater be b g 1 and 1

of the Hupp Products Company of Columl Ohigs, but igteedd
in N ber, 1028, to b ident, in ehurge of sales, of the

Stedman Products Company in South Braintree, Mnss. He way
made manager of the foreign division of the United States Rubber
Company in New York City in February, 1925, but gave up that
position in May, 1026, to become associated with W, A. Harriman
& Company. Ine.

Bush in secretary of the Unbted States Golf Associstion, and he
belongs to the Yule und Lunch clubs in New York City and to the
Round Hill aod Field clubw in Greenwich, Ho is a member of
81 Paul's Church, Greenwich.

He wox married on August 6, 1021, a1t Kennebunkport, Maine,
to Darothy Walker. Mr. DBush, who sttended Miss Porter's
Behool in Farming! is the danghter of Goorge Herbert and Lu-
Jr., born at Eennebunkport in August. 1992 George Herbert
Walker, born in Milton, Muss,, in June, 1924; and Nancy, born
in New York City in February, 1926,

From: History of the Class of 1917 Yale
College, Decennial Record — 1928




REPRINT OF CHAPTER SEVEN OF ANTONY SUTTON’S
WALL STREET AND THE RISE OF HITLER

1976

Who Financed Adolf Hitler?

The funding of Hitler and the Nazi movement has yet to be explored
in exhaustive depth. The only published examination of Hitler's personal
finances is an article by Oron James Hale, " Adolph Hitler: Taxpayer,
which records Adolph's brushes with the German tax authorities before he
became Reichskanzler. In the 1920s Hitler presented himself to the Ger-
man tax man as merely an impoverished writer living on bank loans, with
an automobile bought on credit. Unfortunately, the original records used
by Hale do not yield the source of Hitler's income, loans, or credit, and
German law "'did not require self-employed or professional persons to dis-
close in detail the sources of income or the nature of services rendered.””?
Obviously the funds for the automobiles, private secretary Rudolf Hess,
another assistant, a chauffeur, and expenses incurred by political activity,
came from somewhere. But, like Leon Trotsky's 1917 stay in New York, it
is hard to reconcile Hitler's known expenditures with the precise source of
his income.

Some Early Hitler Backers

We do know that prominent European and American industrialists
were sponsoring all manner of totalitarian political groups at that time,
including Communists and various Nazi groups. The U.S Kilgore Com-
mittee records that:

By 1919 Krupp was already giving financial aid to one of the
reactionary political groups which sowed the seed of the present
Nazi ideology. Hugo Stinnes was an early contributor to the Nazi
Party (National Socialistische Deutsche Arbeiter Partei). By 1924
other prominent industrialists and financiers, among them Fritz
Thyssen, Albert Voegler, Adolph [sic] Kirdorf, and Kurt von
Schroder, were secretly giving substantial sums to the Nazis. In
1931 members of the coalowners’ association which Kirdorf
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headed pledged themselves to pay 50 pfennigs for each ton of
coal sold, the money to go to the organization which Hitler was

building 3

Hitler's 1924 Munich trial yielded evidence that the Nazi Party re-
ceived $20,000 from Nuremburg industrialists. The most interesting name
from this period is that of Emil Kirdorf, who had earlier acted as conduit
for financing German involvement in the Bolshevik Revolution.* Kirdorf's
role in financing Hitler was, in his own words:

In 1923 I came into contact for the first time with the

National-Socialist movement . . . . I first heard the Fuehrer in

the Essen Exhibition Hall. His clear exposition completely con-

vinced and overwhelmed me. In 1927 I first met the Fuehrer

personally. 1 travelled to Munich and there had a conversation

with the Fuehrer in the Bruckmann home. During four and «

half hours Adolf Hitler explained to me his programme in de

tail. I then begged the Fuehrer to put together the lecture he

had given me in the form of a pamphlet. I then distributed this

pamphlet in my name in business and manufacturing circles.

Since then I have placed myself completely at the dis-

position of his movement. Shortly after our Munich conver-

sation, and as a result of the pamphlet which the Fuehrer com-

posed and 1 distributed, a number of meetings took place be-

tween the Fuehrer and leading personalities in the field of indus-

try. For the last time before the taking over of power, the leaders

of industry met in my house together with Adolf Hitler, Rudolf

Hess, Hermann Goering and other leading personalities of the

party.®

In 1925 the Hugo Stinnes family contributed funds to convert the
Nazi weekly Volkischer Beobachter to a daily publication. Putzi Hanf-
staengl, Franklin D. Roosevelt's friend and protegé, provided the remain-
ing funds.® Table 7-1 summarizes presently known financial contributions
and the business associations of contributors from the United States. Putzi
is not listed in Table 7-1 as he was neither industrialist nor financier.

In the early 1930s financial assistance to Hitler began to flow more
readily. There took place in Germany a series of meetings, irrefutably
documented in several sources, between German industrialists, Hitler
himself, and more often Hitler's representatives Hjalmar Schacht and
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Rudolf Hess. The critical point is that the German industrialists financing
Hitler were predominantly directors of cartels with American asso-
ciations, ownership, participation, or some form of subsidiary connection.
The Hitler backers were not, by and large, firms of purely German origin,
or representative of German family business. Except for Thyssen and Kir-
dorf, in most cases they were the German multi-national firms — i.e.,1.G.
Farben, A.E.G., DAPAG, etc. These multi-nationals had been built up by
American loans in the 1920s, and in the early 1930s had American di-
rectors and heavy American financial participation.

One flow of foreign political funds not considered here is that
reported from the European-based Royal Dutch Shell, Standard Oil's
great competitor in the 20s and 30s, and the giant brainchild of Anglo-
Dutch businessman Sir Henri Deterding. It has been widely asserted that
Henri Deterding personally financed Hitler. This argument is made, for
instance, by biographer Glyn Roberts in The Most Powerful Man in the
World. Roberts notes that Deterding was impressed with Hitler as early as
1921:

... and the Dutch press reported that, through the agent
Georg Bell, he [Deterding] had placed at Hitler's disposal,
while the party was “still in long clothes,” no less than four
million guilders.?

It was reported (by Roberts) that in 1931 Georg Bell, Deterding’s
agent, attended meetings of Ukrainian Patriots in Paris “'as joint delegate
of Hitler and Deterding.”® Roberts also reports:

Deterding was accused, as Edgar Ansell Mowrer testifies in
his Germany Puts the Clock Back, of putting up a large sum of
money for the Nazis on the understanding that success would
give him a more favored position in the German oil market. On
other occasions, figures as high as £55,000,000 were men-
tioned.®

Biographer Roberts really found Deterding’s strong anti-Bolshevism
distasteful, and rather than present hard evidence of funding he is inclined
to assume rather than prove that Deterding was pro-Hitler. But pro-
Hitlerism is not a necessary consequence of anti-Bolshevism; in any event
Roberts offers no proof of finance, and hard evidence of Deterding's
involvement was not found by this author.

Mowrer’s book contains neither index nor footnotes as to the source of
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his information and Roberts has no specific evidence for his accusations.
There is circumstantial evidence that Deterding was pro-Nazi. He later
went to live in Hitler's Germany and increased his share of the German
petroleum market. So there may have been some contributions, but these
have not been proven.

Similarly, in France (on January 11, 1932), Paul Fauré, a member of
the Chambre des Députés, accused the French industrial firm of
Schneider-Creuzot of financing Hitler — and incidentally implicated
Wall Street in other financing channels.®®

The Schneider group is a famous firm of French armaments manufac-
turers. After recalling the Schneider influence in establishment of Fascism
in Hungary and its extensive international armaments operations, Paul
Fauré turns to Hitler, and quotes from the French paper Le Journal, “'that
Hitler had received 300,000 Swiss gold francs™ from subscriptions opened
in Holland under the case of a university professor named von Bissing.
The Skoda plant at Pilsen, stated Paul Fauré, was controlled by the French
Schneider family, and it was the Skoda directors von Duschnitz and von
Arthaber who made the subscriptions to Hitler. Fauré concluded:

... I am disturbed to see the directors of Skoda, conirolled
by Schneider, subsidizing the electoral campaign of M. Hitler; I
am disturbed to see your firms, your financiers, your industrial
cartels unite themselves with the most nationalistic of Ger-
mans . . ..

Again, no hard evidence was found for this alleged flow of Hitler
funds.

Fritz Thyssen and W.A. Harriman Company of New York

Another elusive case of reported financing of Hitler is that of Fritz
Thyssen, the German steel magnate who associated himself with the Nazi
movement in the early 20s. When interrogated in 1945 under Project
Dustbin,!' Thyssen recalled that he was approached in 1923 by General
Ludendorf at the time of French evacuation of the Ruhr. Shortly after this
meeting Thyssen was introduced to Hitler and provided funds for the
Nazis through General Ludendorf. In 1930-1931 Emil Kirdorf approached
Thyssen and subsequently sent Rudolf Hess to negotiate further funding
for the Nazi Party. This time Thyssen arranged a credit of 250,000 marks
at the Bank Voor Handel en Scheepvaart N.V. at 18 Zuidblaak in Rotter-
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dam, Holland, founded in 1918 with H. ]. Kouwenhoven and D. C.
Schutte as managing partners.'? This bank was a subsidiary of the August
Thyssen Bank of Germany (formerly von der Heydt's Bank A.G.), It was
Thyssen’s personal banking operation, and it was affiliated with the W. A.
Harriman financial interests in New York. Thyssen reported to his Project
Dustbin interrogators that:

I chose a Dutch bank because I did not want to be mixed up
with German banks in my position, and because I thought it was
better to do business with a Dutch bank, and I thought I would
have the Nazis a little more in my hands.'3

Thyssen's book I Paid Hitler, published in 1941, was purported to be
written by Fritz Thyssen himself, although Thyssen denies authorship.
The book claims that funds for Hitler — about one million marks — came
mainly from Thyssen himself. I Paid Hitler has other unsupported asser-
tions, for example that Hitler was actually descended from an illegitimate
child of the Rothschild family. Supposedly Hitler's grandmother, Frau
Schickelgruber, had been a servant in the Rothschild household and while
there became pregnant:

... an inquiry once ordered by the late Austrian chan-
cellor, Engelbert Dollfuss, yielded some interesting results, ow-
ing to the fact that the dossiers of the police department of the
Austro- Hungarian monarch were remarkably complete 't

This assertion concerning Hitler's illegitimacy is refuted entirely in a
more solidly based book by Eugene Davidson, which implicates the
Frankenberger family, not the Rothschild family.

In any event, and more relevant from our viewpoint, the August
Thyssen front bank in Holland — i.e., the Bank voor Handel en Scheep-
vaart N.V, — controlled the Union Banking Corporation in New York.
The Harrimans had a financial interest in, and E. Roland Harriman
(Averell's brother) was a director of, this Union Banking Corporation. The
Union Banking Corporation of New York City was a joint Thyssen-Harri-
man operation with the following directors in 1932:15

E. Roland HARRIMAN Vice president of W. A, Harriman & Co,, New
York

H. J. KOUWENHOVEN Nazi banker, managing partner of August Thys-
sen Bank and Bank voor Handel Scheepvaart N.V.
(the transfer bank for Thyssen's funds)
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TABLE 7-1: FINANCIAL LINKS BETWEEN U.S. INDUSTRIALISTS AND ADOLF HITLER

Date

1923
1931

1932-3

February-
March 1933

February-
March 1633

February-
March 1933

February-
March 1933

American Bankers U.S. Affiliated Firm
and Industrialists

Henry FORD FORD MOTOR COMPANY
E.R. HARRIMAN  UNION BANKING CORP

Flick (a director

of AEG)
NONE
Edsel B. FORD AMERICAN
C.E. MITCHELL 1.C.
Walter TEAGLE
Paul M. WARBURG
NONE
Gerard SWOPE
Owen D. YOUNG INTERNATIONAL
C.H. MINOR GENERAL 25 percent

E. Arthur BALDWIN  ELECTRIC

German Source

Intermediary for
Funds/Agent

Fritz 250,000 RM Bank voor Handel en

THYSSEN Scheepvaart N.V,
(Subsidiary of August
Thyssen Bank)
Friedrich 150,000 RM Direct to
FLICK NSDAP
Emil 600,000 RM “Nationale Treuhand”
KIRDORF a/c at Delbrilck
Schickler Bank
1.G. 400,000 RM "'Nationale Treuhand”
FARBEN

Reichsverband der 100,000 RM “Nationale Treuhand”

Automobilindustrie

A.E.G.

“Nationale Treuhand”

60,000 RM “‘Nationale Treuhand”
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February-
March 1933
February-
March 1933

February-
March 1933

Febru ry-
March 1933

February-
March 1933

February-
March 1933
February-
March 1933

1932-1944

1932-1944

Owen D. YOUNG

Sosthenes BEHN

Edsel B. FORD

Walter TEAGLE
J.A. MOFFETT
W.S. FARISH

Sosthenes BEHN

NONE

LT.T.

NONE

NONE

NONE

NONE

Ford Motor Co.

Standard OQil

of N.J.

LT.T.

INTERNATIONAL 16% percent
GENERAL ELECTRIC

94 percent

DEMAG 50,000 RM
OSRAM 40,000 RM
G.m.b.H.
Telefunken 35,000 RM
Karl 300,000 RM
Herrman
A. Steinke 200,000 RM
{Director of
BYBUAG)
Karl Lange 50,000 RM
Machine
industry}

F. Springorum 36,000 RM
(Hoesch A.G.)

Carl BOSCH

(1.G. Farben &

Ford Motor A.G.)
Emil HELFFRICH
(German-American
Petroleum Co)
Kurt von SCHRODER
Mix & Genest

Lorenz

“Nationale Treuhand”
“Nationale Treuhand"
“Nationale Treuhand”

"Nationale Treuhand"

“Nationale Treuhand™

"Nationale Treuhand™

Heinrich Himmler S.8.
via Keppler's Circle

Heinrich Himmler S.S.
via Keppler's Circle
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J. G. GROENINGEN Vereinigte Stahlwerke (the steel cartel which also
funded Hitler)

C. LIEVENSE President, Union Banking Corp., New York City

E. S. JAMES Partner Brown Brothers, later Brown Brothers,

Harriman & Co.

Thyssen arranged a credit of 250,000 marks for Hitler, through this
Dutch bank affiliated with the Harrimans. Thyssen's book, later
repudiated, states that as much as one million marks came from Thyssen.

Thyssen’s U.S. partners were, of course, prominent members of the
Wall Street financial establishment. Edward Henry Harriman, the nine-
teenth-century railroad magnate, had two sons, W. Averell Harriman
(born in 1891), and E. Roland Harriman (born in 18953). In 1917 W,
Averell Harriman was a director of Guaranty Trust Company and he was
involved in the Bolshevik Revolution.’ According to his biographer,
Averell started at the bottom of the career ladder as a clerk and section
hand after leaving Yale in 1913, then “he moved steadily forward to posi-
tions of increasing responsibility in the fields of transportation and fi-
nance. ' In addition to his directorship in Guaranty Trust, Harriman
formed the Merchant Shipbuilding Corporation in 1917, which soon be-
came the largest merchant fleet under American flag. This fleet was dis
posed of in 1925 and Harriman entered the lucrative Russian market. '8

In winding up these Russian deals in 1929, Averell Harriman re-
ceived a windfall profit of $1 million from the usually hard-headed
Soviets, who have a reputation of giving nothing away without some pre-
sent or later quid pro quo. Concurrently with these successful moves in
international finance, Averell Harriman has always been attracted by so-
called " public” service. In 1913 Harriman's “public” service began with
an appointment to the Palisades Park Commission. In 1933 Harriman was
appointed chairman of the New York State Committee of Employment,
and in 1934 became Administrative Officer of Roosevelt's NRA — the
Mussolini-like brainchild of General Electric’s Gerard Swope.!'® There
followed a stream of “public” offices, first the Lend Lease program, then
as Ambassador to the Soviet Union, later as Secretary of Commerce.

By contrast, E. Roland Harriman confined his activities to private
business in international finance without venturing, as did brother Aver-
ell, into “public” service. In 1922 Roland and Averell formed W. A. Harri-
man & Company. Still later Roland became chairman of the board of
Union Pacific Railroad and a director of Newsweek magazine, Mutual
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Life Insurance Company of New York, a member of the board of gover-
nors of the American Red Cross, and a member of the American Museum
of Natural History.

Nazi financier Hendrik Jozef Kouwenhoven, Roland Harriman's
fellow-director at Union Banking Corporation in New York, was manag-
ing director of the Bank voor Handel en Scheepvaart N.V. (BHS) of
Rotterdam. In 1940 the BHS held approximately $2.2 million assets in the
Union Banking Corporation, which in turn did most of its business with
BHS.2 In the 1930s Kouwenhoven was also a director of the Vereinigte
Stahlwerke A.G., the steel cartel founded with Wall Street funds in the
mid-1920s. Like Baron Schréder, he was a prominent Hitler supporter,

Another director of the New York Union Banking Corporation was
Johann Groeninger, a German subject with numerous industrial and fi-
nancial affiliations involving Vereinigte Stahlwerke, the August Thyssen
group, and a directorship of August Thyssen Hiitte A.G.2!

This affiliation and mutual business interest between Harriman and
the Thyssen interests does not suggest that the Harrimans directly fi-
nanced Hitler. On the other hand, it does show that the Harrimans were
intimately connected with prominent Nazis Kouwenhoven and
Groeninger and a Nazi front bank, the Bank voor Handel en Scheepvaart.
There is every reason to believe that the Harrimans knew of Thyssen’s
support for the Nazis. In the case of the Harrimans, it is important to bear
in mind their long-lasting and intimate relationship with the Soviet Union
and the Harriman's position at the center of Roosevelt's New Deal and the
Democratic Party. The evidence suggests that some members of the Wall
Street elite are connected with, and certainly have influence with, all
significant political groupings in the contemporary world socialist spec-
trum — Soviet socialism, Hitler's national socialism, and Roosevelt's New
Deal socialism.

Financing Hitler in the March 1933 General Election

Putting the Georg Bell-Deterding and the Thyssen-Harriman cases
to one side, we now examine the core of Hitler's backing. In May 1932 the
so-called " Kaiserhof Meeting” took place between Schmitz of 1.G.
Farben, Max Illgner of American [.G. Farben, Kiep of Hamburg-America
Line, and Diem of the German Potash Trust. More than 500,000 marks
was raised at this meeting and deposited to the credit of Rudolf Hess in
the Deutsche Bank. It is noteworthy, in light of the “Warburg myth"" des-
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cribed in Chapter Ten that Max Ilgner of the American 1.G. Farben
contributed 100,000 RM, or one-fifth of the total. The " Sidney Warburg"
book claims Warburg involvement in the funding of Hitler, and Paul War-
burg was a director of American 1.G. Farben?? while Max Warburg was a
director of 1.G. Farben.

There exists irrefutable documentary evidence of a further role of
international bankers and industrialists in the financing of the Nazi Party
and the Volkspartie for the March 1933 German election. A total of three
million Reichmarks was subscribed by prominent firms and businessmen,
suitably “washed” through an account at the Delbrilick Schickler Bank,
and then passed into the hands of Rudolf Hess for use by Hitler and the
NSDAP. This transfer of funds was followed by the Reichstag fire, abro-
gation of constitutional rights, and consolidation of Nazi power. Access to
the Reichstag by the arsonists was obtained through a tunnel from a house
where Putzi Hanfstaengel was staying; the Reichstag fire itself was used
by Hitler as a pretext to abolish constitutional rights. In brief, within a few
weeks of the major funding of Hitler there was a linked sequence of major
events: the financial contribution from prominent bankers and indus-
trialists to the 1933 election, burning of the Reichstag, abrogation of
constitutional rights, and subsequent seizure of power by the Nazi Party.

The fund-raising meeting was held February 20, 1933 in the home of
Goering, who was then president of the Reichstag, with Hjalmar Horace
Greeley Schacht acting as host. Among those present, according to 1.G.
Farben’s von Schnitzler, were:

Krupp von Bohlen, who, in the beginning of 1933, was
president of the Reichsverband der Deutschen Industrie Reich
Association of German Industry; Dr. Albert Voegler, the leading
man of the Vereinigte Stahlwerke; Von Loewenfeld; Dr. Stein,
head of the Gewerkschaft Auguste-Victoria, @ mine which
belongs to the 1G.*

Hitler expounded his political views to the assembled businessmen in
a lengthy two-and-one-half hour speech, using the threat of Communism
and a Communist take-over to great effect:

It is not enough to say we do not want Communism in our
economy. If we continue on our old political course, then we
shall perish . . . . It is the noblest task of the leader to find ideals
that are stronger than the factors that pull the people together. I
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recognized even while in the hospital that one had to search for
new ideals conducive to reconstruction. I found them in
nationalism, in the value of personality, and in the denial of
reconciliation between nations . . . .

Now we stand before the last election. Regardless of the
outcome, there will be no retreat, even if the coming election
does not bring about decision, one way or another. If the election
does not decide, the decision must be brought about by other
means. I have intervened in order to give the people once more
the chance to decide their fate by themselves . . . .

There are only two possibilities, either to crowd back the
opponent on constitutional grounds, and for this purpose once
more this election; or a struggle will be conducted with other
weapons, which may demand greater sacrifices. I hope the
German people thus recognize the greatness of the hour.2

After Hitler had spoken, Krupp von Bohlen expressed the support of
the assembled industrialists and bankers in the concrete form of a three-
million-mark political fund. It turned out to be more than enough to ac-
quire power, because 600,000 marks remained unexpended after the elec-
tion.

Hjalmar Schacht organized this historic meeting. We have pre-
viously described Schacht’s links with the United States: his father was
cashier for the Berlin Branch of Equitable Assurance, and Hjalmar was
intimately involved almost on a monthly basis with Wall Street.

The largest contributor to the fund was I.G. Farben, which com-
mitted itself for 30 percent (or 500,000 marks) of the total. Director A.
Steinke, of BUBIAG (Braunkohlen-u. Brikett-Industrie A.G.), an I.G.
Farben subsidiary, personally contributed another 200,000 marks. In
brief, 45 percent of the funds for the 1933 election came from 1.G. Farben.
If we look at the directors of American I.G. Farben — the U.S. subsidiary
of I.G. Farben — we get close to the roots of Wall Street involvement with
Hitler. The board of American L.G. Farben at this time contained some of
the most prestigious names among American industrialists: Edsel B. Ford
of the Ford Motor Company, C.E. Mitchell of the Federal Reserve Bank
of New York, and Walter Teagle, director of the Federal Reserve Bank of
New York, the Standard Oil Company of New Jersey, and President
Franklin D. Roosevelt's Georgia Warm Springs Foundation.

Paul M. Warburg, first director of the Federal Reserve Bank of New
York and chairman of the Bank of Manhattan, was a Farben director and
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in Germany his brother Max Warburg was also a director of 1.G. Farben.
H. A. Metz of I.G. Farben was also a director of the Warburg's Bank of
Manhattan. Finally, Carl Bosch of American 1.G. Farben was also a di-
rector of Ford Motor Company A-G in Germany.

Three board members of American 1.G. Farben were found guilty at
the Nuremburg War Crimes Trials: Max Ilgner, F. Ter Meer, and Her-
mann Schmitz. As we have noted, the American board members — Edsel
Ford, C. E. Mitchell, Walter Teagle, and Paul Warburg — were not
placed on trial at Nuremburg, and so far as the records are concerned, it
appears that they were not even questioned about their knowledge of the
1933 Hitler fund.

The 1933 Political Contributions

Who were the industrialists and bankers who placed election funds at
the disposal of the Nazi Party in 19337 The list of contributors and the
amount of their contribution is as follows:

FINANCIAL CONTRIBUTIONS TO HITLER: Feb. 23-Mar. 13, 1933:
(The Hjalmar Schacht account at Delbrtick, Schickler Bank)

Political Contributions by

Firms (with selected Amount Percent of
affiliated directors) Pledged Firm Total
Verein fuer die Bergbaulichen $600,000 458

Interessen (Kirdort)

1.G. Farbenindustrie (Edsel 400,000 30.5
Ford, C.E. Mitchell, Walter
Teagle, Paul Warburg)

Automobile Exhibition, Berlin 100,000 7.6
(Reichsverbund der
Automobilindustrie S.V.)

A.E.G., German General Electric 60,000 4.6
(Gerard Swope, Owen Young,
C.H. Minor, Arthur Baldwin)

Demag 50,000 3.8
QOsram G.m.b.H. (Owen Young) 40,000 3.0
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lelefunken Gesellschaft fuer 35,000 2.7
drahtlose Telegraphie
Accumulatoren-Fabrik A.G. 25,000 1.9
(Quandt of A LEG.) _— —
Total from industry 1,310,000 99.9

Plus Political Contributions by Individual Businessmen:

Karl Hermann 300,000
Director A. Steinke (BUBIAG- 200,000
Braunkohlen—u. Brikett—
Industrie A.G.)

Dir. Karl Lange (Geschaftsfuhrendes 50,000
Vostandsmitglied des Vereins
Deutsches Maschinenbau—Anstalten)

Dr. F. Springorum (Chairman: 36,000
Eisen-und Stahlwerke Hoesch A.G.)

Source: See Appendix for translation of original document.

How can we prove that these political payments actually took place?

The payments to Hitler in this final step on the road to dictatorial
Naziism were made through the private bank of Delbriick Schickler. The
Delbriick Schickler Bank was a subsidiary of Metallgesellschaft A.G.
("Metall”), an industrial giant, the largest non-ferrous metal company in
Germany, and the dominant influence in the world's nonferrous metal
trading. The principal shareholders of “Metall” were 1.G. Farben and the
British Metal Corporation. We might note incidentally that the British
directors on the “Metall” Aufsichsrat were Walter Gardner (Amalgamated
Metal Corporation) and Captain Oliver Lyttelton (also on the board of
Amalgamated Metal and paradoxically later in World War II to become
the British Minister of Production).

There exists among the Nuremburg Trial papers the original transfer
slips from the banking division of 1.G. Farben and other firms listed on
page 110 to the Delbriick Schickler Bank in Berlin, informing the bank
of the transfer of funds from Dresdner Bank, and other banks, to their
Nationale Treuhand (National Trusteeship) account. This account was
disbursed by Rudolf Hess for Nazi Party expenses during the election.
Translation of the 1.G. Farben transfer slip, selected as a sample, is as
follows:25
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Translation of 1.G. Farben letter of February 27, 1933, advising of
transfer of 400,000 Reichsmarks to National Trusteeship account:

I.G. FARBENINDUSTRIE AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT
Bank Department :
Firm: Delbriick Schickler & Co.,
BERLIN W8
Mauerstrasse 63/65, Frankfurt (Main) 20
Our Ref: (Mention in Reply) 7 February 1933
B./Goe,

We are informing you herewith that we have authorized the Dresdner Bank
in Frankfurt/M., to pay you tomorrow forencon: RM 400,000 which you will use
in favor of the account "NATIONALE TREUHAND'' (National Trusteeship).

Respectfully,

1.G. Farbenindustrie Aktiengesellschaft
by Order:

(Signed) SELCK  (Signed) BANGERT

By special delivery

At this juncture we should take note of the efforts that have been
made to direct our attention away from American financiers (and German
financiers connected with American-affiliated companies) who were
involved with the funding of Hitler. Usually the blame for financing
Hitler has been exclusively placed upon Fritz Thyssen or Emil Kirdorf. In
the case of Thyssen this blame was widely circulated in a book allegedly
authored by Thyssen in the middle of World War II but later repudiated
by him.2? Why Thyssen would want to admit such actions before the
defeat of Naziism is unexplained.

Emil Kirdorf, who died in 1937, was always proud of his association
with the rise of Naziism. The attempt to limit Hitler financing to Thyssen
and Kirdorf extended into the Nuremburg trials in 1946, and was chal-
lenged only by the Soviet delegate. Even the Soviet delegate was unwill-
ing to produce evidence of American associations; this is not surprising be-
cause the Soviet Union depends on the goodwill of these same financiers
to transfer much needed advanced Western technology to the U.S.S.R.

At Nuremburg, statements were made and allowed to go unchal-
lenged which were directly contrary to the known direct evidence pre-
sented above. For example, Buecher, Director General of German General
Electric, was absolved from sympathy for Hitler:
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Thyssen has confessed his error like a man and has courage-
ously paid a heavy penalty for it. On the other side stand men
like Reusch of the Gutehoffnungshuette, Karl Bosch, the late
chairman of the 1.G. Farben Aufsichtsrat, who would very likely
have come to a sad end, had he not died in time. Their feelings
were shared by the deputy chairman of the Aufsichtsrat of Kalle.
The Siemens and AEG companies which, next to 1.G. Farben,
were the most powerful German concerns, and they were deter-
mined opponents of national socialism.

I know that this unfriendly attitude on the part of the
Siemens concern to the Nazis resulted in the firm receiving
rather rough treatment. The Director General of the AEG
(Allgemeine Elektrizitats Gesellschaft), Geheimrat Buecher,
whom I knew from my stay in the colonies, was anything but a
Nazi. I can assure General Taylor that it is certainly wrong to
assert that the leading industrialists as such favored Hitler be-
fore his seizure of power.®8

Yet on page 56 of this book we reproduce a document originating
with General Electric, transferring General Electric funds to the National
Trusteeship account controlled by Rudolf Hess on behalf of Hitler and
used in the 1933 elections.

Similarly, von Schnitzler, who was present at the February 1933
meeting on behalf of 1.G. Farben, denied 1.G. Farben’s contributions to
the 1933 Nationale Treuhand:

I never heard again of the whole matter [that of financing
Hitler], but I believe that either the buro of Goering or Schacht
or the Reichsverband der Deutschen Industrie had asked the of-
fice of Bosch or Schmitz for payment of IG's share in the elec
tion fund. As 1 did not take the matter up again I not even at that
time knew whether and which amount had been paid by the IG.
According to the volume of the IG, I should estimate 1G's share
being something like 10 percent of the election fund, but as far
as 1 know there is no evidence that 1.G. Farben participated in
the payments.®

As we have seen, the evidence is incontrovertible regarding political
cash contributions to Hitler at the crucial point of the takeover of power in
Germany — and Hitler's earlier speech to the industrialists clearly
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revealed that a coercive takeover was the premeditated intent.

We know exactly who contributed, how much, and through what
channels. It is notable that the largest contributors — 1.G. Farben,
German General Electric (and its affiliated company Osram), and Thyssen
— were affiliated with Wall Street financiers. These Wall Street finan-
ciers were at the heart of the financial elite and they were prominent in
contemporary American politics. Gerard Swope of General Electric was
author of Roosevelt's New Deal, Teagle was one of NRA's top administra-
tors, Paul Warburg and his associates at American 1.G. Farben were
Roosevelt advisors. It is perhaps not an extraordinary coincidence that
Roosevelt’s New Deal — called a “*fascist measure’” by Herbert Hoover —
should have so closely resembled Hitler's program for Germany, and that
both Hitler and Roosevelt took power in the same month of the same year
— March 1933. _

* ;éf- #
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ANTITHESIS:

FINANCING THE NAZIS

ANTONY C. SUTTON B
FROM AMERICA™S SECRET ESTABLISHMENT — AN INTRODUCTION 1O THE ORDER OF SKULL AND BONES, - 1986

The Marxist version of the Hegelian dialectic poses financial
capitalism as thesis and Marxist revolution as antithesis. An obvious
puzzle in this Marxian statement is the nature of the synthesis presumed
to evolve out of the clash of these opposites, i.e.. the clash of financial
capitalism and revolutionary Marxism.

Lenin's statement that the State will wither away at the synthesis stage
is nonsensical. In fact, as all contemporary Marxist states testify, the
State in practice becomes all powerful. The immediate task of “the
revolution™ is to convey all power to the state, and modern Marxist
states operate under a constant paranoia that power may indeed pass
away from the hands of the State into the hands of the people.

We suggest that world forces may be seen differently, although still in
terms of the Hegelian dialectic. If Marxism is posed as the thesis and na-
tional socialism as antithesis, then the most likely synthesis becomes a
Hegelian New World Order, a synthesis evolving out of the clash of
Marxism and national socialism. Moreover, in this statement those who
finance and manage the clash of opposites can remain in control of the
synthesis.

If we can show that The Order has artificially encouraged and
developed both revolutionary Marxism and national socialism while re-
taining some control over the nature and degree of the conflict, then it
follows The Order will be able to determine the evolution and nature of
the New World Order.
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(14) The HERMANN GOERING WERKE

2. The report is based on interrogations of THYSSEN by Mr. CLIFFURD
HINNING, U.8. Group Control Council (Cermany), Flnance Division, at DUSTBIN,
on 13, 20, and 23 July L945.

For the Director of Intelligemce: oy
A e / :
/s )/CCLUt A C):‘ teitea
“—  WALTER K. SCHWINN

Chief, Econanic 2nd Financial Branch
FIAT (US)
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I. WHERE DID THE NAZIS GET THEIR FUNDS FOR

REVOLUTION?

In Wali Street And The Rise of Hitler we described several financial
conduits between Wall Street and the Nazi Party. This was later sup-
plemented by publication of a long suppressed book, Hitler's Secret
Backers 1 Siill other books have emphasized the Fritz Thyssen financial
connection to Hitler. After he split with Hitler, Thyssen himself wrote a
book, | Paid Hitler. We are now in a position to merge the evidence in
these books with other material and our documentation on The Order,

The records of the U.S. Control Council for Germany contain the
post-war intelligence interviews with prominent Nazis. From these we
have verification that the major conduit for funds to Hitler was Fritz
Thyssen and his Bank fur Handel and Schiff, previously called von
Heydt's Bank. This information coincides with evidence in Wall Street
And The Rise Of Hitler and Hitler's Secret Backers, even to the names
of the people and banks involved, 1 e., Thyssen, Harriman, Guaranty
Trust, von Heydt, Carter, and so on.

The document reproduced on page 167 slipped through U.S. cen-
sorship because the Office of Director of Intelligence did not know of the
link between Fritz Thyssen and the Harriman interests in New York.
Documents linking Wall Street to Hitler have for the most part been
removed from U.S. Control Council records. In any event, we
reproduce here the Intelligence report identifying Fritz Thyssen and his
Bank fur Handel und Schiff (No. EF/Me/ 1 of September 4, 1945) and
page 13 of the interrogation of Fritz Thyssen entitled “Financial Support
of the Nazi Party.”

II. WHO WAS THYSSEN?

Fritz Thyssen was the German steel magnate who associated himself
with the Nazi movement in the early '20s. When interrogated in 1945
under Project Dustbin, Thyssen recalled that he was approached in
1923 by General Ludendorf at the time of French evacuation of the
Ruhr. Shortly after this meeting Thyssen was introduced to Hitler and
provided funds for the Nazis through General Ludendorf.

In 1930-31 Emil Kirdorf approached Thyssen and subsequently sent
Rudolf Hess to negotiate further funding for the Nazi Party. This time
Thyssen arranged a credit of 250,000 marks at the Bank Voor Handel
en Scheepvaart N.V. (the Dutch name for the bank named by Thyssen
in the attached document), at 18 Zuidblaak in Rotterdam, Holland.

Thyssen was former head of the Vereinigte Stahlwerke, The German

Ll Street And The Rise Of Hitler and Hitfer s Secret Backers are oltainable from Research
Publications, P D Box 39850, Phoenix Anzona 85069 Some other aspects are covered i Charles
Higham, Trading With The Enemy (Delacorte Press)
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steel trust, financed by Dilloh, Read (New York), and played a decisive
role in the rise of Hitler to power by contributing liberally to the Nazi
Party and by influencing his fellow industrialists to join him in support of
the Fuehrer. In reward for his efforts, Thyssen was showered with
political and economic favors by the Third Reich and enjoyed almost
unlimited power and prestige under the Nazi regime until his break with
Hitler in 1939 over the decision to invade Poland and precipitate the
Second World War.

This incident and Thyssen’s subsequent publication, I Paid Hitler, has
a parallel wtih the history of his father, August Thyssen. Through a
similar confession in 1918 the elder Thyssen, despite his record as a
staunch backer of pan-Germanism, succeeded in convincing the Allies
that sole responsibility for German aggression should be placed on the
Kaiser and German industrialists should not be blamed for the support
they had given to the Hohenzollerns. Apparently influenced by August
Thyssen and his associates, the Allies made no effort to reform German
industry after World War |. The result was that Thyssen was allowed to
retain a vast industrial empire and pass it on intact to his heirs and
SUCCeSSors

It was against this background that Fritz Thyssen took over control of
the family holdings following the death of his father in 1926. The new
German steel baron had already achieved fame throughout the Reich
by his defiance of the French during their occupation of the Ruhr in
1923. Like Hitler, Thyssen regarded the Treaty of Versailles as “a pact
of shame™ which must be overthrown if the Fatherland were to rise
again This Is the story in Hitler’s Secret Backers

Thyssen set out along the same road as his father, aided by ample
Wall Street loans to build German industry. August Thyssen had com-
bined with Hugenburg, Kirdorf, and the elder Krupp to promote the All-
Deutscher Verband (the Pan-German League), which supplied the ra-
tionale for the Kaiser's expansionist policies.

His son became an active member of the Stahlhelm and later,
through Goring, joined the Nazis. Finally, after the crash of 1931 had
brought German industry to the verge of bankruptcy, he openly em-
braced national socialism.

During the next 2 years Thyssen dedicated his fortune and his in-
fluence to bring Hitler to power. In 1932 he arranged the famous
meeting in the Dusseldorf Industrialists’ Club, at which Hitler addressed
the leading businessmen of the Ruhr and the Rhineland. At the close of
Hitler's speech Thyssen cried, "Heil Herr Hitler,” while the others ap-
plauded enthusiastically. By the time of the German Presidential elec-
tions later that year, Thyssen obtained contributions to Hitler's cam-
paign fund from the industrial combines. He alone is reported to have
spent 3,000,000 marks on the Nazis in the year 1932.
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IlI. THE UNION BANKING CONNECTION

This flow of funds went through Thyssen banks. The Bank fur Handel
and Schiff cited as the conduit in the U.S. Intelligence report was a sub-
sidiary of the August Thyssen Bank, and founded in 1918 with H.J.
Kouwenhoven and D.C. Schutte as managing partners. In brief, it was
Thyssen's personal banking operation. and affiliated with the W.A.
Harriman financial interests in New York. Thyssen reported to his
Project Dustbin interrogators that:

"l chose a Dutch bank because | did not want to be mixed up with
German banks in my posinon, and because | thought it was better
to do business with a Dutch bank, and | thought | would have the
Nazis a little more in my hands.”

Hitler’'s Secret Backers identifies the conduit from the U.S. as “"von
Heydt,” and von Heydt's Bank was the early name for Thyssen's Bank
Furthermore. the Thyssen front bank in Holland — i.e.. the Bank voor
Handel en Scheepvaart N.V. — controlled the Union Banking Cor-
poration in New York. '

The Harrimans had a financial interest in, and E. Roland Harriman
(The Order 1917), Averell's brother, was a director of this Union Bank-
ing Corporation. The Union Banking Corporation of New York City
was a joint Thyssen-Harriman operation with the following directors in
1932

E. Roland Harriman Vice President of W.A. Harriman &

(The Order 1917) Co., New York
H.J. Kouwenhoven Nazi banker, managing partner of
(Nazi) August Thyssen Bank and Bank voor

Handel Scheepvaart N.V. (the
transfer bank for Thyssen's funds)

Knight Woolley Director of Guaranty Trust, New York

(The Order 1917} and Director Federal Reserve Bank of
N.Y.

Cornelius Lievense President. Union Banking Corp. and
Director of Holland-American Invest-
ment Corp.

Ellery Sedgewick James Partner, Brown Brothers, & Co.,

{The Order 1917) New York

Johann Groninger Director of Bank voor Handel en

(Nazi) Scheepvaart and Vereinigte Stahl-
werke (Thyssen’s steel operations)

J.L. Guinter Director Union Banking Corp.

Prescott Sheldon Bush  Partner, Brown Brothers. Harriman.

(The Order 1917) Father of President G. H. W. Bush.
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The eight directors of Union Banking Corporation are an interesting
bunch indeed. Look at the following:
* Four directors of Union Banking are members of The Order: all
initiated at Yale in 1917 — members of the same Yale class. All
four were members of the same cell (club) D 115
* E. Harriman was the brother of W. Averell Harriman and a
Vice-President of WA, Harriman Company
* Guaranty Trust was represented by Knight Woolley
e Two of the Union directors. Kouwenhoven and Groninger,
were Nazi directors of Bank voor Handel en Scheepvaart,
formerly the von Heydt Bank, Von Heydt was the intermediary
between Guaranty Trust and Hitler named in Hitler's Secret
Backer.
* Ellery S. James and Prescott S. Bush were partners in Brown
Brothers, later Brown Brothers, Harriman.
Out of eight directors of Thyssen's bank in New York, we can
therefore identify six who are either Nazis or members of The Order.

This private bank was formerly named Von Heydt Bank and von
Hevydt is named by Sharp in Hitler’s Secret Backers as the intermediary
from Guaranty Trust in New York to Hitler between 1930 and 1933.
Above all, remember that Shoup was writing in 1933 when this infor-
mation was still only known to those on the inside. Out of tens of
thousands of banks and bankers, Shoup, in 1933, names those that
evidence surfacing decades later confirms as financing Hitler.

In brief, when we merge the information in PROJECT DUSTBIN
with Shoup's Hitler's Secret Backers. we find the major overseas
conduit for Nazi financing traces back to THE ORDER and
specifically cell D 115.

[V. PROFIT FROM CONFLICT

Out of war and revolution come opportunities for profit

Conflict can be used for profit by corporations under control and in-
fluence of The Order. In World War Il, the Korean War and the Viet-
namese War we can cite examples of American corporations that traded
with “the enemy" for profit.

This "blood trade” is by no means sporadic or hmited to a few firms; it
is general and reflects higher policy decisions and philosophies. Cor-
porations — even large corporations — are dominated by banks and
trust companies, and in turn these banks and trust companies are
dominated by The Order and its allies. (This will be the topic of a forth-
coming volume)
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Although the U.S. did not officially go to war with Germany until
1941, legally, and certainly morally, the U.S. was at war with Nazi Ger-
many after the Destroyer deal with Great Britain in December 1940,
i.e., the exchange of 50 old U.S. destroyers for strategic bases in British
territory. Even before December 1940 the MS “Frederick S. Fales”
owned by Standard Vacuum Company was sunk by a German sub-
marine on September 21, 1940, Yet in 1941 Standard Oil of New
Jersey (now EXXON) had six Standard Oil tankers under Panamanian
registry, manned by Nazi officers to carry fuel oil from Standard Oil
refineries to the Canary Islands, a refueling base of Nazi submarines.

A report on this dated July 15, 1941 from Intelligence at Fifth Corps
in Columbus, Ohio is reproduced on page 172. The report is in error
recording that no Standard Oil ships had been sunk by the Nazis; Major
Burrows apparently did not know “Frederick S. Fales" in 1940.

Another example of profit from war is recorded in the document on
page 173. This records the association of RCA and the Nazis in World
War Il. RCA was essentially a Morgan-Rockefeller firm and so linked to
The Order.

Yet another example is that of Chase Bank. Chase was linked to The
Order through the Rockefeller family (Percy Rockefeller, The Order
1900) and Vice-President Reeve Schley (Yale, Scroll & Key). Directors
of Chase in The Order included Frederick Allen (The Order 1900),
W .E.S. Griswold (The Order 1899) and Cornelius Vanderbilt, whose
brother Gwynne Vanderbilt (The Order 1899) represented the family
before his death. President of Chase was Winthrop Aldrich. This was
the Harvard branch of the Aldrich family, another branch is Yale and
The Order.

Chase Manhattan Bank is not only a firm that plays both sides of the
political fence, but with Ford Motor Company, was selected by Treasury
Secretary Morgenthau for post-war investigation of pro-Nazi activities:

These two situations [i.e., Ford and Chase Bank] convince us that
it is imperative to investigate immediately on the spot the activities
of subsidiaries of at least some of the larger American firms which
were operating in France during German occupation . . .

The extent of Chase collaboration with Nazis is staggering — and this
was at a time when Nelson Rockelfeller had an intelligence job in
Washington aimed AGAINST Nazi operations in Latin America.

In December 1944 Treasury Department officials examined the
records of the Chase Bank in Paris. On December 20, 1944 the senior
U.S. examiner sent a memorandum to Treasury Secretary Morgenthau
with the preliminary results of the Paris examination. Here's an extract
from that report:
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SUBJECT: Standard Oil Campany of Rew Jersay Ships Under Panamanian
Registry.

TO: h. C. of S., G=2,
War Departosnt
Washington, D. C.

1. A recort tas been received from Clevsland, Chic, ian wnich & is=
stated that the source of this information 1s urquesticneble, to the
affect that the Stardard 2{1 Cozpany of New Jjersey now shizs undsr Pac—
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this fuel oil to the present German governc—ent,
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be manned mainly by Mazl officers. Seanen have reparted o the infor—a—
that they have sesn submarines in the iecxzediate vicinity of the Tanary
Islands and have leamed that these subzarines ars refueling there. The
informant also stated that the Standard 01l Zocpany has not lost any
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to other ports.
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DEPARTMENT OF STATE

Memorandum of ﬁEWSFm

DATE: yay 24, 1943.

SURJECT: Comxrmunications.

PARTICIPANTS: Colonel Sarnoff, Ac#

¥r. Lonz.

COPIES TO: P\, Ii.

LER S il e e Y
e
It alked to Colorel Sarnofl on the telsphone and e xpls!ined
to hixm that wa had reason to bLelleve tha: more messages than tho
rgreed 700 code=-groups a wsaek were belpg sent from 3. A. by tre
Axls powers to their Joverr—entsa. I told him I could not disclose
dcwn there the source of owr informatlon. In an elfort to obialn
additlonal {nforwation our representativaes down there had :p proachad
Hayes. Hayes had seemed to them concooperative. Trere may have
tean vory sound reesons why he refusedt o ¢iasclose ths exact nuzber
of m=3sazes sent in code-groupa by sach of the Axls represantatives
to thelr Governmert. However, there dicn't ssem to bo any ressen
why the managershlp should not requsat a report on nll code-zraupa
being sent over o period of time, day by dar, and to Include a
repcrt on all bellfzerents, and that If he mould obtaln that
{nformetion through confidantlal channels wa would be appreciative,
T suggestad % bo not done by telegraph or telephone and auggested
the mall, ™t offered to malke thea pouch available.

Colonal Sarnoff replled that he would talr to ¥r. Winteroottan
but he saw no reason why we should not do {t and that he would
comzunicato with us £f they wanted to use the pouch.

After receipt of thls lnformatlon we wlll be in a bettor
position to judge what pur pollicy should be,

A-L:BL:lez
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a. Niederman, of Swiss nationality, manager of Chase, Paris,
was unquestionably a collaborator;

b. The Chase Head Office in New York was informed of Nieder-
man's collaborationist policy but took no steps to remove him.
Indeed there is ample evidence to show that the Head Office in
New York viewed Niederman's good relations with the Ger-
mans as an excellent means of preserving, unimpaired. the
position of the Chase Bank in France

¢. The German authorities were anxious to keep the Chase open
and indeed took exceptional measures to provide sources of
revenue.

d. The German authorities desired “to be friends” with the impor-
tant American banks because they expected that these banks
would be useful after the war as an instrument of German
policy in the United States.

e The Chase, Paris showed itself most anxious to please the
German authorities in every possible way. For example, the
Chase zealously maintained the account of the German Em-
bassy in Paris, "as every little thing helps” (to maintain the ex-
cellent relations between Chase and the German authorities).

{. The whole objective of the Chase policy and operation was to
maintain the position of the bank at any cost,

In brief, Chase Bank was a Naz collaborator, but the above
preliminary report is as far as the investigation proceeded. The report
was killed on orders from Washington, D.C.

On the other hand, Chase Bank, later Chase Manhattan Bank. has
been a prime promoter of exporting U S technology to the Soviet
Union. This goes all the way back to the early 1920s when Chase broke
U.S. regulations in order 10 aid the Soviets. As early as 1922 Chase was
trying to export military LIBERTY aircraft engines to the Soviet Union!

In conclusion, we have seen that the two arms of the dialectic de-
scribed in Memoranda Three and Four clashed in World War I, Fur-
thermore, the corporate segment of the elite profited from Lend Lease
to the Soviets and by underground cooperation with Nazi interests, The
political wing of The Order was at the same time preparing a new dialec-
tic for the post World War Il era.

¥



Picture taken in 1959, while Averell Harriman was serving as Governor of
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THE HOUSE OF BUSH:
BORN IN A BANK

WEBSTER GRIFFIN TARPLEY AND ANTON CHAITKIN

CHAFTER ONE OF GEORGE BUSH — THE UNAUTHORIZED BIOGRAPHY - 1992 USED WITH PERMISSION

‘a C,‘Ho 15 GEORGE BusH? How did he become the 41st U.S. President?
He is said to be a man of the "old establishment.,” who “chose to seck his
fortune as an independent oilman ... ™

In fact, Bush was never “independent.” Every career step in his upward climb relied on his
family's powerful associations. The Bush family joined the Eastern Establishment compara-
tively recently, and only as servitors. Their wealth and influence resulted from their loyalty
to another, more powerful family, and their willingness to do anything to get ahead.

For whar they did, Bush's forebears should have become very famous, or infamous, They
remained obscure figures, managers from behind the scenes. But their actions — including
his father’s role as banker tor Adolf Hitler — had rragic effects for the whole planet.

It was these services to his family’s benefactors, which propelled George Bush to

the top.

PRESCOTT GOES TO WAR

resident George Herbert Walker Bush was born in 1924, the son of Prescott S,

Bush and Dorothy Walker Bush. We will begin the George Bush story abour a
decade before his birth, on the eve of World War 1. We will follow the career of his
father, Prescott Bush, through his marriage with Dorothy Walker, on the pach o
fortune, elegance and power.

Prescort Bush entered Yale University in 1913. A native of Columbus, Ohio, Prescor
had spent the last five years before college in St. George's Episcopal preparatory school
in Newport, Rhode Island.

Prescort Bush's first college year, 1913, wasalso the freshman year at Yale for E. Roland
( “Bunny"” ) Harriman, whose older brother (Wm.) Averell Harriman had just graduared
from Yale. This is the Averell Harriman who went on to fame as the U.S, ambassador
to the Sovier Union during World War 11, as a governor of New York State, and as a
presidential advisor who was greatly responsible for starting the Vietnam War.
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The Harrimans would become the sponsors of the Bushes, to lift them onro the stage
of world history.

In the spring of 1916, Prescott Bush and “Bunny” Harriman were chosen for member-
ship in an elite Yale senior-year secret society known as Skull and Bones, This unusually
morbid, death-celebrating group helped Wall Street financiers find active young men of
“good birth” to form a kind of imitarion British aristocracy in America.

World War | was then raging in Europe. With the prospect that the U.S.A. would
soon join the WA, TWO Skull and Bones “Patriarchs,” Averell Harriman (class of 1913)
and Percy A. Rockefeller (class of 1900), paid special attention to Prescott’s class of 1917,
They wanted reliable cadres to help them play the Grear Game, in the lucrative new im-
perial era that the war was opening up for London and New York moneycrats. Prescott
Bush, by then a close friend of “Bunny” Harriman, and several other Bonesmen from
their class of 1917 would later comprise the core partners in Brown Brothers Harriman,
the world’s largest private investment bank.

World War I did make an immense amount of money for the clan of stock speculators
and British bankers who had just taken over U.S. industry. The Harrimans were stars of
this new Anglo-American clire.

Averell’s father, stock broker E.H. Harriman, had gained control of the Union Pacific Rail-
road in 1898 with credit arranged by William Rockefeller, Percy’s father, and by Kuhn Loeb
& Co.’s British-affiliated private bankers, Otto Kahn, Jacob Schiff and Felix Warburg.

William Rockefeller, treasurer of Standard Qil and brother of Standard founder John
D. Rockefeller, owned National City Bank {later “Citibank” ) together with Texas-based
James Stillman. In return for their backing, E.H. Harriman deposited in City Bank the
vast receipts from his railroad lincs. When he issued tens of millions of dollars of “wa-
tered” (fraudulent) railroad stock, Harriman sold most of the shares through the Kuhn
Loeb company.

The First World War elevated Prescotr Bush and his father, Samuel P Bush, into the
lower ranks of the Eastern Esaablishment.

As war loomed in 1914, Nadional Ciry Bank began reorganizing the U.S. arms industry.
Percy A. Rockefeller ook direct control of the Remington Arms company, appointing
his own man, Samuel E Pryor, as the new chief executive of Remington.

The U.S entered World War I'in 1917, In the spring of 1918, Prescont’s father, Samuel
P. Bush, became chief of the Ordnance, Small Army and Ammunition Section of the War
[ndustries Board.” The senior Bush took national responsibility for government assistance
to and relations with Remington and other weapons companies.

This was an unusual appointment, as Prescotr’s father seemed 10 have no background in
munitions. Samuel Bush had been president of the Buckeye Steel Castings Co. in Columbus,
Ohio, maker of railcar parts, His entire career had been in the railroad business — supplying
equipment to the Wall Street-owned railroad systems.

The War Industries Board was run by Bernard Baruch, a Wall Street speculator with
close personal and business ties to old E.H. Harriman. Baruch’s brokerage firm had
handled Harriman speculations of all kinds.*

In 1918, Samuel Bush became director of the Facilities Division of the War Indus-
tries Board. Prescott’s father reported to the Board's Chairman. Bernard Baruch, and o
Baruch's assistant, Wall Street private banker Clarence Dillon.

Robere S. Lovett, President of Union Pacific Railroad, chief counsel to E.H. Harriman
and executor of his will, was in charge of national production and purchase “priorities”
for Baruch’s board.
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With the war mobilization conducted under the supervision of the War Indus-
tries Board, U.S. consumers and taxpayers showered unprecedented fortunes on war
producers and certain holders of raw materials and patents. Hearings in 1934 by the
committee of U.S. Senator Gerald Nye attacked the “Merchants of Death” — war
profiteers such as Remington Arms and the British Vickers company — whose sales-
men had manipulated many nations into wars, and then supplied all sides with the
weapons to fight them.

Percy Rockefeller and Samuel Pryor’s Remington Arms supplied machine guns and
Colt automatic pistols; millions of rifles to Czarist Russia; over half of the small-arms
ammunition used by the Anglo-American allies in World War [; and 69 percent of the
rifles used by the United Srates in that conflice.’

Samuel Bush's wartime relationship to these businessmen would continue after the war,
and would especially aid his son Prescort’s career of service to the Harrimans.

Most of the records and correspondence of Samuel Bush’s arms- related section of
the government have been burned, “ro save space” in the National Archives. This matter
of destroyed or misplaced records should be of concern to citizens of a constitutional
republic. Unfortunately, it is a rather constant impediment with regard to researching
George Bush's background: He is certainly the most "covert” American chief executive.

Now, arms production in wartime is by necessity carried on with great security precau-
tions. The public need not know details of the private lives of the government or industry
executives involved, and a broad interrelationship between government and private-sector
personnel is normal and useful.

But during the period preceding World War 1, and in the war years 1914-1917 when
the U.S. was stll neutral, interlocking Wall Street financiers subservient to British strategy
lobbied heavily, and twisted U.S. government and domestic police functions. Led by the
J.P Morgan concern, Britain's overall purchasing agent in America, these financiers wanted
a world war and they wanted the United States in it as Britain’s ally. The U.S, and Briush
arms companies, owned by these international financiers, poured our weapons abroad
in deals not subject to the scrutiny of any electorate back home. The same gentlemen,
as we shall see, later supplied weapons and money to Hitler's Nazis.

Thar this problem persists today, is in some respect due to the “control” over the
documentation and the history of the arms trafhickers.

World War [ was a disaster for civilized humanity, It had terrible, unprecedented ca-
sualties, and shattering effects on the moral philosophy of Europeans and Americans,

But for a brief period, the war treated Prescott Bush rather well.

In June, 1918, just as his father took over responsibility for relarions of the government
with the private arms producers, Prescott went to Europe with the U.S. Army. His unit
did not come near any fire until September. But on August 8, 1918, the following item
appeared on the front page of Bush’'s home-town newspaper:

3 High Military Honors Conferred on Capt. Bush
For Notable Gallantry, When Leading Allied Commanders Were Endangered,
Local Man is Awarded French, English and U.S. Crosses.

international Honors, perhaps unprecedented in the life of an American soldier, have been con-
ferred upon Captain Prescott Sheldon Bush, son of Mr. and Mrs. S.P. Bush of Columbus.

Upon young Bush ... were conferred: Cross of the Legion of Honor, ... Victoria Cross, ...
Distinguished Service Cross...
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Conferrimg of the three decorations upon one man at one time implies recognition of a
deed of rare valor and probably of great military importance as well.

From word which has reached Columbus during the last few days, it appears as if the
achievement of Captain Bush well measures up to these requirements,

The incident occurred on the western front about the time the Germans were launch-
ing their great offensive of July 15 ... The history of the remarkable victery scored later by
the allies might have been written in another vein, but for the heroic and quick action of
Capram Bush.

The ... three allied leaders, Gen, [Ferdinand] Foch, Sir Douglas Haig and Gen. [John ]|
Pershing ... were makong an inspection of Amencan positions. Gen. Pershing had sent for
Captam Bush to guide them abour one sector ... Suddenly Captain Bush noticed 4 shell com-
g directly for them. He shouted a warning, suddenly drew his bolo knife, stuck it up as he
would a ball bat, and parried the blow, causing the shell 1o glance off o the right ...

Within 24 hours young Bush was notified ... [that] the three allied commanders had
recommended him for practically the highest honors within their gift... Captain Bush is 23
years old, a graduate of Yale i the class of 1917. He was one of Yale's best- known athletes
.. was leader of the glee club ... and in his semor year was elected to the famous Skull and
Bones Society ... *

The day after this asconishing story appeared, there was a large cartoon on the editorial
page. It depicred Prescott Bush as a small boy, reading a story-book about mitlitary hero-
ism, and saying: “Gee! I wonder if anything like thar could ever truly happen to a boy.”
The caption below was a rehash of the batting- away- the-deadly-shell exploit, written
in storybook style.”

Local excitement about the military “Babe Ruth” lasted just four weeks. Then this
somber little box appeared on the front page:

Editor State Journal:

A cable received from my son, Prescott S. Bush, brings word that he has not been decorated,
as published m the papers 2 month ago. He feels dreadfully troubled that a letter, written in
aspinit of fun, should have been misinterpreted. He says he 15 no hero and asks me to make
explanations. [ will appreciate your kindness in publishing this letter...

Flora Sheldon Bush.
Columbus, Sept. 5.

Prescort Bush larer claimed that he spent "about 10 or 11 weeks” in the area of combat
in France. “We were under fire there... It was quite exciting, and of course a wonderful
experience.” "

Prescorr Bush was discharged in mid-1919, and returned for a short time to Columbus,
Ohio. But his humiliation in his home town was so intense that he could no longer live
there. The “war hero” story was henceforth not spoken of in his presence. Decades larter,
when he was an importane, rich ULS, Senator, the story was whispered and puzeled over
among the Congressmen.

Looking to be rescued from this ugly situation, Caprain Bush wentto the 1919 reunion
of his Yale class in New Haven, Connecricut: Skull and Bones Parriarch Wallace Simmons,
closely tied to the arms manufacturers, offered Prescott Bush a job in his St. Louis railroad
equipment company. Bush took the offer and moved to St. Louis — and his destiny.
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A THOROUGHBRED MARRIAGE
rescott Bush went to St. Louis to repair his troubled life. Somerime that same year,
Averell Harriman made a trip there on a project which would have great consequences

for Prescott. The 28- year-old Harriman, until then something of a playboy, wanted to

bring his inherited money and contacts into action in the arena of world affairs.

President Theodore Roosevelt had denounced Harriman's father for “cynicism and deep-
seated corruption” and called him an “undesirable citizen.™ For the still- smarting Averell
to take his place among the makers and breakers of nations, he needed a hinancial and intel-
ligence-gathering organization of his own. The man Harriman sought to create such an in-
sticurion for him was Bert Walkes, a Missouri stock broker and corporate wheeler-dealer.

George Herbert ( "Bert” ) Walker, for whom President George H.W. Bush was named,
did not immediately accept Harriman'’s proposal, Would Walker leave his little St. Louis
empire, to try his influence in New York and Europe?

Bert was the son of a dry goods wholesaler who had thrived on imports from Eng-
land.”” The British connection had paid for Walker summer houses in Santa Barbaru,
California, and in Maine — "Walker’s Point” at Kennebunkporr. Bert Walker had been
sent to England for his prep school and college educarion,

By 1919 Bert Walker had strong ties to the Guaranty Trust Company in New York
and to the British-American banking house ].I* Morgan and Co, These Wall Streer con-
cerns represented all the important ewners of American railroads: the Morgan partners
and their associates or cousins in the intermarried Rockefeller, Whitney, Harriman and
Vanderbilt families.

Bert Walker was known as the midwest's premier deal-arranger, awarding the mvest-
ment capital of his international-banker contacts to the many railroads, utilities and
other midwestern industries of which he and his St. Louis friends were execurives or
board members.

Walker's operations were always quiet, or mysterious, whether in local or global affairs.
He bad long been the “power behind the throne” in the St. Lows Democratic Party, along
with his crony, former Missouri Governor David R. Francis. Walker and Francis together
had sufficient influence to select the party’s candidates."

Back in 1904, Bert Walker, David Francis, Washington University President Rob-
ert Brookings and their banker/broker circle had organized a world’s fair in St. Louis,
the Louisiana Purchase Exposition. In line with the old Southern Confederacy family
backgrounds of many of these sponsors, the fair featured a “Human Zoo™: live natives
from backward jungle regions were exhibited in special cages under the supervision of
anthropologist William J. McGee.

So Averell Harriman was a natural patron for Bert Walker. Bert shared Averell's passion
for horse breeding and harse racing, and easily accommodated the Harriman family’s relaced
social philosophy. They believed that the horses and racing stables they owned showed the
way toward a sharp upgrading of the human stock — just select and mate theroughbreds,
and spurn or eliminate inferior animals.

The First World War had brought the litrle St. Louts oligarchy into the Confederate-
slave owner-oriented administration of President Woodrow Wilson and his advisors, Col.
Edward House and Bernard Baruch.

Walker’s friend Robert Brookings got into Bernard Baruch’s War Industries Board as
director of national Price Fixing (sic). David R. Francis became U.S. ambassador to Russia
in 1916. As the Bolshevik Revolution broke our, we find Bert Walker busy appointing
people to Francis’s staff in Petrograd. '
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Walker's earliest activities in relation to the Sovier stare are of significant interest
1o historians, given the activist role he was to play there together with Harriman, But
Walker's life is as covert as the rest of the Bush clan’s, and the surviving public record is
extremely thin,

The 1919 Versailles peace conference brought togerher British imperial strategists and
their American friends to make postwar global arrangements. For his own intended inter-
national adventures, Harriman needed Bert Walker, the seasoned intriguer, who quietly
represented many of the British-designated rulers of American politics and finance.

After two persuasion trips west by Harriman, Walker at length agreed to move 1o
New York. But he kepr his father’s summer house in Kennebunkport, Maine,

Bert Walker formally organized the W.A. Harriman & Co. private bank in November
1919, Walker became the bank’s president and chief execurive; Averell Harriman was
chairman and controlling co-owner with his brother Roland ("Bunny”), Prescotr Bush's
close friend from Yale; and Percy Rockefeller was a director and a founding financial
sponsor.

In the autumn of 1919, Prescott Bush made the acquaintance of Bert Walker's daughter
Dorothy, They were engaged the following year, and were married in August, 1921,
Among the ushers and grooms at the elaborate wedding were Ellery S. James, Knight
Woolley and four other fellow Skull and Bonesmen from the Yale Class of 1917."* The
Bush-Walker extended family has gathered each summer at the “Walker country home”
in Kennebunkport, from this marriage of President Bush’s parents down to the present
day.

When Prescott married Dorothy, he was anly a minor execurive of the Simmons Co.,
railroad equipment suppliers, while his wife’s father was building one of the most gigantic
businesses in the world. The following year the couple tried ta move back to Columbus,
Ohio: there Prescotr worked for a short time in a rubber products company owned by
his father. But they soon moved again to Milton, Mass., after outsiders bought the little
family business and moved it near there.

Thus Prescott Bush was going nowhere fast, when his son George Herbert Walker
Bush — the future U.S. President — was born in Milton, Mass., on June 12, 1924,

Perhaps it was as a birthday gift for George, that “Bunny” Harriman stepped in to
rescue his father Prescott from oblivion. bringing him into the Harriman-controlled
ULS. Rubber Co. in New York City. In 1925 the young family moved to the town where
George was 1o grow up; Greenwich, Connecticut, a suburb both of New York and of
New Haven/Yale.

Then on May 1, 1926, Prescort Bush joined W.A. Harriman & Co. as its vice presi-
dent, under the bank’s president, Bert Walker, his facher-in-law and George's maternal
grandfather — rhe head of the family.'®

THE GREAT GAME

Prcscnrt Bush would demonstrate sirong loyalty to the firm he joined in 1926. And
the bank, with the scope and power of many ordinary narions, could amply reward
its agents. George Bush's Grandfather Walker had put the enterprise together, quietly,
secretly, using all the international connections at his disposal. Let us briefly look back
at the beginning of the Harriman firm — the Bush family enterprise — and follow its
course into one of history’s darkest projects.

The firm’s first global lever was its successtul arrangement o get into Germany by
dominating that country’s shipping. Averell Harriman announced in 1920 that he
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would re-start Germany’s Hamburg-Amerika Line, after many months of scheming
and arm-wwisting. Hamburg-Amerika’s commercial steamships had been confiscated
by the United States at the end of the First World War. These ships had then become
the property of the Harriman enterprise, by some arrangements with the U.S, au-
thorities that were never made public.

The deal was brearhtaking; it would create the world's largest private shipping line.
Hamburg-Amerika Line regained its confiscated vessels, for a heavy price. The Harn-
man enterprise took “the right ro participate in 50 percent of all business originated in
Hamburg”; and for the next twenty years (1920-1940), the Harriman enterprise had
“complete control of all activities of the Hamburg line in the United States,”!”

Harriman became co-owner of Hamburg-Amerika. The Harriman-Walker firm gained
a right hold on its management, with the not-so-subtle backing of the post-World War
[ occuparion of Germany by the armies of England and America.

Just after Harriman's public statement, the St. Louis press celebrated Bert Walker's
role in assembling the money to consummare the deal:

“Ex-St. Louisan Forms Giant Ship Merger”

“(. H. Walker is Moving Power Behind Harnman-Morton Shipping Combine ... "

The story celebrated a “merger of two big financial houses in New York, which will
place practically unlimited capital at the disposal of the new American-German shipping
combine ... .""*

Bert Walker had arranged a “marriage” of J.P. Morgan credit and Harriman family
inherited wealth.

W.A. Harriman & Co., of which Walker was president and founder, was merging with
the Morton & Co. private bank — and Walker was “[p]rominent in the affairs of Morton
& Co,,” which was interlocked with the Morgan-controlled Guaranty Trust Co.

The Hamburg-Amerika rakeover created an effective instrument for the manipulation
and fatal subversion of Germany, One of the great “merchants of death,” Samuel Pryor,
was in it from the beginning. Pryor, then chairman of the executive committee of Rem-
ington Arms, helped arrange the deal and served with Walker on the board of Harriman's
shipping front organization, the American Ship and Commerce Co.

Walker and Harriman took the next giant step in 1922, setting up their European
headquarters office in Berlin. With the aid of the Hamburg-based Warburg bank, W.A,
Harriman & Co. began spreading an investment net over German industry and raw
materials,

From the Berlin base, Walker and Harriman then plunged into deals with the new
dicratorship of the Sovier Union. They led a select group of Wall Street and British
Empire speculators who re-started the Russian oil industry, which had been devastated
by the Bolshevik Revolution. They contracted to mine Soviet manganese, an element
essential to modern steelmaking, These concessions were arranged directly with Leon
Trotsky, then with Feliks Dzerzhinsky, founder of the Sovier dictatorship's secret intel-
ligence service (K.G.B), whose huge statue was finally pulled down by pro-democracy
demonstrators in 1991,

These speculations created both channels of communication, and the style of accom-
modation, with the communist dictatorship, that have conrinued in the family down
o President Bush,

With the bank launched, Bert Walker found New York the ideal place ro sacisfy his
passion for sports, games and gambling. Walker was clected president of the U.S. Golf
Association in 1920, He negotiated new internarional rules for the game with the Royal
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and Ancient Golf Club of St. Andrews, Scotland. After these talks he contributed the
three-foot-high silver Walker Cup, for which British and American teams have since
competed every two years.

Bert's son-in-law Prescott Bush was later secretary of the U.S. Golf Association dur-
ing the grave political and economic crises of the early 1930s. Prescott became USGA
resident in 1935, while he was otherwise embroiled in the family firm's work with Nazi
Germany.

When George was one vear old, in 1925, Bert Walker and Averell Harriman headed a
syndicate which rebuilt Madison Square Garden as the modern Palace of Sport. Walker
was at the center of New York’s gambling scene in its heyday, in that Prohibition era of
colorful and bloody gangsters. The Garden bloomed with million-dollar prize fights;
bookies and their clients pooled more millions, trying 1o match the pace of the specula-
tion-crazed stock and bond men. This was the era of “organized” crime — the national
gambling and bootleg syndicate structured on the New York corporate model.

By 1930, when George was a boy of six, Grandpa Walker was New York Stare Racing
Commissioner. The vivid colors and seunds of the racing scene must have impressed
little George as much as his grandfather. Bert Walker bred race horses at his own stable,
the Log Cabin Stud. He was president of the Belmont Park race track. Bert also person-
ally managed most aspects of Averell’s racing interests— down to picking the colors and
fabrics for the Harriman racing gear."”

From 1926, George's father Prescott Bush showed a Rerce loyalty to the Harrimans
and a dogged determination to advance himself; he gradually came to run the day-ro-
day operations of W.A. Harriman & Co. After the firm’s 1931 merger with the British-
American banking house Brown Brothers, Prescort Bush became managing partner of
the resulting company: Brown Brothers Harriman, This was ultimately the largest and
politically the most important private banking house in America.

Financial collapse, world depression and social upheaval followed the fevered specula-
tion of the 1920s. The 1929-31 crash of securities values wiped out the small fortune
Prescore Bush had gained since 1926, Bur because of his devotion to the Harrimans, they
“did a very generous thing.” as Bush later put it. They staked him o what he had lost
and put him back on his feet,

Prescort Bush described his own role, from 1931 through the 19405, in a confidential
interview:

1 emphasize ... that the Harnmans showed great courage and loyalty and confidence in us;
because three or four of us were really running the business, the day to day business. Averell
was all over the place in those days .. and Roland was involved in a lot of directorships,
and he didn’t get down into the “lift- up-and-bear-down” activity of the bank, you see- the
day- to-day decisions ... we were really running the business, the day to day business, all the
adminustrative decisions and the executive decisions. We were the ones that did it. We were
the managing partners, let’s say,”

But of the “three or four” partners in charge, Prescott was effectively at the head of the
firm, because he had taken over management of the gigantic personal investment funds
of Averell and E. Roland " Bunny” Harriman.

In those interwar years, Prescott Bush made the family fortune which George Bush
inherited. He piled up the money from an international project which continued unril a
new world war, and the action of the U.S. government, intervened to stop him,
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THE HITLER PROJECT

WEBSTER GRIFFIN TARPLEY AND ANTON CHAITKIN

CHAPTER TWO OF GEORGE BUSH — THE UNAUTHORIZED BIOGRAPHY - 1992, USED WITH PERMISSION

prepaning its first assault against Nazi military forces, Prescott Bush was managing

partner of Brown Brothers Harriman, His 18-year-old son George, the future U S,
President, had just begun training to become a naval pilot. On Oct, 20, 1942, the U.S,
government ordered the seizure of Nazi German banking operations in New York Ciry
which were being conducted by Prescott Bush,

IN OCTOBER 1942, TEN MONTHS AFTER ENTERING WORLD WAR 11, America was

BUSH PROPERTY SEIZED — TRADING WITH THE ENEMY

Under the Trading with the Enemy Aet, the government took over the Union Banking
Corporation, in which Bush was a dirccror. The U.S. Alien Property Custodian seized
Union B:mking Corp.s stock shares, all of which were owned by Prescott Bush, E. Roland
"Bunny” Harriman, three Nazi executives, and two other associates of Bush.'

The order seizing the bank “vests” (seizes) "all of the capiral stock of Union Banking
Corporation, a New York corporation.” and names the holders of its shares as:

“E. Roland Harriman — 3991 shares™
|chairman and director of Union Banking Corp. (UBC); this is "Bunny™ Harriman,
described by Prescott Bush as a place holder who didn’t get much into banking affairs;
Prescott managed his personal investments|

“Cornelis Lievense — 4 shares”
[president and director of LIBC; New York resident bankmg functionary for the Nazis|

"Harold D. Pennington — 1 share”

|treasurer and director of UBC; an office manager employed by Bush ar Brown Broth-
ers Harriman)|

265



FILFSHING OuT SKULL & BONES — INVESTIGATIONS INTO AMERICA'S MOsT POWEREUL SECRET SOCIETY

“Ray Morms — 1 share™
|director of UBC; partner of Bush and the Harrimans)

“Prescont 5. Bush — 1 share™
[directar of UBC, which was co-founded and sponsored by his fatheran-law George
Walker; semor managing partner for E, Roland Harriman and Averell Harriman|

“H.). Kouwenhoven — | share”
|director of UBC; organized UBC as the emussary of Fritz Thyssen in negotations
with George Walker and Averell Harriman; managing director of UBC’s Netherlands
affiliate under Nazi oceupation; industrial executive in Nazi Germany; director and
chief foreign financial executive of the German Steel Trust)

“Johann G. Groeninger — 1 share”
[director of UBC and of its Netherlands affiliate; industrial executive i Nazi Germany|

“all of which shares are held for the benefit of .. members of the Thyssert family, |and) is
property of nationals ... of 3 designated enemy country...”

By Oct. 26, 1942, U.S. troops were under way for North Africa. On Oct.
28, the government issued orders seizing two Nazi front organizations run by
the Bush-Harriman bank: the Holland-American Trading Corporation and the
Seamless Steel Equipment Corporation.”

ULS. forces landed under fire near Algiers on Nov. 8, 1942; heavy combat raged
throughout November. Nazi interests in the Silesian-American Corporation, long
managed by Prescort Bush and his father-in-law George Herberr Walker, were
seized under the Trading with the Enemy Act on Nov. 17, 1942, In this action,
the government announced thar it was seizing only the Nazi interests, leaving
the Nazis’ U.S. partners to carry on the business.’

These and other actions taken by the U.S. government in wartime were,
tragically, too little and too late. President Bush’s family had already played a
central role in financing and arming Adolf Hitler for his takeover of Germany;
in financing and managing the buildup of Nazi war industries for the conquest
of Europe and war against the U.S.A.; and in the development of Nazi genocide
theories and racial propaganda, with their well-known results,

The facts presented here must be known, and their implications reflected upon,
for a proper understanding of President George Herbert Walker Bush and of the
danger to mankind that he represents, The President’s family fortune was largely
a result of the Hider project. The powerful Anglo-American family associations,
which later boosted him into the Central Intelligence Agency and up to the White
House, were his father’s partners in the Hitler project.

President Franklin Roosevelt’s Alien Property Custodian, Leo T. Crow-
ley, signed Vesting Order Number 248 seizing the property of Prescott
Bush under the Trading with the Enemy Act. The ort.[::r. published in
obscure government record books and kept out of the news,* explained
nothing abour the Nazis involved; only thar the Union Banking Corpo-
ration was run for the “Thyssen family” of “Germany and/or Hungary"
— "nationals ... of a designated enemy country.”
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By deciding that Prescott Bush and the other directors of the Union Banking
Corp. were legally front men for the Nazis, the government avoided the more
important historical issue: In what way were Hitlers Nazis themselves hired, armed
and insiructed by the New York and London clique of which Prescott Bush was an
executive manager? Let us examine the Harriman-Bush Hidler project from the
1920s until it was partially broken up, to seek an answer for that question.

ORIGIN AND EXTENT OF THE PROJECT

Fritz Thyssen and his business partners are universally recognized as the most impor-
ant German financiers of Adolf Hitler’s takeover of Germany. At the time of the
order seizing the Thyssen family’s Union Banking Corp., Mr. Friez Thyssen had already
published his famous book, 7 Paid Hitler admirtting that he had financed Adolf Hitler
and the Nazi movement since October 1923. Thyssen's role as the leading early backer
of Hitler's grab for power in Germany had been noted by U.S. diplomats in Berlin in
1932.° The order seizing the Bush-Thyssen bank was curiously quiet and modest about
the identity of the perpetrators who had been nailed.

But vwo weeks before the official order, government investigators had reported secretly
that “W. Averell Harriman was in Europe sometime prior to 1924 and at that rime became
acquainted with Fritz Thyssen, the German industrialist.” Harriman and Thyssen agreed
to set up a bank for Thyssen in New York. *[Clertain of [Harriman’s] associates would
serve as directors ..." Thyssen agent “H. J. Kouwenhoven ... came to the United States
... prior to 1924 for conferences with the Harriman Company in this connection ._."’

When exactly was *Harriman in Europe sometime prior to 1924[?]" In fact, he was
in Berlin in 1922 to set up the Berlin branch of W.A. Harriman & Co. under George
Waller's presidency.

The Union Banking Corporation was established formally in 1924, as a unit in the
Manhattan offices of WA, Harriman & Co,, interlocking with the Thyssen-owned Bank
voor Handel en Scheepraart (BHS) in the Netherlands. The investigators concluded that
“the Union Banking Corporation has since its inception handled funds chiefly supplied
to it through the Dutch bank by the Thyssen interests for American investment.”

Thus by personal agreement berween Averell Harriman and Fritz Thyssen in 1922,
W.A. Harriman & Co, (alias Union Banking Corporation) would be transferring funds
back and forth between New York and the “Thyssen interests ' in Germany. By purting
up about §400,000, the Harriman organization would be joint owner and manager of
T'hyssen’s banking operations ourside of Germany.

How important was the Nazi enterprise for which President Bush's father was the
New York banker?

A 1942 U.S. government investigative report said that Bush's Nazi-front bank was an
interlocking concern with the Vereinigte Stahlwerke (Unired Steel Works Corporation
or German Steel Trust) led by Fritz Thyssen and his two brothers, After the war, Con-
gressional investigators probed the Thyssen interests, Union Banking Corp. and related
Nazi units. The investugation showed that the Vereinigre Stahlwerke had produced the

following approximate proportions of total German national ourpur:

50.8% of Nazi Germany's pig iron

41.4% of Nazi Germany's universal plate
16.0% of Nazi Germany’s heavy plate
38.5% of Nazi Germany's galvanized sheet
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45.5% of Nazi Germany's pipes and wbes
22.1% of Nazi Germany's wire
35.0% of Nazi Germany's explosives.®

Prescott Bush became vice president of WA, Harriman & Co. in 1926, That same
year, a friend of Harmiman and Bush ser up a glant new organization for their client
Fritz Thyssen, prime sponsor of politician Adelf Hitdler. The new German Steel Trust,
Germany's largest industrial corporation, was organized in 1926 by Wall Street banker
Clarence Dillon, Dillon was the old comrade of Prescott Bush's father Sam Bush from
the *Merchants of Death” bureau in World War 1,

In return for purting up $70 million to create his organization, majoriry owner Thys-
sen gave the Dillon Read company two or more representatives on the board of the new
Steel Trust.”

Thus there is a division of labor; Thyssen’s own confidential accounts, for political
and related purposes, were run through the Walker-Bush organization; the German Steel
Trust did its corporate banking through Dillon Read.

The Walker-Bush firm's banking activities were nor just politically neutral money-mak-
ing ventures which happened to coincide with the aims of German Nazis. All of the firm’s
European business in those days was organized around anti-democratic polirical forces.

In 1927, eriticism of their support for totalitarianism drew this retort from Bere Walker,
written from Kennebunkport to Averell Harriman: "It seems to me that the suggestion in
connection with Lord Bearsted's views that we withdraw from Russia smacks somewhat
of the impertinent _... I think that we have drawn our line and should hew o it,”""

Averell Harriman met with lealy’s fascist dictator, Benito Mussalini. A representative
of the firm subsequently telegraphed good news back to his chief execurive Bere Walker:
" ... During these last days ... Mussalini ... has examined and approved our clo]ntract
15 June,""

The great hnancial collapse of 1929-31 shook America, Germany and Britain, weaken-
ing all governments. It also made the hard-pressed Prescort Bush even more willing to do
whatever was necessary to retain his new place in the world, Tt was in this cnisis that cerrain
Anglo-Americans determined on the installadon of a Flider regime in Germany.

W.A. Harriman & Co., well-positioned for this enterprise and nich in assers from their
German and Russian business, merged with the British-American investment house,
Brown Brothers, on January 1, 1931, Bert Walker rerired to his own G.H. Walker &
Co. This lefr the Harriman brothers, Prescott Bush and Tharcher M. Brown as the senior
partners of the new Brown Brothers Harriman firm. (The London, England branch of the
Brown family firm continued operating under its historic name — Brown, Shipley.)

Robert A. Lovett also came over as a partner from Brown Brothers. His father, E.H.
Harriman'’s lawyer and railroad chief, had been on the War Industries Board with Prescout’s
tather, Though he remained a partner in Brown Brothers Harriman, the junior Lovent
soon replaced his father as chief exccutive of Union Pacific Railroad.

Brown Brothers had a racial eradition thar firted it well for the Hitler project! American
parriots had cursed its name back in U.S. Civil War days. Brown Brothers. with offices in
the U.S.A. and in England. had carried on their ships fully 75 percent of the slave cotton
from the American South over to British mill owners, Now in 1931, the virtual dicrator of
world finance, Bank of England Governor Montagu Coller Normin, was a former Brown
Brothers partoer, whose grandfather had been boss of Brown Brothers during the ULS, Civil
War. Montagu Norman was known as the most avid of Hider's supporters within British
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ruling circles. and Norman's intimacy with this firm was essential to his managemenr of
the Hitler project.

In 1931, while Prescott Bush ran the New York office of Brown Brothers Harriman,
Prescott’s partner was Montagu Norman’s intimate friend Thatcher Brown. The Bank
of England chief always stayed at the home of Prescott’s partner on his hush-hush trips
to New York. Prescott Bush concentrated on the firm’s German activities, and Thatcher
Brown saw to their business in old England, under the guidance of his mentor Montagu
Norman.'

HITLER'S LADDER TO POWER

dolf Hitler became Chancellor of Germany January 30, 1933, and absolute dictator

in March 1933, after two years of expensive and violent lobbying and clectioneer-
ing. Two affiliates of the Bush-Harriman organization played great parts in this criminal
undertaking: Thyssen’s German Steel Trust and the Hamburg-Amerika Line and several
of its execurives.”

Let us look more closely at the Bush family’s German partners.

Fritz Thyssen rold Allied interrogators after the war about some of his financial sup-
port for the Nazi Party: "In 1930 or 1931 ... I told [Hitler's deputy Rudolph] Hess ... |
would arrange a credit for him with a Dutch bank in Rotterdam, the Bank fir Handel
und Schiff [i.e. Bank voor Handel en Scheepvaart (BHS), the Harriman-Bush affiliace].
I arranged the credit ... he would pay it back in three years ... I chose a Dutch bank
because 1 did not want to be mixed up with German banks in my position, and because
I thought it was berter to do business with a Dutch bank, and | thought I would have
the Nazis a litde more in my hands ...

“The credit was about 250-300,000 [gold] marks — about the sum | had given
before. The loan has been repaid in part ro the Dutch bank, but I think some money is
still owing on it ....""

The overall total of Thyssen's political donations and loans to the Nazis was well over
a million dollars, including funds he raised from athers — in a period of terrible money
shortage in Germany.

Friedrich Flick was the major co-owner of the German Steel Trust with Fritz Thyssen,
Thyssen’s long-time collaborator and occasional competitor. In preparation for the war
crimes tribunal ar Nuremberg, the U.S. government said thar Flick was “one of leading
financiers and industrialists who from 1932 contribured large sums to the Nazi Party ...
member of ‘Circle of Friends’ of Himmler who contribured large sums to the §5."

Flick, like Thyssen. financed the Nazis to maintain their private armies called Schusz-
staffel (S.S. or Black Shirts) and Sturmabreilung (S.A.. storm troops or Brown Shirts).

The Flick-Harriman partnership was directly supervised by Prescott Bush, President
Bush’s father, and by George Walker, President Bush'’s grandfather.

The Harriman-Walker Union Banking Corp. arrangements for the German Steel
Trust had made them bankers for Flick and his vast operations in Germany by no later
than 1926.

The Harriman Fifteen Corporation (George Walker, president, Prescott Bush and
Averell Harriman, sole directors) held a substantial stake in the Silesian Holding Co. at the
rime of the merger with Brown Brothers, Jan. 1, 1931. This holding correlated to Averell
Harriman’s chairmanship of the Consolidated Silesian Steel Corporation, the American
group owning one-third of a complex of steel-making, coal-mining and zinc-mining
activities in Germany and Poland, in which Friedrich Flick owned two-thirds.'
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The Nuremberg prosecutor characterized Flick as follows:

“Proprictor and head of a large group of industrial enterprises (coal and iron mines, steel
producing and fabricating plants) ... ' Webrwirtschaftsfubrer', 1938 [tile awarded to promi-
nent industrialists for merit in armaments drive — Military Economy Leader'] ...

For this buildup of the Hitler war machine with coal, steel and arms production, using
slave laborers, the Nazi Flick was condemned ta seven years in prison at the Nuremberg
trials: he served three years, With friends in New York and London, however, Flick lived
into the 1970s and died a billionaire.

On March 19, 1934, I'rescott Bush — then director of the German Steel Trust's
Unian Banking Corporation — initiated an alert to the absent Averell Harriman about
a problem which had developed in the Flick parmership." Bush sent Harriman a elip-
ping from the New York Times of that day, which reporied that the Polish government
was fighting back against American and German stockholders who conwrolled “Poland’s
largest industrial unit, the Upper Silesian Coal and Steel Company ..."

The Times article cantinued: “The company has long been accused of mismanage-
ment, excessive borrowing, fictitious bookkeeping and gambling in securities. Warrants
were issued in December for several directors accused of tax evasions. They were German
citizens and they fled. They were replaced by Poles. Herr Flick, regarding this as an at-
tempt to make the company's board entirely Polish, retaliated by restricting credits undil
the new [olish directors were unable to pay the workmen regularly.”

The Yimes noted that the company’s mines and mills “employ 25,000 men and ac-
count for 45 percent of Poland's total steel output and 12 percent of her coal production.
Two-thirds of the company’s stock is owned by Friedrich Flick, a leading German steel
industrialist, and the remainder is owned by interests in the Unired Srates.”

In view of the fact that a grear deal of Polish outpur was being exported o Hitler
Germany under depression conditions, the Polish government thought that Prescott
Bush. Harriman and their Nazi partners should at least pay full taxes on their Polish
holdings. The U.S. and Nazi owners responded with a Jockout. The letter to Harriman
in Washington reported a cable from their European representative: “Have undertaken
new steps London Berlin ... please establish friendly relations with Polish Ambassador
[in Washingron].”

A 1935 Harriman Fifteen Corporation memo from George Walker announced an
agreement had been made “in Berlin® to sell an 8,000 block of their shares in Consoli-
dated Silesian Steel.” But the dispute with Poland did not deter the Bush family from
continuing its partnership with Flick.

Nazi tanks and bombs “sertled” this dispute in September, 1939 with the invasion
of Poland, beginning Warld War [1, The Nazi army had been equipped by Flick, Har-
riman, Walker and Bush, with materials essentially stolen from Poland.

There were probably few peaple at the ume who could appreciarte the irony thar when
the Soviets also attacked and invaded Poland from the East, their vehicles were fueled by
oil pumped from Baku wells revived by the Harriman/Walker/Bush enterprise.

Three years later, nearly a year afrer the Japanese attack on Pear] Harbor, the U.S.
government ordered the seizure of the Nazis' share in the Silesian-American Corporation
under the Trading with the Enemy Act. Enemy nationals were said to own 49 percent of
the common stock and 41.67 percent of the preferred stock of the company.

The order characterized the company as a “business enterprise within the United
States, owned by [a front company in] Zurich, Swirzerland, and held for the benefit of
Bergwerksgesellschaft George von Giesche's Erben, a German corporation ....""
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Bert Walker was still the senior director of the company, which he had founded
back in 1926 simultancously with the crearion of the German Steel Trust. Ray Morris,
Prescott’s partner from Union Banking Corp. and Brown Brothers Harriman, was also
a director.

The investigative report prior to the government crackdown explained the "NATURE
OF BUSINESS: The subject corporation is an American holding company for German
and Polish subsidiaries, which own large and valuable coal and zinc mines in Silesia, Po-
land and Germany, Since September 1939, these properties have been in the possession
of and have been operated by the German government and have undoubeedly been of
considerable assistance to thar country in its war efforr.™

The report noted that the American stockholders hoped to regain control of the
European properties after the war.

CONTROL OF NAZI COMMERCE

ert Walker had arranged the credits Harriman needed to take control of the Ham-

burg-Amerika Line back in 1920, Walker had organized the American Ship and
Commerce Corp, as a unit of the WA. Harriman & Co., with contractual power over
Hamburg-Amerikals affairs.

As the Hitler project went into high gear, Harriman-Bush shares in American Ship
and Commerce Corp. were held by the Harriman Fifteen Corp,, run by Prescott Bush
and Bert Walker.*

It was a convenient stroll for the well-ranned, athletic, handsaome Prescott Bush. From
the Brown Brothers Harriman skyscraper at 59 Wall Steet — where he was senior man-
aging partner, confidential investments manager and adviser to Averell and his brother
“Bunny” — he walked across to the Harriman Fifteen Corporation at One Wall Streer,
otherwise known as G.H. Walker & Co. — and around the corner to his subsidiary offices
at 39 Broadway, former home of the old W.A. Harriman & Co., and still the offices for
American Ship and Commerce Corp., and of the Union Banking Corpaoration.

In many ways, Bush’s Hamburg-Amerika Line was the pivor for the entire Hider
project.

Averell Harriman and Bert Walker had gained control aver the steamship company
in 1920 in negotiations with its post-World War I chief executive, Wilhelm Cuno. and
with the line's bankers, M.M. Warburg. Cuno was thereafter completely dependent on
the Anglo-Americans, and became a member of the Anglo-German Friendship Sociery.
In the 1930-32 drive for a Hitler dictatorship, Wilhelm Cuno contributed important
sums to the Nazi Party.”

Albert Voegler was chief executive of the Thyssen-Flick German Steel Trust for which
Bush's Union Banking Corp. was the New York office, He was a director of the Bush-ai-
filiate BHS Bank in Rotterdam, and a director of the Harmman-Bush Hamburg-Amerika
Line. Voegler joined Thyssen and Flick in their heavy 1930-33 Nazi contributions, and
helped organize the final Nazi leap into national power.

The Schroeder family of bankers was a linchpin for the Nazi activities of Harriman
and Prescott Bush, closely tied to their lawyers Allen and John Foster Dulles.

Baron Kurt von Schroeder was co-director of the massive Thyssen-Hiitte foundry along
with Johann Groeninger, Prescott Bush's New York bank partner. Kurt von Schroeder was
treasurer of the support organization for the Nazi Party's private armies, ro which Friedrich
Flick contributed. Kurt von Schroeder and Montagu Norman’s protége Hjalmar Schacht
together made the final arrangements for Hitler to enter the governmenr.”®
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Baron Rudolph von Schroeder was vice president and director of the Hamburg-
Amerika Line. Long an inrimate conract of Averell Harriman’s in Germany, Baron
Rudolph sent his grandson Baron Johann Rudolph for a tour of Prescott Bush's Brown
Brothers Harriman offices in New York Ciry in December 1932 — on the eve of their
Hitler — triumph.™

Cerrain actions taken directly by the Harriman-Bush shipping line in 1932 must be
ranked among the gravest acts of treason in this century.

The U.S. embassy in Berlin reported back to Washington that the “costly election
campaigns” and “the cost of maintaining a private army of 300,000 to 400,000 men”
had raised questions as to the Nazis' financial backers. The constitutional government
of the German republic moved to defend national freedom by ordering the Nazi Party
private armies disbanded. The LS. embassy reported that the Hamburg-Amerika Line
was purchasing and distributing propaganda attacks against the German government,
for attempting this last-minute crackdown on Hitler's forces.”

Thousands of German opponents of Hitlerism were shot or intimidated by privately
armed Nazi Brown Shires. In this connection we note that the original “Merchant of
Death,” Samuel Pryor; was a founding director of both the Union Banking Corp. and
the American Ship and Commerce Corp. Since Mr. Pryor was executive committee chair-
man of Remington Arms and a central figure in the world’s private arms traffic, his use
to the Hitler project was enhanced as the Bush tamily's partner in Nazi Party banking
and trans-Atlanric shipping.

The U.S. Senate arms-traffic investigators probed Remington after it was joined in
a cartel agreement on explosives to the Nazi firm 1.G. Farben. Looking at the period
leading up to Hider's seizure of power, the Senators found that “German political asso-
ciations, like the Nazi and others, are nearly all armed with American ... guns... . Arms
of all kinds coming from America are transshipped in the Scheldt to river barges before
the vessels arrive in Antwerp. They then can be carried through Holland withourt police
inspection ot interference. The Hiderists and Communists are presumed to ger arms in
this manner. The principal arms coming from Amenica are Thompson submachine guns
and revolvers, The number is grear, ™

The beginning of the Hitler regime brought some bizarre changes to the Hamburg-
Amerika Line — and more betrayals,

Prescott Bush's American Ship and Commerce Corp. notified Max Warburg of Ham-
burg, Germany, on March 7, 1933, that Warburg was o be the corporation’s official,
designated representative on the board of Hamburg-Amerika.™

Max Warburg replied on March 27, 1933, assuring his American sponsors that the
Hitler government was good for Germany: “For the last few years business was considerably
better than we had anticipated, but a reaction is making teself felt for some months, We are
actually suffering also under the very active propaganda against Germany, caused by some
unpleasant circumstances. These occurrences were the natural consequence of the very
excited election campaign, but were extraordinarily exaggerated in the foreign press. The
Government is firmly resolved to maintain public peace and order in Germany, and I feel
perfectly convineed in this respect that there is no cause for any alarm whatsoever."*

This seal of approval for Hitler, coming from a famous Jew, was just what Harriman
and Bush required, for they anticipaced rather serious “alarm” inside the U.S.A. against
their Nazi operations.

On March 29, 1933, two days after Max's lerter to Harmman, Max's son, Erich
Warburg, sent a cable to his cousin Frederick M, Warburg, a director of the Harriman

272



THE HITLER PROJECT

railroad system, He asked Frederick to “use all your influence” to stop all anti-Nazi activity
in America, including “atrocity news and unfriendly propaganda in forcign press, mass
meetings, etc.” Frederick cabled back ro Erich: “No responsible groups here [are] urging
[a] boycott [of ] German goods[,] merely excited individuals.” Two days after that, On
March 31, 1933, the American-Jewish Committee, controlled by the Warburgs, and the
B’nai Brith, heavily influenced by the Sulzbergers (New York Times), issued a formal,
official joint statement of the two organizations, counseling “that no American boycott
against Germany be encouraged,” and advising “that no further mass mectings be held
or similar forms of agitation be employed.™

The American Jewish Committee and the B'nai B'rith (mother of the "Anti-Defama-
tion League” ) continued with this hardline, no-attack-on-Hider stance all through the
1930s, blunting the fight mounted by many Jews and other anti-fascists.

Thus the decisive interchange reproduced above, taking place entirely within the
orbit of the Harnman/Bush firm, may explain something of the relationship of George
Bush to American Jewish and Zionist leaders. Some of them, in close cooperation with
his family, played an ugly part in the drama of Naziism. Is this why “professional Nazi-
hunters” have never discovered how the Bush family made its money?

The executive board of the Hamburg Amerika Line (Hapag) met jointly with
the North German Lloyd Company board in Hamburg on Sepr. 5, 1933. Under
official Nazi supervision, the two firms were merged. Prescott Bush's American Ship
and Commerce Corp. installed Christian J. Beck, a long-time Harriman executive,
as manager of freight and operations in North America for the new joint Nazi ship-
ping lines (Hapag-Lloyd) on Nov. 4, 1933.

According to tesumony of officials of the companies before Congress in 1934, a
supervisor from the Nazi Labor Front rode with every ship of the Harriman-Bush line;
employees of the New York offices were directly organized into the Nazi Labor Front
organization; Hamburg-Amerika provided free passage to individuals going abroad for
Nazi propaganda purposes; and the line subsidized pro-Nazi newspapers in the US.A_
as it had done in Germany against the constitutional German government. ™

In mid-1936, Prescott Bush's American Ship and Commerce Corp. cabled M.M.
Warburg, asking Warburg ro represent the company's heavy share interest ar the forth-
coming Hamburg-Amerika stockholders meeting, The Warburg office replied with the
informartion thar "we represented you” ar the stockholders meeting and “exercised on
your behalf your voring power for Rm [gold marks] 3,509,600 Hapag stock deposited
with us.”

The Warburgs transmitted a letter received from Emil Helfferich, German chief execu-
tive of both Hapag-Lloyd and of the Standard Oil subsidiary in Nazi Germany: “lt is the
intention to continue the relations with Mr. Harriman on the same basis as heretofore ...
[n a colorful gesture, Hapag's Nazi chairman Helfferich sent the line's president across
the Atlantic on a Zeppelin to confer with their New York string-pullers.

After the meeting with the Zeppelin passenger, the Harriman-Bush office replied; "1
am glad 1o learn that Mr. Hellferich [sic] has stated that relations berween the Hamburg
American Line and ourselves will be continued on the same basis as heretofore,"*

Two months before moving against Prescott Bush's Union Banking Corporation, the
U. S. government ordered the seizure of all property of the Hamburg-Amerika Line and
North German Lloyd, under the Trading with the Enemy Act. The investgators noted
in the pre-seizure report that Christian J. Beck was stll acting as an attorney represent-
ing the Nazi irm. "

273



In May 1933, just after the Hitler regime was consolidated, an agreement was reached
in Berlin for the coordinartion of all Nazi commerce with the U.S.A. The Harriman
International Co., led by Averell Harriman's first cousin Oliver. was 1o head a syndicate
of 150 firms and individuals, to conduct all exports from Hitler Germany to the United
States,”

This pact had been negotiated in Berlin between Hitler's economics minister, Hjalmar
Schacht, and John Foster Dulles, international attorney for dozens of Nazi enterprises.
with the counsel of Max Warburg and Kurt von Schroeder.

John Foster Dulles would later be ULS, Secretary of State, and the grear power in the
Republican Party of the 19505, Foster’s friendship and thar of his brother Allen (head of
the Central Intelligence Agency), greadly aided Prescott Bush to become the Republican
U.S. Senator from Connecticut. And it was to be of inestimable value to George Rush,
in his ascent to the heights of “covert action government,” that both of these Dulles
brothers were the lawyers for the Bush family’s far-Hung enterprise.

Throughout the 19305, John Foster Dulles arranged debrt restructuring for German
firms under a series of decrees issued by Adolf Hitler. In these deals, Dulles seruck a bal-
ance between the interest owed to selected, larger investors, and the needs of the growing
Nazi war-making apparatus for producing tanks, poison gas, etc.

Dulles wrote to Prescort Bush in 1937 concerning one such arrangement. The Ger-
man-Atlantic Cable Company, owning Nazi Germany's only telegraph channel to the
United States, had made debt and management agreements wath the Walker-Harriman
bank during the 1920s. A new decree would now void those agreements, which had origi-
nally been reached with non-Nazi corporate ofhcials. Dulles asked Bush, who managed
these affairs tor Averell Harriman, to get Averell's signature on a letter to Naz officials,
agreeing to the changes. Dulles wrote:

Sepr. 22, 1937

Mr. Prescott S Bush

59 Wall Street, New York, N.Y.
Dear Press,

| have looked over the letter of the German-American [sic] Cable Company to Averell
Harriman ... It would appear that the only rights m the matter are those which inure in the
bankers and that no legal embarrassment would result, so far as the bondhalders are concerned,
by your acqurescence 1 the modification of the bankers' agreement.

Sincerely yours,
John Foster Dulles

Dulles enclosed a proposed drafr reply, Bush gor Harriman's signature, and the changes
went through.*

In conjunction with these arrangements, the German Atlanric Cable Company ar-
tempted to stop payment on its debts to smaller Amencan bondholders. The money was
to be used instead for arming the Nazi stare, under a decree of the Hitler government.

Despite the busy efforts of Bush and Dulles, a New York caurt decided that this
particular Hitler “law” was invalid in the United States; small bondholders, nor parties
to deals between the bankers and the Nazis, were entitled to ger paid.”
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In this and a few other of the attempted swindles, the intended victims came out
with their money. But the Nazi financial and political reorganization went ahead two its
rragic climax,

For his part in the Hitler revolution, Prescott Bush was paid a fortune.

This is the legacy he left to his son, President George Bush.

AN IMPORTANT HISTORICAL NOTE:
How THE HARRIMANS HIRED HITLER

T WAS NOT INEVITABLE that millions would be slaughtered under fascism and in World

War II. At certain moments of crisis, crucial pro-Nazi decisions were made outside
of Germany. These decisions for pro-Nazi actions were more aggressive than the mere
“appeasement” which Anglo-American historians later preferred to discuss.

Private armies of 300,000 to 400,000 rterrorists aided the Nazis' rise to power. W.A.
Harriman’s Hamburg-Amerika Line intervened against Germany's 1932 attempt to break
them up.

The 1929-31 economic collapse bankrupred the Wall-Strect-backed German Steel
Trust. When the German government took over the Trust’s stock shares, interests as-
sociated with Konrad Adenauer and the anti-Nazi Catholic Center Party attempted
to acquire the shares. But the Anglo-Americans — Montagu Norman, and the Harri-
man-Bush bank — made sure that their Nazi puppert Fritz Thyssen regained control
over the shares and the Trust. Thyssen’s bankrolling of Hiter could then continue
unhindered.

Unpayable debts crushed Germany in the 1920s, reparatians required by the Versailles
agreements. Germany was looted by the London-New York banking system, and Hitler’s
propaganda exploited this German debt burden.

But immediately affer Germany came under Hitler’s dictatorship, the Anglo-American
financiers granted debr relief, which freed funds to be used for arming the Nazi stare.

The North German Lloyd steamship line, which was merged with Hamburg-Amerika
Line, was one of the companies which stopped debt payments under a Hitler decree ar-
ranged by John Foster Dulles and Hjalmar Schacht.

Kuhn Loeb and Co.’s Felix Warburg carried out the Hitler finance plan in New York.
Kuhn Loeb asked North German Lloyd bondhelders to accepr new lower interest steam-
ship bonds, issued by Kuhn Loeb, in place of the better pre-Hitler bonds.

New York attorney Jacob Chaitkin, father of coauthor Anton Chaitkin, took the cases
of many different bondholders who rejected the swindle by Harriman, Bush, Warburg,
and Hitler. Representing a women who was owed $30 on an old steamship bond — and
opposing John Foster Dulles in New York municipal court — Chaitkin threatened a
writ from the sheriff, tying up the 30,000 ton transatlantic liner Europa until the client
received her $30. (New York Times, January 10, 1934, p. 31 col. 3).

The American Jewish Congress hired Jacob Chaitkin as the legal director of the boy-
cott against Nazi Germany. The American Federation of Labor cooperated with Jewish
and other groups in the anti-import boycott. On the other side, virtually all the Nazi
trade with the United Srates was under the supervision of the Harriman interests and
functionaries such as Prescott Bush, father of President George Bush.

Meanwhile, the Warburgs demanded that American Jews not “agitate” against the
Hitler government, or join the organized boycott. The Warburgs' decision was carried
out by the American Jewish Committee and the B'nai B'rith, who oppased the boycott
as the Nazi military state grew increasingly powerful.
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The historical cover-up on these events is so tght thav virtually the only exposé of
the Warburgs came in journalist John L. Spivak’s “Wall Streer’s Fascist Conspiracy,” in
the pro-communist New Masses periodical (Jan. 29 and Feb. 5, 1934), Spivak pointed
out that the Warburgs controlled the American Jewish Committee, which opposed the
anti-Nazi boycou, while their Kuhn Loeb and Co. had underwritten Nazi shipping;
and he exposed the financing of pro-fascist political activities by the Warburgs and their
partners and allies, many of whom were bigwigs in the American Jewish Committee
and B'nai B'rich.

Griven where the Spivak piece appeared, it is not surprising thar Spivak called Warburg
an ally of the Morgan Bank, but madeno mention of Averell Harriman. Mr. Harnman,
after all, was a permanent hero of the Soviet Union,

John L. Spivak later underwent a curious transformation, himself joining the cover-
up. In 1967, he wrote an antobiography (A Man in His Time, New York: Horizon Press),
which praises the American Jewish Committee. The pro-fascism of the Warburgs does not
appear in the book. The former “rebel * Spivak also praises the action arm of the B'nai
B'rith, the Anti-Defamation League. Pathetically, he comments favorably that the League
has spy files on the American populace which it shares with governmenr agencies.

Thus is history erased: and those decisions, which direct history inte one course or
another, are lost to the knowledge of the current generation.

*ﬁ'}'_x

NOTES
I, Office of Alien Property Custodian, Vesting Order No. 248, The order was signed by Leo T, Crowley,
Alien Property Custodian. executed October 20, 1942; [LR. Doc. 42-11568; Filed, November 6, 1942,
[1:31 AM.: 7 Fed. Reg, 9097 (Nov. 7, 1942), See also the New York Ciey Divectory of Directors (avail-
able at the Library of Congress), The volumes for the 1930s and 1940s list Prescort Bush as a director
ol Uniun Banking Corporation for the years 1934 through 1943,

Alien Property Custodian Vesting Order No. 259; Seamless Steel Equpment Corporation: Vesting

Order No, 261: Holland-American Trading Corp.

1 Alien Property Custodian Vesting Order No. 370 Silesian-American Corp.

4. The New York Timeson December 16, 1944, ran a five-paragraph page 25 article on actions of the
New Yark State Banking Deparrment. Only the last sentence refers w the Nazi bank, as follows: "' The
Union Banking Corporation, 3 Broadway, New York, has recerved authoriry to change its principal
place of husiness to 120 Broadway,”

The Timesomicted the fact thar the Union Banking Corporation had been seized by the govern-
ment for mdmg witl the enemy, and even the face thar 120 Broadway was the address of the
government's Alien Property Custodian.

5. Provz Thyssen, [ Pacd Hitler, 1941, reprinted in (Port Washington, N.Y.: Kennikat Press, 1972), p.

133 Thyssen says his contributions began with 100,000 marks given in October 1923, for Hitler's
actempred “putsch” againse the constitutional government.

6 Confidential memorandum from LS. embassy. Berlin, 10 the ULS. Secretary of Stare, April 20, 1932,

on microfilm in Confidential Repor of ULS. State Depr.. 1930s; Germany, at major U.S, libranes.

Oct. 5, 1942, Memorandum to the Executive Committee of the Office of Alien Property Custodian,

stamped CONFIDENTIAL. from the Division of Investiganion and Research, Homer Jones, Chicf.

Now declassified in United States National Archives, Suitland, Maryland annex. See Record Group

131, Alien Property Custodian, investigative reports, in file box relating ro Vesting Order No. 248,

8. Eiminaton of German Resowrces for Wiar: Hearings Before a Subcommittee of the Committee on Mili-
ary Affairs, United States Senate, Seventy-Ninth Congress: Part 5, Testimony of {the United States}
Treasury Department, July 2, 1943, P 507: Table of Vereinigre Stahlwerke outpur. hgures are percent
of German total as of 1938; Thyssen organization including Union Banking Corporation pp, 727-31.

9, Rebert Sobel, The Life and Times of Dillon Read (New York: Dutton-Penguin, 1991, pp. 92-111. The
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Dllon Read firm cooperated in the development of Sobel’s book.

10, George Walker 1o Averell Harriman, Aug. 11, 1927, in the W, Averell Harriman papers ar the Library

1.

12,

17
18,

19.

20.

of Congress (designated hereafter WAH papers).

"laccaring”to G, H. Walker, RCA Radiogram Sept. 12, 1927, The speafic nature of their business with
Mussolini is not explained in correspondence available for public access.

Andrew Boyle, Montagu Novman (London: Cassell, 1967).

Sit Henry Clay, Lord Norman (London, MaeMillan & Co,, 1957), pp. 18, 57. 70-71.

John A. Kouwenhouven, Partners in Ranking ... Brown Brothers Harriman (Garden Ciry: Double-

day & Co., 1969),

. Coordination of much of the Hitler project ook place ar a single New York address. The Union Bank-

my Corporation had been set up by George Walker ar 39 Broadway. Management of the Hamburg-
Amernika Line, carried our through Harnman's American Ship and Commerce Corp.. was also set up
by George Walker at 39 Broadway:

. Interrogation of Fricz Thyssen, EF/Me/ | of Sepr. 4, 1945 in U.5. Contol Council records, photostat

on page 167 in Anthony Sutton, An Introducrion 1o The Order (Billings, Mu.: Liberry House Press.
1986),

. Nasi Conspivary und Aggression—Supplement B, by the Office of United States Chiet of Counsel for

Prosecution of Axis Criminality, United States Government Printing Office, (Washingion: 1948), pp.
1597, 1680.

. "Consolidated Silesian Steel Corporation - [minutes of the] Meeting of Board of Directors,” Ocr. 31,

1930 {Harriman papers, Library of Congress). shows Averell Harriman as Chairman of the Board,
Prescott Bush to W.A. Harriman, Memorandum Dec, 19, 1930 on their Harriman Fificen Corp.
Annual Report of United Konigs and Laura Steel and lron Works tor the year 1930 (Harriman
papens, Library of Congress) lists “Dr. Friedrich Flick ... Berlin” and “Wiltiam Averell Harriman ...
New York “ on the Board of Direcrors.

“Harriman Fifteen Corporation Secunities Fosition February 28, 1931," Harnman papers, Library
of Congress. This report shows Harriman Fificen Corporation holding 32,576 shares in Silesian
Holding Co. VT.C. warth (in scarce depression dollars) $1,628.800, just over half the value of the
Harriman Fifteen Corporation’s rotal holdings.

The New York City Divectory af Directors volumes for the 1930s (available at the Library of Con-
gress) show Prescott Sheldon Bush and W, Averell Harriman as the directors of Harriman Fifteen
Corp.

“Appointments,” (three typed pages) marked "Noted May 18 1931 WA H.," lamong the papers
from Prescort Bush's New York Office of Brown Brothers Harriman, Harriman papers, Library of
Congress), lists a meeting berween Averell Harriman and Friedrich Flick in Berlin ae 4:00 BM..
Wednesday April 22, 1931. This was followed immediately by & meeting with Withelm Cuno,
chief executive of the Hamburg-Amerika Line.

The “Report To the Stockholders of the Harriman Fificen Carporation,” Oct. 19, 1933 (in the
Harriman papers, Library of Congress) names G.H. Walker as president of the corporation. It
shows the Harriman Fifteen Corporation’s address as 1 Wall Steeet — the location of G.H. Walker
and Co,

Nazt Conspiracy and Aggresston=-Supplement B, op. cit., p. 1680.

Tim Flaherty (a BBH manager, Prescott Bush's employee), March 19, 1934 o WA, Harriman.
“Deear Averell:

In Roland's absence Presicott] chought it advisable for me to ler you know that we received the
tollowing cable from [our European representative| Ross dated March 17th [relating ro conflict
with the Polish government] ...."

Harriman Fifteen Corporanon notice to stockholders Jan, 7. 1935, under the name of George Walker,
President,

Order No. 370: Silestan-Amencan Corp. Executed Nowv. 17, 1942, Signed by Leo 1. Crowley, Alien
Property Custodian. ER. Doc, 42-14183; Filed Dec. 31, 1942, 1128 A M_; 8 Fed. Reg. 33 (Jan. 1.
1943),

The vrder confiscared the Nazis” holdmgs of 98,000 shares of common and 50,000 shares of
preferred stock in Silesian-American

The Nazi parent company in Breslau. Germany wrote dircctly 1o Averell Harriman ar 39 Wall St

on Aug, 5, 1940, with "an invitation to take part in the regular meeting of the members of the
Bergwerksgesellsclhafe Georg von Giesche's Erben .." WAH papers,
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- Sepr. 25, 1942, Memortandum To the Executive Comminee of the Office of Alien Property Custodian,

stamped CONFIDENTIAL. from the Division of Investigation and Research, Homer Jones, Chief.
Now declassified in United States National Acchives, Suitland, Maryland annex. See Record Group
131, Alien Property Custodian, investigative reports, in file box relaring 1o Vesting Order No, 370,

- George Walker was a director of Amertcan Ship and Commerce from its organization through 1928,

Caonsult New: York Ciry Direcrory of Directors.

“Harnuman Fifteen Corporation Securities Position February 28, 1931.7 op. at. The reporr lists
46,861 shares in the Ametican \hlp & Commerce Corp,
See “Message from Mr. Bullfin.” Aug, 30, 1934 (Harnman Fifteen section. Hamman papers. Li-
brary of Congress) for the joint supervision of Bush and Walker, respectively director and president
ol the corporaton,

. Cune was later exposed by Walter Funk, Third Reich Press Chief and Under Sectretary of Propaganda,

in Furik's postwar fail cell ar Nuremherg;: but Cuno had died juse as Hitler was wking power. William
L. Shirer. The Rue and Fall of the Third RBeich (New Yorke Simon and Schuster, 1960), p, 144, Nazi
Cenespiracy and Aggreston — Supplement B, ap. cit., p. 1688.

- See "Elimination of German Resources for War.™ ap. car., pp. 88182 on Voegler.

See Annual Report of the (Hamburg-Amerikanische-Packerfahri-Aktien-Gesellschaft {Hapag
or Hamburg-Amerika Linc), March 1931, for the board of direcrors. A copy is in the New York
Public Library Annez at 11th Avenue, Manhattan,

. Nazt Conspiracy and Aggression—Supplement B, ap. it pp. V178, 1453-54, 1597, 1599

See “Elimination of German Resources for War,™ op, cat., pp. 870-72 on Schroeder; p. 730 on
Groeninger.

Annual Report of Hamburg-Amerika, op. eit,

Baron Rudolph Schroeder, St 10 Averell Harriman, Nov. 14, 1932, K[night] Wlooley| handwrit-
ten note and draft reply lener, Dec. 9, 1932

In his lester, Baron Rudolph refers to the family's American affiliate. ). Heary Schiodet {name
anglicized], of which Allen Dulles wac a director, and his brother John Fostet Dulles was the
panapal attormey,

Baron Bruno Schroder of the Brinsh branch was adviser to Bank of England Governor Montagu
Norman, and Baron Bruno's partner Frank Cyril Tiarks was Norman’s co-director of the Bank of
England throughout Norman's career. Kurt von Schroeder was Hjalmar Schaches delcgat: tw the
Bank for Tnternational Settlements in Geneva, where many of the financial arrangements lor the
Nazi regime were made by Montagu Norman, Schacht and the Schroeders for several years of the
Hider regime right up to the sucbreak of World War I1.

7. Confidential memorandum from ULS. embassy, Berlin, ap. o7t
. US. Senate "Nye Commitree * heanngs, Sepr. 14, 1934, pp, 1197-98, extracts from letters of Col.

Williams N, Taylor, dated June 27, 1932 and Jan, 9, 1933,

. Amencan Ship and Commerce Corporation 1o Dr. Max Warburg, March 7, 1933,

Max Warburg had hrokered the vale of Hamburg-Amerika 1o Harriman and Walker in 1920,

Maxs brothers controlled the Kuhn Loeb investment banking house in New York, the fitm which
had staked old F.H, Harrinan 1o his 18905 buyour of the grant Union Pacific Railroad.

Max Warburg had long worked with Lord Milner and others of the racialist Brizish Round Table
concerning joint projects in Africa and Eastern Europe. He was an advisor to Hjalmar Schache

for several decades and was a top executive of Hitler's Reichshank. The reader may consult David
Farrer, The Wirburgs: The Story of A Family (New York: Sten and Day, 1973).

Max Warburg, at MM, Warburg and Co., Hamburg, w Averill [sic] Harmman, oo Messrs, Brown
Brothers Hamman & Co,, 59 Wall Streer, New York, N.Y., March 27, 1933,

This cotrespondentce, and the joint statement of the Jewish organizations, are reproduced in Moshe R
Gottlich, American Anti-Naxs Resistance. 193341 An Historrcal Analysts (New York: Keav Publishing
House, 1982).

- Investigarion of Nazz Propaganda Activities and Investigation of Certain Other Propaganda Activities:

Public Hearings before A Subcommutree of the Special Commutiee an Un-American Activities, United
States House af Representanves, Seventy Thind Congress, New York (“n‘y. July 9-12, 1934—Hearings
No. 73-NY-7 (Washingron: U.S. Govt. Princing Office, 1934}, See testimony of Capt. Frederick C.
Mensing, John Schroeder, Paul von Lilienfeld-Toal, and summaries by Committee members.

See New York Times, July 16, 1933, p, 12, for organizing of Nazi Labor Front at North German

Lioyd. leading to Hamburg-Amerika after merger.
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American Ship and Commerce Corporation telegram to Rudolph Brinckmann at M.M. Warburg, June
12, 1936,

Rudolph Brinckmann to Averell Harriman at 59 Wall St., June 20, 19306, with enclosed note
transmitting Helfferich’s lerer.

Reply to Dr. Rudolph Brinckmann c/o M.M. Warburg and Co, July 6, 1936, in the Hartiman

papers at the Library of Congress, The file copy of this letter carries no signature, but is presum-

ably from Averell Harriman,

. Office of Alien Property Custadian, Vesting Order No. 126. Signed by Lea T. Crowley, Alien Property

Custodian, executed August 28, 1942. ER. Doc. 42-8774; Filed September 4, 1942, 10:55 AM.; 7
ER. 7061 (No. 176, Sept. 3. 1942)) July 18, 1942, Memorandum To the Executive Committee of the
Office of Alien Property Custodian, samped CONFIDENTIAL, from the Division of Investigation
and Resecarch, Homer [ones, Chiel. Now declassified in United States National Archives, Suitland,
Maryland annex. See Record Group 131, Alien Property Custodian, investigative reports, in file box
relating o Vesting Order No: 126.

New York Times, May 20, 1933, Leading up to this agreement i a telegram which samehow escaped
the shredder and may be seen in the Harriman papers in the Library of Congress. It is addressed to
Nazi offictal Hjalmar Schachr at the Mayflower Hotel, Washington, dated May 11, 1933: "Much
disappointed to have missed seeing you Tuesday afternoon ... | hope 10 see you either in Washington
ur New York before you sail.

with my regards WA, Harriman”

. Dulles 1o Bush letter and draft reply in WAH papers,
37.

Netw York Times, January 19, 1958
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FLESHING OUT SKULL & BONES — INVESTIGATIONS INTO AMERICA'S MOST POWERFUL SECKET

GEORGE-
BusH

FIVE CHAPTERS here are from the very well researched, and very much ignored by the main-
stream Media, George Bush: The Unauthorized Brography by Webster Grithin Tarpley and Anton
rage book 15 hard to find and sell for § 75 10 $250 a copy.

The complete text s available onhne courtesy the authors ar www.tarpley.net/bushb. him
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RACE HYGIENE:
THREE BUSH FAMILY ALLIANCES

WEBSTER GRIFFIN TARPLEY AND ANTON CHAITKIN

CHAPTER THREE OF GEORGE BUSH — THE UNAUTHORIZED BIOGRAPHY - 1992, USED WITH PERMISSION.

“The [government] must put the most modern medical means in the service of this
knowledge... Those who are physically and mentally unhealthy and unworthy must
not perpetuate their suffering in the body of their children... The prevention of the
faculty and opportunity te procreate on the part of the physically degenerate and
mentally sick, over a period of only 600 years, wonld ... free humanity from an im-
measurable misfortune.”

“The per caprta income gap between the developed and the developing countries is
increasing, in large part the result of higher birth rates in the poorer countries...
Famine in India, unwanted babies in the United States, poverty that seemed to
form an unbreakable chain for millions of peaple — how should we tackle these
problems?... It is quite clear that one of the major challenges of the 1970s ... will be
to curb the world’s fertiliry.”

and in their eynical remedy for it Big Brother must prevent the “unworthy” or
“unwanted” people from living.

Let us now further inquire into the family background of our President, so as to help
illustrate how the second quoted author, George Bush', came to share the oudook of
the first, Adolf Hitler”.

We shall examine here the alliance of the Bush family with three other families:
Farish, Draper and Gray.

The private associations among these families have led o the President’s relationship
to his closest, most confidenuial advisers. These alliances were forged in the earlier Hitler
project and its immediate aftermath. Understanding them will help us to explain George
Bush's obsession with the supposed overpopulation of the world's non-Anglo-Saxons, and
the dangerous means he has adopred to deal with this “problem.”

’ I Yhese two quotations are alike in their mock show of concern for human suffering,
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BUSH AND FARISH -

WHEN GEORGE BUSH WAS ELECTED VICE PRESIDENT IN 1980, Texas mystery man
William (“Will") Stamps Farish [11 took over management of all of George Bush’s personal
wealth in a “blind trust.” Known as one of the richest men in Texas, Will Farish keeps his
business affairs under the most intense secrecy. Only the source of his immense wealth
is known, not its employment.”
Will Farish has long been Bush's closest friend and confidante. He is also the unique private
host to Britains Queen Elizabeth 11: Farish owns and boards the studs which mare with
the Queen’s mares. That is her public rationale when she comes to America and stays in
Farish’s house. [t is a vital link in the mind of our Anglophile President.

President Bush can count on Will Farish not to betray the violent secrets surrounding
the Bush family money. For Farish’s own family forrune was made in the same Hitler
project, in a nightmarish partmership with George Bush's father.

On March 25, 1942, U.S. Assistant Aworney General Thurman Arnold announced
that William Stamps Farish (grandfather of the President’s money manager) had pled
“no contest” ro charges of criminal conspiracy with the Nazis. Farish was the principal
manager of a worldwide cartel between Standard Oil Co. of New Jersey and the 1.G.
Farben concern. The merged enterprise had opened the Auschwitz slave labor camp on
June 14, 1940, to produce artificial rubber and gasoline from coal. The Hitler govern-
ment supplied political opponents and Jews as the slaves, who were worked to near death
and then murdered.

Arnold disclosed that Standard Oil of N.J. (later known as Exxon}, of which Farish was
president and chief executive, had agreed to stop hiding from the United States patents
for artificial rubber which the company had provided to the Nazis. *

A Senate investigating committee under Senator (later U.S. President) Harry Truman
of Missouri had called Arnold to testify at hearings on U.S. corporations’ collaboration
with the Nazis. The Senators expressed outrage ar the cynical way Farish was continuing
an alliance with the Hitler regime that had begun back in 1933, when Farish became
chief of Jersey Standard. Didn' he know there was a war on?

The Justice Department laid before the committee a lerter, written to Standard
president Farish by his vice president, shortly after the beginning of World War 11
(Sepr. 1, 1939) in Europe. The letter concerned a renewal of their carlier agreements
with the Nazis:

Report on European Tnp

Oct. 12, 1939

M, WS, Fanish

30 Rockefeller Plaza

Dear Mr, Farish: .. I stayed in France until Sept. 17th... In England T met by appomntment
the Royal Dutch [Shell Oil Co.| gentlemen from Holland, and ... o general agreement was
reached on the necessary changes in our relations with the LG, [Farben|, in view of the state
of war., [Tlhe Royal Dutch Shell group is essentially Bntish... I also had several meetings
with ... the [British| Air Minstry...

I required help to obtamn the necessary permission to go to Holland... After discussions
with the [American| Ambassador [Joseph Kennedy| ... the situation was cleared completely...
The gentlemen in the Air Ministry ... very kindly offered 1o assist me |later] in reentering
England...
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Pursuant to these arrangements, | was able to keep my appointments in Holland [having
flown there on a Briush Royal Air Force bomber|, where | had three days of discussion with
the representatives of LG. They delivered to me assignments of some 2,000 foreign patents and
we did our best to work out complete plans for a modus vivendr which could operate through
the term of the war, whether or not the US. came in... [emphasis added|

Very truly yours, Flrank] A. Howard*

Here are some cold realities behind the tragedy of World War 11, which help explain the
Bush-Farish family alliance — and their peculiar closeness to the Queen of England:

+  Shell Oil is principally owned by the British royal family. Shell’s chairman, Sir Henri
Deterding, helped sponsor Hitler's rise 1o power,® by arrangement with the royal family’s
Bank of England Governor, Montagu Norman. Their ally Standard Oil would take
part in the Hitler project right up to the bloody, gruesome end.

* When grandfather Farish signed the Justice Department’s consent decree in March
1942, the government had already started picking its way through the tangled web of
world-monopoly oil and chemical agreements berween Standard Oil and the Nazis.
Many patents and other Nazi-owned aspects of the partnership had been seized by
the U.S. Alien Property Custodian,

Uncle Sam would not scize Prescotr Bush’s Union Banking Corporation for another
seven months.

The Bush-Farish axis had begun back in 1929, In that year the Harriman bank bought
Dresser Industries, supplier of oil-pipeline couplers to Standard and other companies.
Prescott Bush became a director and financial czar of Dresser, installing his Yale class-
mate Neil Mahlon as chairman.” George Bush would later name one of his sons after
the Dresser execurive.

William . Farish was the main organizer of the Humble Oil Co. of Texas, which Far-
ish merged into the Standard Oil Company of New Jersey, Farish built up the Humble-
Standard empire of pipelines and refineries in Texas,”

The stock market crashed just after the Bush family got into the oil business. The
world financial crisis led to the merger of the Walker-Harriman bank with Brown Broth-
ersin 1931. Former Brown partner Montagu Norman and his protégé Hjalmar Schacht
paid frantic visits to New York that year and the next, preparing the new Hitler regime
for Germany.

The most important Amencan political event in those preparations for Hitler was
the infamous “Third International Congress on Eugenics,” held at New York's American
Museum of Natural History August 21-23, 1932, supervised by the International Federa-
rion of Eugenics Socierties.” This meeting took up the stubborn persistence of African-
Americans and other allegedly “inferior” and “socially inadequate” groups in reproducing,
expanding their numbers, and amalgamating with others. [t was recommended that these
“dangers” to the “better” ethnic groups and to the “well-born,” could be dealr with by
sterilization or “cutting off the bad stock” of the "unfir.”

Traly's fascist government sent an official representative. Averell Harriman's sister Mary,
director of “Entertainment” for the Congress, lived down in Virginia fox-hunting country;
her state supplied the speaker on “racial purity,” W.A. Plecker, Virginia commissioner of
vital statistics. Plecker reportedly held the delegates spellbound with his account of the
struggle to stop race-mixing and inter-racial sex in Virginia.

The Congress proceedings were dedicated to Averell Harriman's mother; she had paid
for the founding of the race-science movement in America back in 1910, building the
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Eugenics Recard Office as a branch of the Galton National Laboratory in London. She
and other Harrimans were usually escorted to the horse races by old George Herbert
Walker — they shared with the Bushes and the Farishes a fascination with “breeding
thoroughbreds” among horses and humans.

Averell Harriman personally arranged with the Walker/Bush Hamburg-Amerika Line
to transport Nazi ideologues from Germany to New York for this meeting.'’ The most
famous among those transported was Dr. Ernst Riidin, psychiatrist at the Kaiser Wilhelm
Institute for Genealogy and Demography in Berlin, where the Rockefeller family paid for
Dr. Riidin to occupy an entire floor with his eugenics “research.” Dr. Riidin had addressed
the International Federation’s 1928 Munich meeting, speaking on “Mental Aberration
and Race Hygiene," while others (Germans and Americans) spoke on race-mixing and
sterilization of the unfit. Riidin had also led the German delegation to the 1930 Mental
Hygiene Congress in Washington, D.C.

At the Harrimans' 1932 New York Eugenics Congress, Ernst Riidin was unanimously
elected president of the International Federation of Eugenics Societies. This was recogni-
tion of Riidin as founder of the German Society for Race Hygiene, with his co-founder,
Eugenics Federation vice president Alfred Plotz.

As depression-maddened financiers schemed in Berlin and New York, Riidin was now
official leader of the world eugenics movement. Components of his movement included
gmups with overlapping leadership, dedicated to:

sterilization of mental patients (“mental hygiene societies™);

* execution of the insane, criminals and the terminally il (“euthanasia societies™);
and

* cugenical race-purification by prevention of births to parents from “inferior” blood
stocks (“birth control societies™).

Before the Auschwitz death camp became a household word, these British-American-
European groups called openly for the elimination of the “unfit” by means including
torce and violence.

Ten months later, in June 1933, Hitler's interior minister Wilhelm Frick spoke to a
cugenics meeting in the new Third Reich. Frick called the Germans a “degenerate” race,
denouncing one-fifth of Germany's parents for producing “feeble-minded” and “defec-
tive” children. The following month. on a commission by Frick, Dr. Ernst Riidin wrote
the “Law for the Prevention of Hereditary Diseases in Posterity,” the sterilization law
modeled on previous U.S. statutes in Virginia and other states.

Special courts were soon established for the sterilization of German mental parients,
the blind, the deaf and alcoholics. A quarter million people in these categories were
sterilized. Ritdin, Plotz and their colleagues trained a whole generation of physicians and
psychiacrists — as sterilizers and as killers.

When the war started, the eugenicists, doctors and psychiatrists stafted the new “T4”
agency, which planned and supervised the mass killings: first at “euthanasia centers,” where
the same categories which had first been subject 1o sterilization were now to be murdered;
their brains sent in lots of 200 to experimental psychiatrists; then at slave camps such as
Auschwitz; and finally, for Jews and other race victims, at straight extermination camps
in Poland, such as Treblinka and Belsen.**

In 1933, as what Hider called his “New Order” appeared, John D. Rockefeller, ]r.
appointed William S. Farish the chairman of Standard Oil Co. of New Jersey (in 1937 he
was made president and chief executive). Farish moved his offices to Rockefeller Center,
New York, where he spent a good deal of time with Hermann Schmirz, chairman of
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I.G. Farben: his company paid a publicity man, Ivy Lee, to write pro-1.G. Farben and
pro-Nazi propaganda and get it into the U.S. press.

Now that he was outside of Texas, Farish found himself in the shipping business — like
the Bush family. He hired Nazi German crews for Standard Oil rankers, And he hired Emil
Helfferich, chairman of the Walker/Bush/Harriman Hamburg-Amerika Line, as chairman
also of the Srandard Oil Company subsidiary in Germany. Karl Lindemann, board member
of Hamburg-Amerika, also became a top Farish-Standard executive in Germany. ¥

This interlock between their Nazi German operations put Farish together with Prescort
Bush in a small, select group of men operating from abroad through Hitler's “revolution,”
and calculating thar they would never be punished.

In 1939, Farish’s daughter Martha married Averell Harriman's nephew, Edward Har-
riman Gerry, and Farish in-laws became Prescort Bush's partners ar 59 Broadway.”

Both Emil Helfferich and Karl Lindemann were authorized to write checks to Hein-
rich Himmler, chief of the Nazi 8.5, on a special Standard Oil account, This account
was managed by the German-British-American banker, Kurt von Schroeder. According
to U.S. intelligence documents reviewed by author Antony Surton, Emil Helfferich
continued his payments to the 8.5, into 1944, when the 8.5. was supervising the mass
murder at the Standard-1.G. Farben Auschwitz and other death camps. Helfterich rold
Allied interrogators after the war that these were not his personal contributions — they
were corporate Standard Oil funds,’®

After pleading “no contest” to charges of criminal conspiracy with the Nazis, William
Stamps Farish was fined $5,000. (Similar fines were levied against Srandard Oil — $5,000
cach for the parent company and for several subsidiaries.) This of course did not interfere
with the millions of dollars that Farish had acquired in conjunction with Hider's New
Order, as a large stockholder, chairman and president of Standard Oil. All the govern-
ment sought was the use of patents which his company had given to the Nazis — the
Auschwitz patents — bur had withheld from the U.S. military and industry.

But a war was on, and if young men were to be asked to die fighting Hitler ... some-
thing more was needed. Farish was hauled before the Senate commirtee investigarting
the national defense program. The committee chairman, Senator Harry Truman, told
newsmen before Farish testified: “1 think this approaches treason.™’”

Farish began breaking apart at these hearings. He shouted his "indignation” at the
Senators, and claimed he was not “disloyal.”

After the March-April hearings ended, more dirt came gushing out of the Justice
Department and the Congress on Farish and Standard Oil. Farish had deceived the U.S.
Navy 1o prevent the Navy fram acquiring certain patents, while supplying them to the
Nazi war machine; meanwhile, he was supplying gasoline and tetraethyl lead to Germany's
submarines and air force. Communications berween Standard and 1., Farben from the
outbreak of World War II were released ro the Senate, showing that Farish’s organiza-
tion had arranged ro deceive the U.S. government into passing over Nazi-owned assets:
They would nominally buy 1.G.'s share in certain patents because “in the event of war
berween ourselves and Germany ... it would certainly be very undesirable o have this
20 percent Standard-1.G. pass w an alien property custodian of the U.S. who mighr sell
it to an unfriendly mreres.”*

John D. Rockefeller, Jr. (father of David, Nelson and John D. Rockefeller 111}, con-
trolling owner of Standard Oil, told the Roosevelt administration that he knew nothing
of the day-to-day affairs of his company, thar all these marters were handled by Farish
and other executives.””
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In August, Farish was brought back for more testimony. He was now frequently ac-
cused of lying. Farish was crushed under the intense, public grilling; he became morose,
ashen. While Prescort Bush escaped publicity when the government seized his Nazi
banking organization in October, Farish had been nailed. He collapsed and died of a
heart attack on Nov, 29, 1942,

The Fanish family was devastated by the exposure. Son William Stamps Farish, Jr., a lieu-
tenant in the Army Air Force, was humiliated by the public knowledge that his father was
fueling the enemy's aircraft; he died in a training accident in Texas six months later.”

With this double death, the fortune comprising much of Standard Oil’s profits from
Texas and Nazi Germany was now to be sertled upon the litde four-year-old grandson,
William (“Will") Stamps Farish [II. Will Farish grew up a recluse, the most secretive
multi-millionaire in Texas, with investments of “that money” in 2 multitude of foreign
countries, and a host of exotic contacts overlapping the intelligence and financial worlds
— particularly in Britain,

The Bush-Farish axis started George Bush's career. After his 1948 graduation from
Yale (and Skull and Bones), George Bush flew down to Texas on a corporate airplane
and was employed by his father's Dresser Industries. In a couple of years he got help
from his uncle, George Walker, Jr., and Farish’s British banker friends, to set him up in
the oil property speculation business. Soon thereafter, George Bush founded the Zapata
Oil Company, which put oil drilling rigs into certain locations of greac strategic interest
to the Anglo-American intelligence communiry.

WWill Farish at 25 years old was a personal aide to Zapata chairman George Bush in
Bush's unsuccessful 1964 campaign for Senate. Will Farish used “that Auschwitz money”
to back George Bush financially, investing in Zapata. When Bush was elected to Congress
in 1966, Farish joined the Zapata board.”

When George Bush became U S, Vice President in 1980, the Farish and Bush family
fortunes were again completely, secretly commingled, As we shall see, the old projects
were now being revived on a breathtaking scale.

BuUSH AND DRAPER N .

TWENTY YEARS BEFORE HE WAS U.S, PRESIDENT, George Bush brought two “race-sci-
ence” professors in front of the Republican Task Force on Earth Resources and Popula-
tion. As chairman of the Task Force, then-Congressman Bush invited Professors William
Shockley and Arthur Jensen to explain to the committee how allegedly runaway birth-rates
for African-Americans were “down-breeding” the American population.

Afterwards Bush personally summed up for the Congress the testimony his black-
inferiority advocates had given to the Task Force.” George Bush held his hearings on
the threat posed by black babies on August 5, 1969, while much of the world was in a
better frame of mind — celebrating mankind’s progress from the first moon landing 16
days earlier. Bush's obsessive thinking on this subject was guided by his family's friend.
Gen, William H, Draper. Jr., the founder and chairman of the Population Crisis Com-
mittee, and vice chairman of the Planned Parenthood Federation. Draper had long been
steering U, S. public discussion about the so-called “population bomb” in the non-whire
areas of the world,

If Congressman Bush had explained to his colleagues how his family had come to know
General Draper , they would perhaps have felt some alarm. or even panic, and paid more
healthy attention o Bush's presentation. Unfortunately, the Draper-Bush population
doctrine is now official U.S. foreign policy.
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William H. Draper, Jr. had joined the Bush team in 1927, when he was hired by
Dillon Read & Co., New York investment bankers. Draper was put into a new job slot
at the firm: handling the Thyssen account.

We recall that in 1924, Friez Thyssen set up his Union Banking Corporation in
George Herbert Walker's bank at 39 Broadway, Manharran. Dillon Read & Co.s boss,
Clarence Dillon, had begun working with Fritz Thyssen sometime after Averell Harri-
man firse mer with Thyssen — ar about the time Thyssen began financing Adolf Hitler's
politcal career.

In January 1926, Dillon Read created the German Credit and Invesument Corporation
in Newark, New Jersey and Berlin, Germany, as Thyssen’s shorr-term banker, That same
year Dillon Read created the Vereinigte Stahlwerke (German Steel Trust), incorporating
the Thyssen family interests under the direction of New York and London finance.

William H. Draper, Jr. was made director, vice president and assistant treasurer of the
German Credit and Investment Corp. His business was short-term loans and financial
management tricks for Thyssen and the German Steel Trust. Draper's clients sponsored
Hitler's terroristic takeover; his clients led the buildup of the Nazi war industry; his clients
made war against the United States, The Nazis were Draper’s direct partners in Berlin
and New Jersey: Alexander Kreurer, residing in Berlin, was president; Frederic Brandi,
whose father was a top coal executive in the German Steel Trust, moved to the U.S. in
1926 and served as Draper’s co-director in Newark,

Draper’s role was crucial for Dillon Read & Co., for whom Draper was a partner and
eventually vice president. The German Credit and Investment Corp. (GCI) was a “front”
for Dillon Read: It had the same New Jersey address as U.S. & International Securirics
Corp. (USIS), and the same man served as treasurer of both firms.*

Clarence Dillon and his son C. Douglas Dillon were directors of USIS, which was
spotlighted when Clarence Dillon was hauled before the Senate Banking Committee’s
famous “Pecora” hearings in 1933. USIS was shown to be one of the grear speculative
pyramid schemes which had swindled stockholders of hundreds of millions of dollars.
These investment policies had rotted the U.S. economy to the core, and led to the Grear
Depression of the 1930s.

But William H. Draper, Je’s GCI “front” was not apparently affiliated with the USIS
“front” or with Dillon, and the GCI escaped the Congressmen’s limited scrutiny, This
oversight was to prove most unfortunate, particularly ro the 50 million people who
subsequently died in World War 1.

Dillon Read hired public relations man Ivy Lee to prepare their execurives for their
testimony and to confuse and further bafHe the Congressmen.” Lee apparently ook
enough rime out from his duties as image-maker for William S. Farish and the Nazi
[.G. Farben Co.; he managed the congressional thinking so thar the Congressmen did
not disturb the Draper operation in Germany — and did not meddle with Thyssen, or
interfere with Hitler's U.S. moneymen.

Thus in 1932, William H. Draper, Jr. was free to finance the International Eugenics
Congress as a “Supporting Member."? Was he using his own income as a Thyssen trust
banker? Or did (hc funds come from Dillon Read corporate accounts, perhaps to be writren
off income tax as “expenses for German project: race purification”? Draper helped select
Ernst Riidin as chief of the world eugenics movement, who used his office to promore what
he called Adolf Hitler's “holy, national and international racial hygienic mission.""”

W.S. Farish, as we have seen, was publicly exposed in 1942, humiliated and destroyed.
Just befare Farish died, Prescort Bush's Nazi banking office was quietly seized and shut
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down. But Prescott’s close friend and partner in the Thyssen-Hitler business. William
H. Draper, Jr., neither died nor moved out of German affarrs. Draper listed himself as a
director of the German Credir and Investment Corp. through 1942, and the firm was
not liquidared until November 1943.# But a war was on; Draper. a colonel from previous
military service, went oft to the Pacific theater and became a general.

General Draper apparently had a hobby: magic — illusions, sleight of hand, etc.
— and he was a member of the Society of American Magicians. This is not irrelevant to
his subsequent career.

The Nazi regime surrendered in May 1945. In July 1945, General Draper was called
to Europe by the American military government authorities in Germany. Draper was
appointed head of the Economics Division of the U.S. Control Commission, He was
assigned to rake apart the Nazi corporare cartels. There is an astonishing but perfecey
logical rationale to this — Draper knew a lot about the subject! General Draper, who
had spent abour 15 years financing and managing the dirtiest of the Nazi enterprises,
was now authorized to decide who was exposed, who lost and who kept his business, and in
practical effect, who was prosecuted for war crintes™

(Draper was not unique within the postwar occuparion government. Consider the
case of John J. McCloy, U.S. Military Governor and High Commissioner of Germany,
1949-1952. Under instructions from his Wall Street law firm, McCloy had lived for a
year in laly, serving as an advisor to the fascist government of Benito Mussolini. An
intimate collaborator of the Harriman/Bush bank, McCloy had sat in Adolf Hitler's box
at the 1936 Olympic games in Berlin, ar the invitation of Nazi chieftains Rudolf Hess
and Hermann Géring.)*

William H. Draper, Jr., as a “conservative,” was paired with the “liberal” U.S. Treasury
Secretary Henry Morgenthau in a vicious game. Morgenthau demanded that Germany be
utterly destroyed as a nation, that its industry be dismantled and it be reduced to a purely
rural country. As the economic boss in 1945 and 1946, Draper “protected” Germany
fram the Morgenthau Plan ... but ar a price.

Draper and his colleagues demanded that Germany and the world accept the collec-
teve guilt of the German people as the explanation for the rise of Hider's New Order, and
the Nazi war crimes. This, of course, was rather convenient for General Draper himself,
as it was for the Bush family. It is still convenient decades later, allowing Prescort’s son.
President Bush, to lecture Germany on the danger of Hitlerism. Germans are too slow,
it seems, to accept his New World Order.

After several years of government service (often working directly for Averell Harri-
man in the North Adantic Alliance), General Draper was appointed in 1958 chairman
of a committee which was to advise President Dwight Eisenhower on the praper course
for LLS. military aid to other countries. At that time, Prescorr Bush was a ULS. Senator
from Connecticut, a confidenual friend and golf partner with National Security Director
Gordon Gray, and an important golf partner with Dwight Eisenhower as well. Prescort’s
old lawyer from the Nazi days, John Foster Dulles, was Secretary of State, and his brother
Allen Dulles, formerly of the Schroder bank, was head of the CIA.

This friendly environment emboldened General Draper to pull off a stunt with his
military aid advisory committee. He changed the subject under study. The following year
the Draper committee recommended that the U.S, government react o the supposed
threat of the “population explosion” by farmulating plans to depopulate the poorer coun-
tries. The growth of the world's non-white population, he proposed, should be regarded
as dangerous to the national security of the United States!”!
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President Eisenhower rejected the recommendation. But in the next decade, General
Draper founded the “Population Crisis Commirttee” and the “Draper Fund.” joining
with the Rockefeller and Du Ponr families to promote eugenics as “population contral.”
The administration of President Lyndon Johnson, advised by General Draper on the
subject, began financing birth control in the tropical countries through the ULS. Agency
for International Development (USAID).

General Draper was George Bush's guru on the population question. Bur there was
also Draper’s money — from thar uniquely horrible source — and Draper’s connections
on Wall Street and abroad. Draper’s son and heir, William H. Draper [T1, was co-chairman
for finance (chief of fundraising) of the Bush-for-President national campaign organiza-
tinn in 1980. Wich George Bush in the White House, the younger Draper heads up the
depopulation acuvities of the United Nations throughout the world.

General Draper was vice president of Dillon Read until 1953, During the 19505 and
1960s, the chief executive there was Frederic Brandi, the German who was Draper’s co-
director for the Nazi investments and his personal contact man with the Nazi German
Steel Trust. Nicholas Brady was Brandi’s partner from 1954, and replaced him as the firm’s
chief executive in 1971. Nicholas Brady, who knows where all the bodies are buried, was
chairman of his friend George Bushs 1980 election campaign in New Jersey, and has
been United States Treasury Secretary throughout Bush's presidency.™

BUSH AND GRAY

THE U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT says that surgical sterilization
is the Bush administration’s "first choice” method of population reduction in the Third
World.*

The United Nations Population Fund claims that 37 percent of contraception users
in Ihera-America and the Caribbean have already been surgically sterilized. In a 1991
report, William H. Draper [11's agency asserts that 254 million couples will be surgically
sterilized over the course of the 1990s; and thac if present trends conrinue, 80 percent of
the women in Puerto Rico and Panama will be surgically sterilized.*

The U.S. government pays directly tor these sterilizations.

Mexico is first among rargered nations, on a list which was drawn up in July 1991, ar
a USAID strategy session. India and Brazil are second and third prionties, respectively.

On conrract with the Bush administration, U.S. personnel are working from bases in
Mexico to perform surgery on millions of Mexican men and women. The acknowledged
strategy in this program is to sterilize those young adults who have not already complered
their families.

George Bush has a rather deep-seated personal feeling about this project, in particular
as it pits him against Pope John Paul 11 in Catholic countries such as Mexica. (See Chapter
4 below, on the origin of a Bush family grudge in chis regard.)

The spending for birth control in the non-white countries is one of the few irems that
15 headed upwards in the Bush administration budger. As its 1992 budger was being set,
USAID said its Population Account would receive $300 million, a 20 percent increase
over the previous year. Within this project, a significant sum is spent on politcal and
psychological manipulations of rarget nations, and rather blarant subversion of their
religions and governments.

These activities might be expected to cause serivus objections from the victimized
nationalities, or from U.S. taxpayers, especially if the program is somehow given wide-
spread publiciry.
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Quite aside from moral considerations, fegal questions would naturally arise, which
could be summed up: How does George Bush think he can get away with this?

In this marrer the President has expert advice. Mr. (Clayland) Boyden Gray has been
counsel to George Bush since the 1980 election. As chief legal officer in the White
House, Boyden Gray can walk the President through the dangers and complexities of
waging such unusual warfare against Third World populations. Gray knows how these
things are done.

When Boyden Gray was four and five years old, his father organized the pilot project
for the present worldwide sterilization program, from the Gray family houschald in
North Carolina.

It started in 1946. The eugenics movement was looking for a way to begin again in
America.

Nazi death camps such as Auschwirtz had just then seared the conscience of the world.
The Sterilization League of America, which had changed its name during the war to
“Birthright, Inc.,” wanted to start up again. First they had ro overcome public nervousness
about crackpots propesing to eliminate “inferior” and “defective” people. The League
tried to surface in lowa, but had to back off because of negative publicity: A lictle boy
had recently been sterilized there and had died from the operation.

They decided on North Carolina, where the Gray family could play the perfect host.
Through British impenal contacts, Boyden Gray's grandfather, Bowman Gray, had be-
come principal owner of the R.]. Reynolds Tobacco Co. Boyden's father, Gordon Gray,
had recently founded the Bowman Gray (memorial) Medical School in Winsten-Salem,
using his inherited cigarette stock shares. The medical school was already a cugenics
center.

As the experiment bcgan. Gordon Gray's great aunt, Alice Shelton Gray, who had
raised him from childhood, was living in his household. Aunt Alice had founded the
“Human Betterment League,” the North Carolina branch of the national cugcnica}
sterilization movement.

Aunt Alice was the official supervisor of the 1946-47 experiment. Working under Miss
Gray was Dr. Claude Nash Herndon, whom Gordon Gray had made assistant professor
of “medical genetics” at Bowman Gray Medical School.

Dr. Clarence Gamble, heir to the Proctor and Gamble soap fortune, was the sterilizers’
national field operations chief.

The experiment worked as follows. All children enrolled in the school district of Win-
ston-Salern, N.C. were given a special “intelligence test, " Those childven who scoved below a
certain arbitrary low mark were then cut open and surgically sterifized.

We quote now from the official story of the project:™”

[n Winston-Salem and in [nearby] Orange County, North Carolina, the [Sterilization
League’s| field committee had participated in testing projects to identify school age children
whao should be considered for sterihzation. The project m Orange County was conducted by
the University of North Carolina and was financed by a “Mr. Hanes,” a friend ol Clarence
Gamble and supporter of the field work project in North Carolina. The Winston-Salem project
was also financed by Hanes.” [“Hanes” was underwear mogul James Gordon Hanes, a trustee
of Bowman Gray Medical School and treasurer of Alice Gray's group)...

The medical school had a long history of interest in eugenics and had compiled extensive
histories of families carrying mhernitable disease. In 1946, Dr. C. Nash Herndon ... made a state-
ment to the press on the use of sterilization to prevent the spread of inheritable diseases...
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The first step after giving the mental tests to grade school children was to interpret and
make public the results, In Orange County the results indicared that three percent of the
school age children were either insane or feebleminded... [Then| the field committee hired
a socal worker to review each case ... and to present any cases i which sterilization was
indicated 1o the State Eugenics Board, which under North Carolina law had the authority
w order sterilization...

Race science experimenter Dr. Claude Nash Herndon provided more details in an
interview m 19905

Alice Gray was the general supervisor of the project. She and Hanes sent our letters
promoting the program to the commissioners of all 100 counties in North Carolina... What
did [ do? Nothing besides riding herd on the whole thing! The social workers operated out
of my office. | was ar the time also director of outpatient services at North Carolina Baptist
Hospital. We would see the [targeted] parents and children there... 1.Q. tests were run on all
the children in the Winston-Salem public school system. Only the ones who scored really low
[were targeted for sterilization], the real bottom of the barel, like below 70.

Did we do sterilizations on young children? Yes. This was a relatively minor operation...
It was usually not until the child was cight or ten years old. For the boys, vou just make an
mcision and tie the tube... We more often performed the operation on girls than with bays.
Of course, you have to cut open the abdomen, but again, it is relatively minor.

Dr. Herndon remarked coolly that “we had a very good relationship with the press” for
the project. This is not surprising, since Gordon Gray owned the Winston-Salem Journal,
the Tivin City Sentinel and radio station WSJS.

In 1950 and 1951, John Foster Dulles, then chairman of the Rockefeller Founda-
tion, led John D. Rockefeller 11 on a series of world tours, focusing on the need to
stop the expansion of the non-white populations. In November 1952, Dulles and
Rockefeller set up the Population Council, with tens of millions of dollars from the
Rockefeller family.

At that point, the American Eugenics Society, still cautious from the recent bad
publicity vis-a-vis Hider, left its old headquarters at Yale University. The Society moved
its headquarters into the office af the Population Council, and the two groups melded
together. The long-time secrerary of the American Eugenics Society, Frederick Osborne,
became the first president of the Population Council. The Gray family’s child-sterilizer,
Dr. Claude Nash Herndon, became president of the American Eugenics Sociery in 1953,
as its work expanded under Rockefeller patronage.

Meanwhile, the International Planned Parenthood Federation was founded in London,
in the offices of the British Eugenics Sociery.

The undead enemy from World War Il, renamed “Population Conrrol,” had now
been revived.

George Bush was U.S. ambassador to the United Nations in 1972, when with prod-
ding from Bush and his friends, the U.S. Agency for International Development first
made an official contract with the old Sterilization League of America. The League had
changed 1rs name rwice again, and was now called the “Association for Voluntary Surgi-
cal Contraception.” The U.S. government began paying the old fascist group to sterilize
non-whites in foreign countries.

The Gray family experiment had succeeded.
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In 1988, the U.S. Agency for International Development signed its latest contract with
the old Sterilization League (a.k.a. Association for Voluntary Surgical Conrraception),
committing the U.S. government to spend $80 million over five years.

Having gotten away with sterilizing several hundred North Carolina school children,
“not usually less than eight to ten years old," the identical group is now authorized by
President Bush to do it to 58 countries in Asia, Africa and Ibero-America. The group
modestly claims it has directly sterilized “only” two million people, with 87 percent of
the bill paid by U.S. raxpayers.

Meanwhile, Dr. Clarence Gamble, Boyden Gray's favorite soap manufacturer, formed
his own “Pathfinder Fund” as a split-off from the Sterilization League. Gamble's Path-
finder Fund, with additional millions from USAID, concentrates on penetration of local
social groups in the non-white countries, to break down psychological resistance to the
surgical sterilization teams.

*J‘?’"*
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RACE HYGIENE; THREE BUSH FAMILY ALLIANCES

Drear Mr. Harriman:

Thank you very much for your kind letter of January 215t and the action you rook which has
resulted at once in-a leteer from Mr. Emil Lederer. This lescer will serve as a starting poin for cor-
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. Bernhuard Schreiber, The Men Bebind Hitler: A German Warning to the Werld | France: La Hay-

Mureaux. ca. 1975), English language edition supplied by H & P. Tadeusz, 369 Edgewere Road,
London W2. A copy of this book is now held by Union Callege Library, Syracuse, N.Y.
Higham, ep. it , p. 35.

. Engagement announced Feb, 10, 1939, New York Times | p. 20. See also Direcrory of Directors for New

York City, 1930s and 1940s.

Higham, op. ft. , pp. 20, 22 and other references to Schroeder and Lindemann.

Anthony Sutton, Wiall Street and the Rise of Hirler (Scal Beach: ‘76 Press, 1976). Surton is alsa a
good source on the Harmmans,
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THE CENTER OF POWER
IS IN WASHINGTON

WEBSTER GRIFFIN TARPLEY AND ANTON CHAITKIN

CHAPTER FOUR OF GEORGE BUSH — THE UNAUTHORIZED BIOGRAPHY - 1992, LISED WITH PERMISSION.

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
59 Wall Street, New York

Cable Address “Shipley-New York”
Business Established 1818

Private Bankers

September 5, 1944

The Honorable WA, Harniman
American Ambassador to the USSR
Amenican Embassy,

Moscow, Russia

Dear Averell;

Thinking that possibly Bullitt’s article in the recent issue of “LIFE™ may
not have come to your attention, [ have clipped 1t and am <ending it 10 vou,
feehing thar it will interest you,

At present wniting all well here.

With warm regards, | am,

Sincerely yours,

Pres — —

reassured by the managing parmer of his firm, Prescous Bush, Only 22-1/2

months before, the ULS. government had seized and shut down the Union
Banking Corp., which had been operated on behalf of Nazi Germany by Bush and the
Harrimans (see Chaprer 2). But that was behind them now and they were safe. There
would be no puhlicir}' on the Harriman-Bush sponsorship of Hitlerism.

¢C a T PRESENT WRITING ALL IS WELL HERE." Thus the ambassador to Russia was
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Prescort’s son George, the future U.S. President, was also safe. Three days before this note
to Moscow was written, George Bush had parachuted from a Navy bomber airplane over
the Pacific Ocean, killing his two crew members when the unpiloted plane crashed.

Five months later, in February 1945, Prescott’s boss, Averell Harriman, escorted
President Franklin Roosevelt to the fateful summit meeting with Soviet leader Joseph
Stalin at Yalta. In April Roosevelt died. The agreement reached at Yalra, calling for free
elecrions in Poland once the war ended, was never enforced.

Over the next eight years (1945 through 1952), Prescote Bush was Harriman's anchor
in the New York financial world. The increasingly powerful Mr. Harriman and his allies
gave Eastern Europe over to Soviet dictarorship. A Cold War was then undertaken, to
“counterbalance” the Soviets,

This British-inspired strategy paid several nightmarish dividends. Eastern Europe was
to remain enslaved. Germany was “permanently” divided. Anglo-American power was
jointly exercised over the non-Sovier “Free World.” The confidential functions of the
Brirish and American governments were merged. The Harriman clique took possession
of the U.S. national security apparatus, and in doing so, they opened the gate and let
the Bush family in.

Following, his services to Germany's Nazi Party, Averell Harriman spent several years
mediaring between the British, American and Soviet governments in the war to stop the
Nazis. He was ambassador to Moscow from 1943 to 1946.

President Harry Truman, whom Harriman and his friends held in amused contemp,
appointed Harriman U.S. ambassador to Britain in 1946.

Harriman was at lunch with former British Prime Minister Winston Churchill one day
in 1946, when Truman telephoned. Harriman asked Churchill if he should accept Tru-
man's offer to come back ro the U.S, as Secretary of Commerce. According to Harriman's
account, Churchill told him: "Absolurely. The center of power is in Washington.”’

JUPITER ISLAND B

THE REORGANIZATION OF THE AMERICAN GOVERNMENT after World War [1 — the
creation of the U.S. Central Intelligence Agency along British lines, for example — had
devastating consequences. We are concerned here with only certain aspects of that overall
transformation, those marters of policy and family which gave shape to the life and mind
of George Bush, and gave him access to power.

It was in these postwar years thar George Bush attended Yale University, and was inducted
into the Skull and Bones society. The Bush family’s home at thar time was in Greenwich,
Connecricur. Bur it was just then that George's parents, Prescott and Dorothy Walker
Bush, were wintering in a peculiar spot in Florda, a place that is excluded from mention
in literature onginating from Bush circles,

Certain national news accounts early in 1991 featured the observartions on President
Bush’s childhood by his elderly mother Dorothy. She was said to be a resident of Hobe
Sound. Florida. More preciscly, the President’s mother lived in a hyper-security arrange-
ment created a half-century earlier by Averell Harriman, adjacent to Hobe Sound. Its
correct name is Jupiter Island.

During his political career, George Bush has claimed many different "home” stazes,
including Texas, Maine, Massachusetts and Connecticut, It has nat been expedient for
him to claim Florida, though thar state has a vital link to his role in the world, as we
shall see. And George Bush’s home base in Florida, throughout his adult life, has been
Jupirer [sland.
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The unique, bizarre setup on Jupiter Island began in 1931, following the merger of
W.A. Harriman & Co. with the British-American firm Brown Brothers.

The reader will recall Mr. Samuel Pryor, the “Merchant of Death.” A partner with
the Harrimans, Prescott Bush, George Walker and Nazi boss Fritz Thyssen in banking
and shipping enterprises, Sam Pryor remained executive committee chairman of Rem-
ington Arms. In this period. the Nazi private armies (S.A. and S.S.) were supplied with
American arms — most likely by Pryor and his company — as they moved to overthrow
the German republic. Such gun-running as an instrument of national policy would later
become notorious in the “Iran-Contra” affair.

Samuel Pryor’s daughter Permelia married Yale graduate Joseph V. Reed on the last
day of 1927. Reed immediately went to work for Prescott Bush and George Walker as
an apprentice at W.A. Harriman & Co.

During World War I1, Joseph V. Reed had served in the “special services” section of
the ULS. Army Signal Corps. A specialist in security, codes and espionage, Reed later
wrote a book entitled Fren with Cryprograms.”

Now, Sam Pryor had had property around Hobe Sound, Florida, for some rime. In
1931, Joseph and Permelia Pryor Reed bought the entirety of Jupiter Island.

This is a typically beautiful Adantic coast “barrier island,” a half-mile wide and nine
miles long. The middle of Jupiter Island lies just off Hobe Sound. The south bridge
connects the island with the town of Jupiter, to the norch of Palm Beach. [t is abour 90
minutes by auto from Miami — today, a few minutes by helicopter.

Early in 1991, a newspaper reporter asked a friend of the Bush family about security
arrangements on Jupiter Istand. He responded, “If you called up the White House, would
they rell you how many security people they had? It’s not thar Jupiter Island is the White
House, although he [George Bush] does come down frequently.”

But for several decades before Bush was President, Jupiter Island had an ordinance
requiring the registration and fingerprinting of all housekeepers, gardeners and other
non-residents working on the island. The Jupiter Island police department says thar there
are sensors in the two main roads that can track every automobile on the island. If a car
stops in the street, the police will be there within one or two minutes, Surveillance is a
duty of all employees of the town of Jupiter Island. News reporters are to be prevented
from visiting the island !

To create this astonishing private club, Joseph and Permelia Pryor Reed sold land
only to those who would fit in. Permelia Reed was still the grande dame of the island
when George Bush was inaugurated President in 1989. In recognition of the fact thar
the Reeds know where a// the bodies are buried, President Bush appointed Permelia’s son,
Joseph V. Reed, Jr.. chief of protocol for the U.S. State Department, in charge of private
arrangements with foreign dignitaries.

Averell Harriman made Jupirer Island a staging ground for his 1940s takeover of the
LS. national security apparatus. It was in that connection that the island became pos-
sibly the most secretive private place in America.

Let us brieHy survey the neighborhood, back then in 1946-48, to see some of the uses
various of the residents had for the Harriman clique.

RESIDENTS ON JUPITER ISLAND

Jupiter Islander ROBERT A. LOVETT, * Prescott Bush's partner at Brown Brothers Har-
riman;, had been Assistant Secretary of War for Air from 1941 to 1945, Lovert was the
leading American advocate of the policy of terror-bombing of civilians. He organized
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the Strategic Bombing Survey, carried out for the American and British governments by
the staff of the Prudential Insurance Company, guided by London’s Tavistock Psychiatric
Clinic.

In the postwar period, Prescott Bush was associared with Prudential Insurance, one of
Lovett's intelligence channels to the British secret services. Prescott was listed by Prudential
as a director of the company for about two years in the carly 1950s.

Their Strategic Bombing Survey failed to demonstrate any real military advantage
accruing from such outrages as the fire-bombing of Dresden, Germany. Bur the Har-
rimanites nevertheless persisted in the advocacy of terror from the air. They glorified this
as “psychological warfare,” a part of the utopian military doctrine opposed 1o the views
of military traditionalists such as Gen. Douglas MacArthur.

Robert Lovert later advised President Lyndon Johnsen to terror-bomb Vietnam, Presi-
dent George Bush revived the doctrine with the bombing of civilian areas in Panama,
and the destruction of Baghdad.

On Ocr, 22, 1945, Secretary of War Robert Patterson created the Lovert Committee,
chaired by Robert A. Lovett, to adyise the government on the post-World War I1 orga-
nizarion of U.S, intelligence activities. The existence of this committee was unknown ro
the public until an official CIA history was released from secrecy in 1989, But the CIA's
author (who was President Bush's prep schoal history teacher; see chapter 5) gives no real
details of the Lovert Commirtee’s functioning, claiming: “The record of the testimony
of the Loverr Committee, unfortunately, was not in the archives of the agency when this
account was written,””

The ClA’s self-history does inform us of the advice that Lovett provided to the Truman
cabinet, as the official War Department intelligence proposal.

Lovett decided thar there should be a separate Central Intelligence Agency. The new
agency would “consult” with the armed forces, but it must be the sole C()llcc[ing agency
in the field of foreign espionage and counterespionage. The new agency should have
an independent budget, and its appropriations should be granted by Congress without
public hearings.

Lovett appeared before the Secretaries of State, War and Navy on November 14,
1945. He spoke highly of the FBI's work because it had “the best personality file in the
world.” Lovett said the FBI was expert at producing false documents, an art “which we
developed so successfully during the war and at which we became outstandingly adept.”
Lovett pressed for a virtual resumprion of the wartime Office of Strategic Services (OSS)
in a new CIA,

LS. military traditionalists centered around Gen, Douglas MacArthur opposed
Lovett's proposal,

The conrtinuarion of the OSS had been attacked at the end of the war on the grounds
that the OSS was entirely under British control, and that it would constitute an American
Gestapo,”

But the CIA was established in 1947 according to the prescription of Robert Lovert,
of Jupiter Island,

CHARLES PAYSON and his wife, JOAN WHITNEY PAYSON, were extended family
members of Harriman's and business associates of the Bush family.

Toan's aunt, Gertrude Vanderbilt Whitney, was a relative of the Harrimans. Gertrude's
son, Cornelius Vanderbilt (“Sonny”) Whitney, long-time chairman of Pan American Air-
ways (Prescott was a Pan Am director), became Assistant Secrerary of the U S, Air Foree
in 1947, Sonny’s wife Marie had divorced him and married Averell Harriman in 1930,
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Joan and Senny’s uncle, Air Marshall Sir Thomas Elmhirst, was director of intelligence
for the British Air Force from 1945 10 1947.

Joan's brother, John Hay (“Jock™) Whitney, was to be ambassador to Great Britain
from 1955 to 1961 — when it would be vital for Prescott and George Bush to have
such a friend. Joan’s father, grandfather and uncle were members of the Skull and Bones
SECTEL suciery,

Charles Payson organized a uranium refinery in 1948. Later he was chairman of Vitro
Corp., makers of parts for submanne-launched ballistic missiles, equipment for frequency
surveillance and torpedo guidance, and other subsurface weaponry.

Naval warfare has long been a preoccupation of the British Empire. British penetra-
tion of the U.S. Naval Intelligence service has been particularly heavy since the renure of
Joan's Anglophile grandfather, William C. Whitney, as Secretary of the Navy for President
Grover Cleveland. This traditional covert British orientation in the U.S. Navy, Naval
Intelligence and the Navy's included service, the Marine Corps, forms a backdrop to the
career of George Bush — and ro the whole neighborhood on Jupiter Island, Naval Intel-
ligence mainrained direct relations with gangster boss Meyer Lansky for Anglo-American
pohitical operations in Cuba during World War 11, well before the establishment of the
CIA. Lansky officially moved to Florida in 1953.7

GEORGE HERBERT WALKER, JR. (Skull and Bones 1927), was extremely close 1o his
nephew George Bush, helping to sponsor his entry into the oil business in the 1950s.
“Uncle Herbie” was also a partner of Joan Whitney Payson when they co-founded the
New York Mets baseball team in 1960, His son, G.H. Walker I11, was a Yale classmate
of Nicholas Brady and Moreau D. Brown (Thatcher Brown's grandson), forming what
wis called the "Yale Mafia” on Wall Street,

WALTER S. CARPENTER, JR. had been chairman of the finance committee of the
Du Pont Corporation (1930-40). In 1933, Carpenter oversaw Du Pont’s purchase of
Remington Arms from Sam Pryor and the Rockefellers, and led Du Pont into parter-
ship with the Nazi [.G. Farben Company for the manufacture of explosives. Carpenter
became Du Pont's president in 1940. His cartel with the Nazis was broken up by the U S,
government. Nevertheless, Carpenter remained Du Pont's president as the company's
technicians participared massively in the Manhattan Project to produce the first atomic
bomb. He was chairman of Du Pont from 1948 to 1962, retaining high-level access to
U.S. strategic acrivities.

Walter Carpenter and Prescott Bush were fellow activists in the Mental Hygiene
Society. Ornigmating at Yale University in 1908, the movement had been organized into
the World Federation of Mental Health by Montagu Norman, himself a frequent mental
patient, former Brown Brothers partner and Bank of England Governor. Norman had
appointed as the federation’s chairman, Brigadier John Rawlings Rees, director of the
Tavistock Psychiatric Clinie, chief psychiatrist and psychological warfare expert for the
British intelligence services. Prescort was a director of the society in Connecticur; Car-
penter was a director in Delaware.

PAUL MELLON was the leading heir to the Mellon fortune, and a long-time neighbor
of Averell Harriman's in Midd[cburg. Virginia, as well as Jupiter Island, Florida. Paul’s
facher. Andrew Mellon. U.S. Treasury Secretary 1921-32, had approved the transactions
of Harriman, Pryor and Bush with the Warburgs and the Nazis. Paul Mellon's son-in-
law, Davin K.E, BRUCE, worked in Prescort Bush's WA, Harriman & Co. during the
late 1920s; was head of the London branch of U.S. intelligence during World War I1;
and was Averell Harriman's Assistant Secretary of Commerce in 1947-48. Mellon family
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money and participation would be instrumental in many domestic U.S. pmjects of the
new Central Intelligence Agency.

CARLL TUCKER manufactured electronic guidance equipment for the Navy. With the
Mellons, Tucker was an owner of South American oil properuies. Mrs. Tucker was the
great aunt of Nicholas Brady, later George Bush's [ran-Contra partner and U.S, Treasury
Secretary. Their son Carll Tucker, Jr. (Skull and Bones 1947), was among the 15 Bones-
men who selected George Bush for induction in the class of 1948.

C. DOUGLAS DILLON was the boss of William H. Draper, ]r. in the Draper-Prescort
Bush-Fritz Thyssen Nazi banking scheme of the 19305 and 40s. His father, Clarence Dil-
lon, created the Vereinigte Stablwerke (Thyssen's German Steel Truse) in 1926, C. Douglas
Dillon made Nicholas Brady the chairman of the Dillon Read firm in 1971 and himself
continued as chairman of the executive committee. C. Douglas Dillon would be a vital
ally of his neighbor Prescott Bush during the Eisenhower administration.

Publisher NELSON DOUBLEDAY headed his family's publishing firm, founded under
the auspices of |.P. Morgan and other British Empire representatives. When George Bush's
“Uncle Herbie" died, Doubleday took over as majority owner and chief executive of the
New York Mets baschall team.

GEORGE W. MERCK, chairman of Merck & Co., drug and chemical manufacturers,
was director of the War Research Service: Merck was the official chiefof all U.S. rescarch
into biological warfare from 1942 until ac least the end of World War I1. Afrer 1944,
Merck's organization was placed under the U.S, Chemical Warfare Service, His family
firm in Germany and the U.S. was famous for its manufacture of morphine,

A.L. COLE was useful 1o the Jupiter Islanders as an executive of Readers Digest | In
1965, just after performing a rather dirty favor for George Bush (see Chapter 91, Cole
became chairman of the executive commitree of the Digest | the world's largest-circula-
tion periodical.

From the late 19405, Jupiter Island has served as a center for the direction of covert action
by the ULS. government and, indeed, for the covert management of the government. Jupiter
Island will reappear later on, in our account of George Bush in the lran-Conrra affair.

TARGET: WASHINGTON o

GEORGE W, BUSH GRADUATED FROM YALE IN 1948. He soon entered the family's
Dresser oil supply concern in Texas. We shall now brielly describe the forces that descended
on Washington, D.C. during those years when Bush, with the assistance of family and
powerful friends, wis becoming “established in business on his own.”

From 1948 1o 1950, Prescort Bush's boss Averell Harriman was ULS, "ambassador-at-
large” 1o Europe. He was a non-military “theater commander,” the administrator of the
mulri-billion-dollar Marshall Plan, participating i all military/strategic decision-making,
by the Anglo-American alliance.

The U.S. Secretary of Defense, James Forrestal, had become a problem to the Har-
rimanites. Forrestal had long been an executive at Dillon Read on Wall Street. Bur in
recent years he had gone astray, As Secretary of the Navy in 1944, Forrestal proposed
the racial integration of the Navy, As Defense Secretary he pressed for integration in the
armed forces and this eventually became the ULS, policy.

Forrestal opposed the utopians’ strategy of appeasement coupled with brinkmanship,
He was simply opposed to communism. On March 28, 1949, Forrestal was forced out
of office and flown on an Air Force plane to Florida. He was taken to “Hobe Sound”
(Jupiter Island}, where Robert Lovetr and an army psychiatrise dealt with him
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He was flown back to Washington, locked in Walter Reed Army Hospital and given
insulin shock treatments for alleged “mental exhaustion,” He was denied all visitors except
his estranged wife and children — his son had been Averell Harriman’s aide in Moscow,
On May 22, James Forrestal’s body was found, his bathrobe cord tied tightly around his
neck, after he had plunged from a sixteenth-story hospital window, The chief psychiatrist
called the death a suicide even before any investigation was started. The results of the
Army’s mquest were kept secret. Forrestal’s diaries were published, 80 percent deleted,
after a year of direct government censorship and rewriting.

North Korean troops invaded South Korea in June 1950, after U.S. Secretary of State
Dean Acheson (Harriman's very close friend) publicly specified that Korea would not
be defended. Wich a new war on, Harriman came back to serve as President Truman's
adviser, to “oversee national security affairs.”

Harriman replaced Clark Clifford, who had been special counsel ro Truman, Clifford,
however, remained close to Harriman and his partners as they gained more and more
power, Clifford later wrote about his cordial relations with Prescorr Bush:

P'rescott Bush ... had become one of my frequent golfing partners in the fifties, and 1 had
both liked and respected um... Bush had a splendid singing voice, and particularly loved
quartet singing. In the fifties, he organized a quarter that included my daughter Jovee,.. They
would sing in Washington, and, on occasion, he invited the group to Hobe Sound in Florida
1o perform. His son [George], though, had never struck me as a strong or forceful person. In
1988, he presented himself successfully 1o the voters as an owtsider — no small uick tor a man
whose roots wound through Connecticut, Yale, Texas oil, the CIA, a patrician background,
wealth, and the Vice-Presidency.”

With James Forrestal out of the way, Averell Harriman and Dean Acheson drove to
Leesburg, Virginia, on July I, 1950, to hire the British-backed U.S. Gen. George C.
Marshall as Secretary of Defense. At the same time, Prescott’s partner, Robert Lovert.
himself became Assistant Secretary of Defense.

Lovert, Marshall, Harriman and Acheson went to work to unhorse Gen. Douglas
MacArthur, commander of U.S. forces in Asia. MacArthur kept Wall Street’s intelligence
agencies away from his command, and favored real independence for the non-white
nations. Lovetr called for MacArthur’s firing on March 23, 1951, citing MacArthur’s
insistence on defeating the Communist Chinese invaders in Korea, MacArthur's famous
message, that chere was “no substitute for victory,” was read in Congress on April S;
MacArchur was fired on April 10, 1951,

That Seprember, Robert Lovett replaced Marshall as Secretary of Defense, Meanwhile,
Harriman was named director of the Mutual Security Agency, making him the U.S.
chief of the Angle-American military alliance. By now, Brown Brothers Harriman was
everything but Commander-in-Chief.

THESE WERE, OF COURSE EXCITING TIMES FOR THE BUSH FAMILY, whose WIgONn was
hitched to the financial gods of Olympus — to Jupiter, that is.

Brown Brothers Harmman & Co.
59 Wall Street, New York 5, N.Y.
Business Established 1818

Cable Address “Shipley-New York™

301



Private Bankers
April 2, 1951

The Honorable W.A. Harriman,
The White House, Washington, D.C.

Dear Averell:
I was sorry to miss you in Washington but appreciate your cordial note, [ shall hope for
better luck another time, I hope you had a good rest at Hobe Sound.
With affectionate regard, I am,
Sincerely yours,
Pres [signed]
Prescott S, Bush.

A central focus of the Harriman security regime in Washington (1950-53) was the
organization of covert operations, and “psychological warfare.” Harriman, together
with his lawyers and business partmers, Allen Dulles and John Foster Dulles, wanted
the government’s secret services to conduct extensive propaganda campaigns and mass-
psychology experiments within the U.S.A., and paramilitary campaigns abroad. This
would supposedly ensure a stable world-wide environment favorable to Anglo-American
financial and political interests.

The Harriman security regime created the Psychological Strategy Board (PSB) in 1951.
The man appointed director of the PSB, Gordon Gray, is familiar to the reader as the
sponsor of the child sterilization experiments, carried out by the Harrimanite eugenics
movement in North Carolina following World War 11 (see Chaprer 3).

Gordon Gray was an avid Anglophile, whose father had gotren controlling awnership
of the R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Company through alliance with the British Imperial To-
bacco cartel’s U.S. representatives, the Duke family of North Carolina. Gordon’s brother,
R.]. Reynolds chairman Bowman Gray, Jr., was also a Naval Intelligence officer, known
around Washington as the “founder of operational intelligence.” Gordon Gray became a
close friend and political ally of Prescott Bush; and Gray’s son became for Prescott’s son,
George. his lawyer and the shield of his covert policy.

But President Harry Truman, as malleable as he was, constituted an obstacle to the co-
vert warriors. An insular Missouri politician vaguely favorable to the U.S. Constitution, he
remained skeprical abour secret service activities that reminded him of the Nazi Gestapo.

So, "covert operations” could nor fully take off withour a change of the Washingron
regime. And it was with the Republican Party thar Prescott Bush was to ger his turn.

Prescote had made his first actempt to enter national politics in 1950, as his partners
took control of the levers of governmental power. Remaining in charge of Brown Brothers
Harriman, he ran against Connecticut’s William Benton for a seat in the U.S. Senate.
(The race was for a two-year unexpired term, left empty by the death of the previous
Senator.)

In those days, Wisconsin's drunken Senator Joseph R. McCarthy wis making a circus-
like crusade against communist influence in Washingron. McCarthy arracked liberals and
leftists, State Department personnel, politicany and Hellywood figures. He generally
left unscathed the Wall Street and London strategists who donated Eastern Europe and
China ro communist dictatorship — like George Bush, their geopolitics was beyond
left and right.
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THE CENTER OF POWER IS IN WASHINGTON

Prescorr Bush had no public ties to the notorious Joe McCarthy, and appeared to be
neutral about his crusade. Bur the Wisconsin Senator had his uses. Joe McCarthy came
into Connecricut three times thar year to campaign for Bush and against the Democrats.
Bush himself made charges of “Korea, Communism and Corruption” into a slick campaign
phrase against Benton, which then turned up as a national Republican slogan.

The response was disappointing. Only small crowds turned out to hear Joe Mc-
Carthy, and Benton was not hurt. McCarthy's pm-Bush rally in New Haven, in a hall
that seated 6,000, drew only 376 people. Benton joked on the radio that “200 of them
were my spies,”

Prescott Bush resigned from the Yale Board of Fellows for his campaign, and the board
published a statement to the effect that the “Yale vote” should support Bush — despite
the fact thar William Benton was a Yale man, and in many ways identical in outlook 1o
Bush, Yale's Whiffenpoof singers appeared regularly for Prescott’s campaign. None of this
was particularly effective. however, with the voting population.’

Then Prescotr Bush ran into a completely unexpected problem. At thar time, the old
Harriman cugenics movement was centered ar Yale University. Prescort Bush was a Yale
trustee, and his former Brown Brothers Harriman partner, Lawrence Tighe, was Yale's
treasurer, [n that connecrion, a slight glimmer of the truth about the Bush-Harriman
firm’s Nazi activities now made its way into the campaign,

Not only was the American Eugenics Society itself headquartered ar Yale, butall pares
of this undead fascist movement had a busy home at Yale. The coercive psychiatry and
sterilization advocates had made the Yale/New Haven Heospital and Yale Medical School
their laboratonies for hands-on practice in brain surgery and psychological experimenta-
tion. And the Birth Control League was there, which had long trumpeted the need for
cugenical births — fewer births for parents with “inferior” bloodlines. Prescott’s partner
Tighe was a Connecticut director of the league, and the Connecticut league’s medical
advisor was eugenics advocate Dr. Winternitz of Yale Medical School,

Now in 1950, people who knew something about Prescote Bush knew that he had
very unsavory roots in the cugenics movement. There were then, just after the ana-Hider
war, few open advocates of sterilization of “unfit” or “unnccessary” people. (That would
be revived later, with the help of General Draper and his friend George Bush.) Bue the
Birth Control League was public — just abour then it was changing its name to the
euphemistic “Planned Parenthood.”

Then, very late in the 1950 senatorial campaign, Prescott Bush was publicly exposed
for being an activist in that section of the old fascist eugenics movement. Prescout Bush
lost the election by about 1,000 our of 862,000 vores. He and his family blamed the
defeat on the exposé. The defear was burned into the famuly’s memory, leaving a bicter-
ness and perhaps a desire for revenge.

In his forewaord to 2 population control propaganda book, Geoarge Bush wrote about
that 1950 election: "My own first awareness of birth control as a public policy issue
came with a jolt in 1950 when my father was running for United States Senate in Con-
necticut. Drew Pearson, on the Sunday before Election day, “revealed’ that my father was
involved with Planned Parenthood... Many political observers felt a sufficient number
of voters were swayed by his alleged contacts with the birth controllers to cost him the
election..." "

Prescotr Bush was defeated, while the other Republican candidates fared well in Con-
necticut. When he tried again, Prescott Bush would not leave the outcome 1o the blind
whims of the public.
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Prescort Bush moved into action again in 1952 as a national leader of the push ro give
the Republican presidential nomination to Gen. Dwight D. (“Ike”) Eisenhower, Among
the other team members were Bush’s Hitler-era lawyer John Foster Dulles, and Jupiter
Islander C. Douglas Dillon.

Dillon and his father were the pivots as the Harriman-Dulles combinarion readied
Ike for the presidency. As a friend put it: "When the Dillons ... invired [Eisenhower] to
dinner it was 1o introduce him to Wall Street bankers and lawyers."

Ike's higher-level backers believed, carrectly, that Ike would not interfere with even the
dirtiest of their coverr action programs. The bland, pleasant Prescott Bush was in from
the beginning: a friend to lke, and an original backer of his presidency.

On July 28, 1952, as the election approached, Connecticut’s senior U.S. Senator,
James O'Brien McMahon, died at the age of 48.”

This was extrentely convenient for Prescott. He got the Republican nomination for U.S.
Senator at a special delegated meeting, with backing by the Yale-dominated state party
leadership. Now he would run in a special election for the suddenly vacant Senate seat. He
could expect ta be swept into office, since he would be on the same electoral ticket as the
popular war hero, General [ke. By a technicaliry, he would instantly become Connecticuc’s
senior Senator, with extra power in Congress. And the next regularly scheduled senatorial
race would be in 1956 (when McMahon'’s term would have ended), so Prescortr could run
again in that presidential election year — once again on lke's coatrails!

With this arrangement, things worked out very smoothly. In Eisenhower’s 1952
election victory, lke won Connecticut by a margin of 129,507 votes out of 1,092,471,
Prescott Bush came in last among the statewide Republicans, but managed to win by
30,373 out of 1,088,799 votes case, his margin nearly 100,000 behind Eisenhower. He
took the traditionally Republican towns.

In Eisenhowers 1956 reelection, Tke won Connecticut by 303,036 ourt of 1,114,954
vores, the largest presidential margin in Connecticut’s history. Prescart Bush managed ro
win again, by 129,544 votes out of 1,085,206 — his margin this time 290,082 smaller
than Eisenhower’s.*

In January 1963, when this electoral strategy had been played our and his second rerm ex-
pired, Prescott Bush retired from government and returned to Brown Brothers Harriman.

The 1952 Eisenhower victory made John Foster Dulles Secretary of State, and his
brother Allen Dulles head of the CIA. The reigning Dulles brothers were the “Republi-
can” replacements for their client and business partner, "Democrat™ Averell Harriman.
Occasional public posturings aside, their straregic commirments were identical to his.

Undoubtedly the most important work accomplished by Prescott Bush in the new
segime was on the golf links, where he was Ike's favorite partner.

TOWARD THE “NATIONAL SECURITY STATE”

Prescott Bush was a most elusive, secretive Senator. By diligent research, his views on
some issues may be traced: He was oppased to the development of public power projects
like the Tennessee Valley Authority; he opposed the constitutional amendment introduced
by Ohia Senator John W, Bricker, which would have required congressional approval of
international agreements by the executive branch.

But Prescort Bush was essentially a covert operative in Washington.

" McMahon had been Assistant ULS. Artomey General, in charge of the Criminal Division, from 1935 10 1939, Was
there a chanee he might someday speak out about the unpunished Nazi-era ¢rimes of the wealthy and powerful?
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On June 10, 1954, Bush received a letter from Connecricur resident H. Smith Rich-
ardson, owner of Vick Chemical Company (cough drops, Vapo-Rub):

“... At some time before Fall, Senator, T want to get your advice and counsel on a
[new| subject — namely what should be done with the income from a foundation which
my brother and 1 set up, and which will begin its operacion in 1956...”"

This letter presages the establishment of the H. Smith Richardson Foundation, a Bush
family-dictated private slush fund which was to be utilized by the Central Intelligence
Agency, and by Vice President Bush, for the conduct of his Iran-Contra adventures.

The Bush family knew Richardson and his wife through their mutual friendship with
Sears Roebuck’s chairman, Gen. Robert E. Wood, General Wood had been president
of the America First organizartion, which had lobbied against war with Hitler Germany.
H. Smith Richardson had contributed the start-up money for America First and had
spoken out against the LS. “joining the Communists™ by fighting Hitler. Richardson’s
wife was a proud relative of Nancy Langehorne from Virginia, who married Lord Astor
and backed the Nazis from their Cliveden Estate.

General Wood's daughter Mary had married the son of Standard Oil president William
Stamps Farish. The Bushes had stuck with the Farishes through their disastrous exposure
during World War II (see Chapter 3). Young George Bush and his bride Barbara were
especially close to Mary Farish, and to her son W.S. Farish 111, who would be the great
confidance of George's presidency.”

The H. Smith Richardsen Foundation was organized by Eugene Stetson, Jr., Rich-
ardson’s son-in-law. Scetson (Skull and Bones, 1934) had worked for Prescort Bush as
assistant manager of the New York branch of Brown Brothers Harriman.

In the late 19505, the H. Smith Richardson Foundation took parr in the “psychological
warfare” of the CIA, This was not a foreign, bur a domestic, covert operarion, carried out
mainly against unwitting U.S. citizens, CIA Director Allen Dulles and his Britsh allies
organized “MK-Ultra,” the testing of psychotropic drugs including LSD on a very large
scale, allegedly to evaluate “chemical warfare” possibilities. In this period, the Richardson
Foundation helped finance experiments ar Bridgewater Hospital in Massachusetts, the
center of some of the most brutal MK-Ulera tortures. These outrages have been graphi-
cally portrayed in the movie, Titricur Folltes,

During 1990, an invesrigator for this book toured H. Smith Richardson’s Center
for Creative Leadership just north of Greensboro, North Carolina. The tour guide said
that in these rooms. agents of the Central Intelligence Agency and the Secret Service are
trained. He demonstrated the two-way mirrors through which the government employ-
ees are watched, while they are put through mind-bending psychodramas. The guide
explained that “virtually everyone who becomes a general” in the U.S. armed forces also
goes through this “training” at the Richardson Center.

Another office of the Center for Creative Leadership is in Langley, Virginia, at the
headquarters of the Central Intelligence Agency. Here also, Richardson’s Center trains
leaders of the CIA.

Prescotr Bush worked throughout the Eisenhower years as a confidential ally of the
Dulles brothers. In July 1956, Egypr's President Gamel Abdul Nasser announced he
would accept the U.S. offer of a loan for the construction of the Aswan Dam project.
John Foster Dulles then prepared a statement telling the Egyprian ambassador chat the
U.S.A. had decided to retract its offer. Dulles gave the explosive statement in advance to
Prescort Bush for his approval. Dulles also gave the statement 1o President Eisenhower,
and ro rthe British government.’*
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Nasser reacted to the Dulles brush-off by nationalizing the Suez Canal to pay for the
dam. Israel, then Britain and France, invaded Egypt to try to overthrow Nasser, leader of
the anti-imperial Arab nationalists. However, Eisenhower refused (for once) to play the
Dulles-British game, and the invaders had to leave Egypr when Britain was threatened
with ULS. economic sanctions.

During 1956, Senator Prescote Bush's value to the Harriman-Dulles political group
ncreased when he was put on the Senate Armed Services Commirttee. Bush roured U.S.
and allied military bases throughour the world, and had increased access to the national
security decision-making process.

[n the later years of the Eisenhower presidency, Gordon Gray rejoined the govern-
ment, As an inomate friend and golfing partner of Prescott Bush, Gray complemented
the Bush influence on Ike. The Bush-Gray family partnership in the “secret government”
continues up through the George Bush presidency.

Gordon Gray had been appointed head of the new Psychological Straregy Board in
1951 under Averell Harriman'’s rule as assistant ro President Truman for national securicy
affairs. From 1958 1o 1961, Gordon Gray was national security chief under President
Eisenhower. Gray acted as lke's intermediary, strategist and hand-holder, in the President’s
relations with the CIA and the U.S. and allied military forces.

Eisenhower did not oppose the CIA's covert action projects; he only wanted to be
protected from the consequences of their failure or exposure. Gray's primary task, in the
guise of “oversight” on all U.S. covert action, was to protect and hide the growing mass
of CIA and related secret government activities.

[t was not only covert prajects which were developed by the Gray-Bush-Dulles com-
binarton: it was also new, hidden structures of the United Srates government.

Senator Henry Jackson challenged these arrangements in 1959 and 1960. Jackson
created a Subcommittee on National Policy Machinery of the Senate Commirtee on
Governmental Operations, which investigated Gordon Gray’s reign at the National
Security Council. On January 26, 1960, Gordon Gray warned President Eisenhower
that a document revealing the existence of a secret part of the U.S. government had
somehow gotten into the bibliography being used by Senator Jackson. The unir was
Gray's "5412 Group” within the administration, officially but secretly in charge of
approving covert action. Under Gray's guidance, Tke " was clear and firm in his re-
sponse’ that Jackson’s staff nor be informed of the existence of this unit [emphasis in
the ariginal]."""

Several figures of the Eisenhower administration must be considered the fathers of
this permanent covert action monolith, men who continued shepherding the monster
after its birth in the Eisenhower era:

GORDON GRAY, the shadowy assistant to the President for national security affairs,
Prescott Bush's closest execurive branch crony and golf partner along with Eisenhower.
By 1959-60, Gray had lke's total confidence and served as the Harrimanites’ monitor on
all U.S. milirary and non-military projects.

British intelligence agent Kim Philby defected to the Russians in 1963. Philby had
gained virtually total access to ULS. intelligence activities beginning in 1949, as the
British secret services' lizison to the Harriman-dominated CIA. After Philby’s defection,
it scemed obvious that the aristocratic British intelligence service was in fact a menace
to the western cause. In the 1960s, a small team of ULS. counterinrelligence specialists
went to England to investigate the situation. They reported back thar the British secret
service could be thoroughly trusted. The leader of this “expert” team, Gordon Gray, was
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the head of the counterespionage section of the President’s Foreign Intelligence Advisory
Board for Presidents John Kennedy through Gerald Ford.

ROBERT LOVETT, Bushs Jupiter Island neighbor and Brown Brothers Harriman
partner, from 1956 on a member of the President’s Foreign Intelligence Advisory Board.
Lovetr later claimed to have crinicized — from the “inside” — the plan to invade Cuba
at the Bay of Pigs. Lovett was asked to choose the cabinet for John Kennedy in 1961.

CIA DIRECTOR ALLEN DULLES, Bush’s former internarional attorney. Kennedy fired
Dulles after che Bay of Pigs invasion, but Dulles served on the Warren Commission,
which whitewashed President Kennedy's murder.

C. DOUGLAS DILLON, neighbor of Bush on Jupiter Island, became Undersecretary of
State in 1958 after the death of John Foster Dulles. Dillon had been John Foster Dulles’s
ambassador to France (1953-57), coordinating the original U.S. covert backing for the
French imperial effort in Vietnam, with catastrophic results for the world. Dillon was
Treasury Secretary for both John Kennedy and Lyndon Johnson,

AMBASSADOR TO BRITAIN JOCK WHITNEY, extended tamily member of the Har-
rimans and neighbor of Prescott Bush on Jupiter Island. Whitney set up a press service in
London called Forum World Features, which published propaganda furnished directly by
the CIA and the British intelligence services, Beginning in 1961, Whitney was chairman
of the British Empire’s “English Speaking Union.”

SENATOR PRESCOTT BUSH, friend and counselor of President Eisenhower.

Bush's term continued on in the Senate after the Eisenhower years, throughout most
of the aborted Kennedy presidency.

In 1962, the National Strategy Informarion Center was founded by Prescort Bush
and his son Prescott, Jr., William Casey (the future CIA chief) and Leo Cherne. The
center came to be directed by Frank Barnett, former program officer of the Bush family's
H. Smith Richardson Foundation. The center conduited funds to the London-Based
Forum World Features. for the circulation of ClA-authored “news stories” to some 300
newspapers internationally,

“Democrar” Averell Harriman rotated back into official government in the Kennedy
administration. As Assistant Secretary and Undersecretary of State, Harriman helped
push the United States into the Vietnam War, Harriman had no post in the Eisenhower
administration. Yet he was perhaps more than anyone the leader and the glue for the
incredible evil that was hatched by the CIA in the final Eisenhower years: a half-public,
half-private Harrimanite army, never since demaobilized, and increasingly associated with
the name of Bush.

Following the rise of Castro, the U.S. Central Intelligence Agency contracted with the
organization of Mafia boss Meyer Lansky to organize and train assassination squads for
use against the Cuban government. Among those employed were John Rosselli, Santos
Trathcante and Sam Giancana. Uncontested public documentarion of these facts has been
published by congressional bodies and by leading Establishment academics, ™

Bur the disturbing implications and later consequences of this engagement are a crucial
matrer for further study by the citizens of every nation. This much is established:

On Aug. 18, 1960, President Eisenhower approved a $13 million official budger for
a secret CIA-run guerrilla war against Castro. It is known that Vice President Richard
M. Nixon took a hand in the promotion of this initiative. The ULS. military was kept
out of the covert action plans until very late in the game.

The first of cight admirted assassination attempts against Castro took place in
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The program was, of course, a failure, if not a circus. The invasion of Cuba by the
CIA’s anti-Castro exiles was put off until after John Kennedy took over the presidency.
The invasion at the Bay of Pigs was a fiasco, and Castro’s forces casily prevailed. Bur the
program continued.

In 1960, Felix Rodriguez. Luis Posada Carriles, Rafael “Chi Chi” Quintero, Frank
Sturgis (or “Frank Fiorini") and other Florida-based Cuban ¢xiles were trained as kill-
ers and drug-traffickers in the Cuban initiative; their supervisor was E. Howard Hunt.
Their overall CIA boss was Miami station chief Theadore G. Shackley, seconded by
Thomas Clines, In later chapters we will follow the subsequent careers of these characters
— increasingly identified with George Bush — through the Watergate coup, and the
Iran-Contra scandal.

*g'.?*
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Wise statesmen ... established these great self-evident truths, that when in the distant
Juture some man, some faction, some interest, should set up the doctrine that none
but rich men, or none but white men, were entitled to life, liberty and the pursuit of
happiness, their posterity should look up again at the Declaration of Independence
and take courage to renew the battle which their fathers began ...'

— Abraham Lincoln

SKULL AND BONES:
THE RACIST NIGHTMARE
AT YALE

WEBSTER GRIFFIN TARPLEY AND ANTON CHAITKIN B
CHAPTER SEVEN OF GEORGE BUSH — THE UNAUTHORIZED BIOGRAPHY - 1992 USED WITH PERMISSION

Christmas Eve, 1944; the war in the Pacific raged on over the next half
year, with Allied forces taking Southeast Asia, the Netherlands East Indies
(Indonesia), and islands such as Iwo Jima and Okinawa.

» I THE U.S. NAVY DELIVERED GEORGE BUSH BACK HOME for good on

HONEYMOON

BARBARA PIERCE QUIT SMITH COLLEGE in her sophomore year to marry George. Prescort
and Mother Bush gave a splendid prenuptial dinner at the Greenwich Field Club. The
wedding took place January 6, 1945, in the Rye, New York Presbyterian Church, as the
U.S. Third Fleet bombarded the main Philippine island of Luzon in preparation for inva-
sion, Afterwards there was a glamorous reception for 300 at Appawamis Country Club.
The newlyweds honeymooned at The Cloisters, a five-star hotel on Sea Island, Georga,
with swimming, tennis and golf.

George’s next assignment was to train pilots at Norfolk, Virginia Naval Air Station.
“George’s duty ... was light. As for other young marrieds, whose husbands were berween
warzone tours, this was kind of an extended (and paid) honeymoon.™

Japan surrendered in August. Thar fall, George and Barbara Bush moved ro New Haven
where Bush entered Yale University. He and Barbara moved into an apartment at 37 Hill-
house Avenue, across the street from Yale President Charles Seymour,

College life was good to George, what he saw of it. A college career usually occupies
four years, Bur we know that George Bush is a rapidly moving man, Thus he was pleased
with the special arrangement made for veterans, by which Yale allowed him to ger his
degree after attending classes for only two and a half years.

Bush and his friends remember it all fondly, as representarives of the Fashionable Set:
“[MJembers of [Bush’s] class have since sighed with nostalgia for those days of the late
1940s ... Trolley cars still rumbled along the New Haven streets. On autumn afterncons

311



they would be crowded with students going out to football games at the Yale Bowl,
scattering pennies along the way and showiing “scramble’ to the street kids diving for them”
[emphasis added).”

In 1947, Barbara gave birth to George W. Bush, the President’s namesake.

By the time of his 1948 graduation, he had been ¢lecred to 'hi Bera Kappa, an honor
traditionally associated with academic achievement. A grear deal is known abour George
Bush’s career ar Yale, except the part about books and studies. Unfortunately for those
who would wish to consider his intellectual accomplishment, everything about that has
been sealed shut and is top secret. The Yale administration says they have turned over o
the FBI custody of all of Bush's academic records, allegedly because the FBI needs such
access to check the resumés of important office holders.

From all available testimony, his mental life before college was anything but outstand-
ing. His campaign literature claims that, as a veteran, Bush was “sertous” at Yale. But
we cannot check exactly how he achieved election to Phi Beta Kappa, in his abbreviated
college experience. Without top secret clearance, we cannor consult his test results, read
his essays. or learn much abour his performance in class. We know thar his father wasa
trustee of the university, in charge of “developmental” fundraising. And his family friends
were in control of the ULS, secret services.

A great deal is known, however, abour George Bushs szarus at Yale.

His fellow student John H. Chafee, later a LLS. Senator from Rhode Island and
Secretary of the Navy, declared: “We didn't see much of him because he was married,
but | guess my first impression was that he was — and | don't mean this in a derogatory
fashion — in the inner set, the movers and shakers, the establishment. 1 don't mean he
purt on airs or anything, bur ... just everybody knew him."

Chafee, like Bush, and Dan Quayle, was in the important national fraterniry, Delta
Kappa Epsilon (DKE or the “Dekes”). But Chatee says, “1 never remember seeing him
there. He wasn't one to hang around with che fellows.™

THE TOMB

GEORGE BUSH, IN FACT, PASSED his most important days and nights at Yale in the
strange companionship of the senior-year Skull and Bones Society.”

Ot of those few who were chosen for Bones membership, George was the last one
to be notified of his selection — this honor is traditionally reserved for the highest of
the high and mighty.

His facher, Prescott Bush, several other relatives and partners, and Roland and Averell
Harriman, who sponsored the Bush family, were alsa members of this secret society.

The undoubted political and financial power associated with Skull and Bones has given
rise to many popular questions abour the nature and origin of the group. Its members
have fed the mystery with false leads and silly speculations,

The order was incorporated in 1856 under the name “Russell Trust Association.”
By special act of the state legislature in 1943, its trustees are exempted from the normal
requirement of filing corporate reports with the Connecticut Secretary of State.

As of 1978, all business of the Russell Trust was handled by its lone trustee, Brown
Brothers Harriman partner John B. Madden, Jr. Madden started with Brown Brothers
Harriman in 1946, under senior partner Prescort Bush, George Bush's father.

Each year, Skull and Bones members select (“tap”) 15 third-year Yale students to
replace them in the senior group the following year. Graduating members are given a
sizeable cash bonus to help them ger started in life. Older graduate members, the so-
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called "Patriarchs,” give special backing in business, politics, espionage and legal carcers
to graduate Bonesmen wha exhibir talent or usetulness.

The home of Skull and Bones on the Yale campus is a stone building resembling a
mausoleum, and known as “the Tomb." Initiatons take place on Deer Island in the St
Lawrence River (an island owned by the Russell Trust Association), with regular reunions
on Deer lsland and ar Yale. [nidation rites reportedly include strenuous and traumatic
activities of the new member, while immersed naked in mud, and in a coffin. More
important is the “sexual autobiography™: The initiate tells the Order all the sex secrers
of his young life. Weakened mental defenses against manipulation, and the blackmail
potential of such information, have obvious permanent uses in enforcing loyaly among
members,

The loyalty is intense. One of Bush's former teachers, whose own father was a Skull
and Bones member, told our interviewer that his father used to stab his little Skull and
Bones pin into his skin to keep it in place when he rook a bath,

Members continue throughout their lives to unburden themselves on their psycho-
sexual thoughts 1o their Bones Brothers, even if they are no longer sitting in a coffin.
This has been the case with President George Bush, tor whom these ties are reported to
have a deep personal meaning. Beyond the psychological manipulation associated with
freemasonic mummery, there are very solid political reasons for Bush's strong idenrifica-
tion with this cult.

Observers of Skull and Bones, apologists and critics alike, have accepted various decep-
tive notions about the order. There are two outstanding, among these falsehoods:

1) that it is essentially an American group, an assembly of wealthy. elite “patriots™
it is in fact. an agency for British Empire penetration and subversion of the American
republic; and

2) that it is somehow rhe unique center of conspiratorial control over the United States,
This misconceprion is certainly understandable, given the rather astonishing number of
powerful, historically important and grotesquely anti-human individuals, who have come
out of Skull and Bones. Bur there are in fact congruent organizations at other Ivy League
colleges, which reflect, as does Skull and Bones, the over-arching oligarchical power of
several heavily intermarried financier families,

The mistaken, speculative notions may be corrected by examining rhe history of Skull
and Bones, viewed within the reality of the American Eastern Establishment.

Skull and Bones — the Russell Trust Association — was first established among
the class graduating from Yale in 1833, [ts founder was William Huntingron Russell
of Middlerown, Connecricur. The Russell family was the master of incalculable wealth
derived from the largest U.S. criminal organization of rthe ninereenth century: Russell
and Company, the grear opium syndicare.

There was at that time a deep suspicion of, and national revulsion against, freemasonry
and secret organizations in the United States, fostered in particular by the anri-masonic
writings of former U.S. President John Quincy Adams. Adams stressed that those who
take oaths to politically powertful international secret societies cannot be depended on
for loyalty 1o a democraric republic.

But the Russells were protected as part of the multiply-intermarried grouping of
families then ruling Connecticut (see accompanying charr), The blood-proud members
of the Russell, Pierpont, Edwards, Burr, Griswold, Day. Alsop and Hubbard families were
prominent in the pro-British party within the state. Many of their sons would be among
the members chosen for the Skull and Bones Society over the vears,
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FLESHING OUT SKULL & BONES — INVESTIGATIONS INTO AMERICA'S MOST POWERFUL SECRET SOCIETY

The background to Skull and Bones is a story of Opium and Empire, and a bitter
struggle for political control over the new U.S. republic.

Samuel Russell, second cousin o Bones founder William H.. established Russell
and Company in 1823, Its business was to acquire opium from Turkey and smuggle it
into China, where it was stricily prohibited, under the armed protection of the British
Empire.

The prior, predominant American gang in this field had been the syndicate created
by Thomas Handasyd Perkins of Newburyport, Massachusetts, an aggregation of the
self-styled “blue bloods™ or Brahmins of Boston’s norch shore, Forced our of the lucra-
tive African slave trade by U.S. law and Caribbean slave revolts, leaders of the Cabor,
Lowell, Higginson, Forbes, Cushing and Sturgis families had married Perkins siblings
and children. The Perkins opium syndicate made the fortune and established the power
of these families. By the 1830, the Russells had bought out the Perkins syndicate and
made Connecticut the primary center of the U.S, opium racket. Massachuserts families
(Coolidge, Sturgis, Forbes and Delano) joined Connecticut (Alsop) and New York (Low)
smuggler-millionaires under the Russell auspices.

John Quincy Adams and other patriots had fought these men for a quarter century by
the time the Russell Trust Association was set up with its open pirate emblem — Skull
and Bones,

With British ties of family, shipping and merchant banking, the old New England
Tories had continued their hostiliry to American independence after the Revolutionary
War of 1775-83. These pretended conservative patriots proclaimed Thomas Jefferson’s
1801 presidential inauguration “radical usurpation.”

The Massachuseres Tories (“Essex Junto”) joined with Vice President Aaron Burr, Jr.
(a member of the Connecticut Edwards and Pierpont families) and Burr's cousin and
law partner Theodore Dwight, in political moves designed to break up the United States
and return 1t to British allegiance.

The U.S. nationalist leader, former Treasury Secretary Alexander Hamilton, exposed
the plan in 1804. Burr shot him to death in a ducl, then led a famous abortive conspiracy
to form a new empire in the Southwest, with territory to be torn from the U.S.A. and
Spanish Mexico. For the "blue bloods,” the romantic figure of Aaron Burr was ever af-
terwards the symbol of British feudal revenge against the American republic.

The Connecticur Tory families hosted the infamous Hartford Convention in 1815,
toward the end of the second war between the ULS, and Britain (the War of 1812). Their
secessionist propaganda was rendered impotent by America's defensive military victory.
This faction then retired from the open political arena, pursuing instead entirely private
and covert alliances with the British Empire. The incestuously intermarried Massachuseres
and Connecricut families associated themselves with the British East India Company in
the cnminal opium traffic into China. These families made increased profits as partners
and surrogates for the British during the bloody 1839-42 Opium War, the race war of
Brirish forces against Chinese defenders,

Samuel and William Huntington Russell were quier, wary builders of their faction’s
power. An intimate colleague of opium gangster Samuel Russell wrote this about him:

While he lived, no friend of his would venture to mention his name in print. While
in China, he lived for about twenty-five years almost as a hermit, hardly known outside
of his factoty [the Canton warchouse compound] except by the chosen few who enjoyed
his intimacy, and by his good friend, Hoqua [Chinese security director for the British
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East India Company|, but studying commerce in 1ts broadest sense, as well as its minutest
detals, Returning home with wellcarned wealth he lived hospitably in the midst of his
farmily, and a small aircle of intimates. Scorning words and pretensions from the borom
of his heart, he was the truest and staunchest of friends; hating notoriety, he could always
be absolutely counted on for every good work which did not nvolve publicity,

The Russells’ Skall and Bones Society was the most important of their domestic projects
“which did not invalve publiciry.”

A police-blotter type review of Russell's organization will show why the secret order,
though powerful, was not the unique organ of “conspiracy” for the U.S. Eastern Estab-
lishment, The following gentlemen were among Russells’ partners:

* Augustine Heard (1785-1868): ship captain and pioneer U.S. opium smuggler.

» fohn Cleve Green (1800-75): married to Sarah Griswold; gave a fortune in opium
profits to Princeton University, hinancing three Princeton buildings and four professor-
ships: trustee of the Princeton Theological Seminary for 25 years,

* Abiel Abbott Low (1811-93): his opium fortune financed the construction of the
Columbia University New York City campus; father of Columbia’s president Serh Low.

* John Murray Forbes (1813-98): his opium millions Ainanced the career of author Ralph
Waldo Emerson, who married Forbes's daughter, and bankrolled the establishment of the
Bell Telephone Company, whose first president was Forbess son,

* Joseph Coolidge: his Augustine Heard agency got $10 million yearly as surrogates
for the Scottish dope-runners Jardine Matheson during the fighting in China; his son
arganized the United Fruit Company: his grandson, Archibald Cary Coolidge, was the
founding execurive officer of the Anglo-Americans’ Council on Foreign Relations.

e Warren Deluano. Jr.: chief of Russell and Co. in Canton; grandfather of ULS. President
Franklin Delano Roosevelr,

*o Russell Sturgis: his grandson by the same name was chairman of the Baring Bank
in England, Ananciers of the Far East opium trade,

Such persons as John C. Green and ALA. Low, whose names adorn various buildings
at Princeton and Columbia Universitics, made little atempr (o hide the criminal origin
of their influential money. Similarly with the Cabors, the Higginsons and the Welds for
Harvard, The secret groups at other colleges are analogous and closely related 1o Yale's
Skull and Bones.

Princeton has its “eating clubs, " especially vy Club and Cottage Club, whose oligarchi-
cal tradition runs from Jonatchan Edwards and Aaron Burr through the Dulles brothers.
At Harvard there is the ultra-blue-blooded Porcelian (known alsa as the Porc or Pig club);
Theodore Roosevelr bragged to the German Kaiser of his membership there: Franklin
Roosevelt was a member of the slightly “lower” Fly Club.

A few of the carly inigates in Skull and Bones went an to careers in obvious defiance
of the order's aligarchical character: two such were the scientists Benjamin Silliman, Jr.
(Skull and Bones 1837), and William Chauvenet (Skull and Bones 1840). This reflects
the continued importance of republican factions at Yale, Harvard and other colleges dur-
ing the middle three decades of the nineteenth century, Silliman and Chauvener became
enemies of everything Skull and Bones stood for, while the Yale secrer group rapidly
conformed to the Russells’ expectanions.

* Certain of the prominent Boston opium families, such as Cabot and Weld, did not afhliate directly
with Russell. Connecricur and Yale, but were identified mstead with Harvard,
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Yale was the northern college favored by southern slave-owning would-be aristocrars,
Among Yale's southern students were John C. Calhoun, later the famous South Carolina
defender of slavery against nationalism, and Judah P Benjamin, later Secretary of State
for the slaveowners’ Confederacy.

Young South Carolinian Joseph Heatly Dulles, whose family hought their slaves
with the maney from contraci-security work for the British conquerors in India, was in
a previous secret Yale group, the “Sociery of Brothers in Unity.” At Yale Dulles worked
with the Northern secessionists and attached himself to Daniel Lord: their two families
clove together in the fashion of a gang. The Lords became powerful Anglo-American
Wall Street lawyers, and J.H. Dulles's grandson was the father of Allen Dulles and John
Foster Dulles.

In 1832-33 Skull and Bones was launched under the Russell pirate flag,

Among the carly inigates of the order were Henry Rootes Jackson (S&B 1839), a
leader of the 1861 Georgia Secession Convention and post-Civil War president of the
Georgia Historical Society (thus the false accounts of the “good old slavery days”™ and
the “bad northern invaders™); John Perkins, Jr. (S&B 1840), chairman of the 1861
Louisiana Secession Convention, who Hed abroad for 13 years after the Civil War; and
William Taylor Sullivan Barry (S&B 1841), a national leader of the secessionist wing
of the Democraue Party during the 1850s, and chairman of the 1861 Mississippi Seces-
sion Convention,

Alphonso Taft was a Bonesman alongside William H. Russell in the Class of 1833.
As U.S. Artorney General in 1876-77, Alphonso Taft helped organize the backroom
sertlement of the deadlocked 1876 presidential election. The bargain gave Rutherford
B. Hayes the presidency (1877-81) and withdrew the ULS, troops from the South, where
they had been enforcing blacks' nighrs.

Alphonso’s son, William Howard Taft (S&B 1878), was UL.S. President from 1908 to
1913, President Taft's son, Robert Alphonso Taft (S&B 1910), wasa lcsldlng LLS. Senaror
after World War 117 his family’s Anglo-Saxon racial/ancestral preoccupation was the disease
which crippled Robert Taft's leadership of American nationalist “conservatives.”

Other pre-Civil War Bonesmen were:

* William M. Evarts (S&B 1837): Wall Street attornev for British and southern
slaveowner projects, collahorator of Taft in the 1876 hargain, LLS, Secretary of State
1877-81:

* Morris R, Waite (S&B 1837): Chiefl Justice of the U.S. Supreme Court 1874-88,
whose rulings destroyed many rights of Afnican-Amencans gained in the Civil War: he
helped his cohorts Taft and Evarts arrange the 1876 presidential sertlement scheme o
pull the rights-enforcing U.S. troops our of the Sourh:

* Daniel Coit Gilman (S&B 1852); co-incorporator of the Russell Trust: founding
president of Johns Hopkins University as a great center for the racialist cugenics move-
ment;

* Andrew D, White (S&B 1853): founding president of Cornell University: psychic
researcher: and diplomatic cohort of the Venerian, Russian and British oligarchies;

= Chauncey M. Depew (S&B 1836): general counsel for the Vanderbilt railroads, he
helped the Harriman family 1o enter into high sociery.

By about the mid-1880s, the Skull and Bones membership roster began to change from
its catlier, often "scholarly,” coloration; the change reflected the degradation of American
political and economic life by im ptri:ll ist, neo-pagan and racialist ideology.
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Irving Fisher (S&B 1888) became the racialist high priest of the economics faculty
(Yale professor 1896-1946), and a famous merchant of British Empire propaganda for free
trade and reduction of the non-white population. Fisher was founding president of the
American Eugenics Society under the financial largesse of Averell Harriman’s mother.

Gifford Pinchot (S&B 1889) invented the anistocrats’ “conservation” movement. He
was President Theodore Roosevelt's chief forester, substituting federal land-control in
place of Abraham Lincoln’s free-land-to-families farm creation program. Pinchot’s British
Empire activitism included the Psychical Research Society and his vice-presidency of the
first International Eugenics Congress in 1912,

Helping Pinchor initiate this century’s racialist environmenralism were his cohorts
George W. Woodruff (S&B 1889), Teddy Roosevelt’s Assistant Attorney General and
Acting Interior Secretary; and Henry Solon Graves (S&B 1892), chief U.S. forester 1910-
20. Frederick E. Weyerhaeuser (S&B 1896), owner of vast tracts of American forest, was
a follower of Pinchot’s movement, while the Weyerhauser family were active collaborators
of British-South African super-racist Cecil Rhodes. This family's friendship with President
George Bush is a vital factor in the present environmentalist moyement.

With Henry L. Stimson (S&B 1888) we come to the Eastern Liberal Establishment
which has ruled America during the rwentieth century. Stimson was President Taft's
Secretary of War (1911-13), and President Herbert Hoover's Secretary of State (1929-
33). As Secretary of War (1940-45), this time under President Harry Truman, Sumson
pressed Truman to drop the atomic bomb on the Japanese. This decision involved much
more than merely “pragmatic” military considerations. These Anglophiles, up through
George Bush, have opposed the American republic’s tradition of alliance with national
aspirations in Asia; and they worried that the inventon of nudlear energy would wo
powerfully unsettle the world's toleration for poverty and misery. Both the U.S. and the
Atom had berter be dreaded, they thought,

The present century owes much of its record of horrors to the influential Anglophile
American families which came to dominate and employ the Skull and Bones Society as a
political recruiting agency, particularly the Harrimans, Whitneys, Vanderbilts, Rocketellers
and their lawyers, the Lords and Tafts and Bundys.

The politically aggressive Guaranty Trust Company, run almost entirely by Skull and Bones
initiates, was a financial vehicle of these families in the early 1900s. Guaranty Trust's support
for the Bolshevik and Nazi revolutions overlapped the more intense endeavors in these fields
by the Harrimans, George Walker and Prescotr Bush a few blocks away. and in Betlin.

Skull and Bones was dominated from 1913 onward by the circles of Averell Harri-
man. They displaced remaining rraditionalists such as Douglas MacArthur from power
in the United States,

For George Bush, the Skull and Bones Society is more than simply the British, as op-
posed to the American, strategic tradition. [t is merged in the family and personal network
within which his whole life has been, in a sense, handed to him prepackaged.

BRITAIN'S YALE FLYING UNIT

URING PRESCOTT BUSH’S STUDENT DAYS, the Harriman ser at Yale decided that
World War [ was sufhciently amusing that they ought ta get into it as recreation.
They formed a special Yale Unit of the Naval Reserve Flying Corps, at the instigation of E
Trubee Davison, Since the United States was not at war, and the Yale students were going
to serve Britain, the Yale Unit was privately and lavishly financed by E Trubee's father,
Henry Davison, the senior managing partner at J.P. Morgan and Co. Ac that time, the
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Morgan bank was the official financial agency for the British government in the United
States, The Yale Unit's leader was amarteur pilot Roberr A, Lovetr. They were based firse
on Long Island, New York, then in Palm Beach, Florida.

The Yale Unit has been described by Lovett’s family and friends in a collective biog-
raphy of the Harriman set:

Traiung for the Yale Flying Unit was nor exactly boot camp. Davison’s father ...
helped finance them royally, and newspapers of the day dubbed them “the millionasres’
umit.” They cut rakish figures, and knew it; though some dismissed them as dilettantes,
the hearts of young Long Island belles fluttered at the sight ...,

[In] Palm Beach ... they ostentatiously pursued a relaxed style. “They were rolled about
in wheel chairs by African slaves amid tropical gardens and coconut palms,” wrote the
urit’s histonan ... “For light exercise, they learned to glance at their new wristwatches with
an air of easy nonchalance”... [Lovett] was made chief of the unit’s private club, the Wags,
whose members started their sentences, “Being a Wag and therefore a superman”...

Despite the snide comments of those who dismissed them as frivolous rich boys,
Lovett’s unit proved to be daring and imaginative warriors when they were dispatched
for active duty in 1917 with Britzin’s Royval Naval Air Service.*

Lovett was transferred to the U.S. Navy after the U.S. joined Britain in World War 1.

The Yale Flying Unit was the glory of Skull and Bones. Roland Harriman, Prescott Bush
and their 1917 Bonesmates selected for 1918 membership in the secret order these Yale
Flying Unit leaders: Robert Lovert, E Trubee Davison, Artemus Lamb Gates, and John
Martin Vorys. Unir flyers David Sinton Ingalls and F Trubee's brother, Harry P. Davison
{who became Morgan vice chairman), were tapped for the 1920 Skull and Bones.

Lovert did nor acrually have a senior year ar Yale: “He was rapped for Skull and Bones
not on the Old Campus but ar & naval station in West Palm Beach: his initiation, instead
of being conducted in the “tomb’ on High Street, occurred at the headquarters of the
Navy's Northern Bombing Group between Dunkirk and Calais.™

Some years later, Averell Harriman gathered Lovett, Preseott Bush and other pets into
the utopian oligarchs’ community a few miles to the north of Palm Beach, called Jupizer
Island (see Chaprer 4 [George Bush: The Unauthorized Biography]).

British Empire loyalists flew right from che Yale Unit inte U.S. strategy-making
positions:

* F. Trubee Davison was Assistant U.S. Secretary of War for Air from 1926 to 1933,
David 5. Ingalls (on the board of Jupirer Island’s Pan American Airways) was meanwhile
Assistant Sceretary of the Navy for Aviation (1929-32). Following the American Museum
of Narural History's Hitlerite 1932 eugenics congress. Davison resigned his government
Air post 1o become the Museum’s president. Then, under the Harriman-Lovett national
security regime of the early 1950s, E Trubee Davison became Director of Personnel for
the new Cenrral Incelligence Agency.

* Robert Lovett was Assistant Secretary of War for Air from 1941-45,

* Lovett’s 1918 Bonesmate Artemus Gates (chosen by Prescott and his fellows) became
Assistant Secretary of the Navy for Airin 1941. Gates retained this post throughout the
Second World War until 1945, Having a man like Gates up there, who owed his posi-
tion 1 Averell, Bob, Prescott and their set, was quite reassuring to young naval aviator
George Bush; especially so, when Bush would have to worry about the record being cor-
rect concerning his controversial faral crash,
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* Richard M. Bissell, Jr. was a very important man ro the denizens of Jupiter lsland.

He graduared from Yale in 1932, the year after the Harrimanites bought the island.
Though nor in Skull and Bones, Bissell was the younger brother of William Truesdale
Bissell, a Bonesman from the class of 1925. Their father. Connecticut insurance executive
Richard M. Bissell, Sr., had put the U.S. insurance industry's inside knowledge of all fire-
insured industrial plants at the disposal of government planners during World War 1.

The senior Bissell, a powerful Yale alumnus, was also the director of the Neuro-Psy-
chiatric Institute of the Hartford Retrear for the Insane; there, in 1904, Yale graduare
Clifford Beers underwent mind-destroying treatment which led this mental patient to
found the Mental Hygiene Society, a major Yale-based Skull and Bones project. This
would evolve into the CIA's cultural engineering effort of the 1950s, the drugs and
brainwashing adventure known as “MK-Ulrra.”

Richard M, Bissell, Ir. studied ar the London School of Economics in 1932 and 1933,
and taught ac Yale from 1935 1o 194 1. He then joined Hatriman's entourage in the U.S,
government. Bissell was an economist for the Combined Shipping Adjustment Board in
1942-43, while Averell Harriman was the U.S. leader of that board in London,

In 1947 and 1948, Bissell was executive secretary of the "Harriman Commission,”
atherwise known as the President’s Commission on Foreign Aid. When Harriman was
the administrator of the Marshall Plan, Bissell was assistant administrator.

Harriman was director of Mutual Security (1951-53), while Bissell was consulrant ro
the director of Murual Security 1952.

Bissell then joined E Trubee Davison at the Central Intelligence Agency. When Allen
Dulles became CIA Director, Bissell was one of his three aides.

Why could this be of interest to our Floridians? We saw in Chaprer 4 [George Bush
— The Unauthorized Biogtaphyl, that the great anti-Castro covert initlative of 1959-
61 was supervised by an awesome array of Harriman agents. We need now add to that
assessment only the fact that the detailed management of the invasion of Cuba, and of
the assassination planning, and the training of the squads for these jobs, was given into
the hands of Richard M. Bissell, Jr.

This 1961 invasion failed. Fidel Castra survived the widely-discussed assassinarion
plots against him. Bur the initiative succeeded in what was probably its core purpose: ro
organize a force of multi-use professional assassins,

The Florida-trained killers stayed in business under the leadership of Ted Shackley.
They were all around the assassination of President Kennedy in 1963. They kepr going
with the Operation Phoenix mass murder of Viernamese civilians, with Middle East drug
and rerrorist programs, and with George Bush’s Contra wars in Central America.

* Harvey Hollister Bundy (S&B 1909) was Henry L. Sumson’s Assistant Secretary
of State (1931-33): then he was Stimson’s Special Assistant Secretary of War, alongside
Assistant Secrerary Robert Lovert of Skull and Bones and Brown Brothers Harriman.

Harvey's son William P Bundy (S&B 1939) was a CIA officer from 1951 to 1961;
as 4 1900s defense official, he pushed the Harriman-Dulles scheme for a Vietnam war,
Harvey's other son. McGeorge Bundy (S&B 1940), co-authared Stimson’s memoirs in
1948, As President John Kennedy's Director of National Security, McGeorge Bundy
organized the whitewash of the Kennedy assassination, and immediately switched the
U.S. policy away from the Kennedy pullout and back toward war in Vietnan,

¢ There was also Henry Luce, a Bonesman of 1920 with David S, Ingalls and Harry
Pomeroy. Luce published Time magazine, where his ironically-named “American Century”
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blustering was straight Briosh Empire doctrine; Bury the republics, hail the Anglo-Saxon
COnquerors.

*» William Sloane Coffin, tapped for 1949 Skull and Bones by George Bush and his
Bone companions, was from a long line of Skull and Bones Coffins. William Sloane Cof-
fin was famous in the Vietnam War protest days as a leader of the left protest against the
war. Was the fact that he was an agent of the Central Intelligence Agency embarrassing
to William Sloane?

This was no contradiction. His uncle, the Reverend Henry Sloane Coffin (S&B 1897),
had also been a "peace” agitator, and an oligarchical agent. Uncle Henry was for 20 years
president of the Union Theological Seminary, whose board chairman was Prescort Bush's
partner Thatcher Brown. In 1937, Henry Coffin and John Foster Dulles led the U.S.
delegation to England to found the World Council of Churches, as a “peace movement”
guided by the pro-Hitler faction in England.

The Coffins have been mainstays of the liberal death lobby, for euthanasia and eugen-
ics, The Coffins outlasted Hitler, arriving into the CIA in the 1950s.

» Amory Howe Bradford (S&B 1934) married Carol Warburg Rothschild in 1941.
Carols mother, Carola, was the acknowledged head of the Warburg family in America
after World War 11. This family had assisted the Harrimans' rise into the world in the
nineteenth and early twentieth centuries; in concert with the Sulzbergers at the New York
Times, they had used their American Jewish Committee and B'nai B'rith to protect the
Harriman-Bush deals with Hitler. This made ir nice for Averell Harriman, just like fam-
ily, when Amory Howe Bradford worked on the Planning Group of Harriman's NATO
secretariar in London, 1951-52, Bradford was meanwhile assistant to the publisher of
the New York Times, and went on t become general manager of the Times.

Orher modern Bonesmen have been closely tied to George Bush's career.

* George Herbert Walker, Jr. (S&RB 1927) was the President’s uncle and financial angel.
In the 19705 he sold G.H. Walker & Co, o White, Weld & Co. and became a director
of White, Weld; company heir William Weld, the current Massachuserts governor, is an
active Bush Republican.

» Publisher William F. Buckley (S&B 1950) had 4 family oil business in Mexico. There
Buckley was a close ally to CIA covert operations manager E. Howard Hunt, whose lethal
antics were performed under the eyes of Miami Station and Jupiter Island.

* David Lyle Boren (S&B 1963) was assistant to the director of the Office of Civil and
Defense Mobilization, and a propaganda analyst for the U.S. Information Agency, before
graduating from Yale: Thus while he was imbibing the British view at Oxford University
(1963-65), Boren was already an Anglo-American intelligence operative, listed in the
“speakers burcau” of the American embassy in London. David Boren was elected to the
U.S. Senate in 1979 and became chairman of the Senate Intelligence Committee.

Though a Democrat (who spoke knowingly of the “parallel government” operating
in [ran-Contra), Boren’s Intelligence Committee rulings have been (not unexpectedly)
mare and more favorable to his “Patriarch” in the Whire House,

BUsH'S OWN BONES

MONG THE TRADITIONAL ARTIFACTS collected and maintained within the High
Street Tomb are human remains of various derivations. The following concerns one
such set of Skull and Bones.
Geronimo, an Apache faction leader and warrior, led a party of warriors on a raid in
1876, after Apaches were moved to the San Carlos Reservation in Arizona territory. He

320



SKULL AND BONES: THE RAGIST NIGHTMARE AT YALE

led other raids against U.S. and Mexican forces well into the 1880s: he was captured
and escaped many times.

Geronimo was finally interned ar Forr Sill, Oklahoma. He became a farmer and joined
a Christian congregation. He died at the age of 79 years in 1909, and was buried at Fort
Sill. Three-quarters of a century later, his tribesmen raised the question of getting their
famous warrior reinrerred back in Arizona.

Ned Anderson was Tribal Chairman of the San Carlos Apache Tribe from 1978 1o
1986. This is the story he rells":

Around the fall of 1983, the leader of an Apache group in another section of Arizona
said he was interested in having the remains of Geronimo returned to his tribe’s custody.
laking up thiy 1dea. Anderson said that the remains properly belonged 1o his group as
much as to the other Apaches. After much discussion, several Apache groups met at a
kind of summit meeting held at Fore Sill, Oklihoma. The army authorities were not
favorable to the mecting, and it only occurred through the intervention of the ofhee of
the Gavernor of Oklahora.

As a result of this meeting, Ned Anderson was written up in the newspapers as an
articulare Apache activist. Soon afterwards, in late 1983 or early 1984, a Skull and Bones
member contacted Anderson and leaked evidence that Geronimo's remains had long ago
been pilfered — by Prescott Bush, George’s father. The informant said thatin May of 1918,
Prescott Bush and five other officers at Fort Sill desecrated the grave of Geronimo. They
took turns watching while they robbed the grave, taking items including a skull, some
other bones, a horse bit and straps. These prizes were taken back to the Tomb, the home
of the Skull and Bones Society at Yale in New Haven, Connecticut. They were put into a
display case, which members and visitors could easily view upon entry to the building.

The informant provided Anderson with photographs of the stolen remains, and a copy
of a Skull and Bones log hook in which the 1918 grave robbery had been recorded. The
informant said that Skull and Bones members used the pilfered remains in performing,
same of their Thursday and Sunday night ritwals, with Geronimo's skull sitting out on
atable in front of them,

Qurraged, Anderson rraveled to New Haven. He did some investigation on the Yale
camipus and held numerous discussions, to learn what the Apaches would be up againse
when they took action, and what type of action would be most fruitful,

Through an artorney, Ned Anderson asked the FBI to move into the case. The attorney
conveyed to him the Bureau's response: If he would turny over every scrap of evidence
to the FBL, and complerely remaove himsell from the case, they would get involved. He
rejected this bargain, sinee it did not seem likely o lead toward recovery of Geronimo's
Femains.

Due o his persistence, he was able to arrange a September 1986 Manhattan meeting
with Jonathan Bush. George Bush’s brother. Jonathan Bush vaguely assured Anderson
thar he would ger whar he had come after; and set a followup meeting for the next day.
But Bush stalled — Anderson believes this was to gain time to hide and secure the stolen
remiins against any possible rescue acrion.

The Skull and Bones attorney representing the Bush family and managing the case
was Endicott Peabody Davison. His father was the F, Trubee Davison mentioned above,
whao had been president of New York's American Museum of Natural History, and per-
sonnel director for the Cencral Intelligence Agency. The general actitude of chis Museum
crowd has long been thar “Nauves” should be stuffed and mounted for display to the
Fashionable Ser.

321



Finally, after abour 11 days, another meeting occurred. A display case was produced,
which did in fact match the one in the phorograph the informant had given to Ned
Anderson. Bur the skull he was shown was that of a ten-year-old child, and Anderson
refused to receive it or to sign a legal document promising to shut up about the marter.

Anderson took his complaint te Arizona Congressmen Morns Udahl and John Me-
Cain 1, but with no results. George Bush refused Congressman McCain's request thar
he meet with Anderson.

Anderson wrote o Udahl, enclosing a photograph of the wall case and skull ar the
"Tomb," showing a black and white photograph of the living Geronimo, which members
of the Order had boastiully posted next to their display of his skull. Anderson quoted
from a Skull and Bones Society internal history, entitled Continnation of the History of
Our Order for the Century Celetratian, 17 [une 1933, by The Listle Dewvtl of D'121.

From the war days [WW. || also sprang the mad expediton from the School of Fire at
Fort Sill, Oklihoma, that brought to the Tlomb]| ws most spectacular “crook,” the skull of
Geronimo the ternble, the Indian Chief who had raken forty-nine white scalps, An expedition
i late May, 1918, by members of four Clubs |1e. four graduating-class years of the Saciety|, Xit
D114, Barebones, Caliban and Dingbar, D.115, $'Mike D.116, and Hellbender D.117, plannied
with great caution since i the words of one of them: “Six army caprains robbing a grave
wouldn’t look good in the papers.” The stirnng climax was recorded by Hellbender in the
Black Book of D.117: “... The ring of pick on stone and thud of earth on earth alone disturbs
the peace of the praine. An axe pried open the on door of the tomb, and Patnarch] Bush
entered and started to dig. We dug 1n turn, each on reliel 1aking a trn on the road as guards
... Fnally Pat|rarch] Ellery James wirned up a brdle; soon a saddle howm and rotten leathers
followed, then wood and then, at the exact bortom of the small round hole, Patjrrarch] James
dug deep and pried out the trophy itsell ... We quickly closed the grave, shut the door and
sped homie to Pat|narch| Mallon's room, where we cleaned the Bones, Pat|riarch] Mallon sat
on the floor liberally applving carbolic acid. The Skull was fairly clean, having only some tlesh
nside and a linde hair. T showered and ht the hay ... a happy man .. ™

The other grave rabber whose name is given, Ellery James, we encountered in Chaprer |
| Gearge Bush - The Unanthorized B:'ogmp}{y] — he was 1o be an usher at Prescote’s wedding
three years larer. And the fellow who applied acid to the stolen skull, burning off the Hesh
and hair, was Neil Mallon. Years later, Preseort Bush and his partners chose Mallon as
chairman of Dresser Industries; Mallon hired Prescott’s son, George Bush, for George's
first job; and George Bush named his son, Neil Mallon Bush, after the Hesh-picker.

In 1988, the Washington Post ran an article, originating from the Establishment-line
Arizona Republic, entitled “Skull for Scandal: Did Bush’s Father Rob Geronimo's Grave?”
The article included a small quote from the 1933 Skull and Bones History of Our Order:
“An axe pried open the iron door of the tomb, and ... Bush entered and started o dig

.. and so torth, but neglected to include orher names beside Bush.

According to the Washington Post, the document which Bush arrarney Endicorr
Davison tried to ger the Apache leader to sign, stipulated that Ned Anderson agreed
it would be “inappropriate for you, me [Jonathan Bush] or anyone in association with
us to make or permit any publication in connection with this transacrion.” Anderson
called the document " *very insulting to Indians.” Davison claimed later that the Order's
own history book is a hoax, but during the negotadons with Andersan, Bush’s atrorney
demanded Anderson give up his copy of the book."™
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Bush crony Ficzhugh Green gives the view of the President’s backers on this affair, and
conveys the arrogant racial attitude typical of Skull and Bones:

Prescott Bush had a colorful side. In 1988 the press revealed the complaint of an Apache
leader about Bush. This was Ned Anderson of San Carlos, Oklahoma [sic], who charged that
as a young army officer Bush stole the skull of Indian Chief [sic] Geronimo and had it hung
on the wall of Yale’s Skull and Bones Club. After exposure of ‘true facts’ by Anderson, and
consideration by some representatives in Congress, the issue faded from public sight. Whether
or not this alleged skullduggery actually occurred, the mere dea casts the sentor Bush
in an adventurous light™ [emphasis added).

George Bush's crowning as 2 Bonesman was intensely, personally important to him,
These men were tapped for the Class of 1948:

Thomas William Ludlow Ashley
Lucius Horatio Biglow, Jr.
George Herbert Walker Bush
John Erwin Caulkins
William Judkins Clark
William James Connelly, Jr.
George Cook 11

David Charles Grimes
Richard Elwood Jenkins
Richard Gerstle Mack
Thomas Wilder Moseley
George Harold Pfau, Jr.
Samuel Sloane Walker, Jr.
Howard Sayre Weaver
Valleau Wilkie, Jr.

Survivors of this 1948 Bones group were interviewed for a 1988 Washington Post cam-
paign profile of George Bush. The members described their continuing intimacy with and
financial support for Bush up through his 1980s vice-presidency. Their onginal sexual
togetherness at Yale is stressed:

The relationships that were formed in the “Tomb™ ... where the Sociery’s meetings
ook place each Thursday and Sunday night during the academic vear, have had a srrong
place in Bushs life, according to all 11 of his fellow Bonesmen who are still alive.

Several described in detail the ritual in the organization that builds the bonds. Before
giving his life history, each member had ro spend a Sunday night reviewing his sex life
in a ralk known in the Tomb as CB, or “connubial bliss™...

“The Rrst time you review your sex life ... We went all the way around ameng the
15," said Lucius H. Biglow Jr., a retired Seattle attorney. “That way you get everybody
committed to a certain extent ... It was a gradual way of building confidence.”

The sexual histories helped break down the normal defenses of the members, according to
several of the members from his class, William . Connelly, Jr. ... said, “In Skull and Bones we
all stand together, 15 brothers under the skin, [t is] the greatest allegiance in the world."

Here is our future ULS, President with the other wealthy, amoral young men, excited
about their furure unlimired power over the ignorant common people, sharing their
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sex secrets in a mausoleum surrounded by human remains. The excited young men are
entirely directed by the “Patriarchs,” the cynical alumni financiers who are the legal
owners of the Order,

THE YALE TORIES WHO MADE SKULL AND BONES -
Tms CHART DEPICTS FAMILY RELATIONSHIPS which were vital to the persons ap-
pearing on the chart. At less exalted levels of society, one is suppased ta be praised

or blamed only according to one's own actions. But in these Yale circles, “family’ — ge-
nealogy — 1s an overwhelming consideration when evaluating individuals. Thus what
we present here is more than simply a system of associations, It is a tradition which has
operated powerfully on the emotions and judgment of the leaders ot Yale University;
they have merged their own identities into this tradition.
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le:!l[l‘l(fﬁ [ht‘ n'l'ﬂrri.]g(' Ul‘ fhf PL’['SI)"S on (.'i[h(_'! S!(i(_"

RuUSSELL FAMILY CHART

Reverend Nodiah Russell Reverend James Pierpoint
m )
1 e |
i i i
i “r - ]
' . |
i ul? 1
' e 1
1] - 1
William * - Mary .-*~ Sarah - - Jonathan
Russell | Pierpoint Pierpoint Edwards
(&} -,
o A @
P Pl !
' v ¥ ! A
| \ i ' \
r \ 7" ] L]
(] L) =T ] ]
[ ' - ] \
' \‘ o* e '! \\
Reverend Nodiah ~ Samuel Pierpoint Aaron  Esther Mary  Major
Russell Russell Edwards Burr, Sr, - -Edwards  Edwards - - Timothy
(5) : {6) o i Dwyzht
{ : ' | E
i f | | -
1 | ) i |
Matthew Captain ; | e
| Talcont John : \ ':' T
Russell Russell : Aaron Theodore  Timothy
(8) (%) : Burr, Jr Dwight Dwight
[ ! Henry W, (11) (12) (13)
William Samuel Edwards
Hun[_i_ng{oﬂ Russell { “}]
Russell (15)
(14)




SKULL AND BONES: THE RACIST NIGHTMARE AT YaLL

GUIDE To THE YALE FAMILY CHART

1) Rev. Nodiah Russell: One of 10 or 12 men who founded Yale University in 1701. Yale
Trustee 1701-13. Pastor, First Congregational Church, Middletown, CT, ca. 1691-1716.

2) Rev. James Pierpont: Most celebrared of the Yale founders. Yale Trustee, 1701-14.

3) William Russell: Yale Trustee 1745-61. Pastor, First Congregational Church, Middle-
town, CT, 1716-61.

4) Jonathan Edwards: Graduared Yale 1720. Ultra-Calvinist theologian, president of

Princeton University (called then “College of New Jersey™).

Rev. Nodiah Russell: Graduarted Yale 1750

Pierpont Edwards (1750-1826); Made Master of Connecticut Masons by the British

Army occupying New York in 1783; he administered the estate of the traitor Benedict

Arnold.

7) Aaron Burr, Sr.: Graduated Yale 1735, President of Princeron University (*College of
New Jersey™).

8) Marthew Talcott Russell: Graduated Yale 1769. Deacon of First Congregational
Church, Middletown, CT for 30 years. Lawyer for the Middletown Russell family,
Died ca. 1817.

9) Caprain John Russell. Died 1801 or 1802.

10) Henry W. Edwards: Governor of Connecticut 1833, 1835-38. Protecror of Samuel
Russell's opium-financed enterprises, patron of William Huntingron Russell’s new
sectet society, Skull and Bones,

11) Aaron Burr, Jr.: ULS. Vice President 1801-08. Killed Alexander Hamilton in a duel in
1804. Secession conspirator. Acquirred of treason in 1807, but wanted for murder, he
fled to England. Returned ro U.S.A. in 1812, Wall Street lawyer, 1812-36. Hero of
imperial Anglo-Americans.

12) Theodore Dwight (1764-1846): Law partner of his cousin Aaron Burr, |r. Secretary of
the secessionist Hartford Convention, 1815. He united the Connecticur pro-Brinsh
party with Massachusetts “Essex Junto.”

13) Timothy Dwight: Secessionist. President of Yale, 1795-1817.

14) William Hundngron Russell (1809-85): Graduated Yale 1833. Founder of Skull and
Bones Socicry (or Russell Trust Association), which came to dominate Yale. Founded
prep school for boys, 1836. His sceret organization spread in the 1870s to Phillips
Academy, the Andover, Massachusetts prep school,

1'5) Samuel Russell: Born in 1789 in the main ancestral house of the Russell family of
Middletown. This house had been owned by the co-founder of Yale, Nodiah Russell
(1), and by William Russell (3) and his wife Mary, sister-in-law to Jonathan Edwards,

He became head of the Middletown Russells. He established Russell and Co. in
1823, which by the 18305 superseded Perkins syndicate as largest American
opium smuggling organization. His partners included leading Boston families.

He founded the Russell Manufacturing Company, Middletown, in 1837; he was president
of Middlesex County Bank. During the formative years of Skull and Bones, the tabu-
lously wealthy Samuel Russell was undisputed king of Middletown.

NOTE TO READER:

For the sake of clarity, we have omitred from this chart the ancestral line from
Rev. James Pierpont (2) to his great grandson Rev. John Pierpont. Rev. John
Pierpont wrote poctry for the pro-British secessionists; he denounced President
Thomas Jefferson for saying that Pierpont’s New England relatives were “under
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the influence of the whore of England.” Rev. John was an employee of Aaron
Burr’s family during Burr’s western conspiracy. Rev. John's daughter Julier married
Connecticut-born British banker Junius Morgan and gave birth to U.S. financial
kingpin John Pierpont Morgan, named for his grandfather Rev. John.
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af Lincoln (New York: Viking Press, 1979), p. 35,
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41,
3. Nicholas King, George Bush: A Bragraphy (New York: Dodd, Mead & Company, 1980), p.
348,
4. Green, op. ¢it., p. 47,
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FLESHING OUT SKULL & BONES — [NVESTIGATIONS INTO AMERICA'S MOST POWERFUL SECRET SOCIETY

FEDERAL REGISTER, Safurday, November 7, 1942

[Vesting Order Number 248]

ALL OF THE CAPITAL STOCKE OF UNION BANK-
ING CORPORATION AND CERTAIN INDEBTED-
NESS OWING BY IT

Under the authority of the Trading
with the enemy Act, as amended, and
Executive Order No. 9095, as amended,’
and pursuant to law, the undersigned,
after investigation, finding:

_{a) That the property described as
follows;

All of the capltal stock of Union Banking
Corporation, a New York corporation, New
York, New York, which ls a business enter-
Prise within the United States, consisting of
4,000 shares of §100 par value common capital
stock, the names of the registered owners
of which, and the number of shares owned
by them respectively, are as follows:

Nuniber of
Names shares

E. Roland Harrlman._._______________ 3,901
Cornelius Lievense__.._._.___._____._._ 4
Harold D. Pennington. ... .__...... 1
Ray Morrls.______ . 1
1

1

1

.....................
_________________

*7 F.R. 5208,

all of which shares are held for the benefit
of Bank voor Handel en Scheepvaart, N. V,,
Rotterdam, The Netherlands, which bank !s
owned or controlled by members of the Thys-
sen family, nationals of Germany and/or
Hungary,

is property of nationals, and represents
ownership of sald business enterprise
which is a national, of a designated en-
emy country or countries (Germany
and/or Hungary):

(b} That the property described as
follows:

All right, title, interest and claim of any
name or nature whatsoever of the aforesaid
Bank voor Handel en Scheepvaart, and Au-
gust Thyssen-Bank, Berlin, Germany, and
each of them, in and to all indebtedness, con-
tingent or otherwise and whether or not
matured, owing to them, or each of them, by
sald Unlon Banking Corporation, including
but not ltmited to all security rights In and
to any and all collateral for any or all of
such indebtedness and the right to sue for
and collect such indebtedness.

is an interest in the aforesaid business
enterprise held by nationals of an enemy
country or countries, and also is prop-
erty within the United States owned or

controlled by nationals of a designated
enemy country or countries (Germany
and/or Hungary);

and determining that to the extent that
any or all of such nationals are persons
not within a designated enemy country,
the national interest of the United States
requires that such persons be trepted as
nationals of the aforesaid designated
enemy country or couniries (Germany
and/or Hungary), and having made all
determinations and taken .all sction,
after appropriate consultation and cer-
tification, required by said executive
order or Act or otherwise, and deeming
it necessary in the national interest,
hereby vests such property in the Alien
Property Custodian, to be held, used, ad-
ministered, liquidated, sold or otherwise
dealt with in the interest of and for the
benefit of the United States.

Such property and any or all of the
proceeds thereof shall be held in a spe-
cial account pending further determina-
tion of the Alien Property Custodian.
This shall not be deemed to limit the
powers of the Alien Property Custodian
to return such property or the proceeds
thereof, or to indicate that compensation
will not be paid in lieu thereof, if and
when it should be determined that such
return should be made or such compen-
sation should be paid.

Any person, except a national of a
designated enemy country, asserting any
claim arising as a result of this order
may file with the Alien Property Custo-
dian a notice of his claim, together with
a request for a hearing thereon, on Form
APC-1, within one year from the date
hereof, or within such further time as
may be allowed by the Alien Property
Custodian. Nothing herein contained
shall be deemed to constitute an ad-
mission of the existence, validity or right
to allowance of any such claim.

The terms “national”, “designated en-
emy country” and “business enterprise
within the United States” as used herein
shall have the meanings prescribed in
section 10 of said executive order.

Executed at Washington, D, C., on Oc~
tober 20, 1942,

[sEaL] Leo T. CROWLEY,

Alien Property Custodian,

[F. R. Doc. 42-11568; Filed, November 6, 1942;
© 11:81 a. m.] :



THE ORDER OF
SKULL & BONES
AND ILLEGAL FINANCE:

A STUDY OF THE ANALYTICAL FRAMEWORK OF
CONSPIRACY THEORY

JEDEDIAH MCCLURE
2001

conspiracy theorists in relation to the Order of Skull and Bones in

an attempt to illuminate the clash between scholars of conspiracy
theory and social science. This work specifically examines in detail the
illegal financing activities of members of the Order of Skull and Bones
to designated enemy regimes during two specific periods of war in the
first half of the twentieth century.

Tms WORK PRESENTS AND EXAMINES the analytical framework of

1 — INTRODUCTION . - —

TH[-: ACADEMIC QUARREL with the rraditional mode of conspiracy theory
is, in short, that conspiracy theory takes for granted certain conditions of
generality and fixity which are not always, or always completely, satished; that rigid
adherence to long- range assumptions narrowly limits the range of what can be
propetly defined; and entails thar conspiracy theory, being unique, indeterminare,
and subject to change, is indefinable. Conspiracy theory maintains a lack of
simplicity in its theoretical explanation of historical events often incorporaring
complex explanations when other, more simplistic explanatory models may exist.
Furthermore, conspiracy theory is an unfalsifiable explanation of events.

As a result, conspiracy theory has come to represent a political other to
‘proper’ democratic politics through the use of potentally illegitimarte as-
sumptions that scem to question that the Unites States is a benign, pluralistic
democracy, and rthat seem to reject the popular notion that history moves
through the riumph of progress and leadership, as well as through the vagaries
of coincidence and mistake.
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In regards to conspiratorial assumptions of illegal hinancing and the Order of
Skull and Bones, specialists in the field of political science, who are confronted
by ragged evidence, are likely to insist thar a similar lack of uniformity and/or
causation characterized financial decisions in the first half of the century, and
that no conspiratorial collusion existed. To generalize about legality and morives
of early international financing is undoubtedly hazardous, and one should be on
guard against projecting bias and contemporary theories too far back intw the
past. Yet one must also be on guard against ignoring important evidence and its
implications on society at that period of rime.

The actual number of firms involved and level of inrernational financing to
both Germany and the Soviet Union during this time period is inevitably open to
dispute. Even apart from the problem of trying to estimate the number of firms
and amount of finance that wenr uncataloged by Senare investigations, contem-
porary evidence must be handled with caution, for it often yields false clues o
the number of firms involved and the motives of the financiers. Furthermore,
drawing correlations between firms that were involved in illegal financing requires
listing managers, presidents, vice-presidents and directors who might have been
involved in the decision making process. Such information is difficule to come
by, and almost impossible to determine who was directly making individual deci-
sions. As a resulr, certain assumptions have to be made and adhered o without the
benefic of supporting evidence. This is one of many reasons that social scientists
discredit conspiracy theory and the issues of illegal finance during times of war
are largely ignored.

Nevertheless, although it has to be considered in conjuncrion with many other
issues, the correlations berween The Order of Skull and Bones and illegal finance
certainly does deserve a closer study. One must be careful nor ro skew these histori-
cal events with speculation and assumption. But it is equally important not to go
1o far in the other direction and underestimate and/or ignore these correlations.
In order to avoid this problem, a falsifiable test will be created in order to minimize
problems associated with traditional conspiracy theory and to provide a framework
through which the conspiracy theory evidence can be reexamined,

This work will begin with a historical lock into the background of conspiracy
theory and its prevalence in American culture. Section 2 will autline the frame-
work of conspiracy theory in an attempt to illustrate the analytical approach
used by conspiracy theorists in interpreting contemporary events. An abbreviared
history of the Order of Skull and Bones and how this organization is interprered
through the framework of conspiracy theory will also be presented in this sec-
von. Section 3 will outline the benefits and problems of a conspiracy theory
approach to history, focusing on terminology, the formulation of arguments
and the assumptions necessary tor a conspiracy theory. Section 4 will develop
a cross-sectional, falsifiable test in order 10 determine if a relationship berween
membership in the Order of Skull and Bones and participation in illegal financ-
ing exists. The results of the cross-sectional test will be applied to a larger set of
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evidence used by conspiracy theorists in order to minimize the degree of bias
associated with conspiratorial interpretations in section 5. This work will then
conclude with an examination of the results of the cross-sectional test in light of
the conspiracy theorists’ evidence.

2 — A HISTORY OF CONSPIRACY THEORY

TH THE RECENT ELECTION OF PRESIDENT, and Skull and Bones member,

George W. Bush, as well as increased political support for presidential
hopetul Senator John Kerry, also a Skull and Bones member, the subject of the
Order of Skull and Bones has become very popular with certain media outlets,
as well as very marketable. Hollywood recently produced a movie based loosely
on the Order of Skull and Bones, an investigative documentary was produced for
television and three books covering the subject of Skull and Bones are scheduled
to be released berween 2002 and 2003.

Such a rapid growth in the recent attention directed at Skull and Bones begs
the question of why; why has this organization received so much attention ol
late, and why is much of the attention focused on allegations of conspiracy? Skull
and Bones has been in existence since 18321 however, until the election of our
tormer President and Skull and Bones member George H. W. Bush, only about
half' a dozen articles were written about this organization. So why are we secing
such recent explosive popularity and interest regarding this subject?

I propose two possibilities that tend to feed into each other compounding
the underlying focus of recent attention. The first is the secrecy of this organiza-
tion. Skull and Bones, whose actual name is “The Order 3227 or “The Order of
Skull and Bones,” is the most prestigious and influential of nine secret, senior
societies at Yale Universiry. Their meetings are held secretly, their initations are
held secretly, and until recently their membership was kept secrer. The secrecy
of this society is so prevailing that a member of The Order is allegedly required
to leave the room when the subject of The Order is being discussed, As a result
of this adamant secrecy. outsiders are left no oprion but to speculate about the
purpose and intent of Skull and Bones.

Second, the secrer society of Skull and Bones is very small. Membership is
limited to the initation of only 15 seniors each year. This fact was known ar Yale
since The Order’s founding; however, it was kept from public attention until 1984
when an anonymous member of Skull and Bones provided an author with inside
information, thus allowing the author to obrain the previously secret membership
list. This membership list provided the groundwork from which all speculation
about the organization’s goals and intentions derive. The small size of Skull and
Bones is not at all indicative of the power and influence that they have had on
American society in the past 150 years.

As one investigative reporter so aptly claimed, © For two cenruries, the
initiation rite of Skull and Bones has shaped the character of the men who
have shaped the American character,”' including three Presidents. This secret
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society is dominated by old-line wealth and power. In Skull and Bones we find
family names such as Bush, Russell, Taft, Whirney, Lord, Phelps, Wadsworth,
Allen, Bundy and Adams, Other Skull and Bones families that atrained influ-
ence during the nineteenth century include Harriman, Rockefeller, Payne and
Davison. A brief list of some of the members of Skull and Bones during the
past century better illustrates the level of wealth, power and influence this small

group wields,

George W. Bush (*68): President

George H.W. Bush ('48): CIA, Vice Pres. (1980-88), Pres. (88-92), Zapata Oil
Prescott Bush (*17): Union Banking Corporation, Brown Brothers, Harriman
William H. Taft (1878): President, Chief justice of Supreme Court
Alphonso Taft (1833): Secretary of war, Attorney General

Henry Stimson (1888): served 7 Presidents

Robert Lovett ("18): Advisor Kennedy administration

Harvey Bundy ('09): Advisor at war Department

McGeorge Bundy ("40): National Secunity Advisor, Kennedy

William Bundy ('39): Senior post CIA

Potter Stewart (37): Supreme Court Justice

Winston Lord ('39): CIA, President of the Council on Foreign Relations.
Harold Stanley ('08): Founder of Morgan Stanley

Henry Davison ('20): Founder of Guaranty Trust

Averell Harriman ('13); Brown Brothers Harriman, Presidential adwvisor to 6 Pres,,
Thomas Daniels ('14): Founder of Archer-Daniels-Midland

Russell Wheeler Davenport ('23): Creator of Fortune 500 list

Alfred Cowles ('13): Founder of Cowles communications

Henry Luce (°20): Founder of Time-Life

Artemus Gates ('18): President of NY Trust Company, Union Pacific, Tume, Boemg
Dean Witter, Jr. ('44)

Pierre Jay (1892): First Chairman of the New York Federal Reserve

Knight Woolley ('17): director of Federal Reserve Bank

As this short list indicates, these members were very influential leaders in American
society. Because of the existence of a membership list, researchers are able to trace
the activities of the members of Skull and Bones in an attempt 1o determine the
goal of thar secret society. However, instead of providing answers, such research
only succeeded in generating new questions, assumptions and speculations. Such
speculation resulted in numerous conspiracy theories ranging from organized
crime and drug trafficking to the direct manipulation of education and brain
washing of America; to the Nazi eugenics movement and ulimately the active
creation and manipulation of war through illegal finance.

It is the latter subject that this thesis will explore. The claim of active creation
and manipulation of war through illegal finance was chosen because there exists
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very strong and verifiable evidence documenting the illegal financing of enemy
regimes by members of Skull and Bones prior to and during times of war.

This evidence and the subsequent claims are significant because of the positions
of influence that members of Skull and Bones occupy in our government. If the
members of this secret society who hold political positions in the government are
involved in illegal activities, how will their actions affect the United States as a
whole, as well as the creation of government policies that those members are able
to influence? Second, how does public knowledge of illegal activities by political
officials affect the democratic process? The focus of this thesis then is an attempt
to answer the question: [Does a causal relationship exist between membership in
Skull and Bones and participartion in illegal finance?

But first, it would be of value to provide a brief history of the emergence and
growth of conspiracy theory in general. How and where did conspiracy theory
start? How has conspiracy theory grown, and among whom is it most prevalent?

An exploration of the emergence of conspiracy theory will then be followed by
a brief history of the “Order of Skull and Bones.”

CONSPIRACY THEORY IN THE UNITED STATES has received a great deal of popu-
lar attention in the past several decades. In the wake of the cold war, with events
such as the Vietnam War and the Watergate scandal still etched in the minds of
millions of Americans, a strong sentiment of distrust aimed at the government
arose. Groups, such as the John Birch Society, were formed for the purpose of
combating the ‘government conspiracy,” while numerous citizens harbor vary-
ing degrees of distrust toward politics and/or feelings of insignificance in the
American political system.

As Professor Mark T. Reinhardt states, “On the one hand, conspiracy theory is
often characterized as illegitimate, pathological, and a threat to political stability:
on the other hand, it seems an entertaining narrative form, a populist expression
of a democratic culture, that circulates deep skepticism about the truth of the
current political order through contemporary culture.”* Author Mark Fenster, in
his book Conspiracy Theories: Secrecy and Power in American Culture, makes a
powerful argument for regarding conspiracism (the belief in conspiracy theory) as
an integral product of the political system, reflecting inadequacies the establish-
ment itselfis blind to and expressing strong desires for the realization of frustrated
ideals. Fenster notes that conspiracy theory serves a useful purpose as a balm 1o
the politically alienated segments of sociery, and he optimistically interprets the
popular pursuit of uncovering the hidden mechanics of power as evidence of a
latent populism waiting to be harnessed.”

Nevertheless, conspiracy thinking is not confined ro the marginal and politi-
cally alienated segments of society as Fenster might imply. Rather conspiracy
thinking is becoming a popular way of viewing the world around us, Political
figures such as Joseph McCarthy and Barry Goldwater both made names for
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themselves through the claims and pursuance of conspiracy within the govern-
ment. Numerous movies and television shows incorporate the themes of govern-
ment conspiracy, abuse of power and political cover-up while New York Times
best selling authors such as Dean Koontz consistently focus attention on secret
government agencies and plots.

In 1996, the Gallup Organization and the Post-Modernity Project of the
University of Virginia conducted a survey concerning American political beliefs
entitled, The State of Disunion: 1996 Survey of American Political Cultwre. This
study involved face-to-face interviews with a national sampling of over 2,000
adults. Among the many findings reported in the survey were the following:

Three out of four Americans (77 percent) agree with the statement that “the

government is pretty much run by a few big interests looking out for them-
selves. " (Twenty-nine percent wmpt’m’t’y agree.) Similarly, 63 percent of all
Americans say that Americas governing elite is “only concerned about its own
agenda.” This same percentage agrees that “our country is run by a close net-
work of special interests, public officials, and the media. " ( Twenty-five percent
completely agree.)'

The survey also revealed, “one quarter of the population repeatedly express the
conviction that the government is run by a conspiracy, and one in ten Americans
strongly subscribes to this view.”

Conspiracy theory provides a framework, which for many, helps explain much
of what would otherwise seem illogical or implausible in our contemporary society.
Conspiracy theory does not question the foundations of our societal structure
but rather conspiracy theory provides the ability for people to maintain their
ideological convictions while scapegoating blame onto the ruling elite. Conspiracy
theory centers on the surpluses of political and economic power, understanding
them as integral to the maintenance of power, while attempting to discern who
has the surpluses of power, how they obtained those surpluses and what they are
doing with them.

POPULAR UNDERSTANDING OF CONSPIRACY THEORY

CONSPIRACY THEORIES were arguably a large influence on American think-
ing before the Revolutionary War. It was popularized just after World War
I and the Bolshevik Revolution, asserting Communism as the manifested
form of the global conspiracy, and has steadily gained influence and at-
tention since then through its insistence on the rejection of both socialism
and global governing organizations such as the United Nations. Conspiracy
theory is not limited to certain segments of society nor is it exclusive to
American culture.

The predominance of conspiracy thinking is found in numerous writings,
speeches and records including U.S. congressional records and investigations,
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and many powerful and influential people have promoted it. For example, the
California Senate Investigating Committee on Education states in their 1953
report on education thar,

So called modern Communism is apparently the same hypocritical and deadly
world conspiracy to destroy civilization that was founded by the secret order of
the llluminati in Bavaria May 1, 17761

Conspiracy thinking is not exclusive 1o American Culture. In a speech before the
British Parliament in 1920, Winston Churchill stated,

From the days of Sparticus-Weishaupt to those of Karl Marx, . .. this world-wide
conspiracy for the overthrow of civilization ... has been steadily growing. It has
been the mainspring of every subversive movement during the Nineteenth century,
and now at last this band of extraordinary personalities from the underworld of
the great cities of Europe and America has gripped the Russian peaple...”

Both of these passages refer to a worldwide conspiracy originating with the "secret
order of the [Huminat of Bavaria.” The lluminati of Bavaria, for a vast majority of
conspiracy theorists is the corner stone to understanding the worldwide conspiracy

thar allegedly exists today. Conspiracy theorist John F. McManus states,

“Let us openly assert, that there is operating in the world today, and especially
within our own nation, a conspiracy that is cither a direct descendant of the
Hluminari of 1776 or something closely patterned after ir. "8

So who or what is the [lluminari of Bavaria and why is so much artention focused
on this group?

HISTORICAL UNDERSTANDING OF CONSPIRACY THEORY

ADAM WEISHAUPT formed the “Order of the Illuminat” in Bavaria on May
1. 1776. The philosophy of Weishaupt's llluminism “propose[d] as the end of
[lluminism the abolition of property, social authority, and of nationality,” and
was based primarily on revolution and secrecy as a means to bring about social
change. Weishaupt's goal was the complete and revolutionary restructuring of
society, and to this end Weishaupt “felt the need of a powerful secret organiza-
tion to support him in the conflict with his adversaries and in the execution of
his ratonalistic schemes along ecclesiastical and political lines.”""

By 1778, only two years after its creation, Weishaupr was able to secure more
then 1000 members for the llluminati in Bavaria alone, and there were lodges in
12 other countries including France and the United States.! In 1784, a messenger
was struck by lightning while carrying letters from Weishaupr to other members
of the llluminati. The police authorities confiscated these letters, which resulted
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in the raid of the homes of several leading members of the Huminarti. Weishaupt's
Order of the Muminati was declared as subversive to the German government
and the leaders of the lluminati were banished from Germany.

Afer the French Revolution numerous books outlining alleged connections
between the French Jacobins and Weishaupt's [lluminati were produced. These
books focused on the many shared members between the [lluminat and the
Jacobins, showing that the leaders of the French Revolution were also high rank-
ing members of the [luminati, according the uminati’s records which were
confiscated by the Bavaran government.

Concern over the influence of the IHuminat during the French Revolution
spread all over the world, induding America. In a letter o Rev. G.W. Snvder
dated Ocrober 24, 1798, Former President George Washingron States,

Reverend sir: It was not my intention to doubt that the doctrine of the Hh-
minati had not spread in the United States. On the contrary, no one is more
satisfied of this fact then I am."

Many organizations that were allegedly involved with the conspiratorial Illu-
minati, because of their many shared members, became suspect. These various
groups included Eclectic Freemasonry, the German Union and the League of
the Just. The connection berween the League of the Just and the Iuminari
is of significance to conspiracy theorists because it was the League of the Juse
who “commissioned [Karl] Marx and [Frederick] Engels ro draw up a defini-
tive statement of its aims and program.”"’ According ro J. Edgar Hoover, the
League of the Just was a secret society that later became publicly known as the
Communist League.

Conspiracy theorists emphasize the alleged link between the Hluminati of
Bavaria and Communism. A comparison of the Communist Manifesto and
ol the writing of Adam Weishaupt, as confiscated by the Bavarian government
and later published by John Robison in 1798, show that the two philosophies
are essentially identical in both goals and in methodology. Other superficial
evidence presented by conspiracy theorists include the Communist Nartional
holiday celebrated on May 1, the same day that the [lluminati was officially
formed: the stated goal of Communism as expressed by tormer Communist
leaders such as Lenin, Stalin; Khrushchev and Gorbachev as being World
Communism or Novus Ordo Seclorum (New World Order), is both the
same goal and same terminology expressed by Adam Weishaupr: both the
Hluminat and Communism were regarded by numerous political hgures
throughour the world as a well organized internarional conspiracy in pursuit
of a ruinous end.

Following a three year investigation of the 1886 rot in Chicago chat resulred
in the death of 7 police officers and the injury of 63 more, Police Caprain Mi-
chacl Schaack stated,
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in Londen there are all the factors for the most dangerous mob the world can
produce. In France, the commune is stronger than ever it was and the Red terror
may appear with every turn of the whirligig of politics. In Spain and ltaly, the
Secialists are busy while in Germany and Russia a crisis is at hand. Let none
mistake either the purpose or the duration of these fanatics, nor their growing
m'mgxf; This is a methodical, not a haphazard conspiracy. The ferment in Rus-
sta Is controlled by the same heads and the same hands as the activity in Chicago.
There is a cold-blooded, calenlating purpose behind this revalt manipulating
every part of it the world over to a common and ruinous end,"

A majority of conspiracy theorists base their method of analysis of contemporary
events on the assumption that Communism is still alive and acrive and that it is
a manifestation of Weishaupt’s secret order of the [lluminari because members
of the Illuminati created the Communist League and commissioned Marx and
Engels to write the Communist Manifesto. As a result of the publication of the
Hluminati’s records detailing their subversive agenda, conspiracy theorists assume
a long-range plan of world domination by any group thar might be aligned with
the original [[luminati. This basis for analysis is critical to understanding the
conspiracy theorists’ claims against the Order of Skull and Bones, because, as will
be discussed shortly, the Order of Skull and Bones is considered to be a single
lodge of the original llluminaa.

But why would wealthy capitalists support or finance communist or fascist
regimes? There are three possible answers to this question. The first, and most
obvious, is profit. It is possible that businesses seck profits regardless of ideology.
In this case, expanding business o a larger marker that includes communist or
fascist regimes would increase revenues and profits for the firm. Second, capiralistic
industrialists might favor a degree of social control and development by the govern-
ment. Industrialists Henry Ford and Frederick Winslow Taylor, along with their
revolutionary ideas on the efficiency of the individual in the work place such as
specialization, departmentalization, mass production and employee satisfaction. also
favored a stronger welfare state o provide the necessary armosphere for maximum
production. The third possibility, as expressed by conspiracy theorist Antony Sutton,
claims chat the eventual power structure berween a communist starte, a fascist state
and a monopoly is essentially the same: control of producton and elimination
of industrial competition. Both communism and fascism control the means of
production and the degree of competition while a monopoly attempts to do the
same. Sutton maintains that these American capitalists might aid these regimes in
an attempt to gain favor with rthe regime and gain industrial dominance.

SKULL AND BONES

WiILLIAM HUNTINGTON RUSSELL AND ALPHONSO TAFT established the Order
of Skull and Bones, officially called the “Order 322,” at Yale University in 1833. [t

was later incorporated as the Russell Trust in 1856. It is one of nine secret socicties
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at Yale, and one of three senior societies that are exclusive to Yale Universiry. Fif-
teen juniors are “tapped” each year by the seniors to be initiated into next year’s
group. Each initiate is allegedly given $15,000 and a grandfather clock, although
no one has yet been able to discover the significance of the clock.

The original founder of Skull and Bones, William Russell, studied in Ger-
many from 1831-1832. While in Germany, it is believed rhat Russell joined
a secret society at the German University and was then given permission 1o
start a section of that same secret society ar Yale. According to information
acquired from a break-in to the “tomb” (the Skull and Bones temple and meet-
ing hall located on Yale’s campus) in 1876, “Bones isa section of a corps in
a German University ... General Russell, its founder, was in Germany before
his Senior Year and formed a warm friendship with a leading member of a
German society. He brought back with him to college, authority to found a
section here."!”

This same break-in team, who mockingly referred ro themselves as “the Order of
File and Claw,” claimed that within the Skull and Bones Tomb was a room num-
bered 322, an elaborately decorated ceremonial room furnished in red velvet with a
pentagram on the wall. In the parlor next to room 322 the break-in group found:

On the west wall, bung among other pictures, an old engraving representing an
open burial vault, in which, on a stone slab, rest four human skulls, grouped
about a fools cap and bells, an open book, several mathematical instruments,
a beggar’s scrip, and a royal crown. On the arched wall above the vault are
the explanatory words, in Roman letters, “We War Der Thor, Wer Weiser, Wer
Bettler Oder. Kaiser? And below the vault is engraved, in German characters,
the sentence: 'Ob Arm, Ob Beich, im Tode gleich."®

The picture is accompanied by a card on which is written. ‘From the German
section, Presented by D.C. Gilman of D. 50", D.C. Gilman refers to Daniel Coir
Gilman, initiated into the Order of Skull and Bones 1850. The two German
phrases translate into “Who was the fool, who the wise man, beggar or king?
Whether poor or rich, in death we are the same. This quote, and the inidation
rituals that each new member must experience are extremely similar to the initia-
tion ceremony of the llluminati. An expose on the initiation rites of Skull and
Bones by reporter Ron Rosenbaum, The Last Secrets of Skull and Bones, highlights
the various initiation activities along with a comparison of the same [lluminati
ceremonies as recorded by former Hluminati member John Robison, Many con-
spiracy theorists conclude that the Order of Skull and Bones is either a section
of the original llluminad or an extension thereof.

Conspiracy theorists, in light of potential llluminati affiliation, emphasize
three aspects of society in which members of Skull and Bones were profoundly
influential: namely government, education and illegal finance. It is this latter
subject that will be explored to some degree in this work.
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Given the historical framework of the Illuminati/Communist long-range goal
of world domination used by conspiracy theorists, and the possible connection
berween the Order of Skull and Bones and the Order of the Illuminati, it is easy
to understand the concerns of conspiracy theorists in regard to illegal financing
of enemy regimes by members of Skull and Bones. As conspiracy theorist Antony
Sutron states,

Revolution is always recorded as a spontaneons event by the politically or
economically deprived against an autocratic state. Never in Western textbooks
will you find the evidence that revolutions need finance and the source of the
[finance in many cases traces back to Wall Street."”

More importantly, concludes Sutton, is that members of Skull and Bones provide
a large part of Wall Street’s financing to revolutionary movements.

3 — AN EVALUATION OF THE ANALYTICAL FRAMEWORK
OF CONSPIRACY THEORY

ONSPIRACY THEORY MAINTAINS that, in a given state, power “is exercised

from behind the scenes by a small secretive group of private citizens who
want to change the government system or put the country under the control
of a world government.”' These conspiratorial groups are always made up of a
group of powerful and/or influential businessmen or politicians who are intent
on running the world. In essence, these small, secretive groups form a shadow
government that is not elected but controls political decision-making not only
for their own benefit bur also at the detriment of the rest of sociery.

“In the past, the conspirators were usually said to be secret Communist sym-
pathizers who were intent on bringing the United States under a common world
government in conjunction with the Soviet Union, but the collapse of the Soviet
Union in 1991 changed the focus to the United Nations as the likely controlling
force in the ‘New World Order.”? However, with deterioration of Soviet econo-
mics, the maintenance of Communist party leaders in positions of power and
publicly popular soviet appeals for a return to Communism, many conspiracy
theorists are reverting back to claims of the "Communist Threat.”

Smaller groups of conspiratorial thinkers, on the other hand, focus on a secret
group of individuals whom, it is claimed, are located in the government itself.
This secrerive group is held responsible for the creation of government organiza-
tions such as the CIA, think tanks like the Council on Foreign Relations and the
Trilateral Commission as well as the creation of war through both illegal finance
in the corporate world and government policy-making in the political realm.
One secret organization that receives a great deal of attention by conspiracists is
the Order of Skull and Bones.

The allegations made against Skull and Bones by Antony Sutton and other
conspiracy thearists undoubredly fall into the realm of power politics. It would
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be highly enlightening to examine the claims made against Skull and Bones using
other methods of analysis; however, because other methods of analysis have not yet
been used to examine Skull and Bones activities, and because all Skull and Bones
activities are generally presented through use of the conspiracy theory framework,
we will focus our attention on a critical analysis of conspiracy theory.”

TENETS OF CONSPIRACY THEORY I -

THERE ARE BOTH POSITIVE AND NEGATIVE aspects to using a conspiracy theory
framework. As with many theorics on power politics, the focus is on a specific
framework, with a tendency to disregard or downplay the importance of other
factors. An understanding of the strengths and weaknesses of conspiracy theory
will aid in the overall assessment of the conspiracy theory’s evaluation of the
claims against Skull and Bones.

The advantages of conspiracy theory are threcfold: 1) conspiracy theory aids in
the discovery of important facts and assessing personal guilt; 2) it allows sociery
to admit horrors and express indignation without rejecting the basic norms of
society: 3) it acts as a scapegoat for societal frustrations. These three advantages
occur simultaneously within conspiracy theory and are inseparable. A conspiracy
theory could not occur without assessing personal guilt for a societal atrocity. The
blame for that atrocity is then placed solely on the individual and, by extension,
any network or group he may be affiliated with, thereby disregarding any funda-
mental Aaws in the fabric of sociery that may contribute to the problem.

Conspiracy theories can act as a forum through which members of society are
able to admit horrors and express indignation about the outcomes and problems of
society. However the discoveries of conspiracy theory are often dismissed because
they are presented in a conspiracy theory framework that does nor acknowledge
errors in the basic norms of society, but rather shifts blame to clandestine net-
works working behind the scenes. The result of illegal financing then is not the
result of a capitalist system which allows for profit maximization at the expense of
others, but rather illegal financing occurs because a select, secretive group chose
for it to happen in order to advance their global agenda. In this way, the blame
is shifted from the political structure of society to a small group who are then
held responsible for all the ills of society.

A conspiracy theory is a version of historical events that redirects an audience’s
anger toward a scapegoat group. The theory seeks to lay blame for a legitimare is-
sue on a perceived common enemy. As with any socictal issue, there are legitimate
concerns that need to be addressed. Conspiracy theories, however, fail to address
legitimate concerns because realistic solutions are lost in the process of laying blame
for the common problem on a select group. By only laying blame for the problem,
the issue becomes, in effect, a renewable source of fuel for the audience.

Author Mark Fenster makes a powerful argument for regarding conspiracism
as an integral product of the political system, reflecting the inadequacies of the
establishment and expressing strong desires for the realization of frustrated ideals.
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Fenster notes that conspiracy theory should be perceived “as an active, indeed
endless, process that continually seeks, but never fully arrives at, a final interpre-
tation. [v displaces the cirizen's desire for political significance onto a signifying
regime in which interpretation replaces political engagement.” Mark T, Reinhardt
interprets Fenster's claims when stating, “conspiracy theory serves a useful purpose
as a balm 1o the politically alienated segments of society, and he oprimistically
interprets the popular pursuit of uncovering the hidden mechanics of power as
evidence of a latent populism waiting to be harnessed.™

The political significance of conspiracy theory is its ability to represent disen-
franchised segments of society through expressions of distrust toward the gov-
ernment and the establishment of blame for society’s ills. The interpretacion of
conspiracy theory must begin with the observation that conspiracy theory is an
attempt to apprehend the past and the present by placing potentially disparare
events within a unifying interpretive frame. However, the process through which
conspiracy theory results is very problematic. The problems of conspiracy theory
can be arranged into 4 categories: 1) terminology. 2) information, 3) formulation
of the argument and 4) formulation of conclusions. Each of these categonies will
be addressed separately so that the significance of each can be fully understood.

PROBLEMS OF CONSPIRACY THEORY — TERMINOLOGY

THE FIRST AND MOST BASIC PROBLEM of conspiracy l:heor} lies in the termi-
nology and ambiguous meanings associated with the term “conspiracy theory.”
A definite distinction exists between a conspiracy and a conspiracy theory. The
former describes an actual instance of covert collusion, while the latter describes
something that exists only in the imagination of an observer.

A conspiracy involves two or more conspirators jointly and secretly aiming
to achieve a prohibited goal. Conspiracies do occur. The European powers did
conspire to divide up the Middle East during World War I (the Sykes-Picot
agreement); the Israelis did bomb American targets in Egypt in 1954 to put the
blame on Gamal Abdel Nasser (the Lavon Affair); and the U.S. government did
send arms to lran in the mid-1980s (the Iran/contra scandal).

Conspiracies subdivide into petry conspiracies, which work within the existing
order, and grand conspiracies, which aspire to world domination. The former are
limited affairs that involve a handful of individuals plotting to make money or
to seize power. They aim art transferring money from one pocket to another or
replacing one set of rulers with another. With some exceptions, petty conspiracies
receive little attention in the media and are generally not referred 1o as a conspiracy.
Rather, grand conspiracies are whar conspiracy theorists refer to when they use
the term conspiracy. Larger and more vague, grand conspiracies go beyond plots
for personal gain or for power or money;: they seck o destroy religion, subvert
society, change the political order, and undermine rruth itself. Grand conspira-
cies involve not duplicitous politicians or evil merchants but covert international
movements. They capture the imagination and inflame political passion; they
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are big enough to cause all the world’s ils. It is important to distinguish between
a petty conspiracy and a grand conspiracy during our evaluation of Skull and
Bones activities.

A conspiracy theary, on the other hand, is the unproven version of a conspiracy.
Anyone might speculate about the odd conspiracy theory, but the conspiracy thearist
makes this a habitual practice. He discerns malignant forces at work wherever
something displeases him; plots serve as his first method for explaining the world
around him. He suspects a plot or cover-up even when other, less malign explana-
tions better fit the facts. This preoccuparion with conspiracy theories is variously
called conspiracism or the conspiracy mentality. Just as conspiracies divide into two
sorts, the petry and the grand, so do conspiracy theories. Petty theories deal with
limited aims: grand conspiracy theories involve tears of world domination.

Grand conspiracy theories may also have local manifestations, but they invari-
ably fit into a larger scheme that maintains the ultimate goal of world hegemony.
Such theories have a finite history as previously illustrated. They began during
the Enlightenment in northwestern Europe, became a major factor with the
French Revolution, and peaked in importance in the three decades after 1918,
Grand conspiracy theories have a well-established structure and form. The story
begins with a small group attempting to benefit itself by clandestinely making
plans 1o take over the government or expand its influence abroad. Irs means can
be many - propaganda, destroying a political system, controlling multinarional
corporations - but the immediate goal is usually economic.

INFORMATION

GOOD RESEARCH is based on the ability to uncover accurate information. Hv-
potheses are formulated with informarion and historical events are analyzed us-
ing information recovered through research. However, there are three important
problems with research informarion that play a major role in conspiracy theories.
First, conspiracy theories, by their very definition, are not provable. Incomplete
and/or insufficient evidence is the primary component of conspiracies, effectively
moving the conspirator’s claims into the world of the uncertain and unknown.
Conspiracy theories focus on relationships and events thar are rarely covered in the
media and are generally given very little avtention. As a resulr, ivis difficult o find
records and information that would support a conspiracy theorist’'s hypotheses.
The question of legitimacy also comes into play disputing both the validity of
records and/or information as well as disputing the context in which the records
occurred verses the context in which it is used by conspiracy theorists.
Incomplete information is often used by conspiracy theorists to painta limited
picture of events in society from which certain assumptions must be drawn and
which prescribes specific conclusions. Because causation is never known to con-
spiracy theorists, they focus on inconclusive correlations drawn from incomplete
information. Certain assumptions must then be applied, generally of a secretive,
collective, long-range nature, which then require conspiratorial conclusions, The
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use of conspiratorial assumptions in order to produce conspiratorial conclusions
will became more evident as we analyze Skull and Bones involvement in both
the Bolshevik Revolution and the rise of Hitler.

Second, the excessive amount of information used by conspiracy theorists in
and of itself becomes problemaric. Conspiracy theorists commonly rely on large
amounts of information to prove their point. The assumption that since there is
so much information available on the subject it must be true is based on a com-
mon fallacy of logic; resulting in the conclusion that the sheer enormity of printed
text unquestionably makes the accusarion fact, despite generally large amounts
of irrelevant information and correlations that are unnecessarily included.

Third, the majority of conspiracy theory information and research is eicher
unfalsifiable or unverifiable, or both. The strength and weakness of conspiracy
lies at the fact that a conspiracy theory is unfalsifiable. The conspiracy theory
generates a large amount of information that draws correlations and which, under
certain interpretation, may point toward a specific conspiratorial explanation.
However, the theory as a whole cannot be proven as a legitimate conspiracy. nor
can it be proven as false, again drawing strength on correlations. Furthermore,
conspiracy theories are based on “privileged information” provided by an msider
whao claims to shed light on a given conspiracy. By the very nature of the claims
of an insider, there is no verifiability. Generally, an insider is alone when he at-
tempts to illuminate a conspiracy, and supporting testimony is rare.

Such is the case with author Antony Sutton. He was the first non-member
of Skull and Bones to allegedly obtain a membership list of Skull and Bones.
According to Sutton, an insider disenchanted with the goals of Skull and Bones
gave him a membership list. Much of the completed research on Skull and Bones
is based on the membership list that Sutton was given. However, later research
discovered that the membership list of Skull and Bones was annually printed in
the annual reports of RTA (Russell Trust Association) under whom Skull and
Bones is formally incorporated.” If the connection between Skull and Bones and
RTA was not discovered, then Sutton’s list of Skull and Bones members might
never have been verified. As it stands, many of Sutron'’s claims, based on insider
information, remain unverified.

As a result, informartion used in conspiracy theory is almost always incomplete
and inconclusive, unnecessarily excessive and unfalsifiable or unverifiable.

FORMULATION OF THE ARGUMENT

AS OPPOSED TO A SYSTEMATIC APPROACH to analysis, the approach and formu-
lation of arguments for conspiracy theories are all too often circular, ad hoc, and
biased. A circular argument is one of the most common fallacies for conspiracy
theorists, This fallacy occurs when one tries to prove point A by using point
B, which in turn is proved by the first point. An example of such an argument
would be the claim that Skull and Bones is involved in a grand conspiracy. As
evidence for this, theorists focus on the illegal financing activities of members.

" .
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Conspiracy theorists argue that illegal financing of enemy regimes is a way to
advance a global, conspiratorial agenda. Conspiracy theorists then claim that
Skull and Bones involvement in illegal financing proves that Skull and Bones is
involved in a Grand conspiracy. Did this circular endorsement prove anything
abourt the narure of Skull and Bones?

An ad hoc explanation of events occurs when the fundamental criteria for a
conspiracy changes from one event to the next, after the fact. Conspiracy theorists
examine situation 1 and determine that factors A, B and C are the fundamental
factors required for a conspiracy. An examination of situation 2 vields factors A,
D and E, and not A, B and C as in situation 1. Conspiracy theorists then alter
the fundamental criteria that are required for a conspiracy theory to existin order
to include situation 2. This alteration of fundamental criteria occurs after the
occurrence and examination of each new situation.

Many social scientists would argue that the trademark of conspiracy theory is
its lack of objectiviry. It is difficult, if not impossible to find conspiracy theory
literature that is not biased. Such literature is filled with the demonization of the
alleged conspiracy group, and it too often appears that the alleged conspirators
become the scapegoats of societal problems. Focus is spent on reiterating negative
affiliacions of individuals and negative representations of those affiliate groups. A
great deal of emphasis is based on those groups that either use secrecy or which
wield a great deal of power. Furthermore, all conspiracy research is presented in
the conspiratorial framework, often focusing on one or two elements thar fit the
prescribed framework while dismissing or all together ignoring information or
events that do not fit the framework.

FORMULATION OF CONCLUSIONS

THERE ARE TWO COMMON ERRORS that occur in the formulation of conclusions
of conspiracy theories. The first is a faulty conclusion that is drawn from fauley
informarion. The second is a faulty conclusion that is based on good evidence.
These errors are not exclusive to conspiracy, but rather they are problems of any
scholarly discipline.

A faulty conclusion drawn from faulty information is common with conspiracy
theory for many reasons. Legitimate information on a true conspiracy will be
nearly impossible to obtain. There is a lack of complex data; as a result, conspiracy
researchers are forced to draw conclusions from very limited information. They
are given to misinterpretation of information, which results in the furtherance
of faulty conclusions as conspiracy researchers rely heavily on secondary sources
to obrain their information. Many conspiracy researchers focus on work already
completed by others and generally fail 1o check their primary sources in order to
prevent misinterpretation and/or the misquoting of primary sources. This problem
is furthered by the Internet, where large amounts of information is passed along,
bur very rarely provides primary documentation of claims, which lends iself
toward misunderstanding and misquoting from other secondary sources.
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A simple key word search of Skull and Bones on the Internet will yield 100’
of websites with information pertaining to Skull and Bones. A careful study of
these web pages show that they all reiterate the same basic information, but as
the information is passed from one secondary source to the next, it loses its in-
formational accuracy. Names are misused and dates are confused. Each new site
attempts to add its own information and conclusions to be passed to the next
person for further evaluation and change. In the end we are left with 100’ of
web sires each dedicated to Skull and Bones, cach with its own conclusions and
assumptions based on information that may have lost its original accuracy.

Faulty conclusions based on good evidence can result from a fundamental ele-
ment of any scholarly work: the assumptions of each argument. Incorrect assump-
tions can misdirect and bias any research, resulting in a logical fallacy. For example,
the claim thar Skull and Bones is involved in the illegal financing of enemy regimes
is based on the assumption that illegal financing is a focus of Skull and Bones, and
that its members, as a whole, are engaged in this pracrice. Evidence indicates between
25 to 30 members of Skull and Bones were involved with firms who provided illegal
financing, over a 30-year period. Noting that during any given year there arc about
700 members of Skull and Bones living, 25-30 members does not seem to be an
accurate representation of Skull and Bones as a whole. Further research indicares
that the majority of members, during this time period, pursued fields in education
or business, and were not involved in illegal acrivities. The above assumption that
Skull and Bones is involved in illegal financing because a very small percentage of
members are involved in such activiries leads to a logical fallacy.

Another basic assumption of conspiracy theorists derives from the terminology
and definition of a conspiracy, As we stated carlier, the definition of a conspiracy
is when two or more conspirators jointly and secretly aim to achieve a prohibited
goal. However, the definition used by conspiracy theorists is slightly different.
As stated by John E. McManus, a conspiracy is “an endeavor engaged in secretly
by two or more persons for the accomplishment of an evil goal.” From the very
outset conspiracy theorists have attached specific values of good and evil to certain
behaviors. No longer is a conspiracy an attempt to achieve a prohibited goal, or
an actagainst the law, but a conspiracy becomes ambiguous as it begins o include
anything and anyone who might aid in the accomplishment of an “evil” goal, as
defined by the conspiracy theorists. The ambiguity of the conspiracy theorists'
definition becomes far-reaching and too inclusive as it begins to include any
liberal or non-conservative program or behavior.

Often the assumptions of conspiracy theory are not explicitly stared bus
implicitly assigned through the use of complex questions. A complex question
is formed when your proposition affirms more than one thing, but your ques-
tion allows for an answer to only one. An example of this line of questioning
would be “how was Skull and Bones involved in illegal financing?” In order to
answer the question, we must assume and acknowledge thar Skull and Bones was
involved in illegal financing without having proved that Skull and Bones was
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actually involved. In this manner, conspiracy theorists focus not on whether or
not a group is involved in a conspiracy, but rather the focus is on how they are
involved in a conspiracy, already assuming that a conspiracy is occurring without
proper examination and proof.

CONCLUSION

This section discussed the many potential flaws that surface when dealing with
conspiracy theory: namely the lack of uniformity in definition, the inadequacy of
information and the formulation of both argument and conclusion. In order to
fully understand the connection berween Skull and Bones and illegal financing,
1 will attempt to reduce these problems by eliminating both the assumptions of
conspiracy and the conspiratorial framework in an effort to create a falsifiable
test. This test will be used to then assess any possible correlations that may exist
between Skull and Bones and illegal financing.

4 — METHOD OF ANALYSIS
EXPERIMENTAL TEST VS. NON-EXPERIMENTAL TEST

IN ORDER TO ACCURATELY STUDY and assess correlations between membership
in Skull and Bones and participation in illegal financing, a reliable scientific
test design must be created. Although scientific methods are not always necessary
to answer research questions, they can be very effective in minimizing the biases
that affect subjective opinion. Many scientific designs rely on experimentation,
Experimental designs allow researchers the ability to control one or more
variables thereby eliminating potentially confounding factors. Such designs
are powerful because they can be effective in determining causal relationships
between variables.

However, because we are unable to control the variables that we are studying
(membership in Skull and Bones and participation in illegal Ainancing), we are forced
to rely on a non-experimental test design. Non-experimental test designs do norallow
for control or manipulation of variables, but rather stricr observations are used, from
which conclusions can be drawn. Non-experimental test designs do not yield results
thar are as strong as those of experimental test designs, and they generally do not
establish a causal relationship between the variables. However, non-experimental tests
are generally effective at determining correlations among variables, and continuation
of the test design over a period of time dramatically strengthens its conclusions.

There are two problems associated with non-experimental test designs. First the
quality of informarion that is observed and used for the test could be incomplete,
inaccurate or biased, which could result in unreliable and/or inconclusive conelu-
sions, Furthermore, the informartion that is used in the test could be selectively
chosen and biased, again resulting in unreliable and/or inconclusive conclusions.
Second, a lack of direct manipulation or control in the non-experimental de-
sign can cause problems in the interpretation of results because the investigaror
might not be able to properly handle extrancous factors. As a result, variables
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may become compounded and factors that are not of concern in the study may
complicate or taint the conclusions.

WHY A NON-EXPERIMENTAL TEST DESIGN WAS CHOSEN

FOR THE PURPOSE OF TESTING the relationship between membership in Skull
and Bones and participation in illegal ﬁnancing, a non-experimental cross-sec-
tional rest design will be used. This test design is simplistic in thar it “requires
nothing more than the collection of two or more measures on a set of subjects
or social entities at one point in time and requires no treatments or manipula-
tions.”" The cross-sectional design can be effective in determining whether or
not two or more variables are related. Because we will be unable to determine
causation through a non-experimental test, the establishment of correlations will
be the goal of our test.

A cross-sectional test design is useful in this study because it provides a scientific
framework through which the specified events can be studied. A scientific hypothesis
maintains validity when the hypothesis can be tested and can, potentially, be falsified.
On the other hand, as previously noted, conspiracy theory relies on ad hoc explana-
tions, explanations that do not provide a testable hypothesis because their basic as-
sumptions change with each new eventin order to maintain specific conclusions. The
conspiracy theory does not provide a process for systematic evaluation of more then
one situation. As a result, its conclusions are not generally considered scientifically
valid. The cross-sectional test will provide both testable hypotheses and a framework
for systematic evaluation of the hypotheses through the studied events.

A cross-sectional test design has both limitations and advantages. It does not allow
us to control specific variables; as a result we are forced to examine historical events.
Not only are we limited in how we conduct the study, but we are also limited in the
information available for testing, Information pertaining to this subject is scarce
and often biased in its traditional presentation by conspiracy theorists. Second, the
conclusions of a cross-sectional test do not show causation and depending on the
rigidity of the hypothesis that is used, could lend itself to misinterpretation. Third,
a cross-sectional test over one period in time produces weak conclusions. Continu-
ation of the same test is required with a large test sample over a long period of time
in order ro add strength 1o any conclusion produced.

However, the advantages of a cross-sectional test far ourweigh the limitations.
Given a random sample, the testing of several hypotheses will not show causation but
can indicate correlations between the variables. The test is also able to show a much
broader picture of the behavior of segments of society or society as a whole, thereby
reducing the occurrence of sample bias. The rest also provides a means of systemati-
cally testing various hypotheses in order to sustain or disprove a given hypothesis.

THE TEST FRAMEWORK

THE PURPOSE of the cross-sectional rest is to determine a relationship berween
membership in Skull and Bones and participation in illegal financing. The data
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for this test will be drawn from historical records as well as research and claims
made by several conspiracy theorists. The test will have two variables cach specifi-
cally measured. These variables will be tested against five separate hypotheses in
order to 1) maintain an unbiased examination of events and evidence as well as 2)
examine the results of a hypothesis that will be acceprable to both social scientists
and conspiracy theorists, This test will examine illegal financing o the Bolshevik
Revolution and the rise of Hitler by United States based financial firms.

VARIABLES

TwO VARIABLES will be used on our cross-secrional test design: 1) membership
in Skull and Bones and 2) participation in illegal financing by a firm.

MEASUREMENTS

MEMBERSHIP IN SKULL AND BONES will be determined through the membership
records of Skull and Bones. Membership in Skull and Bones is only important
to this study if the individual was a member of Skull and Bones during the time
period being examined (1917-1945).

A firm will be detined as a financial institution whose primary activity is
providing financing to industrial corporations or other entities. This definition
intentionally excludes industrial and production companies. A company such
as Ford or GE, who participated in illegal financing will not be included in this
study because the primary activities of both Ford and GE are production and
not financing. On the other hand, a company such as Guaranty Trust Company,
whose primary objective is to provide financing to production companies, would
fit the requirements.

Participation in illegal financing will be determined when a firm participates
in providing funds to a state or group against the established laws of the country
where the financing took place.

A firm is determined to be associated with Skull and Bones in one or more
of the following ways: if it was directly created by members of Skull and Bones;
if its president, chiel executive officer, or chairman of the board is a member of
Skull and Bones: or if 25 percent or more of its managing directors are members
of Skull and Bones. Conversely, a firm is determined to not be associated with
Skull and Bones if fewer then 25 percent of its managing directors are members
of Skull and Bones, if it was not ¢reated by a member of Skull and Bones or if
neither its president, CEO or Chairman are not members of Skull and Bones.
I am requiring 25 percent of a firm's directorship to be members of Skull and
Bones before that firm is classified as being associated with Skull and Bones in
order to eliminate the effects of confounding variables,

The variables to be studied are binary. In other words, a firm either participates
in illegal financing or it does not; Skull and Bones is either present, according
to the above definition, or it is not. I am nort allowing for variations of illegal
financing, nor am | examining intentions behind illegal financing at this rime.
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Likewise, there occur variations of Skull and Bones affiliations with various firms,
However, a firm will only be classified as affiliated with Skull and Bones if it fits
the specific requirements above, The elimination of variance in variables will aid
in the interpretive process,

The use of a binary state of variables is intended ro avoid pirfalls such as the
following example: a corporarte financier is a director of company A and company
B. He is not 2 member of Skull and Bones, but company A is heavily dominated
by Skull and Bones members. Both companies A and B are involved in illegal
financing, The link between company A and company B through the mentioned
financier would lead some to conclude that company B is also under the influence
of Skull and Bones through the common financier. However, such a link does not
indicate Skull and Bones influence over company B, and inclusion of company
B as a Skull and Bones dominated firm could skew the results of the da.

POSSIBILITY OF ERROR

AS WITH ALL FORMS OF MEASUREMENT, there is always some degree of error.
Establishing membership in Skull and Bones through reference to a private
membership list is subject to error because, despite strong research supporting
the validity of the membership list, Skull and Bones is secretive about its mem-
bership and no member of Skull and Bones has either confirmed or denied the
accuracy of the membership list. In the case of participation in illegal financing,
we cannot know which direcrors initiated and/or were involved in illegal financing,
We are forced to assume that all managing directors, by the very nature of their
position, were aware of the illegal financing, and with at least 25 percent of the
directorship consisting of members we can conclude that members of Skull and
Bones had some degree of influence and/or leverage in the decisions made.

EVENTS TO BE EXAMINED B B
FOR ANALYSIS 1 CHOSE TO EXAMINE the financing activities of firms during the
Bolshevik Revolution (1917-1926) and the rise of Hider (1923-1942). [ chose
these two historical events because during both time periods the United States
government had established very specific laws forbidding financial support to
the belligerent regimes by United States residents, Second, these two events
occurred in a relatively close time frame and the steucture and laws pertaining
to international finance were relatively similar. Third, these two events are the
primary focus of conspiracy theorists when claiming thar Skull and Bones is
involved in a conspiracy.

The further examination of an additional historical period of conflict such as
the Vietnam War or the Gulf War would add strength to the conclusions thar
will result from our rest, however very little rescarch has been completed by
conspiracy theorists or scholars in regards to potentially illegal financial transac-
tions of US firms after World War I1. Furthermore, the occurrence of changes in
international law after World War I1 resulted in a change in both the definitions

349



of international finance and the methods through which international finance
occurred. As a result, it would be very difficult to find another situation of finance
that maintained similar circumstances, laws and public opinion.

HYPOTHESES B —_— ——
AS PREVIOUSLY STATED, the core of the validity of scientific test designs is a
hypothesis that can be tested and potentially disproved, For our cross-sectional
test we will propose four separate hypotheses that were derived from the con-
spiracy theorists allegations in order to determine the existence of relationships
as well as provide a testing method thar may be accepred by both social scien-
tists and conspiracy theorists. Four hypotheses will be presented, starting wich a
very strict hypothesis and then loosening the restrictions with each consecutive
hypothesis.

The term “strict hypothesis”™ refers to a hyporhesis that has strong and dear
assumptions resulting in a strong prediction of results. A hypothesis that is “loose”
is one that is weak and unclear and results in weak predictions. A hypothesis that
is very restrictive or strict will be more favorable to a social scientist’s analyrical
framework and will be rejected by conspiracy theorists because of its strict assump-
tons, while a hypothesis that is roo loose could resulr in the failure to explain the
events in question. The hypothesis that will be most beneficial will most likely
be one thar falls somewhere between the very strict hypothesis and the very loose
hypothesis; being strict enough to point toward important correlations without
potentially ignoring other possibly significant connections.

As previously stated, the cross-sectional test has two variables: membership
in Skull and Bones, and participation in illegal inancing. As shown by Figure 1,
the presence of members of Skull and Bones is demonstrated by boxes A and B,
while the absence of members of Skull and Bones is demonstrated by boxes C
and D). Participation in illegal inancing is represented by boxes A and C and the
absence of participation in illegal financing is represented by boxes B and D.
Each of the four falsifiable hypotheses
will be presented in detail separately. Each
hyporthesis will include requirements
for falsification, the predictions of the
hypothesis and the significance of each
possible outcome of the hypothesis, After
all four hypotheses are presented, the fal-
sifiable test for evenrt 1 (Bolshevik Revolution) and event 2 (rise of Hitler) will be
presented, followed by the results of the test in relation to each hypothesis.

articipation

THE FIRST HYPOTHESIS, the most restrictive, is the hypothesis that Skull and
Bones related firms will provide illegal finance 1o enemy regimes while non-Skull
and Bones related firms will not provide illegal financing. In this hypothesis, we
will predict that all of the test data will fall into either box A or box D, will all
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Skull and Bones related firms participating in illegal finance and all non-Skull
and Bones related firms not participating in illegal finance.

The occurrence of data in boxes B and/or C will disprove this hypothesis. Data
in box B indicates that some Skull and Bones related firms did not participate in
illegal financing, while dara in box C indicates that some non-Skull and Bones
relared firms did participate in illegal financing.

If we were to find our data in box B, regardless of where other data falls, our
hypothesis that Skull and Bones is directly related with illegal financing would
be falsified, because it would indicated that members of Skull and Bones were
in a position to provide illegal financing but did not.

[f our data were to fall exclusively in boxes C and D then again the hypothesis
would be disproved, however because we are examining the relationship berween
membership in Skull and Bones and participation in illegal financing, we can
conclude that at least some of the dara will fall into box A.

If the data were to fall into boxes A Figure 2
and C, the results would also disprove S M oAy i
the hypothesis. Although, a collection of ) Megal Fnancing. 0 legs

the dara falling into boxes A and C does
not necessary disprove that a relationship |GGG
might exist berween members of Skull [REEEEEE
and Bones and involvement in illegal
financing, it does demonstrate that other firms in similar positions are engaging
in illegal financing: and may indicate that there are other factors responsible for
the illegal acrivity which does not include membership in Skull and Bones.

Hypothesis 1 will be rejected by conspiracy theorists because conspiracy
theorists will consider the assumptions of the hypothesis to be inaccurate. The
hypothesis limits participation in illegal finance exclusively to Skull and Bones
related firms while also making participation in illegal financing mandatory of
Skull and Bones members. However, a falsification of this hypothesis is useful
to this study and the establishment of relationships in that a falsification of
hypothesis 1 would indicare that illegal finance is not an exclusive behavior of
Skull and Bones. A falsification of hypothesis 1 also indicates that other factors
may exist that may influence a firm’s decision regarding participation in illegal
financing.

THE SECOND HYPOTHESIS states that the presence of Skull and Bones may or
may not result in the participadon in illegal financing but non-Skull and Bones
related firms will not participate in illegal financing. In hypothesis 2 we predict
thar the presence of Skull and Bones may or may not result in participation in
illegal financing. Therefore, if hypothesis 2 is correct, our data will fall in boxes
A, B, and D, with Skull and Bones related firms either participating or not par-
ticipating in illegal financing while non-Skull and Bones related firms would not
be participating in illegal financing,
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This hypothesis indicates that if a rela-
tonship exists berween Skull and Bones
and participation in illegal financing, then
it would be a weak relationship and pat-
ticipation in illegal financing would not

Present

Not Present be a primary behavior of Skull and Bones.
o=mzom X = Evidenca thot fabifies hypothess

In other words, Skull and Bones may not
be the primary motivation for participation in illegal financing. Hyporhesis 2 will
be falsified if any of the data falls into box 3, indicating that non-Skull and Bones
related firms are also participating in illegal financing. Again, a falsification of
hypothesis 2 indicates that illegal financing is not an exclusive behavior of Skull
and Bones and indicares that there are other factors influencing the decision to
participate in illegal financing.

THE THIRD HYPOTHESIS is thar rhe Figure 4.

Participation
[

presence of Skull and Bones will al-
ways result in illegal financing while
the non-presence of Skull and Bones
may or may not result in illegal financ- it
ing. In hypothesis 3 we predict that all [[RLE¥N
of our data will fall into boxes A, C and S T e hivie
D, with Skull and Bones related firms participating in illegal financing and
non-Skull and Bones related firms participating in both illegal financing and
non-illegal financing,.

This hypothesis would indicate that a relationship did exist berween Skull
and Bones and participation in illegal financing but it would also indicate
that other factors exist which are driving participation in illegal financing.
Therefore, a relationship between Skull and Bones and parriciparion in illegal
financing would exist, but would be weak. This hypothesis would be falsified
if any Skull and Bones related firms did not participate in illegal financing,
indicating that no relationship between Skull and Bones and participation in
illegal financing exists.

Participation No
i F |

THE FOURTH HYPOTHESIS is thar all firms will participate in illegal financing.
In this hypothesis we predict that all of our data will fall into boxes A and C.
All firms will participate in illegal financ-
ing and there will be no firms that will
not participate in illegal financing. This

Figure §

Participation No Participation

0LIng in legal Financing

14 9ems X hypothesis would indicate thar Skull

. es:m_‘ and Bones is not a contributing factor to
MoE Prasint X participarion in illegal financing, but that
O-= Hypothestts X Eviderce th Risies Mypothanis there are other motivating factors that are

enticing other segments of society to parrticipare in illegal financing, If daca falls
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into boxes B or C, then this hypothesis is falsified. A falsification of hypothesis
4 indicares participation in illegal financing is not a behavior of all financial
firms and there must exist some separating factor that influences some firms to
participate in illegal hnancing while not influencing other firms.

THE TEST

TWO MODELS ARE BEING EXAMINED. Model 1 demonstrates financial activities
of several firms during the Bolshevik revolution, while Model 2 demonstrates
financial activities of several firms during the rise of Hitler. Each model will
be examined separately followed by a comparison of the conclusions of each
model.

An error in our methodological framework is that much of the evidence used
for observation was drawn from government records and from conspiracy work
already completed, which also draws from government records. Consequently,
the available evidence provides a very narrow sample, which presents two fun-
damental problems. First, the sample itself is too small and lends itself toward
a large deviation in results. In the observation of the Bolshevik Revolution,
seven firms are a small portion of the American financial community. With a
sample of only seven firms, only a few of the firms would be required to both
participate in illegal financing and to be involved with Skull and Bones in order
for a relationship to appear to exist berween the two. As it stands in our test, 28
percent of the firms involved in the Bolshevik revolution were also involved in
Skull and Bones. A larger sample could very well decrease that percentage and
show a different relationship.

Furthermore, the sample is not representative of the society as a whole, For
example, the inclusion of illegal financial assistance to Germany by American
industrialists would show more then 300 American firms involved in trade with
Germany that aided in the development of the German war machine. Thus, il-
legal financing of Germany was not an exclusive behavior committed by a very
small few. However, it is difficult to determine what percentage of industrialists
were involved in illegal financing verses those industrialists who were not without
counting all industrial companies at the time, which would negate the purpose
of using a sample.

The second problem is that of sample bias. The original research question of
this work s based on the knowledge that some Skull and Bones dominated firms
were providing illegal financing to enemy regimes. Further research indicates
that there were other companies that were also involved in illegal financing but
were not involved with Skull and Bones. However, the inclusion of these firms in
our sample negates random sampling and steers our conclusions in a particular
direction. Furthermore, a lack of sufficient research in regards to those firms who
did not participate in illegal financing, and more importantly, those firms who
did not participate in illegal financing and who were associated with Skull and
Bones definitely lends irself toward a biased conclusion.
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RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN A FIRM’S PARTICIPATION IN ILLEGAL
FINANCING AND MEMBERSHIP IN SKULL & BONES

RESULTS - MODEL 1. In the cross-sectional analysis of a firm’s participation
in illegal Ainancing and membership in Skull and Bones during the Bolshevik
Revolution we find that just over 28 percent of our sample dara (or two of the
seven firms studied) fell into box A, showing that roughly 28 percent of our
sample were firms that participated in illegal financing and were athiliated with
Skull and Bones. We also find that roughly 56 percent of our sample (four of
the seven firms studied) participated in illegal financing bur were not affiliated
with Skull and Bones. We
also find that roughly 14
percent of our sample (one
of the seven firms studied)
did not participated in il-
legal financing and was not
affiliated with Skull and
Bones. An interesting point
is that there was no dara for
box B, representing Skull
and Bones affiliated firms

Figure 6 — Bolshevik Revolution

Falsifiable Test #1

Participation No Participation
in lllegal Financing in lllegal Financing

Skull & Bones
Present

1WA Harmmarn & To

1) Guaranty Trusy Company

1) Matioeal Cr 1) P Margan & Ca®

Skull & Bones
Not Present

2) Chase Matue

Kuhn, Lo

10 Chase Natioral Bank bl Perey Rovkefeller, i member of Skutl and Bones. on the

Bsard of wtrevion). bt meshershun s Skull and Bare did not ke up 200 pevcenyaf the
direciaroip
Loe B Margan firm was envolved heavily weh iflegal financeng during World War
and pavret controd wf Cogranty True Company i {812 However, there i mo eoting
crrdence to ndicats thap thy firm .u_.f.f' (! Mosgan was tovolped i J'ft'dgn|"_’,‘."rr.-mrmg ;.l'urmg
the Baliberak revolativn, nor i there evidence to indicate an influence of |8 Mergan on
the affides of Caananty Tewt Company duping the Balibevik vevolition

that did not participate in
illegal financing. This result
is due in part to a lack of
investigation into the ca-
reers of all Skull and Bones

members during this time period. Rather then investigate the careers of each
member during this rime period, | examined the board of directors of various
firms to determine if there was influence by Skull and Bones, according to the
previously stated definition of what Skull and Bones influence requires. It is
possible that Skull and Bones members entered various financial firms and did
not participate in illegal financing, but our evidence does not indicate whether
this is or is not the case,

Given the results of the data, model 1 disproves hypothesis 1, hypothesis 2
and hypothesis 4. Non-Skull and Bones related firms did participate in illegal
financing while some non-Skull and Bones related firms did not participate in
illegal inancing. These results indicate thart participation in illegal financing is
not an exclusive behavior of Skull and Bones. It also indicates thar there exist
other factors, which motivate participation in illegal financing. However the
data does not necessarily reject hypothesis 3; thar the presence of Skull and
Bones will always resule in illegal financing while the non-presence of Skull and
Bones may ar may not result in illegal financing, The sample evidence indicates
that rhere does exist a relationship berween Skull and Bones and participation
in illegal hnancing, However, it appears that membership in Skull and Bones
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is not a driving morivartion; rather there exist other motivating factors that
encourage firms to participate in illegal financing. The data also shows that
whatever external factor is motivating firms to participate in illegal financing.
itis not affecting all firms equally. No evidence exists to determine if there were
Skull and Bones related firms that did nor participate in illegal financing, as a
result our conclusions are weakened.

The objective in using a cross-sectional test was two-fold: First, although it
is not effective in determining causation, the cross-sectional test is able ro point
roward significant correlations. Second, those correlations can then be used to
provide a framework, or new perspective, through which the evidence can be
re-examined and bias can be reduced. On the other hand, the cross-sectional
test was unable to provide us with a direct answer as to what relatonship exists
between membership in Skull and Bones and illegal financing. As a result, we
will need ro turn to the evidence and arguments of conspiracy theorists for
further insight. The results of the cross-sectional test will aid this evaluation of
evidence by forcing us to focus on specific correlations and minimize any bias
or assumptions that have traditionally accompanied such evidence.

RESULTS - MODEL 2. In the cross-sectional analysis of a firm’s participation in
illegal financing and membership in Skull and Bones during the rise of Hit-
ler, we find that 50 percent of our sample (five of the ten firms studied) were
firms that participated in illegal financing and were affiliared with Skull and
Bones. We find that 40 percent of our sample (four of the ten firms studied)
participated in illegal financing but were not affiliated with Skull and Bones,
We also find that 10 percent of our sample (one of the ten firms studied) did
not participated in illegal f- Figure 7 — Rise of Hitler
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non-Skull and Bones related firms did not participate in illegal financing, This
model also indicates that participation in illegal financing is not an exclusive
behavior of Skull and Bones, and indicates that other motivarting factors may
exist. The data of model 2 also does not necessarily reject hypothesis 3; that
the presence of Skull and Bones will always result in illegal financing while the
non-presence of Skull and Bones may or may not result in illegal inancing.
The sample evidence indicates that there does exist a relationship between
Skull and Bones and participation in illegal hnancing; however, membership
in Skull and Bones is not a driving morivation. There appear to exist other
motivating factors that are encouraging non-Skull and Bones related firms
to participate in illegal financing. The darta also shows that wharever external
factors are motivating firms to participate in illegal financing, they are not
affecting all firms equally.

The conclusions of models 1 and 2 appear almost identical. Both models
disproved hypotheses 1, 2 and 4 while accepting hypothesis 3. Both models
appear to confirm thar a relationship does exist between being a member of
Skull and Bones and participaring in illegal financing; however, that relation-
ship is weak. Both models indicate thar Skull and Bones is not a morivating
factor for participating in illegal financing but rather other factors exist which
motivate firms to participate in illegal financing. In light of the results of this
test, namely: 1) a relationship does exists berween being a member of Skull
and Bones and participation in illegal financing, 2) the relationship is weak
and Skull and Bones is not a motivating factor, and 3) other factors exist in
society that are driving parricipation in illegal finance; an examination of the
evidence of illegal financing by Skull and Bones members, as presented by
conspiracy theorists, is necessary.

The results of our cross sectional test will provide us with a new perspective
and framework rthrough which we can reevaluate the evidence proposed by
conspiracy theorists. The goal of the cross-sectional test was threefold: first,
it was intended o help eliminate interpretive bias; second, to show possible
relationships between the variables, and three to provide a larger view of the
behavior of sociery. The results of the cross-sectional test will aid in the re-
evaluation of the evidence as it will bring into perspective the behavior of the
financial community during this time period as well as aid in recognizing and
eliminaring biased representation of information.

5 — BOLSHEVIK REVOLUTION AND THE RISE OF HITLER
AN EVALUATION OF EVIDENCE

TI-IE CROSS-SECTIONAL TEST completed in section four highlighted some
very important correlations regarding Skull and Bones and illegal financing.
Nevertheless, it did not provide strong answers to our question regarding the
nature of the relationship between Skull and Bones and illegal financing. A
further evaluarion of the evidence presented by conspiracy theorists is now
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needed in conjuncrion with the results of the cross-sectional rest in order to
gain additional insight.

Because conspiracy theorists focus on the existence of a grand conspiracy
aimed at taking over the world, events such as the Bolshevik revolution and
the rise of Hitler will be examined in order to see how members of Skull and
Bones are allegedly advancing the grand conspiracy. The conspiracy theorists
argument, as formulated by Skull and Bones researcher Antony Sutton, empha-
sizes the illegal financial activities of Skull and Bones members through three
Skull and Bones dominated firms berween the years 1917 to 1943. These firms
include W. A. Harriman and Co. (later became Brown Brothers, Harriman),
Guaranty Trust Company, and the Union Banking Corporation. Additional
emphasis is then placed on the corporate subsidiaries and affiliated corpora-
tions of these three firms,

Sutton states that both the W, A, Harriman and Co. and Guaranty Trust
Company were the “operational vehicles” through which Skull and Bones
was able to concentrate its illegal financing efforts, focusing on both the large
percentage of Skull and Bones members who make up the board of directors
of each of these companies as well as the many directors shared between these
two companices. By extension of the WA, Harriman & Co., the Union Banking
Corporation is also included for the same reasons mentioned above as well as
its unique financial agenda for which it was created.

Furthermore, according to Sutton, the goal of Skull and Bones, through
its illegal financial efforts, is to advance a financial domination of the world
through support of fascism and communism. As explained in section two,
conspiracy theorists believe that Skull and Bones supports both fascist and
communist regimes because both style of regime mainrains a government
controlled economy, which would benefit Skull and Bones firms through the
elimination of comperition. Yet, the financing of these regimes would only be
a means to an end, Sutton argues that financial support of the extreme left
(communism) and the extreme right (fascism) would cause a popular rejection
of both extremes in favor of a different form of government that could both
prevent and control extremist regimes. Eventually a New World Order would
be adopred with the members of Skull and Bones in control.

Sutton argues that this plan will be accomplished through the use of the
Hegelian Dialectic process, or managed conflict. This process involves the cre-
ation of a conflict, and the control of both sides of the conflict in order to steer
the conflicts resolution toward a desired goal. In the case of Skull and Bones,
according to Sutton, through the financing of both Communism (thesis) and
Germany's National Socialism (Antithesis), a conflict would arise which, if
controlled correctly, would result in an increased policy and public approval
for the implementation of a world government. The assumprion being that a
world government would control the world’s finances and would in turn be
controlled by members of Skull and Bones.
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An illustration of the Managed Conflict process involving Skull and Bones and
the illegal financing of the Bolshevik Revolution and the rise of Hitler, as proposed
by Sutton, breaks down into five basic parts, as illustrared in Figure 8.

The top box indicates what the
subject of the diagram is focusing
on: Skull and Bones involvement
in the illegal financing of enemy
Hitler's accession to Power rﬁ'gii’nt’&. The d_iag.r:Lm then splits
Construction and subsidy of | into two columns ro show the
National Sociallsm . -
1y Gty e S C(m:rnlled. l;he:fu\' on rhe‘ left
2) Uriion Banking Corp. and the antithesis on the right.
QoA Rrirn & The first set of boxes indicares

DFIieAS the two sides of the conflict thar
New Warld Order ; :
are being managed along with a
general period of time. The subsequent row of boxes indicates how the thesis
and antithesis are being created and managed followed by the third set of boxes
showing the method by which Skull and Bones is attempting to accomplish the
creation and management of the thesis and antichesis. The final box then shows
the controlled goal as a result of the management of conflict.

As was discussed in section 3, the conspiracy framework of analysis is far too
limiting and problematic. Sutton maintains that the illegal financing of enemy
regimes by members of Skull and Bones “can only be explained in the terms of
the Hegelian dialectic™ ', process. This framework assumes that Skull and Bones
is involved in a conspiracy of a grand nature without proving that to be the case.
Second, because it assumes a conspiracy is at work, it ¢liminates other possibili-
ties that might explain the situation. Using the results of the cross-sectional rest
performed in section 4 as a framework, a new analysis of the claims against Skull
and Bones must be conducted.

The evidence that will be examined in the following pages is in no way an
exhaustive study of illegal financing acrivities during the Bolshevik Revolution
or the rise of Hitler. Instead, we will focus our attention on the evidence that is
presented by conspiracy theorists against Skull and Bones in an attempt ro better
explain the events in question as well as to draw further insights as to the correct
nature of the relationship berween Skull and Bones and illegal financing by using
the results of the cross-sectional rest.

To begin this analysis of evidence, we will start with an examination of the
Guaranty Trust Company and Brown Brothers, Harriman (formerly W.A. Har-
riman & Co.) in order to explain why conspiracy theorists focus so heavily on
the activities of these two companies, and why these companies were labeled as
affiliated with Skull and Bones in the cross-sectional test. The activities of these
companies and their subsidiaries will then be presented for evaluation starting
with the illegal financing during the Bolshevik Revolution and then followed by
the activities of these Arms during the rise of Hider, in order to show thar the

Figure 8

Managed Conflict

Skull & Bones Financing of Enemy Regimes

Thesis Amtithesis
1917 Bolshevik Revolution

Construction and Subsidy of
the Soviet Union |920-45

1} Guaranty Trust Company
1} WA Harriman & Co,
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aid of these companies was critical to the development and/or maintenance of
Soviet communism and German fascism.

In addition to following these three companies, we will also follow the activi-
ties of specific members of Skull and Bones through their involvement with the
above-mentioned firms. This work will examine the activities of Averell Harri-
man ('13), Prescott Bush ('17), Roland Harriman ("17), Ray Morris ('01) and
George H. Walker, highlighting their illegal activities through these firms and
their subsidiaries.

For simplicity, and in order to accurately present the correlations stressed by
conspiracy theorists, members of Skull and Bones will be indicated by including the
year of their initiation into the Order of Skull and Bones next to their name.

GUARANTY TRUST COMPANY —

GUARANTY TRUST COMPANY WAS FOUNDED IN 1864 in New York. It grew rap-
idly by the absorbing other banks and trust companies including the Morton Trust
Company, the Standard Trust Company, and the National Bank of Commerce.
Guaranty Trust Company became a subsidiary of the ].P. Morgan firm in 1912
when the Harriman family sold 8,000 shares of 20,000 rotal outstanding shares to
J.P. Morgan, and has been known as Morgan-Guaranty Company since 1954.

The onginal capital for Guaranty Trust came from the Whitney, Rockefeller,
Harriman and Vanderbilt family, all of which are represented in The Order of
Skull and Bones, and on the Board of Guaranty Trust throughout the time period
being discussed. Directors of Guaranty Trust Company during this time frame,
who were also members of Skull and Bones, include:

Membership in The Order Of Skull and Bornes and Guaranty Trust Company:
* Indicates directorship in both W.A. Harriman ¢ Co, and Guaranty Trust
Company.

Harold Stanley ("08)

W. Murray Crane ('04)

Harry P. Whitney (1894)

W. Averell Harriman ('13) *
Knight Woolley ("17) *

Frank P Shepard ('17) (VP from 1920-1934)
Joseph R. Swan ('02)

Thomas Cochrane (1894)
Percy Rockefeller ('00)
George H. Chittenden ('39)
William Redmond Cross ('41)
Henry P. Davison, Jr. ('20)
Thomas Rodd (’35)

Clement D. Gile ('39)
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This concentration of members of Skull and Bones, according to Sutton, repre-
sents a tight collusion that could be very influential in the decision-making process
of the firm. This firm was classified as affiliated with Skull and Bones because this
firm: 1) was created by Skull and Bones members, 2) the Vice-President of the
Firm was a member of Skull and Bones during the time period discussed, and 3)
more then 25 percent of the firms directors were members of Skull and Bones.

Guaranty Trust Company was involved in illegal financing both before and
after the Bolshevik Revolution; was the backer of Ludwig Martens and his soviet
bureau; was the first Soviet representative in the United States; the first Soviet
fiscal agent in the United States; and received the fiest shipments of Soviet gold
to the United States.”

W.A. HARRIMAN & CO.. B

W.A. HARRIMAN & CO. WAS ESTABLISHED IN 1920 by Averell Harriman('13)
with George Herbert Walker (father-in-law of Prescott Bush ('17)) as President
and Roland Harriman ('17) as Vice-President. W.A. Harriman & Co. merged
with the British-American investment house, Brown Brothers, on January 1,
1931, George Herbert Walker retired vo his own G. H. Walker & Co, leaving
the Harriman brothers, Prescott Bush and Thatcher M. Brown of the Brown
Brothers firm as the Senior-partners. From its inception, the W.A. Harriman &
Co. (Brown Brothers, Harriman) housed members of The Order.

Like the Guaranty Trust Company. members of The Order of Skull and
Bones also established the original W.A. HARRIMAN & CO. Furthermore, this
firm was also dominated and subseantially owned by members of the Order of
Skull and Bones. It is in this context that some investigators attempt to unravel
episodes of illegal financing to both the Bolshevik Revolution and Hitler’s rise
to power.

Membership in The Order of Skull and Bones and of Brown Brothers, Harriman
(Formerly W.A. Harriman & Co.):
indicates directorship in both WA, Harnman & Co. and Guaranty Trust Company.
A indicates directorship i both WA, Harriman & Co. and the Union Banking
Corporation.

W. Averell Harriman ('13) °

E. Roland Harriman ('17) » (VP from 1920-1926)
Ellery S, James ("17)

Ray Morris ('01)A

Prescott Sheldon Bush ('17)A (VI 1926 -)

Knight Woolley ('17) *

Mortimer Seabury ('09)

Robert A. Lovett ('18)

Eugene WM. Stetson, Jr. ('34)
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Walter H. Brown ('45)

Stephen Y. Hord ('21)

John Beckwith Madden ('41)

Grange K. Costikyan ("29)
Partners norin The Order:

Matthew C. Brush

Thatcher M. Brown

Here too we find a large concentration of members of Skull and Bones within
W.A. Harriman & Co. although the board of direcrors of WA, Harriman & Co.
has grown since the World War I1, during the period of time in question only four
partners existed, three of whom where members of Skull and Bones. This firm
was also included in my classification as affiliated with Skull and Bones because
1) it was created by members of Skull and Bones, 2) both the President and
Vice-President were members of Skull and Bones, and 3) more then 25 percent
of the direcrors were members of Skull and Bones.

CONSPIRACY THEORISTS GENERALLY FOCUS THEIR ATTENTION on the illegal
financing activities of W.A. Harriman & Co. and Guaranty Trust Company
which benefited the Sovier regime during and following the Bolshevik Revalution.
Special emphasis is placed on those industrial companies that were controlled by
these two firms, namely the International Barnsdall Corporation, the Georgian
Manganese Company, which provided the technology and equipment needed
for industrial production in the Soviet Union, and the USSR’s first narional
bank, Ruskombank, which provided a means by which the Soviet regime could
establish credit with the United States. Conspiracy theorists also draw attention
to the anti-communist activities conducted by these companies domestically as
evidence of the Hegelian managed conflict process.

INTERNATIONAL BARNSDALL CORPORATION

THE BOLSHEVIKS TOOK CONTROL OF THE CAUCASUS and the Baku oil fields
in 1920-21. As a result of mismanagement and political chaos, the oil field drill-
ing in the Baku almost ceased berween 1921-1923. The Chairman of Azneft
(The Soviet oil production trust). put forward a program for recovery of the
oil fields, however the program required equipment and technology thar was
not available in Russia. In an article published in Pravda, Seprember 21, 1922,
Serbrovsky stares,

But just here American capital s going to support us. The American firm
International Barnsdall Corporation has submitted a plan ... Lack of equipment
prevents us from increasing the production of the oil indusiry of Baku by our
selves. The American firm ... will provide the equipment, start drilling in the oil
fields and organize the technical production of oil with deep pumps. *
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[nternational Barnsdall Corporation, together with Lucey Manufacturing Com-
pany and other major foreign oil well equipment firms fulfilled Azneft 's plan.
The first International Barnsdall Corporation concession was signed in October
1921 and was followed by two mare in September 1922, despite the fact that
Federal Authorities prohibited trading in Russian credits in the Unired Srates®.

Guaranty Trust Company, W.A. Harriman & Co. and Lee, Higginson Company
owned the Barnsdall Corporation. The Barnsdall Corporation owned 75 percent
of the International Barnsdall Corporation, with the other 25 percent owned by
H. Mason Day. A member of Skull and Bones represented the Lee, Higginson
Company on the Board of Directors of Tnternational Barnsdall Corporation. The
Chairman was Matthew C. Brush, one of the very few directors of W.A. Harriman &
Co. who was nota member of The Order of Skull and Bones, It is argued that Skull
and Bones had a significant hold and influence on the affairs of the International
Barnsdall Corporation through its strong representation in three of the four compa-
nies owning the International Barnsdall Corporation. Nevertheless, evidence tends
to ignore the other major firms involved in this transaction. Conspiracy theorists
argue that members of Skull and Bones, through the W.A. Harriman & Co. and
Guaranty Trust Company, were able to use the Internarional Barnsdall Corporation
in order o aid in the development of communism (the Hegelian thesis.) We shall
see similar behavior with the Georgian Manganese Company.

GEORGIAN MANGANESE COMPANY

W. AVERELL HARRIMAN, WITH MATTHEW C. BRUSH as Chairman, formed
the Georgian Manganese Company in 1923, On July 12, 1925, a concession
agreement was made between the W, A. Harriman & Co. of New York and the
USSR to provide loans and foreign exchange for the purpose of exploitation of
the Chiaturi manganese deposits and extensive introduction of modern mining
and transportation methods.” Under this agreement $4 million was spent on
mechanizing the mines and converting them from hand to mechanical operation,
including the production of a railroad system, an aerial tramway for the transfer
of ' manganese ore and loading elevators.

On August 10, 1920, the U.S, State Department adopred the policy of un-
recognition to be the official ULS. policy toward the Soviet Union.” This policy
prevented the extension of credit to the Soviet Union and permitred only pre-
approved trading, This policy was in effect until President Roosevelt took office
in 1933. The activities of both the International Barnsdall Corporation and the
Georgian Manganese Company in the years of 1921-22 and 1925 respectively,
were not approved by the U.S. government and were in direct violation of the
State Department’s prohibirion.

Both the International Barnsdall Corporation and the Geargtan Manganese
Company were both heavily involved in illegal activity in support of Soviet develop-
ment while receiving a large percentage of their financing through W.A. Harriman
& Co. A member of Skull and Bones, Averell Harriman('13) founded the Georgian
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Manganese Company, while W.A. Harriman & Co. and Guaranty Trust Company
owned more then two-thirds of the Barnsdall Corporation, which in turn owned
75 percent of the International Barnsdall Corporation. Despite having parrial
ownership, it is difficult to tell what role the members of Skull and Bones in the
W.A. Harriman & Co. and Guaranty Trust Company firms played in the decision
making process of either the International Barnsdall Corporation or the Georgian
Manganese Company. 1 did not include these two companies in the cross-sectional
test because the primary function of these companies is not to provide financing to
other corporations or entities, but rather their primary function is industrial.

GUARANTY TRUST COMPANY AND RUSKOMBANK

IT IS ARGUED THAT MEMBERS OF SKULL AND BONES were not only providing
technology and equipment to the Soviet Union, but they were involved in the
creation of a bank that would allow Credit to the Soviet Union. In 1920 the
Anglo-Russian Chamber of Commerce was created to promote trade with Russia.
The Chairman of its Executive Committee was Skull and Bones member Samuel
R. Bertron('85), a Vice President of Guaranty Trust Company. In a letter from
the Anglo-Russian Chamber of Commerce to the State Department, dated July
1, 1921, requests, “What date trading in Russian credits was prohibited in the
United States by Federal Authorities?™®

Despite knowledge of Guaranty Trust Company’s Vice-President Samuel Ber-
tron('83) that trading and banking with the Soviet Union was deemed illegal by
the State Department, Guaranty Trust Company initiated trade with the Soviet
Union against State Department regulations. Guaranty Trust Company, in associa-
tion with several German, Swedish and British bankers, formed a joint banking
agreement with the Soviets in the fall of 1922. Ruskombank (Foreign Commercial
Bank or the Bank of Foreign Commerce) became the first Soviet commercial bank,
and was headed by Olof Aschberg.” A Vice-President of Guaranty Trust Company
was installed as the first VP of Ruskombank in charge of its foreign operations.'
Guaranty Trust Company came to represent Ruskombank the in the US.

The objectives of Ruskombank “were to raise short-term loans in foreign
countries, to introduce foreign capital into the Soviet Union, and generally to
facilitate Russian overseas trade.”'" At the opening of the bank, Olof Aschberg
commented, “The new bank will look after the purchasing of machinery and
raw material from England and the United States and will give guarantees for
the completion of contraces.™"?

Conspiracy thearists point toward the illegal financing that was provided by
U.S. firms as evidence of a conspiracy, as well as the joint directorship of these
firms by Skull and Bones members such as Averell Harriman as proof of collusion.
There is a link berween membership in Skull and Bones and directorship in both
W.A. Harriman & Co. and Guaranty Trust Company. There also exists a link
berween these firms and their subsidiaries: the Georgian Manganese Company and
the International Barnsdall Corporation. The most dominant link that appears
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to exist is the presence of Averell Harriman in the directorship of W.A. Harriman
& Co. and Guaranty Trust Company, as well as both subsidiaries.

A broader view of socicty shows that during 